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10701. Q. And they would remove as soon as they ascertained that the air was cut off? You would expect 
them to report the circumstance 1 A. Yes. 
10705. Q. So that that danger is purely imaginary? A. I think so. 
10706. Q. Where it is necessary to have very large pillars, say 100 yards square, of course cut-throughs 
every 30 yards would be out of the question? A. Yes. 
10707. Q. And it is necessary to have large pillars in deep mines? .4. It is. 
10708. Q. And, as a matter of fact, all you require in such cases, the main object, is to have sufficient 
ventilation 1 A. That is the main object.. 
10709. Q. And is it not quite immaterial how that is secured? A. Immaterial. 
10710. Q. So long as sufficient ventilation is supplied? A. Yes. 
10711. Q. Now, Mr. Bruce Smith said something about the danger of using the hydrogen flame-do you 
know that the pressure in the cylinder is 1,500 lb. to the square inch I A. I believe that it is something 
like that. 
10712. Q. And that is not a lamp to be used for every day use? A. I do not think it is. 
10713. Q. Do you know anything about the time it takes to make a test with the hydrogen lamp? A. I do not. 
10714. (9. Have you seen it used by anybody else? A. No. 
10715. (9. You have already said that you think the men would be disinclined tD go to the trouble of being 
shown the ddlbrent exits from the mine? A. Yes, I think so. 
107 16. Q. Assuming that they were willing to be shown one say that they were willing to be shown an 
exit a mile long to-day do you think that they would be willing to be shown another to-morrow 1 A, I do 
not think so. 
10717. Q. And other exits each day for 6re, or six, or ten days afterwards I A. I do not think that they 
would be willing to be shown. 
10718. Q. And can you realise that it is quite possible that to show the different exits of a mine might take 
ten days or more in large mines? A. Yes. 
10719. Q. Then, in the event of an explosion in a mine, no one can say where it has occurred? A. No. 
10720. (9. And no one can say whether the course they may take will lead them into danger? A. They 
cannot be sure. 
10721. Q. It is really a tossup whether they go into danger or into safety? A. Yes. 
10722. Q. You do not approve of gunpowder for use in any mine where gas has been seen? A. No; I do 
not approve of gunpowder. 
10723. 9. You think some of the safety explosives should be used? A. Yes. 
10724. 9. Do you know that these safety explosives are usel in the colony already? A. Yes; I believe 
roburite is used at the Metropolitan. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie :- 

10725. Q. Do I understand yu to say that there is no greater risk to the miner working 100 yards ahead 
of a cut-through than there is to one working only 30 yards ahead? A. I do not think there is any greater 
risk. 
10720. Q. Let me put a case like this to you : supposing a large fall took place somewhere in the mine, which 
sent out a large blast of air heavily charged with carbonic acid gas, disarranged the canvas, and sent this 
blast of air heavily charged with carbonic acid gas into the heading, 100 yards ahead of the cut-tlirough_ 
would the men 100 yards away have the same chance of escaping as the men 30 yards away? A. There would 
be the same danger at 30 yards of the carbonic acid gas getting into the face. 
10727. Q. Would there be the same possible hope of the men getting away from 100 yards ahead of the 
cut-through as from 30 yards ? A. They would have farther to go. 
10728. (9. With the ventilation heavily charged with carbonic acid gas, would not a man who has to go 
100 yards stand a greater chance of going down than a man who has only to go 30 yards? A. Yes. 
10729. 9. Now, is not there a danger? A. In currents charged like that there would be. 
10730. (9. Then you admit that there is a greater danger for the miner working 100 yards ahead of a cut-
through than there is for the miner working 30 yards ahead of it? A. Under the circumstances that you relate. 
10731. Q. Now, you have said that it is necessary to have larger pillars in a deep mine than in a shallow 
mine : have you got any formula laid down to guide you in that? A. I have read formuhe attached to it. 
The greater the depth the greater the pressure. 
10732. 9. Would not a great deal depend on the nature of the strata immediately next the coal ? A. No. 
10733. 9. If you hal good hard strata for some considerable thickness next the coal, it would be of no 
al vantage over strata of a soft nature 1 A. If we had small pillars with thick covering, I do not see that 
the hard nature of the stone next to the coal would have much to do with it. It might bring on a creep 
with small pillars and thick covering. 
10734. Q. Take it that the pillars are 30 yards, and the cut-throughs are 6 feet wide : would the nature of 
the strata next the coal have nothing at all to do with the question of whether the roof would remain up or 
not ? A. Every cut-through weakens the pillar. 
10735. Q. That may be quite true but the question is this, would not the thickness of the pillars required 
dept-nd very much on the nature of the strata next the coal? A. Well, it may depend on that slightly, yes. 
10736. Q. Then, it does not follow that the same size of pillar would be requisite in any two mines with 
the same thickness of strata 1 A. They nearly all run the same. 
10737. Q. What do you mean by that? A. Taking the strata generally for the South Coast District, it is 
pretty well all the same. There is not much difference in the various collieries. 
10738. 9. But we are dealing with a question affecting other collieries? A. Which is one reason why we 
could not make it a hard and fast rule. All collieries are not alike. 
10739. Q. Then, in your opinion, would 30 yards be sufficient for the South Coast strata? If you had a 
30 yard pillar would that be sufficient to maintain the roof? A. I think the larger we make the pillars the 
better, on the South Coast. 
10740. 9. The better for what? A. To ensure safety from creel). 
10741. 9. Have you ever known of any creeps through the pillars being too small here? A. No. 
10742. Q. You have not known of any creeps in this district through the smallness of the pillars? A. I 
have heard tell of one or two. 
10743. 9. Where were they? A. South Bulli, I believe, was one ; South Clifton, I believe, was another. 
10744. 9. Have you heard of any creeps at Mount Keira? A. No. 10745, 
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10745. Q. Do you know that the pillars in Mount Keira have been driven so thin in years gone by that 
they have been driven into one another I A. I have heard that. 
40746. Q. Have you found them even the half of 30 yards? A. I have heard that. 
10147. Q. Not 5 yards, in many places and yet you have no creeps there I A. When the cowering was very 
thin 
10748. Q. Do you know the thickness of the covering from the tunnel mouth at Mount Keira ? A. It might 
be 100 feet at the tunnel mouth. 
10749. Q. And what is it now where they are working? A. From 400 to 600 feet, I suppose. 
10750. Q. How long have you had these pillars going in the way you have mentioned here, about 60 yards? 
A. For a number of years, in some cases. 
10751. Q. Have you had them going for ten years? A. I believe we have had some going for ten years. 
10752. Q. I suppose you know that you could not have them going for ten years for that distance? You 
know that nuder the old Act they could not run over 3.5 yards 1 A. We have pillars that were driven, 
under the old Act, there which are 40 yards thick, at any rate. 
10 75 3. Q. But you have not had them 40 yards so far back I A. Without cut-throughs? 
10754. Q. Without cut-throughs? A. I could not say. 
10755. Q. You know that the Act, prior to 1896, would not permit it? A. Yes. 
10756. Q. Do you not know that prior to the passing of that Act you had no real pillars at all? A. We had 
some very large pillars. 
10757. Q. You do not think there were any over 35 yards? A. I could not say for certain. 
10758. Q. Do you know that at that time they were breaking into one another? A. I do not know. 
10759. Q. What district do you examine? A. The Old Straight. 
10760. Q. Do you examine for the men in the morning 1 A. Yes. 
10761. Q. How many places have you got to examine? A. About thirty-two. 
10762. Q. And do you know approximately what area these thirty-two places cover? A. I could not say. 
10763. Q. Would they be half a mile apart? \Yould the two extremes of the places be half a mile apart? 
A. Yes, something like that. 
10764. Q. And when do you begin your examination in the morning? A. Four o'clock. I leave the tunnel 
mouth at 4. 
10765. Q. You examine these thirty-two places? Do you examine the roadways also? A. Yes. 
10766. Q. You examine all the ventilating roadways? A. Yes. 
10767. Q. And what time do you get (lone? A. About ten minutes to 7. 
10768. Q. And where have you got to be at that time? A. At the station. 
10769. Q. How far is that from the tunnel mouth? A. It might be about a mile. 
10770. (7. And what method do you adopt in your examination? A. I examine each place for any gases, 
on the bottom. I also examine at the highest point for fire-damp; and two or three examinations a?ong the face 
10771. Q. Do you do that in every place? A. in every place. 
10772. Q. Do you mean to tell us you do that in thirty-two places from 4 o'clock in the morning till ten 
minutes to 7 ? A. I do. 
10773. Q. And you examine the roadways? A. Yes. 
10774. Q. About what distance do you travel now, in those thirty-two places? How many miles? A. I 
could not say. 
10775. Q. Do you take any part in examining the waste workings? A. Yes. 
10770. Q. How of ten do you lo that? A. Once a week. 
10777. Q. Do you do it by yourself? A. Yes. I have done it in company with the under-managers. 
10778. Q. And do your duties in examining the waste workings take you all over the mine? A. No ; only 
those in my district. 
10779. Q. And what method do you adopt in examining waste workings? A. I go into all places that I can 
get into. I go up on the falls. 
10780. Q. Do you go in as far as you can get in? A. Ye. 
10781. Q. And this is done regularly every week? A. Yes. 
10782. (7. I suppose you have got reports of these examinations? A. Yes, 
10783. Q. Do you write your report on the state of the working places and the ventilation every morning 
before the men are allowed to go in I A. Yes. 
10781. Q. Now, in connection with the deputies and shot-firers, I think you said, in answer to Mr. Robertson, 
that the deputies really had the lives of the whole of the men in their hands? A. Yes; they have practically 
got the lives of the men in their hands. 
10785. Q. Now, in view of that very great responsibility, do you not think it absolutely necessary that they 
should have some certificate showing their fitners for the positions which they have been appointed to? 
A. I believe it is possible for the practical man to be better than the man who can pass an examination and 
has the education. 
10786. Q. Perhaps we will not dispute that at all but do you not think that it is necessary that he should 
have some certificate, given by a competent authority, to show that that is so? A. It is necessary that he 
should have some certificate of some examination ; but I should say a certificate by a manager would be 
sufficient. - 
10787. Q. But do you not think that the judgment of three examiners would give more confidence than the 
judgment of one ? A. Yes. 
10788. Q. And would it not give greater security to have the judgment of three persons than of one, who 
might be liable to misjudge? A. I do not think a manager would send a man who was incompetent into 
that position. 
10789. Q. But I think you have said already that a person who did not know anything at all about gas was 
incompetent? A. Yes. 
10790. Q. And this person was a deputy? A. I do not know anything at all about a deputy being 
incompetent. 
10791. Q. But we have it in evidence that you said that a person who did not know anything at all about 
gas was incompetent; and this person who did not know anything at all about gas was a deputy. 
10792. dIr. Bruce Smith.] I think he said he did not know anything about the composition of gas. 
10793. Mr. Ritchie.] I will not press the matter in that way. 10794. 
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10794. Q. Do you not think it is absolutely necessary that the person, or any person, who is going to be 
appointed as an examining deputy, should be practically tested, if not tested in a theoretical way ? A. I 
think so. 
10795. Q.  As a matter of fact, he should demonstrate his fitness for the position 1 A. I think so. 
10796. Q. Well, is that practice adopted in appointing deputies now 1 A. By the Managers, yes. 
10797. Q. How do you know that? A. That is the practice at Mount Keira. 
10798. (1. Take your own case: what examination did the Manqger put you through? A. The first time, I 
was appointed was by the late Mr. MacCalm ; and he asked me several questions concerning the position. 
10799. Q. Of course you had a certificate then? A. Yes. 
10800. Q. Well, of course, that in itself would probably be taken as sufficient by any ordinary manager I 
A. Yes. 
10801. Q. But you have other deputies at Mount Keira who have not got certificates? A. Yes. 
10802. Q. Do you know of any test that the Manager put them to? A. I believe that the late Mr. MacCabe 
put my brother through a test. 
10803. Q. What test did he put him through? A. I could not say. 
10804. Q. And, after all, do you not think, considering the serious responsibility in connection with the 
position of deputy, which you appear to have realised, that it would be a greater security to have a 
certificate by three competent persons, at least, certifying to a man's fitness, instead of one 1 A. It may 
give the men greater security. 
10805. Q. Now, do you not think that it is absolutely necessary that the greatest measure of security 
possible should he had that is consistent with a fair examination, in order to ensure the safety of the 
workmen? A. Oh, yes. 
10806. Q. You realise, of course, the great responsibility these men, the deputies have? A. Yes. 
10807. ihfr. Bruce Smith.] I have found that answer of Livingatone's, the deputy referred to by Mr. Ritchie 
as having said that he had no knowledge of gas. He says that all the knowledge he has is a practical 
kniowledge of coal-getting, and a practical knowledge of looking for gas, which does not involve a knowledge 
of chemistry. That is a sort of summary by His Honor of what the witness had said. 
10808. Mr. Ritchie.] I believe that that is generally what the witnesses have said who have expressed their 
ignorance of gas and their ignorance of its properLies ; but it has only been put in that way by them when 
the question has been put to them in that way. Some of them have openly said that they had no knowledge of 
gas and it was only when the question was put to them in that way that they put it in that qualified manner. 
10809. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Lysaght said that a deputy had been appointed who had no knowledge of 
gas ; and then His honor said : He says that all the knowledge he has is a practical knowledge of coal- 
getting, and a practical knowledge of looking for gas, which does not involve a knowledge of chemistry." 
10810. AIr. 1mitcJtie.] Yes I know they have made that qualification when it has been put in that way. 
10811. Q. Now, do you think that they should be able to demonstrate their practical knowledge of gas? 
A. Ys. 
10812. Q. And that they should be certified to as having a practical knowledge of gas? A. Yes. 

Further examination by Mr. Robertson 

10813. Q. With reference to this hypothetical case stated by Mr. Ritchie, of a fall driving out carbonic 
acid gas upon the men, and endangering men 70 yards ahead of a cot through, I suppose you know of the 
Long-wall system ? You know that that is the most approved system of coal-mining? A. Yes. 
10311. Q. And in Long-wall you may have 500 or 1,000 yards of face in a long split.? A. Yes. 
10815. Q. And the same thing might happen there, and put, not two men, but twenty, in danger, or more I 
A. Yes. 
10816. Q. Now, I understood from an answer you gave to Mr. Ritchie, that you believed that the old Act 
did not permit cut-thi'oughs to be driven more than 30 yards apart? A. That I said so? 
113817. Q. Yes? A. No. That was not my meaning, at all events. 
10818. Q. I think Mr. Ritchie suggested that? A. Yes; he asked me some question relating to the old Act.. 
10819. Q. That the old Act stipulated for cut-throughs to be 35 yards apart? A. Yes. 
10820. Q. As a matter of fact., the old Act permitted cut-t.hroughs to be driven any distance apart under a 
certain condition? A. So far as I know, it did. 
10821. Q. That is so, if bratticed up? A. Yes. 
10S22. Q. Now, in answer to Mr. Ritchie, you modified your opinion as to the necessity for deputies and 
shot-firers passing an examination? A. Yes. 
10823. Q. You thought it would give more confidence ? A. Yes it would give more confidence to the men 
if the men knew that the d puties had passed an examination ; but it would depend upon whom the 
examination would be by. 
10821. Q. Now, assuming thit the board of examiners would be the same gentlemen as now act for the 
examination of managers and under-managers---ou have already said that the qualities necessary in a deputy 
or shot-firer are personal qualities, and a practical knowledge_can you tell inc how such a board would 
ascertain a candidate's practical knowledge in a room? A. It would be very difficult. 
10825. Q. Is it possible, unless they have had the opportunity of watching the man, his methods, and his 
work, over some long period? A. 'l'hey could not (10 it very well. 
10826. Q. It would practically only be his book•knowledge that they could ascertain ? A. Yes. 
10827. Q. Do you, therefore, think that their certificate w-oulcl give more confidence than the testimonial of 
a manager who knows his men, and selects them because of their ability and experience ? A. No ; I do 
not think it would. A manager who has watched a man's practical work ought to know better how be is 
qualified. 
10828. Q. Supposing you are a Manager of a mine : which would you rather have-a c:rtificate or 
testimonial from another manager as to a deputy's or shot-firer's qualifications ; or the certificate of sushi a 
board ? A. I would sooner have the man as a practical man under me. 
10829. Q. Whose certificate would you rather have? A. The manager's or the board's? 
1'$.0. Q. Yea? A. I would take the manager's certificate. 

[Witness left.] 

HOMAS 
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THOMAS MUIR was sworn, and examined as under: 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Curtiss :- 
10831. Q. What is your name? A. Thomas Muir. 
10832. Q. Where are you working? A. Mount Kembla. 
10833. Q. How long have you been there? A. These last fifteen years. 
10834. Q. What are you? A. A miner. 
10835. Q. Do you remember the day of the disaster at Mount Kembla? A. I do: quite well. I should 
remember it too. I was in it. 
10836. Q. Where were you working on that occasion? A. In the shaft district. 
10837. Q. What part were you working in? Any particular part of the shaft district? A. I was in No. 
11 bord, at the left-hand of the shaft district. 
10838. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Is that where you were working before the disaster? A. When it happened. My 
cavil was in the 2nd Right; but I was working down there in No. 11. I was working in the pillar. 
10839. Mr. Curtiss.] Q. Can do describe what occurred? A. That would be very hard to do, in the position 
I was in-to describe the explosion. 
10840. Q. Did you notice anything? A. The only thing I noticed was about half-past 1-there was a 
dulness in my ears. I was working with the pick at the face; and I felt a dulness coming on me in 
the head. I worked from them until a quarter to 3; and I went out then as the smoke was coming 
rolling in. 
10841. Q. Was it smoke? A. Smoke and smell. My nephew was there with me; and I said to him "It 
is time we were getting out of this: this is sometlnng we have never seen before." 
10842. Q. What is your nephew's name? A. James Muir. 
10843. Q. Then, did you get out? A. Yes; I got out. Of course I got out ; you see me here, do you not? 
10844. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You yourself, or your nephew, which? A. Both of us. 
10845. Mr. Curtiss.] Q. Do you know gas when you see it in the mine? A. No; I have never seen gas. 
10846. Q. You have never seen gas? A. Unless after we had fired a shot. I have seen it there: walking 
up with a light, it would light up before you got near the face. It would catch about this far off 
[indicating a distance of about afoot]. I do not know whether you call that gas : I have seen that often 
enough. 
10847. Q. You have seen that after flung a shot? A. Yes, 
10848. And you cannot say whether it was gas, that is fire-damp, or powder gas? A. No; I am not learned 
enough. But I have seen that often in Mount Kembla. 
10849. Q. Where you were working, did you ever see any signs of gas? A. No. 
10850. Q. Did you ever work at the 4th Right pillars? A. Yes. 
10851. Q. When was that? A. Just before the explosion. 
10852. Q. How long before? A. Between three and four weeks. I could not be certain to a (lay or a dae. 
10853. Q. Did you see any gas there, or black damp? A. I have seen plenty of black-damp. Well;  I do 
not know whether it was black-damp ; but my lamp would not burn, and I had to haag it up in the fork 
but when we finished the last pillar the light burned nicely, brightly. 
10854. Q. Have you worked in other parts of the mine? A Yes; I have worked in nearly all parts of 
the mine. 
108.55. Q. And you never came across gas, or anything that looked like gas, before this explosion? 
A. No, not from the face of the coal, like. I have seen it there; but I do not know what you call it; I 
suppose it is gas. 
10856. Q. Can you describe the appearance of this flame? How it appeared after the shot was fired? 
A. Well, in certain cases, I just walked up to see how the shot had done its work--of course you like to see 
how it does its work, whether it brings the coal down or not-and I just went up with the naked light on 
my head ; and the thing flared just as I went up to look at it. 
10857. Q. Have you seen any falls of roof in Mount Kembha? A. Yes. 
10858. Q. Do they throw up dust? A. They throw up gas. I think that is where the gas came from-
that No, 1 fault. 
10859. Q.Where is that? Is it near the waste? A. No. 
10860. AIr. Robertson.] I think he thinks you said a fault. 
10861. AIr. Curtiss.] I said a fall. 
10862. Witness.] I thought you said a fault. I meant a fault. 
10863. AIr. Curtiss.] Q. Is any dust thrown down in these falls I A. Yes. 
10864. Q. What colour is it? A. White. Of course, a fall of stone always throws a white dust out. 
10865. Q. Did you take out any of the men who were injured in the disaster? A. Yes. 
10866. Q. Who? A. I took one out. 
10867. Q. Do you know who he was? A. Tommy Tost. 
10868. Q. Did you see any signs of burning or singeing on him? A. No; I did not notice. He was 
brought out by the men who were in there before me, and was laid in a oertain place: and when I went 
in we found him there. We had lights; but we could not see anything with these safety-lamps in Mount 
Kembla: we could not see where we were going, or anything. I had to take him out: and I had a brother 
very near dying at the same time; and I could not see anything with those lights. But, from what I 
could hear, there were a terrible lot of them burnt -Aitken, and a whole lot. They were just near where 
Aitken was, in the 4th Left. 
10869. Q. But you did not see those yourself? You cannot speak about them of your own knowledge? A. No. 
10870. Q. Did you ever work with a man named Mick Quinn? A. Michael Quinn, yes. 
10871. Q. Where were you working with him i A. I was working pretty well all over the pit with him-
in the shaft and all over, for about seven cavils. 
10872. Q. Did you ever see him light blowers of gas? A. No. 
10873, Q. Did he ever tell you he had done so? A. Not then; but he has told me that he had secn them 
but that was some time when lie had been having a drink or two. 
10874. Q. On the day of the disaster did you hear any noise? A. I heard nothing-only this deafness in 
the ears, you know ; it simply struck me dumb (deaf?) somewhat. 
10875. Q. As a matter of fact, you could not distinguish things? You were bewildered? A. Yes. 

Examination 
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Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 
10876. Q. You live at Kembla? A. Yes. 
10877. Q. When did you come from Kembla, to-day? A. I came yesterday morning. 
10878. Q. Then you have been about Wollongong all yesterday and all today? A. Yes. 
10879. Q. Where did you stay last night? A. I stayed at the "Station Hotel." 
10880. Q. And you have been waiting about this morning, have not you? A. Yes. 
10881. Q. Are you well to-day? A. Oh, pretty well, as far as that goes. I would like another whisky if 
I could get it. 
10882. Q. Where did you have breakfast? A. At the "Railway Hotel." 
10883. Q. Early? A. About 9 o'clock, I suppose. 
10884, Q. Well, you are not in good working order to-day, are you? A. Pretty well. 
10885. Q. Could you do a good day's work to-day? A. Yes I feel fit enough. 
10886. Q. Now, I am just going to ask you some questions: how long have you been a working miner I 
A. About twenty yeats. 
10887. Q. And you have never occupied any position except as a miner getting coal? A. No. 
10888. Q. I think you said you have often seen a blaze after a shot? A. I did not say after a shot. 
have seen it. 
10889. Q. When you have got in? A. I did not see it often. 
10890. Q. How often have you seen it? A. I have seen it Once. 
10891. Q. Have you seen it more than once? A. I might have. 
10892. Q. And how long after a shot is fired do you go in? A. Very quickly : as soon as it goes off you go 
in, you generally rush in to see it. A working miner, especially, is always in a hurry. 
10893. Q. The shot is all over, and everything cleared away when you go in I A. No; certainly not. There 
is something left there. 
10894. Q, What is that? A. What lights, the gas, of course. How does the naked light light anything? 
There must be something there. 
10895. Q. Just tell the Courtwhat happens when you go in? Or what has happened? A. Sometimes we have 
the light in our hands, and sometimes on our heads. You go in to look at it, and the first thing you get is 
a blaze and you fall back. 
10896. Q. And perhaps it singes your hair? A. Yes; and your face, too, perhaps. 
10897. Q. And you have had that happen in Mount Kembla? A. Yes. 
10898. Q. How long ago? A. About fifteen months ago. 
10899. Q. Did you report that to anybody? A. Yes. 
10900. Q. To whom? A. It is not worth talking about. To Nelson; lie is dead now. 
10901. Q. Did you ever find out whether he reported it in a book? A. No. 
10902. Q. You never knew anything about it? A. No. 
10903. Q. Now, it has occured to you more than once? A. Yes. 
10904. Q. Several times? A. Yes. 
10905. Q. Did you report it several times 1 A. Certainly. 
10906. Q. Have you ever known gas, or anything of that kind, at all events, whatever you may call it, to 
appear on other occasions than after you fired a shot? A. No; I have never seen anything. 
10907. Q. Have you ever seen anything in the roads, or during your work? A. No. 
10908. Q. Or when coal fell ? A. No. 
10909. Q. Do you know of other men finding it? A. Yes; I have heard of others. 
10910. Q. You have often heard of it? A. Yes, of others seeing gas in Kenibla. 
10911. Q. Have you ever heard any of the other men inform deputies of having found gas? A. Yes; I 
believe I have. 
10912. Q. Which deputies? A. I could not be sure; so it is best to hold my tongue. 
10913. Q. Could you tell me now the way you came out of that mine after you felt that dulness in your 
ears? A. Yes. 
10914. Q. Which way did you come? A. I came out the main tunnel. 
10915. Q. Straight down to the main entrance to the mine? A. Yes. 
10916. Q. Then how did you get over to the No. 1 District? A. I never went near the No. 1. 
10917. Q. You did not go in again that day? A. I went in that night. 
10918. Q. Then, I take it, that, as soon as you could after you noticed this dulness in your ears, you got 
into the shaft tunnel and came straight out of the mine? A. When? 
10919. Q. After you felt this dulness, and after this smoke came, you and your nephew got into the main 
tunnel and came straight out? A. Yes; straight out of the main tunnel. 
10920. Q. You did not rescue anybody that day? A. I never tried to, because we could not. 
10921. 9. You had no difficulty in coming straight out? A. Yes, we had. 
10922. 9. What difficulty? A. When we came down from the shaft into what we call the No. 4. 
10923. Can you show me that No. 4 on this plan? A. I suppose I could. I am not well up in this sort of 
thing. 
10924. Q. There is your place, and here is the No. 1 main shaft tunnel. Would it take long to get into 
the shaft district ? A. Pretty long. 
10925. Q. How long? A. About an hour. 
10926. Q. To get into the shaft district 1  A. To get into our working place. 
10927. Q. But how long did it take you to get into the main travelling road? A. We did not get into 
the main travelling road. 
10928. Q. Where did you get ? A. Into the main road. 
10929. Q. How long did it take you to get into the main road I A. About an hour. 
10930. Q. I did not ask you that. How long did it take you to get from your working place into the main 
road I A. About four or five minutes. 
10931. Q. Then you came straight out? A. Yes. 
10932. 9. Then, what did you meet? A. I had my nephew on my back all the time. As soon as I went 
out into the main tunnel I picked up Peter Muir's boy, and I put him on my shoulder and carried him out; 
and I was staggering, and he fell when I fell, Of course, 1 had a hard time to get out. 

16825 29-2 X 10933. 
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10933. Q. And you met nothing else on the way ? A. When I got out to what we call old No. 4, where it 
dips, like. 
10934. Q. That is No. 4 Right off the shaft? A. That is the worst time I had, going into there. 
10935. Q. Why ? A. Because I felt worse there than anywhere else. I felt giddier, like. 
10936. Q. Then you got out that night and got home? A. Yes. 
10937. Q. And the next day you went in again? A. Yes, that night again. 
10938. Q. How did you go in? A. On my feet, of course. 
10939. (7. I did not suppose you went in in a carriage and pair. Which way did you go in ? A. On the 
travelling road. 
10940. Q. Which travelling road ? A. The only travelling road in Mount Kembla. 
10941. Q. No. 1? A. There is only one travelling road in Mount Kembla. 
10942. (7. Do you know the shaft district? A. I think so. 
10943. (7. Do you know the No. 1 Right? A. Yes. 
10941. (7. Is not there a travelling road in No. 1 Right? A. Yes; but you must always start at the one 
place. 
10945. (7. Did you turn off into No. 1 Right, or go up the shaft district ? A. I went into No. 1. 
10946. (7. Can you show me which way you went? A. No. 
10947. (7. You are not a scholar? A. I am scholar enough. 
10948. (7. But you are not scholar enough for that? A. No. 
10949. (7. Which way did you go I A. Into No. 1 Right. I was silly then. 
10950. (7. You were silly then? A. Yes, and I am silly now. 
10951. (7. Were you as silly thea as you are now? A. I do not know. 

Crosexamination by Mr. Lysaght 

10952. (7. How long were you with Mr. Rogers yesterday? A. I was not working at all. 
10953. (7. How long were you with Mr. Rogers at all round here? A. I was not with him at all. 
10954. (7. Last night? A. Yes, last night. 
10955. (7. Last night you were? A. I was not. 
10956. Q. Nor any time yesterday? A. No. 
109.57. (7. Did not you see Mr. Rogers in Wollongong yesterday ? A. I saw him here in the Court. 
10958. (7. Did not you speak to him yesterday? A. Well, I spoke to him ; but nothing about this. 
10959. Q. Who else is staying at this hotel with you? A. I could not tell you. 
10960. (7. Are not there some other lads from Kembla? A. No. 
10961. (7. Had you a conversation with Mr. Rogers about the evidence you were to give? A. No. 
10962. (7. Did not you give a statement? A. Not to Mr. Rogers. 
10963. Q. To whom did you give it? A. No one. 
10964. (7. Do you mean to say that you have not given any statement at all? A. I do mean to say that. 
10965. (7. Were not you asked questions, before you came here, about what you have been asked this 
morning? A. No. 
10966. Q. Do you know Mr. Wade? A. I could not tell whether I have seen him or not. He might be 
here for all I know. 
10967. Q. Do you mean to say that nobody has asked you any questions concerning the disaster until you 
came in here 
10968. Mr. Bruce Sini(h.] I tell Mr. Lysaght that I have a proof of his evidence taken by Mr. Wade. 
10969. Mr. Lysa.g/tt.] Q. Did not you sign a statement? A. No. 
10970. (7. Did not you let a statement be taken down in writing? A. Not to Mr. Wade. 
10971. (7. Well, to any person ? A. Well, many a thousand times, I suppose. 
10972. (7. I want the last one? A. Well, I do not know who he is. 
10973: (7. How long ago was it? A. I do not know. No one takes any statement; I always talk the 
sound truth. 
10974. Q. Yes, I know; but how long ago was it since you gave this statement ? A. I did not give any 
statement; I do not think I did. I would like to get whoever is guilty found guilty, and get them punished 
for it-whoever is in fault. I have a brother killed. You may convict me, and give me fourteen clays' 
cells I do not care what you do. I always like to tell the truth. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 

10975. Q. I want to know was there any smoke after the shot when something went off, which you thought 
was gas? A. Yes. 
10976. Q. Was there smoke? A. Yes. 
10977. (7. A lot of smoke A. Yes ; it came in there in volumes, just where my nephew and I were 
working. He was boring a hole on the left-hand side of the place, and splitting the pillar; and I was 
looking at his light ; and his light looked as red as anything. 
10978. Q. You went into your place after you fired a shot, and something went off? You know you told 
us that it ]it at your light ? A. That was not there at all; that was in No. 1. 
10979. Q. Never mind where it was. You went into your place after a shot had been fired, and your 
light on your head lit something, and you thought it was gas? A. Yes. Well, I did not say I thought it 
was gas. 
10980. Q. Never mind what it was. Was there smoke in your place then? A. Yes. 
10981. (7. Had the shot done its work ? A. The shot was broken, and it did not come. 
10982. (7. The shot had not done its wdrk properly? A. I just went to have a look at it to see what it had 
done, and it blazed and went right by us. 
10983. (). But the shot had not done its work? A. No. It had done its work; only it just happened 
where the shot was fired, like. Of course, as you say, it had not done its work. 

[Witness ret mred,] 

Mr. 



	

	

	

Mr. THOMAS JOHNSON was sworn, and examined as under :-

Examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 

10981. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I will first examine the witness on behalf of Mr. Wade and I will then 
afterwards put any questions to him which I may consider necessary from the departmental point of view. 
10985. Q. What is your name ? A. Thomas Johnson. 
10986. (,). What are you ? A. A miner. 
10987. Q. Engaged at Mount Kembla A. Yes. 
10988. Q. How long have you been a miner? A. I have been something over seventeen years. 
10989. Q. And how long have you been working in Mount Kembla? A. I have been working in Mount 
Kembla all that time. 
10990. Q. Were you in Mount Kembla at the time of the disaster? A. Yes. 
10991. Q. Where were you working in that quarter? A. I was working in the 5th Right. 
10992. (. The 5th Right or the 4th A. The 5th Right, at the time of the disaster. 
10993. Q. i)o you remember what part? A. No. 91. 
10994. Q. Your mate was Livingstone? A. Yes. 
10995. Q. What was the first indication you had that anything had taken place? A. Of the disaster? 
10996. Q. Yes. A. Well, the first was a sort of whizzing in the ears, a humming noise. 
10997. Q. That is the first you experienced 1 A. Yes. 
10998. Q. Did you say anything to your mate? A. My mate was not working that day. 
10999. Q. Then you were alone? ii. Yes. 
11000. Q. What were you doing? A. I was filling my skip. 
11001. Q. Did you see anything at that time? A. No sir; I saw nothing. 
11002. Q. No difference in the air? A. No. 
11003. Q. No snioke? A. No smoke, or anything. 
11001. Q. Just these signs in the car 1 A. In the ear. 
11005. Q. Was there any movement in the air, more than usual ? A. No; I never took notice when 1 
heard it. 
11006. Q. What did you do? A. I stcpped and then I ran down to the turn, after this heavy fall. 
11007. Q. After which heavy fall? You have not told us of that? Did you hear anything? A. Oh yes; 
I heard a very heavy fall. 
11008. Q. Bofore you felt this whizzing I A. No; I got the whizzing in the ears first. 
11009. Q. And then you heard the noise afterwards? A. Yes the noise followed. 
11010. his honor.] Q. When you say "a heavy fall," you mean a noise? A. A noise. I did not know 
whether it was a fall, or what it was at the time. 
11011. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. About how long afier you first felt this whizzing in your ears did you hear 
the fall? A. I believe it may have been a minute, as near as 1 can tell you ; but it came very quickly after 
the whizzing. 

Q. Did you know then what that noise was, or did you find out afterwards? A. Well, I found out 
afterwards. 
11012. Q. Then I may take it that at the time you simply felt the whizzing in your ears ; and a minute 
afterwards you heard this great noise, but you did not know at the time what it was? A. No; not at the 
time. 
11013. Q. What did you do? A. I ran dcwn, and got into the dark-[Meaning that his light went out]. 
11014. (9.  You ran down until you came to the turn? A. Yes. 
11015. Q. Do you mean the cut-through leading into McKinley and Laidlaw's bord? A. No, to the left of 
that. 
11016. Q. You went to the left of that down the cut-throughs? A. Yes, through the road the skips go out. 
11017. Q. You went right down the bord until you came to the rope road? A. No. We went straight up 
the back heading. When I came down my bord 1 turned to the left through the first cut-through. 
11018. Q. Did you go against the air or with it? A. We went with the air coming to our faces. 
11019. (9. Then you went to the left? A. Yes. 
11020 (9. Then how far did you go before you went down to the 5th Right? A. We were working in the 
5th Right---[Meaning in the 5th Right section]. 
11021. Q. Your bord ran up a considerable distance from the 5th Right rope road.? A. We ran up about 
100 yards until we came on to the rope road. 
11022. Q. Did you get on to the rope road at once, or did you go through some cut-throughs first? A. We 
went along, I believe it was, the back heading. 
11023. (Witness then explained to Mr. Bruce Smith on the map that he went round the first cut-through 
on the left on the way out of the mine, passed a number of bords on the left-hand side, then went down 
to the 5th Iiight rope,  road, and along the cross-cut heading rope road to the daylight heading.) 
11024. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you meet anybody going along past the other bords? A. I met Charlie 
Smith. 
11025, Q. Which way was Charlie Smith going 1 A. I could not say whether it was Charlie Smith who 
came to my bord and called me, and then I ran ; or whether it was Jack Laidlaw. 
11026. Q. Before you went out of your bord, Charlie Smith or Jack Laidlaw came to your bord? A. They 
shouted out to me; I could not see them. 
11027. Q. What did they shout out? A. They told me to come out at once. 
11028. AIr. Robertson.] Q. Where did you meet Smith? A. I met him afterwards; but it would be about 
50 yards or more after I got through the cut-through out of my bord. 
11029. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you meet them, or were they going the opposite way? A. They were 
stopped then, for I told them the way to go. 
11030. Q. You know the daylight tunnel 1 A. Yes. 
11031. Q. Was that a help to you? A. Yes ; it was. 
11032. Q. Were Laidlaw and any others with Smith? A. Yes ; but I could not tell you their names 
11033. (9. I take it that Laidlaw and others were waiting at the end of a bord i A. Yes. 
11034. (9. You showed them the way out? A. I said, "For God's sake men get out on the haulage 
road," 11035. 
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11035. Q. Did you show them the way out by the daylight tunnel A. I told them to get out by the 
daylight tunnel. 
11036. Q. Did you know the daylight tunnel? A. Yes. 
11037. Q. What caused you to go out on any occasion that way? A. Mr. Frost was there to stop us. 
11038. Q. Then you went out by the tunnel with these men? A. Yes, and Mr. Adam Frost, junior, was 
waiting there for us. He was on the haulage road. 
11039. Q. Did he take you out then? A. No; he just told us which way to go out. 
11040. Q. First of all you heard a buzzing in the ears? A. Yes. 
11041. Q. Then you heard a fall a minute afterwards? A. Yes. 
11042. Q. Then Laidlaw, or his mate, called out to you to get out? A. Yes. 
11043. Q. And you came down your bord and went along the cut-throughs, leaving the other bords on 
your left; and then you met these men; and then you went along the haulage road and met Frost; and 
he showed you the way out? A. He told us the way to go out. 
11044. Q. What was the noise like which you heard some time after the whizzing? A. It put me in mind 
of a very heavy fall in a bord. 
11045. Q. Was the noise like anything that you hear outside the mine? A. No, without it was a heavy 
clap from the Heavens. 
11046. Q. Thunder, you mean? A. Yes. 
11047. Q. Was it anything like thunder? A. I imagine it was. 
11048. Q. But did you think it was thunder? A. No. 
11049. Q. But it was like thunder? A. It was a very heavy fall. 
11050. Q. How many parts of this mine have you worked in? A. I have worked in very nearly all the 
sections in it. 
11051. Q. Have you ever come across gas in that 4th Right District, or No. 1 District? A. No. 
11052. Q. And you have come across black-damp? A. Yes. 
11053. Q. And how do you distinguish the black-damp? A. My light would not burn. Well, when I say 
it would not burn, it would burn black, but not as it ought to do. 
11054. Q. Did you ever report to the deputies what you had seen? A. It would not want much reporting, 
because he was there every day to see for himself. 
11055. Q. That is the black-damp? A. Yes 
11056. Q. Did you show it to him ? A. He could see it too. 
11057. Q. How high would this affect your lamp from the floor? A. We used to have it just about up 
to there [indicating the height of his chest]. You could not use it on your head. You had to put it on 
a pOp 
11058. Q. Do you mean to tell mc that the light would go out if you placed it on your head? A. It would 
not burn. If you turned your head quickly it would go out. 
11059. Q. Then it was up above your mouth? A. I do not know; but it would not burn if it was on my, 
head. 
11060. Q. Did you feel any effect in breathing? A. No. 
11061. Did you ever see anything after shots were fired, when you went back into your bord? A. I have 
seen nothing in the 4th Left. 
11062. Q. I am asking about any part of the mine: did you ever see gas in any part of the mine? A. Only 
in No. 4 Right main heading, in the Shaft District. 
11063. Q. How long is that ago? A. That will be twelve years: it might be more : I could not say rightly. 
11064. Q. What form did the gas take then? What happened? Was it an explosion A. No. 
11065. Q. You see, I am trying to get information from you. I am only a town chap, who does not 
understand it? A. I did not see it until my light caught it. 
11066. Q. Your light caught it? A. Yes. 
11067. Q. Did it flare? A. It flared in the roof a bit, and then it beat itself out back again. 
11068. Q. Did it burn you? A. No, it went over my head. 
11069. Q. How often did you see that happen? A. I have only seen it once in there. 
11070. Q. How many times have you seen it elsewhere i A. I have seen it once in, I believe it would be, 
the 4th Left, or 2nd Left, in No. 1: I saw a slight touch of it there one morning. 
11071. Q. How long ago? A. It would be shortly after the time I left this heading and came back again. 
11072. Q. Do you mean since the disaster? A. No. 
11073. Q. You mean shortly after you were in No. 4 Right? A. Yes. 
11074. Q. And that was some years ago? A. Yes. 
11075. Q. What is the latest time you have seen gas in the mine? A. The last time I have told you thero, 
11076. Q. And you have never seen gas since then? A. No. 
11077. (At this stage Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings) 
11078. Q. Have you had experience of lighting smoke after firing a shot? A. I have seen my mate do it. 
11079. Q. You have seen him light smoke after firing a shot? A. After firing a shot, if it had not done its 
work, but had blown down or blown out on the top. 
11080. Q. You say, "If it had not done its work"? A. Yes. 
11081. Q. Will you describe what happened on this occasion when your mate went to see what had happened 
at the firing of a shot which had not done its work? A. You conid only see the smoke. 
11032. Q. What happened? A. My mate went to see what had happened and he saw the heat, and she 
caught and went out again. After that you couldnot light her. 
11083. Q. Was there an explosion? A. You can call it what you like. 
11084. Q. What colour was it? A. Red, as far as I can tell you. 
11085. Q. What colour was the flame when you saw gas? A. It went so quick that I newer looked. I 
stooped clown. 
11086. Q. You form the opinion that if anything happens after a shot it is the powder smoke going oil. 
A. That is my opinion, I do not know whether it is right or not. 
11037. Q. Did that occur often? A. This is the only time I have seen it-it is the only time I have seen 
I lie trick done. 
11088. Q. Do you not light it? A. I never played with it. 

11089. 
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11089. Q. Will that smoke burn? A. When a hot shot is fired, and the smoke goes up, and you put a light 
to it, it will. 
11090. Q. You have seen stone fall? A. Yes. 
11091. Q. Where? A. Nearly all over the pit. 
11092. Q. A large amount? A. I have seen some very heavy falls. 
11093. Q. Falls of yards or over acres? A. I have seen them cover a good few yards, but not acres. 
11094. Q. You say there was dust with it? A. A sort of white dust. 
11095. Q. What effect does it produce on anything on which it settles? A. I do not suppose it takes any 
effect. 
11096. Q. What colour is it? A. White. 
11097. Q. Is it a floury kind of dust? A. Yes, you see it on the rib. 
11098. Q. On that occasion when you found gas, twelve years ago, who were your deputies? A. Davie 
Evans and Willie Nelson. 
11099. Q. Did you inform them? A. I informed the under-manager, Mr. Rogers. That was the time I 
found gas in No. 4, 
11100. Q. I think some canvas was put up on that occasion? A. That was in No. 1. 
11101. Q. When you heard this buzzing noise, how did the air become? A. Hotter. 
11102. Q. What was it like? A. The hot air came with this terrible noise. 
11103. Q. Do you know what distance you were from the 35-acre goaf? A. No, I can give you no idea. 
11101. Q. But you know you were 400 yards away? A. Yes. 
11105. Q. You heard the noise distinctly? A. Yes. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght 
11106. Q. Did you get any smell just after the disaster? A. No. 
11107. Q. When you reported gas to Mr. Rogers, did you make any remark about it? A. I told Mr. Rogers 
that there was gas there and he ordered safety-lamps to finish the work with. 
11108. Q. How long were the lamps in use? A. Until we finished it-two or three shifts. 
11109. Q. Did any one else use safetylamps? A. Only me and my mate. 
11110. Q. Do you know whether any other person had been ordered to use safety-lamps before that? 
A. No, I did not. 
11111. Q. Can you say whether Mr. Rogers knew, before you reported it, that gas was given off in Kembla 
mine? A. I cannot say whether he knew or not.. 
11112. Q. I suppose you have some theory as to the cause of the disaster? A. I know nothing about it. I 
know I was in it; that is all I know. 
11113. Q. You cannot say whether it was caused by an explosion of gas? A. I cannot say. 
11114. Q. Although you have not discovered it very often, I suppose you have heard the miners talk about 
gas? A. I never heard the miners speak about it. Only on the two occasions I found it myself. 
11115. Q. How often have you known the air to be reversed in Mount Kembla, because of a westerly wind? 
A. Once or twice to my knowledge. 
11116. Q. How long ago? A. I can give you no icka-a man never thinks about these things. 
11117. Q. Daring the last twelve months? A. Long before that. 
11118. Q. During the last three or four years? A. You can put it at that. 
11119. Q. For how long was the air reversed? A. Only while the wind changed about the furnace. 
11120. Q. How long-an hour or half an hour? A. I can give you no idea. 
11121. Q. Roughly speaking? A. I cannot tell you. 
11122. Q. You remember the occurrence of the air being reversed a couple of times, but cannot remember 
whether it was reversed for a day or an hour? A. You may say for an hour or so ; but not for a day. 
11123. Q. Have you ever known the air to be reversed from any other cause? A. No. 
11124. Q. Have you never known the furnace to be defective. A. I never noticed it. 
11125. Q. Have you not had the smoke standing in your own place for want of air? A. If the canvas has 
not been up-that is what would cause that. 
11126. Q. Have you not had the smoke last in your place for two or three hours? A. No. 
11127. Q. For how long? A. Oh, for twenty minutes or half an hour-that is a long time. 
11? 28. Q. How often have you had it last for twenty minutes? A. Not many timrs. 
11129. Q. You are still cutting coal ? A Yes. 
11130. Q. Is your place dusty? A. No. 
11131. Q. Is it wet? A. Just a little moistuFe. 
11132. Q. Is it ever watered ? A. Only the main heading. 
1133. Q. Who fires the shots? A. Nobody. 

11134. Q. Do you not fire the shots? A. No. 
11135. Q. Have you not firei shots since the disaster? A. No; I have been in a pillar once; but now lam 
in a heading. 
11136. Q. Would you approve of deputies and shot-firers holding certificates of competency by examination? 
A. That has nothing to do with me. I know nothing about that. 
11137. Q. Do you think it would be an extra precaution? A. That ought to be a Government affair : it is 
not my business. 
11138. Q. Do you not think that, as an extra precaution, deputies should undergo an examination? 
A. Well, I think they should pass an examination. It does not do for any one who is silly to take on the 
work. They should pass an examination like anyone else. 
11139. Q. Then your experience is that anyone takes it? A. I did not say so. 
11140. Q. Do you know a young man named Forsythe-do you think he is competent? A. I cannot say 
anything about him at all. 
11141. Q. With regard to the use of safety-lamps. Do you think the Government Inspector should have 
power to order them, if necessary? A. I am not well up in these kind of things at all. 
11142. Q. Oh, well, I will not trouble you about these recommendations ; except this one:---Do you know 
how many roads there are out of the Mount Kembla mine? A. I know about four. 
11143. Q. Did anybody show them to you? A. No. 
11144. Q. You do not know that road out by the daylight heading? A. Oh, don't 17 11145. 
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11145. Q. I thought Frost showed it to you? A. He had no need to show it to me. I am working by the 
daylight heading now. I told the men to get on the road, and to get out by the daylight heading. 
11146. Q. Were you the only one who knew that road? A. I expect the others knew it. 
11147. Q. Did you give a statement of your evidence to any person? A. No. 
11148. Q. Did you not make a statement? A. I went across to Mr. Rogers. 
11149. Q. When? A. One night, about a week ago. 
11150. Q. Who was present? A. Have I got to answer such a question. 
111151. Q. Why do you object? A. I do not know whether I should answer it. 
11152. his honor.] There is no objection to the question being asked. 
11153. Witness.] We?], there were a couple of gentlemen there, Mr. Wade was there. 
11154. jJ!r. L?/safjht.] 

Q. Is there any harm in it? A. I do not know. I cannot say. 
11155. Q. Did you put anything in your statement which was not true? A. No, I did not. 

Examined by His Honor 
11156. Q. The first thing that you noticed was a buzzing? A. Yes. 
11157. Q. How long after that was it when you heard a noise, which you say sounded like a fall? A. It 
would be about a minute. 
11158. Q. Do you think it was as long as a minute? A. The buzzing came first, and the sound followed. 
I was a bit dazed at the time. 
11159. Q. Was it like one sound; or was it a running sound? A. It was like one heavy fall. 
11160. Q. When you say that you felt a change like hot air coming up, was that before you heard the sound? 
A. The buzzing came; and the fall, as I thought, sent the hot air into the place. 
11161. Q. The fall and the hot air seemed to come together? A. I think so. 
11162. Q. And you say it was like one single heavy sound? A. Yes, like one heavy sound. 
11163. Q. Not a rumbling  sound? A. No-just one sound. It came just like a bord falling in with a 
heavy fall. 
11164. Mr. Bruce Smith.] One theory would be that time fall was the effect, and not the cause, of the explosion. 
11165. his Honor.] I know that. 
11166. Mr. Robertson.] The fall could not possibly be heard by this man. 
11167. his Honor.] Q. Do you not think that there might be a little mistake as to how long there was 
between the first coming of the buzzing in your ears and the sound? A. That is what I remember, because 
I was dazed at the time. That is what I put it down to. 
11168. Q. Were you shovelling at the time? A. I was picking. The heat came, and the buzzing. 
11169. Q. Did the heat come before the sound 1 A. They seemed to come together. It came like a hot 
wind ; there was not much difference between the three of them. Just about a minute. 
11170. Q. A minute is a long time? A. Of course, it might not be that time. 
11171, Q. Now, tell me when you think a minute is up. (His Honor looked at his watch). A. I am not 
going to say that, 
1112. Q. Just guess it? A. A man on that day would not consider whether it was a minute or two minutes. 
11173. Q. I want to know how long you think it was? A. I am not going to take that on at all. I will go 
as near to the matter as my memory will allow me ; but I will not go any further. 
11174. Q. Now, you can do this, put your hand down firmly on the desk; raise it up and put it down 
again; and let there be the same distance of time apart as there was between the buzzing and the sound. 
Place your hand on the desk once for the buzzing and another time for the sound. A. I cannot say any-
thing about that. I think it would be about a minute. 
11175. Q. Now just do what I say, it is easy? A. It is easy enough to do it. I came here to tell the 
truth about it. 
11176. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Put one hand down when the hissing took place, and another when the sound 
came? A. There was a hissing and if you had been in it you might have remembered it better than me. 
11177. ()/r. Bruce Smith raised his hand from the table, and said, "Suppose that is time hissing, tell me 
when the sound came "; the witness replied in the affirmative; and Mr. Smith brought his hand down on 
to the table, the space of time occupied being a few seconds.) 
11178. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Are you sure that you heard the sound after the hissing? A. Yes. 
11179. His honor.] Q. I suppose you were rather astonished at hearing it? A. Ys, it frightened me. 
11180. Q. And you thought it time to leave? A. Yes, when thieifter-damp came up. We put it down as 
an explosion. When we got to the haulage read Nye got into good air; because we went the way the air 
was coming in from the daylight heading, and that put the after-damp back. 
11181. AIr. Robertson.] Q. You said at the beginning of your examination that you saw no difference in the 
air-no movement? A. I did not stop to look. I cleared out. 
11182. Q. You said that there was no movement in the air-no difference. Now you say there was a rush 
of hot air? A. I took no notice of it-where it came from. The hot air came up the bord. 
11183. Q. Then what you said at the beginning, that there was no movement in the air, was wrong? A. I 
suppose so. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie 
11184. Q. Did the air blow your light out? A. I think the running put it out. 
11185. His Honor.] Q. You were running against the air I A. I was running the way the after-clamp was 
coming. Probvbly it was my running that put the light out. 
11186. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did the air continue to come the same way after you felt it hot? A. I cannot 
tell you. 
11187. Q. It was not reversed? A. When the hot breeze came I ran. 
11188. When you ran, the air was coming its right way? A. From the daylight heading. 
11189. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. Did you feel it coming from the north daylight heading? A-Yes; and it was a 
little sultry until we got to the haulage road. 
11190. AIr. Robertson.] Q. Which way do you say time air was coming? A. The air was coming in our 
faces, it was a bit warm ; but the air from the north daylight heading pushed the other air hack. 

[Witness retired.] 
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11191. The witness, John Morrison, was called but, there being no appearance, the Commission, at 
1245 p.m., adjourned until 2 p.m. 
11192. The Commission reassembled at 210 p.m. ; and the name of the witness, John Morrison, was called 
outside the Court; but there was again no appearance. 
11193. his Honor said that, there being no witnesses in attendance, the sitting of the Commission would 
be adjourned until the following Monday ; when it would meet at the Land Court, Darlingliurt, Sydney, 
at 2 o'clock. 

MONDAY, 2 FEBRUAzY 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlinghurst.] 
Vttert:- 

C. F. R. MURRAY, FSQ., D.C.J. (IPnEsIDENT). 

P. A. W. ROBERTSON, EsQ., CorinissIosEn. P. RITCHIE, ESQ., CoIMIssIoNEu. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of- 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. F. Curtiss, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors o 
Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthapd notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. JOHN MORRISON, previously sworn, was recalled, and further examined, as under 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

11194. Q. When you gave your evidence to Mr. Wade the other day, you spoke of a number of objects being 
driven inbye and outbye from the 4th Right, did you not? A. Driven inbye. 
11195. 0. And some outbye-both ways? A. I think most of those I spoke about were driven inbye. 
11196. Q. I did not say,  most.. I say that you spoke of some being driven inbye and some outbye? 
A. Well, I cannnot remember [Interrupted.] 
11197. (7'. Did you mention to the Commissioners any indications of force going down towards the 4th Right 
from the top of No. 1 heading? A. None in the main tunnel. I never mentioned it, anyway, to the 
Commissioners. 
11198. Q. Now, in giving your evidence the other day to Mr. Wade, did you speak of indications of force 
going from the end of No. 1 level down the travelling road towards to 4th Right? A. No. 
11199. If anything did g  in that direction, it would be quite contrary to all the forces which you 
mentioned in your evidence? A. No. 
11200. Q. If any such thing were there, it would be quite contrary? A. Yes. 
11201. Q. To the forces which you spoke of? A. I was never asked any question. 
11202. If anything was driven down from the end of No. I heading, down the travelling road towards 
the 4th Right, that would be quite contrary to all the forces you spoke of ? A. No, it would not be contrary. 
11203. (7. It would not be contrary? A. No. 
11204. (7. It would be going doing from No. 1, would it not? 
11205. Mr. Ritchie.] I think it would be better to call it outward and inward, outbye and inbye. 
11206. itt. Bruce Smith.] Q. Yes. It would be going outbye, would it not, if it came from the top of 
No. 1 heading? A. I do not quite understand. 
11207. (7. I say, if anything were driven from the top of No. 1 heading down towards the 4th Right, 
outbye, it would be in the contrary direction to those forces which you spoke of the other day? A. Yes. 
11208. Well, was there not before the disaster a door in No. 1 back heading, just inbye of the 5th Righti 
A. Yes. 
11209. Q. The door was surrounded by brickwork, was it not? A. Stonework. 
11210. 0. Was not that stonework driven outbye, down to the 5th Right ? A. Yes. 
11211. Q. Now, there were two stoppings, were there not, on the cut-throughs, inbye of that door, which I 
have mentioned? A. Yes. 
11212. Q. Were not they surrounded by stonework? A. Yes; they were stopped up. 
11213. Mr. Ritchie.] Which are you referring to? 
11214. Mv. Bruce Smith.] The two cut-througlis immediately inbye of that door which I have referred to. 
11215. Mr. Ritchie.] I understand. 
11216. kIt. Bruce Smith.] Q. And these two stoppinga were in the middle of those two cut-throughs? 
A. No. 
11217. (7. How far from the middle? A. They were nearer the main tunnel. 
11218. (7. What is the whole distance across? A. Eleven yards. 
11219. Q. How far were they from the main tunnel? A. They were 3 or 4 feet in from the main tunnel; 
but I could not say what width [meaning thickness] they were. 
11220. Q. Were they not blown from the travelling road to the main tunnel? A. One of them-the first 
one. 
11221. Q. That is the nearer to the 4th Right? A. The nearer to the 5th Right. 
11222. Q. The nearer to the 5th Right was blown from the travelling road in a westerly direction? 
A. Into the main tunnel. 

11223. 
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11223. And the one above was driven from the main tunnel into the travelling road? A. No. 
11224. Q. What do you say? A. Well, I say just, like, the corner of it fell into the main tunnel. 
11225. Q. Which way was it in relation to its original position? A. Just the corner fell into the main tunnel. 
11226. Q. It fell in the same direction as the other one? A. Yes. 
11227. Q. Only one was blown right in, and the other fell in the same direction? A. Yes. 
11228. Q. Now, you remember the morning of the disaster-before it all occurred? A. Yes. 
11229. Q. That morning you inspected, did you not? A. Yes. 
11230. Q. I want to know from you whether you went up to the extreme end of No. 1, where it was fenced 
off? A. I do not understand the question. Do you want to know if I went through the fence? 
11231. Q. Yes. Did you go through the fence and examine? A. No. 
11232. Q. Is this statement made by Mr. Rogers right The fence at the top of No. 1 Right was put 
there because there was no one working up there. The bratticng was up to the face of that place. No. 1 
heading had been standing for six or eight months." Is that right? A. .1 could not say how long it had 
stood. 
11233. Q. It had stood for some considerable time? A. Yes. 
11234. Q. Did you hear Nr. Rogers give this evidence at the inquest? A. No. 
11235. Q. He said : "There was no reason for not inspecting the 30 or 40 yards beyond the fence at the 
top of the No. 1 Right, except that there were no men working there." That is true 1 A. I never inspected 
it; and there were no mea working there. 
11236. Q. How long before that time had you inspected it? A. I was once there-once up in those 
headings. 
11237. Q. Only once beyond the fence? A. Beyond the fence. 
11238. Q. How long before the disaster was that? A. I cannot say. 
11239. Q. Was it hours, or days, or weeks? A. Oh, I was just newly on the job at the time-just newly 
started. It was weeks before. 
11240. Q. Some weeks? A. Some weeks, yes. 
11241. Q. To your knowledge had any examination been made of the No. 1 heading, the extreme part of it, 
beyond that fence? A. Yes; Wi1liam Nelson told me -[interrupted]. 
11242. Q. When did he tell you? 
11243. Mr. Curtiss.] Would that he evidence? 
11244. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not want it; but I think it would be fair to get it. 
11245. His Honor.] Nelson is dead. I think we should have it. 
11246. Witness.] Another man was with him who is alive. 
11247. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. When did he tell you? A. On the 19th. 
11248. Q. Was there any man with you? A. Willie Hay, and Johnson. 
11249. Mr. Lysa,qht.] I object to that. One of the witnesses is alive, and can be called. 
11250. His Honor.] This is evidence given by Morrison of what Nelson told him. The other man can only 
speak of what was said by Nelson to Morrison. 
11251. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Was Hay with Nelson at the time Nelson told you; or was he with Nelson 
at the time Nelson went to examine this place? A. At the time Nelson went to examine it. 
112.52. Q. Where is he? A. At Mount Kembla. 
112.53. Q. With the exception of that visit by Nelson and Hay, you know of no inspection of that place for 
a considerable time before the disaster? A. No. 
11254. Q. Had you ever examined to see that the brattice was in good order beyond the fence? A. No, 
never; only the once I was up there. 
11255. Q. So that, for all you knew, the brattice might have been down? A. Quite possibly. 
11256. Q. And that might have been just the sort of place for the accumulation of gas, for all you know? 
A. I did not know. I never examined it. 
11257. Q. You said the other day_at least I understood you to say-that your son was found in the 4th 
Left travelling road ? A. Near the 4th Left. 
11258. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I thought so. 
11259. his Honor.] Mr. Bruce Smith, it strikes me, so far as that evidence, which has not been given, is 
concerned, that, for the purpose of showing that Morrison, to a certain extent, did his duty, it may be 
proved that his superior officer, or some one else whose duty it was to make examinations, had informed 
him of the making of a certain examination at a certain time; because it would be upon that very infor- 
mation that he would possibly, properly or otherwise, ground his action in not making an examination 
himself. 
11260. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I would be very glad to ask him; but Mr. Lysaght objected to bringing that 
out. 
11261. His Honor.] I have no objection to allowing that. 
11262. Mr. Bruce Smith,] Q. Tell me when Nelson first told you that he had made that examination? 
A. It was on the Monday night. 
11263. A. Let us get the date first? A. It would be about the 21st. 
1126t. Q. How long before the disaster? A. It was on the 19th that we examined; and it was on the 
Monday after. 
11265. I/is Honor.] Q. The 19th July? A. Yes. 
11266. AIr. Bruce Smith.1 Q. According to the statement he made to you he examined on the 19th; and 
then lie told you on the 21st, the Monday? A. Yes. 
11267. Q. That would be ten days before the explosion? A. Yes. 
11268. Q. Did he tell you anything about that heading beyond that he had examined it? A. I would like 
to give a little explanation of it. There was a repair being done in the furnace, and the furnace was out; 
and he went round to examine all the highest parts of the mine. 
11269. Q. He told you? A. That the furnace was out; and he went and examined all the highest places. 
11270. His Honor.] Q. You know, yourself, that the furnace was out? A. Yes. 
11271. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did he name these "highest places"? A. He named the main heading as one. 
11272. Q. That was ten days before the explosion? A. Yes. 
11273. Q. Did he say anything to you about your examining it? A. No; he did not say anything to me 
about examining it. 11274. 
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11271. Q. Or about not examining it? A. Oh; I was not understood to examine it. It was understood 
that I was not to examine it. 
11275. Q. What do you mean by being understood; what was the cause of the understanding? A. Well, 
of course, my examination is the examination of all the working places unless it is my monthI 
examination. 
11276. Q. And because work had ceased there you ceased to examine it? A. Well, of course, the man who 
was there before me did not examine it either; and he went along and showed me how to examine the 
places. 
11277. Q. That, and the fact that you were only required to examine the working places, led you to believe 
that you had not to inspect that place? A. Yes, in the morning inspection. 
11278. Q. Then, as far as you know, it was not examined for ten days before the explosion, either morning 
or night? A. Not to my knowledge. 
11279. Q. Now, I was asking you about your son-you see, it appears in the notes, that you found him in 
the 4th Left travelling road, near the main tunnel? A. I did not say I found him. I say that is where he 
was got. He was found there. 
11280. Q. lie was found in the 4th Left travelling road, near the main tunnel? A. No; he was in the 
main tunnel, just right opposite. 
11281. Q. Opposite the 4th Left? A. Yes. 
11282. That is not quite correctly reported, then, in the notes in para. 8867. It is rather a matter of 

uportance, because the son's body was one of the bodies that might be of importance. It says here that he, 
was found in the 4th Left travelling road, near the main tunnel. 
11283. AIr. Robertson.] I see it here quite the opposite; that he was found in the main tunnel near the 
4th Left.. 
1128 1. Air. Bruce Smith.] Yes. 
11285. Q. is that right? A. Yes. 
11286. Ii's 110110).] And here, in another place, it is "found in the 4th Left near the main tunnel." 
11287. Air. Bruce Smith.] It is just ieversed. I wonder there are not more of the same kind. 
1128$. His honor.] Q. Was hejust about the corner of the two, just where they met? A. That is what I 
have been told. 
11289. Q. You did not see him? A. I did not see him. I passed the place ; but I did not go and see. I 
knew he was there. 
11290. Au'. Bruce S,nih.] Q. You said the other day that Dungey was found on the 5th Left-was that 
correct? A. No. 
11291. Q. Is it not a fact that lie was found on No. I main level? A. Yes. There is no 5th Left in the 
mine. 
11292. Q. There is a cut-through there that I thought perhaps you would call the 5th Left; but he was 
really found in the main level 1 A. Yes. 
11293. Q. Now, was it not between the first and second stoppings on the main level-as near as possible 
half-way between the first and second stoppings inhye of the 5th Right lit. Yes. 
11294. Q. Just inbye of the cut-through with the two rings round it on the plan, half-way between the first 
and second stoppings? A. Yes. 
11295. Q. You spoke in your evidence the other day of that shirt that you said belonged to Tost? A. Yes. 
11296. Q. You do not know where Tost left his shirt that day ? A. I know where the rest of his clothes 
were found. That is the only thing I can go by. 
11297. Q.  You do not know where he left his shirt that day, do you, of your own knowledge? A. No; I 
do not know exactly where he left his shirt. 
11298. Q. But I understand you found his shirt apart from the rest of his clothes ? A. Yes. 
11299. Q. I do not think you told us where the other clothes were? A. No, His clothes were opposite the 
turn, just in past the turn into his bord, just on the inbye side. [JVitness then pointed out on the plan to 
Air. Bruce Snot/i and tie' Commission the places where the shirt and the other clothes were found.] 
11300. Q. What did the other clothes consist of? A. A coat and waistcoat, and an oil-bottle belonging 
to him. 
l 1301. Q. I understood the waistcoat and the oil-bottle were found in his bord 1 A. They were found in 
the, line of cut-throughs opposite his bord, just at the corner. The coat and waistcoat and the oil-bottle 
were together. - 
11302. Q. Then you found them all together? A. Yes. 
11303. Q. Ditl'erent from the shirt? A. Yes. 
11304. Q. Then you found the shirt in his bord, and you found the coat and waistcoat and oil-bottle up that 
cut-through to the left? A. I found his shirt in the line of cut-throughis further in past his bord, about 
15 yards, in the same. line of cut-throughs. 
11305. Q. And you found the coat and waistcoat just at the corner of his bord and the cut-through 1 A. Yes. 
11 303. Q.  And you found the shirt further in the cut-through, how far? A. Some 14 yards. 
11307. Q. Now, I cannot quite understand, from the evidence you gave the other day, in what position the 
knife, which you found stuck into the prop, was pointing. You found it stuck in like that (blade and handle 
at ruht-anqles)? A. Yes. 
11308. Q. Suppose it were drawn out like that (blade and handle in same straight line) which way would it 
be pointing? A. Jtist give it to me and I will show you. (Knife handed to Witness, who indicated the 
position in which hefounci the knfr in the mine with Air. Bruce Smith's knife and an upright gas-pipe in the 
Con-ri.) This is going in the line of cut-throughs. 
11309. Q. The same way as the shirt? A. Yes. It was in like that (handle at rg7it-angies to blade) and 
the blade was bent (indicating a sideways bead of the blade) ; and the handle was bent down. 
11310. Q. Which side was it? A. The knife seemed straight from the prop; but still, when you took it 
out, it seemed to be bent., and then straightened up again. 
11311. Q. Air. Robertson.] Suppose that little passage-way (indicating a passage-way in the Court) is the 
cut-through? A. Yes. 
11312. Q. And this (the upright gas-pipe) is the prop? A. Then it was in that way [indicating]. 
11313. his honor.] Q. Which is west and which is east 1 A. (Witness pointed out the position on the plan.) 
11314. Q. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Something like that (indicating)? A. Yes. 11315. 

16825 29-2 Y 



354 
Witnea-s--J. Morrison, 2 February, 1903. 

11315. Q. Away from No. 1 1 A. Yes; you are facing the prop now; and you are looking from No. 1; 
and the knife was in that direction. 
11316. his honor.] Q. Had the knife been fired from the No. 1 1 A. It seemed to have been fired from 
No. 1. 
11317. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. So that the blade was really blown in a westerly direction? A. Yes. 
11318. Q. I think you said you had no idea whose knife it was? A. I tried to find out, but Icould not find 
out, whose it was. I got Aitken's knife and gave it to his wife. 
11319. Q. And therefore this was not his? A. No. It might have belonged to the son. I have got 
Aitken's own knife. I do not know whether the son had one. 
11320. Q. Now, you said this-I will just read a bit of the evidence before it so that you will know what 
I am coming at (see page 960). Speaking of Morris' working place, you were asked "Before the disaster 
was there any screen there?" and you said "Yes." Then you were asked "On Morris' side?"  and you 
said "On the cut-through between the two headings on the side near Morris'?" A. On the outbye side. 
11321. Q. I only want to read this to you. You were asked "Was the canvas led from that particular 
screen across the cut-through to Morris' place? And you said "Yes." You were asked was the canvas 
there?" and you answered "Yes, on the side of the cut-through nearest to Morris' working place." You 
were then asked "That is on the side running up to the back heading?" and you said " It was a canvas 
door; and it was across the mouth of the cut-through." You were then asked "On the back heading, not 
on the front heading 1" and you said "Yes." The next question was " From that particular canvas, across 
that cut-through, the canvas was carried into Morris' working place 1" and you said " Yes." That was 
put to you by Mr. Wade; and you simply said "Yes." Now, I want to know how do you know that the 
canvas was carried into Morris' working place? How do you know that that particular canvas was 
carried into Morris' working place across the cut-through? A. I did not say it was carried into Morris' 
working place. 
11322. Q. Now, I will read the question and answer. Mr. Wade said this to you "From that particular 
canvas, across that cut-through, the canvas was carried into Morris' working place?" and you said "Yes." 
And then I said "The same canvas?" and you said "Yes." Now, I ask you how do you know that that 
was the same canvas? A. What I said was this, if your Honor will allow me to explain : there was a 
canvas across the mouth of the cut-through next the back heading; and then the canvas was carried into 
Morris' place; and that canvas, and the canvas opposite the back heading, were thrown up the back 
-heading; and the canvas was lying up against the rib in Morris' place. 
11323. His honor.] Mr. Bruce Smith, have not you got a little bit mixed between the meaning of the 
word "carried," and the meaning of the word "thrown"? When he speaks of canvas being carried he 
'means how it was fixed up, how it was put UI)  originally. 
11324. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Then you are not referring to the canvas that was across the mouth of the 
-cut-through 1 A. Yes; it was thrown up. 
11325. Q. Were not they separate altogether? There was one canvas across the mouth of the cut-through? 
A. Yes. 
11326. Q. And another canvas up into Morris' heading? A. There would be no use for carrying the air 
unless they were connected. 
11327. Q. Were they one piece of canvas? A. They would be no use unless tacked together. 
11328. Q. Sewn together ? A. No; tacked up with tacks. 
11329. Q. But they were separate pieces of canvas? A. Yes. 
11330. Q. Now, first of all with regard to that canvas which went into Morris' heading-that particular 
part was driven up against the wall inbye of the 5th Right? A. Yes. 
11331. Q. And the lower end, which came out of the heading into the travelling road, was driven round 
the corner? A. This is the way of it____-[1nterrupted.] 
11332. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I begin to describe a state of things to get you to assent to it., or dissent from 
it; and then you begin to describe another state of things. 
11333. Mr. Robertson.] Would it not be as well if Mr. Atkinson were to sketch it on a large scale and 
show it to the witness? 
11334. (Mr. Atkinson made a sketch as suggested). 
11335. Q. Now, there was a canvas across there close to the travelling road? A. Yes. 
11336. Q. And joined on to it as another canvas running right across the travelling road, and up into 
Morris' place? A. Yes, 
11337. Q. There was a canvas stopping across the cut-through opposite Morris' place; and that was joined 
on to a long canvas running up into Morris' place; and that long canvas ran right across the travelling 
road? A. Yes. 
11338. Q. Now, what do you say became of the long canvas that ran up into Morris' place? A. A piece 
of this canvas here was blown up there. 
11339. Q. A piece of the long canvas, you say, was found where? A. On the back heading. 
11340. Q. Inbye of where it had been? A. Yes. 
11341. Q. What became of the rest of the long canvas? A. It was lying up against that rib. 
11342. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. Which rib is that? A. Inbe. 
11343. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Portion of it was driven inbye; and the rest of the long canvas was driven 
up against the northern wall of Morris' place. What became of the canvas that went across the cut-
through 1 A. Any canvas that was here-one lot was found in there; and this other lot was found up 
against that (indicating on the sketch). 
11341. Q. You say the canvas was only found in two parts? A. Yes. 
11345. Q. A part up against the northern wall of Morris' place? A. Yes. 
11346. Q. And the other part lying in the travelling road inbye of the cut-through? A. Yes. 
11347. Q. And you say that those two pieces, put together, constituted the who]e of the canvas that you 
described? A. Yes. There is no other canvas here, but what you see: and that is where I found that 
canvas lying. 
11348. Q. What reason have you for saying that the pieces of canvas w:ich you found inbye of the cut-
through, separate from the long piece was from that cut-through? A. Because there was no other canvas 
about. Some of the canvas was taken to wrap Morris up in. 
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11349. Q. Was not that wrapped round the post? A. No. There were pieces wrapped round the post, 
There are pieces there yet wrapped round the post. 
11350. Q. Then there were more than two pieces A. Yes. 
11351. Mr. Robertson..] You see a line of canvas is made up of lots of pieces. 
11352. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Then there were more than two pieces? A. The canvas door is split up into 
strips. There are three strips in the canvas door, and then other pieces on the sides. 
11353. Q. Then I understand you found more than two pieces? A. Yes. 
11354. Q. Can you tell me how many? A. No. 
11355. Q. Can you tell me where each piece came from ? A. No. 
11356. Mr. Robertson.] Mr. Bruce Smith, I think he speaks of canvas in the plural. 
11357. AIr Bruce Smith.] I think you will admit that I assumed all through, from my examination, that 
there were two pieces, one lying up against the northern wall and one in the travelling road : and I said, 

Where was this one?" and " Where was that one?" And then lie breaks upon me suddenly that there 
were several other pieces of canvas ; and now I put to him the question as to how, if there were several 
other pieces of canvas, he can say which was which. I do not want the Commission to have a piece of 
evidence put before them as cut and dried which really is not cut and dried. 
11358. Mr. Robertson.] It did not convey that impression to me. 
11359. Mr. Bruce Smith.] If you will just read it you will see that he is not asked to describe things at 
all; and that is why I postponed my cross-examination. Mr. Wade led out to him ; and he assented. 
Mr. Wade asked "From that particular canvas, across that cut-through, the canvas was carried into Morris' 
working place ?" and he said "Yes." Well, that is not his description at all. 
11360. JVitness.] I want to describe to you, your Honor, how the canvas is put up. I think it is fair 
just to let me explain. Of course I know there are some gentlemen here who know exactly ; but still there 
are some who do not know. Say there are twenty props like that (in line). They take the canvas in 
S-yard lengths, generally. When the first piece was taken in, there would be a canvas door made out of 
the 8 yards; and the remainder would be taken into Morris' place; and the next piece would be nailed on 
to the same prop as the first piece finished on, and would be tacked clown; and that would be continued on 
afterwards in S-yard lengths. I think there were two 8-yard lengths altogether. This canvas door had 
three strips put on, 2 feet broad each. - 
11361. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. All together there were a good many pieces of canvas tacked together; not 
sewn, but tacked? A. Yes. 
11362. Q. And after the accident they were found all together; and you could not say which was which 
A. If I had known as much as I know now, I would not have touched them at all. 
11363. Q. You could not tell which was which? A. Yes; I know the big long piece was lying up against 
the rib. 
11364. Q. Apart from that, you cannot tell which was which of the rest? A. No. 
11365. Q. Could you tell me, for instance, could you swear to it, where the piece was that was across the 
cut-through? If I were to ask you now, could you say where the piece of canvas was that was across the 
cut-through? A. No. 
11366. Now, were you not asked this question by Mr. Wade (p.  961)-I just want to show the principle 
that has been at work-" Now this canvas, which was across this cut-through, opposite Morris' place, did 
you find that after the disaster?" Your answer was "Yes, it was lying up against the corner." I only 
want to show that when these questions are led in that way, and a man assents to it, he very often gives 
information to a tribunal which he could not give himself. I asked him ,just now, "With regard to the 
piece of canvas that went across the cut-through, could you say now where that was after the disaster?" 
He said lie could not; but you see, by that form of question, he did say that he found that piece of canvas 
after the disaster lying up against the corner. 
11367. JVitness.] Your Honor, I would like to explain just how that canvas was. The canvas was like 
this -I could not swear to any piece of canvas in the mine; but I know where it was; and I know there 
were a lot of pieces of canvas; and I know that was the only place it could come from; and it was lying 
there. 
11368. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. And that canvas had moved in the direction of the main tunnel, had it not? 
A. Yes. 
11369. Q. No, it had moved into the travelling road? A. Yes, in the direction of the main tunnel. 
11370. 0. I put it wrongly to you, and you agreed; but you did not mean that. You mean in the 
travelling road; it had gone from west to east? A. It went inbye, into the travelling road. 
11371. 0. But it went from west to east? You see it was in the cut-through which runs east and west? 
A. Yes ; I have described where I found it. I found it in the cut-through on the inbye side of Morris' 
place. 
11372. Q. That means that it went to the east, the opposite direction to that in which you found the knife 
sticking? A. Yes; but it did not go exactly in the opposite direction it blew in the corner across. 
11373. Q. But it went in -the direction of the travelling road ii. Yes. 
11374. Q. From the rope road into the travelling road? A. Yes. 
11375. (9. That is the same direction as that in which those two stoppings were blown 1 A. No. 
11376. (9. You found other pieces of canvas further inbye, a few yards? A. Further inbye. 
11377. (9. Further inbye of those you have been describing in Morris' place? A. There was one piece 
lying there. One end was higher than the props. 
11378. Q. Some yards in? A. No. 
11379. Q. \Vhem-e did that come from? A. The thing that was found inbye was the canvas that was flung 
up to the face. 
11380. Q. Bow far was it inbye of Morris' place? A. I could not say. I will show you the place here 
[Pointed to the place on the plan.] 
11361. Q. flow many yards is that? Is it not something like 5 chains distance ? That map is 5 chains 
to the inch. Is it not an inch on the plan? A. I am not going to say an mdl or a yard. 
11382. Q. Do not you know an inch when you see it? Is it not an inch from there to there [indicating on 

theplan] ? If you look on the plan, you will see it is in the last cut-through. It is just an-inch ; and th 
plan is on a scale of 5 chains to the inch. I understand you found a piece of canvas near the last cut- 
through in the No. 1 heading? A. Yes. 11383. 
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11383. Q. Now, will you tell me, Mr. Morrison, generally, quite apart from bits of canvas, and doors, and 
anything else, how many directions didyou see indications of the force having taken up in that part of the 
mine? A. From where? 
11384. Q. From anywhere. How many directions did you see stuff driven in, whether it is men, or trucks, 
or skips, or canvas, or doors, or material, or anything, how many directions'? A. I will just start from the 
4th Left and take it right up in the main tunnel, and show it thoroughly. 
11385. Q. I do not want it in detail. Was it in all directions? A. No. At every opening, it seemed to 
me, at the 4th Left-it went down the 4th Left and at the back heading it went down the back heading. 
Of course, you are trying to catch me. 
11386. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I am not trying to catch you. 
11387. Witness (continuing).] On the left-hand side it was all driven to the left and on the right-hand 
side it was all driven to the right. 
11388. Q. You know the four points of the compass in that mine, north, south, east, and west ? A. Yes. 
11389. Q. Now, did you not find something driven in every direction of the cocnipass? A. On the left-hand 
side it was all driven to the left. 
11390. Q. I do not want the left-hand side or the right-hand side. 
11391. his honor.] That is the answer he gives you. 
11392. IVitmess.] Then, as you go up the main tunnel, the first stopping was driven this way (west); and 
then the corner of the next stopping-I do not know whether it was blown out or fell out-but it fell into 
the road. 
11393. Q. And then about the next stopping after that? A. It seemed to me that the force went in there 
and split and then went both ways. 
11394. Q. Was that third stopping affected in one way or the other 1 A. Never affected. 
11395. Q. Not affected at all, as far as you could see 1 A. No. And then-the next stopping---the force 
seemed to go in there, and go both ways. 
11396. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, do you admit that you saw things which had gone in these four 
dirctions-north, south, east, and west 1 A. Yes. 
11397. Q. I only want to know it generally 1 A. I am explaining it, your Honor, to the best of my 
ability. 
11398 His Honor.] You have been very clear all along, Morrison. ,Just answer the questions as they are 
asked you. 
11399. Mr. Bruce Smith.] You are too anxious not to he caught. 
11400. Q. Now, up here, towards this, west of No. 1, what do you call this travelling road A. That is 
the 4th Left rope road. 
11401. Q. In the 4th Left did you not see some forces in opposite directions to other forces? A. It seemed 
to me that the force travelled down there ; and this force that went along here [indicating on the plan] 
came down ; and they joined together. 
11402. Q. Did you not see any forces going east ? A. None, to my knowledge. 
11403. Q. Now, have you found out anything else about that pipe which you discovered amongst the debris 
of the fire? A. No. 
11404. Q. Have you the pipe here? A. No. I did not find it. It was Hotchkis who found it. 
11405. Q. Does it throw any light on the fire? A. None, to my mind. 
11406. Q. Now, you say there was some timber lying about inbye of the 4th Left rope road? A. Yes. 
11407. Q. Had that been piled up before the disaster? A. Yes. 
11408. Q. Was it piled up in a heap 1 A. Yes. 
11409. Q. And I understand that the effect of the disaster was to distribute this all over the place? A. Yes. 
11410. Q. Can you tell the Court in what direction this heap of timber was distributed? A. In my opinion--. 
I can only give you my opinion on it, because I never saw it-it was thrown inbye of the 5th Right. 
11411. Q. But it was scattered all over the place? A. Scattered all over-props here and there. 
11412. Q. Did not you find some of it after the disaster nearer to No. 1 Right than the heap had been? 
A. Not to my knowledge. 
11413. Q. Do you understand the question? A. Yes. 
11414. Q. Where was it standing before the disaster? A. It was inbye, like, of both the 4th Left and the 
5th Right; but the timber was stacked especially for the 4th Left, and for these four piacrs. 
11415. Q. Was it stacked in No. 1 Right 1 A. It was stacked in the main road, No. 1 Right. 
11416. (At this stage Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings.) 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght 
11417. Q. Do you know why that place, at the top of the heading, stopped working? A. No, sir. 
11418. Q. Did you ever ask? A. I never asked. 
11419. Q. And for all you know yourself there may never have been any brattice up there? A. There was 
brattice up there. 
11420. Q. From all you know yourself there may never have been brattice up there? A. I know there was 
brattice there, I had been up there. 
11421. Q. You had not been up there for some weeks before the disaster; was the brattice up to the end? 
A. Yes, the brattice was there when I was there; but that was seven weeks before the disaster. 
11422. Q. From that time up to the day of the disaster you do not know in what condition the brattice 
was? A. No. 
11423. Q. And the whole of the ventilation for Aitken's, Tost's, Purcell's, and Jones" places, and all the 
ventilation going down to Gill's Gannon bord, depended on that brattice being good, and in good order? 
[No answer.] 
11424. Q. Did not the ventilation go to all these working places? A. Yes. 
11425. Q. Was not that ventilation dependent on that brattice being in good order? A. 1 am not going to 
answer that question until I make it clear. 
11426. Q. I will put it to you in a better form. Was not the air carried from Morris' place to the top of 
that heading and down the main level, and through a cut-through, to Purcell's, Jones', and Aitken's places? 
A. It went up the back heading. 
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11427. Q. And, therefore, that air depended on the brattice at the back heading being kept in good order? 
A. No, sir. 
11428. Q. What did it depend on? A. The brattice had nothing to do with it. 
11429. Q. Can you show me where this brattice was down-from the cut-through to the top of the heading? 
A. There was no brattice there, I am going to .how you where it was. 
11430. Q. From the cut-through opposite Morris' face, to the top of No 89 heading, right up to the top, was 
not the brattice continued 1 A. The brattice was continued in No. 89 [referring to the plan.] There was 
no brattice from the top side of Mor-ris' place to the cut-through. 
11431. Q. Was there any brattice from the top of the cut-through to the top of the heading? A. Yes. 
11432. Q. Was there a stopping in the cut-through? A. Yes. 
11433. Q. Where that brattice was, at the top of the cut-through, was it not burnt? A. It was singed a 
little at the corner. 
11134. Q. Which corner was burnt? A. The furthest from the face. A canvas door came half-way across 
the road. 
11435. Q. Was it the corner near No. 1 Main level or near the travelling road? A. Near Morris' place. 
11436. Q. The outhye corner? A. Yes. 
11437. Q. Does not that clearly show that flame had been there? A. I cannot say. 
11438. Q. Can you account for the canvas being singed, if a flame had not been there? A I am not an 
expert. 
11439. Q. Can you account for that particular piece of brattice being singed, if there was no flame there? 
A. I cannot account for the brattice being burnt. 
11440. Q. Are you of opinion that there was a flame there to singe it? A. Twill not say any thing about it. 
11441. Q. In your opinion was there a flame that burnt or singed that brattice? A. I am not certain. 
11442. Q. You gave opinions on a lot of other things? A. That is where I made a mistake. 
11413. Q. Can you account for it being singed? A. Of course, heat as well as flame would singe it. 
11441. Q. Was there sufficient heat in your opinion to singe that particular piece of brattice ? A. There 
must have been either heat or flame-I cannot say which it was. 
1144.5. Q. Can you tell me where the flame or the heat came from? A. I cannot tell you. 
11446. Q. Would not the top of that heading be what you call the face of the coal? A. Yes. 
11447. Q. You know that under Rule 9 of the Special Rules you are to examine the brattice, faces, and 
ventilating appliances? A. My orders were to examine the working places. 
11418. Q. Do you know what Special Rule No. 9 states what the Deputy shall do. Now it says " He shall 
also make a true report of, and enter and sign daily, in a book kept at the appointed office for the purpose, 
the state of the mine rotds, doors, stoppings, brattice, faces, and ventilating appliances." You see that you 
had to make a report and enter it in a book daily. I want to know whether you did make a report and 
enter it in a 1)00k? A. I was authorised not to make a report on any place except the working places. 
11449. Q. Who authorised you ? A. William Nelson. 
11450. When did he authorise you not to make such a report? 1. When I first started on the job. I was 
told to examine all the working places; and he went round and showed them to me. 
11451. Q. When were you authorised not to make a report on faces not being worked? A. When I first 
started. 
11452. Q. Then from the date of your employment up to the date of the disaster you never examined any 
face that was not being worked 1 A. Never in the niorning. 
11453. Q. Did you ever at any time? A. I never did at any time. 
11454. Q. About how many faces, not being worked, are there in No. 1 Right District which you did not 
examine? A. Nine or ten. 
11455. Q. And could not every one of these nine or ten faces have heconie a magazine of gas? A. No, I do 
not think so. 
11456. Q. Who examined them? A. I did not say that anyone examined them. 
11457. Q. Will you point out where those nine or ten faces are that were not being worked and were not 
examined? A. Yes. There are two at the top of No. 1 main levej-----the 2nd and 3rd west of the 17 perches 
goaf and there are Nos. 4, 5, 6, and 7 west of the 17 perches goaf. 
11458. Q. Is that all ? A. There are two places at the bottom of the 5th Right rope road east.. 
114,51). Q. Now, do you not know that since the disaster gas has Leen found in the vicinity of these places I 
A. Yes, in the vicinity of these places. 
11460. Q. I take it also that at no time did you examine any of these eight places? A. At no time. I was 
once in the two headings. 
11461. Q. You have told us about that before? A. Yes. 
11462. Q. Will you admit that you cliii not carry out the duty imposed on you by Rule 9 by examining all 
these faces and reporting in a book daily 1 A. No, I will not admit it. 
11163. Q. WImy? A. Simply because I examined all the working places. 
11464. ills Honor.] Mr. Morrison does not admit your construction of the Rule. 
11465. Mr. Bruce Sinitle.] \Vhether the witness complied with that section is a matter of law. 
11466. Mr. Lysaqlct.] Q. Did any other person besides Nelson tell you not to examine the places which 
were not being worked? A. He told me just to examine the working faces? 
11467. Q. He did not tell you that you bad to examine no places not being worked? A. I was not supposed 
to do it. 
11468. Q. Who was? A. I do not know anything about who was. 
41169. Q. Do you know anybody who was? A. No. 
11470. Q. Cannot we take it that they were left altogether unexamined 1 A. They were, by me. 
11471. Q. As far as you know, did anyone else examine them? A. I have nothing to do with the work 
done by anyone else. 
11472. Q. As far as you know, did anyone else examine them ? A. Not as far I know. 
11473. Mr. Curtiss.] Q. They might have been examined? A. They might have been. 
11474. Mr. Lysagkt.] Q. What was Mr. Hay, at the time you made the examination with Mr. Nelson? 
A. The weighman. 
11475. Q. Do you know why he should go and make an examination of a heading? A. No, I have nothing 
to do with it. 11476. 
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11476. Q. Did you ever hear of the weighman doing anything like that before? A. Yes. 
11477. Q. That is the check-weighrnan, outside? A. Yes, I have heard of their doing it. 
11478. Q. Where were you when Nelson told you that he had examined the top heading? A. On the 
outside of the mine. 
11479. Q. Why should he tell you that 1 A. He was talking about the work; and he told me. 
11480. Q. Do you know why the furnace was let out? A. They were repairing it. 
11481. Q. How long was it out? A. I could not say. 
11482. Q. For how many days? A. I could not say. It started from a Friday night. 
11483. Q. While the furnace was out, there would be little air passing through the mine ? A. I have been 
through the mine and examined it when the furnace was out. 
11484. Q. While the furnace was out, there would be little air? 
11485. Q. There was plenty of air passing through when the furnace was out? A. Yes. 
11486. Q. There would be a greater probability of gas accumulatii-ig when the furnace was out? 
11487. Q. How long was it before the disaster that the furnace was put in working order? A. It would 
be the 19th. 
11488. Q. You said that Nelson told you on the 21st that he had examined it on the 19th1 A. I should 
say that from the Friday night until the Sunday morning it would be out. 
11489, Q. When did the fire start again! A. I cannot say. 
11490. Q. Did you ever take the measurement of the air? A. Never. It was not my business. 
11491. Q. Do you know how to take it? A. I have never done it. 
11492. Q. I want to know if you know how to take it? A. Is it a fair question to ask me, your Honor? 
11493. His Honor.] Q. It is a simp?e thing to ask? A. And it is a simple thing to do. 
11494. Mr Lysaght.] Q. I ask you if you know how to do it? A. I have seen it done. 
11495. Q. Do you know how to do it? A. I will say no ; because I have never done it. 
11496. Q. Now, who was it told you of the various positions in which Dungey and your boy,and the 
brattice cloth, were found? A. I saw the brattice cloth. 
11497. Q. What about Dungey? A. I saw him myself. 
11498. Q. Do I understand that every question which you answered Mr. Wade was something you knew of 
your own knowlege? A. Yes. 
11499. Q. Everything? A. Yes. 
11500. Q. Can you tell me what became of the props that the canvas was attached to opposite Morris' place? 
A. Yes. They were broken up-4 or 5 yards past Morris' place. 
11501. Q. Where? A. Inbye, on the travelling road. 
11502. Q. Did you notice whether the props were singed; A. No. 
11503. Q. Did you notice whether the edges of the props were burned ? A. No. 
11504. Q. Can you say whether they were or not? A. I cannot say. 
11505. Q. Do you say they were singed ? A. No. 
11506. Q. Was the canvas burnt off in the middle ? A. The props and the canvas had been driven 
together. 
11507. Q. Did they not separate? A. Some of them had separated. I cannot say exactly how many props 
were burnt; I did not examine them. 
11508. Q. Would it not be probable,  if the force came from No. 1 main level towards the travelling road 
that it would blow the canvas clean off and leave the props there? A. No. 
11509. Q. Then, if the force came out from No. 1 main level, it would blow them up altogether without 
separating the canvas ? A. In my opinion it might. 
11.510 Q. If the force came from No. 1 main level, it might have blown the props, or it might have gone 
the other way? A. It all depends. 
11511. Q. How is the canvas fixed '1 A. The canvas is tacked to the top bar; and it is simply let hang 
down, one hanging over the other. 
11512. Q. Is there anything at the bottom to keep it down? A. No. 
11513. What was there to prevent the air escaping ? A. This canvas door was there. 
11514. Q. I am talking about the canvas which was hanging along there to take the air to the working. 
faces ? A. The skips passed through it. 
11515. Q. I mean the canvas which takes the air to the men's working-places ? A. It hangs right along. 
11516. What keeps it in position? A. There are a few tacks put down the props. 
11517. Q. How far are the props apart? A. Various distances apart-3 or 4 feet, and so on. 
11518. Q. About what percentage of air leaks through, owing to that system being adopted? A. I cannot say. 
11519. Q. I suppose you admit, that the leakage is considerable? A. There is a leakage; but I will not 
admit that it is very considerable. 
11520. Q. As far as you saw, there was no indication of force down the 5th Right rope road east. A. Yes,. 
the door was blown out. 
11521. Q. From the corner of the 5th Right east, were there any indications of force? A. There were three 
canvas doors there. (Witness examined the plan.) The canvas stoppings on the 5th Right rope road were 
driven easterly. 
11522. Q. I think you know there was a difficulty about getting lamps to go into the mine with on the 
evening of the disaster. A. Yes. 
11523. Q. The rescue parties were delayed for a couple or hours for the want of lamps? A. Of course I 
could not say, I was in the mine, but I heard it. 
11524. Q. I may take it that you are clearly of opinion that, if there had been an adequate supply of lamps. 
the, there might have been more lives saved? A. They could have been got out quicker. 
11525. Q. You mean that other men would probably have lived had the men got in quicker to carry them 
out? A. Yes, if the men had got straight in, they might. 
11526. Q. Would you approve of the Recommendation (No. 12), that "an extra supply of safety-lamps and 
their requisites equal to one-third of the number of persons employed below ground, be kept constantly in 
good order and ready for use 1" A. Yes; but I would like to give an explanation of how the lamps are 
used. You might keep that reserve in hand ; and if anything went wrong in the colliery they would be of 
no use. If lamps are used with oil, and laid by, and you start to use them again, they will not burn. 
Tl)ere would have to be new lamps there. . 11527.. 
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11527. Q. I am saying, "and their requisites?" A. There were lamps there; but they were no good; they 
should have been boiled first. 
11528. Q. How many safety-lamps were there belonging to the company? A. I cannot say how many. 
11529. Q. Did you ever clean any of them? A. I have nothing to do with them. I should say there would 
be twenty or thirty lamps. I think there should be a supply of lamps at the mine. 
11530. Q. Do you know of the following rule, No. 7, relating to the duties of a deputy? "He shall, in 
the absence of a special officer appointed for the purpose, examine all safety-lamps, and shall have full 
control of the same, and shall see that the General Rules applying to lamps and shot-firing are at all times 
strictly observed?" A. Yes. 
11531. Q. Did you examine the safety-lamps? A. I did not, it was not my duty. 
11532. Q. Do you know whether a special officer was appointed to do this work? A. Not to my knowledge. 
11533. Q. How often during a week have you found gas in Kembla since the disaster? A. I have never 
found it yet. 
11531. Q. And have you still been daily examining No. 1 Right_-are you still deputy? A. No, the work is 
being done now by William Livingstone. 
11535. Q. You are not responsible deputy for Kembla now? A. Not unless I am sent for specially. 
11536. Q. Were you removed immediately after the disaster? A. Yes, but not immediately after. I was 
asked to look after the ventilation. 
11537. Q. How soon after the disaster? A. About three weeks or a month after. 
11538. Q.  Were you asked by Mr. Rogers? A. No, I was asked by Mr. Hotchkis. 
11539. Q. Did he give any reasons? A. I was sent to restore the ventilation, such as puttingup the doors 
and so on. 
11540. Q. That is not so responsible as the office of deputy? A. Oh, I do not know that. 
11541. Q. Now, I suppose that it was a common thing for stoppings in Mount Kembla, built of rubbish, to 
fall in? A. No. 
11542. Q. They sank down frequently? A. Yes, and they would be punched up with a prop. 
11543. Q.There would be a considerable leakage of air there. Was your punching up with a prop 
adequate to stop that leakage? A. You could stop it with a prop. 
11544. Q. How often during a week? A. No time during a week. 
11545. Q. Do you not admit that the stopping was down, so that the air would escape for days and days? 
A. I cannot admit it., but if you point to one I can tell you. 
11546. Q. Is the object of a stopping to make the place absolutely air-tight? A. Yes. 
11547. Q. Do you not admit that those places were very far from being air-tight? A. They might be in 
some places. 
11548. Q. And, if the ventilation of the whole of No. 1 Right depended on single doors, it might be a 
reason for the ventilation being bad? A. It depends where the doors were. 
11549. Q. There was a single door on the 4th Left travelling road? A. No, not a single door. 
11550. 9. What was it? A. A canvas door. There are two canvas doors. 
11551. 9. Are there not five doors between there and Stafford's Flat? A. There are two doors near the 
turn to the main level of the 4th Left travelling road, and two doors at the front to drive the air back to 
Aitken's and Tost's working place. 
11552. Q. You recognise that there was a leakage on the 4th Left travelling road-at a door on the shunt? 
A. Yes, there was a leakage. 
11553. 9. Was there not a single door on the 3rd Left? A. No, there was no door at the 3rd Left. 
11554. 9. No door there? A. It was a stopping. 
11555. Q. What sort was it? J. It was built of stone and rubbish. 
11556. Q. Do you know whether it was in good order on the day of the disaster? A. I went through there 
that morning. 
11557. 9. Did you inspect it? A. Yes. 
1158. 9. What condition was it in' A. It was standing there; and a little air was going over it. 
11559. 9. Was there not a considerable amount of air going over it? A. No. 
11560. 9. It had been built to the top? A. Yes. 
11561. 9. And it had sunk down 18 inches or 2 feet? A. No. 
11562. 9. Was there not a considerable hole on the top of the stopping? A. There was not 18 inches or 
2 feet. 
11563. 9. How many inches would there be? A. I cannot say whether there was any hole at all. There 
was a little air going over it; but I am ready to swear that there was not a great hole there. 
11564. 9. What was the size of this little escape? A. There was just a little air escaping. 
11565. 9. Had not the place sunk down considerably? A. I rounded it myself before. It had been rounded 
up before that. 
11566. Q. How many months before the disaster? A. I was only seven weeks on the job. 
11567. 9. Will you not admit that there was considerable leakage of air through that 3rd Left? A. I will 
not admit that there was a considerable quantity. 
11568. 9. I suppose you will admit that the proper sort of stoppings are built with brick? A. Yes. 
11569. 9. And that these dust and rubbish stoppings are practically worthless for good ventilation? 
A. There was good ventilation in the mine ; but I admit that brick are the best. 
11570. Q. Then the system of building stoppings that way is a bad system-you say that as a practical 
miner? A. Yes. 
11571. 9. Did you do any shot-firig? A. I have fired a few shots. 
11572. 9. As a deputy? A. Yes. 
11573. 9. Why did you fire them as a deputy_-I mean before the disaster? A. I never fired a shot before 
the disaster. 
11574. Q. Did you know that there was danger in an accummnlation of dust where a shot was being fired? 
A. I have heard of it. 
11575. Q. Before the disaster? A. No. 
11576. Q. I am speaking to you now about things which happened before the disaster. Did you know that 
dan2er could arise from the accumulation of dust, when shot-firing? A. Never in Kembla. 
11577. Q. I am not talking of Kembla? A. 1 say that I never saw any danger in Kembla. 11578. 
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11578. Q. If you saw an accumulation of dust in a mine, and shot-firing was going on, would you consider 
that accumulation of dust to be dangerous? A. I have read of it, long before the disaster. 
11579. Q. You knew that an accumulation of dust where shot-firing was going on was dangerous? A. I 
have read it. 
11580. Q. If shot-firing was going on where there was an accumulation of dust on the floor, you knew that 
it was dangerous? A. Well, I have read about it. 
11581. Did you know that it was dangerous? A. I never knew that it was dangerous in Kembla. 
11582. Q. In any mine? A. I have read about it. 
11583. Q. 1-living read about it, and knowing it was dangerous, did you ever give any orders about 
watering any particular places in Kembla? A. Never. 
11584. Q. Did you ever inspect the dusty conditions in Mount Kembla? A. I went round and inspected. 
11585. Q. Did you ins1ect for dusty conditions? A. There were none. 
11586. Q. Did you inspect for them ? A. Do you mean for shot-firing. I had nothing to do with shot. 
firing. 
11587. Q. I say, did you inspect the mine for dusty conditions? A. I say it is not a fair question. I was 
working on the night-shift, where there was no shot-firing. 
11588. Q. Did you ever inspect for dusty conditions in Mount Kembla? A. No, I did not. I had nothing 
to do with shot-firing. 
11589. Q. About how often, in your experience, was the air reversed in Mount Kembla? A. I cannot say. 
11590. Q. ilouglily speaking? A. It may not have been reversed for years. 
11591. Q. At what time? A. I say that the air was reversed a few times since I went to Kembla, fifteen 
years ago, but not for years. 
11592. Q. You know that it is caused by the westerly winds? [No answer.] 
11593. His honor.] Q. Since the new shaft has been sunk, has any reversal taken place? A. Not to my 
knowledge. 
11594. Hi. Lijsr'gItt] Q. At no time, for from seven to eight hours, or eight to ten hours, has the air not 
been reversed to your knowledge? A. No. 
11393. Q. Have you not spoken about the reversal of the air to various men at Kembla? A. Never. 
11596. Q. Never as a working miner? A. It may have been reversed; but never as far as I know. 
11597. Q. Do you not know perfectly well that it has been reversed? A. I do not know perfectly well. It 
may have been, but not to my knowledge. 
11598. Q. Has the number of deputies been increased in Kembla since the disaster? A. Yes. 
11599. Q. Had you too much work to do when deputy? A. We had not shot-firing to do then. 
11600. Q. Had you too much work to-do'? A. Well, I have done it. 
11601. Q. Did not the deputies complain to each other of having too much work to do? A. Me and my 
mate never complained. 
11602. Q. Do you know that they did complain? A. Yes, but I never complained. 
11603. Q. Did one of the deputies complain? A. Yes. 
11604. Q. Will you not admit that you had too much work to do to do it properly? A. There was only one 
way the deputies could complain. The night-deputy would complain about the day-deputy, or the day-
deputy ahout the night-deputy. 
11605. Q. You have said that you have no idea as to what caused the disaster? A. No. 
11606. Q. Have you got any idea? A. I said at the inquest that I thought it was a big fall in the 4th 
Right. 
11607. Q. And it forced out-what? A. There was a great rush of air. 
11608. Q. And not gas? A. No gas. 
11609. Q. You have never changed your ideas since? A. No. 
11610. Q. You think gas had no part in it? A. No. 
11611. '\Vlmat about coal-dust? A. I do not know. 
11612. Q. As far as you do know? A. I am no expert in the matter; and you are putting expert questions 
to me. 
11613. Q. As far as you know, neither gas nor coal-dust played any part in the explosion? A. I cannot 
say. I believe there was no gas in the 4th Right; and I believe that is where the explosion came from. I 
believe that in my heart., too. 
11614. Q. You remember the time that you found black-damp in the 4th Right ?A. Yes. 
11615. You did not report it? A. No. 
11616. Q. The intake air passing the coal would carry through the mine? A. You are on the wrong 
side. 
11617. Q. The air passing up No. 1 main level. If any black-damp came out of the 4th Right, where 
would it go? A. It would go down the travelling road. 
11618. Are there openings on to the 4th Right on the western side of that goaf? A. There are three 
openings on the western side of the goaf; and there are four or five on the east side and the south side. 
11619. Q. And on the north? A. There are five or six, to the best of my knowledge. 
11620. (1. And no air would circulate through that goaf 1 A. No. 
11621. Q. So that anything which came out of the openings on the north would go into the intake air? 
A. If anything came out, it would. 
11622. Q. And would be carried to the men at the working faces'? A. If anything did come out, it 
would. 
11623. Now, do you approve of Recommendation No. 4 : "That all waste workings should he absolutely 
sealed off"? A. I do not know that it is the best idea; but they are better sealed off than left open. 
11624. Q. The Recommendation is that "All waste workings be absolutely sealed off and surrounded by 
return airways, for fear of emissions; such return airways not to come in contact with the intake? A. I 
do not believe in this recommendation, as a practical miner. Where there is gas, I believe in them being 
ventilated-I nlean if there is only a little black-damp. I do not believe in piling up the expense, when 
the mine owners have to pay it all. 
11623. Q. Do you approve of waste workings being sealed off? A. In some cases it would be better, if there 
were gas to have the place ventilated. 
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1 1626. Q. Do you believe in waste workings being surrounded by return airways, so that any emissions 
shall not come in contact with the intake 1 A. I do not qeite under,taucl you. 
11627. Q. You see that there is danger from the ciii kshiis, from the wastes ? A. In some collieries there 
is a great danger ; and in others there is not so much. 
11628. Q. Is it not better to have wastes surrounded by return airways? A. In gassy mines it would be 
better ; but in mines like Mount Kembla it does not m itter whether the intake air passes or not. 
11629. Q. Do you not admit that the air coming down the 4th iliglit would meet the air coming from these 
wastes through these openings? A. There is nothing ceulimig out of these openings into the mine. There 
was nothing coming out of the openings on the 4th Itight we have had no gas there since the ventilation 
his been restored. 
11630. Q. How do you know ? A. I was there at the time. 
11631. Q. WTould not the air carry the gas away ;-hov can you swear that there was nothing being 
emitted from those openings in the vastes 1 A. Because I was there every night when the ventilation was 
not travelling, and if there had been any gas I would have found it then. 
11632. Q. Now, I want to ask you with regard to E{ecommendationNo. 1, which is as follows :----" Manaters, 
under-managers, deputies, and shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have 
had five years' practical mining experience, before being eligible for their respective positions." Do you 
believe in that recommendation 1 A. I believe that Managers should have certificates. I do not believe 
that deputies or shot-firers should undergo an exainina:ion. If the Manager is not competent to examine 
them, lie is not eflicient himself. 
11633. Q. Did the Manager ever examine you 1 A. He had it very fair examination of me. 
11634. Q. Did lie ask you a single question ? A. He told me that he knew all I knew. 
11635. Q. And I suppose you knew all lie knew 1 Did you ever hear him say lie knew nothing about gas, 
that ho did not know what carburetteci hydrogen was ;-now, did you consider, in view of the disaster, that 
you had niade a thorough examination of the mine for gas? A. Yes. 
11636. Q. Do you consider yourself thoroughly competent to be a deputy, having violatel three or four 
rules? A. Yes. 
11637. Mr. Brace Smith.] I hope that qiestion will nt be taken down in that way__-' Having violated 
three or four rules." 
11638. Mr. Lysaylmt.] Q. You did violate the rules? A. I did not violate them. I did everything I was 
told to do. 
11639. Q. Well, you would rely on a deputy's practical experience only 1 A. I do not wish to go into that 
question. 
11640. Q. You do not approve of this recommendation ,'and I want to know what you think a deputy 
ought to learn, if lie should not be examined A. lie should know gas when lie sees it in the lamp ; lie 
should know the way to brattice a plsce properly ; lie should know the iules of the mine. 
11641. Q. Is that all 1 A. That is pretty well all ou can know. 
116 12. Q. Is that all you know I A. He should know fire-damp when lie sees it ignited in the lamp-lie 
should know how to fix up brattieing-and he should know the rules of the mine. 
11643. Q. He should know all that, and know no more ? 1. He should know all that lie can know--if lie 
is a practical man. 
11614. Q. What else should lie know ;----I want your ideas as to what is a practical man I A. That is a big 
question. 
11645. Q. What else should lie know in addition to Iliese three things ? 
11646. AIr. Brace Smith.] Q. Is Mr. Morrison an expert on what a deputy should know 1 
11647. his honor.] It is uselcss to aA; these qu stions ; and most of thmeni are a mere waste of 
tini'. 
11618. ,lJi' Lyseglmt.] My object is to sho',v that lie was absolutely incompetent to be a deputy himself, in 
view of several rules which lie violated. 
11619. His honor.] Hardly anybody can give an exhaustive de3nidon about anything. Out of a number 
of persons who know a great deal abou things, the number who would be able to define the duties which 
they ought to be able to perform is very small. 
1 [650. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think this kind of examination really comes within the province of the 
Corn mission. 
11651. Mr. Lysa,h.] May I ask this witness a few questions with regard to his knowledge of gas? 
11652. M3 honor.] It would only be of use with a view of showing that lie was to blame, and the questions 
must be kept within reasonable hinnts. 
11653. Mr. Lysaylmt.] Q. Can you tell me what proportion of fire-damp becomes inflammable? A. G per 
cent. 
11654. Q. Of what? A. 6.1; per cent, in the lamp. Wait a minute. Yes, 6.1, per cent. explodes. 
11655. (p. Of what? A. Gas. 
11656. Q. Where I A. Anywhere. In the mine ; if that is the question you are askiig. 
11657. Q And the answei' is that E31 per cent, will explode anywhere? A. Feebly in the lamp. 
11658. Q. Do you say that 6I per cent, will explode anywhere; or that it will explode chiefly in the safety-
lamp? A. Yes, that is what "I mean, feebly in the safety-lamp. 
11659. Q. Now, will you tell me how you can tell what percentage of gas there is in the safety-lamp 
A. Yes. 
11660. Q. I want to know how you can tell what percentage of gas there is in a safety-lamp? A. 6 per 
cent. fills it to the top of the glass. I have the table at home. 
11661. Q. I ani speaking of the time before the dieatei' ;-can you tell me what percentage of gas conid 
be discovered in the lamp before the dimaster 1 A. If there is 21 pr cent, of gas, you know it by 
the lamp. 
11662. Q. I thighit with the lamp you oIly krew G. pr cemt. ?. 1. You do not understand me. 
11663. Q. Do you say that 61 per cent, will explode feebly in the safuty-lani. ? A. Yes? 
11664. Q. That is all you mean? A. Yes. 
11665. 9. You thu not know how much will explode iii the mine 1 Six and a half will explode feebly with a 
naked light. 
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11666. Q. Would it matter whether there was any air there or not ;-what percentage of air should there 
be, if there should be any 0 i. Yes, there should be air -there. 
11667. Q. How much? 
11 668. Mr. Bruce Smith.] This is a question on chemistry. 
11669. His honor.] It is confusing the witnms altogether. 
11670. Mr. Lysayht.] Q. Have you read the matteiup? 4.  I have read plenty of books about it. 
11671. J[r. Bruce Smith.] I submit that Mr. Morrison is not an expert on chemistry or on gas. The only 
value of his evidence in this direction would be to show that he could not understand the elementary 
questions relating to gas, a knowledge of which are required by a deputy. Tins is taking him beyond that. 
My friend is trying to set Morrison up as an expert, outside of his province. 
11672. his lIono.] His province was to test whether there was a dangerous quantity of gas present; and 
these questions are not directed to that. 
11673. Jfr. Bruce Smith.] I think Mr. Lyssght is trying to get facts out with ulterior motives. 
11671. Mr. Lt,'sa9Ilt.] My friend should not say anything of the kind. I am not here with ulterior motives. 
11675. Q. If you had not discovered, say, more than 6 per cent. of gas, you would not have considered it 
dangerous 1 A. No. 
11676. Q. Is that what you mean-" No" ? A. No, that is not what I mean. If I found any gas at all, I 
should have considered it dangerous. 
11677. Q. 1)o you say now that you would have considered any quantity of gas dangerous? A. I should 
have considered any quantity dangerous, if I had discovered it. 
11678. Q. You would not consider any quantity of dust dangerous? A. I have nothing to do with dust. 
11679. Q. You would not consider any quantity of dust dangerous as far as you know 1 A. I had nothing 
to do with dust. There are some dusts more dangerous than others. 
11680. Q. What quantity do you consider dangerous? A. Of course, that is the next question. I am 
not going to tell you all about that. 
11681. Mr. Bruce Smith.] If every deputy is to be made an authority on coal-dust, we should never be done 
with this inquiry. 
11682. Mr. £ysaqht.] Q. Do you approve of Recommendation No. 5 That all places, except prospecting 
drives, should have cut-throughs not more than 30 yards apart" 0 A. I think it is unnecessary. 
11683. Q \\T}5 distance (10 YOU think it is necessary to have them 0 A. I should say about 50 yards apart. 
11684. Q. What (10 you say with regard to iteconimendation No. 1$-that ''Instructions hl1 be given to 
employees regularly on the means of escape." Do you approve of that? A. Yes. 
11685. Q. Who should give it 0 A. The deputy. 
11686. Q. When would you have it given? A. He could take them out at night. 
11687. Q. About onca a quarter-at each cavil? A. Yes. 
11688. Q. Do you think it would woik satisfactorily 1 A. It would be a good thing to try it; but the men 
shift a lot in their work. 

- Examined by Mr. Curtiss 

11689, Q. With regard to Rule 9, what is your idea as to your duties under that rule I 
11690. Mr. LE.isayht.1 The duties are defined in the rule. - 
11621. H6*3 ffouor.] Ha says ha thinks the i-ole should apply to the working faces only. 
11692 Mr. Curtiss.j Q. About the stoppages, as carried out at Mount Kembla. As far as your knowledge 
gos, are they satisfactory 0 A. They are ; but brick stoppngs would be better. 
11693. Q. Brick stoppings would he bettor 0 A. Yes. 
1 1694. A. But these carry out their wo, le 0 A. Y s. 
11695. Mr. Bruce Suiitii.1 Q. You s Lid ,n answer to Mr. Issaglt that a certain kind of stopping, which 
he described as being made up of rubbish, would be very bad. Do I understand you that that kind of 
stopping is used in 51 onnt Keinbia 1 A. I do not know what you Iman. 
11696. Q. Did not Mr. Lysaght describe some stopping as being made up of loose stone and iubbish? 
A. Those which lie said were 2 feet down from the roof. 
11697. Q. Yes. Is there anything of that kind in Mount Kembla -? A There is nothing like that in Mount 
Kembla. 
11698. his Ilonoi..] Q. There are no brick stoppiugs there? A. None before the disaster. 
11699. Q. These stoppings which have been described, hw are. they built -? A. There are stone walls ; and 
they are tilled up with fine stuft and built up. Then they are built up from the other side 
11700. Q. What is the general tldekuess from wall to wall 0 A. From 4 to 5 feet. Four feet would be 
about the smallest it would dep -oil upon whether there was plenty of fine stufli 

Examined by Mr. Robertson 

11701. Q. What is the object of stoppings I A. To keep the air travelling in one dircction. 
11702. Q. To carry it to the working face? A. Yes. 
11703. Q. If sufficient air is carried, with stopings of the character which have been describcd, -you have 
nothing to grumble abmt. It does not matter very much what is the nature of the stoppings I A. It does 
not matter, so ]on,,  as tie air is carried. 
11iO4. Q. In the event of an explosion, which would stand best-the ruhbiah ones or the brick ones? 
A. They would all go the same as each ot hr i,. 
11705. Q. Would not thick rubbish stappings be more likely to stand a shock than a t-hia brick wall '1 
A. Yes, perhaps they would. 
11706. Q. You said that tiLe air was good at Kenbla? A. Yes. 
11707. (7. 'l'hei efcre, t1v se dirt sto1 pings itrecti cit ii ir p0rpm e 1 A. Y( F. 
11708. (7. With reference to the air passing over tiLe sto] - ping in No. 3 Left, Co N on ren enb r Si r. Lytaght 
suggestg that tl.eri' was 1$ inches of spaci' ovf r the top of a stopping? A. rll,el e was no space, so far as 
I saw ; but I l:ei-c nurlit have been a liIE]e air 0111' Cv€ r. 'll(-i e was no hole there. 
11709. Q. Where weui,t that I ole lead to- ho it Iii 1l- r ci-  at 0 Al. It would to  right into the ictui fl 
11710. Q. Are you sure 0 Will you look at titO 1 Iti ? A. [iji CE/i LO 01 (/id jhin] I see that it would 
go through the goof, if it went any wl.ere 
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11711. Q. If it went through a goaf, would it not 1)3 efFecting a gaol purpom? A. Yes. 
11712. Q. By helping to keep the goaf clear of gas ? A. Yes. 
11713. t7. As a matter of fact, are not lealcage.s necessary, in order to ventilate the whole of the mine 
properly I A. Yes, to ventilate the roads. 
11714. Q. If you attempted to force all the nih  into the working faces, what would be the result ? A. We 
never attempt to do it. 
11715. Q. Would you not reduce the total volume of air? A. Yes. 
11716. Q. Would not the old workings and the wastes suffer 1 A. Yes. 
11717. Q. So that it is not good mining practice to have a mine absolutely without leakages? A. No, it is 
a bad practice to have it without leakages. 
11718. Q. Now, on the 5th Right rope road, I think the first door had stone walls I A. Yes. 
11719. Q. Where were they driven 1 A. To the east. 
11720. Q. And the door in the travelling road, inbye of the 5th Right, that was driven south towards the 
5th Right-it also had stone walls 1 A. Yes. 
11721. Q. It does not take very much force to drive them, does it? A. No. 
11722. Q. Did you notice, in the 5th Right, on the rope road, lots of canvas and clust thrown on to the 
skips? A. Yes. 
11723. Q. Driven up against the end? A. Yes and some of the canvas in the 5th Right appeared to be 
driven inhye. 
11724. With reference to the canvas at Morris' place, which was placed in the mouth of the cut-through; 
it would be in smaller pieces than the other canvas in the place? A. Yes. 
11725. Q. Could you not identify these small pieces -the pieces cut for the door? A. I did not look at the 
time. If they had been left there, I could have identified them. 
11726. Q. You said that sonic of the props had been blown there with the canvas attached to them-would 
not that help you? A. I could identify the frames of the doors. The mcii came to take away the stuff; 
and they took the (10ev with them. 
11727. Q. The canvas bing attached to the props, they must have come from that place? A. I am certain 
as to where it all came from. There was no other canvas there. 
11728. Q. Did you observe the canvas in No. 1 back heading after the explosion; in the last cut-through 
UI)  to the face? A. Yes, I observi ci dint. 
11729. (7. Was it not in position, cxc- pting what was burnt 1 A. rlfllie  tail end of one length was down. 
1 1730. (7. Was that the only part missing? A. There was none missing. 
11731. Q. JTow was it burnt? A. It was not properly burnt; it was only singed. 
11732. Q. In view of the canvas b-sing there, and being intact, excepting one short length hanging down, do 
you not think it was in position before the explosion ? A. I think it was in position, of course, these 
gentlemen here say [Interruplul.] 
11733. Q. Never mind what they say. You have no reason to think that the canvas was not in position 
before the explosion 1 A. I have no reason to suppose that it was not in position. 
11734. Q. Now, \vith regard to -in exe niination of these standing places. Do you know whether they were 
included in the weekly or the monthly exaniination I A. Those places wuulcl not be examined when I 
examined the old workings. 
11735. Q. Would you not, if a place was abiuicioned, and you did not examine it daily-would you not 
examine it when you examined the old workings 1 A. I was told what to examine. 
11736. Q. Now, here are some stand in3 places-if they were not, examined in the daily examination, would 
it not be necessary to examine them weekly, the same as you do the old workings. Would they not be old 
workings? A. Yes. 
11737. Q. Did you examine them? A. No. 
11738. (7. Did Nelson ? A. Whether Nelson examined them I cannot say. 
11739. (7. I think you examined the waste workings? A. I never examined those pliers. 
117-10. Q. Had you any instructions? A. Noise to examine those places. 

1741. Q. In making all examination at night, for the morning shift, what time did you start 1 A. When 
I came out from the mine, I would come out at the main tunnel ; and I would have a bit of bread, and go 
beck. I would come out of the main tunnel first about 2 o'clock. 
11712. Q. When did you start to make the examination? A. Of course, I went Lack again. It would be 
between 2 and 3 o'clock. 
11743. Q. Were you in the habit of examining places contiguous to where the stone men were? A. Yes, I 
examined them. 
11744. (7. Did you examine the places near by where they were ? A. No. 
11145. (7. From the beginning of your visit, you went right through? A. Yes. 
11146. Q. No matter what places you examined for [lie stone men 1 A. Yes. 
11747. Q. If you examined places for the stone men, you would also examine them again on making your 
inspection for the day 1 A. Yes. 
1111. Q. Will you explain how you examined the waste workings? A. Yes. 
11749. Q. What do you understand by waste workings? A. That is a monthly inspection. We reported 
everything we saw. We came right down. 
11750. (7. Did you, in making [lie examination, go into every place accessible? A. Yes, as far as safe. 
11751. (7. You did not leave any bord winch you could get into ? A. We went into every place. 
11752. (7. You went with naked lights I A. Yes. 
11753. Q. Did you not think it necessary to li:-tve safety-lamps? A. The first time that I took a safety-lamp 
Nelson laughed at me, and said that he mA ways went with a naked light. 
11754. Q. Do you not think it probable that these were likely places in which to find gas? A. I would 
think that the most likely place to find gas would be in the highest place in the mine. I followed out what 
Mr. Nelson told me. 

[The Commission, at 510 p.m., adjourned until 1015 n.m. the following morning.] 
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2UESDA 1, 3 FLBRUA L'Y 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Court house, Darlingliursi.] 

C. F. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PiUSIDEN'1'). 

D. A. W. ROBERTSON, Es., COMMISSIOrETi. I D. 11ITCI-ITE, EsQ., ConnissIoNEn. 

Mr. Bnice Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lvsayht, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of- 
(n) the representatives of deceased nliner., wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
(li) the enluyees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) and 
(e) the Illalvarra Colliery lmplovee.s' Association (the Southern Miners' Lnion). 

Mr. F. Curtiss, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of 
Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Oarlic.k, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. JOhN MORRISON, previously sworn, was recalled, and further examined as ur:der 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 

ii 755. Q. Do you positively state that you examined every accessible place when you were making your 
examination of the old workings I A. Every accessi'jle place inside of these places [indicating on the plan]. 
11756. Q. But, in going round, if you found a bord open, an old bord, did you go into it? A. Yes. 
11757. (7. And, if there was any place that you did not inspect, for what reason did you not inspect it? 
A. There were only the two inspections altogether. Of course I was not very well acquainted 
[Interrupted]. 
11758. (7. If you passed any place, can you give your reason for passing it? A. I did not pass any place. 
11759. (7. Bat you must have passed lots of places that were not accessible? A. I did not pass any place 
without going in if I could get in. Of course there are places there that you cannot get in. 
11760. (7. By reason of broken timber ? A. By reason of the roof being in. 
11761. (7. Then you left no place unvisited that could safely he inspected? A. No. 
11762. Q. Now, when you came to a waste where there had been falls, where the pillars had been drawn 
and the roof was falling, how far did you examine that? A. As far as it was safe to go. 
11763. Q. Did you go on top of the falls? A. Well, if it was not safe I did not go. I have been on top 
of falls in Mount Kembla many times. 
11764. 0. In making your inspections? A. Is this the inspection of the 19th that you speak of? 
11765. Q. I am asking about your inspections? A. Oh, yes; I have been on the top of falls-where it was 
safe to go. 
11766. Q. You did not step at the tail of the fall? A. If it was not- safe I stopped at the tail of the fall. 
11767. Q. Of course, there are degrees of safety ; going on top of a fall at any time is dangerous; a zealous 
officer, if he is anxious to know the condition of it mine, will take a little risk 1 A. Yes I believe I have 
taken too many risks in going where it was dangerous. 
11768. Q. Well, there were heaps of falls that I, myself, saw in Mount Kembla, that were not too bad to 
I et on top of? A. Yes, there were some you could get on top of; and some you could not. Some you 
would go up against, and they would be the suite as a stone wall. 
11769. Q. Did you go on top of the falls only occasionally, or did you take every opportunity? A. Yes; 
if I could get up in safety. If I considered it was not safe I did not get on top of the fall. 
11770. Q. But, under any circumstances, I take it, you would hold your lamp up as far as you could reach 
it? A. Yes, always. 
11771. Q. Now, was this black-damp, which you found in the 4th Right, and did not think it worth while 
reporting to the Manager, much in quantity? Will you describe how much there was of it or how it 
affected your light? A. It dimmed the light, right in at the tail of the fall. 
11772. Q. That is where the roof had fallen 2 feet? A. Yi s. 
11773. 0. And would it have extingui.hed the light? A. No; I never went in far -enough to see. The 
timber was all drawn, and there was a great wide open space. 
11774. (7. Were you with me and Mr. Atkinson when we went in, about a week after the explosion? 
A. Yes. 
11775. (7. Do you remember the black damp extinguished a lamp then? A. Yes. 
11776. (7. Was not it as bad as that ? A. No nothinig hke it. 
11777. (7. Now, would you have reported that A. Yes; if it had been the same when I saw it, I would 
have reported it. 
11778. Q. Do you remember the date Mr. Atkinson and others, and myself, visited the 4th Right after the 
explosion? A. Yes. 
11779. Q. Do you remember seeing some props about 5 yards back from the fall? A. Yes. 
11780. (7. In which direct-ion were these props blown? A. Well, these particular props, I could not say. 
11781. (7. Do not you recollect ? Were you not up with us ? A. Yes, I was up with you ; but still I 
cannot remember just exactly these props. 
11782. Do not you remember they were buried in slack at the bottom end, 2 feet or so deep? A. Well, I 
do not recollect that. I was not up just exactly along with you ; but still I have been up there four or 
five times. I have been up many times, 
11783. Would not you take notice of these things A. I believe I was up the time that you speak of; and 
I believe there were props there that were partly buried in slack. 
11784. Q. The slack had been half-way up? Yes. 11785. 
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11785. (7. If you found the heads of these props driven towards the fall which way would you say the force 
was? ii. I would say the force went in. 
11786. (7. Did you notice that chock there, or a pig-sty ? A. There were two pig stys just inside the fall. 
11787. (7. No; this side of the fall, outside the fall ? Do you recollect the condition of that pig-sty 1 
A. No, I do not recollect the exact condition. 
11788. Q. This is so important. You seem to have been taking notice --[Interrupted] ? A. Yes, I would 
have taken notice if it had been __[Interrupted]. 
11789. Q. You seem to have a fair knowledge of the mine afterwards, whereas this is the one spot of more 
interest than all others? A. I know all about the timber that was further out ; but I cannot recollect just 
exactly. I have seen it but I cannot just recollect where that chock was. 
11790. (7. Do you not recollect my drawing the attention of the gentlemen who were present to these 
prop3 A. I was not along just exactly at the same time as you. 
11791. (7. Do you recollect a large flat stone lying on the 4th Right? A. Yes. 
11792. (7. Do you recollect if that stone had been traled to the back-heading, having fallen from the back- 
heading and been driven in? A. I do not know. The stone was lying there ; but whether it was driven 
in or driven out I could not say. 
11793. (). It was a black stone? A. It was a flat stone. 
1 1794. Q. It was a big flat stone ; but it was a black stone, from just over the coal? A. Yes. 
11795. Q. And did you not see where that stone had come from, right on the travelling road on the back 
heading 1 A. No ; 1 did not see the exact spot where it came froiri. 
11796. Q. Did you notice whether, inbye of that, there was any cavity in the roof from which it could 
have come? A. Not unless it was thrown out from a fall, or thrown in from the back-heading as you say. 
11797. (7. It was about 30 odd yards from the fall ? A. Yes. 
11798. 0. Do you not think it more probable that it would come from the back-heading, assuming that 
there was a hole in the roof ? A. Yes ; of course there were any amount of stones fallen there ; but how 
that particular stone got there I could not say. 
11709. Q. There were not any amount of stones fallen? A. There were any amount of stones fallen at 
the back heading. 
11800. (7. Oh, yes. how many years' practical experience have you had in mines? A. About thirty-five 
years. 
11801. (7. And have you a knowledge of the different systems of working coal? A. Long-wail, and bord 
and pillar. 
11802. (7. Do you know all about extracting pillars? A. Yes; I understand all about extracting pillars. 
11803. (7. And timbering 1 A. Yes. 
11-801. (7. And may I take it that you have a thorough practical knowledge of mining? A. Yes. 
11805. (7. And what is your experience with gas? A. Well, of course, I have had experience in the old 
country. I have never come near it in this country. 
11806. Q. That is what I mean? A. I have held the same position in the old country as 1 hold in Mount 
Kembla. 
11807. (7. Where? A. In Jordan Hill. 
11808. (7. That is a large ironstone mine? A. Yes, ironstone and coal. 
11809. Q. There was plenty of gas there? A. Yes, there was gas there. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie 

11810. Q. I want to get one matter cleared that is not clear at present to my mind. Were you the 
examining deputy for the, No. 1 section A. Yes. 
11811. Q. The examining deputy for the workmen during the day, and the waste examining deputy for 
that section ? A. Yes. 
11812. Q. Now, in connection with the waste, were you the only examining deputy in connection with the 
waste working,? A. I cannot say. Of course I examir.ed wastes ; but I cannot say whether any other 
deputy examined there. 
11813. (7. Do you know of any other whose c?uty it was to examine the wastes? A. I do not know. 
11814. (7. You never heard of any other? A. I never made any inquiries. 
11815. (7. I SUOSC you report in a book 1 A. Yes. 
11816. (7. Did you ever see the name of any other person who had reported the examination of waste 
workings? A. In No. 1? 
11817. (7. Yes? A. No. 
11818. (7. And you never heard of any other 1 A. No. 
11819. (7. Now, what do you call those working-0 A. Workings where the pillars have ha en taken out 
and the roof has fallen. 
11820. Q. AnsI what (in you ccii a goaf? A. (oar-es and waste workings are the same. A real goaf, as 
far as I take it, is in the long-wall workiiis. The. goaf is between two buildings in a long-wall face 
11821, (7. \Vhere the coal has been all worked out ? A. Yes. 
11622. (7. And, in the pillar and stall system, wlrc-re the coil has been all worked out, what do you call 
that ? A. A waste. 
11823. (7. You would call it a waste in the case of pillar and st-Al ? A. Yes. 
11624. (7. And a goaf in the case of the long•wahl system? A. Yes. 
11825. (7. Tire condition would be exactly the same? A. Yes. 
11826. Q. And what do you call places where bords have been worked, and the pillars are all stan cling 
unworked ? A. I would say the berds were driven np_[Iirter-uptcL] 
11827. Q. And what NVOUICi you call a section of the wor-kings where the lords had been completed and the 
pillars Ira'l not been commenced 1 A. We would generally say, The old horde," until we began to take 
out the pillars. 
11828. (). Now, in the case of pillars standing like that, and headings which have been driven up sufhciently 
far for the time being and are not working, what part of your examining duties would they come under-
tIre day examination or the waste examination ? Q. I do not know what part these placs s would come 
under. 

11829. 
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11829. Q. I will put it to you this way-when did you exaniine these places ; in your daily examination, 
or in your waste examination ? A. You mean the morning inspection ? 
11830. Q. Yes, the daily examination 1 A. Well, I did not examine these places at all. 
11831. Q. You did not do them at all? A. No. 
11832. Q. In neither one examination nor the other? A. Neither one nor the other. 
11833. Q. So that whatever part of the workings was standing, pillar workings, or headings, or bords 
which may be standing driven up sufficiently far for the time being, those were never examined at all? 
A. Of course you mean they were driven up the distance, and cut off by the line of cut-throughs further up. 
11834. Q. I understand these were never examined by you 1 Q. Not hy me. 
11835. Q. What was the object of examining what you call the waste woikings, where the coal had been 
all extracted, and refusing to examine these places which were likely to be working? A. In any 
examinations I made I went according to what I was told. I was told the way to examine the places, as I 
stated before. Of course, it is no use ray going into the subject to say what should have been done or 
what should not. I had only to do what I was told. 
11836. Q. I will put it to you this way were there any other sections of the workings in No. 1 which 
were likely to be worked and not in actual operation, other than those which you have mentioned? I 
think there were eight or ten you mentioned yesterday ; that is, I think you mentioned six or seven 
apart from those two headings.. Were there any other parts in your section standing which were not 
examined, which were likely to be worked? A. Well, of course, I never knew they were likely to be 
worked. I would only be told that they were going to start the day before they were to be started. I 
would be told the day before to examine in the morning. 
11837. Q. Were there any other parts of that section with pillars standing intact? A. In the 4th Left 
there was a place. 
11838. Q. How many places were there there? A. Altogether I 
11839. Q. Yes, where the bords had been worked out, and the pillars left standing? A. These places were 
all driven up the distance [pointing to the bords numbered from eighty to ninety.] 
11840. Q. How many would there be apart from those you mentioned yesterday ? A. That is the only 
place that I can think of. 
11341. Q. These are the ones that you described yesterday ? A. Yes. These two headings you described 
yesterday (the No. 1 Main heading and No. 1 back heading), and these places along here I A. Yes. 
11842. Q. Your examining district ended about here (2nd Left rope road)? A. Yes. 
11843. Q. What about these places here (between the 4th Left and the .1 51 acre goaf) 1 A. That is just 
into the goaf. 
11814. Q. And these are all pillars here? A. Yes; that is finished. 
1184.5. Q. Are they built up at the opening here? A. Most of them are. They were before. 
118 16. Q. Are there some of them open ? A. They are open now but I do not think there was one of 
them open before. 
11847. (The bords referred to are those on the northern side of the 1.51  acre goaf, between the goaf and 
the 4th Left rope road.) 
1188. Q. What about these places in here, butween the 35 acre goaf and the 9 acre goaf-were these all 
closed up thoroughly? A. Yes. 
11849. Q. Right along the 2nd Right, to the very end there, were they closed up 1 A. I think there was 
one place there that was open in that 2nd Left. 
11850. 0. Whereabouts was that? A. I tliialc it was about the middle. 
11851. Q. That is in the middle of the noddi side of the 9 acre goaf. [No answer] 
11852. Q. Was that place examined daily or in your waste examination? A. That was examined in the 
morning, since the 19th. 
11853. Q. Every morning since the 19th? A. Every morning since the 19th. I think there was just one 
place that I can remember. Of course it is all knocked open now. 
11854. Q. What about these roads leadIng up here (the bords on the north side of the 4th L(ft)? Are 
these open? A. Yes. 
11855. Q. Did you examine those also during your daily examination? A. No. 
11856. Q. These were not examined at all? A. I cannot say. 
11857. Q. Not by you? A. No. 
11858. Q. Putting it shortly, I take it that this is the position as far as you are concerned : that you were 
the examining deputy, both for the daily examination, and for the waste examination of No. 1 section 
and that you never did examine places which were standing or were abandoned for the time being ? A. No, 
I never examine ci them. 
11859.. Q. Now, you have said here, in answer to Mr. Robertson, I think it was, that you went into the 
waste workings as far as you could get ? A. Yes, as far as it was safe to go. 
11860. Now, how do you reconcile that with this in your former evidence here on page 15 of the evidence 
taken at the inquest ? You said I never did anything to see whether gas had accumulated in that waste." 
You were talking then, I think, of the 35 acre goaf ; and further on you say " I never went into the waste 
in my life "t A. Well, E was speaking about some particular waste. These waste workings that I spoke 
about in that evidence, the waste examination in i\iount Kemila, that is when I was examining in the 
morning. Sey I was going down examining for the morning shift, if it was a waste examination, I would 
be told in the morning to to and examine certain parts, say the 2nd Right. 
11861. Q. Do I understand that, when a waste examination had to be made, you were told in the morning 
what part of the waste you had to examine? A. YesI was told that this would be the monthly 
examination of the waste. Of course I only examined twice. 
11862. Q. Were you told the particular par:s of the waste that you had to examine? A. Yes-say to 
examine the 1st Right. 
1186.3. Q. You need not describe the parts ; but do .1 understand that, after you had received instructions 
to examine certain psr ts of the waste, you did not examine any other parts? A. I examined the parts I 
was instructed to examine. 
11864. Q. Would there be any parts of the wastes left after you had examined in that way 1 A. These 
workings going in the main roads were not examined at the time I made the monthly examination. 

11865. 
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11865. Q. The waste workings going in the main roads A. Off the main roads. These were not examined, 
only on the 2nd Ritht and the 2nd Left. 
11866. Q. On the occasions when you went to make your waste examination, these waste workings you 
have now described were not exanuncd 1 A. No. 
11867. (). When were they examined I A. They were examined every night. I went into these places 
every night. 
11868. Q. They were examined every night 1 A. Yes those were the instructions I got. 
11869. (7. Now, taking it that you examined part of the waste workings every night, and another part 
when you were told to examine, when you were maling a our month]y examination, were there any other 
parts left that you did not cxii lIme 1 A. None, to my knowledge. Of course, I was only going with 
another man, learning the waste workings, at the time. 
11870. (7. You were not familiar with them yourself 1 A. No, I was not intimate with them myself. 
11871. (7. And you were only going over the ground ? A. Of course, I knew a lot of Mount KemL1a but 
I was only learning these places. Another man went along with me. 
11872. Q. I think on page 16 of your evidence at the Coroner's inquest you described the places you went 
to. The places were inspected on the 19th. That is the last waste examination you made? A. Yes. 
11873. Q. " The places we inspected on the 19th were the two headings where the fresh air came straight 
in from the travelling road"___ffnterrupted] 1 A. The daylight heading. 
11871. Q. ''We inspected just air-courses on that date." You know that air-courses are not waste 
workings? A. Well, I made it very clear that we went into all the openings off these headings but there 
are scarcely any that you can get any length into-just a few yards. They have fallen right in for years. 
11873. Q. 1 think you told us that, in your opinion, the disaster was caused by a fall sending out a blast of 
air? A. Yes. 
11876. Q. You said that you believed that there was no gas mixed with that air? A. Yes. 
11877. Q. [low do you come to arrive at that conclusion I A. Well, by the direction of the forces, that is all. 
11878. Q. l)ocs the direction of the forces tell you whether there has been any gas mixed with the air or 
not I A. Well, I had not previously found it. 
11879. Q. Do you not know that you have previously told us that you never looked for it? A. No, I have 
not told you that I never looked for i'. 
11880. Q. But you told us yoc simply went with your ularelight? A. But I did not go in the 4th Right 
with my flare-I ight. 
11881. Q. Is that where you say the blast came from 1 A. Y. s. 
11882. Q. And is that the only reason you have got for arriving at the conclusion that there was no gas, 
because you yourself have never found any I A. Never found any that is the only reason. 
11883. Q. \Vell, can you tell us what caused the after-damp arising out of that disaster ? A. I cannot go 
into those questions. 
11884. Q. You have already told us that you have read scientific works, and you have had thirty-five years' 
experience, and have had considerable experienca in gassy mines. In thinking about whether there was 
gas in that blast or not, did that question never occur to you, as to what caused the after-damp 1 Did not 
you take that into consideration whenyou were trying to lix in your mind whether there was gas or not I 
A. Yes, I took it into consideration ; but still I am not an expert witness. 
11885. Q. Do you think you are competent, now, to say that there was no gas with the blast of air ? A. I 
never found anygas. 
11886. Q. Do you think you are competent now to say there was no gas mixed with the blast of air which, 
ycu say, c cmii out of the 33-acre goif ? A. I do not think there was any gas. That is all I can say. 
11887. (7. It is a matter of opinion, and you are not competent to say whit caused the afterdamp ? A. No. 
11888. (7. Is that it? A. That is so. 
11889. (7. Now, as a practical mm, I will just put thesa questions to you Do you think that an inspect:on 
which neglected so many places was likely to be effective? A. The places I inspected were all free from gas. 
11890. Q. 1 am not askiig iou that. I am asking your opinion, as a practical man of over thirty years' 
standing, ami ivitli a knowledg of some scientific works, do you think the inspection was of any usa 
whatever, when you knew that other parts were not inspected'! A. But there was nobody else to go ; and 
I was not supposed to go there. 
11891. Q. 1 did not ask whether you were supposed to g there. I asked whether, in your opinion, as a 
practical man, it was of any practical use to have such an examination when so many places were left 
untouched ? A. I ani of the opinion that it would be better to examine them all. 
11892. Q. Do you think an examination without examining the whole is complete ? A. Well, it is more 
complete if they are all examined. 
11893. Q. Is it of any practical use if some of them are not examined? Would it be any use to certify 
that ninety-nine places were free from gas and one was lying check full of gas? Would a certicate of 
that kind be of any usa for the safety of the men I A. Well, of course, I do not know anything about one 
being full of gas. 

Further exami.nation by Mr. Robertson 

11 894. Q. In the event of a number of places not being examined, your only safety lies in the probability 
of no men entering there ? A. Yes. 
11893. Q. I would like you to explain a little more clearly what you meant when you gave this evidence at 
the inquest-" I do not know whether gas could accumulate inside those waste workings where I never got 
I never (lid anything to see whether g  is,  had accumulated in that waste I never went into the waste in 
my life "1 A. Mr. Lysaght wanted tee to go into the middle of the 33-acre goaf. That is the place we 
were speaking of. 
11896. Q. You mean to say, of coin se, that it was impossible to go in there? A. Yes. 
11897. His llonoi.] Q. You did not ((lean to say that Mr. Lysaght wanted you to go in there; but lie 
nsl-e1 you whether you had been in there ? A. lie wanted me to go ; and lie would not go himself. 
11898. d[,. /ohertson.] Q. 1 want you to say now whether you examined the waste as far as it was 
1,racticah]e for a deputy to go? A. Yes. 
11899. Q. Did you examine along the edges? A. Yes. 
11900. Q. Did you go on the top of the falls? A. If it was safe. 11901. 
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11901. Q. Then, this rather misleading statement here wants qualification to that extent? A. Yes. 
11902. (7. Because it looks as if you never had made an inspection, and had never tried to find out whether 
there was gas there or not ? A. Well, that was the place where I was to find it, in the centre of that 
35 acre goaf. 

11903. Q. You cannot, of course, go into a waste where the roof has fallen in, and there is no place for a 
man to go but,, where the roof had fallen down, and it was practicable for a man to climb on the top of 
the falls, did you go 1 A. Yes. 
11901. (7. Did you go where it was practicable? A. Yes, as far as it was safe to go. 
11905. Q.In your evidence, you speik about a fill 27 feet thick in the 4th Right? A. Yea. 
11906. Q. Now, do you mean that 27 feet of the roof had fallen; or was the fall 27 feet thick ? A. Two 
and a half feet of the roof had fallen. 
11907. (7. If there were 27 feet of the roof fallen, that would bulk very largely? A. Yes. 
11908. (7. It would be pretty nearly U9 to the roof? A. No. Well, of course, at Mount Kembla there is 
no slack ; and it falls flat on the floor. 
11909. (7. It depends on how it falls; because you know that a roof, after it has fallen, occupies a great 
deal larger space than in the solid ? A. Oh, yes, it takes a larger space ; but still there was plenty of room. 
It was not nearly up to the roof. 
11910. Q. How much might it be from the top of t1 ie fall to the roof? A. About 4 feet. 
11911. Q. I think you said there were about 2 chains square? A. That was what was falln, 
11912. (7. Well, that is nothing very extraordinary? A. No, that is nothing extraordinary. 
11913. (7. Then a fall 2 chains square would not be a very remarkable event? A. It would depend. 
11914. Q. But have you not repeatedly seen falls over an area of 2 chains square 1 A. I cannot remember 
seeing falls 2 chains square generally. 
11915. Q. Do you nat recollect saying to me that that was a earn neon occurrence ? A. There are always 
falls-, but it perhaps breaks up more sometimes than that. 
11916. (7. But with 27 feet fallen, and only about 4 feet to the roof, do you thiiik that the whole 2 chains 
square, if it had fallen at the one time, would create a very great commotion ? A. Yes, I think it would. 
11917. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Does he means that it was 27 feet deep after it had fallen 1 
11918 Mr. Robertson.] I have just asked him. 
11919. Mr. Rite/us.] I think be means it was 27 feet thick on the floor. 
11920. Witness.] Teat is what I mean. 
11921. AIr. Robertson.] I asked you that. 
11922. 1i'itness.] You asked me what height it would be and. I said about 4 feet from the top of the 
fall up. 
11923. Mr. Robcrton.] Q. Then, do you wish to withdraw your statement to me when you were in the mine 
with the Commissioners-in answer to my question you said that a fall of that extent was nothing unccmmon? 
A. A fall 2 chains square was nothing uncommon 1 
1192-1. Q. Yes? A. I never said that, to my knowledc. I might have said it; but I could not have been 
paying any attention to what you were saying. 
11925. Q. It seems to me nothing at all extraordinary. However, if you wish, you may qualify it now I 
A. Two chains square is a lare fall at Kembla. 
11926. Q. At Kembla? A. Yes. When the slick was left in Kembla you scarcely knew that there was 
a fall. 
11927. his Ii)nor.] 0. Because the slack took the shok 1 A. Yes, it gradLially came down and rested 
on the slack; but it makes a difference when it conies on the hard. 
11928. Mr. lho5ertsoo.] 0. What damage do you think a fall 2 chains square would do, with only 4 feet of 
space to fill up? A. I could not say. Of course 1 have i'ead about damage being done by a fall. 
11929. Q. Have you ever worked in the Hamilton District? A. Yes, but not very bug. I was very young 
when I was working there. 
11930. Q. Did you ever work in the Eli coal? A. In the little coal. 
11931. the hIQnor.] (). What was the height of the scans before it had fallen ? A. The seam was nearly 
6 feet high there. Of course in my evidence I did not say 2 feet thick. 
11932. Q. I am asking you now what was the average thickness of the seam there at the 4th Right? 
A. About 6 feet. 
11933. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is before the fall? A, Yes, 
11934. Air. Robertson.] Q. When you inspected the old workings did you mark the ilaves you inspected? 
A. Yes. 
11935. Q. With the date? A. Yes. 
11936. Q. Are the marks there now ? A. I c moot ccv. Yin cannot find any marks in any places near-
there are any amount of marks in the old workings but of course you cannot depend on any next to the 
main road, because of the dust. 

Further examination by Mr. Ritchie 

11937. Q. You have told us, I think, that there was very little black-damp on the flrst occasion you went 
through after the explosion 1 A. Yes, very little. 
11938. Q. Not worth reporting? A. There was very little. 
11939. (7. You have said that your light did not go out? A. No. 
11940. (7. Do you think that there was sufficient to put your light out if you went furi bier in I A. I could 
not say. It was dimnsed, at the (liStanee I went. I went the distance I wanted to go. 
11941. (7. That is to the face of the fall? A. Yes; I went in to see if it had fhhen that night. 
11942. (7. And you told Mr. Robertson that you examined as far as practicable-you went on top of the 
falls, if it was safe to go. 
11943. Q. Now, you have told us that your light was not put out by the black dahap? A. Yes. 
11941. (7. And that it was so insignificant a quantity that you did not think it words reporting. Now, did 
you not think it was quite safe to go on the top of the fall and examine ? A. No. 
11945. (7. Why? A. The timber was all out, 
11946. (7. We know that, because the roof was down? A. Yes, but there was plenty of it higher up. If 
there was 2 ft. or 2 ft. 6 in, down, there was plenty up above. 11947. 
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11947. Q. What was the state of the roof? A. It was very rough. It was all working while I was there. 
11948. Q. From what you could see, had that 2 feet fallen all across that area? A. I do not think it had. 
In some places it was not down. Where I went it was down, and further along it was broken and not 
fallen. Of course you can walk along under and not see it, but you can see it when you look back. 
11949. Q. but had that fall, 2- feet thick, extended across the whole of that 2 chains? A. There were some 
parts of it not down. 
11950. Q. What was the extent of the area not (lown ? A. I could not say. 
1 1951. Q. Was it nearly all clown? A. There were some places on the right hand side going in where there 
was some up; but I could not say exactly the amount. 
11952. Q. Was there a small part or a large part of that which was not down? A. A small part. 
11953. Q. Now, which, in your opinion, would be likely to cause the greatest commotion-the first fall 
which took place in that waste, when it had all the dust on it or the second fall, when there would probably 
be no (lust at all I A. If there had been a big fall at the first)  that 2 feet would do very little damage. 
11954. Q. What? A. I say the 2 feet, if it had been a very large fall, would have driven all the dust out. 
Of course I was not there when it fell. 
11955. Mr. Bruce Seth/cl Q. You said 2 ft. 6 in. I A. 2 ft. or 2 ft. 6 in. 
11956. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. What do you say 1 A. The first fall, if it was big enough, would make more 
commotion than the second fall. 
11957. Q. Do you now think that the first fall would be likely to be more dangerous than the second fall? 
A. If it was big enough. Well, now, it has fallen, now, as lugh as this hail, as far as I know. 
11958. Q. Did you see any results after the first fall at all, or did you not know that it had fallen until 
you went to look I A. I did not know until I went to look. 
11959. Q. So that this fall of 2 feet 6 inches left no evident result at all, although it had all the dust which 
had accumulated to work on? A. Not to my knowledge. 
11960. Q. Then, how do you account for the second fall, which had less dust to work on, making all this 
commotion 
11961. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Only 18 inches more. 
11962. lVitness. I will tell you. One Saturday I was working here, laying a turn at the 4th Right ; and 
there was a great rush of air came and put my light out-one of my sons and me-and I came out, and 
made inquiries of William Nelson, who was the deputy then, what was the cause of it. So be told me the 
next morning that it was a fall on the top of the 5th Right. 
11963. Q. Was that a large fall? A. I could not say. I never made any inquiries. 
11964. Q, how ]on- was that before the disaster? A. That was years before, just when they started this 
road. 
11965. Q. Can you explain now, after having had a little time to think about the matter, what caused you 
to arrive at the conclusion that the second fall had done any damage? A Well, in the papers I read-it 
was through seeing an account in the papers, and from the direction of the forces in Mount Kenilila-that 
I came to that conclusion. 
11966. Q. It was through reading something in the papers about Mount Keml,la mine? A. No; through 
reading something in the papers about a fall at Broken lull. I cannot tell you the exact date. I think 
there were nine men in it-I could not ay the numher of men. 
11967. Q. I think we have all got a knowledge of that. Just tell us what conclusions you arrived at out 
of that? A. Well, with the force that was there, I am of the opinion that it was caused there (by the fall). 
Of course I am not an expert ; and it is best to leave that question for the experts. 
11968. Q. Well, you see, you have already given your opinion that this disaster was caused by a fall in the 
35-acre goaf having caused a blast? A. Yes. 
11969. Q. And you have said that., in your opinion, there was no gas in that blast? A. Yes. 
11970. Q. What, in your opinion, would cause the trouble? You know that trouble has been caused : a 
great many lives have been lost, and the mine ruined. Would that come by a puff of wind ? A. Of course 
I cannot describe it to you. 
11971. Q. Do you think it would be done by a puff of wind? A. If the wind was strong enough it would 
do a lot of harm. 
11972. Do you think the first fall would be likely to cause more dust than the second fall ? A. I cannot 
say. No, I do not think so. I have told you before that it would not cause as much dust as (lie second 
fall. It fe-li on top of the dust, which it covered. 
11973. Mr. Robertson.] I think that is quite the contrary to what you did say. 
11973. fm Ritchie.] Yes. 
11974. Q. I will ask you, further, was that section of the roadway at the entrance to this 30acre goaf damp 
or dry? A. There was a little water running at the side ; but it was, generally, dry. 
11975. Q. Was it dusty I A. Yes, there was dust lying (lure. 
11976. Q. is it no a fact that it was naturally damp and solden, the whole of that road way ? A. N.e. 

11977. Q. The toad way leading into the 35-acre goaf, on the 4th Right 1 A. In the 401 Right, it wasdosty; 
but there was a gutter cut there on the bottom. A lot of dust came out of the 4th Right always. It was 
it dusty place when it was worked. 
11978. Q. Now, can you recollect the state of the hauling road immediately at the mouth of the 4th Right? 
A. It was (lamp. 
11979. Q. Was it damp for some considerable distance on each side of the road leading to the 4th Right? 
A. Yes. 
11980. Q. There was very little dust there? A. No dust there. Of course it is nearly all wet. 
11981. Q. \Vhere do you think the dust was likely to have c )me from that caused this trouble? A. In toy 
opinion most of it came out of the s(oppings. 
11982. Q. What stopjdngs I A. The stoppings between the two headinge. 
11983. Q. Were there many of them disarranged there 1 A. They were all disarranged. There were some 
of (Item that, to look at., you would think there had never been a stopping there at all. 
11984. Q. Wa-s (lie stuff that was between these cn(-througls all dust Was it all dust that the s(opping.s 
were packed up wit-li 1 A. All fine stmmff. I cannot say what it really was, because I never put the stompings 
in ; but they lut  in (heir stoppings with fine stuff, the finest stuff they could get. 

16825 29-:? A 1t9t5. 
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1 1985. Q. They built the stoppings up with the finest dust they could get? A. The finest stuff they could 
get. 
11986. Q. Do you regard that, as a practical man, as a satisfactory way of building these stoppings? A. 
Well, it was the way it was done at Mount Kembla. 
11987. Q. Are you prepared to give an opinion on that? A. It acted well enough at Mount Kembla. 
11988. Q. As a practical man, are you prepared to give an opinion, or not, as to whether you think it was 
safe to do it ? A. Yes, it was quite sife at Mount Kembla. There is plenty of ventilation at Mount 
Kembla. 
11989. Q. I want to know how you arrived at that conclusion, in view of what you told us just a minute or 
two ago? A. What was that? 
11990. Q. You told us that the dust, in your opinion, came from these stoppings and now you tell me it 
was perfectly safe to put them there? A. When I talk about these stoppings, I mean it acted well for 
carring the air. 
11991. Q. I have been putting the matter to you in quite a different way altogether. Do you think it was 
a safe way of doing it. We have got to regard safety in mining operations? A. Of course I understabcl 
your question now. In no mine that ever I knew did they start to put anything in with the expectation of 
having any disaster. 
11992. Q. You mean that they never expect, or take precautions to prevent, (lisasters? A. I mean, when 
they start to put in stoppings at any time, they do not put stoppings in with the intention of anything 

happening. 
11993. His honor.] They do not put them in with the intention_-you mean anticipation-of their being 
blown out? A. No. 
11994: Mr. Robertson.] He means that they do not expect that there will be an explosion at all. 
11995. JJr. Ritclde.j Q. What do I understand you to mean, when you say that nobody expects to do it 
when they start? Do you mean when they commence a colliery ? A. Of course you are attributing there 
their being blown out.. 
19996. Q. I want an expression of opinion from you, as a practical man, whether you thought building 
these stoppings up with this very fine dust, the Very finest dust they could get, was a fairly safe practice? 
A. It was a fairly safe practice for carrying the ventilation. 
11937. Q. Toat is really no answer to the question in the way I put it to you. From your wayof looking 
at it now, rho you think it would be quite safe to build these stoppings o f gunpowder ?-A. No . 
11938. Q. Woll, i dust was known to be dangerous, would you r.garJ i a; sate? A. I woud not think it 
would be safe with gunpowder. 
11999. Q. Well, if dust was known to be dangerous-only, perhaps, itt a lesser degree than gunpowder-
woud you regard it as safe? A. I never knew anything about the dust being dangerous. 
12033. Q. I do nob say you did. It was known to almost everyone, except yourself. 
12031 .JL. Bruce with.] Q. With your present knowledge, do you think so 1 A. Well, of course, as far as 
I am concerned, I did not think these stoppings had anything-the dust was blown out into the road, there 
is no doubt about that-anything more about it I am not prepared to say. I think that is a question for 
the expsrt. 
12002. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Then, how do you come to be able to give such a deli nite opinion as to what caused 
it? A. When I gave my opinion, I told you I could not say anything more. 
12003. Q. And I am trying to ask you more 1. A. The more I give the more I am a.skd. 
12031. Air. Rulertson.] Q. About those stoppings? Mr. Morrison, if you are going to build a dirt stopping, 
which would be the tighter-one built with rough stone, or one built with 6ne stone? A. Fine sacic. 
12005. Q. Is not that the most suitable? A. Yes. 
12006. Q. And is not that the reason why it is used for this purpose? A. Yes. 
12007. Q. Now, are you quite sure about this 4th Right being dry and dusty? A. It was dry; and there 
was a gutter along the floor. 
1203$. (9. I am referring now to the road from the back heading to the fall? A. There was dust there. 
12009. Q. Well, the iuipression on my mind was that it was distinctly sloppy 1 A. Yes, when it was filled 
up ; the water accumulated in the middle of the road when you were travelling there. 

Further examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 
12010. Q. You told Mr: Rftchie that your only reason for saying that gas was not an element in this 
explosion was that you had never found it? A. Yes. 
12011. Q. If you had found it? A. I would have said I found it. 
12012. (9. Would you then have thought that gas had anything to do with it? A. I do not know. I would 
have needed to have seen gas in the 4th Right; but I never found anything. 
12013. Q. If you had found ga, would you then believe that gas had something to do with the explosion ? 
A. I could not say. It would depend on the position of the place where I found it.. 
12014. Q. Did you not say that your only reason for saying that it was an explosion in which gas. was not 
involved was that you had never found it? A. Yes. 
12015. 0. Then I ask you, if you had found gas, would you have thought gas had anything to do with it 1 
A. If I had found gas, it would alter my opinion. 
12016. Q. Ifother people had found gas, to your knowledge, would you then think that gas had anything to 
do with it 1 A. Yes, it it had been found to my knowledge. 
12017. Q. Do you know that Mr. Atkinson found hundreds of feet of gas up in the back heading? A. Yes, 
I believe that. 
12018. Q. You believe that. Now, do you think gas had anything to do with the explosion I A. Of course 
that is a different place. I do not believe there was any gas in there. 
?2019. Q. If you believe that Mr. Atkinson found hundreds of feet of gas up there four days after the 
explosion, do you still think that gas had toothing to do with the explosion 1 A. Yt s. My reason is that, 
at the time that Mr. Atkinson found this gas, the ventilation was cut clean off. 
12020. Q. But that shows that there was gas generating in this 1nin€? A. Oh yt S. 
12021. Q. Then, does not that alter your conclusion as to the probability of gas being an element in that 
explosion? A. No, it does not. If Mr. Atkinson had found as many feet or yards of gas in the 4th Rilit, 
then it would alter it 12022. 
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12022. Q. You said something about the Broken 11111 fall. When did you read about that? A. I cannot say. 
12023. Q. Did you read about it before the explosion? A. Yes. 
12021. Q. Of your own accord 1 A. My attention was drawn to it by Mr. McMurray. 
12025. Q. Before the explosion A. Yes. 
12026. Q. Do you know how deep that fall was? A. I do not know. 
12027. Q. 1)o you know that it was 40 feet deep 1 A. I could not say. I forget much about it. 
1202$. Q. \Vhat did you read about it? A. I remember the thing happened; but of course it has certainly 
gone out of my head. I cannot tell you the dates or anything about it. 
12029. Q. You do not know that fact about it., at all events? A. [Witness did not answer.] 

Further cross examination by Mr. Lysaglit 

12030. Q. You told Mr. Robertson that you examined the wastes as far as practicable? A. Yes. 
12031. Q. Did not you say at the inquest, 'My duties do not at any time take me beyond any fence of a 
waste" 1 A. What was said at the inquest was--- [interrupted]. 
12032. (7. Did you say it? A. I do not know whether 1 said it or not. I do not know one word I said at 
the inquest. 
12033. Q. Did not you say this at the inquest, "I never crossed the fences to the waste workings to look for 
gas at any time" ? A. I cannot say, because I was worried to death at the inquest. That is true. You 
know. You did it. 
12034. (7. Did you, as a matter of fact., cross any fence of any waste to inspect as a deputy I A. Yes. 
12035. Q. Now, tell me what fence it was you crossed? A. if there was a fence - [interrupted]. 
12036. Q. No "if," Mr. Morrison ; you said at the inquest that you never crossed any fence to look for gas. 
Now, I want to know, if you say you ehiel cross a fence, what fence was it, and where did you cross as a 
deputy? A. The fences in all these -- [Interrupted]. 
12037. Q. That is not an answer. Where did you cross a fence? Show me what particular fences you 
crossed, and in what particular waste? Now, you think carefully. A. Well, I crossed a fence-you just 
want to know one fence 
1208. Q. Did you only cross one fence? A. No, I (lid not say that. 
12039. his honor.] Mr. Lysaghjt, he is just going to tell us some one fence. 
12010. Witness.] '['here, in the heading off the 1st Right, I went in through there [indicating] ; and I 
crossed a fence there I am getting a bit mixed ; and I cannot think clearly. 
12011 .iir. Lijsa7ht]. Q. You have told us of that one fence that you crossed 1 A. Yes. 
12012. Q. About how long was that bofore the disaster? A. On the 3 1st. Of course I have not got iiiy 
book the same as you have. 
12013. Q. Now, can you renioniber any other fence you crossed as deputy A. This is the way it is at 
Kembla, say there was a fall -- [Interrupted]. 
12044. Q. I do not want that? A. I must explain it. 
12045. His honor : You can simply answer that question of Mr. Lysaght's. 
12046. Mr. Lysa.9hf.] Q. Can you remember that you crossed any other fence than the one you mentioned 
on the 31st? A. I cannot remember whether I crossed exactly just one fence on that occaon. 
12047. Q. You cannot remember whether you crossed any other fence but this one that you told us of? 
A. 1 cannot remember. 
12048. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It is fair to point out that on pages 15 and 16 of the evidence taken at the 
Coroner's Inquest he speaks two or three times over of going inside the fence of the waste, and going up on 
the waste. 
12019. Mr. Lysa.iht.] And on page 17 he says he never crossed one fence. 
12050. Air. Robertson.] Q. When you said that it was not true that you did not cross the fences into the 
waste workings? A. Yes. If you had been at the inquest., and heard the way it was carried on-they 
were saying things, and putting them down, that I did not say at all. 
12051. (7. Now, there are a number of fences at Kembla? A. Yes. 
12052. (7. When you were making your examination, do you cross those fences and go as far as you can? 
A. Yes ; I cross the fences and go as far as I can. That is, if there are fences. There are only a few of 
them with fences. 
12 05 3. Q. Oi course the two statements are so very different? A. Yes. Well, perhaps I said it. 
12054.. Air. Ritchie.] A. Did you have the depositions read over to you at the inquest? A. Yes, I believe I had. 
12055. Q. Did you sign those depositions ? Q. Yes, I believe I signed them. 
12056. AIr. Bruce Smith.] It is only fair to say that it was within a few days of the death of his two sons, 
and he did appear to be in a very confused state when he was examined. 

[JJTUness left.] 
12057. Mr. Curtiss.] Will your Honor kindly allow Mr. Barry to take my place? 
22058. His Honor.] Certainly. 
12059. (Mr. G. J. Barry then appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal Company.) 

Ma. JOHN HERON was sworn, and examined, as under 
i Exaniination.iri-chief by Mr. Lysaght :- 

12030. Q. What is your name l A. John Heron. 
12061. 9. What are you? A. A miner. 
12062. 9. Where are you at present employed I A. Cataract Dam. 
12063. 9. Were you employed at the Mount Kembla Colliery? A. I was. 
12064. 9. For how long? A. For two years. 
12065. Q. During what period? A. I left there about, I think it was, sixteen or seventeen months ago. 
12066. 9. And what were you doing there? A. I was taking the stone up, and shooting the bottom of the 
1Oadl . - 
12067. 9. That is, you were making the road level for laying the rails, to take the skips into the wc.Adiug 
places 1 A. Yes. 
12068. Q. Was that daytime or night-time 1 A. Niglih 
12069. Wereyou working as a stone-man in the No. 1 District? A. I was 12070. 
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12070. Q. And how long were you working there? A. For two years, or somewhere as nigh two years as I 
could possibly remember. 
12071. Q. Now, during that time, who was the night deputy? A. Mr. Frank Dungey. 
12072. Q. And was it his duty to inspect places where you had to lay the stone? A. Yes. 
12073. Q. And did you take your orders from him? A. No I did not take orders from him. 
12074. Q. Who pointed out the places where you had to make the road level ? A. I did, myself, to him. 
I told him every number I had to go to. Every place is numbered, and it is put on the board with chalk 
and, every number that was placed on the board, I told him when I went down that I had to go to those 
places. 
12015. Q. You saw certain places marked on a board as requiring attention from you ; and you told 
Dungey those places ; and his duty would be to examine them before you went there? A. Yes. 
12076. Q. Now, has it happened that you have been to such a place before Dungey had been there to 
examine it? A. Many a time. 
12077. Q. And can you tell me of any occasion that you youreelf discovered any gas in any of these places; 
A. Yes, I have. 
12078. (7. Now, can you tell me where? A. In the 4th Left; a very small quantity. 
12079. (7. When you say the 4th Left, do you mean the haulage road or the travelling road? A. I mean 
in the working places in the 4th Left. 
12080. Q. Can you tell me who was working in the place at the time you discovered the gas? A. I think 
John Oakes. I would not swear. I think it was John Oakes and James-I forget his other name. 
12081. Q. How long was that befoe the disaster? A. A good bit before the disaster. 
12082. Q. I do not know what a good bit is-months? A. It was a few months before that. 
12083. Q. What is your idea of a few months ; A. I left Moxnt Kembla about eight months before the 
disaster. 
12084. Q. Then, do I understand that it was about eight months before the disaster that you found this 
gas? A. No it was more than that. 
12085. How long ? A. It might have been about twelve or fifteen months before I left Mount Kembla. 
12086. Q. Now, I want you to tell us exactly how you came to find it, and what happened? A. When I 
went to put a hole in what they call the false bottom in the 4th Left I chucked my hat down-my lamp 
was on my hat. 
12087. Q. You threw your hat down with your hat on the lamp ? A. Yes, a naked light. And I could tell 
the gas on the lamp. 
1208$. Q. The gas lit on the lamp? A. Yes. 
12089. (7. Is that what you say ? A. Yes, the gas lit on the flare-light. 
12090. Q. How far up did-it burn? A. Just a small proportion of it. Only a small proportion of it. 
12091. Q. Yon point in that way [imitating]. Do you mean that height from the floor where you are 
A. Just a flare up ; a little over the lamp. 
12092. (7. How far back? A. Just about a foot off the flare-light. 
12093. (7. Did you report that to anyone ? A. I did not. 
12094. (7. Have you any reason for not reporting it? A. Yes; I did not think that small quantity was 
dangerous. 
12095. (7. Had you discovered other small quant.ities? A. Yes. I have seen it more than once in the same 
place. 
12096. Q. Now, about how many times altogether have you seen gas like that? A. Only about twice, I 
think. 
12097. (7. Now, apart from seeing it in that way, have you seen it in any other way before the thsaster 
No ; but I was told about. it. - 
12098. Q. Were you told by any officials of the mine? A. Yes, by the night'shif.t fireman. 
12099. Q. Who is that? A. Frank Dungey. 
12100. Q. Now, I want you to tell us when it was that Dungey told you about gas? A. Well, I thnk it 
would he about a month or two, I could not say to a few days, before I left Mount Kembla. 
12101. Q. How long was that before the disaster? A. About nine or ten months. 
12102. His honor.] (7. He says lie left about eight months before? Q. I could not say exactly to a few 
days. 
12103. 1fr. Lysaqltt.] (7. What did Dungey tell you? A. I met him going down the No. 1 main heading, 
where this explosion took place : It is rising ; just like that, you know. 
12104. Q. You met Dungey coming down the main heading, where the heading was rising? A. Yes. 
12105. Q. How far was it from the top of the main heading ? A. It must have been about 100 yards from 
the face where I met him. 
12106. Q. What took place? A. He just said to me, "Jack, if you had been here before me, you would have 
got your head blown off." 
12107. Q. What else? A. He said, "She was standing full of gas for 10 or 15 yards back. The brattice 
was all down." 
12108. (7. Anything else? A. No. 
12109. Q. Did he say that he had done anything? A. He cleaned it out, you know ; because I went in 
after he had been there. He told me I could get in, then, and get the stone up. 
12110. (7. Did he tell you that he had cleaned it out? A. Yes. 
12111. (7. Did he tell you how? A. No, he did not say how. 
12112. (7. Now, do you know where it was exactly that he referrea to as having 10 or 15 yards of gas? 
A. It was in No. 1 main heading. 
12113. Q. Where was the place that you afterwards went into that he had cleaned out ? A. No. 1 main 
heading. 
12114. Q. But what part of it? A. I do not suppose that, when I was there, that could have been driven 
far past the place of the explosion. 
12115. (7. You mean in the face of No. 1 main heading? A. Yes, the face of No. 1 main heading then. 
12116. (7. Do you know whether there were any men working there at that time? A. I think they were 
Anderson and Mathison; I am not quite sure. It is a long tune ago. I could tell you who were working 
in the back heading. . 12117 
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12117. Q. Who were working in the back heading? A. John Murphy and Paddy McCann. 
12118. Q. They are both dead. A. Yes. 
12119. Q. And what about the other two men that you say were working in the main heading? A. I think 
one is in Mait.land, at Stanford Mertliyr. 
12120. (7. And the other I A. I think he is at Kembla. 
12121. (7. Which one is at Stanford Merthyr 1 A. Anderson. 
12122. (7. Now, has any official besides Dungey told you anything about gas? A. No. 
12123. Q. Has Dungey told you anything else about gas 1 A. No ; lie never said anything but just that 
night. 
12121. (7. Did you work in Ke:nbla as a miner 1 A. I did not the last time I was in. 
121 25. (7. Did you ever work there as a miner ?A. Oh yes, more than once. 
12126. Q. how long ago? A. About fifteen years ago, and eighteen years ago, I worked there. 
12127. Q. At any time, when you were working in Kemnbia as a miner, did you ever discover gas 1 A. Yes. 
12128. A. Where? A. In old No. 4. 
12129. (7. How long ago is that? A. Between seventen and eighteen years ago. 
12130. Q. Who was manager at that time? A. Mr. \VilIi.tin Green. 
11131. (7. Was it any large quantity you found there? A. When I liped a shot, it hung; and, when I 
looke.l over it, it flashed over ; yards back. 
12132. Q. How many yards back 1 A. [c must have been 4 or 5 yards back. 
12133. (7. Did you report that A. No. 
121 34. (7. Did you know whether the management knew cf that? A. I could not say. 
12135. (7. Why did you nt report ,,;is at any time when you found it 1 A. If it was a very small quantity, 
I did not think it was any ue to report it-'iot ivlien 1 was using a naked light. 
12136. Q. Now, in edlition to your seeing this gas youm'slf, do you know, of your own knowledge, of other 
men having Loonl gas, by either seeing them light it, or anything cisc like that? A. No. I was working 
always at night time, alone. 
12137. Q. Do you kno a' vhthei Diingey inspected time places within four hours of the commencement of 
the slnfi I A. I can swear that lie never inspected half time places, not twice in the shift. That is what he 
slioul 1 have clone but the nina had not time. He told ne himself he could not do it. 
12138. Q. I want you to tell us exactly avliat Dangey tohi you about not having time to inspect! A. I 
know for a fact that lie did not inspect twice in the night ; that i, tht lie (lid not inspect in the night 
before they went in, and then come back again while they were in ; which is avh it he should have clone. 
12139. Q. What did lie say to you ? A. He said lie could not d) it. He had not time to do it: which I 
know for a fact. 1-fe never did either. 
12140. Q. Can you tell iii a whether any of those places on the 4,11 Left were left ulliuspe cted 'y Dungey, 
to your own knowledge? A. Y, I could swear that ; but I coelil not tell you the numbers of time places 
now. I can swear there w re places that never were inspected twice. 
121 H. Q. How often, to your knowledge, his that occurrel 1 A. Any amount of times. 
12142. Q. Well, how oft a? A. I c )uld a t tell you exaclly the niinber ; but a good few tim's, any wily. 
12143. Q. I cb not understand what you mean by ''inspected t vice." Let me put this to you : Dmmngiy 
shonld have inspected within four hours of the m 'n starting work at 6 o'clock. You understand that 1 
A. Yes. 
12111. Q. Now, I want to know d you say that, to your knowledge, lie never inspected some places during 
that period of four hours before 6 o'clock I A. Yes, some places lie never did. I could swear to that, to.). 
12145. (7. by do you know that? A. I am sure. 
12146. (7. How cl-a you know it? A. Because I have been working in places where he never came. 
12147. (7. Do you mean that you have worked from about 2 to 6 o'clock in certain places, and he has never 
caine there all the time you were working there 1 A. Nut after he inspected the first time. 
12148. Q. And what time did lie inspect the first time? A. He would start at 9 o'clock, and would be 
supposed to a0  along every ilaco. 
12119. Q. But, after 9 o'clock ót night, you know there were places which lie never came to again before 
the men went to work I A. Yes. I can swear that lie did not. 
12150. Q. And you know that men did come to work in those places afterwards? A. Yes. 
12151. Q. Now, about how mamany places were there, to your knowledge, left uninspecteci like that? A. I 
could not say, exactly. I hive seen a few, anyway ; but I could not say how many. 
12152. Q. 1 will fix it? [[nlerropteil.] Al. I will say two or three. I li:ive seen tleui myself. 
12153. Q. And are these tIme Pisces that Dungey told you he hal not time to inspect? A. H-s said he had 
not time to go round them twice. 
12154. Q. Did you point out to him that lie was not inspecting twice ? ,I. 1-fe said he was not. 
12155. (7. Did you say anything to him about it? A. No. I had nothing to do with saying anything to 
him. He was above nie. 
12156. Q. Is there anything else you want to tell the Commission 1 A. No. I think I have told them all 
I know. 
12157. Q. Did you go to Kenabla the evening of the disaster? A. I did. 
12158. 0. Were you one af any rescue party? A. Yes, I went in along with Mr. Sellers and Mr. Kater 
12159. Q. What time did you get there? A. About half past 5. 
12160. Q. At that time was there an adequate supply of safety-lamps for the rescuers? A. I got one. I 
could not say for the rest. 
12161. Q. What part of mime mine did you go into? A. Straight through No. 1 Travelling Roal. 
12162. Q. Were you in the No. 1 Right district at atml? A. That is No. 1. 
12163. Q. That is what you mean 1 A. Yes. 
12161. Q. What road mliii you take to get in? A. I went into the travelling read from time outside, and 
then across over time in iin road, do vu a ladder, and up another ladler the other side, and straight on and 
I met them carrying Mr. Nelsou out. 
12165. (7. Now, can you tell us in) thong as to time ui icat ions (of burm,i mg any ivhiore 1 A. Yes. 
12166. (7. What can you tell us 1 A. Thenext timing I came acros was Mr. Thomas Purcell. lie was 
sitting between tems and twenty yards below the water level ; and all his hair was burnt o11 and his whiskers 
too. He had not a bit of hair left on him at all; and I could not recognise him. 12167. 
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12167. Q. Well, who did recognise him? A. He was not recognised until we came back again and then 
we carried him out. 
12168. Q. Anything else about the burning? A. Yes, I have seen more than him burnt. I saw Mr. John 
Aitken burnt about the face, too. 
12169. Q. Anyone else? A. Well, I saw young Mori ison-the skin was hanging off the face, you know. 
12170. Q. I do not know that I need trouble you about the men who were burnt. I want you particularly 
t tell me whether you noticed the brattice burnt 1 A. I was not in the face. 
12171. Q. Did you notice burnt brattice anywhere? A. There was no brattice where I was. 
12172. Q. Did you notice any of the props singed or burnt? A. No, I did not take any notice. 
12173. Q. Did you notice where the greater evidences of force appearcd to be? Q. 1 think they seemed to 
be in No. 1 travelling road, and on the engine road. '1 hat was where the biggest falls were that I could 
see. There were some jdaces you had to crawl through on your hands and knees. 
12174. Q. Did you notice whether the forces were iill in one direction, or in different directions? A. I did 
not take much notice of that. 
12175. Q. Have you any theory as to the cause of the disaster? A. Well, I think it was gas-that is the 
cal tiling I can tell you. 
12176. Q. Where did you think it originated ? A. Not Icing working there, I could not say. 
12177. his honor.] The witness has already said that lie did not notice the various directions of force; 
because lie was too intent on doing what lie could to save life, I suppose. 
12178. Jfr. Lysaght.] Very well, your Honor. 
12179. Q. Is there ari3 thing else you desire to tell the Commission? A. I think I have told you what Jean. 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :-- 

12180. Q. Did you form all opinion as to whether these men whom you saw were burnt, or not 1 A. Some 
were, and some not. 
12181. Q. What evidences of burning did you see? A. Some were all burnt about the face; and tome 
were not. 
12182. You spoke of Purcell's whiskers I A. And his lair too. Everything was burnt off his bead. I 
took him to be an old nian. I took him to be about GO ; and I do not suppose lie was more than 45. 
12183. Q. What happened to the hair? A. All burnt. 
12181. Q. All shrivelled up? A. All curled up like a daikie's. 
12185. Q. Did you notice any thing else? A. No. I just turned up his pants I thought that lie was a 
young man that I knew. 
12186. Q. Was there anything else about others to show burning xee1t the skin in strips ? A. On Morrison's 
son's face, and another wheeler along with him. 
12187. Q. Dkl you see more than one of Morrison's sons? A. Just one. I fetched him out. 
12188. Q. Was be burnt ? A. He must have been burnt ; because the skin was hanging off his face. 
12189. Q. You had no doubt at all that there had been flame ? A. Oh, there had been flame; that is a 
sure thing. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Barry 

12190. Q. I think you said it was some seventeen or eighteen years ago since you worked as a Joiner in 
Mount Kenibla? A. The first time. 
12191. Q. And then you went back and woi kedl as a road-maki I A. I was back since then. 
12192. Q. How long ago were you back 1 A. Fifteen years ago. 
12193. Q. I thick you said that Dungey toll you that, after the first inspection, Le never inspected some 
of the places twice ? A. He never told inc that ; I have not see a him since. 
121 91. Q. Did you follow him through the mine? A. Yes, every night. 
12195, Q. You went with him ? A. N'o, he went before me. 
12196. Q. And you saw every ilacts lie inspected 1 A. Yes. 
12197. Q. Was that portion of your duty? A. Yes, every place that I had to go to. 
12198. Q. And you say that there were two or three places that lie did not inspect? A. Yes, not twice. 
12199. Q. He inspected them once only 1 A. Yes. 
12200. Q. What reason had you to follow the fireman 1 A. I had to follow him it was my duty. 
12201. Q. What for? A. He had to inspec the place before I could go in to take the stone up. 
12202. Q. And these two or three places; lie had not been there? A. He inspected them once, but not 
twice. 
12203. Q. But did you go in to those two or three places? A. Yes. 
12201-. Q. And were they all right 1 A. Yes, but tIny were not inspected the second time. 
12205. Q. How do you know? A. Certain. 
12206. Q. Did you go round the second time? A. I was there after lie passed. 
12207. Q. You were there after lie passed ?A. Yes. 
12208. Q. how long  after lie passed? A. It might ic a couple of hours sometimes. 
12209. Q. How could you see whether lie bach been there or not? A. His date was not there. If lie goes 
there in the night, lie is supposed to put the date there ; and if lie goes there next moc ning lie must put 
the elate there. 
12210. Q. Do you tell the Court that lie could not possibly inspect these Ilaces  withut your seeing him? 
A. Yes. 
12211. Q. You swear that? A. Yes. 
12212. Q. You did not give evidence at the inquest? A. N o. I \vculd not have come here to day if I Lad 
not been suhpcenaed. 
12213. Q. Whom did you first tell all this inforniatinis to? A. To riol ody. - 
12214. Q. So that nobcdy knew what evidence you lad to give here to day ? A. Only just about the No. a 
main heading-somehc ely might remember my speaking about tint. 
12215. Q. I mean, Mr. Heron, you have never given any notes of your eN iderce to a113 Lod1 cntil N Cu cc me 
here? A. Only just that I might have been speaking abciit the No. l main Leading 1 
12216. Q. To whom? Q. Once I did to the under•ntanser at Coriincal, Mr. Shepherd. zn 
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I 221. Q. When Dungey told you that, if you had been a ejuarter of an hour or twenty minutes before, you 
would have had your heal blown ofF, did you tell that to anybody A. Yes, to many. 
12218. (7. \Vhoin to? A. To the underground boss at (orritnal. 
12219. (7. Who is he? A. Mr. Shepherd. 
12220. (7. And is he there now A. Yes. 
12221. Q. To anybody else? A. I have mentioned it many a time; but I cannot tell you whom I have 
been mentioning it to. 
12222. (7. How many places would Dungey inspect there? A. Between forty and fifty. 
12223. (7. And when would he start his inspection ? A. WTe  used to leave outside at 9 o'clock. 
12224. Q. And I think you said that, after 9 o'clock, the first inspection, he never inspected some of the 
places afterwards-that is, a second time? A. Some of tue places. He is supposed to inspect four hours 
before the men come in. 
12225, Q. How long would it take to inspect all the places? A. I could not tell you. 
12226. Q. Forty places; would it take three minutes a place ? A. It would take more, if he examined it 
properly. 
12227. Q. Would it take four? A. It would take more, if he examined it properly. 
12228. 0. Would it take five minutes? A. I could not say. 
12229. 0. Would it take four hours? A. More than that. 
12230. Q. You followed him round? A. I followed him to the places I had to work in. I did not follow 
him to all the places. 
12231. Q. Cannot you tell whether it would take one hour, two hours, five hours, or ten hours? A. I could 
not tell you. 

Examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

12232. Q. Did you know that, by the special rules, it was the duty of the men not to work in a place 
unless they saw that date put up? A. Yes ; I mean that. 
12233. (7. Do you mean to say that the men did go to work although there was no date up? A. The men 
came in ; and, if they did not see the (late, they ought to go back ; but they did not. 
12234. (7. Is not it the duty of the men to refuse to do any work if they do not see both dates up? A. No 
my duty was to go in when I saw the first (late UI). 
12235. Q. I am talking of the men who were working on the coal. Do not you know what the 15th Rule 
says :- 

On first entering his working place, ho shall satisfy himself that it has been examined and found safe. If he does 
not observe the fireman's in trk oa the face, ho will on no account commence his work, but shall at once return to the 
station and report the circu,nstancc to the rireman, ovum in, under-manager, or Manager, and await instructions before 
returning to his working place. 

Did you know of that rule 1 A. I never heard of it. 
12236. (7. And you say that the men actually went to work? A. Yes. 
12237. (7. Getting coal, although there was no date put up ? A. I could not tell you whether there were 
two dates or not when the men went in. 
12238. Q But did not you say lie did not inspect twice? A. Yes. 
12239. (7. And therefore bad not put the second (late UI)?  A. I never saw the second date. 
12210. (7. And yet the men had gone in and worked ? Yes. 
1 2211. (7. Can you tell me who those men were who went in and worked without the second date being up 
A. No, I could not tell you. 
12242. Q. No pi'ocsediogs can be taken against them so you need not he afraid. Can you name any one 
man, or more, if you like, Who went in and began work, getting coal, although the (late had never been put 
up there by the deputy ? A. I could not tell you ; but I know for a fact that was the case. 

Further cross.examination by Mr. .T3arry 

12243. Q. Will you undertake to say that lie did not put the second, date up before the men went in to 
work '1 A. I would not swear whether lie put them both up at once or not. 
12241. Q. You will not swear? A. No. 
12245. Q. Did you see one date or two dates? A. I could not say now. 
1226. Q. I think you sail that the men come in, and, if they do not see the date, they ought to go back I 
A. They oughto, but they never did. 
12217. (7. Did you ever see them go back? A. No. 
12248. (7. Did you ever go back yourself? A. I was not working on the coal. 
12249. (7. Did you at any time when you were working on the coal 1 A. No. 
12250. Q. Was the second (late always up for you ? A. I never worked on the coal at Kenibla the last few 
v ears. 
12251. Q. They had dillerent rules then from what they have now? A. Yes. 

Further exatinuation by SIr. Ly seghit 
12252. (7. You say he may have put the two dates at the one time? A. He may have done so. 
12253. (7. Cart you remember any occasion when lie did do that of your own knowledge ; that is, that you 
say him put both dates with the chalk 1 A. I was never in the place when he put the two dates. 
12254. Q. Did you ever notice any phisco with the two dates op when you first went in ? A. No. 
12255. Q. Have you ever known him to put the later date on during the lust inspection ? A. No ; I never 
knew him to do thtad. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie: -- 

12256. Q. Do I understand you to say.tha(, after you had gone in to lift stone in a place, von, had teen 
continuously working there until after t lie time fr Dungev to have gone out ; and that is (lie reason you 
say that you know lie had not made the inspection within the four hours before the men went to work 
A. Yes, I know lie did not ; that he had not been in the plaCC. 
12257. You were working iii sonic places after it was Ins ti tie to have been outsid0 A. Yes. 

[IViuess lJ'.] 
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Mr. CHARLES BIGGERS was sworn, and examined as under 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Barry 

12258. Q. What is your name? A. Charles Bigers. 
1221i9. Q. What are you 1 A. I am a deputy at Mount Kerabla. 
12260. Q. How long have you held that position? A. About four months, I think ; since a month after 
the explosion occurred. 
12261. Q. Is it since the disaster that you have entered upon your duties as a deputy there? A. Yes, since 
the disaster. 
12262. Q. What does your work consist of at the present time? A. It mainly consists of examining the 
waste workings. 
12263. Q. Do you do other work? A. Yes, I do other deputy work; sometimes a day a week. 
12264. Q. How long have you been at Mount Kembla altogether? A. Fourteen or fifteen years. 
12265. Q. Have you been working on the coal there? A. Yes. 
12266. Q. How many years? A. About eight years. 
12267. Q. Have you worked in different parts of the mine? A. Yes : some parts I have not worked in. 
12268. Q. When was the last time you worked there ; about how long before the disaster? A. Well, I was 
working nearly the whole fourteen years before. 
12269. Q. How long before the disaster? A. I worked there up to the day before. 
12270. Q. Had you been working continually then some months in the mine? A. Yes. 
12271. (1. Now, when you were working on the coal, can you tell the Court if you ever came across any 
gas there? A. No, not when I was working on the ccal. 
12272. Q. You have heard or seen some evidence with reference to the shot-flung, that they have gone 
back to the face and lit it up; have you ever seen anything of that there? A. Yes, I. have, on a couple of 
occasions. - 
12273. Q. What was that? A. Well, just a small ligh I t have seen there after a hanging shot. 
12274. Q. You have heard something about blowers of gas, have you not? A. Yes. 
12275. Q. Do you recolJect  on any occasion seeing two men boring a hole in the mine and tamping it up 
A. Yes. 
12276. Q. Were you there at the time? A. I was not there when they were boring the hole. I was there 
after it had been bored ; I saw it when it was stuffed up. 
12277. Q. I think you say you have seen some flame after hanging shots? A. Yes, I have seen some flame 
with hanging shots. 
12278. Q. How far back did that flame go on the two occasions when you saw it? A. It did not go far 
back. It seemed to be conducd to the face in wInce the shot was hanging. 
12279. Q. You have heard a good deal about the hissing sounds in the mine? A. Yes, I have heard hissing 
sounds. 
12280. Q. Have you heard water cause that sound, too, in the mine? A. Yes, I think the water sounds, 
to,), in clamp places, where, there is water duiven out of the coal. I think so. 
12281. Q. Do you think there is any difficulty in distingushing the sound caused by gas and that caused 
by water? A. I feel some difficulty. 
12282. Q. You would not be sure about it? A. I would not be sure. 
12283. Q. Now, with reference to the ventilation at Mount Kembla have you found the ventilation there 
good, or how? A. I have found it mostly good, so far as my Fnowledge went. 
12284. Q. '\Vith reference to the furnace, what has been your experience in Kembla, since you have been 
fireman and previously ; does it burn all the year round? A. It does now. 
12285. (9.  Had you any different experience years ago there? A. Well, I have seen the air reversed. 
12286. Q. How do you account for that; what caused it in your opinion? A. I think it is that the 
furnace .-[Iietenopted.] 
12287. his honor.] Q. Is that the present furnace or the old furnace? A. The present furnace. That is 
some years ago. I think it must be eight years since I have seen the air cc' ersed, except once since; and 
that is since the explosion when the furnace was put out for repairs. 
12288. jhfe. Bent1.] Q. You know what a southerly burster means? A. Yes. 
12289. Q. Now, in view of the situation of Mount Kenubla, would a strong southerly burster change the 
air? A. I do not think it would if the fuenace was alight. It would do it in any other ease; or any change 
of heat would do it, where furnace ventilation is cat nod on. 
12290. (9. At the titus you cliscot-ered that the air was reversed, was that on a Saturday ? A. Oh, I could 
not tell. 
12291. (9. Were the men all stopped working? A. No : I have seen it when going in to woik years ago; 
but it has soon been reversed again the right way ; but it is so long ago, and I never noticed. I only saw 
it going out of the tunnel mouth ; I could not tell the ox ict time afterwards that it was reversed dgain 
12292. Q. ,Now about the waste workings, what do you do with respect to the waste voi kings 1 A. I 
examine them. 
12293. i/n. Jh,sogluJ.] I submit with every respect that it is immaterial what he does now. 
12294. I/is hlonor.1 lie was not deputy until after the disaster. 
12295. un. Boniyi Q. \Vcll, then, what is your experience ; what have you seen there during the time you 
have be n working there as a miner p--have you seen the firemen or the deputy there inspecting 
didbrent places? A. Yes, I have seen Iltem insoecting. 

the 

12296. Q. Inspecting the working places? A. he used to caine in every clay while we were at work, once a 
day, and make the daily examination ; once in a cIty. In the morning we would not see hint come in ; but 
we would know that by the mack on the coal. 
12297. Q. Have you ever seen lurn inspecting the waste voekiuugs 1 A. No. 
12298. Q. Have you ever seen any of the officials inspecting the waste workings ? A. No. 
12299. Q. Had you ever acted in the position of titer an before you were permanently appointed to this 
pesition which you hold now '1 A. N o, never. 
12300. Q. Have you ever occupied the position of cliecle-inspector? A. Yes, T did once. 
12301. Q. How long was that before the explosion? A. A few months; but I could not tell exactly. I do 
net remember the date. 12302. 
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12302. Q. Did you go round with Nelson? A. We went with Nelson in one portion of the mine; and we 
went with Mr. Leitch, the under-manager, another time. 
12303. Q. Do you recollect whether on that occasion, Mr. Rogers, the Manager, afforded you every 
assistance 
12304. Mr. Lysaght.] Surely this is somewhat leading the witness. It has been throughout. I did not 
like to object before. 
12305. AIr. Barry.] Q. Did you see Mr. Rogers there ? A. Yes; but not when we first went there. 
12306. I asked the question, your Honor, because some evidence has been given that Mr. Rogers tried 
to bluff in some way. 
12307. His Honor.j Put it in this way, as to how Mr. Rogers received them. There can be no objection to 
that. 
12308. Mr. Barry.] Q. How did Mr. Rogers receive you? A. He acted very well. At first lie was not 
there ; and we had a bit of trouble about it, because he was not notified of the nomination of the check-
inspector for the district, and the under-manager was speaking through the telephone in connection with it 
and then we saw him, when we went over to the daylight tunnel to make the inspection ; and I (lid not see 
him then until we had finished the inspection ; so we clitl not speak touch in connection with the inspection 
at all ; only we were talking of the mine. I could not remember all that was said. 
12309. Q. Did you make your own inspection on that occasion, or make your own report? A. Yes, I svroie 
the report in conjunction with the other gentlemen, the district check-inspector. 
12310. Q. Did anyone, either directly or indirectly, attempt to interfere with you in any way in making 
that inspection? A. No. 
12311. Q. Do you recollect the 9th of August last? A. No, I do not. 
12312. Q. Do you recollect having an appointment with Mr. Ritchie to go into the mine? A. Yes. 
12313. Q. Did you go into the mine with a certain number of persons on that date? A. Yes. 
12314. How did you go in, all together? A. Yes, as near together as we could get. It was a very rough 
road ; and some of us were some distance behind the others. 
12315. Q. There were different parties of you A. Yes, all in the one party. 
12316. (9. You were not all in a cluster; but you went in one after the other? A. That is it. 
12317. (9. Do you recollect bord 86 ? A. No, I cannot remember the numbers. 
12318. Q. What part of the mine did you inspect on that occasion ? A. Well, we inspected the main 
headings, the back heading, and the top line of cut-througlis, where a person named Au ken had been 
working, and we went to other places ; but I cannot remember the exact places. We went to the 4th 
Right. 
12319. Q. Do you think you could just mark out for the Ciurt on that plan the course you took? A. No, I 
could not. 
12320. Q. Can you tiescribe now, shortly, what occurred ; what inspection you made ; that is, the places 
you visited 1 A. Well, we visited the back heading, and Aitken's place; and we went into the 4th Right 
and we inspected the main tunnel, right from the tunnel mouth in. 
12321. Q. I believe you were anxious to gain some experience with reference to the mine; and you happened 
to mention the fact to Mr. Ritchie; and he asked you to go in with him? A. Yes, I expressed a desite 
that I might go in to Mr. Ritchie. 
12322. Q. Then you went in; and you got up to where? A. The 4th Right in one place, and then the main 
heading ; and then Aitken's place, and all the top line of cut-throughs ; and many places we went to that 
night that I could not say. We were not in front; and they were giving directions where to go; and I 
could not tell exactly where I was. Things were upset that night. - 
12323. (9. Did you see Morris when he was carrietl out? A. I helped to carry Morris out. 
12324. Q. Where was Morris taken from 1 A. He was taken from the back heading; that is where he 
was found. 
12325. Q. Did you notice him when he was being taken out? A. I did not see his face. I noticed Morris 
senior's hands and arms. 
12326. Q. What state were they in? A. The hands were swollen up like this (indicating a swelling on the 
back of the hand about an inch in height), and it seemed as if they had been burnt. 
12327. Q. Have you since the disaster been through the mine for the purpose of asceitaining, or gaining 
some information, to enable you to come to any conclusion as to what was the cause of the disaster? A. I 
have been through the mine in the discharge of my duties. 
12328. Q. Have you formed any opinion? A. No, I cannot form any definite opinion. 
12329. Q. Have you any idea, or have you any opinion, where the trouble started in the mine, which 
caused the disaster? A. I cannot give any definite opinion where it started, except that it was in No. 1 
district, or appeared to be there, either from the rise side-I cannot give any definite opinion. I have 
tried to form a definite opinion, and cannot, as to where it started. There are too many contradictory 
signs of force for me to determine where it started. 
12330. Q. Do you know what grey dust is? A. Yes. 
12331. (9 Have you seen any grey dust in the mine? A. Yes, after falls. I have seen grey dust after 
a fall. 
12332. Q. Now, what is the colour of the roof in No. 1 Right; is it one colour or various colours? A. I 
think it varies; I am not sure now. I think it is mostly yellow. 
12333. Q. The 4th Right? A. That is yellow, to my idea. 
12334. Mr. Bruce &nith.] Q. The 4th 1-tight is the one going into the goaf? A. Yc, I have been in there 
and I fancy it is yellow. 
12335. Mr. Barry.] Q. Have you fired any shots since you have been in the mine? A. One or two. 
12336. Q. What have you fired them with, a maclune or an apparatus? A. The day I fired them it was 
with an apparatus. I fired them in No. 1, before the repairing was finished. 
12337. Q. How is that done 1 A. It is done with a little cap. It is a kind of machine, I do not know the 
name, like a tweezers ; and there is a little cap, and a fuse inserted into the cap. 
12338. Q. I pesunie there are d:fferent ways of firing off these shots? A. Yes. 
12339. Q. Can you say whether the mine, before the explosion, was watered, from what you saw? A. I 
could not say definitely. 
1340. Q. What is its state now, or since the disaster? A. Well, some of it is in a damp state. 
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12341. Q. Can you tell the Court the number of ways out of the mine? A. Four ways that I know of. 
12342. Q. You know John Morrison? A. Yes. 
12343. Q. He gave evidence here today? A. I know him. 
12344, O Have von worked with him or under him? A. I have worked with him. 
12345. Q. have you worked under him? A. No. 
12346. Q. Not in the mine under him? A. No 
12347. Q. Had you any previous experience, before going to Mount Kenibla? Have you ever worked in 
Mount Pleasant? A. Yes, once, years ago. I worked there about twelve months, when I was a boy of 
15 or 16, that is all. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght 
12348. Q. Do I take it, then, Mr. Biggers, that you have had no practical experience of gas? A. Oh, yes; 
I have had some practical experience of gas. 
12349. Q. Where did you get it ? A. Well, I have only seen gas once in a safety-lamp. 
12350. Where did you get your practical experience of gas'? A. At Kembla. 
12351. Q. At Kembia? A. Yes. 
12352. (7. When? A. Well, I found gas there about a month ago, a small quantity of gas. 
12353. (7. A month ago? A. No, it is not a month ago. It was about the 1st of last month. That is 
about the first gas I have actually seen in a safety-lamp. 
12354. (7. And is that your practical experience of gas 1 A. Oh, well, that is all you require, I think. 
12355. Q. Well, is it? A. Yes, that is all. 
12356. Q. And you have been a deputy how ]on"? A. About four months. 
12357. Q. So that you were appointed a deputy without having had any practical experience of gas at all? 
Is not that a fact? A. Yes, I had never seen gas except-_--[interrvptecl]. 
12358. (7. No; I am talking of practical experience of gas? A. Yes. 
12359. (7. That is the fact? A. Yes. 
12360. (7. And at the time you were appointed deputy you held no certificate? A. No. 
12361. (7. Did any person put you through any examination before you were appointed deputy? A. Yes, 
I was asked many things ; how to examine for gas [Interrupted]. 
12362. Q. By whom 1 A. By the under-manager. - 
12363. Q. What is his name? A. Mr. 1{otchkis. 
12364. Q. When was that? A. It was just after he came there. 
12365. Q. Now, how long was Mr. Hotclikis examining you? A. He asked me while we were going round 
together; he asked me how I would examine for gas ; and how would I tell certain percentages ; and I 
told him; that is all. 
12366. Q. That is all while you were walking round 1 A. Yes. 
12367. Q. Casual questions, that is all? A. Oh, no, not casual questions. 
12368. (7. It was only on one occasion, when you went round with him? A. This was before I undertook 
my duties; and he took us all round together. 
12369. Q. That is only on one occasion? A. Yes, 
12370. Q. And he took you all round together, the men who were to be appointed deputies? A. No. 
12371. Q. Who were with you? A. I did not say deputie!. John Morrison was there, and myself. I 
think there were only three on that occasion. I cannot remember exactly. 
12372. Q. Now, boiled down, the examination you went through was a few questions from the under-
manager as to how to test for gas ; is.  not that so 1 A. Yes, he asked me how to detect gas, and different 
questions about -[fnterrupted]. 
12373. Q. And upon that you were made a deputy? A. No. 
1e374. Q. Were you asked any other questions by the Manager? A. Yes ; I had a conversation with him 
months before, before the explosion, in connection with the deputyship there. 
12375. (7. With Mr. Rogers? A. Yes. 
12376. (7. Did he examine you as to your knowledge of gases? A. Yes, he asked me several questions; 
and he made inquiries of our technical teacher, and different things. 
12377. Q. I only want it as to your practical knowledge, as far as the Managei' is concerned. Then you 
did not represent to the management that you had any practical knowledge of gas, did you ? A. No, I did 
not. 
12378. Q. And your duties as deputy included shot-firing? A. No, not always. On one occasion I was 
sent to do sonae. 
12379. (7. Part of your duties would be to fire shots? A. No. 
12380. (7. Will you tell me why it was that you fired these shots I A. On that.day I was appointed to do it, 
and that is the only day I have been appointed to do shot-firing. 
12381. Q. Do you know that they were firing shots in Mount Kembia with the naked light, lighting the 
fuse with the naked safety-lamp ? A. Yes I believe they were. 
12382. (7. Did you ever see it done? A. No. 
12383. (7. Is it not a very dangerous practice? Remembering that you have now a second-class certifate, 
is it not, in your opinion, a very dangerous practice? A. I do not think so, where there is no gas. 
12384. (7. Do you think it is a very safe practice? A. Well, I think it would be better to have the other. 
12385. (7. Will you not admit that it is a dangerous practice? A. No. 
12386. (7. Is not the examination beforehand only made with the safety-lamp? A. Just so. 
13387. (7. And do you not know that that will not detect less than about 21 per cent, of gas? A. Yes. 
12388. (7. And do you not know that 1 per cent, is dangerous in certain dusty conditions? A. In certain 
places. 
12389. (7. Now, will you not admit that, if your lamp will only detect down to 2?e per cent. it may be 
dangerous, because there might be gas there in dangerous quantities and not detected? A. No. 
12390. Q. Do not you see that there may he less than 2 per cent. of as present, and it may not be detected? 
A. Yes, I see that. 
12391. Q. That being so, if you assume, because you test with the ordinary safety-lamp, that there is no 
gas there, may you not be making a wrong assumption? A. No, not where the place is in a damp condition. 
12392. Q. I mean, may you not be making a wrong assumption in thinking there is no gas there? A. Yes. 
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12393. Q. And, if you make that wrong assumption, is not there a risk of danger in firing a shot with a 
niked light? A. But, where the safety-lamps are used, they have to, according to the Act, water the place 
if it is dry and dusty. 
12394. Q. I will come to that afterwards is it not manifestly dangerous, when the assumption that there 
is no gas there may be wrong, to fire the fuse with the naked lamp ? A. Well, it is dangerous anywhere to 
fire a shot at all in mines, as far as that goes. There is always a certain amount of danger with a blown-
out shot. 
12395. Q. And is not there a considerably greater amount of danger in firing it with the naked light instead 
of the wire.? A. Well, I cannot say it is a very dangerous practice. 
12396. Q. But is not there a considerably greater danger with the naked light than with the wire? A. 
No, I (10 not think that there is, at all not when it has been examined, and when the place is watered 
thoroughly. 
12397. Q. You do not know, of your own knowledge, whether the places were watered where the shots were 
fired with the naked light, do you 1 A. Well, yes. 
12398. Q. Then you do know where these shots were fired with naked lights? A. 1 used to know the places. 
12399. Q. And do you know who fired the shots with the naked lights? A. Yes, I know ; but I never saw 
them at it. 
12400. Q. Who? A. Forsyth was one, Livingstone, and iDavie Evans, and several others. 
12401. Q. So that, since the disaster, it has been quite a common practice at Kenibla to fire the fuse with a 
naked light? A. No, it has not been a common practice. You asked me who fired the shots you did not 
ask me " with the naked light." 
12402. Q. I am speaking of the firing of shots with the naked lights? A. There were not so many doing 
that. 
12403. Q. Was David Evans doing that? A. No. 
12404. Q. Now, I want to know whom did you know to fire the shots with the naked light 1 A. I know 
of two. 
12405. Q. Who 1 A. Forsyth and Livingstone. 
12406. Q. Were you present when they were fired? A. No, I have never been there at the actual time. 
12407. Q. Then you do not know what the conditions were at the time of the firing of the shot? ji. Well, 
yes, I have seen it afterwards. 
12408. Q. I am speaking of at the time ? A. At the time I was not there : but still it is like this-I was 
not there actually when the shot took place but I have been there shortly after a shot ; and, if the 
place was in a damp condition or dry before the shot, it would naturally be the same afterwards ; and, so I 
concluded that it was in that state at the time the shot was fired. 
12409. Q. Do you mean to tell me that there were no dusty places there when any shot was fired? A. No, 
I do not think there were. 
12410. Q. In view of some evidence we have had, will you swear that no shot was fired in a dusty place 
since the disaster ? A. I would not swear that. 
12411. his honor.] I do not think there is any evidence that a shot has been fired in a place that was 
dusty. 
12412. Mr. Lysaght.] Yes, there was the evidence of Quinn, and Charles Smith also, I think. Smith said lie 
did not approve of a man firing with a naked light, when he (Smith) was required to use a safety-lamp. 
12413. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think, even if the evidence has been given, that it is usual to remind a 
witness that certain evidence has been given. 
12414. Mr. Barry.] It is not right. 
12415. Mr. Lysaght.] I wanted to show that lie did not really know the conditions at the time these shots 
were fired ; and to bring him back to the fact that it was a dangerous practice. 
12416. his honor.] That is more a question for the Commission than anyone else, the question whether it 
was dangerous. 
12417. Mr Lysaght.] Very welt, your 1-lonor. 
12418. Q. Now, with respect to this inspection you made with Josland do you know that Josland stated 
that you did not examine one-half of the bords or the pillars, becaused you assumed -[Interrupted.] 
12419. Mr. Bruce Smith.] No, they were " assured.' 
12420. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. You inspected with Josland? A. Yes. 
12421, Q. You were the check inspector with Josland some three or four months before the disaster 1 
A. Yes, on one occasion. 
1242l-. Q You do know that Josland has stated that on that inspection you assumed that more than one-half 
of the places were right, because the adjoining places that you went into were all right? A. Yes, 1 heard 
lie said that. 
12422. Q. Well now, is it true? A. It is not, We went to more than one-half of the places. 
12423. Q. Well then, I will not cut it exactly to half. May I take it from you that there were at least 
one-third of the places that you never went into at all, but assumed that they were right? That is giving 
you a good margin? A. Well, there were some we did not go into, if that is what you mean. 
12424. Q. I am not making any suggestion that you did wrongly, at present. I do not want you to think 
that I am going to blame you, at present: but I ask you, is that part of the evidence true, that there were 
a large number of places that you did not go into and inspect at all 1 A. Not a laige number. We missed 
a good many; but I believe we did more than two-thirds of the places. That is what I think, anyhow. 
12425. Q. Well now, you did miss a good many ? A. Yes. 
12426. Q. Do I understand pillars and bords 1 A. Yes, we missed some pillars ; and we missed some bords. 
12427. Q. The practice was, on that inspection, to go and inspect, say, one bord, and miss the next couple 
and go in another bord, and miss the next two or three ; that was the mode of inspection I A. Anywhere 
we thought likely to go, if the under manager was going on, we would say, Well, will we go in here 1" 
and I used to sometimes ask him and the District (Jhecic Inspector where to go. 
12428. Q. In fact, you went where the under-manager took you? A. Oh, no. 
12429. Q. Did not you say that where the under-manager was going in you would go? A. No, you made a 
mistake; when the under-manager was going ahead we would walk behind him, and go in some place where 
he was not going; that is what I mean. We went just where we thought necessary. We exercised our 
discretion. 12430. 
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12430. Q. Is it not a fact that the under-manager said you need not go up a number of places on the 4th 
Left? A. I do not remember anything being said about that. 
124.31. Q. Will you swear that that part of Josland's evidence is not correct? Will you swear that the 
under-manager did not say that? A. I will swear I did not hear it, or I do not remember that. I will say, 
certainly, that we were masters of the situation, and could go where we wanted. 
12432. Q. Do I understand from you that you went wherever ,Josland suggested? -..-_[Interi'upted.] 
12433. iifi. Barn,'.] lie has neer said that, or anything like it. 
12434. Witness.] He used to, at times, refer to me; and I used to refer to him. 
12435. ¶r. LysagJtt.] Q. And did you not say that you used to ask Josland whether you would go into a 
place or not ? A. At times. 
12436. Q. May I take it that you would be guided by Josland as to whether you went into that particular 
place? A. No, he was partly guided by me and I was partly guided by him. 
12437. Q. Do you not know that Josland stated that lie trusted entirely to you to take him to the places? 
A. He might have said it ; and he might have thought it, too. 
12438. Q. Now, what I want to know is, had you any reason for not going into those places on the 4th 
LOft? Let me show you on the lilan  exactly ; and you think before you answer? A. I could not be sure 
of the places we went to that clay. We went to the rise places, because those are the places I wanted to 
go to. 
12439. Q. You have seen a plan like this for days and days? A. Oh, no. 
12440. Q. Do you mean to tell me you have never seen one like that? A. Yes. 
12441. Q. Have not you studied it? A. I could not say. 
12442. Q. Do you not know where the 4th Left is; those places on the 4th Left here where Aitken and 
Test and all these men were working? A. Yes, I was there yesterday. 
12443. Q. Now, is it not a fact that you did not go in at least one-half of those places during that check 
inspection? A. No, I will not say that; I believe we went into most of those places. We went to most 
of the rise places on that occasion. 
12444. Q. Have you read Josland's evidence? A. Yes. 
12445. Q. Where did you read it? A. I read a portion of his evidence in the paper, and I have been told 
about what he said since. 
12446. Q. Where did you read Josland's evidence? A. In Sydney, about a week ago. 
1147. Q. Who showed it to you? A. I read it in the paper; nobody showed it to me. 
12448. Q. Do you mean to tell me that you have not seen a typewritten copy of Josland's evidence? 
A. No; I have never seen anything of his evidence, only what I have heard men talking of what he said. 
12449. Q. Were you in Sydney when Josland gave his evidence? A. Yes, I was in Sydney. 
12450. Q. Now, did you not see it reported in the Press that ,Josland had stated that he had not examined 
more than one-half of those places in the 4th Left? A. Yes, I saw that; but I take it that he has made a 
mistake, because he did not know the places as well as I did ; and I did not know them too well up there 
at the time. I had never worked up there ; and I do not see how Josland could know too well the exact 
places we went to. 
12451. Q. Do you mean to say that nobody has ever read to you, or that you have not seen, a complete 
copy of Josland's evidence typewritten? A. No. 
12452. Q. Have not you given any statement of your own evidence? A. I have given a little statement 
when I was in Sydney at the examination. 
12453. Q. To whom did you give that statement 1 A. To Mr. Wade. 
12454. Q. And were not you then told what Josland had sworn? A. He said a few things that Josland 
had said. 
1245.5. Q. And did not lie read it from the typewritten copy? A. No, he did not. 
12156. Q. Is that the only statement that you gave? A. Well, to-day I was talking to Mr. Barry. 
12457. Q. Well, before to-day1 A. No. I have given no other statement that I can remember. 
12458. Q. Do not you know that your name was mentoned as a witness as far back as three weeks ago 
at Wollongong? A. No I do not know, except that Morrison told me that I would be likely to be there. 
We were talking and speaking of who would be there : and he said, " Oh, you will be there"; and I said, 
"I do not think so I do net think they will want me." That is all that I heard. I was surprised when 
I got it [rneuning the subpcana]. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.] 

AFTERNOO,'. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m., Mr. W. B. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings) 

CHARLES BIG-G-ERS, previously sworn, was further examined, as under :- 
12460. ALe. Lqsaqh#t.] Q. At the time of the checkinspection you had to depend on Nelson where to go? 
A. No' exactly. I would not know where I had been, but I had been in that district before. 
12101. Q. Would you know of any of the places not at work P A. No. 
12102. Q. When you observed Mr. Nelson run past a place, you would stop him and go into it-a working 
place P A. I would stop and say, We had better come in here." 
12463. Q. After Nelson had passed? A. Very often. 
1216 I-. Q. Did you obsci've Nelson hurry past any different places P A. No. 
12165. Q. 'l'hen you had no cause to stop him when you wanted to go into various places P A. We 
would stop him. 
12466. Q. \Vould you call bun back, and go into a place that he had passed P A. Yes, if we had occasion. 
12467. (2. Where are any of these places in the 4th Left where you had occasion to call him hack? 
A. I cannot say exactly where they are. 
12468. (2. During the whole of the three days' inspection the pit was not working? A. No. 
12409. (2. Did you ask the under-manager whether the men were working in any particular place or 
whether they were not? A. We knew there were no men in the mine. 
12470. Q. Were any places lying idle permanently, or where they had finished work? A. Yes. 
12471. Q. Can you tell me of any place that you went into which was not being permanently worked? 
A. No, I cannot say. 12172. 
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1 2472. Can you remember going into any place not being permanently worked? A. Yes; in the shaft 
district. 
12473. Q. I mean No. 1? A. No. 
12174. Q. Did you go into the top of No. 1 Main TTeading PA. Yes, I think we went to that. 
12475. Q. You think ; cannot you remember? A. It is long time ago, and 1 have had many things to 
drive it out of my mind since then. 
121.70. (7. ('all you remember whether you went into t1ils top heading PA. 1 cannot remember. 
12477. (7. To the top heading-you remember No. 1 Main Level P A. They were not up that far. 
12178. (7. Did you go into tl.e place as far as it had gone up ? A. I cannot be suro. 
12179. Q. Are they not the places which Josland said were passed ? A. I cannot be sure ; I cannot be 
certain whether we went in there or not. 
12 ISO. (7. Who had the safety-lamp P A. Nelson. 
12481. (7. Do you remember m.ny remark being made when they saw the safety-lamp ? A. No, I do not 
remember I heard that Josland said so. I do not know. - 
12 182. Q. Will you say that it was not said? A. I will not swear that it was not snil. 
12483. 0. Will you tell inc an% thing that Rogers said about it? A. We I al more talk with Mr. Leitch. 
124S4. Q. Do you not remember the remark being made that gas had not been found for the last twelve 
months, and that you did not want the lamp there P A. You mean by Leitch. 
12485. Q. Do you remember his saying that you did not want a thing like that there? A. No ; I do not 
remember any one of them saying anything like that. The safety-lamp was brought there; and we could 
not get it to work, it went out. Before anyone had spoken about it it was a settled thing that we 
should take the safety-lamp, bitt we could not get it to burn. Then was the time that the under-manager 
said, What are you going to do ?" He said, You can get another safety-lamp, or clean this, or do as 
),on like ; but I have not seen gas for tivel ye montliv." Josland said, " What will you do '' 1 said, 

\V'e have seen no gas '' ; and we went into the shaft district. 
12 ISO. Q. Did you go into No. 1? A. We had tho safety-lamp with us in No. 1. Nelson had it. 
121.87. Q. Nelson had one? A. Yes ; Nelson went first and examined in front. We all went up with 
open lights to the face. 
12I88. Q. Was that after an examination had been made with the safety-lamp by Nelson? A. I examined 
with a lamp myself. 
12489. Q. The only person who had the safety-lamp was the under-manager? A. lie was deputy at the 
time. 
12100. Q. The only person who had a safety-lamp was Nelson? A. Yes. 
12491. Q. lIe went into the place first to see that it was safe before you went with a naked light ? 
A. Yes. 
121.92. Q. You did not go into one-third of those places at the top of No. 1? A. Yes. 
12493. (7. Do you not know that the saibty of a mine, as far as ,as is concerned, depends on the safety of 
every partictilmir place? A. Yes. 
12191. Q. it is like a chain wInch depends on its weakest link P -[Inter.up(ed.] 
1249.5. Mr. Barry.] Should not the witness be allowed to finish in answer P 
12490. His Honor.] The witness certainly ought to be allowed to finish answering a question. 
12497. Mr. Lysaqhl.] Q. Do you want to finish any answer? A. I want to say that, if all the places 
were together, it is improbable that gas would be found in one and not in the one next to it higher up. 
If I had to choose I would go to the rise. 
12108. Q. Might there not be a blon or of gas in the one you did not go into ? A. It might be possible to 
find gas issuing frcm anywhere. 
12499. Q. Was not your inspection, so far as gas is concerned, practically valueless as a check-icspection P 
A. I will not admit that. 
12500. Q. Did you mention anything in the report about gas P A. I have not seen it since, and I have 
no copy of it. 
12501. Q. Can you remember whether Nelson said it was no good to go into the top heading because there 
was nothing there? A. I cannot remember. 
12302. Q. You will not swear lie did not? A. No. 
12.503. (7. Then substantially Josland's evidence is correct? A. I do not know it. 
12504 Q. You do not know ? A. It is not correct about the hydrogen flame, or about intiuudating. 
12505. (7. Is there anything that you take exception to in Josland's evidence, as far as you saw it? 
A. Yes. 
12300. (7. 'What did you object to ? A. That we were intimidated from going in. 
12307. (7. Josland never said anything about it PA. Some of the men were talking about it. 
12308. Q. I tell you no. Joslaud never said he had been intimidated P A. I have heard them talking 
about it. 
1230. (7. Did Mr. Rogers tell you? A. No. 
12510. 9. None of the management P A. None of the management. 
12311. 9.  What else in Josland's evidence do you take exception to? A. I do not know it. Read the 
evidence to me, and I will mcli you. 
1251.2 Q. Well, there is nolimimig further so far as you know of it that you want to take exception to P 
A. Nothing further. 
1 .3 13. Q. Now you lalk about a bising sound, and that sometimes it caine from waler? A. Sometimes 
12311. Q. A mid in time mnajoritv of (tier Limes, what is it caused by PA. I should say that it was caused 
by either gas or water, and they used to try and fimmd the gas. 
12315. Q. Did you never know of gas being found in Keambla before the disaster P A. I have heard of it, 
and have seen gas there years ago. 
12310. Q. \V lien was the list time P A. Years ago, when I was a boy. 
12.317. Q. Where you described it as lighting after a slmot ? A. I hive seen it after a bore too ; and they 
would not time the shot because the gas was giving off. 
12318. 0. You know that a large number of men died from the effects of after-damp. In view of that fact, 
and what you know as to time umine giving off gas, have you formed any theory as to what was the probable 
cause of the disaster? A, I have a theory as to the probable cause, 
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12519. Q. What theory? A. The probable cause was the gas. 
12520. Q. You think that most probably gas would be the cause F A. Gas and coal dust. 
1252L Q. Have you any doubt that it was an explosion of gas and coal dust? A. 1 am not clear on 
that point. 
12522. Q. Have you any honest doubt? A. Yes, I have. 
12522k. Q. After hearing of gas and of coal dust, what else would it be? A. I have heard of the likelihood 
of a fall doing it. 
12523. Q. Apart from that, can you mention any other cause than gas or coal dust? A. No, I cannot. 
12.5!4. Q. I suppose you admit that that 4th Left, being on the highest part of the mine, would be the 
most probable place for gas to accumulate? A. Yes. 
12.525. Q. And that that would probably be the original seat of the disaster-the vicinity of the 4th Left? 
A. I cannot say where the original seat of the accident was I have no idea. 
12526. Q. Do our conclusions lead you to adopt that place-the highest part of No. 1 Main Level? 
A. No. I have seen signs of force in the opposite direction. That is what is puzzling to me. 
12527. Q. As far as you can offer an opinion, you say that it is an explosion caused by gas and coal dust? 
A. I do not offer any opinion. 
12528. Q. Can you tell us whether you observed that the brattice was burnt? A. There was a little burnt 
in the main heading. 
12529. Q. At the top 2 .! Yes, 
12530. Q. You know that a number of bodies were burnt? A. I do not know of a number. 
12531. Q. But there were some? A. There were some who had the appearance of being burnt. 
12532. Q. In the top heading? A. Yes. 
1253:3. Q. Have you any doubt that they were burnt by an explosion of gas? A. I have no great know-
ledge of the matter. 
12534. His Iiomcor.i Is it of any use examining this witness on this inatt.ei'. There are the facts from which 
the Commission can judge. 
12335. AIr. Lysaqlmf.] Q. How often has the furnace been reversed? A. Once. 
12530. Q. How often have you seen the air stationary, hanging in the balance? A. Only once, when the 
furnace was out for repairs, and there were only two or three of us there. 
12537. Q. You said that sometimes the furnace did not burn properly. Did the westerly winds have any 
effect upon it? A. I do not know. 
12.533. Q. Then what do you mean? A. Sometimes the fire was banked up; there were not so many men 
there then as of late years. 
12539. Q. The furnace was not sufficient to supply the ventilation? A. While men were at work, the fire 
was always there. This reversal of air occurred when the mine was idle for two or three days. 
12310. Q. Now, I will ask you with regard to these Recommendations, No. 1-" Managers, under-managers, 
deputies, and shot-firers to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have had five years' 
pra.tic'al mining experience, before being eligible for their respective positions" F A. Yes; I approve of 
that. 
125 V. Q. Recommneulation No. 2 is-" Inspectors to be vested with absolute power to order use of safety-
lamps. ' Do you approve of that ? A. Yes. 
12512. Q. Recommendation No. 3 is-" Ventilation by furnace prohibited, and fans substituted." Do 
you approve of that P A. 1 would not like ta give an opinion on that. 
124:3. Q. I cone to Rcenmmnendatio No. 5-" All places, excepting prospecting drives, to have cut-
throughs not more than 30 yards apart F" J. Yes. That would be good. It would be safe. 
12511. Q. Recommendation No. 12 is-'.  An extra mupply of safety lamps and their requisites equal to 
one-third of the number of persons employed b low gi'onnd to be kept constantly in good order and ready 
to use." Do you think this extra SUpplv or safety-lamps ouht to be kept ? A. Yes. 
125 15. Q. You had dilliculty at the time of the Remnbia disaster in getting lamps? A. We had difficulty 
in getting them to light. 
12510. Q. They would not work? A. No. 
12317. Q. And there was some delay in the rescue parties bringing out the men F A. There was some 
delay. 
12548. Q. Recommendation No. 13 is that "Travelling and Haulage roads, and other places necessary, be 
imi*v watered F" A. 1 agree with that. 
12.5-19. Q. I will pass on to 1teommendation No. 18, that "Instruction be given to employees regularly 
on means of escape" F A. Yes ;  I agree wimh that recommendation. 
12530. Q. And who do you think should give the instruction F A. Any deputy who knew the read, or any 
otO ci ci. 
12531. Q. The deputy? A. He would do. 
12.552. Q. \ouid you have the instruction given once a quarter F A. Yes I believe that would do. 
1255:3. Q. You believe that that would be a practical way of carrying out the recommendation ? A. Yes. 
12.55 1-. Q. Recommendation No. 20 is, that " Safety-lamps should not be unlocked for shot-firing" F A. I 
approve of that, too. 

Examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 
12533. Q. Were you spoken to four months ago abaut bAng made a deputy? A. Before the disaster? 
12350. (3. Before the disaster? A. Yes. 
12337. (3. By whom P A. I spoke to the Manager. 
12538, Q. Did you speak to him ; or did he speak to you F A. Well, I spoke to one of the deputies first. 
I had lhiled in an examination for a second-class certificate, and I thought it might be because of my not 
being an official in the mine. I talked to Dane Evans about the matter, and he said, " Oh, you should 
try and get a position," and so I spoke to the Manager about it. 
12559. (C). It was a desire on your part to get a position ? A. Yes. 
12360. Q. You were never approached by the Manager with regard to it F A. Not before I spoke tohim. 
12.561. Q. Did anybody representing the men approach you or ask you if you would care to take that 
position? A. No. 
12302. Q. You told Mr. Barry that you never came across gas while looking for coal? A. No. 
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12563. Q. lloiv often, before the disaster, did you meet with gas while working in any Capacity ? A. I 
could not say how often, but two or three times. I have seen little flashes. 
12501. Q. Only little Bashes P A. Yes. I have never come across any lighted, but [ have seen men 
light it. 
12563. Q. You are thoroughly impressed with the fact that there was gas in the mine, because you came 
across it three times yourself, and saw men light it P A. Of late years I did not think that there 
was any. 
12566. Q. How,  long ago is it since you met it? A. Eight or nine years ago. 
125C7. Q. And when you saw men light i t P A. Somewhere about the same time. it was when some 
men were working on a hole. 
12508. Q. Then, from eight or nine years ago, up to the time of the disaster, you never saw gas or saw 
men light it? A. No. 
12569. Q. When you say that you twice saw a light after firing a shot, was that eight or nine years ago P 
A. No. 
12579. Q. Then you do not include that P A. I think that was fire-damp, or we called it powder-smoke. 
12571. Q. How often have you seen powder-smoke go off P A. rI wi ee, after a hanging-shot. 
12572. (7. You say that you heard a hissing sound, but you do not know whether it was water or gas P 
A. Yes. 
12573. Q. And you tried to find it with a light P A. Yes. I could not find it; and I took it for granted 
itt was water. 
12574. Q.  low many times have you seen the air reversed in that mine in all your experience P A. I 
xonld not say ; three or four times. 
12575. Q. What did you attribute it to? A. I took it to be because the fire had gone out, and the wind 
had reversed and changed the ventilation. 
12576. Q. Did you examine the fire? A. No. 
12577. (7 You did not look to see whether the reversal was the result of having banked the fire? A. No. 
12578. Q. When it was reversed, you said that there were only a few men working in the mine P A. That 
was on the last occasion. 
12579. Q. On the other occasion when it was reversed, were there the usual number of men in the mine P 
A. it was reversed when we were going in. There were the usual number of men going in. 
1250. Q. how long ago was this P A. It only occurred once during the last six or seven years- excepting 
once when the fire was out. 
12581. (7. There were only orncials in the mine on that occasion P A. Yes. 
12582. (7. The reversal was only once in six or seven years? A. Yes. 
12583. (7. Now, with regard to this check inspection. You knew that the object of going into the mine 
with your colleague was to check the safety of the mine with regard to the ventilation and various other 
matters P A. Yes. 
12584. Q. Do you consider that you did check it? A. To the best of our ability we did. 
12585. Q. You have passed an examination lately as underground-manager? A. Yes. 
12586. Q. You have got a second-class certificate? A. Yes. 
12587. Q. You have read a little. A. Yes. 
12588. (7. You have listened to lectures? A. Yes. 
12589. (7. Were you under Mr. May P A. Yes. I have got my certificate as underground-manager, and 
I have also got technical certificates. 
12590. Q. With that knowledge, do you consider that your visit and your report as to your inspection 
was really a check on the safety of that mine P A. I think it tended in that direction. 
12591. (7. You admit that you Ild not go into about a third of the places P A. Yes. 
12592. (7. And, with regard to a. number that you went into it was with open lights, after they had been 
tested by the deputy P A. Yes, but we tried them when we got there with a safety-lamp. 
12593. Q. You say that you tried them after you had gone in with naked lights P A. Yes. 
1294. Q. In what way PA. We tried up to the roof above with a safety-lamp. 
12 () i. (7. You say that you went in with a naked light, and that you examined higher up with a safety.. 
lamp P A. Yes. 
1290. Q. iiow many hours were you in altogether? A. We were three days altogether. We were 
delayed getting to work owing to the mine being idle. 
12507. Q. Why did you limit yourself to three days P A. We did not like to give any more, owing to 
the expense. 
12598. Q. Expense to whom P A. To the miners who raid us. 
12599. Q. Were you limited in your time P A. No. 
12600. Q. But you got through the work as quicklv as possible P A. If we had gone over every part of 
the mine, it would have taken a fortnight to make a minute inspection. 
12601. Q. To cheek the whole thing then would have taken a fortnight P A. Well, it would have taken 
eight or nine days. It takes me five days now to inspect the old workings. 
12602. Q. Were y  ou interfered with in any way in your attempt to cheek the ventilation, or to checic the 

o presence of gas, n that occasion? A. No. 
12603. Q. Were any restrictions placed on you P A. No. 
12001. (7. Whydid you accept the assurance of Mr. hiotehkis that there was no gas? A. Mr. Iiotchkis ? 
12005. (7. No, I mean Mr. Nelson? A. 1 do not remember having accepted it. 
12006. Q. Were you not assured by him or by Mr, Rogers that there was no need for you to go into 
certain places P A. No, we were not. If I said that, I was much mnistalcen. 
12607. Q. Mr. Rogers told you when you arrived that they had not seen any gas for twelve months? 
A. No Mr. Leitch. 
120(8. Q. Who is Mr. Leitch P A. He was the underground-manager. 
12009. (7. Did that lead you to reduce your inspection in any way ? A. It did, when we looked at the 
reports. We asked to loolc at the reports of the deputies, and we found there were no reports of gas 
being present. 
12610. Q. It was an inspection to check the reports of others, and you asked for the reports of other 
men? A. We had no lamps. My colleague had a lamp; but be could not get it to work. 
12011. Q. lie brought his own safety-lamp? Q. Yes, but it would not work. 12012. 
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12612. Q. Did you ask for a loan of a ]aaap? A. No; Mr. Leitch said he could have a lamp if be liked. 
He said "I do not want to say anything, but I have seen no gas for twelve months." 
12613. Q. Having seen these reports, which read satisfactorily, you limited the inspection accordingly P 
A. Yes, together with my own experience of having found no gas in the mine. 
12614. Q. You spoke about Morris senior's hands being burnt ;-how many indications were there of men 
or things being burnt-how many men P A. I saw Morris. 
12615. (3. Did you see any other men? A. Tost, and a few others, appeared to be burnt. 
12616. (3. Why? A. The skin was hanging off them. 
12617. 0. Was their hair singed? A. I did not examine them, but I think that they were burnt. 
126 IS. Q. Do I take this from you: that up to the time of your being appointed a deputy you had never 
seen a safety-lamp under the influence of gas? A. No, I had not. 
12619. Q. Either in lectures, or in undergoing an examination, or in a mine P A. I have never seen the 
gas actually in the safety-lamp. 
12620. Q. You have never seen it of your own accord, and have never been shown what the effect was on 
the safety-lamp? A. I have been told, but have never seen it. 
12621. Q. You said, " I have seen forces in the opposite way," in answer to a question by Mr. Lysaglit. 
Now, were you in the mine after the accident P A. I was in with the first rescue party. 
12022. (3. You were in continuously? A. Not continuously. I was too ill the next day. 
12023. (3. You were in frequently within a month afterwards ;-you had an opportunity of seeing the 
effect of the explosion P A. Yes. 
12624, Q. And in how many directions did you ste indications of force? A. In some places in all 
directions. 
12625. Q. In more than one place you found it in all directions ;-from how many centres did you see it 
working P A. I could not say. I have seen a bord running in the same direction as another, with forces 
running inbve and outbye, and some with forces in all directions. In the main tunnel I saw a force going 
out, and a contradictory force coming in. 
12026. Q. Then you saw evidence of many conflicting forces after the accident? A. Yes. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson :- 
12627. (3. Your experience with regard to gas seems to have been very limited P A. Yes. 
12628. (3. Were you examined by the Board of Examiners as to your knowledge of gas? A. Yes, I was, 
as to my knowledge of mining gas generally-how to detect gas, how to detect certain percentages, how 
to deal with them, and how to find out in what quantity I found it. 
12620. Q. You say that you have not met with gas yourself, excepting on one occCsiofl P A. I only met 
with it on one occasion, and in a small quantity; but I soon detected it, although I had never seen gas in 
large quantities, and 1 am sure I could detect it iaciw. 
12630. You were put to an examination by Mr. liotchkis, before being appointed P A. Yes ; rr. 
llotchkis asked ma several questions, as how to examine a mine, and so on, and I told him ; and he 
seemed satisfied. 
12631. Q. Do you think that one examination was more exhaustive than the other? A. In the 
examination under the Coal Mines Act I went through a big examination with regard to the nature of 
gases. 
126:32. (3. I mean as to practical knowledge P A. They were something similar. 
12633. (3. Then the practical questions, relating to the finding of gas, put to you by Mr. Hotchkms and 
the Inspectors, were somewhat similar P A. Yes. 
12034. Q. Do you not think that the management of a mine would be more likely to know the qualifications 

m of a man than an Examining Board, the embers of which have had no opportunity of watching his work 
in a mine P A. Well, I do not know. I think both of them would have an opportunity of putting 
questions to you. 
12635. Q. For the position of deputy, do you not think it is probable that the I\Tanagers, who are 
responsible for the mine, would have a personal knowledge of the working of a man in the mine P 
A. Yes. 
12630. Q. I think you said it took five days to inspect the od Nvoikings P A. Yes. 
12637. (3. Do you go into every accessible place in the mine? A. Yes. 
1263S. Q. Do you mark them? A. Yes. 
12639. (3. And,wben you come to a fall, do you gd on top of the fall? A. If it is in any way practicable. 
In fact, since the explosion, I have been in places altogether dangerous to see whether there was any gas 
there. I have been into some places that I would not go into again. 
12340. Q. You are sure that it takes five days to inspect theie workings? A. Yes, to do them carefully. 
I may be a few hours short, that is all. 
12641. Q. how many hours a day do you take inspecting them-eight or nine? A. About eight hours 
altogether. Of course, sometimes, if I were to do it al through, I could do it in four days. But 
sometimes there is a stopping to be looked after in the old workings, and things like that. 
120 12. (3. Could you do it in two days? A. No, not to examine it properly. 
12643. (3. We have the evidence of deputies who have stated that they did it in one day? A. Well, I 
could not do it in that time. I go over every place by myself. Sometimes the men, when they come to 
a heading split up, and take one road each; that helps them. But 1 go up one road and down the other, 
and that adds to the time. 
126 4. Q. Coining to this matter of the cheek inspection. I take it that you consider that you made a 
sufficient ehec'k as to the condition of the mine by  taking some sample places? A. We thought that that 
cheek would be a help. 
12645. Q. You did not think it absolutclv necessary, in order to ascertain the general condition of the 
mine, to visit every place in it? A. Well, I do not think so. We did not visit every place. I think that 
if there are two places together, and ycu go to the one on the rise, that will do. If there is time, von can 
xisit them all. 
12016. Q. Having been three days inspecting the mine, you ought to have a fair idea of it? A. We 
ought to. 
12647. Q. You had option to go where you liked? A. Yes. 
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12618. Q. It would be no reflection on a Custom-house officer to say that he only looked at one or two 
packages in a cargo of a ship, to find out if there was fraud? A. No. 
12649. Do you think it necessary for a Custom-house officer to examine every package in a cargo P 
A. I have never had much to do with Custom-house cflicers. 
12659. Q. Custom-house officers are there to check any hanky panky work, but they do not open every 
package P A. I would not like to open every one ; if I picked out one every here and there, I should 
think that would be a check. 
12651. Q. And if you inspected a mine, and took three days instead of five d eve, you dAnk you ought to 
have a fair idea of that mine, and whether the rules were being carried out? A. Yes. 
12652. Q. Your objection  to Mr. Joalanci's evidence seems to be about some intimidation of the check-
inspectors? A. That is, if he did say such a thing. I have had no authentic statement of it. I only read 
the short accounts in the press, but 1 heard from the men that the Manager had intimidated us, and that 
we did not take safety-lamps I object to that. We did not take the safety-lamp, because it was out of 
order. 
126513. And you were not intimidated? A. I was there to do my duty ; and I was not intimidated or 
influenced by anyone. We were there on behalf of the men; and what little I knew, I went to try and 
find out as honestly as I could. 
12654. Q. You have a special appliance for shot-firing? A. Yea ; that was introduced not long after the 
explosion. 
12655. Q. it is in the form of a pistol? A. Yes; with a fuse inserted in the Cal). 
12656. (7. Do you not think that it is a satisfactory method of firing a shot? A. Yes I like the way 
myself. 
12657. (7. And it is preferable to time wire P A. I think it would be much the same, because the fuse still 
throws out sparks just the same. 
12658. (7. It mioes not spark under that appliance ; it is enclosed ? A. The fuse which you see sparks. 
12659. (7. It throws off fumes, but not sparks? A. The fuse gives off sparks. The fuse 1 had is half-an-
inch out of the hole when you pull tire tweezers together to get a light ; then the fuse gives off sparks. 
12660. (7. Where do the sparks come from -is not the fuse entii-el-y enclosed in a cars?  A. Yes. 
12661. (7. Is not that better than the red-hot wire? A. It is better; but the wire is a pretty good method. 
I was not sure at the time ; but I fancy sparks came out of it. 
12662. Q. Can you tell me the position of the 4th Right on the day of the explosion, or thereabouts 
was it wet P A. Yes; there was water there. 
12603. Q. Was it sloppy? A. Yes. 
12634. (7. If anybody says that it was dry and dusty A. That is at the mouth of the 4th Right; 
but there is a little goaf in from the main road, and there was water there. 
12665. (7. Were you in there befom-e the explosion? A. No. 
12666. (7. After the explosion P A. I examined it afterwards with Mr. Ritchie and a party. 
12667. (7. Did you notice some props in there? A. I do not remember identifying them at the time. 
There was a little black-damp there; and it was only a question of going up to the goaf fast and retreating. 
It was only by doing that that you could get there at all. 
12663. Q. You cannot remember anything as to the direction of force in there? A. No. 

- Examined by Mr. Ritchie :- 

12660. Q. Do you remember making an examination of the 4th Right Section when you made your 
chock inspection ? A. Yes, I remember that distinctly ; there were two places working there. 
12670. (7. Did you make any observations for gas? A. Yes. 
12671. Q. Did you find any? A. No. 
12672. Q. Did you test for gas at the bottom of the working? A. No, we did not. There was too 
much . I cannot remember distinctly whether we did or not. 
12673. (7. I suppose that is the most likely place to find carbonic acid? A. Yes. 
12674. AIr. Bruce Suit/i.] Q. 'Lou were going to say just now that there was too much --P A. I do not 
know now what I was going to say. It has gone past. That is because you are asking me questions too 
closely. 
12675. AIr. Ritchie.] (). Did you tell us that, because you were not an official your chances of passing 
the examination were not as good as if you had been an official? A. That is what I thought. That i 
why I aspired to the post. 
12676. Q. Do you think that now;-do you think that on account of your being a deputy you have been 
successful P A. No ; I thought it would help inc to gain more practical knowledge of the working of the 
mine. 
12677. Q. Did you think that a miner has not the same chance of passing successfully as an official? A. I 
thought so ; I thought that he would not have the same chance of inspecting the mine, and that an 
official would be able to gain more knowledge. 
12678(7. Which do you mean-that the influence of your being an official is sufficient to get the Examining 
Board to help you, or that you have an opportunity, by being an official, to better prepare yourself? 
A. I rather mean that an official would, have greater opportunities of seeing practical work; although I 
would not say that it would not influence the examiners to know that you have been an official in a mine. 
I think it would influence the examiners a little ; but I am not certain. 
12679. (). You think that the fact of your being an official would help in influencing the Board? A. Yes; 
if you were an official for any length of time. 
12680. Q. in view of time fact that you say the examination of the waste workings takes five days, do you 
think that the inspection you made on three days-the 29th, 30th, and 31st-was at all an effective one? 
A. Yes, it was to a certain extent. 
12681. Q. To a certain extent? A. Yes. 
12682. Q. How long would it take you to examine the working places in Mount Kembla? A. I cannot 
tell you exactly. 
12683. If one man had to do the whole of them, would it take two days? A. Yes, it would-i believe it 
would, unless he ran. 
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12684. Q. You know that every morning the whole of the working places have to be examined by some-
one? A. Yes. 
126S.3. Q. And, a report has to be written, certifying that the working places are in a fit state for the men 
to go into -how many men are doing it now ? A. Two. 
12689. Q. You think it would take eight or nine days to examine the colliery thoroughly-  ? A. To examine 
minutely, and to go over every goaf and test it properly, it would take a man more than a week ; and it 
takes you longer when you are working alone. 
12687. Q. On the check inspection you only took about one-third? A. Yes. 
12688. Q. if you did the work minutely, there would be two-thirds not inspected? A. Yes. 
12689. Q. That is to say, one-third not examined at all, and the other two-thirds examined in a slipshod 
manner? A. That is two-thirds of the working places. We never thought of the old workings; we did 
not do the old workings, further than visit any goaf which we passed. The old workings would have taken 
us a day to do. 
12600. Q. Nov', which is it most necessary to examine-waste workings or a working face where there 
are currents of air constantly travelling ? A. It depends on what you have in the mine. 
12691. Q. If you are sent as a Check-Inspector to report, which part do you regard as particularly 
necessary for you to examine-the working faces, or the waste workings? A. The one has as much right 
to be examined as the other. 
12692. Q. Which part is danger likely to lurk in more than the other-the place where the v(ntilation is 
constantly travelling, or the place where there is no work at all going on ? A. We have other things to 
look to besides looking for gas in a mine, such as the condition of the roof and the sides. 
12693. Q. What other dangers are there? ii. We have to consider the general condition of the mine. 
12691. Q. We may take it that gas is a most dangerous factor in a mine, and as Check-Inspector you 
are going to look for it. Now, which is the most likely place to find it ? A. The highest places in the 
mine. 
12095. Q. Would you not think that the old working places would be a more likely spot in which to find 
gas rather than the working faces? A. Not at Mount Keinbla. 
12693. Q. You think you are just as likely to have gas lurking about the working faces? A. Of course, 
you might find gas in the old workings; but, if the current was not constantly travelling, you would find 
gas in the newly-wrought coal. 
1207. Q. 1 see that in your report of your check inspection you say, We, the undersigned, have 
examined the air-courses and the workings, &c." What do you mean by that? A. Let me see the report. 
I do not think the word, &c.° ought to be there. I think there must be some mistake with regard to 
the way that word is put there. We, the undersigned, have examined the air-course and workings, &c' 
I take it that by the word. &c" I meant the other words in the Act of Parliament. 
121398. Q. Did irnu or Josland write that report? A. I wrote the report. 
12699. Mi Richie.] (7. Did you give any report to the miners P A. I gave the workmen a verbal report. 
12703. Q. Did you mean your report to read that you had examined all the workings? A. No, I did not 
mean that, and it would not include the machinery, and so on. I meant that word '&c" to stand for the 
other words mentioned in that part of the Act. 
12701. Q. Did you examine all the air-courses ? A. All the air-courses. 
12702. Q. Every one of them ? A. All the main air-courses we did, bat there are so many of them. 
12703. Q. You only examined part of them? A. We were more particular in that than in anything else. 
12701. Q. Really, after all, your check-inspection on that date was not an inspection of the whole of the 
air-courses and workings? A. No, we missed some of them. 
12705. Q. Taking your evidence as a guide, there would be about one-third of the work which you did not 
do P A. Yes, counting the old workings in. 
12706. Q. The old workings were not examined ? A. No, with the exception of a few goafs which we 
looked at as we passed. To go to all places like the daylight heading would have taken up a day. 
12707. Q. Can you remember what goafs you did examine? A. T can remember a bit of the shaft district 
which I was well acquainted with. 
12708. Q. In view of what has happened, do you not think that a check inspection should be made more 
complete ? A. We had nothing to go by. We were sent to examine the mine, and we knew that three 
days had been taken in examinations before. You took three days yourself. I saw that we could not go 
right through it and make a minute examination in three days, and so we went where we thought that we 
would be most likely to find danger. 
12709. Q. What had you to guide you in making choice of places? A. We went into all the rising places. 
12710. A. how did you know the rise from the dip? A. We would know when we were working up hill. 
Besides, I knew the 5th Right. 
12711. Q. Do you not know that you may be walking to the dip and before you get there you may get to 
a rise? A. I know the main district too well to do that. I knew that when we got to the 5th Right 
and the 4th Left we got on to the rise. I knew which way the seam was going. 
12712. Q. how could you tell that all the working places were safe without making an examination of 
them P A. I knew that the most likely places to be unsafe would be on the rise. There were places 
when we came to the rise where the deputy would go on with his light. We did not bother so much with 
the places in the dip. 
12713. Q. Did you go through the whole of the travelling roads? A. Yes, we went through the whole of 
the travelling roads. 

Re-examined by Mr. Barry :- 

12714. (7. Who appointed you to the post of Check Inspector? A. The miners. 
12715. (7. You represented the miners there? A. Yes. 
12716. (7. You were there in their interests ? A. Yes, in their interests. 
12717. Q. I think you said this in your evidence to-Oar, ' Leitch, the underground-manager, said, 'I do 
not want to influence you you look for yourself. All I can say is I have not seen gas for twelve 
months' " P 1. I-Ic said words to that egeet. He had not seen gas for twelve months. 
12718. (7. You had liberty to go where you liked, and do what you liked, in the mine ? A. Yes. 
12719. (7. I think you said that the usual time which it took to do this check inspection was three days? 
A. Yes, that is all we went by. 
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12720. Q. I-low did you knew it had taken three days previously? A. 'The minrs told us. Some said 
two days. I said, We will only be three days ; they will not pay us for any more." 
12721. Q. You knew Mr. Ritchie to he a careful, cautious man? A. Yes. 
12722. Q. And he had previously been to the mine, and taken three days to do the work? A. Yes. 

Re-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 

12723. Q. You inspected the end of No, 1 Right heading? A. I think we we-nt to the face there. 
12721. (7. You inspect it now? A. Yes, I was there yesterday. 
1272. (7. Do you go right up to the face? A. I do, once a week. It is an old working. The under- 
ground.manager also goes, I think. 
12720. You only go once a week ? A. Yes. 
12727. Q. Which of the shifts do you do? A. I start at 7 in the morning and go right round the moe. 
12728. Q. Is this the opinion you have formed-if men are not working in a place, it does not require to 
be examined so often. You have a certificate now as an under-manager. I should like to know what your 
opinion is P Do you think that because men are not working there a place does not require to be 
esarnined P A. it is according to where the place is situated. 
12729. Q. This is one of the highest places in the miue P A. Yes. 
12730. Q. And, therefore, liable to gis? A. Yes but there are no men beyond that and the return. It 
is an old working. 
12731. Q. And, as no men are working there now, you only go once a week, and you think that i enough? 
A. It is enough for inc to go. 
12732. Q. Have you ascertained whether the other officials go there? A. They must go, because within 
the last few days men have commenced to work near there. 
12733. Q. Do you know that this place was left by Mr. Morrison unexamined for many months? A. I 
do not know that. 
12734. Q. As far as you are concerned, you inspect a place once a week? A. Yes, once a week. 
1273. Air. Robertson.] Q. Are any men working on the return side of this No. 1 main heading? A. 1 
do not think there are any men working now. 
12730. Q. So you consider it to be an old working? A. They did not tell me what to do; I took it to 
be an old working; and I go weekly ; but I see the marks of the under-manager, 1\ir. Morrison, and 
others when I go there. 
12737. Q. The danger is less from an old working, when it is the last place on the section, than when it 
is in the centre of the working places ? A. Yes. 
12788. Q. At the time of the explosion, however, that was not so. It was then the first place in a 
split ; and the air would go on to a number of working places P A. Yes. 
12730. Q. There are no working places on the return side now? A. No. 
12710. Q. Then the conditions are reversed, at the present moment P A. Yes. 

[The Commission at 330 p.m. adjourned until 10 o'clock the following morning.] 

WEDNESDAY, 4 REBRUARY, 1003. 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlingl,urst.] 

C. E. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.-J. (PnEsImNT). 
D. A. W. ROBERTSON, Es., ComluIssIoNan. I D. RITCHIE, Es?., ConniecioN ru. 

1\'ir. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Ci'own. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of- 
the representatives of deceased minors, wheelers, &rc., (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (niinors, wheelers, o.) ; and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. G. J. Barry, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Ccal and Oil Company (Proprietors 
of the Mount Kernhla 1\iine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to thke shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceectings.) 

12741. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I would like to say, before I\r. Atkinson goes into the box, that, in view of 
the fact that this is the largest and most serious accident which has occurred since he has been the Chief 
Inspector of Coal-mines, he proposes to make a full statement with regard to the cause, and with regard 
to the coal-dust theory, and what he thinks should be done to prevent such an accident in future and 
Mr. Atkinson thinks, and I think myself, that it may be of much use to the large number of people who 
are interested and take part in the mining industry, if they have the matte-i' fully set out by him, with a 
full knowledge of its nature, and with all the latest information that has been gathered together from 
time to time on the snhject. 
1274-2. His honor.] The Commission will appreciate that. If it happens that Mr. Atkinson has worked 
up shortly the history of this particular mine, that also might form part of his evidence, and be a useful 
part. Otherwise we shall have to get the history from some other source. 
12743. Mr. Bruce Smith.] He has not prepared that, your Honor; but I understand he has the knowledge 
at his disposal, and lie will do so. 

- 1274311. 
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12743k. I want to utilise his evidence, that he gave immediately after the disaster, and take that as part 
of his evidence, without repeating it in any woe, except so far as be identifies the particular indications of 
force upon a map or plan which has been prepared for the purpose (p. 59 of Inquest). 
12741. lIla H'inor] Very well. 

Mit. A. A. ATKINSON was sworn and examined, as under 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

12743. Q. What is voer name in full P A. Alfred Ashley Atkinson. 
12716. (7. Yen are the Chief Inspector of Coal-mines for the State of New South Wales? A. Yes. 
12747. (7. Ant you have occupied that position, I think, for five years? A. Since September, 1897. 
12748. (7. And, previous to your coining to this State and occupying that position, what was your poition 
at Home P A. I was Manager of the Barrow CoIieries in South Yorkshire. 
127 10. Q. 1 think you were appointed in England to come out here and take this position P A. Yes. 
12731. Q. how many years' experience had you had in coal-mining before you accepted that position P 
A. About twenty_two and a half years. 
12751. (7. So we may add that on ;-you have had twenty-eight years' experience altogether? A. Yes. 
12752. (7. And during the whole of that time, I think, you were engaged in one position or another in 
English cohlieris ;-Fnglish or Welsh collieries? A. After serving my apprenticeship I went to India, 
and was there three years as \lanager at some collieries. The rest of the time I was occupying some 
oflicial position in English collieries. 
12753. Q. Well, now, you have told us practically here, through your evidence given at the inquest at 
Woollongong, what took place immediately after you first heard that this disaster had occurred, and 
during your several visits to the mine P A. Yes. 
12754. (7. You have told us what you saw, and what you did, and what you took notes of? A. Yes. 
1273.5. Q. I think tha, since that, you have had one of these lithographed plans marked with the greater 
number of the indications which you noticed during thiat  visit P A. Yes, that is so. 
12759. Q. And you have had a plan and section prepared of portion of No. 1 Right main bed P A. Yes; 
prepared by two of the omcers in the Mines Department. 
12737. Q. Under your supervision P A. Yes. 
12738. (7. And that illustrates the indications in No. 1 Eight? A. From about the 3rd L€-ft to a 1;omnt 
beyond the sth Right. 
12759. Q. Now-, just following the notes you hive made, can you tell me what else the plan and section 
show P A. The indications of force en the portion of road to which they refer. 
12760. Q. Do they simow the positions of the bodies P A. The positions of some of the bodies. 
12761. Q.And you propose to use that plan and section during your examination? A. Yes. 
12762. AIr. Bruce Smith.1 Subject, your Honor, to being sworn to by-and-bye, by the two gentlemen 
who made it. 
12763. His Honor.] Yes. 
12764. AIr. Bruce 'mifh.] Because they were at work Upon it during the whole of the inquest, noting 
clown the exact positions of the bodies as testified to by the different witnesses who gave their evidence 
during the inquiry. 
12763. Q. Now, you have visited the mine since the first series of visits? A. Since the inquest I have 
visited it, once in November, and twice in December. 
12769. Q. Did you examine anything further than what you have already stated in the inquest? A. I 
think there was very little further to note, beyond what 1 had previously noted, in regard to force. 
12767. Q. Is there any difference in the mine as regards moisture? A. Yes ; a considerable difference. 
In the first place, owing to a good deal of wet weather since the explosion, the atmosphere, being much 
moister, had altered the condition of the mine ; and, in addition, a system of watering had been adopted 
on some of the haulage roads, which made a difference in that respect also. One noticeable feature was 
the fungus which was to be seen on the No 1 travelling road, a sure indication of moisture. 
12768. Q. That was ihxt constant appearance of a white frothy substrnce? A. Yes ; a fungus growth on 
some of the timber. 
12769. (7. Was any of that there immediately after the disaster? Q. No ; I did not observe it. 
12770. (7. That, in your opinion, is the result of the increased moisture, resulting from the causes you 
have named? A. Yes; there had been, previous to the disaster, a long period of drought; of course, I 
think that assisted the dry character of the mine generally. 
12771. His Honor.] Q. if there had been that growth at the time of the explosion the sulphur products 
in the air, assuming there was an explosion, would have practically destroyed it? A. Probably they 
would, on the roads over which the explosion passed ; doubtless they would. 
12772. AL. Bruce Suit/i.] Q. But did you find that fungus growth in other parts of the mine into which 
you went-other parts than those in which the explosion had directly operated? A. I saw a little of it 
in some of the returns. 
12773. Q. Now, was there any noticeable difference in the quantity of dust in the haulage roads in 
November and December as compared with your first visits? A. Yes; where the water had been put on 
there certainly was less dust. 
12774. Q. Well, now, taking the evidence which you gave at the inquest as part of your evidence assumed 
to be given now, 1 want to ask you about the deductions that you have made from all the evidence that 
has come to your mind. First, as to the causes which led to this disaster ; now, you may just look at 
your notes as much as possible, because you have concentrated there, I think, the statements you wish to 
make? A. Yes, 1 have. 
12775. Q. Use that as much as you like. Now, first, as to the causes? A. Well, briefly, there are the 
fo] lowing causes---[interrup ted]. 
12776. (7. Will you state to me, first of all, the various causes that are known to lead to explosions in 
mines? A. Several recognised means of ignition, leading to explosions in coal mines, are, shortly, as 
follows :-First, naked lights carried by persons; second, naked lights in the form of gob-fires produced 
-, ruontaneous combustion, or other fire underground; third, defective or improperly-opened safety-

lamps; foua'tia, blasting shots, either from the flame of the shot or from the flame of the fuse; fifth, 
escaped 
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escaped electrical currents which have been carried underground for power purposes; sixth, it has also 
been stated that falls of roof have caused explosions in the entire absence of naked lights or persons under 
ground but it is difficult to obtain any reliabe instances of this. 
12777. Q. Now, how far back is it ;-sav, as far back as 1SS3, what was the condition of knowledge then 
in regard to explosions and their causes? A. Well, the oiilv inflammable agent which had been seriously 
considered, or which had been accepted by the intority of Ininu people, was fire-damp 
12773. Q. had coal-dust been referred to before that as it possible cause of explosion P A. X  few refer-
ences had been macic in reports from time to time in regard to the part which coal-dust had played. 
12779. Q. But it was not P A. It was not seriously consi lered by many as a factor in explosions. 
12783. Q. Now, you deal with th:it aspect more when you come to deal with the coal-dust theory P A. A. 
little later on. 
12781. 2. Now, in those fis'e or six causes of exp]osioa which you have enumerated, which of them is 
answerable for the greater number of disasters? A. " Naked lights carried by persons," in my opinion 
and, I think, also in the opini ns of most mining experts. 
12782. Q. Are there any of the other causes which these explosions are attributed to frequently-I mean 
next to that one? A. \\Tchi ,  many explosions, causing large numbers of deaths, single explosions, have 
been caused by blasting. 
12783. Q.Now, with the view of narrowing this series down, so that we may come to your opinion as to 
the cause of this Particular explosion, will you name any of these numbers that may be left out of 
consideration? A. The second, third, and filth may be omitted. 
12781. Q. In your opinion, those three may be put on one side P A. Yes. 
12785. Q. And you say that, with all your knowledge of what took place, and what you have seen, and 
what indications have been presented to you by your visits to the mine? A. Yes, that is so. 
12786. Q. In your opinion, has ammy evidence been forthcoming, either at the inquest or at this inquiry, to 
lead you to think that this explosion could be brought under number six P A. No ; there has not. 
12787. Q. Now you have named (number two) Naked lights in the form of gob-fires, produced by 
spontaneous combustion or other fire underground.." In your opinion, had the furnace anything to do 
with this explosion ? A. Well, as the explosion did not originate in the district in which the furnace is 
placed, and as the furnace was not in any way dam:iged, I do not think that the furnace had anything at 
all to do with the explosion. 
12788. Q. That can be dismissed? A. It may be disregarded. 
12789. Q. Thrt reduces the causes to to o-naked lights and blasting shots P A. Yes. 
12790. Q. Now, speaking generally, first of all, which of those do you consider that this explosion is 
mainly attributable to? A. Well, as naked lights were universally used in the mine on the day of the 
accident., I think that they were an element in the disaster. 
12791. Q. And with regard to blasting sh w ots-hich is one of the two possible causes left-what opinion 
have you formed? A. Well, as the result of inspection of all the haulage roads and working places, and 
the knowledge that no blasting shot appeared to have been fired on the haulage roads on the day of the 
accident, I am of opinion that blasting was not the cause. 
12792. Q. Has any evidence been brought under your notice of shots having hen fired in the face 
workings? A. Oh, yes, shots were regularly fired. 
12793. Q. I mean on that day P A. Regularly fired. 
12791. Q. I mean at that time? A. Oh, doubtless there would be; in fact, I have seen many of the 
remains of the shot-holes, and a blown-out shot, and a shot ready to fire. 
22795. Q. Now, will you tell the Court your reason for attributing this explosion rather to naked lights 
than to shot-firing P A. Well, there was no evidence of force from any particular place where the shots 
were fired which would lead me to think that the explosion had originated at any of the shots. 
12790. Q. Then, you are brought at last in your reasoning to the conclusion that naked lights were the 
originating cause of this explosion P A. The cause of ignition. 
12707. Q. Now, with regard to the locality in which it originated. You made seine statement at the 
inquest, did you not P A. Yes ; I stated that I was in doubt as between two points. 
12793. Q. Which were they? A. One was near the face of the back heading in No. 1, and on the inbye 
side of Morris' place. 
12799. Q. That was one? A. Yes. 
12800. Q. Which was the other? A. The other was a fall of roof at the 4th Right goaf edge, forcing out 
an inuiaminable mixture of fire-damp and air, possibly also raising coal-dust on No. 1 level, and becoming 
ignited at the nearest naked light, probably that carried by II. Morrison, near to the 4th Left junction. 
12801. Q. Now, they are the two places between which you hesitated to fix the exact spot? (No ansiver.) 
12802. Q. had you the plan and section, which you are going to produce to this Court, before you at that 
time? A. No; it was being prepared. 
12803. Q. Well, I think that was prepared by Messrs. Camnbae and Martin P A. Yes ; Mr. Cambage is 
the Chief Mining Surveyor now, and Mr. Martin is one of his officers. 
12801. Q. And you supervised its preparation, and saw it from time to time as it progressed? A. Yes. 
12805. Q. Now, after those two plans had been coulpleted, did they assist you in getting any nearer to 
the originating locality P A. They did. They threw considerable light on the evidences of force on this 
ength of road (No. 1 main level, between the 3rd Left and a point beyond 5th Right rope-road), which 
before had appeared to me inexplicable. 
12806. Q. Now, having the advantage of those plans, will you tell the Court in what direction the greatest 
force appeared to have been exerted P A. In an inbye direction. 
12807. Q. lnbye of what; inbye generally P A. inbye generally over the length of road to which the 
plan refers. 
12808. Q. And, Laying seen and studied those plans, what conclusion have you since come to? A. Well, 
I am forced to the conclusion that the originating cause - [iarrupfed]. 
12809. Q. The Position? A. Of the disaster is rather to be found in the second than in the first. 
12810. 9. Which is that? A. That is the 4th Right. 
1281.1. 9. That is the fall of roof at the 4th Right goaf edge P Yes. 
12812. 9. Forcing out, as you have said, an inflammable mixture of fire-damp and air ; possibly also 
raising coal-dust on No. 1 level, and becoming ignited at the nearest naked light, probably that carried 
by Morrison near to the 4th Left junction? A. Yes. 12813. 
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12813. Q. Did any difficulty present itself in regard to the conclusion at which you have now arrived? 
A. Yes. \Vith reference to the force which had been exerted on two of the stoppings between the No. 1 
main level and the back heading, on the inbe side of the 5th Right rope road. 
1281 I. Ate. Robertson.] Mr. Bruce Smith, do you mean a difficulty in accepting the second theory ? 
1281.5. 21[r. Bruce SmiIhl Yes, lie means that it was not absolutely clear; there were difficulties which 
presented themselves in regard to that. Shall I get him to repeat that P 
12810. lIfe. Robertson..] Yes. 
12817. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Just repeat that,plcase? A. A difficulty presented itself to me to account 
for the force which had been exerted on two of the stoppings between the No. 1 main level and the back 
heading. on the inbve side of the 5th Right rope road. 
12818. Q. In what direction? A. They were forced on to the No. 1 main level from the back heading. 
1, 819. Q. And was that direction contradictory of other forces in the same district? A. It was. 
12820. Q. In the same vicinity? A. Yes. 
12821. Q. How do you account now for that apparent contradiction. how do you reconcile those 
apparent contradictions? A. Well, assuming that ignition took place near to the 4th Left road end, or 
junction, the explosion would radiate from that point in all directions. Going inbve from the 4th Left, 
the two stoppings referred to are respectively distant about 1CO and 150 yards. 
12822. His Honor.] Q. From the starting-point? A. From the starting-point. 
12823. AIr. Robertson.] Q. From the 4th Left? A. From near the 4th Left. 
12S23l. Q. Do you mean the stoppings inbve of the 5th Right? A. Yes. 
12824. Q. That is more than lOd yards ? A. 100 and 150 yards respectively. I measured it on the plan. 
12825. His honor.] Q. The northernmost one 150 yards, and the other about 100? A. Yes. 
12820. Mr. Robertson.] Q. I think you will find it more than that? A. 1 think that is about rght, 
Mr. Robertson [referrinq to plan again]. 
12827. .11fi' Bruce Smith.] Q. You might just now continue that answer and complete it? A. Going 
inbve from the 4th Left, these stoppings are respectively distant about 100 and 1.50 yards ; and the force 
exerted on them in the first place, in passing them towards the face, was evidently insufficient to force 
them into the back heading; but the pioneering cloud of coal-dust which would precede the flame of the 
explosion, which was carried along probably by means of coal-dust, assisted by a small percentage of fire- 
damp in the face, would cause an increase in the force of the explosion; and this, passing dow-n the back 
heading, was then sufficient to account for (first) the stoppings mentioned being blown on to the main 
level ; and (second) the building stones at either side of the door in the back heading, on the inbye side 
of the 5th Right rope road, being blown in the direction of the 5th Right. 
12828. His Honor.] Q. And that, you think, would be the very first destructive action in that direction ? 
A. I think so. 
12829. Q. Of course, the whole thing would be nearly instantaneous; but you say you can account for 
that as the very first destructive action in that direction? A. In that particular part. 
12830. lIfe. Robertson.] Q. May I just interrupt one moment. Would not that door in the 5th rope road 
be blown to the east, in the Iirsf instance, by the force coming along the main tunnel? A. Yes; but I 
think we are not on the same door. The door that I refer to now is the door in the back heading. 
12831. Air. Robertson.] Yes; but I think you referred to two doors. 
12832. His Honor.] Q. You have only referred to one door, so far? A. I think I have only referred to 
one door. As a matter of fact, the building stones at the side of the door to which you refer were blown 
to the east. I have not mentioned it yet. 
12833. Mr. Robertson.] Q. You have only referred to the door in the back heading? A. I had only 
referred to the door in the back heading. 
12834. Mv. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, the action of these forces on these two stoppings, and on the door 
which you have mentioned, were, I think, a difficulty, were they riot? A. Yes, they were. 
12835. His Honor.] Q. This would be instantaneously preceding what you are going to tell us now 
followed, I understand, this action? A. I do not know exactly what your honor means. 
12830. Q. What you have told us now, according to your theory, is the first instantaneous action preceding 
the great explosion which followed instantaneously on it, I understand? A. I could not separate what 
took place, your 1-lonor. I think it was all one great explosion. 
12837. Q. Not by any appreciable lapse of time? A. Not by any appreciable lapse of time. I think it 
was altogether concurrent, and really one large explosion. 
12838. Q. Still, there is such a thing as an almost inappreciable duration of an explosion, and almost 
inappreciable sequences of action? A. No doubt that is so. 
12839. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I understand, Mr. Atkinson, that, although you recognise that what you 
call ore great explosion may have been the action of a series of forces, you cannot separate them? 
A. Quite so ; separated by such small intervals of time and place that it is impossible to [ Interrupted]. 
12840. Q. So that, if you w-antedl to, you could not plot them separately? A. No. 
12841. Q. Well, that is your explanation of the difficulties which presented themselves to you? A. That 
is the only explanation that I can offer ; and I think it is a reasonable one. 
12842. Q. Well, is there anything further you would like to say with regard to that expanation of the 
difficulty? A. Well, I might say that tbur days after the explosion a considerable quantity of fire-damp 
was found in the face of these headings, No. 1 main level. 
12843. Q. The measurements indicating the quantity were given at the Inquest? A. Yes, 
12811. Q. Do you mention, in any part of your evidence further on, what that quantity was? A. In 
answer to Mr. Lysaght, I think it was. 
1234.5. Q. You have the cubic measurements, but you did not say what its extent was? A. The gas was 
found at a point 4 or 5 yards on the outbye side of the last cut-through next the face. That would give 
a distance of about 20 yards from the face. 
12$ 10. Q. Speaking generally, what would be about the cubic measurement of the gas which you found 
in that part of the mine? A. Well, assuming that the gas was also in the back part place, and in the 
cut.through between them [interrupted]. 
12847. Q. Which is probable, I take it? A. I think that there would be some thousands of feet of an 
inflammable mixture. 
12819. Q. And that assumption which you have mentioned is probable? A. I think so. 
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12819. Q. Because the cut-through was beyond the point at which you discovered the gas? A. That is 
so, yes. 
12850. AIr. 1?obcrtsonj Q. What do you mean by "inflammable mixture" ;-what percentage, roughly P 
A. Well, where we tested the gas, which was at the edge of this quantity, it would explode in the 
safety-lamp. 
12851. Q. In the ordinary safety-lamp ? A. In the ordinary safety-lamp. Of course, beyond that, it is 
possible that it might not be explosive, if the mixture of fire-damp and air was such as to prevent that 
being so. 
12852. A&. Bruce Sinitlz.1 A. But the natural inference was that the percentage was uniform from the 
point at which you detected it up to the face? A. Well, you would naturally have more :Jr towards the 
outer end, and less fire-damp, and more fire-damp towards the face ; which would have some effect in 
altering the explosibility of the mixture at the two points. 
12853. Q. And, as the outer edge of the mass of gas which you found came beyond the cut-through, you 
assumed that it had filled the cut-through and the next heading? A. We assumed that, yes. 
1285 L Q. That is a reasonable assumption, too P 1. Yes, I think so. 
12855. Q.  Well, what bearinghas the presence of that gas upon your theory as to the cause? A. I think 
that it would assist the explosion, and account for the stoppings being blown on to the No. 1 1\I'in Level. 
12850. Q. What would assist the explosion? A. The explosion of fire-damp. 
12857. Q.  The explosion of fire-damp at that point? A. At that point. 
12858. Q. You are assuming then, I take it, that there had been an accumulation up to the time of the 
accident? A. I would not say that; but I think that, as gas was given off, as proved four days after the 
explosion, there might be, and probably would be, a small percentage of fire-damp in the air. 
12859. Q. At that point? A. At that point, which would assist [lnterruptel]. 
12800. Q.  At the time of the explosion? A. That is so, yes. 
I 2801. Q. I take it that, finding that quantity four days after the explosion, you inferred that there must 
have been an accumulation at the time of the explosion ; and that that assisted the explosion in forcing 
down the No. 1 heading? A. Well, I think it is strong presumptive evidence that there would be a 
certain percentage of gas in the air. 
12802. Q. I think the Court know-, but I may repeat it here, that that is the highest pai't of the mine? 
A. One of the highest parts. 
12803, Q. And there is a considerable rise to it? A. A rise of 30 or 35 feet, I think, from the 5th Right. 
128133 '. Q. It was, then, a very favourable place for the accumulation of gas? A. It was. 
12864. Q. Now, have you anything to say in further support of your opinion that the fail in the 35-acre 
goaf was the initial cause of the explosion? A. Well, if the explosion originated, is I have suggested, 
near the 4th Left, which is a main intake airway, and therefore, tinder normal conditions, not likely to 
contain an inflammable mixture of air and fire-damp, it is necessary to look elsewhere for such 
inflammable mixture ; and, in further support of my opinion that the fall in the 35-acre goaf was the 
originating force of the explosion, the following facts are important - [Tnferrupt/]. 
128135. Q. Will you name those facts? A. The 4th Right pillars at the edge of the 35-acre goaf had 
been stopped eight or nine days prior to the explosion. 
12805k. Q.  That I think you g it from Morrison's evidence? A. That is referred to in Morrison's 
evidence at page 39, line 25 [Depositions at Inquest]. 
128130. Q. Yes, assuming that to be true? A. And, by the condition of the stones at the goaf edge, as 
seen by me several times after the date of the explosion, which were clean and not blackened by eo:il-dtist, 
it was evident that time fall bad not altogether finished prior to the explosion, or at the time of the 
explosion ; otherwise they would have been blackened by coal-dust blown about by the explosion. 
12807. Q. Well, in connection with that opinion, I think you wanted to quote to the Court a passage from 
a book by a brother of yours, I think, on " Explosions in Coal Mines''? A. Yes. 
12808. (9. On page 23? A. Page 23. 
12860. Q. You have not the book here, but you have the extract? A. Yes. 
12870. his honor] Q. What is the title of the book? A. "Explosions in Coal Mines." 
12871. AL' Ritchie.] Q. By whom? A. By W. N. and J. B. Atkinson. 
I 2S72. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, will you just read the extract which you wish to mention ; or I will 
take it off your shoulders 1 will read it :- 

With regard to falls of stone, an important point is noticed. Where timber is blown out, and some stone falls at 
once, and (luring the explosion, and other stone falls some time after, and may continue falling for days, the stone falling 
at the time of explosion can be known by the fact of its being blackened with dust then filling time xir. The place from 
which the stone fell can also be known, by this blackening. Stone falling after the dust has subsided is, in the newly-
exposed surfaces, clean as also is the place from which it fell. Thus, in a pit after an explosion, we find stone with three 
characteristics as regards dust (I) stone exposed before the explosion, and usually blackened with the remains of an olil 
curtain of dust; () stone exposed during the explosion, and co ited thinly with a fresh coating of dust ; (3) stone 
exposed after the explosion, and clean as regards dust. 

Now, does the classification there, of the different degrees of cleanliness, help you in explaining this 
explosion? A. Yes; the stone which I saw at the edge of the 4l1 Right goaf was clean, and may 
therefore be classed under the last heading which is mentioned in the quotation. 
12873. Q. And what conclusion does that lead you to P A. Well, it shows that the fall had evidently not 
finished when the explosion took place. 
12974. (9. Even with the explosion itself? A. Even with the explosion itself. 
12875. (9. Is there any evidence which Morrison gave which bears upon that conclusion? A. He mentions 
that a fall was anticipated a week before the explosion. 
12876. Q. Well, what would you say with that knowledge-I think there is some deduction you make 
from these signs P A. Of course it is quite possible, from these signs, that the fall had not even begun 
until after the explosion ; in which case, of course, it would have no connection with it, e:ieept possibly 
as a result of the explosion. 
12877. Q. Supposing that to be the case, what would you consider to be the noise which some of the 
witnesses mention having heard at the time they felt the ar coming upon them, supposing the fall had 
not taken place until after the explosion? A. Well, I should say that it would be the noise caused by 
the explosion itself : I do not think it is possible that this fall which took place could have been heard 
by witnesses in the positions in which they were at the time. 

Th' 



	

392 
Witness-A. A. Atkinson, 4 February, 1903. 

12878. Q. You are referring to some of the evidence w'ldeh wa given by men who were a long way from 
the goaf at the time they heard a noise? - 
12979. His Honor.] Q. You do not think it possible F A. I do not think it possible. 
12880. M;'. Bruce ,SiAt/i.1 Q. Now, assuming that this fall was the indirect cause of the explosion, what 
would have occurred? A. Well, it would propel a mixture of air, possibly mixed with fire-damp, through 
the travelling road, and on to the No. I Main Level ; and, at that oint, hatever force it had, it would 
split, as the roadway goes in two directions A portion of it would go inbve towards the 4th feft, and 
at that point was the nearest naled light to the 4th Right ; and it would probably be carried by Morrison, 
the clipper. 
12881. Q. The naked light? A. The naked light. From that pilot, as I have said before, the explosion 
would radiate in all directions ; and it would re-cnt( r the 4th Right, which, in my opinion, will explaiu 
some contradictory forces seen in that vicinit. 
12882. Q. In that case, the fa'l would be the first source of force, and the explosion from the naked light 
would be the second one, producing contradictory results ? A. Yes. 
12883. Q. Now, if the explosion had been initiated in the back heading, from your knowledge of the 
condition of things, what would have been the result P A. Well, the only naked lights there were car icd 
by the two Morrises. 
12884. Mr. Robertson.] Do you refer, Mr. Bruce Smith, to the back heading at the face? 
12884. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes, at the end of No. 1. 
12sSS. Q. That is where you refer to P A. Yes. 
12880. Q. Now, if the explosion had been originated in the back heading, wiut do you say about that? 
A. The only naked lights were carried by the two Tiorrises, whose working place was about 110 yards 
from the face of the back heading : and their bcdies were found at a point about SO ards from the face. 
12887. Q. So that their bodies were found between their working place and the face of the back heading F 
A. That is so, yes. 
12583. Q. Is there mn thing further bcarin on that ? A. Well, tlice was no evidence of a shot havng 
been fired in l\lorris' place immediately before, or at the time of, the explosion. 
12889. Q. What was the first place ventilated P Was not Morris' the first? A. On that current of air 
the first place ventilated was that of the two Morriscs ; and the air, therefore, under normal conditions, 
was not likely to contain all intlammable mixture of fire-damp, in their heading. 
12890. Q. You know that the two main headings had been standing idle for some months? A. That was 
gathered from the evidence given at the inquest by Mr. Rogers. 
12891. Q. I believe that the tram-rails were not laid down, were they P A. No ; bat inspections afterwards 
showed that the tram-rails had been taken out. 
12892. Q. Could you account for Morris and son going up there F A. Well, it is difficult to account for 
their going there prior to the explosion. I cannot see any sufficient reason to take them up into that 
p' ace. 
12893. Q. And what eunelnsion do you draw from their bodies being found out of their own heading, and 
up towards this unused and unexamined place? A. Well, I think it is more likely that after the explosion 
they were flying away from it ; and, although that was in a direction opposite to the exit from the mine, 
you cannot always understand the actions of men under those conditions. Doubtless they would be in a 
confused state of mind. - 
12691. Q. Is that important in causing you to lean to the cause of the explosion being also down No. 1, 
rather than up in the end? What is the significance of their position? A. Well, I think that they were 
getting away from the explosion after it had, occurred; and I cannot offer any sufficient reason to take 
them up there before it had occurred ; and we have seen other instances where men have evidently been 
travelling towards the face in order to get away from the after-damp-in other parts of the pit we have 
evidence of that-I think that they were doing the same. 
12895. Q. Does their going up in that direction to get away from the explosion assist you in locating the 
cause of it? A. No, I cannot say that it does. 
12890. Q. Then the only conclusion you can draw from their position is that they were seeking to get away 
from the effects of the explosion P A. That is my opinion. 
12897. Q. But their going there does not pint to the location of the source? A. No. 
12898. A&. Robertson.] Q. It assists you, though, to narrow it down to one theory P A. Well, I rely more 
on the indications of force. 
12899. Q. But does it not assist you in discard ing the first theory, that as to the explosion being in the 
back heading P A. Well, assuming, as I do, that they were retiring from the after-damp, in that respect 
it will assist in reducing it. 
12900. Mr. Bruce Smith.] That is what 1 suggested. 
12901. Q. Quite apart from your statement, I want to put this question to you, which occurs to tue ; if 
the accumulation of gas up in the back heading, where you found it had occurred before the explosion, 
and the explosion had, in consequence, originated there, you certainly would not expect to find the 
Morrises out of their own place, and up towards the back heading? A. Well, there would remain the 
same difficulty in accounting for their having left their working place, and going into a place which had 
been standing for some time, and in which there was nothing that I saw that they could obtain to help 
them in their work in any way. 
12902. Q. Well then, bearing all these facts which you have mentioned in view, you come to the conclusion 
that the explosion was caused--put it in your own way P A. Well, indirectly, by the fall at the 4th Right 
goaf edge. 
12903. Q. By the fall of the roof? A. Yes. 
12901. Q. At the goaf edge in the 4th Right pillars P A. 4th Right pillars? 
12905. Q. Did you also come to the conclusion that the fall was not completed by the explosion? A. That 
is my opinion. 
12900. Q. Now, what information are you able to put before the Court as to the presence of gas in the 
Mount Kembla Mine, apart from the evidence which has been presented to it, and which was presented 
before the Coroner and .Jurv at the inquest P A. An official report of 1892, which was amongst the records 
of the Department, referring to an accident to a man named Gallagher by burning with gas is now in the 
hands of the Commission. 
12907. [The correspondence was produced, and put in as Exhibit No. 10. It is copied in the Appendix.] 
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12911. Mr. Biu:e Smith.] Q. The official report was in 1892 9 A. Yes. 
12912. Q. That is before the Commission now P A. Yes. 
12P13. Q. And, in addition to that, you were going to mention something? A. Mr. Ronaidson, who was 
the Manager of the Mount Kembla Colliery, gave evidence before the Coal Mines Commission which sat in 
connection with the anticipated Coal Mines Regulation Bill in 1895 ; and in his evidence are certain 
particulars with reference to the appearance of gas. 
12914. .Mi. Bruce Smith.] I will just read those:- 

" 5251. 
hose:- 

5251. Q. Do you recollect an accident occurring some time ago at Mount Kembla, where you were 
approaching some work-an explosion? A. Yes. 

5252. 4?. Were you Manager at the time? A. Yes. 
5253. 4?. 1[ow did that occur? A. It arose from a working coming on an old working, which had 

been out of use for several years, in which there was a small accumulation of gas. One man holed 
through, and, instead of going out and reporting the occurrence to the fireman, be went into his 
neighbour's heading, and the two of them proceeded to the face where they had gone through, and 
discussed matters. The gas came through the hole and exploded, burning these two men to some - 
extent. 

5251. Pre.sidemtj Q. Was anyone killed? A. No. 
"5255. Mr. Cur/eq.] Q. Had you a bore in advance at the time? A. No, no bore. 
"5256. 4?. Did you know you were approaching these workings? A. Yes. 
"5257. 4?. Do you think bores should be kept in advance in approaching old workings? A. When 
there is supposed to be any danger, yes. 
"5258. Q. Could you know what danger there would be there? A. We had reasonable grounds to 
suppose there was no danger. 

5259. Q. Was your judgment mistaken in that case? A. Yes, or knowledge. In connection wth 
that particular accident we had taken very special precautions to eliminate any danger, as we 
thought ; and, having done so, we thought the bore was not necessary. 

5200. Q. How do you ventilate time mine P A. By furnace. 
5201. Q. Is your mine fairly well ventilated ? A. Yes, very well. 

"5262. 4?. Have you had any complaints from the men at any time? A. We never have had any 
complaints that I can recollect. 
" 3293. Q. has the Inspector ever complained ? A. No. 

3201. Q. Does the mine give off any fire-damp? A. Very rarely, in cracks. 
3263. 4?. It does give off a little ? A. Yes, from fissures-rarely. 
3200. Q. It either gives it off, or does not give it off ? A. It gives it off rarely. 
5267. Q. In what section of the mine is this? A. All sections." 

12915. Q. That is the evidence in 189.5 ? A. Yes. 
12916. Q. Well, has the Department received any complaint in reference to want of ventilation, or 
the presence of fire-damp, since you arrived in 1897 ? A. No-that is, in reference to the Mount Kembla 
Colliery. 
12917. Q. I mean in regird to the Mount Kembla Colliery. So those records of 1S92, and the admissions 
made by Mr. Bonaldsot', in 1895, are the only official knowledge which you have of the presence of gas 
in Mount Kenib]a? A. Ycs. 
12918, Q. have you any system by which your Inspectors report to you the names of collieries in which 
fire-damp is discovered P A. During the Past  few years, at my request, the Inspectors have communicated 
to me the names offim collieries in which fire-damp has been discovered and reported under General Rule 4; 
and it has been my prod ice to mention those in the Annual Report for the information of the public 
and Mount Kemnbla Colliery has never been included. 
12919. Q. For time reason that, beyond these two instances, you have never had any official knowledge of 
it P A. That is so. 
12920. Q. Or any knowledge at all 9 ji. Yes. 
12921. Q. You remember that Quinn, Silcock, and Broadhead, and, since that time, a number of other 
miners, have given evidence of having foundgas from time to time ? A. Yes, I have. 
12922. Q. Did you ever, until the Inquest, or until this Inquiry, hear of any of those instances P A. No, 
I did not. 
12923. Q. And they had never come to your knowledge in any way until those two inquiries? A. No. 
12921. 9. Now, if these discoveries that have been put before the Coroner's Court, and this Court, had 
been brought to your knowledge, what could have been done; and what probably would have been done P 
A. I think it would have given me an opportunity, and the Inspector of the district, to thoroughly 
investiiate such matters: and the Department would probably hae taken some action, it is possible, to 
effect the introduction of safety_lamps, and so have avoided such a calamity as has happened. 
12925. Q. And you want to state that, if, instead of keeping this knowledge to themselves, the miners 
had brought this directly or indirectly under your nothe, this disaster might have been prevented? A. I 
think so ; but there appears to be a fear on the part of the miners that the officers will divulge their 
names ; but I may say that every care is taken to avoid that. 
12920. Q. By the Department? A. Although on some occasions the particular complaint is of such a 
character that it is almost impossible to investigate it, even without mentioning the man's name, in such 
a way as not to direct the attention of the management to him. 
12927. Q. And if you receive information in regard to the presence oF gas in any mine, although it 
may come to you anonymously, you act upon it 9 A. Yes, in the same way as though it was a signed 
document. 
12028. Q. I may take it generally from you again, that, since your arrival in September, 1897, and pror 
to the explosion, you had neither seen fire-damp in Mount Kembla, nor had its presence been reported to 
you, either by the Inspectors, or the colliery officials, or the workmen P A. That is so. 
12929. 9. Or anonymously? A. Or anonymously. 
12930. 9. Now, I want you to explain to the Court something  with regard to coal-dust explosions. Will you 
just mention to the Court the first reference to coal-dust, as an element of danger in the coal-mining 
industry? This is just a short history of the coal-dust theory P A. Yes. The first. reference which I 
have been able to obtain was by the Rev. J. Ilodgson, in describing the Felling Colliery 1Acrion in. 
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1812: and Mr. John Buddle, an eminent mining engineer of his time, referred to it after the Walisend 
(England) Colliery Explosion in 1833. Then came Lyell and Faraday's report in 1841 on the Haswell 
explosion. 
12931. Q. I think you consider an extract from that report of LyelI and Faraday's would be useful to 
the Commission P Those are Lyell and Faraday, the well-known scientists P A. Yes. They were 
appointed by the Government to shake an investigation and I thought an extract would be of interest 
to the Commission. 
129:32. Mr. Bruce ,S'init/i. 1 will read it :- 

In considering the extent of the fira for the moment of the explosion, it is not to be supposed that fire-damp is its 
only fuel ; thc coal-dust swept by the rush of wind and flame from the floor, roof, and walls of the workings -would 
instantly take fire and burn, if there were oxygen enough in the air prehent to support its combustion ; and we found the 
dust adhering to the face of the pillars, props, and walls, in the (lirectioll of and on the side towards the explosion, 
increasing gradually to a certain extent as we neared the place of ignition. This deposit was in sonic parts half an inch, 
and in others almost an inch, thick. It adhered together in a friable, coked state. When examined with the glass, it 
presented the fused, round form of burnt coal-dust and when examined chemically, and compared with the coal itself 
i-educed to powder, was found deprived of the greater part of the bitumen, and in some cases entirely destitute of it. 
There is every reason to believe that much coal-gas was made from this dust in the very air itself of the mine by the flame 
of the fire-damp, which raised  and swept it along ; and much of the carbon of this (lust remained nnburnt only for want 
of air. 

12033. Q. What was the date of time TIaswell explosion, do you remember? A. 1814. 
12931. Q. I think, just in parenthesis, that Mr. Hamlet, the Government Analyst here, is making some 
investiat ion ? A. Yes ; lie has some samples of coked dust, or coked coal, taken from the face of the 
back heading, and also a sample of the coal from the seam itself in that vicinity. 
12935. Q. And, bearing upon this extract from Lyehl and Faraday, in which they speak of certain coal-dust, 
when examined chemically, being found to be deprived of the greater part of the bitumen, this analysis 
of Mr. Hamlet's may throw some light upon the question, if doubtful at all, whether there was actual 
flame of fire in the mine? A. Yes, no doubt it will. He will be able to say what percentage of the 
volatile parts of the coal have been driven out. 
12936. ,Mr. Robertson.] We have had the reports on the coal-dust. I was wondering if it would be of any 
advantage to Mr. Atkinson if he had it now P 
12037. Ris hono)-.] Mr. Hamlet wants to compare the analysis of the dust with the analysis of the coal 
itself, so that is why a sample of the coal was taken and sent to him. We have received the analysis of 
the dust, but not that of the coal. 
12938. Witness.] With further reference to this matter, I might say that, about the time of the inquest, 
I had samples collected by Mr. Watson, and a report made by Mr. Mingaye, the Analyst to the Mines 
Department-several samples of dust collected on the No. 1 Right; and, if the Commission think that it 
will assist them in any way, Mr. Mingaye is prepared to give evidence. - 
12939. M;•. Robertson.] Q. Those were microscopical tests P A. Yes. 
12940. Q. Not analytical? A. Not analytical. 
12941. Mr. Bruce thnit/m.] Q. That is quite apart from the samples handed to Mr. Hamlet? A. Yes. 
12942. (By direction of the Commission a letter to the Government Analyst, dated 10th December, 1902, 
asking him to test two samples of coal-dust, and his report thereon, was put in and marked Exhibit 
No. 17). 
12944. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, going on with your history of this coal-dust theory, I think in France 
something was done some a-ears ago P A. Reference to the influence of coal-dust on colliery explosions 
was made in two reports, dated 1853 and 1$61, concerning an explosion at Firminy Colliery. 
12915. Q. Where is that P A. I think it is in the north of France. They state that the coal-dust 
aggravated the effects of the inflammation of the gas. 
12946. Q. And I think reference was made later than that by French writers P A. Yes, in 1864 and 
later, in several reports on colliery explosions. 
129161. Q. Now, apart from the three references you have given to the Rem-. Hodgson, Buddle, and Lyeil 
and Faraday, are there any notable references to coal-dust as an element of explosions prior to 1880 P 
A. Well, very littlo had been said up to that time. In that year the Seaham Colliery explosion took place 
and Sir Frederick Abel was deputed by the Government to make tests in order to see what part coal-dust 
had taken. 
12947. Q. Now, I understand that, from 1880, the coal-dust question has occupied a great deal of attention, 
since Sir Frederick Abel dealt with it in that explosion? A. It has-yes. 
12948. Q. You might mention other. sources of information P A. Well, Professor Galloway, and several 
of the Inspectors, have taken a leading part in making known the dangers of coal-dust : Institutes of 
Mining Engineers have experimented very largely: and we have a good (Teal of literature on the subject 
since that time. - 
129-19. Q. have explosions taken place since that time-1880--notwitlistanding P A. They have, 
unfortunately. 
12950. Q. Many? A. Yes. 
129501. Q. Now, can you tell the Court time first occasion in which coal-dust was referred to in any finding? 
A. That was in the verdict of the Usworth explosion. 
12951. Q. Tissvorth Colliery is in the county of Dnrharn P A. Ye:m. The explosion was in 1885. The 
verdict of thejury was to the effect that the explosion was caused by tl:e firing of a shot igniting coal-dust. 
12952. Q. Now, what is the next one that you know of P A. Well, since that time juries on several 
occasions have given simi]ar verdicts pointing to coal-dust, without any gas, as the cause. There was the 
Camerton explosion in 1893, which occurred in a colliery which had been worked for about 100 years, and 
in which fire-damp had never been seen, nor were they able to detect it after the explosion by the most 
careful tests. 
12953. Q. Well, what conclusion did that lead to among experts P A. The cause of that explosion was 
the firing of a shot on a haulage road igniting coal-dust; and it had the effect of greatly strengthening the 
theorists on the coal-dust question. 
12954. Q. To what effect? Q. That they might have explosions of coal-dust entirely without any gas. 
12955. Q. What was the first occasion upon which the Legislature in England dealt- with this question? 
A. The Coal Mines Act of 1887 is the first time at which coal-dust is referred to in any Coal Mines Act. 

- - 12956. 
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12050. Q. And what provision was included in that Act bearing upon the possibility of explosion of coal-
dust? A. General Rule 12 in our Act here is the same as that which was in the 1887 Imperial Act. 
12957. Q. What did that deal with P A. Blasting and coal-dust. 
12058. Q. I think you have tabulated it-the nature and description of the explosives permitted P A. 
That was in the later Bill. 
129.59. Q. Then, in 1890 something further was done? A. In 1800 a short Amending Bill was passed 
which gave the Home Secretary certain powers. 
12900. Q. 'What were those powers ;-the l)o\v'  to propose new special rules P A. Yes ; it gave the 
Ilonie Secretary power to propose new special rules with respect to the following -(a) The nature and 
description of the lights or lamps to be used in the mine, and the custody and the mode of using and 
trimming them. 
12901. Q. There is no such power in our Act, is there',  A. No. 
12902. Q. No such power in anybody corresponding with the }Iome Secretary to snake rules determining 
those things? A. No. Of course the Department can propose special rules so long as they do not infringe 
upon the present A ct. 
12963. Q. 1 understand that the power of making rules givenin our Act is the same as that which was 
(Olitililied in the 1887 English Act? A. That is SO ; Yes. 
12904. Q. But the 1800 English Act gave the Minister power to makee rules such as there is no power to 
make here? A. That is so. 
12065. 0. And the first of these is (a) to determine the nature and description of the lights o lamps to be 
used in the mine, and the custody and the mode of trimming and using them ? A. Yes. 
12900. Q. \.Vhat is the second heading under which be has the power to make rules? A. (b)The descrip-
tion of explosives to be used in the mine, the mode of using and storing such explosives, and of making 
and stennning holes, and the times at which, and the manner in which, shots are to be fired in the mine. 
12067, Q. tEas the Minister the power to make rules here to that effect under our Act? A. Well, the 
only provision is eontaiied in General Rule 12, with reference to explosions. 
12908. Q. Well, then, the third? A. (c) The number or class of persons, 'if any, to be permitted to 
remain in the mine, or any part thereof, whilst shots are beiog fired ; (1) the watering or efficient damping 
of the mine, or any ways or places therein ; (e) generally, the precautions to be adopted for the prevention 
of accidents from inflammable gas and coal-dust. 
12069. Q. Well, that power, given in 1800, is much niore comprehensive, is it not, than the power which 
the Minister has here ? A. it is; Yes. 
12970. Q. And deals with a number of matters which at present here are left to the discretion of the 
management of the mine ? A. Yes, partly. 
12071. Q. Now, has that power to determine that safety-lamps shall be used, been largely exercised in 
England? A. No ; it has been very little exercised. Under this 1896 Act they have generally been able 
to get safety-lamps introduced without that power. 
12072. Q. 'Without exercising the power under that Act? A. Yet it has been exercised in one or two 
cases, according to the reports. 
12073. Q. I might just ask you there whether you have endeavoured in some cases to get safety-lamps 
used without success P A. Yes ; on several occasions. 
12973 . Q. You have 'brought whatever inifuence you could to bear, and what you have desired has not been 
adopted? A. In some cases we have ultimately been able to get them to do o. 
12074. Q. But in some cases you have not su(ceeded in immducing them to do so, although you have made 
representations ? A. Yes. 
12975. Q. Well, now, since that 1803 Act, have any other alterations of an important character been made 
with regard to blasting? A. Yes ; the home Secretary has eaercisel his power by issuing the Explosives 
in Coal Mines Orders frc>m time to time. 
12976. (7 What is the effect of those orders that have been issued? A. Well, it has had the effect of 
absolutely prohibiting the use of gunpowder in certain mines, and some other explosives. 
12977. Q. 'What is your own opinion in retrard to the use of gunpowder in mines in which gas is found to 
be present-firing with gunpowder? A. Well, I think it is a great source of danger, especially in dry and 
dusty mines. 
12978. Q. And I might ask you this in passing: of the two possible sources of danger by explosion which, 
in your opinion, is greater, that of firing shots with gunpowder or opening a safety-lamp in order to fire a 
shot with gunpowder? A. 'Well, the flame from a shot of gunpowder is, no doubt, one of the worst forms 
of naked light which you could have ; and is, no doubt, much worse than the naked lamp flame. 
12979. Q. So that I may take this from you : that as long as the practice is cnntioued of firing shots in 
gaseous mines by gunpowder, the opening of a lamp is really not as gm'eat a danger as the firing itself P 
A. That is so. 
12080. Q. Now, what is the purport of those rules-those orders which have been promulgated by the 
home Secretary ? A. Well, it, is given under two heads, which are as follow 
12981. X,  r. Bruce Smit/ij I will read those: 

in all coal.mnines in which infiamnuable gas has beam, found within the previomis three months in such quantity as 
to ha indicative of danger, the use of any explosive other than a permnitted explosive, as hereinafter defined, is absolutely 
prohibited in the seam or seams in  wlucli the gas has been found. 

In all coal-mines which are not naturally wet throughout, the use of any explosive, other than a " permitted 
explosive," as hem'eivafter defimieci, is absolutely prohibited in all roads, and in every dry and dusty part of the mnine, 

12082. Q. 1 think the list at present adopted of " permitted explosives " is given in a sort of published 
statement ?J. Yes ', there are a very considerable number of them. 
12983. (7. I think you will put a copy of this before the Commission P A. Yes. 
12081. Mr. Bruce Smith then handed in a printed copy of The Explosives in Coal-mines Order of the 
24th .July, 1899," which was put in and masked E,vlm ibit No. 18. 
12035. An order of' the 24th March, 192, was put in and marked Exhibit .No. 19. 
12086. An order of the 10th October, 1002, was put in and marked Exhibit Xo. 20. 
12987. Mr. Bruce Smith.) Q. Now, that is what i I  ou have to say with, regard to the history of coal-dust 
theory? A. Yes. 
12988. Q. Now, will you say something to the Court abommt the characteristics of explosion by coal-dust? 
A. 'Yes. 12989. 
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12989. Q. Quoting any authorities that you think will be of value to the Commission? A. Well, the 
theory is explained in many parts of the Chamberlain Royal Commission. 
12990. Q. What we have called the Chamberlain Commission is a Commission of which Mr. Chamberlain 
was chairman? A. Yes; correctly called, it is the Royal Commission on Coal-dust, from 1891 to 1894. 
12991. Q. Have you that here? A. I am afraid not. We can send for it. 
12992. 2l[. Bruce Smith.] I will postpone, your Honor, the references to that until I get the book here. 
12993. His Honor.] Very well. 
12994. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Will you just say where, in your opinion, the most dangerous class of dust 
is found in the roadway of a mine? A. Generally on the haulage roads, and on the -[Iuferrupted]. 
12995. Q. What part of the haulage roads? A. And on the timbers and upper parts.rather than on the floor. 
12996. Q. Why do you regard that as the most dangerous kind of dust? A. Well, it is the finest and the 
purest. The floor dust is very often mixed with stone impurities. 
12997. Q. And this, which has lodged on the sides, and the roof, and the timbers, is the lighter, finer kind, 
which has floated in the air and gradually accumulated on any shelving position? A. Yes; and it is 
regarded as most dangerous. 
12998. Q. Well, is there any theory of the power of this dust to absorb any chemical property ? A. Yes. 
With constant currents of air passing over it, it is thought that it absorbs oxygen, and thereby becomes 
more dangerous, making it more sensitive to explosion. 
12999. Q. Now, as to the quantity of dust that is considered sufficient to become an element of danger, I 
think Galloway expresses a rather definite opinion, does be not? A. 1-Ic has stated that 1 pound of dust 
for 160 cubic feet in an airway with a sectional area of 40 feet may be dangerous, and sufficient to carry 
on the explosion. 
13000. Q. One pound for 160 cubic feet in an airway with a sectional area of 40 feet. I think you have 
made a calculation. What is that equal to per linear foot in a roadway 12 feet wide and 0 feet high P 
A. About 72 ounces per linear foot. 
13001. Q. Roughly 7 ounces per linear foot distributed right across tIme roadway, up the walls, and on the 
timbers, is sufficient to be dangerous? A. Yes. 
13002. Mr. Robertson.] 7'2 ounces per linear foot? 
13003. AIr. Bruce Sinith.JThat is per linear foot of the roadway. So that, Mr. Robertson, if 1 foot of 
the roadway right across the roadway, and up the walls, and on the timbers, holds in the aggregate 72 
ounces of dust, it is, in the opinion of Galloway, a dangerous quantity. It seems very small. 
13001.. Witness.] In another calculation it comes out to 2-ivth of an inch thick. 
1:3005. His Honor.] Q. Average thickness on the floor, is that? A. Average thickness, all round the section. 
13006. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Ceiling and all? A. Ceiling and all. 
13007. Q. Now, I think Professor Bedson, who is an authority, analysed a sample of after-damp from 
IJsworth explosion? A. Yes; he found it to contain 248 per cent, of carbon monoxide. 
13008. Q. Now, what is the most notable characteristic of coal-dust explosions as regards the indications 
of force? A. Evidence of contradictory forces is quite a common feature of coal-dust explosions. 
13009. Q. I think that was well described in that same Commission? A. Yes ; by the Permanent tTnder-
Secretary now, Sir Godfrey Lushington. 
13010. Q. That is on page 7 of what we call t-he Chamberlain Commission? A. Yes. 
13011. (The passage referred to was read later in the day by Mr. Bruce Smith. It is as follows:- 

115. Q. I do not know whether you told us ; but, supposing that the dust theory were accepted, 
what would be the nature of the legislation which would then be necessary to provide against 
the danger? A. I could only point out the various proposals which have been put on the 
table, so to speak, for discussion; one is to stop all blasting ;  another to have no naked lights ; a 
third, that, if you allow blasting, all the men that are not engaged in blasting operations are to be 
removed from the pit; and the fourth is, that all the dust is to be watered or to be removed. Now, 
son can understand what a formidable operation that is, when this floor extends for miles and miles 
in a colliery; but, when removal or watering is to be applied, not only to the floor but to the sides 
and the roof, it is almost an insuperable difficulty. Then you have a modified form of proposal 
which is, that at certain intervals the dust should either be watered, kept damp, or removed. These 
intervals would operate in a mine very much as separate watertight compartments do in a vessel.") 

13012. Q. Can you tell me of any other characteristic? A. Well, the passage of flame is very erratic in 
its course, there frequently being no traces of flame on roads where the explosion has passed, although 
easily inflammable articles were present. 
13013. Q. Well, that is referred to, I think, in "Explosions in Coal-mines," on pages 25, 20, and 48 ? 
A. Yes. 

The passages referred to were read later in the day by Mr. Bruce Smith. They are as follow :- 
The coking of the dust is an indication often wanting over long lines, whore great force and flame have passed. It 

is more noticed at the working  faces than on the haulage roads. It was not observed at the shaft limit of an explcsion. A chemical and microscopical examination of dust on haulage roads, in the absence of coking, affords reasons for asserting 
the passage of flame. 

No coked dust was observed on the main haulage roads, where flame had evidently passed, and where force had 
been greatest. At the extremities of the explosion coked dust was abundant, and the force exerted less. 
13014. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Are there any particular parts of a mine in which coal-dust is found in 
larger quantities than in others? A. Well, generally on the haulage roads. 
13015. Q. Is the quantity larger or less near the faces? A. It is, generally speaking, less near the faces. 
13010. Q. Less near the faces than --? A. Do you refer to the coal-dust or the coked dust? 
13017. Q. The coked dust. You are speaking now of after a coal-dust explosion;-Imean the coked dust? 
A. I say there is generally an absence of coked dust on the haulage roads; it is not so frequently found 
as it is near the face. 
13018. Q. Where, I presume, it has been driven? A. yes. I thought in the first place you were referring 
to coal-dust. 

13019. Q. No. I was continuing with regard to tIme phenomena of coal-dust explosions. Can you tell inn 
of anything Galloway says as to the class of mines or the characteristics of mines in which coal-dust 
explosions have taken place? A. Well, all the great explosions, causing a large loss of life, have taken 
place in dry and dusty mines. 
13020. Q. That is a conclusion Galloway has arrived at? A. Yes. 13021. 
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13021. Q. That all explosions causing great loss of life have taken place in dry and dusty mines? A. Yes. 
13022. 211r. Bruce Smith.] That is mentioned, your honor, by Galloway, in his book ' Lectures on 
Mining," at P. 10 of the Lecture on Colliery Esplosions, as follows:- 

I had made a special study of the subject of explosions, 1)0th in wet mines in the West of Scotland, and in dry and 
dusty mines in South \Vales. while acting in the capacity of an Assistant Inspector of Mines during the years 1873, 1874, 
and 1875 and during the course of those studies I had observed two remarkable facts, namely 

That a fire-damp explosion in a wet mine never by any ehanea assumed the character or proportions of a great 
explosion. 

That all great explosions took place in dry and ilusty mines. 
During the same period I had also made many experiments with fire-damp, and, in the summer of 1875, some with 

coal-dust, and had discovered, in making the latter experiments at Llwynpia Colliery, on the 3rd of July, 1875, that a 
mixture of air and coal-dust became inflammable, and could be iguited at the tlam of a Comet lamp, when a very small 
proportion of fire-damp was added to it. 

13023. Q. And I think that conclusion that all explosions causing great loss of life have taken place in 
dry and dusty mines is confirmed in the report of the Chamberlain Commission? A. It is-yes. 
13021. Q. On page IX P A. In the second report. 

Later in the day Mr. Bruce Smith read the passage, which is as follows :-- 

Time Coi7-lu.si 'J'heov,j. 
We have now brought the history of the question down to the time of the appointment of the present Commission, 

and we proceed to describe the theory of coal-dust agency in explosions, based on the facts and inferences above stated, 
which have been presented to us by the witnesses favourable to it. 

It may be suumumerised as follows 

The circumstances of many explosions, and especially of explosions on a very large scale, and covel-ing a great 
length of the workings, caimot be fully explained by reference to fire-damp or gas alone. 

The presence of coal-dust, and especially of fine dust, may be the sole camse of an explosion. 
If the coal-dust is in sufficieist quantities, it will certainly extend the eflbct and increase the intensity of an 

explosion caused by any other means. 
Fire-damp in small quamstilics-so sinAI as not to be dangerous pem- se-may be highly dangerous in the presence of 

coal-dust. 

12025. Ate. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, in the Chamberlain Commission report, there are particulars, are 
there not, of all explosion that took place in a coal-hopper? A. Yes, there are. It took çlace at the 
Brancepeth Colliery. 

1:3020. Q. Will you just describe that, as we have not the volume here -what was the nature of that 
explosion there P A. Yes. This hopper or box contained the fine coal which had becn crushed ready for 
the manufacture of coke. 
1-307. Q. Was not it empty at th time? A. This accident happened on a pay Saturday, when the mine 
was idle, and in consequence the loading of the ovens could only be completed by collecting all the fine 
dust oil the ledges of this box or hopper; and for that purpose workmen were sent into it, who were 
carrying large torch lamps, for the purpose of cleaning out the box entirely. 
1:02S. Q. Sweeping it down? A. Whilst they were doing this, sweeping the dust off sonic of the ledges 
near the top, the lights were somewhere near the bottom of the box, and there wasa thick cloud of dust 
in consequence of the sweeping. Whilst they were sweeping there was an inflarnation, or explosion of the 
dust, as it has variously been termed, which had the effect of burning several of time men to such an 
extent that four of them died as the result of the accident. 
13029. Q. This hopper was above the surface of the ground, outside the mine P A. Yes. 
13030. Q. And at the top of it there were openings? A. There were several places where aiiy gas might 
have escaped, had there been any accumulation of gas-openings through which the machinery worked, 
the elevator buckets. 
13031. Q. 'rhmromsgh which any gas could have escaped? A. Yes. 
13032. ). So that there was every reason for saving that there was no gas present in thus hopper to co. 
operate with the coal-dust in pro lucing this explosion? Q. I think it was a very reasonable conclusion to 
come to. 

13033. Q. Now, it is right to say that, in the report of the Chamberlain Commission, although this 
instance was brought under the notice of the Commission, they found contrary to the inference which 
one might draw from that P A. Yes, they had the full knowledge of this accident when they made their 
conclusions. 
13034. Q.  They came to the conclusion that coal-dust, of itself, without the presence of gas, was unlikely 
to be the cause of an explosion P A. Fired by a naked light underground. 
1303.5. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I cannot find in the report, Your honor, which is very short, any reason for 
ignoring that Brancepeth case. 
13030. His honor.] The finding was that it was unlikely, not impossible. 
13037. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. When I have it hcsre, I will quote time particular passage from the 
report, in which they seemed to negative the inference which one might draw from that. 

(Later, Mr. Bruce Smith read the passage which is quoted above.) 
13038. Ale. Robertson.] I think there was a doubt as to the gas. There might have been some little gas 
present in spite of the openings. 
1:3o30. Ate. Bruce Smith.] The statement appears as though, if the gas rose, as it usually does, there '. as 
every possibility of its getting out. 1 have not the statemnent here ; but I will have it when I get those 
books. 

13010. Q. Now, with regard to explosions of dust, is It not a well-known fact that explosions take place 
in flour mills where there is a great quantity of dust? A. Yes, that has happened on several occasions. 
13041. Q. And is it not a fact that in modernly-constructed flour mills an arrangement exists which 
prevents the dust from spreading over the whole building? A. Yes. I think also in certain places they 
enforce the use of either electric light or safety-lamps in such cases. - 
1304112 . Q. Well, have you any reason to suppose that there could be any gas of an inflammable nature in 
a flour mill? A. No, I think not. 
13012. Q. I aum not aslcing you whether there is, but whether you thinkso, from what you know P A. in 
my opinion, I think not. 

13012k. Q. And I think there is reason for stating that, in bone crushing, explosions have taken place P 
A Yes, I think there is a reference in my notes. 13013. 
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13013. AIr. Bruce tS'mifls.j I will read it. It is an extract from page 2S1 of volume 0 of the Proceedings 
of the Federated Institute of Mining Engincers, leing part of the Presidential Address of Mr. A. L. 
Steavenson for the year 1893 

The coal-dust question has agitated the minds of all connected with Collieries in the last few years, and there are 
some, I believe, who still shake their heads and refuse to admit the possibility of any of our great explosions having 
originated through dust alone. 

The matter seems so clear to me that I have taken very little interest in the later discussions on the subject. There 
is, and can be, no dispute of very serious explosions having occurred rc'iieatetlly where no gas could possibly have been 
present. I will mention a few cases just to confirm my statement. In 1S90 an explosion occnrred in flour mills at Leith, 
when three persons were killed and four injured. In 1882 an explosion occurred in a flour mill at Macclesfield a large 
part of the mill was levelled with the ground ; and damage to the extent of £5,003 was done, the engine-man being killed. 
In 18S7 an explosion occurred in the United States in some wood-working establishments at a point where the dust and 
shavings were gathered together ; the roof of the shaving-house was blown oft, and two of theworkmen killed. In 1885, 

an explosion took place in it tag-mill at l)i-ighlington, causing the death of two worknten. This was an explosion of the 
dust at what was described as ''The shaker." - 

There was no possible gas present in these cases, and when we rententher that explosion is only a rapid form ,  of 
combustion, to which the fineness of the particles makes it peculiarly susceptible, and that coal-dust, if heated, contains 
10,000 cubic feet of gas to the ton, it is difficult to conceive how any oils can still harbour a ttoubt on the subject. The 
case seems analogous to that of those who, for many years, whenever a bullet' explosion took place, insisted that there was 
something about boilers we did not yet understand ; and it was often asserted that electricity had something to do with it. 
To such we can only extend our sympathy. - 

13014. Q. There is it further reference, in the evidence of Mr. G-alloway, in the first report of the 
Commission on Accidents in Mines (Imocrial)—is that what we call the Chamberlain Commission? 
A. No, 
13045. Q.  The Commission on Accidents in Nines (Imperial), 1831, page 415, questions 13551 to 13557 
and question 13573. 

(Later in the day, Mr. Bruce Smith read the evidence of Mr. Galloway, as follows) 
13551. Q.Are you acquainted with the experiments that have been made in America w-ith flour 

and other combustible powders ? J. Yes, I have read an account of them. 
13552. Q. Do you think that we can rely on those accounts P A. I do. I made some experiments 

myself, which ham not vet been described, with coal-dust, gas, and air. They are not completed. 
They are similar to the American experiments and were probably made before these experiments. 
Ny experiments were made in August, 1878, nnd I think that the accounts of the American 
experiments were published towards the end of the same year, or in the beginning of the year 
following. 

13553. Q.  You are aware that explosions which ended in the destruction of large buildings in 
America, and, I believe, in Scotland also, have been ascribed to that ignition. Is this correct? 
A. I think so. 
"13551.—S. Q. Do you think that we may rely upon the conclusion that the diffused combustible 
dust could produce mechanical effects so violent? A. Not the quantity of dust usually cpntained in 
the air. 

13550. 0. I refer now to the particular cases described in America and Scotland? A. After the 
disturbance has once been begun, and the fine dust has been mixed largely with the air, then I think 
that the mixture would be inflammable and explosive. 

13557. Q. In the special ease that 1 am referring to the explosion was so violent as to ruin a mill, 
and to project masses of iron, and other heavy substances, to a very great distance. Do you think 
that the dust of flour diffused in the atmosphere and ignited has the power to produce effects of that 
kind ? A. I have not made any experiments with the finer kinds of dust of flour; but, judging by 
the effects of coal-dust under similar circumstances, I do think we can depend upon the accuracy of 
those reports. 

1:3573. Q. You stated, with reference to the investigations which have been made as to the explo- 
sions that have occurred in flour-nills, investigations which were commenced originally by the late 
Professor Rankin a few years ago, that you did not consider that the ordinary dust from flour would 
produce explosions extending to a considerable distance ; but I presume the difference was only it 

difference in the state of division of the particles? A. I do not think I explained myself sufficiently. 
What I meant to say was that in the atmosphere of a mill you will always find a little dust floating 
about. There is not sufficient dust in that atmosphere at ordinary times to produce an explosion. 

13040. Q. Now, Mr. Atkinson, you wish to speak of the precautions winch are recomuiended to prevent, 
as much as possible, explosions by coal-dust? A. Yes. 
13017. Q. Will you just tell me, first of all, when coal-dust becomes danger.) us underground? A. When 

it is raised in a cloud by means or, first, and explosion of fire_damp ; or, second, an explosion of a blasting 
shot, more particularly of gunpowder. Where fire-damp is present, the use of safety-lamps is a pre-
cautionary measure against an explosion of fire-damp, and also against the occurrence of underground 
fires, which are so frequently caused by the use of naked lights. 
13048. Q. The flame from a shot by gunpowder, which you say is a great dinger in the presence of coal- 
dust, is itself a means of raising that coal-dust, which it is likely to ignite? I. Yes; the force of the 

blast is suflicient to raise a cloud of dust. 
13019. Q. It raises it, and then shoots itself into the cloud P A. Yes, 
13050, Q. Well, how, in your opinion.may the dangers from explosions by blasting due to coal-dust be 
to some extent prevented? A. They may be partially prevented by careful watering, as required by 
General Rule 12 ; by careful preparation and tamping of the shot-hole with it non-inflammable substance 
by careful inspecting in the vicinity for fire-damp, by a competent person, as required by the above rule 
anti greater precautions may be adopted by using the same methods as to watering, &c., and, in addition, 
using a '' permitted explosive " fired electrically. 
13051. (7. The "permitted explosives " do not, I understand, send any flame or sparks into the air? 
A. Well, none of them have been shown to be absolutely safe ; but they are considered very much safer 
than blasting powder. I do not know of any that is absolutely without any signs of flame when fired 
under certain conditions, 
13052. Q. You heard a witness yesterday say that, even with the use of the cap, sparks were emitted? 
A. He was referring to the fuse. 13053. 
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13053. Q. From the fuse? A. Yes. 
13054. (1. That is, even when the cap was used on the fuse? A. That is what he said. 
13055. Q. Do you think that probable or possible? ii. Well, I think it would only take place with a 
wrong adjustment of the Cal)  or of the fuse. 
13056. Q. Then the adjustment of the cap even, requires considerable care P A. No doubt ; yes. 
13057. Q. Now, I think you have considered this accumulation of coal-dust from two points of view ? 
A. Yes; first, the prevention of accumulations ; and, second, precautions to render coal-dust innocuous 
after it has accumulated. 
13058. Q. Now, taking the prevention first P A. Several suggestions have been made to assist in this 
direction, but with, so far, varying success. 
13059. Q. You might mention what suggestions have been male? A. Tubs built dust-tight, so as to 
prevent dust being seattered on the roads; sprays of water at the screens, or in the downcast shaft, to 
prevent dust entering from the surface ; care to prevent overloading of tubs ; watering the to1) of each 
till) by a sprayer before leaving the " flat " on its passage to the shaft ; the periodical removal of 
ace umnulati ons. 
1360. Q. That is to prevent aeeuinmdations P A. Y s. 
13061. Q. And several methods have been actually tried, have they not P A. Yes; several methods to 
render it harmless. 
13002. Q. To render it innocuous, as von have called it. What are they? A. First, mixing deliqueseent 
salts with the dust on the roadways. This has proved both inefficient and very costly. Seeofld, sprays 
of water under I)rcssu1e.  Third, sprays of water under lessurt', combined with compressed air. Fourth, 
tubs with pumps, &e., attached for spraying water. Fifth, instead of watering the whole length of dusty 
roads, some mining engineers have done so only on selected lengths, believing that explosions will not 
pass over wet lengths of road 100 yards and over. 
13063. Q. Now, what is the effect of thoroughly watering coal-dust, in your opinion P A. It renders it 
harmless so far as explosions arc concerned. 
13064. Q. Do you recommend it P A. So far as it is practicable. 
13065. Q. Well, you might name the circumstances under which, in your opinion, it is impracticable P 
A. Yes. First, the effect of water on some roofs is to cause fails of a serious character ; and it also, in 
some Cases of soft floors, causes trouble. 
13066. Q. Of what kind? A. It causes the floor to lift. 
13067. Q.  It interferes with the levels for hauling and so on? A. Yes. 
13068. Q. Any other feature? A. It may be impracticable to thoroughly water coal-dust in some eases, 
owing to ,in inefficient supply of water. This was experienced at some Northern and Southern collieries 
during the drought last year. 
13069. Q. Now, a careful, systematic method of watering has been earriel out in Great Britain, I think, 
and in Germany? A. To some small extent. 
13070. Q. Has anything yet been formulated beyond General Rule 12? A No law has been passed 
beyond General Rule 12, and the requirements in the Explosives Order with regard to dealing with 
coal-dust, in Great Britain. 
13071. Q. That is the one I read a little time ago? A. Yes. 
13072. Q. So that the requirements have never, so far, bean very aecLirately defined 2  ..No, not beyond 
that. 
13073. Q. it ii a matter of discretion based vipon the knowledge of the danger P A. Yes; there is a 
great variety of opinion on the subject even now. 
13074. Q. Even as to the benefits ti be derii ed from watecing PAY es. 
13075. Q. Is there any difference of opinion as to the benefits of watering where shots are going to be 
fired P J. None at all. 
13070. Q. I mean the opinions of experts are unanimous as to the necessity of vateming where shots are 
to be fired ? A. Yes, in dry and dusty- places. 
13077. Q.  And has it formulated itself into any recognised distance to which the watering should be 
carried from time shut P Y1. 'F iventy yards is the distance req lured by the rule. 
13078. Q. I flunk that question was dealt with in several of the official English reports P A. The opinions 
with reference to the utility or otherwise of watering coal-dust P 
13079. Q. Yes. A. Yes. 
13080. Q. And more particularly with regard to shots ? A. Yes. 
13081. Q. You have not tlmoso reports here P A. No. 
13082. Q. One is the report of Mr. ii. hall, 1901 P A. Yes. Mr. ITall is the Inspector of Mines for the 
Liverpool District. The reference is to page 18 of the report. 

Later the 1port was obtained, and the following pLissage was read 

Coal Dua/.-1{ow best to deal with the coal-dust in deep dry collieries is beset with ,li!lleuhties. and, it is not to be 
wondered at when we consider the large quantity of dust eomistammt.ly  being produced in the workuig place and on the 
roads along which the coal is iiauie,i on its may to the pits shaft. It is quite clear that to reuliive the dust altogether 
from the miii tic is impracticable  ; I CI ice recourse has to be had to some means of rendering it innocuous 

The application of water by watcr.tanks or by stand.1npes, under pressure, fixed at iitervals along the road, is only 
p irtially successful, whilst it entails very considerable labour and expense. Suggestions have been nisale that, if sections 
of the riail uvays were kept coils tautly uvi b, such t wet part ill ighi t prevent an explosion spread 11g. 1 in iigi lie that, at any 
rate, iii a coal-dust explosion, there will al says be a pioneering cloud of (lust travelling forward in mlvamiee of the actual 
flame, sum fhieiem it In feed the explosion for some. distance, when 9aseiiIg over grouni I cither daiuiii or free from d uist. I 
remember that in the Pen-y-graig explosion in 1SSO the explosion travelled throughout two distinct sections of the colliery. 
I exanmimmed the single road which connected these two seetiomms, most of which was tunnel through a ''fault," and extending 
a distance of 150 yards or more, and found no sign that any explosion had passed through this road. The road was 
entirely free from coal-dust, being cxc,avated in stone clear of the coal seam it was dry. I believe it is possible to 
elucidate this question of the eflicacy or otherwise of watering dust by actual cxperiniellt. in this inspection district., 
attempts to deal systematically with the dust throughout the mine by means of water have been ahatdoneil. The vicinity 
of shots on main haulage roads alone is damped immediately before the firing takes place this precaution being required 
by No. 12 General hub, and by the Explosives Order. 

13083. Mr. Bruce S,nitli.1 Q. Another report dealing with that question is by whom? A. Mr. J. S. 
Martin, inspector of Mines, on the Lhanbradaeh Explosion, page S. 
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The following extract from the report referred to was read by Mr. Brace Smith later in the
day :— 

The method of watering by barrels is in use very extensively in the (listrict, and has b3en maintained to be 
satisfactory, the water being distributed by flexible pipes attached to a barrel, or by buckets. It is a system which would 
allow of the places being thoroughly watered but it has never presented itself to Ins as altogether satisfactory, owing to 
the human element in the arrangement, which seemed likely to render ss'hat was possible," not probable." I have, 
however, always been told that the watering was done thoroughly whenever I raised the question, casually, upon making 
inspection at mines. There no longer seems any ground for considering it satisfactory ; and I think colliery nuanagcrs and 
workmen must in the future more thoroughly recognise the danger arising from dust, and introduce some satisfactory 
means for bringing a jet of water to play upon the roof and sides. \Vhere the water has to be conveyed in barrels or tanks, 
they must see that a much greater supply is provided, and that some kind of hand-pump is used for applying it. It must 
also be borne in mind that, where there is much dust, water takes little effect at first, and that it must be very liberally 
distributed for its use to be efficient. 

1303t. JVifness.i Reference is also made to this question in a report by Professor Galloway on the 
explosion at the Universal Colliery in 1901, page 12 ; and by Mr. Evans, quoting Mr. Robson, Inspector, 
in the same report, on pages 23, 21, and 2.5. There are many other osinions, too, in other reports but 
those are the most recent. 

Later in the day Mr. Bruce Smith read the portions of the report referred to by the Witness. 
They are as under 

Extract from the Report of Professor Galloway on theE eplosion which occurrel at the Universal Colliery, 
Glamorganshire, on 24th May, 1901. 

I3[eascs of Prei'en(ing Cecil Due' Explosions. 

The rem irkable imnunity of the western side, and northern end, of District B from traces of flame can be doe to 
nothing else but natural dampness ; and this fact shows coeclusively that dampness, whether natural or artificial, will 
prevent a great explosion from occurring at all if the dampness is at the origin of disturbance, and will arrest it completely 
if it is anywhere else, provided the length of the damp part is s d great that the ime is unable to cross it. 

Artificial dampness or wetness may be produced by means of any of the following devices, all of which have been 
employed in practice for the purpose of watering mines in the South Wales coel.fleid and elsewhere 

Water tanks hauled along the inne railways, provided with a pipe pierced with holes, the same as that of an 
ordinary water cart at the surface. 

Sprays produced from very small nozzles fixed to vertical stand-pipes 3 or 4 feet high, at distances of 15 or 20 yards 
apart, each stand-pipe fixed to a water-pipe laid along one side of the haulage way. 

Similar sprays in which compressed air is employed for the purpose of pounding the water into very fine particles 
(Mr. W. H. Martin's patent). 

A water bose, 30 or 40 feet long, attached at one end to a short stand-pipe connected to a water-pipe lying along-
side the road, and provided with a spray producer at its other end. There must be a stand-pipe every SO or 
100 feet. 

The exhaust steam of a constantly working engine, such as the engine of the ventilating fan, introduced into the 
intake air as it descends the downcast shaft. (Employed at Pochin Pit, Trcdegar, at one time, and recently 
proposed to me again by Mr. Smart.) 

It has been suggested that watering the floor is not sufficient to prevent dust from lodging on the timbers and on 
]edges of coal and rock at the sides of the road. The objection is a purely speculative one, and not founded on experience. 
I have, myself, seen a coal-dust explosion (Pochin) arrested by the dampness produced by the leakages of a water barrel 
employed for transporting water from (lip workings ; and elsewhere (Lhwynvpia), I have sought in vain for dry coal-dust 
on the timbers and ledges of a road in which the floor only was watered by a water tank. 

The objection to fine sprays is that the apertures in the nozzles are liable to become stopped by particles of sand, 
and that the workmen dislike being wetted in passing them. There is, however, no objection to the use of a hose pipe. 
Steam turne.l tnt) the downcast shaft keeps the whole mIne damp, but raises the temperature of the air in it and renders 
it less eomfortal,le and more relaxing to the workmen. Water applied in any s -ay has, on the contrary, a cooling dfect. 

Much objection was raised by some of the witnesses before the Royal Commission on Coal-dust against the general 
use of water underground, on the plea that the floors of litany seams of coal would be thereby softened, and would con-
sequently swell up into the roadways and cause them much trouble and expense. 

It is doubtful whether the small quantity of water required to lay the dust, if applied judiciously, would ever 
produce the effect anticipated ; but, supposing it is liable to do so in any case, another alternative remains, namely, to 
prevent the accumulation of coal-dust altogether by employing perfectly dust-tight waggons, and not filling them above 
the level of the upper edges of their sides. 

Waggons which were very nearly dust-tight were employed in Altofts Colliery, Normanton, before the explosion, 
and were not filled above the level of the tops of their sides, with the result that the dust accumulated very slowly, and 
the consequence was that the explosion did not reach the working places at any point, but was exclusively confined to the 
main haulage roads, which were also the intake airways. 

If the coal could be conveyed from the working faces to the winding shaft w-ithout falling out of the evaggons on to 
the roadways, either in the form of original dust, or in pieces that are soon crushed into dust by the traffic, the hauling 
roadways would be in the same condition as the return airways ; that is to say, they would contain principally stone dust 
and insufficient coal-dust to carl-v on an explosion. 

There are thus two methods of preventing the occurrence of great colliery explosions 

To lay the dust by watering it. This precaution has been voluntarily adopted by many of the colliery owners in 
the South \Vales coal-field; but, as it is not made compulsory by Act of Parliannent, and thereby cannot be enforced 
by the Inspectors of Nines, it appears to be frequently neglected, or done only perfunctorily by some of the 
Managers. 

To employ dust-tight waggons, filled only to the level of the upper edges of their sides, and, when a waggon con-
taining coal is accideotelly overturned, or coal is otherwise accidentally spilt on the roadway, to gather it up 
carefully and strew small stones over the place from which the coal has been lifted. 

The existing regulation as to watering for 20 yards on each side of a shot-hole before firing the shot, if enforced 
under severe Isenalties—say, £50 for each case in which it is neglected or carelessly carried out—is sufficient to prevent the 
ignition of coal-dust by a blasting shot ; but, as an additional security, the ditance might, perhaps, be extended to 30 
yards in the direction towards which the shot-hole is pointing. 

Extract from the Report of Mr. S. T. Evans, K.C., M.P., on the Explosion at the Universal C'ollicrv, 
Glamorganshire, on 24th May, 1901. 

As to the Coal Duet on the Main Roads. 

There was evidence that there was a considerable quantity of coal-dust lodging on the main intake roads, and on their 
roofs and sides. The return airways were free from such dust and Professor Galloway in his report points out how, 
generally speaking, the return airways enjoyed an immunity from the devastating force of the explosion. 

I have before observed that there was a unanimity of opinion that the explosion was carried on, to its terrible extent, 
by the inflammation of the dust. 

Some of the statutory obligations for watering the mine in proximity to the place where a shot is fired have been 
above referred to. 

But up to the present no statutory pm-ovisiens have been made regulating the clearing of dust from the roads, or 
requiring the main travelling roads in the mine generally to be efficiently watered. It 
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It is necessary to call pul)lic attention to the desirability and importance of taking all reasonable precautions for 
clearing, not only the bottom of the roads, but also the sides and roof, where the finest and most easily inflamed dust 
lodges, and of adopting proper systems of watering the dust regularly. The importance of these matters was not, in my 
view, sufficiently appreciated by those responsible for the management of this mine. 

It was said that some men were told off to clear the dust ; but I am not satisfied that this was regularly or efficiently 
done. 

As to the Watering. 

A system of watering the roads by pipes and sprays had been adopted in part., but had not been carried into the 
workings as it should have been, as will liereivafter be pointed out. 

This system was shortly as follows —Pipes of 14- incises in diameter were laid along the main haulage roads fora 
distance of about 850 yards on the west side of the pit, and about 600 yards on the east. side ; water-cocks were inserted in 
the pipes at distances of 40 yards apart ; the waterman carried a short length of bose, 6 or S feet long, fitted with a brass 
spray at one end, and a screw at the other, which fitted on to the water-cock. The hose pipe was fastened on to the cocks, 
and the pressure put on ; thus a spray of water at high pressure was obtained, which could moisten the dust in all 
directions. 

This system is a good and well-approved one. 
But the pipes had not been laid sufficiently far into the mine. They had not been extended for twelve months past 

before the disaster, whereas they should be extended from time to time. At the time of the explosion they fell short of 
the proper distance in each direction by many buii,lieds of yards. - 

The watering by means of these pipes was only done by clay, and, of course, only for the regions through which the 
pipex had been laid Such watering as was done beyond the ranges of pipes was done by conveying males of water along 
the roads, and letting out water by removing a phig at the bottom. Even where these casks were taken, this would only 
water the centre of the road. No special person was entrusted with the duty

n 
of doing this vorlc ; but it was stated that 

the niaster.hauliers by night were to see that this watering was m done by soeoe. 
It was clear, however, that large portions of the colliery road were not watered at all ; and that the watermen did 

not, and, so far as appeared, hadno instruction to, water the roofs or sides at all, either by day or by night, at any rate 
beyond the limits of the pipes. 

In my opinion, the provisions for watering, beyond the watering by pipes during the day, was quite inadequate both 
by day and by night ; and those responsible for the management either had not duly appreciated the necessity of these 
precautions, or had failed to see that they were observed. 

Before the date of the explosion, the pipes should have been extended a distance of about 500 yards further towards 
one district of the colliery (the l'retoria and No. 2 South) about 21)1) yards further towards another district (the Kimberly 
and Mafeking) ; about 400 yards further towards another district (the Ladysinith) ; and about 200 yards further into the 
worlciugs on the east side. The grave importance of efficiently watering the roads will be realised when it is pointel out 
that, in the opi ions of the Mines Inspectors and others well 1uahfiecl to foiin an opinion, if the roads had been properly 
watered, the loss of life would have been very much less than it unfortunately was. Assuming, forexample, that the 
explosion originated in the west pai-t of the mine, the men in the east part—all of wlioni were killed—would, in all human 
probability, have escaped altogether ; and, similarly, if it originated in the east, those men who worked in the west would 
not have lost their lives. 

To put the matter still more cogently, I m i ay say that Mr. Gray, the Inspector, gave it as his opinion that, f the 
explosion started in the Pi-etoria District (which theory lie favoured), and if the main roads, No. 2 South and No, 3 South, 
and the road up to the Ladysmithi District, had been efficiently watered, the explosion would have been confined to the district 
of l'i-etoria,,anl to the bottom of the No. 2 South, The deaths roll then would have been 17 only; and the lives of the other 
64 men who perished would have been saved. If the explosion had occurred when the 240 night users were all ni the mine, 
or in the day time, when about 451) men would b bc-low ground, it will be seen that upon the efficiency of the watering of 
the coal-dust night have ilepended hundreds of lives. 

In order again to call attention publicly to this extremely important measure of precaution, the gravity of which, in 
their own intei'est, as well as in that of the workmen, mine-owners and managers have not sufficiently realised, I put to 
Mr. Robson the following questions, to which lie gave the appended answers 

ill. S. T. Eran.c ] Q. Suppose the main road had been thoroughly watered, in your opinion would the men on 
the east side have been touched 

Mr. 1k-lose.) A. I think not; I think the men on the cast side would have escaped, if the west had been 
thoroughly watered up to the top of No, 2, it would have saved the other side of the pit. 

Q. And if the roads finns there on had been thoroughly watered by the extension of pipes or otherwise, in your 
opinion would the explosion have been confined to the end of the little scum and to the Pretoria District ? A. Yes ; I 
tliusk it would have been confined to this (viz.,a small portion of the l'retoria and contiguous district), if all the main 
roads had been well watered, and I think the explosion, wherever it leeppenedhere (in that district) would have been 
confined to this part, and only a/en- nice, and not the whole men in the colliery, would have been touched. 

Q. The description of watering by cask has been given, either by pouring it out on the top of the incline or 
carrying it along. In your opinion, could that he imi(:h good in stopping all explosion? A. No ; I think it has little 
or no ellbct on 1-lie dust in the road. Generally, of course, dust goes to the bottom, but there is plenty of top dust on the 
etches and tisihers, and that is really tie most dangerous (11.1St. 

Q. There is no statutory obligation with regard to genei-al watering of a colliery. Will you give me your 
opinion whether there ought to b ? A. Yes, it is very dc-eu-able, very necessary, that there should be very stringent 
regulations as to general watering, instead of leaving it to peoplos ideas. 

Q. When the Coal Mines Regulation Act was icessed,  people did not know so much about dust in explosions as 
we know now? A . -I have, myself, felt strongly on the matter. 

Professor Galloway, who has performed such valuable experiments, and has pursued (leap researches into the 
question, expi-ossed similar views. 

The Jui-y, upon this subject, addled the following rider to their verdict 

The .ini-v do not considlei- that the system of watering the roadways beyond the pipes by m n eas of casks, and 
allowing the water to run along the centre of the road, is in any way snllicient, and in this ease also suggest the use of 
pphianccs sinsilar to the one suggested by Mr. Gray. The Jury urges the Members of the British Parliament to make 

it strictly compulsory to have the bottoni, sides, and top, of roadways in collieries so well watered as to make it 
mipossible for coal-dust to api-cad on all explosion. 

I have made such comments as I have deemed necessary. While there was some laxity upon the matters to which 
reference has been made, I do not think there was established any hi-each of specific statutory (lnties, to which the explosion 
was due ; and I do not recommend any prosecution. 

lie conclusion, I may be allowed, without traosgressing the limits of the province entrusted to nec, to enforce the 
recoissneendations of the Jury by reference to the lessons again learnt at this inquiry. It appears to me to be most desirab.ele 
that strietei- iegulatsons should 'be made for the control and use of explosives iii neiiees, and fur limiting, as far as possible, 
or orad-ticable, shot-fii-ing luring shiifts;and especially that provision should be made for preventing the accumulation of 
coal-dust, and for the regular and efficient watering of the roads, roofs, and silos in the main haulage and travelling ways 
in nnnes which are dry and (lusty. 

13080. Mc. Bruce SmitI.] Q. You have something special to say with regard to Australian coal-dust, have 
you not I? I think that,leaving in vi ew the Bnlli and the Dndley explosion-, you took some steps to get 
authoritative opinions on the explosibility of New South Wales coal-dust, did you not P A. Yes ; with 
the approval of the Minister for Mines we had samples taken from the various collieries. 
13037. Q. In what year was that? A. In the year 1901. 
13038. Q. About twelve months before the Mount Kembla explosion? A. Something like that. 
13089. Q And I think this is the letter which you sent to the Home Office, throughe the Sta.tc Govern-
ment, requestueg them to take steps to have the different samples of coal-dust from the different New 
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South Wales Coal-mines tested at the recognised testing station at Woolirich in England.? A. Yes; that 
IS SO. 
13090. Q. And I think you received from the officer in charge of the Home Office Testing Station the 
following letter:-'* Experiments carried out at the Home Office Testing Station at Woolwich during the 
months of August and November, 1901, to ascertain whether various samples of coal-dust from collieries 
in New South Wales were capable of causing an explosion when raised by the firing of a charge of blasting 
powder." I think the Commission have seen it. 
13091. His Honor.] Yes. 
13032. The letter referred to was put in at the Coroner's Inriuest, and marked Exhibit Q. It will be 
found at page 74 of the printed report of the Inquest. 
130924. lIfe. Bruce Smith.] Then I will not read it. 
13093. Q. You sent home thirty-four samples of coal-dust, did you not P A. Yes; they took two shots 
from each sample. There woutd be two shots from the sample from each mine, but only one box from 
each mine. 
13094. Q. They made two experiments with each sample? A. Yes. 
13095. Q. You received that report from the testing station at Woolwich ; and then, in April, 1902, which 
is three months before this explosion, you sent this letter to all the different coal-mines, did you not P 
A. Yes. 
13096. Q. "By direction of the Secretary for Mines, I have pleasure in enclosing herewith, for your 
information, copy of a report by the authorities at Woolwich Testing Station, England, with reference to 
the explosibility of certain coal-dusts collected in this State during last year, which were sent Home for 
testing purposes." You sent a copy of that report to every coal-mine Manager in New South Wales? 
A. To all the large collieries. 
13097. Q. That showed, did it not, that the Mount Kembla coal-dust was, in both cases, the cause of a 
violent explosion P A. Yes ; under the conditions under which they tested it. 
13098. Q. And I may put this generally, that in. reporting the different degrees of explosibility of these 
dusts, the testing station adopted four standards-explosion, mild explosion, violent explosion, and very 
violent explosion P A. Yes. 
13090. Q. And the Mount Kembla dust showefi the second highest degree of explosibility,  P A. Yes. 
13100. Q. You sent a copy of that circular, as you say, to the bIaiixer of every coal-mine in New South 
Wales? A. All the large collieries. 
13101. Q. Including Mount KemblaP A. Yes. 
1310l.. Q. And you added this paragraph to your letter: -" From this report you will see that, under the 
conditions specified, in all cases was an explosion produced, the intensity only varying. Having regard, 
therefore, to the fact that large colliery explosions are sometimes produced by blasting, and propagated 
by means of coal-dust alone, it is necessary, in the event of blasting taking place in your colliery in dry 
and dusty places, that the requirements of General Rule 12, Section 47, Coal Mines Regulation Act, 
should be strictly complied with, and the vicinity of the shot thoroughly watered, as required by that 
rule "P A. Yes. 
13102. Q. These " Explosives in Coal-mines Orders "(Exhibits 18, 19, and 20) were issued in 1899, 
March, 1902, and October, 1902 P A. Yes ; those are the most recent orders. 
13103. Q. Now, I think you have enumerated, in a return, the different fires which have occurred in the 
Southern and South-Western District collieries during 1902 P A. Yes. 
13104, Q. As bearing upon this P A. Question of naked lights, largely. 
13104*. Mr. Bruce Smith then read a statement of fires in the Southern and South-Western district 
collieries during 1932, which was put in and marked Exhibit No. 21. 
13106. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. What do you mean by "bottom" fire-damp? A. Fire-damp which issued 
from the Hoer. 
13107. Q. Now, if any further information is w-anted on those, you can let the Commission have the 
reports P A. Yes. 
13108. Q. I think you have prepared a similar statement of the fires in the northern district collieries in 
1902 P A. Yes. 
13109. Q. I need not go through them P A. No ; there are some of them which I might mention, which 
have no direct connection with the naked light; such, for instance, as Greta, the first, which was a gob 
fire. 
13110. Q. At all events, you have summarised them there for the information of the Commission if it 
desires it. There were eight in the Northern District during 1902 P A. Yes; nine, I think, to be 
correct. 
13111. A statement of fires in the Northern District collieries during 1902 was read by Mr. Bruce Smith, 
put in and marked Exhibit JTo.  22. 
131.12. Q. You have a copy of the report of Inspector J. T. Robson on an explosion which occurred in 
Ferndale Colliery, Glamnorganshire, which was asked for by the Commissioners A. Yes. 
13113. Q. When was that asked for P A. During last month, since the Commission started to sit. 
13114. Q. What does it bear upon P A. Upon the possibility or probability of explosions being caused by 
falls of roof, independently of naked lights. 
13115. Q. That is the one that was referred to, I think, by Mr. Wade, was it not P A. Yes I think it 
will be the same. 
13116. Mr. Bruce Smith then read an extract from pages 9 and 10 of Mr. J. T. Robson's report on the 
South Wales district for the year 1902, which was put in and marked Exhibit LYO. 23, together with the 
correspondence leading to its production. 
13120. lJIr. Bruce Smith.] There was another one asked for, Inspector Robson's report on the Deep 
Navigation Colliery. I will read that. 
13121. Mr. Bruce Smith then react an extract from Inspector J. T. Robson's report on the South Wales 
district for the year 1897, which was put in and marked .Exliz bit 1Vo. 24. 

At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.] 
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AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m. Mc. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings) 

Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined, as under 

13123. Mr. Bruce Smith read a number of extracts from various mining authorities, which were included 
in the report of the evidence given by Mr. Atkinson during the morning. 

The examination of Mr. A. A. Atkinson was then continued as follows :- 
13124. Vr. Bruce Sinitie.] Q. Have you gone carefully into the nineteen suggestions put before the 
Commission by Mr. Lysaght on behalf of the Miners' Lodges, andwhich were spoken to in the evidence of 
the diflerent members of the Delegate Board 1 A. I have. 
13125. Q. You have missed out one recommendation-that is, as to the cancellation of the certificate of Mr. 
Rogers, as you consider that you have nothing to do with that 1 A. Yes. 
13126. Q. Recommendation No. I is " Managers, under-managers, deputies, and shot firers, to hold 
certificates of competency by examination, and to have had five years' practical milling experience, before 
being eliible for their respective positions." What do you lay as to that 1 A. Managers and under-0

mangers now hold certificates, either of competency by examination or of service in virtue of actual manage-
ment of a colliery, prior to the passing of the Coal Mines Regulation Act in 1896 (Secs. 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9, of 
the Coal Mines Regulation Act, 1902). 
13127. Q. in the case of a mine in which not more than twenty persons are employed, what is the 
con(iition I A. It is only necessary for the Manager to hold a permit from an Inspector, without holding 
either a certificate of competency or of service. 
13128. Q. That is under section 4. A. Yes. 
13129. Q. There are a number of mines, are there not., in New South Wales in which small numbers of 
miners are engaged 1 A. There are about forty mines, I think, in which under twenty persons are 
employed. 
13130. Q. What have you to say with regard to the suggestion as it affects managers and under-managers 
who have certificates of service I A. Capable Managers and under-managers, who have certificates of 
servic, may have reached such an age that they might be unable to pass a theoretical examination in order 
to gain a certificate of competency, and on that account to take away their certificate of service, might 
produce very inequitable results and deprive them of their only means of making a living without effecting 
any compensating advantage. In course of time the class of Managers holding certificates of service will 
cease to exist, and in the meantime provision is made in section 10 of the 11  Coal-mines Regulation Act, 
1902," whereby the certificates of Managers and under-managers proved to be incompetent may be 
cancelled. 
13131. Q. In view of the sate of the law, and under all the circumstances, what opinion do you form about 
the sug4estion? A. It do not think that any change in the law is necessary in regard to Managers and 
under-managers. 
13132. Q. how are deputies and shot firers at present selected I [Zfo auswem'.[ 
13133. 11 is honor.] Q. Are there in New South WTales  any men holding those service certificates who have 
not actually put them into operation by becoming Managers I A. I think there are a few. 
13134. Q. Would you suggest that in these cases something might be done without leading to any injustice, 
seeing that these gentlemen have not taken advantage of their certificates 1 A. It would be difficult to 
make any distinction with regard to these men, who, although they may not be in active service, may be 
competent, but incompetent to pass an examination. 
13135. Q. Would you suggest that some further inquiry might be made with a view to these gentlemen 
Ulldergoitlg some further examination before they have the right to have these certificates recognised I 
A. It might be necessary in the case of men who have not been doing efficient duty for a number of years. 
13136. Q. It might be a little risky, under these circumstances; to trust to service certificates? A. Yes, 
the time during which a man nnght be unconnected with colliery management might make him a little 
rusty. 
13137. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. There might be cases in which men had been out some six months? A. There 
might be. 
13138. his honor.] Q. I mean where a service certificate has been obtained but never used I 
13139. .lifr. Ritchie.] Q. They c,111  get service certificates yet. I mean that persons who have occupied the 
position of Manager can get a service certificate by applying for it? A. I do not (luite  follow you. 
13140. Q. A service certificate can even now be granted to a person who has been a Manager within five 
years of the passing of the Act? A. Yes, from 1891 to 1896. 
13141. Q. Suppose a man was the Manager of a mine for twelve months, four years before the passing of 
the act, he could still get a certificate? A. Yes, if lie proves his qualifications. 
13142. his honor.] Mr. Ritchie has put a much worse case than the one I gave. I was not thinking 
of a case where a man could now procure a certificate because of past services ; but of eases where men 
procured service certificates immediately after the passing of the Act and have never taken advantage 
of them. 
13143. dIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Some bill is now before Parliament dealing with this question? A. Yes. 
13144. Q. Is it instigated by the Doparfinentl A. I do not know whom it is instigated by. 
13145. Q. Is it instigated by the Minister? A. Yes. 
13146. Q. What will be the effect of it., if it is passed? A. The effect of it will be to compel Managers, who 
hold certificates of service, to pass examinations. 
13147. dIr. Ritchie.] Q. Was not that Bill introduced by Mr. Esteli I A. I think it was. 
13118. AIr. Bruce 5nmit1m.] Q. Now, with regard to the case mentioned by Mr. Ritchie in which a man, now 
without a certificate, may obtain it at any time on the strength of experience gained between 1891 and 
196-would that come within the scope of the ease suggested by His Honor-that a man should be refused 
a certificate unless he has been engaged in practical work within a certain number of years? A. It is a difficult 
question, but that is time only reasonable way in avhiclm it can be fixed. 
13149. Q. You do not wish to champion time cause of men who are unfit by want of modern practical work 
to occupy positions in which time lives of so many people are at stake 1 A. Cci tainly not. 
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13150. Q. But at the same time you do not want to see men well advanced in years, and possessed perhaps 
of considerable ability, deprived of the means of earning their livelihood, unless some advantage is gained 
A. That is my evidence. 
13151. Q. Now, with regard to men who occupy the positions of deputies and shot-firers, how do they stand 
at present? A. They are selected by the Managers, and are supposed to be competent persons for their 
duties, as indicated by General Rules 4 and 12, section 47. 
13152. Q. Would you propose any alteration in view of the evidence given before the Commission? A. 
Managers will naturally select the most competent men available for these positions. It may, however, 
sometimes happen that Managers for some reasons which we do not !,:now, may select persons who are not 
altogether competent, and as these are very responsible positions, and in order to test their competency by 
some means in addition to those adopted by the Manager, I would suggest that an oral, practical examin-
ation by the Board of Examiners now appointed under the Coal Mines Act to examine candidates for 
Managers and under-managers, should be made. 
13153. Q. Such examination would, I suppose, be confined to a summary of the duties laid down in the 
Rules applicable to these people 1 A. Yes. 
13154. His flexor.] Would you suggest that the examination should be made for the purpose of 
allowing a man to obtain a certificate which he could hold until some offer was made to him, or do you 
suggest that, before a man is appointed by a manager to a position of deputy or shot-firer, he should 
undergo an examination as to his qualifications? A. In the event of a man being appointed, I would 
suggest that in addition to an examination by the Manager he should undergo a verbal examination by 
the Board. 
13155. Q. For that particular purpose i  A. Yes, for that particular purpose. 
13156. Q. When a Manager thinks of appointing a man, therefore, lie would have to be sent to the Board 
to undergo an examination before lie could be appointed? A. That matter might be arranged by the Board 
sitting a little more frequently. The Board might sit twice as often as it does now. 
13157. Mr. Robertson.1 Q. Row would that work in practice. If I wanted to appoint a deputy to-morrow, 
I would have to go without making an appointment until the man I sought to appoint had appeared before 
the Board, which might hold a meeting three months hence. Would it not be better that these men should 
have certificates in the same way as the Managers or under-managers 1 A. No doubt the suggestion I made 
at first might be unworkable. 
13158. Q. Would it not be better for a man to qualify for a certificate and then lie could be appointed 
after obtaining it? A. It certainly would be. 
13159. Q. Do you see any necessity for drawing any distinction between a deputy and a fireman? A. I 
think that their duties are so intimately connected with each other, that one examination would be sufficient, 
as it would he fixed up on the same basis. 
13160. Mr. Bruce S'nmith.l Q. You think that a man might have an examination which would fit him for 
either of the posts? A. Yes. 
13161. Q. What conclusion have you come to with regard to the difficulty presented to you by Mr. 
Robertson, that if a Manager wishes to choose a man as deputy, he might have to wait until that man had 
undergone an examination. Would it not be better to have a standard oral examination, and to Itt 
anybody go up for it who is ambitious enough to fill such a position, and then to require Managers to 
choose firemen who have passed the examination? A. I see the difficulty, and I think it would be better 
to adopt the plan suggested. 
13162. Q. You think the work could be done by the existing Board of Exarnillers, without creating a new 
Board? A. Yes. 
13163. Q. In connection with that certificate, what would you recommend for the guidance of shot-firers. 
A. At present General Rule 12, section 47, is very involved, and it is very difficult for the ordinary lay 
mind to understand it, and I think it would be well to hey down a set of instructions for the guidance of 
these men. - 
13164. Q. I ought to give you the chance of prefacing your evidence by saying that you are expressing your 
ophiion now subject to the right of modification, in matters of detail after you have heard what the Managers 
of the mines may say with regard to the practicability of the suggestions made. A. Yes. 
13165. Q. You are giving evidence so that the Managers may know what you are prepared to recommend 
in the absence of any evidence from them ? A. Yes. 
13166. Q. Recommendation No. 2 is that "Inspectors should be vested with absolute power to order the 
use of safety-lamps." You remember the various opinions expressed on this matter? A. I do not approve 
of the absolute form of the recommendation. 
13167. Q. What do you propose? A. I would propose that the Chief Inspector should have power to enforce 
the use of safety-lamps, subject, however, to arbitration, as provided by tbe Coal-mines Regulation Act, 
section 25. 
13168. Q. Why would you make that qualification for arbitration instead of giving absolute iig'it to the 
Chief Inspector? A. I think that the other side should be heard as well. Both miners and owners s'iould 
be heard with reference to the proposal. - 
13169. Q. You take it that the proprietors or the Manager might be able to show that the information 
communicated to the Inspector was incorrect? A. They might be able to show that. 
13170. Q. And you think that it would be a fair solution of the question to allow both sides to be heard, 
and to let the Arbitration Court he the tribunal for the purpose of settling the matter ? A. I think that 
would be a fair solution of the difficulty. 
13171. Q. Pending the finding of the At-biti-ation Court what do you propose to be done? A. I think the 
manager should put in safety-lamps. 
13172. Q. Do you think that the Manager ought to be required to do this? A. Yes. 
13173. Q. Supposing your suggestion is adopted, would that not he a more favourable one with regard to 
the interests of the proprietors than the practice in England at the present time. I think, there, that the 
}Iome Secretary has absolute potver, which comes to him from information supplied to him by the Inspec-
t u-s to order the use of safety-lamps in any mine. A. That is so. 
1317 1. Q. The third Recommendation is, that Ventilation by furnace should be prohibited, and fans 
sub titute,d?" A. Yes. 
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13175. His Honor.] Q. I might ask whether, in case of emergency in a large mine, you would recommend 
that the Mines Department should be bound to supply lamps temporarily, pending inquiry by arbitration, 
some fee, possibly, being chargeable against the Company ? A. I think an arrangement like that might be 
come to. 
13176. Mr. Robertson.] You see that a large number of safety-lamps could not be purchased within the 
colony. You might get fifty, but it would be impossible to get 500. 
13177. Q. Mr. Bruce Smith.] The Department might obtain a supply of the lamps, and if they were not 
required by the Company they could go back to the Department. If they were required by the Company, 
permanently, they could be bought from the Department, and the Department could obtain more. 
13178. His honor.] I think that could be arranged for. 
13179. Air. Bruce Smith.] I was referring to the recommendation that "Ventilation by furnace should be 
prohibited and fans substituted." What have you to say with regard to this matter? A. Fan ventilation, 
especially in shallow mines, is no doubt more efficient and regular, than that by means of the furnace. 
\Vhere inflammable gas is known to be given off in a mine, and the ventilation is found to be unsatisfactory, 
and more than thirty persons are employed underground at one time, it might well be required that a fan 
be erected. 
13180. Q. Speaking more particularly about Mount Kembla. You beard the evidence of the miners on 
this question, and you also know something of your own knowledge? A. As regards Mount Kembla, where 
the upcast shaft is over 400 feet deep, and the quantity of air circulating is more than 80,000 cubic 
feet per minute, the ventilation, if properly conducted to the working places, is in my opinion sufficient to 
meet the present requirements of the mine ; and after hearing all the evidence, I do not think its unsatis-
factory nature has been sufficiently demonstrated to justify me in recommending an immediate change to 
fan ventilation. Further extension and development may demand an increased ventilating power in the 
future. 
13181. Q. Where a demand is made that fans should be substituted for furnaces, what would you propose. 
should be done? A. I would recommend that any such eases should be brought within the scope of section 
25 of the Coal-mines Act. 
13182. (7. You recognise that the change from furnace to fan may involve very large expenditure? A. It 
may. 
13183. (7. And where an Inspector has come to the conclusion that a fan should be substituted for a 
furnace you would allow a Company to have a say in the matter and refer it to the tribunal under time Act? 
A. Yes. 
13 18 1. Q. Would not that be the case now under the Act ? Could not the Inspector require a mine owner 
to put in a fan? A. Not with reference to ventilation. That is dealt with in the first General Rule. 
13185. Q. Then it does not come under the Arbitration provisions of the Act? A. No. 
13186. You wculd bring the matter under the Arbitration 1Mo\s1onS. A. Yes, that is my idea. 
13187.  So that it will rest with the Inspector, if he comes to the conclusion that the ventilation is unsatis-
factory, to require the Company to "show cause " why they should not substitute a fan 1 A. Yes. 
13188. His honor.] (7. You would simply remodel that provision which has reference to matter.-, already 
provided for 1 A. Yes. 
1:3189. Q, I suppose that provision continually hampers the action of the Inspector? A. Yes. 
13190. Mr. Brace Smith.] I think that the words " Matters not already provided for," could be struck out 
and that would bring in the question of both fans and safetylamps. 
13191. His honor.] Or anything else. Why should the action of the Inspector be hampered in this 
maniier 
13192. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Wood informs me that the present wording is the result of too closely 
copying the English Act of Parliament, which has already been altered in many ways, and, therefore, these 
parenthetical words in the Act might be taken out. 
1:3193. Q. There are some special circumstances counected with the Mount Kembla case in connection with 
the Sydney water supply ? A. The Kembla upcast shaft is on the catchment area of time Sydney water 
reserve. 
13191. Q. You may mention if that affects the Board in any way I A. The Metropolitan Board of Water 
and Sewerage object to milling operations on the surface of this area. In fact, it is understood betu-een 
that Board and the Mines Department that any leases of that area shall only be granted on the understand-
ing that no mining operations are concluctei from the surface. 
1319.5. Q. Does that provision apply to any other mine besides Mount Kemhla I A. Yes, to several on the 
coast. 
13195. At present no bailding is involved on this area or the presence of any workmen, or any sort of work 
on the surface? A. No. 
13197. Q. There is merely a hole in the earth and a funnel 3 A. Yes. 
13198. (. Where a mine is so situated geographically that a fan would be away some hundreds of feet up 
a mountain, will you tell the Commission if there would be any practical objection, more especially if any 
motive power were necessary, to having the fan in that remote p srt, away from the Manager, the under-
manager, and all the other working operations of the mine ? A. It would not be likely under those 
circumstances that a fan would be under the daily supervision of the officials in the same manner that the 
furnace now is. 
1:3199. Q. how many men would it involve for the actual working of afan ? A. Thrce. 
13200. (7. Three men continually? A. One on each shift. 
13201. (7. So that there would be one man there only at a time, and be would be far removed from the 
administration of the mine, and upon him alone the ventilation of the whole of the mine would depend? 
A. Yes, unless some other arrangements were made. 
13202. His honor.] I was just asking Mr. Ritchie whether anybody would ever dream of putting up an 
engine on the top of a hill, so far away from the general woikings and he says no. 
1:3203. Mr. Robertson.] Q. In the event of a fan, you do not want this shaft at all? A. The top of the 
upcast shaft would in this case be the best position in which to place a fan, having regard to the workings, 
and the shaft being in a central position. 
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13 204. Q. In the case of Kembla the shaft is already there, and in a favourable place where a fan could be 
put. In the event of starting a new colliery, would you not make arrangements to bring the return air to 
the fan near to the tunnel mouth A. You would have to do that in the first working of a mine, whatever 
was done in the future: 
13205, Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I am keeping myself to Mount Kembla 1 A. I am only speaking of Mount 
Kembla as it stands at presept. 
13206. Q. Do you admit that if they were starting another Mount Kembla, or any other mine, it would be 
possible to arrange a fan so that the ventilation would be near the entrance? A. Yes. 
13207. Q. And bring the return air back so that the arrangements could be within the province of the 
General Manager? A. Yes. 
13208. His Honor.] Q. The question is, what Mr. Atkinson thinks should be done in the present case, and 
whether it would be reasonable to put a fan on the top of a mountain to keep the present system as it is? 
A. The better place for a fan -would certainly be at the top of the upcast shaft-that is, of course, accepting 
all conditions as they are at present. 
13209. Mr. Robertson.] Q. And having regard to the arrangements underground? A. Yes. 
13210. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Under any circumstances would you confine the wosk of attending to a fan 
to one man ? A. No, I think it would be more reasonable to have at least two men about. 
13211. Q. You do not think that the ventilation at Mount Kembla at the present time is shown to be 
unsatisfactory, and therefore you do not recommend any change? A. I do not think it is unsatisfactory at 
present. And I may say that I think the difficulty of getting fan shafts will present itself in other 
collieries on the eatchnent area, and if the Commission could make any suggestions or recommendations 
which would assist the Board in this matter it would be a good thing. 
13212. his Honor.] Q. Is it not usual, where fire is employed, to go in for level ventilation? A. At some of 
the mines, whose properties extend much further back, it may be necessary for them to have some 
ventilation shaft further back, such as Mount Kembla has. 
13213. Q. A true upcast. A. Yes. Where these mines have to go 3 or 4 miles back they will require 
some shaft on the catchment area. 
13214. Q. Mr. Bruce Smith Q. And that will be quite irrespective of any return of air to the front of the 
mine ? A. Yes, irrespective of that. 
13215. Q. And you suggest that the Department of Mines should have power to deal with this matter in a 
way that would harmonise with the dlesii'es of the Water and Sewerage Board. A. Yes. 
13216. Q. With regard to Recommendation No. 4 "waste workings to be absolutely sealed off and 
surrounded by returned airways for fear of emissions, such return airways not to come in contact with the 
airways." What do you say with regard to that? A. The proposal to absolutely seal off waste workings 
is opposed to the best principles of the best mining authorities. 
13217. Q. Are there any circumstances in which you would seal off a waste working? A. Unless to & al 
off a fire or anticipated fire, all waste wm kings and goaf edges should be left open to return airways, the 
former being ventilated as far as practicable, and the edge of the latter swept by a ventilating furnace. 
In this way noxious and inflammable gases would be regularly dispersed, instead of being allowed to 
accumulate. 
1321$. his Honor.] Q. I do not catch what you said about sweeping the edge of the goaf by a ventilating 
current. I suppose you would leave the waste open to the return airways ? A. What I said was 
that unless it was to seal off a fire, all waste workings and goaf edges should be left open to return 
airways. 
13219. Q. I see, you mean the return airways? ii. Yes. 
13220. Q. But you provide for any specid inlet of air? A. No, only the return air-that is, after it has 
been round the mine ; but in some cases fresh air might be necessary. 
13221. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Would it act as a draw? A. The object is to carry away any noxious gases. 
13222. Q. You do not propose to pass the intake air through the goafs at all A. No. 
13223. (7. You suggest then that the goaf should be sealed off on the intake side? A. Yes, there should 
always be a sealing off between the intake and the return air. But there should not be a sealing off in 
such a way as is, I understand, proposed by this recommendation. 
13224. Air. Ritchie.] Q. Do you mean that no intake air should pass the edges of these gcafs ? A. Yes. 
13225. Mi. Bruce Smith.] (7. The return air would be at that stage avheri it would not have to go on to 
any men? A. Yes. 
13226. Q. But it might be returning from some men, and passing on to other men ? A. If it is, it should 
not be allowed to go through the goaf. 
13227. Q. I suppose you would not call it return air if it went on to any other men ? A. No. 
13228. Air. Ritchie.] Q. Return air is air that is done with? A. Yes. 
13229. Jfi. Bruce Smith.] Q. You mean after it has been to all the men and at the time when it is going 
to no more men? A. Yes. 
13230. Q. You have heard witnesses speak of the way in which the waste workings have been inspected in 
the Kembla mine? A. Yes. 
13231. Q. How ought they to be inspected? A. I think that the inspection of waste workings and goaf 
edges should be made with a locked safety-lamp in all cases. 
13232. Q. Would you leave that a matter of discretion? A. No. 
13233. Q. [low does that matter stand now ;-are all mines using locked safety-lamps for the purpose? 
A. Yes. 
13234. (7.-Then the practice is generally adoptcd? A. Yes. 
13235. Q. Do you think, as you saw Mount Kembla, that the 35-acre goaf was left open to the intake? 
A. I only saw it after the explosion. I am not sure about all the places on the north edge of that goaf. 
13236. (7. Did you not see it some months after the explosion. Was the 35-acre goaf then open to the 
intake? A. It was some days after; I did not see it on the November or December visits; but I quite 
agree with, the objections offered to the practice of allowing a goaf to be open to an intake. 
13237. Q. The fifth Recommendation is, that " All places except prospecting thrives should have cut-throughs 
not more than 30 yards apart " ? A. I think the principle embodied in the recommendation is undesirable, 
especially in deep mines, because (1) it might have the effect of making the pillars too small to carry the 
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supermcuml)ent strata, and (2) each opening, although temporarily closed by means of a stopping, affords 
an avenue for leakage of air, which over long distances amounts to a large percentage of the total volume, 
anT on that account openings by means of cut-throughs should be avoided as much as possible. 
13238. Q. Has the practice of placing cut-throughs near to one another led to any results in New South 
Wales? A. Ye, the practice of pillars being too small has led, in many cases, to creeps, which have 
resulted in the loss of a large quantity of coal. 
13939. Q. You have heard witnesses speak of the loss of 2,003 or 3,000 tons of coal in the 3.3 acre goaf, in 
consequence of the want of adequate support ? Was that feasibie A. It might have been caused by leavsng 
small pillars. 
13240. Q. What is the weight of the ordinary strata overlying the coal? A. The weight of the ordinary 
strata overlying coal-seams is equal to 1 lb. to the square inch to every foot in the altitude. 
13241. 11is honor.] Q. Dc you mean for every vertical foot? A. Yes. It is equal to 1 lb. per vertical foot 
per square inch. 
13212. dIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You do not think that cut-througlis are necessary to give satisfactory 
ventilation? A. Not so long as the ventilation is carried to the face. 
13243. Q. What is the extent to which pillars are left in Great Britain ? A. They vary to a considerable 
extent according to the depth of the mine. In some cases they are 100 yards square ; and in other cases 
pillars 66 yards square, or 44 yards square, are common. 
13211. Q. You think that, if cut.-tliroughs are placed too close to one another there would be a constant 
source of leakage, if they were not effectively stopped? A. Yes. 
13245. Q. It is proposed in Recommendation No. 6 that "there should be an inspection with locked safety-
lamps ii4 all cases" I A. I think that is a necessary precaution, and should be made universal in view of 
the uncertainty as to when inflammable gas may make its appearance. 
13216. His Honor.] You heard the evidence given by Mr. May on that point, perhaps Mr. Atkinson 
might like to say something about that? 
13217. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not remember what Your Honor refers to. 
13218. ills honor.] Mr. May was evidently under the impression that, if a flare lamp was used in a mine, 
the safety-lamp should not only be unlocked, but should also be. used for marking the roof with-for 
burning a mark on the roof. 
13249. The Witness] I have heard of that suggestion; but I do not approve of it. 
13250. his honor.] I suppose that is founded upon some old practice. 
13251. The Witness.] It is founded upon the practice of burning gas-actually setting fire to it-which 
is described in Galloway's book. 
13252. dIr. Robertson.] Q. A practice which obtained some time in the last century, I suppose 1 
13253. dIr. Bruce Smith.] We had two witnesses who said that they set light to gas in order to get rid of it. 
13254. Q. Recommendation No. 7 is, " Monthly examination and report by deputy and Djstrict Inspector 
with the hydrogen flame "? A. In the first place, this recommendation is indefinite as to the scope of 
the examination. I do not approve of putting hydrogen lamps into the hands of every deputy, as 
they require most careful manipulation, and in the hands of inexperienced persons might become a 
positive danger. 
13255. Q. What is the principle of the lamp ? A. The principle of the lamp is the attachment of a cylinder 
of highly- compressed hydrogen (1,500 lb. to the square inch), and the excessive liberation of this gas might 
easily burst the lamp, and so expose an open flame, perhaps under most dangerous conditions. 
13256. Q. Is the recommendation differential? A. It is not differential ? Nothing is stated as to whether 
hydrogen lamps should be used in shale-mine,, and other mines in which fire-damp has, as far as I know, 
never been seen, as in the west. 
13257. Q. It is made universal in the recommendation? A. Yes, I take it that the intention is to make it 
universal. 
13258. Q. Talking about the examination of deputies and firemen, would you make a recommendation that 
they should be examined with regard to the hydrogen lamp? A. There would be no harm in examining 
them on the subject; but, generally speaking, it would be better to leave the matter in the hands of more 
experienced men. 
13259. Q. You have received a letter from Mr. J. S. Martin, ll.M. Inspector of Mines for the Southern 
District of England, in which lie refers to the use of the hydrogen lamp? A. Yes. 
13260. Q. Does be not state in this letter 

It is very little used in this country, and for my own part I hold that the lamp ordinarily in use in a mine is the one 
upon which action should be taken. It is to my mind the indicator at the disposal of the ordinary officials and wo'knien 
and they should act on and in accordance with it. I do not go so far as to require, or act on, the hydrogen lamp 
indications, if not visible in the other. 

That letter was written to you, I believe, on the 15th of December last? A. Yes. 
13231. Ills honor.] Q. Which snake of lamp does Mr. Martin speak about? A. He makes no reference to 
any particular make of lamp. 
13209. dir. Ritchie. 9. I suppose he means any particular safety-lamp which may be in use in a mine 1 
A. Yes. 
13263. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Recommendation No. S is-" A minimum of 500 cubic feet of air per minute 
to be provided for every horse, instead of 100 as at present "1 A. With reference to that I may say that 
the Act now provides for an average of 100 cubic feet for every man, boy, and horse. The air required 
by a horse at work is equal to 200 cubic feet per minute, and every man requires 42 cubic feet per 
minute. With twenty.flve horses and-say-300 men, as at Mount Keinbla, the present minimum provides 
double that which is actually consumed, but allowing liberally for vitiation, there still would be an 
ample margin. - 
13264. 9. Is the actual supply confined to the minimum I A. No, generahly speaking the actual supply is 
never confined to the statutory minimum; and, having reference to the powers of the Inspector under 
General Rule 1, section 47, I do not see any necessity to alter the law in the direction suggested. 
13265. Q. Recommendation No. 9 is-" All doors to be erected so as to close and remain cles€-dof their own 
motion." Is that an alteration in the existing requirements? A. No. The special rules now require this to 
be done. 
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13266. Q. Can you name any mines in England in which the same special rule is observed? A. There are 
a very large number of mines where the rule is enforced. 
13267. Q. Do I understand that if there are any doors in existence in any New South Wales mine which do 
not close automatically, it is against the special rule? A. Yes. 
13268. Q. Mines in which this rule is enforced in England are among some of the largest? A. I think 
that there was some slight modification of the rule at the Metropolitan Colliery to suit the local circum-
stances. 
13269. Q. Is the rule generally observed? A. It has always been observed. 
13270. Q. I suppose that if the doors were to close automatically that ought not to render the miners less 
careful to see that they are closed and that no pieces of coal, or anything else, are allowed to keep them open? 
A. I do not think that it would remove the responsibility from the workmen of seeing that the doors are 
actually closed. In fact, where the rule has been in force persons have been prosecuted for not attending 
to it. 
13271. Q. here 2 A. No, not here. 
13272. Q. I have heard a suggestion that the rule is not in force here—is that true? A. It is in force here. 
13273. Q. And is there a rule in force here under which men could be prosecuted for leaving such a door 
open? A. Yes. 
13274. Q. Recommendation No. 10 is that there should be "Double doors on drives between main intakes 
and returns, and on main headings " 1 A. I think it is required that this should be done now--except 
perhaps in main headings. I know it is in main intakes and returns. 
13275. Q. A special rule has been made since the Mount Kembla disaster? A. Yes. 
13276. Q. Are there special rules in England requiring double doors? A. Yes, in nearly all districts. 
13277. Q. What is the exception you spoke of? A. The way the special rule is framed is to require double 
doors on drives as between main intakes and returns. This recommendation also mentions main headings. 
I think that having double doors between main intakes and returns has been usual so far as drafting the 
rule is concerned, but it may be necessary to carry it a little further in some cases. 
13278. Q. Do you see any objection to carrying it further? A. The only objection would be that of altering 
the rule just after it has been passed. 
13279. Q. If there are a number of other alterations being made it could be done? A. It could be done then. 
13280. Q. Would there be any difficulty in including the main headirgs in the practice? A. You would not 
require double doors in the last cut-through near the face. You would have to draw the line somewhere, 
and it is difficult to say where the line should be drawn. 
13281. Q. Recommendation No. 11 is that " A weekly measurement of air should be taken in each section 
and a report thereof sent to the Inspector." What is the present practice 1 A. At present the air is 
measured and recorded hy—(I) Management, monthly, as per General Rule 1, section 47 ; (2) Inspectors 
dur:ng the ordinary visits of inspection; (3) by the check-inspectors on behalf of the workmen. 
13282. Q. Would the proposal made in the recommendation increase the safety of the mine? A. No. 
Having regard to what I have stated, and to the fact that the proposal if put into oeratiomm would not, in 
my opinion, ensure increased safety to the workmen, whilst it would add largely and unnecessarily to the 
work of the management, and considerably increase the clerical work of the Inspectors, I cannot recommend 
a change in the manner indicated. 
13283. Q. Recommendation No. 12 is : "An extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites equal to one-
third of the number of persons employed below ground to be kept constantly in good eider and ready for 
use." What do you say about that? A. Having regard to the evidence that has been given in connection 
with the Kembla explosion, I would recomnienci that for the use of rescue parties in the event of accident, 
where safety-lamps are not required to be used for ordinary work, there should be kept a supply equal to 
one-fifth of the number of underground workers. Where safety-lamps are required for ordinary purposes, 
and where, therefore, a certain number of those ordinarily used would be availalle in the event of accidents, 
I would recommend that additional safety-lamps be kept in excess of ordinary requirements equal to one-
tenth of the number of underground workers. 
13284. Q. You heard the evidence of the difficulty experienced at Mount Kembla with regard to obtaining 
lamps to go to the rescue of the men? A. I did. 
13285. Q. And your recommendation is, to some extent, based on that? A. Yes. - - 
13286. Q. Do you remember with regard to the accident at Stockton, what took place? A. That was before 
my time, but I understand that a number of rescuers were lost in attempting to recover men from the mine. 
13287. Q. Did they have safety-lamps? A. They would not have safety-lamps but naked lights. 
13288. Q. What would probably be the cause of this accident to the rescuers? A. Sometimes it is the 
danger of too many persons, especially inexperienced persons, rushing into a mine. 
13289. Q. You think that the happy medium is required? A. I think that care should be exercised in 
selecting those who might be allowed to go in. There should not be an indiscriminate rush of men, and 
possibly of inexperienced men. 
13290. Q. You heard some of the witnesses say that during certain hours the whole of the safety-lamps 
would be in use in a mine? A. Yes. 
13291. Q. Is that why you require a fifth and a tenth extra? A. Yes. 
13292. Q. In the case of the Mount Kembla Mine it would give thi'rty extra lamps, on the assumption that 
the whole of the lamps were in use? A. Yes. 
13293. Q. You think that would be quite enough? A. Yes. 
13294. Q. What about the material. Would you require the lamps to be kept ready trimmed, like those of 
the wise virgins, all ready to be lighted I A. Not as long as there is a supply of oil and wicks, and as long 
as the lamps are otherwise ready. If the lamps were filled with oil and allowed to remain unused for some 
weeks, they could not afterwards be used immediately. 
1329.5. Q. You merely require that a supply of material should be kept on hand? Yes. 

[At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 10 o'clock the following morning.] 
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The Comm ssin met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlingliurst.] 

ljJ rccnt: 
C. E. R. MURRAY, FSQ., D.C.J. (PREsIDEN'i'). 

J). A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ, (CoaiMtssIoNER). I D. RITCHIE, ESQ., (CoIMIssroNEia). 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c. (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) ; and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. G. J. Barry, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors 
of the Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined, as under:—

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Bruce Smith (continued) 

13290. Q. You were just going to start Recommendation No. 13, as to the watering of the haulage roads 
and other places necessary. \Vhat opinion have you formed with regard to that? A. Well, I have already 
suggested that, where practicable, coal-dust should be watered but I should like to hear what the mine 
managers have to say with reference to the matter and when I give evidence again, probably towards the 
end of the Commission, I shall be in a better position to submit some proposal to the Commission for their 
consideration. 
13297. Q. I think you have gone very fully into this, in your own mind, have you not? A. Yes. 
13298. Q. And I think that you have recognised the difficulty of laying down any hard-and-fast principe, 
applicable to all mines? A. I have. 
13299. Q. I will lead you this far I think you recognise that each mine must be treated according to its 
own peculiar conditions? A. Certainly, yes. 
13300. Q. And I think the present leaning of your mind is this —see if I put it properly—that this question 
of watering should be one to be brought within the province of that clause which allows the Inspector to 
make some additional requirement to anything that may be done by the management ; and, in the event of 
the management not approving of that, to let it be determined by arbitration under that provision ? A. 
Yes, I think that would be a commendable and rqasonahle course to accept. 
13301, Q That is your present fe&ing in regard to it; but, after the Managers have heard that general 
statemeut of your opinion, and have given evidence, you will be prepared to lay down some more definite 
proposal? A. Yes. 
13302. Q. Some of the mines, to your knowledge, have a practically unlimited supply of water always at 
hand? A. Some few ; but they are decidedly in the minority. 
13303. Q. And some, you know, have so little supply that they would have to bring anything required for 
the purpose from outside? A. That is so. 
13301. Q. That is one reason why it is a little difficult to lay down any general rule whichi would be 
applicable to all mines. 
13305. Q. Now, leaving that for the time being, and passing on to Recommendation No. 14. That is a 
proposal that managers should be compelled to give more personal time and attention to the management 
of their collieries. What (10 you say about that ? A. Well, at present, either the manager or the under-
manager is required by the Act to give daily personal supervision to the mine ; but I think that in some 
cases, there is a tendency on the 1et of the managel' to delegate most of the underground work to the 
under-manager. - 
13305. (7. And what is your opinion of the duty of a niansger under ordinary circumstances 1 A. V-ll, 
under ordinary circumstances, I think that a manager should endeavor to go underground, and visit some 
of the workings, returns, ebc., two or three times a week ; and it would be advantageous if they were 
required to make a report in a book for the purpose, indicating the general result of their investigations, 
and the parts of the mine inspected. 
13307. Q. You feel the same difficulty, in regard to that, in laying down any hard-and-fast rule, do you 
not? I mean, as to how much of the mine they should visit ; or how often they should see it I A. Well, I 
do not exactly see the same difficulty as in the other question. 
13308. Q. Not to the same extent, no. A. I have suggested that,.generally speaking, two or three times 
a week they should endeavour to visit underground. 
13309. Q. To be in the mine? A. To be in the mine and visit the underground workings. There might 
be occasions when that would not be possible. That is my general idea of what they should endeavour to 
do, having regard to other work and responsibilities attached to them. 
13310. (7. Then you will put your proposal in regard to that in a more definite form, after you have heard 
the Managers' evidence? A. Yes, if it is desired to do so. 
13311. (7. Recommendation No. 15 is a suggestion that instruments should be placed at the bottom of the 
upcast to determine variations of heat and air pressure I A. Well, at present, a barometer and thermometer 
are required to be kept above ground in a conspicuous place near to the entrance of every mine, according 
to General Rule 34, section 47 ; and, in addition, a water-gauge, where a fan is in use. I cannot recommend 
any other instruments for the puiposes suggested. 
13312. Q. Regarding this manhole suggestioa, No. 16, what have you to say 1 A. The present size of the 
manholes required by General Rule No. 14, is 6 feet high, 3 feet wide, and 4 feet deep. I think this is 
ample size, and have heard no evidence that leads me to reccmnmead any change. 
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13313. Q. Now, with regard to Recommendation No. 18, a proposal that the employees should be instructed 
regularly as to the means of escape, what have you to say '1 A. In view of the possibility of explosion, 
fire, or inundation, underground, it is no doubt desirable that miners and other employees should be 
conversant with all the possible roads out of a mine and, in some cases, managers have taken means to 
inform them, both by allowing them to travel the different routes, and by indicating the routes by means 
of guide boards. I would recommend that, whenever a party of six underground workers request to be 
shown the different routes out of the mine, it should be the duty of the manager to allow them to go, 
accompanied by a competent official ; so long as this request is not made more than once in three months. 
13314. Q. You did not mean to limit it to once in three months for six men? A. The same six men not 
to go more than once in three months. 
13315. His Honor.] Q. Or any of the same six 1 A. Or any of the same six, not more than once in three 
months. 
13316. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Well, in connection with this matter, I think there is some statement made 
by Mr. Hall, Inspector of the Liverpool District, England 1 A. Yes, in connection with the fire which took 
place at the Bamfurlong Colliery in 1892. 
13317. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I will read it :— 

Mr. Woods, one of the Miners' representatives at the inquest, laid stress on the importance of having some methcd 
of making known to the workmen generally the position and whereabouts of the return air-roads, so that,should the 
necessity arise, they might 1 enabled more speedily to avail themselves of such roads for escape. This is, no doubt, very 
desirable ; and it is, perhaps, a matter which has not received the attention it ought. I wculd suggest, with this object in 
view, that batches of the woi'kmeis should, from time to time, be compelled to return from their work by way of the return 
air-roads, and thus become familiar with them. 
13318. Q. Well, Recommendation No. 10 was that question of a black-list. What do you say about that? 
A. Well, as this is a matter not affecting in any way the safety of the persons employed in or about mines, 
I am of opinion that it should not have any place in the Coal Mines Regulation Act. As to wlether the 
question should be dealt with by legislation is a matter for the Commission. 
13319. his Honor.] Q. It is too general a question? A. Yes, your Honor. 
13320. Q. It would apply to other industries just as much as to the mining industry? A. Yes : it does not 
refer to questions of safety in any way. 
13321. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, the 20th suggestion is that safety-lamps should not be unlocked for 
shot firing. How does that statid, in the present state of the law ? A. This practice is at present permitted 
by General Rule 10. There are, however, safer methods of firing  shots ; and it would, in my opinion, be 
advisable to prevent lamps being opened for the purpose. It may, however, be pointed out that it is not so 
dangerous to open a safety-lamp as to fire a gundowder shot in a working place ; one being a email, steady 
flame; the other sometimes of considerable length, and always accompanied with force. I would like to add, 
in connection u ith this matter, that safety-lamps are frequently opened for tLe purpose of re.lighting lamps, 
which is permitted by General Rule 10, at stations spec:ally appointed for the purpose. I have some little 
evidence on the question of opening lamps to fire shots, takemi from the Royal Commission on Accidents in 
Mines, 1881, which might be of some interest to the Commission to hear the opinions therein expressed. 
13322. Mc. Bruce Smith.] Perhaps your Honor will take a note of this : it is another reference and to be 
found in Bulman and Redmayne, on "Colliery \Vomlcing and Management," page 16?-. I will just read the
evidence from the Royal Commission i-eferred to, which is as folio vs :—\V. Lishmen, Mining Engineer to 
the Earl of Durham, was asked 

Q. You always fire by means of a naked flame, the cap of the limp being taken off? A. Always. I 
believe, when I stated the number of shots fired daily by us, I said 500, if I mistake not. The average 
number is really 677." 

Mr. \V. Wright, a miner at Dinnington, and Seaton Burn Collieries, was asked 
"Q. How are they fired where you have been ? A. The deputy examines the place and as soon as Le 
discovers no gas or no danger, then, of coal-se, he takes his own lamp off and lu-cs the shot. 
"Q. He takes the top off the lamp and fires with the flame of the lamp ? A. Yes. 

Are you speaking of places where the safety-lamps are used - in the colliery that the deputy goes in 
and takes his lamp-to!) off in preference to stt-aw or touch-paper? A. Yes ; of course it is well known 
there is very little gas, and the lamps are simply used as a precaution and where that is done nobody 
has seen gas, but they are afraid that some gas might be near." 

Mr. W. T. Craig, Mining Engineer in North and South Staffordshire, and North Wales, gave the following 
evidence :-- 

Q. And, in the cases where you have a lamp there, how do you set fit-c to the fuse I A. The fireman 
takes his lamp-top off after examinatioa, and gives the man the light ; and he fires the fuse. The 
fireman and he retires for some distance, and the shot is fired ; and then the fireman returns and looks 
iound to see if it is all tight, and to see that no brattice or timbering wants attention. Both the life 
of the fireman and the man depend upoa the accuracy of that examination, and there is the safeguard 
against general neglect of ventilation in firing the shot. If there is gac, be is not obliged to work there. 
If that gas is from very defective ventilatiou, genem-ally, air-roads are attended to ; and there is no f mm 
of their being neglected if this examination is carried out. I have worked fiery seams in North Wales 
as well as Staffordshire" - - 

13323. Q. Well, notwithstanding the widespread adoption of this practice, what do you think ought to be
done ? A. I think that it leads to lax discipline, by giving, possibly, the miners and other employees an idea 
that, if an official may be allowed to open a lamp for the purpose of firing a shot, they might claim the same 
sort of permission for themselves. Therefoi-e, I think it should be avoided, and some better means of firing 
shots adopted. 
13324. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Aticiuson, your Honor, has just tabulated a number of authorities which 
might be useful to the Commission. I will hand them in. They are *uthiorities on mining, particularly in 
reference to colliery explosions ; references and authorities on the coal-dust theory; opinions ye watering 
coal-dust references as to the quantity of water required for watering coal-dust ; advantages of watering 
coal-dust; damp places arresting explosions ; the quantity of dust that is clangorous ; the weight of 
coal-dust ; papers refes-ring to coal-tlut in the transactions of the Federated Institute of Mining 
Engineers ; and references from ' Explosions in Coal Mints," by \V N. and J. B. Atkinson. 
13:325. Ills Honor.] Q. Are references to the passages given in that hit 1 A. il-ferences to the passages 
are given in some cates. 13326. 
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13326. 211r. Ritchie.] Q. Are the whole of these matters referred to in the parcel of books put in yesterday? 
A. No ; there is a whole library referred to here. 
13327. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think Mr. Atkinson could supply the Commission with any of the books that 
are wanted, 
13328. The list of references refrrred to was put in and maiked Exhibit No. 25. 
13323. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor will remember that I intimated that Mr. Atkinson thought it fair 
to express his opinion upon those twenty recommendations, in order that Mr. Wade, or somebody in his 
place, might have a general idea of the trend of Mr. Atkinson's mind ; so long as Mr. Atkinson was 
allowed to reserve to himself the right to a final expression of opinion after the Managers had expressed 
their views on those twenty recommendations. Now, lie has done that but there are a good many matters 
dealt with in the evidence of the miners which will, no doubt, be answered much more fully by the mine 
111 snagers ; and Mr. Atkinson thinks it equally fair that lie should express his opinion upon some of those 
questions —theyare very few—in order that the Managers may know what his opinion is on those also ; but 
to again reserve his right to come in afterwards, in case their evidence may have the effect of modifying 
his present opinions, and of expressing himself definitely and finally then. I think that is a fair 
arrangement. 
13330. His Ilonm..] It is just as well that they should know what Mr. Atkinson thinks, because Mr. 
Atkinson is representing the independent party, the Department. 
13331. Mr. Bruce Smith.] In regard to these matters, Mr. Atkinson has not written out his opinion ; and 
the members of the Commission may like to ask him some questions during his examinations. 
13332. The first is that some stress was laid upon the possibility of black-clamp acting as an agent in 
deranging the furnace. You remember Mr. Maguire gave some evidence about that. 
13333. (7. You might express to the Court your opinion upon that possibility? A. Having regard to the 
large quantity of air which was circulating over the furnace, I think that it is highly improbable that any 
such discharge of black-damp would be likely to be given off as would put out the furnace. There were between 
80,030 and 100,000 cubic feet of air passing per minute ; and, seeing that it requires 15 to 16 per cent, of 
black-clamp to extinguish a light, I think it is almost impossible to anticipate such a quantity. 1 have 
never heard of a furnace having been put out by black-clamp. 
13334. Q. I suppose it is, physically, possible? A. It is physically possible. In France they have had one 
or two cases of outbursts of black-damp, or carbonic acid gas. 
13335. Q. In the vicinity of the furnace? A. I do not know whether it was in the vicinity of the furnace 
but, had it occurred in the vicinity of the furnace, such an occurrence might have the effect of putting the 
furnace out ; but I am not aware of anything of that sort having occurred in this district. 
13336. Q. Do you think, then, that it is a possibility which should have any weight in denouncing the 
furnace method of ventilation 1 A. Not in my opinion. 
13337. Q. You remember that some evidence was givea about what they called " mixed lights" in mines. 
\Vould you express your opinion as to what the phrase " mixed lights" really means? I mean to say, there 
are, certain methods of working a mine with different lights, some open and some closed, that you do not 
think come under the de6nitioii of ''mixed lights." I would like you just to tell the Court what your 
opinion is on that matter 1 A. I tumId there seems to be some misapprehension or conflict as to what 
" mixed lights" refers to. In the Old Cuntry it is generally recognised that ''mixed lights" meant part of 
the working  faces being'worked with open lights, and part of the working faces being worked with safety-
lamps. That case, which I have put, would be, in my opinion, a true case of " mixed lights." In other 
cases, all the faces and working places might be worked with safety-lamps, but naked lights be permitted 
on the main intake air roads from the shaft bottom uii  to certain points, beyond which naked lights were 
not allowed to pass. That is a case vliicli I do not think has generally been suggested as a case of " mixed 
lights," although I believe it is so recognised in this State. - 
1333$. Q. Now, take the first class of mixed lights, the practice of having some of the faces worked with 
the naked light, and same of the faces and working places worked with safetg-lacups-_in your opinion is 
that safe or desirable? A. Well, it may be safe ; but I think it is unclesirible, as there are opportunities 
for persons working with naked lights, perhaps accidentally or unintentionally, going into places which 
should be worked with safety-lamps. 
13330. (7. Then there is a danger about it? A. Yes. 
13340. (7. A danger of lax conduct? A. Yes. 
13311. (7. Now, with regard to the other practice, of working the faces with safety-lamps, and using naked 
lights on the main intake, on what you call the Flat ? A. Up to the Flat very often. I think it is 
desirable that in that case some more definite rule should be given as to the limit to which naked lights 
should be allowed, from- either the tunnel mouth, or the bttom of the downcast shaft, as the case may be. 
133 U. Q. Mr. May said, on page 461 of the notes, "I aiim spa cking of Durham and Northumberland, where 
the whole face is almost invariably worked with open lights, and the goafs with safety-lamps." Well, is 
that the caee now? A. No. Some of that might be going on when Mr. May was in Euglanci, in the county 
of 1)iirhani. 
13313.  (7. Flow many years ago, roughly 1 A. Fifteen years. Where they use safety-lamps in any portion 
of the face, it is an almost universal custom to use them in all of the faces. Of course, there are collieries, 
towards the out-crop, in the county of Durham, and also in Noi-thumberlarid, where they use only naked 
lights, entirely. 
13341. Q. Then lie was asked, further, '' (7. Are you aware that time mixed light system has been condemned 
by competent authorities" 1 and lie says, '' A. It all depends on the authority. r1mllie  Durham, where, I 
think, they produce 40,000,000 tons of coal ; and the system has been open lights at the face, and safety-
lamps at the goaf." Well, th-t is a repetition? A. Yes ; the practice has been condenined by the best 
authorities in the county of Durham, and other mining districts generally ; especially by the Inspectors of 
Mines, who have opportunities of seeing all the collieries. 
13345. Q. Now, you have beard a number of witnesses speak of the occasional reversal of the air in Mount 
Kembla. Will you just express your opinion as to how that might come about, and as to the probability 
of its being frequent or serious 1 i. Well, in the case of a mine, such as Kembla, with an upcast shaft 
400 feet deep, even with strong westerly winds, I am surprised that such a thing should occur; and I can 
only account for it on the assumption that, at the time, the furnace bud not bee i properly attended to. 
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13346. Q. With a shallower upcast 1 A. With a shaflower shaft I should not be so surprised to hear that 
such a thing had occurred as the reversal of the air, as has been described by several of the witnesses. 
13347. Q. And you think that a shaft 100 feet deep is a sufficient guarantee that it will not be produced 
by a mere change of wind, unless there is some other influence operating ? A. I think it would not occur 
if the furnace was properly attended to continuously. 
13348. Q. That is simply a matter of discipline in the mine? A. Yes. 
13349. Q. The evidence that you have heard of the reversal of air in Mount Kembla, which does not seeni, 
so far as the evidence itself is concerned, to have been attended with any injurious results—would that 
affect your opinion that the Mount Kembla mine should be allowed to continue the present system of 
ventilation 1 A. No. I think that the colliery people would require to be asked to see that the furnace 
was regularly attended to. 
13350. his Honor.] Q. Have any satisfactory means ever been invented yet, by means of fans operated on 
by the wind, or anything of that kind, to cause wind motion to neutralise a downward tendency in a shaft? 
A. Not that I am aware of. 
13351. Q. They have, as you know, been tried with chimneys to a very great extent? A. Yes. I do not 
know of anything that has been similarly tried at the top of furnace shafts. 
13352. Q. Practically speaking, they are impracticable, as fax as you know? A. I should think so. 
13353. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I suppose, if the furnace of a boiler bywhicl a fa is drivn were neglected, 
the eff' ct on the ventilation might be just the same as by the neglect of the furnace in an upcast shaft? 
A. Quite so, y S. 
13354. Q. I mean to say that the motive power falls away, the revolutions of the fan are reduced in number, 
and the current of air is affected 1 A. Quite so, yes. 
13355. Q. So it really depends, to a great extent? A. On human agency. 
13356. Q. And that is a matter of discipline whether it is a case of a furnace in the shaft, or a case of a 
furnace under the hoPer 1 Yes. 
13357. il1r. Robertsoio] Q. Do I understand you to say that you disapprove of naked lights on Thain toads? 
A. Well, I think that there is a tendency to allow these lights to go too far ; and, it would he desirable if 
some distance, perhaps, from the downcast shaft or tunnel mouth could be fixed by the Commission. 
13358. Q. For instance, it has been suggested that this Kembla disaster was caused by a naked light on a 
main road ? A. Quite so. 
13359. Q. Which shows the danger of the practice, does it not? A. Yes, quite so. In the neighbourhood 
of goafs, or where falls may take place and so cause an issue of fire'damp. 
13360. Q. And your own opinion is, that the naked lights, if permitted in a mine at all, should be confined to 
the vicinity of the downcast shaft or the tunnel mouth ? A. Yes; or within a reasonable distance, for 
shaft siding operations. 
13361. Q. But this explosion itself exemplifies the danger of a naked light, even on a main road? A. Yes, 
certainly it does. I might mention that, in Mr. Hall's report for last year, there is a special rule, which 
they have brought into force, with reference to the use of safety'larnps; and he gives a distance there of 
200 yards from the downcast shaft, beyond which naked lights should not pass. 
13362. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I referred just now to the evidence which had been given by quite a number 
of the miners on this proposal that Managers should visit the mine more often. I see I have a reference here 
to a remark by Mr. McDonald—I think he was a witness whose demeanour entitled him to some consideration. 
He was asked 11 What is the average time you see the Manager in your place "1 and lie said, A. Well, Mr. 
Jones less been there, at the mine, for twelve months or so ; and I have seen him in my working place 
three or four times." Do you think that the miners themselves, who are working at the face, can form any 
idea of the time which a Manager spends in the mine by the number of occasions upon which they have 
seen him 1 A. No, I do not think they can tell it in that way. They can only ascertain from information 
received from persons who may see the Manager going in and out of the mine. 
13363. Q. I mean that, in the intermittent way in which a Manager has to visit a mine, I take it, he might 
go into one part of the mine a great many more times than into another, and be seen very often, perhaps, 
by one set of men, and, perhaps, not at all by others? A. That might he so. He may be paying particular 
attention to one part of the mine ; and visiting that a good deal more than others. 
13364. Q. And he may have need to do it? A. He may have need to do it at times. 
13365. Q. And therefore, a man working in a very safe part of the mine, which gives the management no 
anxiety, might measure the Manager's attendance in the mine very unfairly by estimating it according to 
the number of times lie saw him ? A. Yes, he might gain a wrong impression in that way. 
13366. Q. And I take it that the evidence of the working miners, as to how often they see the Manager in 
their working place-, is no criterion as to how much time the Manager spends in a mine? A. Generally 
speaking, not. 
13367. Q. Now, you remember Mr. May dwelling-for some time upon some single door theory of his, by 
which he said lie could "co-relate"-- I use his own word—the Mount Kembla and Bulli and Burwood 
disasters. You heard his evidence? A. Yes. 
13368. Q. Now, I ask you, after hearing the whole of his evidence, can you point to any single part of it 
in which he shows that those three explosions had any common origin, either in fact or in theory? A. No, 
I cannot see any direct connection or comparison between the three, so far as doors are concerned. 
13369. Q. And from your knowledge of the Bulli disaster, the Burwood disaster, and the Mount Kembla 
disaster, can you, yourself trace the three of them, or any two of them, to exactly the same cause in 
connection with a door I A. No. In so far as the Bulli explosion is concerned, it took place a number of 
years before I arrived in the State ; and I only know of that from my reading of the report; but, from the 
information afforded in that report, it does not appear to me that the explosion was caused, eit.ber directly 
or indirectly, by a single door. As regards the Burwood explosion, that certainly had no connection with 
single doors. 
13370. 211r. Bruce Smith.] Does your Honor remember the name of the mine which Mr. May referred to I 
It is here (in the notes) as " Burwood," and I think it was Dudley. 
13371. his Honor.] It was Dudley. 
13372. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You were here at the time of the Dudley explosion. From your knowledge 
of the circumstances surrounding that explosion, would you attribute it in any way to any door? A. No. 
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Mr. May did not give evidence at the inquest on the Dudley explosion; and I am not aware whether he 
was down the pit ; but, if so, I do not know how far he was down, nor whether lie saw the ventilation 
but he has referred on several occasions to a single door on a cross-cut, some 150 or 200 yards from the 
downcast pit bottom. There was no evidence taken at the inquest to show that that door had been open, 
or had contributed to the accident in any way. 
13373. Q. Was any evidence given at the subsequent inquiry, at which Mr. Wade presided as Commissioner 1 
A. No. 
13374. Q. None whatever 1 A. No. 
13375. (7. Then, coming from those two to this explosion, have you heard any evidence so far, either at the 
inquest, or before this Commission, which Points  to any door as having been, directly or indirectly, 
accountable for this disaster 1 A. No. 
13376. Q. Then you do not understand what Mr. May means? A. Well, I take it, that he means, in 
general, all objection to single doors. 
13377. Q. That is, in the abstract? A. A principle which I share with him to the fullest extent. 
1337$. (7. Quite so I will ask you about that. But do you understand what he means by 11 co-relating" 
these two disasters with the. Mount Keinblt disaster, as having originated from some identical or similar 
csuse connected with a door? A. No I do not think that the circumstances warrant such a connection. 
13379 .Jfr. Bruce Smith.] I (10 not know, of course, and I cannot assume, Your Honor, how much 
importance the Commission attaches to Mr. May's evidence. 
13380. 1/is Ifonor.1 Pens ips it is as well not to express any opinion. 
13381 .J1,. Bruce Sniii/t.] No ; but I want you to understand why I ask these questions. As Mr. May is 
there, and ai lie occupies that position, I want to ak i\Ir. Atkinson a few questions ; because Mr. May 
may be, and I think he is, hold*in high estimation by the miners themselves ; and, therefore, it is as well 
to answer anything he puts forward. 
13382. (7.In regard to the proposil Mr. May made as to establishing independent Inspectors, he seemed to 
think that that was a sort of panacea for troubles of this kind-what have you to say about that I A. As 
a matter of fact, the Inspectors have separate collieries allotted to them at present. 
13383. Q. It is the sanie, almost as having separate districts, as proposed by Mr. May? The collieries are 
grouped? A. Yes, and distinctly allotted to the separate Inspectors, so that there shall be no overlapping 
and no clashing of duties. 
13384. Q. And no overlapping of jurisdictio-i? A. No overlapping of jurisdiction. But, if I gather rightly 
what Mr. May intends, it is to he able to mark on a map the districts allotted to the several Inspectors. 
13385. (7. Well, is there any utility in that? A. is nothing in it, that I can see, seeing that the 
Inspectors have now separate collieries definitely allotted to them, which is, in effect, quite the same. 
13386. (. The only difference between his suggestion, as put before the Commission, and the existing state 
of things is that, in addition to there being independent Inspectors for different groups of mines, there is a 
Chief Inspector who has a supervising control over all the other Inspectors? A. That is so. 
13387. Q. And is not that the same state of things that exists in Great Britain at the present time, or in 
England ? A. Yes, there are twelve Chief Inspectors for the various districts, and about twenty four 
Inspectors assisting them. 
1338$. Q. And then over all ? A. Well, of course, the Home Secretary is over all. 
I 33881. Q. Is not there a Chief Inspector? A. For some years there was one of them selected as the 
senior Inspector. That was the late Mr. Wardell ; but I am not aware whether there is, lit the present 
time, any senior oflicer. 
13389. (7. Then what official is it oho supervises the general administration under these Inspectors? A. The 
House Secretary. 
13390. His Ilonov.] I think Mr. May said that the system in England was about as bad as it could 
possibly be. 
13391. Jfr. Bruce Smith.] I think he did. 
13392. (). Do you remember Mr. Hicks giving this piece of evidence, in answer to Mr. Lysaght-" I can 
show, from Mr. Atkinson',,; report for 1900, that, during the year, fire-damp was reported under general 
rule 4 at collieries, which included the Metropolitau, Bulli, Corritnal, Bulhi Pass, and Mount Pleasant, in 
the Southern or Illawarra Distric. I propose to show to you that the Inspectors had knowledge of the 
existence of gas, and took no steps whatever to prevent any outbreak of it, although they knew of it in the 
various mines"? A. Yes. 
13393. Q. Now, first of all, dealing with that generally, is it true 1 A. I think it is better, rather than to 
give a yes or no, to explain it. 
13394. Q. Taken as a general statement, is that correct? A. No. 
13395. Jfr. Ls,saght.] I object to that being taken as a general statement, because he can only answer 
for himself. 1-Ic cannot answer for Mr. Bates, who was the Inspector at the time of the Mount Kembla 
disaster. I submit that a general statement like that should not be permitted by the Commission. 
13396. his 1fosir.] You can cross-examine on that. 
13397. Jlfr. Bruce Smith.] I am going to ask Mr. Atkinson to deal with each mine. 
13398. ll7 it1ess.] I cannot remember the details of each i eport. 
13399. jlfr. Ritchie.] Was that report put in evidence at the time the witness made that statement? 
13 tOO. Jfr. Bruce Smith.] No ; but I did not object to hicks' saying that it contained such a passage, 
because Mr. Atkinson knows that lie did draw attention, in that report, to the occurrence of gas in those 
us i nes. 
13101. Q. Can you remember a reference in your report of 1900 to the finding of gas in the Metropolitan 
Mine? A. Yes. 
13402. his ifonor.] We had better have the report. 
13103. Jfr. Bruce Smith.] I thought, perhaps, it would take too much time. I thought Mr. Atkinson 
could probably deal with it, and show what was clone. 
13101. Q. Can you remember-if you cannot we will get the report-what took place with regard to that 
Was it not reported that gas had been found in the Metropolitan Colliery? A. Yes. I might say, as I 
think I have already said, that, in order to show to the public and the mining community generally the 
extent to which fire-damp has been found in mines during the last few years, I have requested the Inspectors 
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to ascertain from the report,, and to give to me, the niuses of those cAlierics uhere fire clamp has been 
reported under general rule 1 ; and I have inserted that in the Annual Report. 
13405. Q. Well, under the law as it exists, could anytlu,i7 more have been done than has been done, in the 
cases of those mines in which gas has been found ? A. No, I do not think it could. 
13403. Q. Now, with regard to the Metropolitan, if you can remember, we will take that, as it comes flrs-
prior to your issuing your 1905 report gas was found in the Metropolitan Mine? A. Yes. 
13407. Q. What was clone? A. Well, it is a mine in which safety-lamps are exclusively used. 
13408. Q. Were they used at that time? A. Yes. 
13405. Q. And safety-lamps are exclusively used in that mine? A. Yes. 
1:3410, Q. Can you suggest anything further being (lone with regard to gas than is being done in the 
Metropolitan at the present .time-I mean with regard to the appearance of gas, the presence of it in the 
mine ? A. Well, there was some suggestion made by one of the witnesses that gas was not reported when 
it ought to be. 
13411. Q. But I am asking, as far as the gas that came to your knowledge was concerned, or as far as the 
gas was concerned that came to the knowledge of the Inspectors, was there anything further that should be 
done that was not done ? A. No. Safety-lamps were used, and everything possible was done, as far as I 
am aware : every care was taken strict discipline is observed, and is in force. 
13412. Q. Take Bulli can you remember your reference to the Bulli Mine in your 1900 Report? A. I think Bulli has generally been mentioned. 
13113. Q. What was done in Bulli? A. In 1950? I would suggest, as I cannot remember all the 
circumstances, it would be as well if we had all the papers. They can speak for themselves. 
13414. 1fr. Ritchie.] I think it would be better to have the papers. 
13415. dIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Do you, yourself, know of any failure on the prt of any one of your Inspectors 
to take whatever steps were necessary in the case of those mines where gas was found? A. I do not. 13416. Q. Has any dereliction of duty been brought under your notice with regard to the Inspectors within 
whose groups those mines came at that time ? A. I do not remember any. 
13417. Q. I think you consider it desirable to draw the attention of the Commission to the evidence of Mr. 
Scott, page 704. II will read it. He was asked-" Your practice is to make no report of any gas"; and 
he answered, "My practice is to make no report on gas." He was then asked-" Are you going to continue 
that practice " ? and said, "As far as I know, I will." Then he was asked-" if you find as, you will not 
report it" ? and replied, "It depends on circumstances." Well, as far as that attitude is concerned, Mr. 
Atkinson, you are quite helpless, are you not? A. Yes. He should know that it is a duty of his, by the 
special rules, to report gas and I think it is a most regrettable attitude for a n'iner to take up. 
13418. Q. You can do nothing  in the matter, can you, where a man deliberately refuses to report gas in 
that way-what power have you? A. Well, I might have a talk with the man. 
13419, Q. That is influence ; that is persuasion. I am talking of power. Have you any legal power at all; 
or is there any legal power vested in any one byvlueli such a man can be punished ? A. Well, if he were 
doing the same thing again, if it came to the knowledge of the Manager, he could proceed against him. 
13420. (3. You would then have to prove that he knew it, and did not report it? A. Yes. - 
13421, (3. You would have to prove that he knew it, by some admission of his, or in some other way? A. Yes. 
13422. (3. Then, as regards his saying that he had frequently seen it but had not reported it to this day, 
you can do nothing? A. No. 
1:3423. Q. Do you remember Mr. Wynn being in the box, the gentleman who posed as an expert on these 
matters ? A. Yes. 
13424. (3. Do you remember this part of his evidence, speaking of the measurement of air in mines, page 
970 : " Q. \Vhere would you suggest that such measurements of air should be taken ? A. I do not know 
that anything better can be arranged than what you have at present, with the instruments you 
have. My own rule was to. measure the air as near the working face as I could get ; but I found that that 
was not the rule with the Government Inspector. I often went to 100 yards nearer the face to take my 
measurements than the Inspector did." Now, will you tell the Court what is the recognised practice 
applicable to Inspectors ? A. Well, they measure the air in all the splits and, if there is any doubt in 
their minds as to whether the minimum is getting into the faces, they endeavour to measure the air as near 
to the working place as possible j sometimes on the oatbye side of the first working place, sometimes in 
the split itself in the centre of the working places, and sometimes at the return airways. 
13425. (3. That is the recognised practice, which you expect every Inspector to adopt? A. Yes. 
13426. Q. is that the same as the English practice? A. Yes. 
13427. A. Well, men may differ in opinion as to whether it is necessary to go up to the face, may they not; 
I mean sometimes you will find such a quantity of air at say a distance of 100 yards from the face 
A. Well, when there is a doubt about a leakage. 
13428. Q. Is it not possible that one man may think there is no doubt about that, and that there is no need 
to go right up to the face? A. Yes. There is no doubt it is a matter of opinion as to which is the best 
place to measure the air. 

3429. Q. He says here, "I often went to 100 yards nearer the face to take my measurement than the 
Inspector did." That is quite compatible with there being enough air in the Inspector's opinion -? A. Yes. 134:30. (3. That practice is the same as that in use in England? A. Yes, when I left. 
134:31. 9. I mean, when you left, the practice there was the same as that adopted here now? A. Yes. 13432. His Jim-mr.] Wynn specially spoke, if I remember rightly, about the imposshility of measuring 
small (juantities, for instance, 100 cubic feet or so with the mahiues at present in use-anemometers. 
1:3433. if,'. Bruce Smith.] Yes. He said the anemometer would not show it. 
13434. his honor.] He also spoke about the averaging, objecting to measure the velocity in the centre of 
-in air-course. Those questions might be of importance. 
13435. dir Bruce Smith.] Q. Well, with regard to those questions-first as to the anemometer, in measuring 
very small speeds or quantities of air, what is the average power of the anemometer ? A. I do not think 
you can depend upon it to measure a velocity] of less than 1 foot per second ; and, u nless you contracted 
the air going in to the face of a working place into a small section by a box or a pipe, the anemometer, as 
now constructed, will not measure the air passing across the face, unless the velocity is something 
considerably more than 1 foot per second. 13436. 
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13436, Mr. Robertson.] Q: As a matter of fact, is not the correction of the anemometer for friction thirty 
revolutions per minute : that is to say, it takes thirty revolutions to turn the anemometer ; and when you 
take your measurement you add thirty revolutions for friction ? A. Yes. 
13137. Q. Is it not possible, in nearly all cases, to get a measurement of air in some part of the road where 
the velocity is sufficient to act upon the anemometer?, A. Do you refer to near the working place 
13.138. Q. Nearly everywhere, there is some part of the mine where you can take fairly accurately the 
velocity of the air A. Oh, yes, cci tainly. 
13139. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But I understand, Mr. Robertson, this is the objection offered by Wynn, and by 
a number of the witnesses, that, although the aggregate quantity of air may be going into the mine, the 
leakages in various ways are so very great that the proper quantity of air does not reach the working 
places ; an4 Wynn goes on to complain that the Inspector did not measure right up to the faces, as lie did 
but sometimes only. measured as far away as 100 feet. Mr. Atkinson says this anemometer will not measure 
these small quantities unless you concentrate the air into a small space. Therefore you must be satisfied to 
know that the aggregate quantity is going in up to the point at which the anemometer ceases to be a test ; 
and you must trust to your arrangement of your canvases and stoppings and so forth, and, I suppose, to the 
practical feelings of the men, to satisfy yourself that that air is getting up to them. 
13440. Mr. Robertson.] Of coarse it must be distinctly understood that the fact of not being able to 
register the velocity on the anemometer does not necessarily mean that the cubical quantity of air is not 
going in to the men. 
13441. jJf j. Bruce Smith.] No. Wynn complained that the Inspector sometimes took the measurement 100 
yards from the face. 
13412. Mr. Ritc/die.1  He said that the Inspectors took it at the splits, and that lie often went 100 yards 
nearer the face than they did. Where the air splits they have generally got a mark about where they take 
the register. At this place the mine officials regularly take their register. Wynn's contention was that 
this place was too far from the face ; and he said lie went nearer to the face to take his measurements. 
13443. Mr. Robertson.] But is not the measurement of the air 100 yards nearer to the face, after all, 
simply the difference between twecelledum and tweedledee 1 
13144. Mr. Ritchie.] Of course there might be leakage. 
13 tIS. Mr. Bruce Smith.] If there were a big leakage in the 100 yards it would be important; but, if the 
Inspector satisfied himself that there is no big leakage in that 100 yards, the difference would be neither 
here nor there. I take it that the Inspector would not take the measurement at the splits if there were, 
in the next 100 yards, defects or obstructions which would affect the quantity of air going through. 
13446. Mr. kitchie.] I think Wynn thought that some law should be made to compel measurements to be 
taken as near the face as possible. 
13147. Mr. Bruce Smith.] The conclusion I came to is that when you bring unscientific minds to bear on 
instruments of this kind, whether anemometers or safety-mumps, or hydrogen lamps, they expect them to do 
infinitely more than they will do. They expect extraordinary results from them. For instance they expect 
hydrogen lamps to be used to make a complete examination of the mine once a month yet a big Inspector 
in England says—lie does not say it is useless, but lie says that, for his part, lie thinks that when the gas 
is so small in proportion that only the hydrogen lamp will measure it, it is really not worth measuring ; and 
that the safety-lamp is sufficient for practical purposes. We know that the hydrogen lamp is unsafe—as 
unsafe as a gun. The miner, on the other hand, seems to think that the salvation of his class lies in this 
hydrogen lamp being taken every w here round the mine. 
13448. dIr. Ritchie.] They advocate that as an additional safeguard but they do not propose that it should 
be relied upon wholly. 1 would suggest that Mr. Atkinson should tell you the distances that these split 
measurements are generally taken from the workings. 
13449. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. What opinion have you formed about that: have you heard any evidence 
which points to the fact that the Inspectors are in the habit of taking this air carelessly, or at places 
which are not a fair guide I A. No, I have no reason to think so. 
13150. Q. Is it any more trouble to an Inspector to take it at one paine than at another, except the walking 
over the 100 yards I A. No, not so long as the anemometer will register, no more trouble. 
13451. Q. You heard Mr. Wynn speak of the difference between taking the measurement of air in the 
middle of the road, and taking  it at the side? A. Yes. 
13452. Q. Can you say anything about that? A. There is no doubt that the velocity of the air in the 
centre of the place is greater than that at the side, in the tunic way, as, with water in a river, the velocity 
is greater in the centre than at the sides, where there is friction ; but the om-dinarily accepted nietimod of 
measuring the air is in the centr of the place. For a more scientific and accurate purpose the section of 
the gallery is sometimes divided y strings into sixteen different small areas, and the anemometer is belch in 
each of these areas for half a minute, or a minute, as the time may be read, in order to ascertain more 
accurately the quantity of air. 
13153. Q. And the average is taken of all those readings? A. Ys. 
13451. Q. That is the same course as is pursued in measuring the velocity of a stream in hydraulics? 
A. Yes, 1 suppome it is. 
13153. Q. But it is not carried to a precise pitch in actual practical working? A. Only for experimental 
purposes, where they are accurately testing the efficiency of a fan. 
13456. His honor.] Q. Do I understand that the system adopted is to measure in the centre, to hold the 
anemometer in the centre? A. Yes ; that is the usual plan. 
13457. Q. That would be adopted where the velocity is pretty high, and the friction comparatively small. If 
you mmiultiplied that measurement in the centre by the sectional area you would get a very much larger result 
than if you measured against the wall? A. Not a very much larger result ; and I think regard is had in
the constrmmct ion of the anemometer in the first place to the fact that the usual method is to measure the 
air in the centre of the place. 
13158. Mr. Robertson.] Q. As a matter of fact, the velocity in mines in roads of large sectienal area is 
usually comparatively low I A. Where the area is very large no doubt it would get down to 1 fcot per second, 
or less. The ordinary speed in womdeing faces, or a recogniccd reasonable velocity, is from 2 to 4 feet a second. 
13159. Q. I take it that, if your imispeclors, in taking the ir measurements, found that the ventilation in the 
mine was sailing rather too close to the wind, as to time mninimiiumn quantity, they would In obab]y take pains to 
take an accurate nmeasureinent? A, They do. They take care to get nearer the working places. 13460. 
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13460. Q. And as a rule the quantity is largely in excess of the statutory requirements? A. Yes, generally 
that is so. 
13461. Q. So that there is not that need for the utmost precision in taking their measurements? A. No, I 
think they can generally tell by their senses, to a certain extent, whether the air is getting to the face 
and, where naked lights are used, by the deflection of the flame the miner can generally tell whether he has 
a reasonable quantity of air. 
13462. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I suppose it is open to the check-inspector to measure where he likes? A. Yts. 
13463. Q. There are no restrictions upon him? A. No. 
13464. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. He can take his measurements at the side, can he not? A. Yes. 
13465. Q. Yesterday you stated that you were prepared to recommend that deputies and shot-firers should 
be required to have a certificate before they could be considered qualified for appointment? Yes. 
13466. Q. Now, if deputies and shot-firers have a certificate, would not you also provide that, in the event of 
any breach of duty, they should be liable to have their certificates suspended or cancelled? A. Yes, that 
should follow as in the case of a Manager or under-manager. 
13467. Q. And that would be a check upon these men in case of their not reporting gas? A. 'Yes. 
13168. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. In whom would you have the power vested to suspend or cancel these certificates? 
A. The same sort of power which is now arranged for the Manager and under-manager; the same sort of 
tribunal. 
13 169. AIr. Bruce Smith.] It simply brings two more classes under the operation of section 10. 
13470. Q. I think you did observe that a great many of the witnesses seemed to draw a distinction beteveen 
discovering gas, and discovering an accumulation of gas : several of them said—" I did not report it, because 
it was not an accumulation "1 A. Yes. 
43471. Q. Is not that expression used somewhere in the rules—" An accumulation of gas"? A. I think it 
may probably be. in the special rules. 
13472. Q. Is not that an element of danger, that men should be able to escape from the responsibility of 
reporting by saying, "Oh, I certainly discoverefl gas; but I did not discover an accumulation of it; it was 
not, in my opinion, an accumulation." I think you have formed the opinion that that might be altered in 
some way? A. Well, General Rule 4 does not mention any quantity at all. It says that they had to 
report, specifying whether noxious or inflammable gas, if any, was found present. 
13473. Air. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor sees that that special rule makes it too elastic. A man may say—
"I discovered gas ; but I did not discover an accumulation of gas I did not think it sufficiently important." 
If these deputi.es  and shot-firers are to be required to have certificates, the amount of gas, or the way in 
which gas indicates itself, which they are required to report, ought to be very distinctly stated, so that they 
would not be able to say, bye and-bye, "I did not report it when the miner told me, because I did not think 
it snificiently important." 
13174. Mr. Robertson.] Q. In the case of a gassy mine, where gas is given off, and known to be given ofi at 
any part of any working f-ace, and where you can find it issuing from the face, by putting your lamp against 
the f-ace, would not the eflbct of reporting gas be practically to stop the mine? A. I do not think so. 
13 115. Q.  But if, according to the rule, you have got to clear away the gas you have found, how can you 
clear away the issuing of the gas? A. You can only clear it away as it does issue. 
13476. Q. You know you have to clear the gas away before you admit the men into the place; and, if you 
report having found gas, what do you do before you admit the men? A. Well, under General Rule 4, I do 
not see how you can draw the distinction between a large quantity of gas and a small quantity. 
13477. Q. Quite so; but if you can find gas issuing in a gassy mine at any part of the (lay, how are you 
going to admit the men into the places; do you not see the difficulty? A. I think that the rules generally 
say something about a strong blue cap. 
13418. Q. Quite so. I say, take a mine where you can find gas issuing sufficient to show a blue cap on a 
safety-lamp in any place at any time of the day, how are you going to admit the men to work? A. Well, 
the rule seems to be so constructed as to admit them to work. You cannot work impossibilities. 
13479. Q. But, under those circumstances, you have to report the finding of gas, and you have to clear it 
away before you admit the nien? A. Well, it is clear that you cannot clear the issuing away. You can 
only clear the gas away as it does issue. 
13480. Q. But then you say that under those circumstances you must report the issue; not the accumulation, 
but the issue ; that being so, you would have to be reporting all day, and you could not possibly admit the 
men into the place? A. I can only say what I read in the rule. It makes no distinction as to the quantity. 
I see the difficulty which arisea ; but I do not see any objection to mentioning a trace of gas in every 
working place in the pit. 
13181. Q. But do you not see the difficulty; if you go into a place, anj do not finda capful, but find 
gas issuing from the coal, you cannot admit the men? Q. \Veli, then, I think the rule should be altered so 
as to make it that you can admit them. - 
13482. Q. Quite so. You see the difficulty? A. Yes, I fully recognise the difficulty, and know that in 
some cases you can get gas in all the working places by a careful adjustment of the safety-lamp, by shoving 
it right into the cut. 
13483. Q. As a matter of fact, is not that rule intended to apply to accumulations? A. I do not see that. 
I cannot agree with you there. Of course it says that the rules have to be observed, so far as is reasonably 
practicable; but it makes no distinction as to whether the gas is from an issue or whether it is an 
accumulation ; or whether it is a small quantify, a thimbleful or a bordful. 
13484. Q. Of course I quite see the importance of reporting the smallest issue or appearance of gas in 
mine where it is not generally known to exist ; but if you have a gassy mine, where it is admitted to exist, 
and known to exist, and to be found in any working place? A. Yes. I take it that the term "no 
accumulation" means that it is admitted that gas is given off all over, but there is no accumulation in any 
working place. 
13485. His ilonor.] Perhaps, after all, Mr. Bruce Smith, it may be that that distinction between gas and 
accumulation of gas was only in the check-inspector's report. It may have arisen from that. I do not find 
it here in the special rules ; but the words "No accamulation of gas" were used in the check-inspector's 
report. 
13486. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Wynn pointed it out. Wynn objected that they did not report gas, whether it 
accumulated or not. 13487. 
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13487. IRs Honor.] Yes 3 but I think that question of gas or the accumulation of gas arose in the check-
inspector's report. 
13488. JTr. Bruce Smith.] Quite so ; but I think your Honor gleaned from the conversation between Mr. 
Atkinson and Mr. Robertson that the phrase "accumulation of gas" is used in the Helensburgh Special 
Rules. 
13189. Mr. Robertson.] No. Wynn said that the deputies systematically reported "no accumulation of 
gas." Of course there is no dispute that gas is continually given off. We do not deny it. 
13490. Q. Do you not think, Mr. Atkinson, that the general rule should be altered so that, where an 
admission is made that gas is given off from the seam, the term " gas " should apply to an accumulation of 
gas? A. I do not see any objection to reporting it every clay, so long as the special rules are framed in 
accordance with that. 
13491. Q. Do you not see the difficulty that, if you report finding gas, you cannot admit the men into 
the plac' until the gas is cleared away ; and you cannot clear the gas out of the coal? A. I know you 
cannot. 
13492. Mr. Bruce Smith..] Your Honor remembers that, in those reports which we read, these men 
reported over and over again that there was no accumulation of gas, but they admitted that they found 
gas, and that they knew gas was there ; and Mr. Wynn said that he thought that the mere discovery of 
gas, whether, in the opinion of the deputies, it was an accumulation or not., should be reported. Now, I 
understand Mr. Robertson to offer this objection, that, if they are required to report the issuing of gas, 
which is a chronic state of things in some parts of a mine, it would require the men to be withdrawn under 
the existing rules. Then Mr. Atkinson says, " No " ; because if the provision requiring them to report 
extends to any quantity of gas, even though it be reported every day, the ruies may be so amended that it 
will not be necessary to take the men out. 
13493. His Honor.] That is exactly what Mr. Robertson contends for, that there ought to ba some small 
amendment. 
13494. Mr. Robertson.] Where there is a general admission that gas is being given off from the seam, it is 
quite unnecessary to report it every day, hundreds of times a year. 
13 195. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Bat the danger Mr. Atkinson points out is this, that, if it is left to the deputy's 
discretion to report or not report., according as lie thinks it is an accumulation or not, he may see gas day 
after day for twelve months, and report negatively every time; and then, when he is asked, he may say, 
" Well, it was not an accumulation, in my opinion " ; and it may be an accumulation, although he does not 
think so. 
13496. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Do you think it would be sufficient if they gave a qualified report stating that they 
had foundgas, and stating whether it was an accumulation, or whether it was being carried off, and was no 
source of danger; might they not say that gas was found, but not, a dangerous quantity; or that gas was 
found in certain quantities? A. It depends to a certain extent on the construction of the Special Rules of 
the Metropolitan or other collieries as to whether, even if that were done, men could be admitted to the 
working places. I think that Mr. Robertson's suggestion might be met by altering the rule so as to deal 
with an issue; and as regards the Metropolitan, where gas is acknowledged to be every day, there would be 
no harm ; but I am afraid there might be a tendency in some places where issues are not regular and 
frequent, if such a clause were inserted, to take advantage of it at such places where issues appeared only 
occasionally, and naturally should be reported, but under this altered rule would not be necessary to be 
reported. I think that would be a possible danger at other places. 
13497. Mr. Robertson.] I quite see the danger at a place where the gas is not being ordinarily given off. 
There it is so very important that the very smallest emission should be reported. 
13498. Mr. Bruce Smith.] The eception you make is in the mines where it is a chronic condition. 
13499. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Do you think it would be inadvisable to make a general rule, applicable to all 
collieries, for such a case as that mentioned by Mr. Robertson ; which, as a matter of fact, might have a 
direct bearing, in the way you put it, on one colliery only ? A. It may be. Although it would have no 
bad results, if applied to the Metropolitan alone, it might have a bad effect in other cases. 
13500. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Mr. Ritchie puts it to you that you would not advise a general rule applicable 
to all mines? A. No. 
13501. Q. You would differentiate between those that gave it off regularly, and those which gave it off 
intermittently? A. Yes. 
13502. Mr. Robertson.] But you could not have a special rule at any particular colliery which would clash 
with the general rule. 
13503. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. But the Act might give permission to the Minister to grant a Special Rule dealing 
with that? A. Yes, it might be done in that way, possibly. 
13504. Mr. Bruce Smith.] However, we put the difficulties it is for the Commission to solve them. Now 
there is another question. 
13505. Q. You heard a number of witnesses say that they had not reported explosions in their working-
places, because they considered that it was merely gunpowder smoke? A. Yes, I have heard that several 
times. 
13506. Q. Well, that is rather a loophole, is it not? I would ask you first to tell the Commission what is 
your experience of this class of explosion, after a shot has been fired but has not completed its work, to 
which these men refer? A. Well, I might say that, personally, I have never seen it, although I have seen 
hundreds or thousands of shots fired with gunpowder ; but I know that it is stated to have occurred, by both 
practical and scientific men and it is considered to be due to the incomplete combustion of the powder, and, 
as a matter of fact, generally only results from what they call a standing-shot. 
13507. his honor.] Q. What is the definition of a standing-shot 1 A. it is a shot which has done its work, 
but the coal has not fallen. 
13508. Q. Do you say "hanging-shot" or "standing-shot"? A. I think both terms are used. It is a shot 
that has done its work, but the coal has not actually fallen on the ground. 
13509. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. And is it called a standing-shot because the coal still stands? A. Yes, some-
times standing-shot, and sometimes hanging-shot. 
13510. Q. And what has been the cause of the gunpowder not having undergone complete combustion? 
A. I do not know that that has been explained. . 13511. 
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13511. ills honor.] Q. A good deal may be due to the composition of the powder. There might be an 
excess of carbon, for instance l A. A good deal is due to tha. As to the resulting gas, Professor Vivian 
Lewes says that, using 1- lb. of ordinary blasting powder, you get over 3 cubic feet of combustible gas, 
consisting chiefly of carbon monoxide and this, mixed with a certain proportion of air, will give you 10 cubic 
feet of an explosive mixture. 
13512. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. So that the idea is right that, after a shot, under certain circumstances, you 
do get an explosive material in the working place? A. Yes. It is quite possible that the explosive gases 
will amount to nearly 50 per cent, in some cases. 
13.513. Q. Well, is that due to that one form of explosive, gunpowder, or would that apply to the other 
explosives, which you have told us are permitted by the Home Secretary? A. Well, it is more pronounced 
in the case of gunpowder, although I believe, to a smaller extent, it is possible with some of the permitted 
explosives. 
13514. Q. Well, then, that is an additional danger, apart from the opening of the light and the firing of a 
shot the possible explosion of this gunpowder gas is an additional clinger where there is coal-dust? A. Yes, 
no doubt. 
13515. Q. All traceable to the powder? A. Yes. 
13516. AIr. Robertson.] Q. Are you referring now to the comparative length of the flame, or to the 
inflammability of the gaseous products? A. To the latter; to the inflammability of the gases resulting from 
the shot. 
13517. Q. But I thought most of those safety explosives were of such a character that the resultant gases 
were non-explosive? A. Well, Robnrite comes under the heading nientioneci, but I have seen particulars in 
some of the authors which have stated that some of the resulting gases are to a small extent explosive under 
certain conditions. 
13518. AIr. Bruce Smitle.1 Q. But I take it that gunpowder produces the largest quantity of the most 
explosive gas? A. Yes. 
13519. AIr. Robertson.] Q. That is another reason why it should not be used 1 A. Yes. 
13520. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, is it not difficult for an inexperienced person to distinguish between the 
gas which is produced by an incomplete gunpowder shot, and gas which might be emitted by the breaking 
down of the coal? A. I think it is impossible to distinguish, because they both give blue flames. 
13521. Q. Well, ought that not to be reported in either case, if that is so? A. I think it would be better. 
It is certainly advisable. 
13522. Q. And if the deputies and shot-firers are in future to be certificated, and if their certificates would 
be liable to cancellation or suspension for a breach of the rules, and if they are to be required to report gas, 
ought they not also to be required to report an explosion of that kind from gunpowder, or from another 
explosive? A. I think they ought to. 
13523. Ills Honor.] Q. Partly for the reason that, if such explosions were reported, the management 
might think fit to use a diflhrent brand of powder? A. LTndoubtedly. 
13524. Q. Because the composition of the powder might have a good deal to do with it. An excess of 
carbon-or charcoal-may cause it 1 A. Yes, that may have a good deal to do with it. 
13525. dir. Robertson.] Q. Have you ever heard any instance of an explosion from the fumes or the gas of 
the safety explosives? A. I am not very clear about that ; but I think there is some discussion or legal 
action going on at Home as to whether safety-fuses are really safe. 
13526. Q. I mean safety explosives? A. Oh, the permitted explosives 
13527. Q. Yes. Have you ever known any instances of the gases from the explosion of a permitted 
explosive igniting in the way that gunpowder gas has been said to ignite? A. No, I have not. I do not 
know of any case ; although, of course, one knows of cases where safety explosives have been recklessly 
used, and there have been explosions-such an instance as trying to break up a wheel by placing on it an 
unstemmed quantity of "Permitted " explosive --[Interrupted.] 
13528. Q. But as to the explosives themselves, you do not know a case where the gas resulting from the 
explosion of a permitted explosive has been lit ? A. No, I do not know of any case. 
13529. Aft. Bruce Smith.] Q. This gas resulting from the incomplete combustion of gunpowder really comes 
under General Rule 4, does it not: it says " A report specifying whether noxious or inflammable gas "- 
it would be included under that special phrase? A. Yes. 
13530. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Before you pass away from that, I understand Mr. Atkinson to say that the gas 
which may be generated as the result of a standing shot comes under General Rule 4, in reporting? 
13531. Air. Bruce Smith.] Well, he says that it could be brought under the general term. 
13532. AIr. Ritchie.] The present General Rule 4 deals with the duties of the inspectors. 
13533. his honor.] The inspectors would not discover thisgas. 
13534. -Mr. Bruce Smith.] But they might hear of it ; and then it would be their duty to report it. 
13535. His Ilouor.] It is a case vi-hich is clearly not contemplated by this rule. 
13536. AIr. Bruce Smith.] No, but it conies under the general term. Suppose an Inspector, in the course 
of his inspection, saw a shot 6 mcci ; and, in the course of the examination, he went into the place after the 
shot had been fired, and he saw this explosion of gunpowder, well, I take it that his instructions are general 
enough to include that, and he should report it. You, as a Commission, have to suggest how this shall be 
regulated; and I point out that the possibility of an explosion by gas should be reported under General 
Rule 4. Then, under Rule 9, the deputy, if he discovers any danger, shall instantly report to the overman, 
under-manager, or Manager, 
13537. Mi'. Ritchie.] That is in the special rules I 
13538. Mr. BruceSmith.] Yes. 
13539. Mr. Rite/tie.] Still, that does not cover the firing of shots. I want to know from Mr. Atkinson 
whether lie thinks that General Rule 4 does deal with that. 
13540. Witness.] No. I think it would conic under Special Rule 41, which says that if workmen discover 
any defect or insecurity in their working place they must at once cease work and report. 
13541. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Still, a deputy would be hound to report? A. Yes. 
Q. As a matter of fact, such a contingency was never contemplated when that rule was formulated,? A. No, 
I do not think it was. It might be useful to have an authority ott that. I have a hook here. Perhaps 
the Commission would like to see what Professor Lewes says about it. 
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I 342. .2tfr. Robertson.] I know some people believe in it; but when that rule was formed such a contingency 
was never contemplated. 
13543. 11".. Bruce Smith.] But it is general enough to cover it, if it should come under the notice of the 
Inspector. Then, also, Special Rnle 41 says: "All employees must report to the Manager or official in 
charge any defect they may discovcr in the machinery or appliances, or any appearance of fire-damp, choke-
damp, or other noxious gas, or any defect in the roof or sides of the mine, or any other indication of danger 
from any other cause." If the Court is going to make suggestions by-and-bye to minimise the chances of 
accident, it is as well to notice that, so long as these men, who are working in the mine, are allowed to l)5S 
over this rule by saying "Oh, it was not gas, fire-damp; it was only gunpowder, and therefore I need not 
report it," it is a loop-hole which becomes a very great danger. 
13544. JL'. Rite/tie.] It is, practically, a danger which has been pointed out before this Commission, and 
has not been pointed out before, as far as the rules and regulations are concerned. 
13545, ilfr. Robertson.] I do not think that, in any of the Royal Commissions that have sat at Home, any 
mention has been made by any witness, in any shape or form, directly or indirectly, as to the possibility of 
changer from gunpowder gas. 
13516. Witness.] No, I do not remember having seen it myself. 
13547. Air. Robertson.] It is a very curious thing. 
13548. Witness.] It is. 
13549. Jfi. Bruce Smith.] It will just show the Cemmission how carelessly men reason with regard to tliia 
Here is Mr. Jnbb, who is a well-known under-manager, a certificated man ; and, when asked "Then, if you 
find anything after a shot is fired, you conclude that it is gas from the powder 7' he says "Yes; unless it 
continues to give off." You see he recogmlises that there may be both, but, if one is merely ephemeral, that 
is from the gunpowder; and, if it continues to give off, it may be gas which is being emitted from the coal 
liberated by the fall. 
13550. Now, here is the authority that Mr. Atkinson was referring to on this gunpowder case, volume IX 
of the "Transactions of the Federated Institution of Mining Engineers." [T/me boo/c was s/mown to the 
Commission.] 
13551. Al,'. Robertson.] Q. Have you noticed the difference in the composirion given by Lewes, and that 
given by Parnely. Pamely gives 50 per cent, of combustible gases ; and Lewes gives 50 per cent, of 
carbon dioxide, 33 per cent, of nitrogen, and 10 of carbon monoxide, so that that is practically inexplosive? 
A. Yes. No doubt a great deal depends, as His Honor suggested, on the composition of the explosive. 
13552. Q. Now, here is another powder, mining powder, carbon dioxide 32 per cent., carbon monoxide 
33 per cent., nitrogen 19 per cent., suiphuretted hydrogen 7 per cent. Well, one would not think-, at first 
glance, that that was explosive. You see it is so mixed. Here is a gas containing 32 per cent, of carbonic 
acid. Well, one would think it impossible to have an explosive mixture, even if you had 33 per cent, of 
carbon-monoxide? A. I hardly think so, because I know of another case where you could get an explosion 
with 33 per cent, of CO2, when you had 6 per cent, of fire-damp, and the rest aim'. 
13553. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Doe-s not that authority show that that gas is explosive? 
13554. Mr. Robertson.] Well, it seems to me, that with 33 per cent. of carbonic acid, hardly any mixture 
would be explosive. 
13555. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Have you got Pamely there? 
135513. Mr. Ritchie.] Yes. 
13557. Mi'. Bruce Smith.] Does not he give that? 
13558. AIr. Ritchie.] He gives the very same particulars. 
13559. Air. Robertson.] It is a very curious thing that the question has not Leen brought before any other 
Commission; considering the millions of shots that have been fired, one would think it was a matter of 
common knowledge. 
13560. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But these men speak of it as a common thing. 
13561. Mr. Robertson.] That is the remarkable timing about it. 
13562. Mr. Ritchie.] They may be mistaken. 
13563. Air. Bruce Smith.] It may be gas. 
13564. Mr. Ritchie.] Yes. 
13565. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Juhb seems to have arrived at a sort of distinction which he draws between 
those which explode and finish, and those which explode and continue. He is a bit of a student from what 
I remember of his demeanour. 
13566. J11r. Ritchie.] And then we have the evidence of Mr. Atkinson himself, who says it is practically 
impossible to distinguish the flame of one from the other. 
13567, AIr. Bruce Smith.] At all events, it points to this conclusion inevitably, that, whatever they may 
think it,, it ought to be reported. 
13568. ill-c. Ritchie.] Yes, that is so, 
13569. AIm'. Bruce Smith..] Q. Now, there is one question with regoard to the difficulty which the men said 
they had experienced in distinguishing between gas and water in producing that singing noise. Are you 
able to say anything on that point? A. Well, I think that water itself might issue without the singing 
noise ; but, when accompanied with the singing, I think it is due to gas. 
13570. Q. Then, I understand that you think that the Commission may take it that, whenever men heard 
this singing noise in any mine, although they did not know whether it was water or gas, you think it may 
be taken to have been gas? A. That is so. 
13571. Q. You think the water would not n-make that noise? A. No. 
13572. lIre Honor.] Q. Water without gas cannot sing, I suppose; it is impossible? A. I think not. 
13573. AIm'. Robertson.] Q. Itis really the expansion of the gas that causes the noise? A. Yes; the fighting 
of the gas and the water. 
13574, Q. It is really like the roaring of steam out of an escape pipe ? A. Yes ; that is really an illustration 
of it. 
13575. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Now, you heard Morrison's evidence, the day before yesterday, in which he 
said that lie had never been instructed to inspect these places, like the extreme end of No. I Imeading, because 
the mcmi Imad not been working there. Wlmat do you say about that? A. Well, I think it is desirable that 
the law should be altered, either by altering General Bule 4, or the special rules, so as to include such 
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13576. Q. As the rules stand at present, would the deputy really be impliedly instructed to see those places 
or would he be justified in saying that he had not received instructions, because he had not had special 
instructions? A. Well, General Rule 4 certainly does not require him to inspect those places, as it stands 
now. 
13577. Q. Because it is not a working place, and it is fenced off? A. Because it is not a working place, or 
one in which persons were to pass. 
13578. Q. The workmen are not likely to work or pass there, that is the phrase, is it not? A. Those are 
the words. 
13579. Q. And that is what you say you think should be altered? A. I think so, yes. 
13580. Q. Because that accumulation of gas, which you found in the back heading, might have gone on 
until the outer edge of it came past the fence—I mean, supposing it were left? A. in the absence of 
ventilation, that might take place. 
13581. Q. Of course it is fair to say that the ventilation was all deranged at the time up at that part? 
A. Yes. 
13582. Q. But still that inspection by a deputy is necessary to see that the ventilation is going on, so as to 
get rid of that accumulation? A. Yes, I think so; especially having regard to the fact that the air goes on 
to other men. 
13583. AIr. Robertson.] Q. Mr. Atkinson, it is open to the Department to propose a special rule now to 
deal with this? A. Yes, it is. 
13584. AIr. Biuce Smith.] Your Honor remembers that man, Sells, who was cross examined by Mr. '\Vade. 
He referred to a man named Waples ; and I think your Honor said something about 'Wapels at the time 
but I do not think it is very important. Sells said Waples was near]y blown up in Mount Kembla. I am 
not saying it is unimportant that he was nearly blown up. 
13585. His Honor.] Mr. Atkinson may or may not know something about it. 
13586 .ATr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You remember that passage with regard to Waples ? A. I (10. 
13587. Q. Do you think it is of any importance that he should be called? A. Well, I think we have had 
sufficient evidence of the same character; and, unless there is some special circumstance attached to it, I do 
not see any particular necessity. 
13.588. His Honor.] The witness went on to say that it was not brought to the notice of any official ; and 
therefore it could not have percolated to Mr. Atkinson's knowledge. 
13589. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I think that is all I want to ask Mr. Atkinson at present. I am afraid we are 
in a difficulty. I have counted upon either Mr. Lysaght or Mr Barry being prepas-ed to take up Mr. 
Atkinson's examination or cross-examination, whichever it turns out to be ; and I have no other witness 
here at present. 

(Mr. Lysaght submitted that Mr. Barry should cross-examine first. Mr. Barry thought Mr. Lysaght 
should cross-examine first. Eventually Mr. Lysaght consented to commence his cross-examination at once, 
though he would have preferred to have waited until he had had time to carefully consider Mr. Atkinson's 
evidence in chief). 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght :— - 

13590. Q. I want to know why it is that you express no opinion on Recommendation No. 17, "Cancellation 
of the certificate of Mr. Rogers"? 
13591. His Honor.] Oh, the Commission practically put that out of the question, because that is not 
a question which the Commission thought ought to be gone into at all, the question of the cancellation of 
the certificate of Ni. Rogers. That question was eliminated a long time ago. That is why Mr. Atkinson 
did not express an opinion—because he was not asked. 
13592. Mr. Lysaght.] But I take it, Your Honor, that I can get his opinion as to certain things done by 
the Manager, showing that he was not a competent Manager, and that the practical management of the 
colliery was defective. 
13593. his Honor.] Oh, you can go into that question. 
13594. Mr. Barry.] A moment—do I take it that Your Honor holds that anything that may have been 
done by Mr. Rogers, irrespective of the cause of the disaster, can be gone into here? 
13595. His Honor.] No, only matters connected with the disaster. The Commission have to find out 
whether any one is to blame, and, if so, who. Of course, under that head of the duties of the Commission, 
Mr. Lysaght might ask some questions. 
13596. AIr. Lysaght.] Q. You know that Mr. Rogers admitted that the inspection of the waste was only 
done once a month? A. Yes. 
13597. Q. In your opinion, did the failure to inspect the waste once a week contribute in any way to the 
initiatory causes of the disaster? A. I cannot say that it would. 
13598. Q. 'Would it he a circumstance that would, most probably, lay the conditions for the disaster? 
A. I do not exactly understand the question. 
13599. Q. Would the failure to inspect once a week probably cause conditions to arise which did cause the 
disaster? A. I do not see how that could cause the disaster. 
13600. Q. I will put it in detail. Taking your theory of an expulsion of gas and air from the 35-acre goal, 
would not an inspection weekly of that goal probably have prevented that accumulation of gas? A. I (10 
not think I have suggested an accumulation of gas, Mr. Lysaght-. 
13601. Q. Well, would it not have prevented that quantity of gas that, in your opinion, was forced out 
from the goal, being allpwed to remain there undetected had an inspection been made regularly every 
week, as required by the rules, is it not probable that the knowledge of gas inthat goaf would have been 
easily ascertained ? A. Yes, that is so. - 
13602. Q.  And the knowledge of gas in that goaf being easily ascertained— [inierruptefl ? A. Near to the 
edge of the goal—it might not be practicable or safe to go very far in, after the timbers had been drawn out. 
13603. Q. And, having that knowledge, it is probable that the management would have been in a position 
to take steps which would probably have avoided the disaster? A. if there was an accumulation, doubt-less 
it would. 
13601. (). Now, does not your theory aesume that there was an accumulation in the goal? A. Not 
necessarily. It might have been up in the strata wlicii the fall took place. 

13605. 
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13605. Q. But, in view of the evidence that the first fall had taken place a week before the disaster, do not 
you think that the accumulation resulted from the first fall 1 A. No, I could not say that that is very 
probable. 
13606. Q. But is it not more probable that the -as that was forced out of the waste had been standing 
there for some days, and was not the immediate result of the then immediate fall I A. It is possible ; but 
I cannot say that it is highly probable. 
13607. Q. The inspection of the waste each week would have detected conditions that would have pointed 
to danger? A. If they discovered gas, yes. 
13608, Q. Well, the fact that the deputy had discovered black-damp before pointed to a source of danger 
and if an inspection had been made every week----[Interrupted.] 
13609. Mr. Barry.] Might I ask this : lie says that the deputy having discovered black-damp would 
indicate a source of danger : then he shoots off on another line. 
13610. his Honor.] That ought to be put by itself. 
136101. 211,'. Barry.] Mr. Lysaglit asks three or four questions ; and you get an answer down that does not 
convey exactly what the witness means. 
13611. his Honor.] It is not fair to ask a question in such a way that the witness appears to answer more 
than he does. 
136 12.J[r. Berry.] I am sure Mr. Lysaght does not mean it; but lie makes statements too. 
13613. He. Lysaght.] Q. Is it not probable that, if that waste had been inspected every week, Gre-damp 
would have been discovered in it? A. No, I cannot say that it is probable, or was probable. 
13614. Q. And in view of the fact that only 2 feet of the roof had fallen, or that there had only been a fall of 
22 feet., would it not have been pi'acticabe for Morrison to have gone much further into the goaf to inspect 
than he did 1 A. Well, I do not know how far he did go. 
13615. Q. Well lie said he only went to the fence. 
jihi'. Bruce Smith.] No. 
13616. lIfe. Lysaght.] To the edge of the fall. 
13617. Q. Well, in view of the fact that the fall was only 21 feet, was it not practicable for him to go much 
farther, and make a more perfect examination 1 A. I think he might have gone beyond the fence and as far 
as it was safe to go. 
13318. Q. And it was practicable to go farther, in view of the fact that the fall was only 21 feet? A. It 
might be practicable; but it might not be safe, having re3ard to the ftct that the timbers were all drawn, 
and a further fall was anticipated. 
13610. (19.  In a goaf like that 35-acre gosh was it not bad management to carry an intake air-way pxst it 
and on to the men? A. Without any separation between the intake and the waste 
13620. Q. At the north end of the goaf, the evidence is that there were five openings ; and the intake air 
passed there, without any separation ? A. Well, as I understand the plan (explaining his evidence by the 
plan) the intake air for these men (oisttiny to Nos. 90 to 101) was directed to them by means of canvas 
doors on the 5th Right rope road. There would be a certain scale (leakage) of air through the canvas doors, 
no doubt along the 5th Right rope road ; and that would be for the purpose of keeping that road clear, and 
ventilating the wheeler. 
23621. Q. I can put it this way : men lad to get air that passed the openings on that goaf? A. Yes, the 
air passed along the 5th. Right rope road, en the north side of that goaf. 
13622. Q. And you know that there were about five openings on to that 5th Right rope road from the goaf I 
A. Yes, there are. 
136221. Is not that an evidence of bad management ? A. If those openings had no stoppings of any kind 
in, I say ''  Yes." 
13623. Q. And you did not observe any stoppings there? A. On the north side? 
13624. Q. Yes? A. No, I did not; but they might have been there before the explosion. 
13625. (2. But there were no stoppings there. 
136251. Mr. Robertson.] There is no evidence of that. 
13626. Mr Lysaght.] I understood from Morrison that there were five openings that came out of that intake. 
I intended to put the question to him ; and I understand that is what lie said. 
13627. Q. You heard the evidence of pillars having been left standing in that goaf, that they lost whole 
pillars-n-ould not the presence of those pillars probably cause a considerable discharge of fire-damp I Is it 
not probable that a considerable discharge of fire-damp would come from those pillars that had been lost in 
that goaf? A. Well, I think it is possible that there might be a certain amount : I could not say a very 
considerable discharge. 
1362$. Q. And, with the knowledge in the management that those pillars had been left there, do you think 
that the failure to examine every week, and the substitution of the examination every month, was an act of 
great negligence ; in addition to being a violation of a rule, was it not clearly an act of negligent manage-
men, knowing that pillars were standing there, to allow those wastes to be only inspected once a month 1 
A. Well, it depends a gi-eat deal upon where the pillars were left as to whether the accumulation would be 
likely to reach anywhere nrar the outlet to the 4th Right. We hal not any evidence of exactly where 
those pillars were left., except that it was somewhere in the 35 acre goaf. It might he in such a remote 
position that any firedamp given off from those pillars would not reach the vicinity of the outlet to the 4th 
Right. 
13629. Q. But., the pillars being left there, and the. management knowing that, was it not an act of 
negligence in the management to have the inspections only once a month, instead of weekly I 
13630. His Honor.] What Mr. Lysaght really means is, did it not make it still more incumbent on the 
management to be careful to keep up to the weekly inspection, as there was a hidden mystery, a buried 
lillal', somewhere about there? 
13631. Mr. Lysaglit.] That is it. 
13632. IITitness.] Yes, if the pillars were anywhere near the vicinity of the, 4th Right I would say ''Yes." 
13633. Mr. .Lijsaght.j Q. And, in view of the fact that black-damp was discovered the e a week before the 
disaster, was it not an act of gross negligence not to have,  that waste examined every week I A. Well, it 
was a breach of the rules. 
13634. 0. In addition to being a breach of the i'ule., was it not an act of grors negligence in the management 
not to have it examined every week, lia in.- discovered the black-damp 1 13635. 
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13635. up Bruce Sniitle] Does Your Honor think that a proper form of question, asking a witness whether 
he thinks it an act of gross negligence ? 
13636. His Honor.] There are too many adjectives. 
13637. ilfr. Lyserjht.j Q. Was it an act of negligence? A. Yes, it was an act of negligence. 
136.38. Q. And, do you now say that that ac of negligence was not a factor contributing to the disaster ? 
ii. I cannot see the connection. 

(At 1 pn• the Commission adjourned till 2 p.m.) 

AFTERNOON. 

(Qa resuming at 2 p  m , Mr. W. B. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the Evidence and Irocedings.) 

Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under : 

13639. Jfr. Lpsaqlit.] Q. With the large area of the 35-acre waste roof standing, any fall would cause a large 
quantity of dust to rise in the 4th Right 1 A. Provided that there was a considerable quantity of dust 
and a considerable fall. 
13640. Q. You know that there was a considerable quantity of dust, both on the 4th Right and on No. 1 
travelling road, before the disaster? A. There wasa certain quantity. 
13641. His Honor.] Q. Itt has been stated during the course of the proceedings that one of the .stoppings 
was b!own out. What, in your opinion, was the probable efibot that that dust would have if it were blown 
out into the engine road. Would you consider it no element in the matter 1 A. Do you mean, supposing 
the dust was of the finest quality, or merely pit slack I 
13642. Q. Did you examine those stoppings to see whether the interior had been built ip with small coal 1 
A. There were a number of stones, and dirt, and slack. I could not say that there was much of the finer 
sort of dust that you meet on the timbers on the haulage road. 
13643. Q. The material in these stoppings, then, would not be fine enough to call dust? A. Some witnesses 
have stated that they were filled with fine dust. 
13643. ills. Ritchie.] Q. Would the fine dust be blown away by the time that you made your examination? 
A. Of course, I made my inspection after the explosion. There were deposits in certain places, but the 
deposits of dust after an explosion are not always true indications of the condition of the road before. 
1364f. Q. Would it be likely that the concussion blew the finer stuff away? A. If there was an opening at 
the top of the stopping, the lighter stuff would go first. 
13615. Q. His Honor said that one of the stoppings had an opening at the top, and that this was blown 
out 
13616. His Honor.] Q. I am alluding to a stopping which was actually blown out. It is a stopping north 
of the 5th Right, between the engine heading and the back heading, and it was blown out into the engine road. 
A. Yes. 
13647. i/s. Robertson.! Q. Did it not consistof rough stone? A. I did not observe much of the finer stuff there. 
1 3648. Mr. Lysapltt.] Q. With the probability of a considerable fall in the 35 acre waste, raising a cloud of 
dust, an -1 blowing out the dust of the stopping, and that such a fall was anticipated a week before the 
disaster, was it not negligence on the part of the management not to systematically water the 4th Right 
and No. 1 travelling road I A. There was no legal obligation. 
13619. 0. Apart from legal obligations, was there not negligence on the part of the management of the 
colliery? A. Opinions are so divided as to the benefits or otherwise of watering dust, and it is not by any 
means general in this country yet therefore I could not say that it could be called negligence in the way 
you suggest. 
13650. Q. In your opinion was it not negligence not to systematically water No, 1 travelling road and the 
4th Right -- 
13651. His Honor.] Ask him, if he had been Manager himself, would he have thought it consistent 
with his duty, and a proper thing to do, to water these roads 1 
13652. Q. dIr. .Lpsaj/it.] What do you say to that 1 A. I hardly know how to answer it, because I have 
mentioned the legal obligation in connection with the question. 
13653. His Honor.] Q. It is not a matter of legal obligation. What Mr. Lysaghit is asking you is, supposing 
you had been Manager, and knew exactly how things stood,do you think that, as a matter of fair precaution, 
you would have watered the 4th Right and the No. 1 travelling road 1 A. Well, I think it would be a 
desirable thing to do. 
13651. if,. litc.liiS.] Do you think that you would have done so? A. I cannot say whether I would or not. 
13655. dIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Do you know the condition of the dust at the time - [No answer.] 
13656. His Honor.] The question is asked on the assumption that it was a dry part of the mine. 
1 3657. dIr. Robertson.] Quite the contrary No. 4 was wet. 
1365$. Mr. Lysreght.] The evidence is that there was 1 inch of dust there. 
13659. ills. Robertson.] I think the evidence is that it was sloppy. 
1.3660. ifs. Lvsaght.] Q. Do you know what evidence had been given as to the dusty condition of the 4th 
Right before the disaster? A. Do you mean speaking from the evidence I 
13661. Q. Yes. .4. There is evidence that there is a certain quantity of dust in the neighbourhood of the 
4th Right travelling road. 
13662. ills. Robertson.] Q. Is there any evidence of dust being in the outlet of No. 4 Right I [No answer.] 
13663. ifs. Ritchie.] Q. You said that the state of the road at the present time is not to be compared with 
what it was before the disaster 1 
13664. ills. Robertson.] He said time mine generally. 
13665. Witness.] I know that after the accident I saw a quantity of dust in the neighbourhood of the 4th 
Right. 
13666. .Tkfr. Robertson.] Q. In the neighbourhood? A. Yes, I made a note of it at the time. 
13667. (9. I have seen water running out of iii A. There is a certain amount of water there. 
13668. ills. Lysag/tt.] Q. Taking the authorities you have quoted to us, there was a dangerous accumulation 
of dust in the No. 4 Right and on the travelling road I A. Jnder certain conditions. 

13669, 
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1 3G69. Q. And is it a fact that a dangerous quantity of dust, suhh as you have specified from the authorities, 
can arise from one day's working in the ordinary course of it, mine. Do the authorities say that one day 
would be sufficient to cause a dangerous accumulation of dust 1 A. The dust is only dangerous under 
conditions of shot-firing, or gas in the air mixed with dust. 
13670. 0. You have given us certain measurements to show what proportions of dust are dangerous. Could 
this dangerous condition of dust accumulate in one day's m dinary working of a colliery 1 A. It depends on 
the quantity of mineral being passed over the road. 
13671. Q. Take one of the main haulage roads. Would one day's work be sufficient to accumulate a 
dangerous amount of dust? A. Under certain conditions, it might. 
13672. 0. The conditions being such as you have described, will you not admit that it was positive 
negligence on the part of the management not to systematically water the travelling road and the haulage 
road I A. I cannot say that it was. 
13673. Q. Will you say, without it being positive negligence, that there was not negligence in not watming 
these roads under the conditions which you have described I A. No, I do not think it would be. 
13674. 0. If it was not negligence on the part of the management then, would it be negligence on the part 
of the management now not to water under these conditions I A. I think it would not be until the law is 
altered. 
13675. Q. I am not speaking of the legal obligation, but of the practical working of a colliery. Should not 
Mr. Rogers have had the travelling road and the haulage road watered I [Ko answer.] 
13676. Mi. Rue/us.] Q. Would you have done so, had you been Manager, with the knowledge you have now I 
A. With the knowledge I have now, I think I would. 
13677. AIr. Lysarj/ut.1 Q. Was it not neglect on the part of the Manager not to do it I [Ko answer.] 

13678. his honor.] Q. That is an inference that may be drawn, or not, by the Court. The answer of 
the witness is, that lie would have clone it himself in the exercise of his discretion with the knowledge lie 
has now. 
13619. ZiTr. Robertson.] Q. May I ask Mr. Atkinson if his view as to what constitutes a dry and dusty mine 
has been altered to some extent since this disaster? A. No. 
13680. Q. Did you consider this a dry and dusty mine? A. Well, the term 11 dry and dusty " has never yet 
been defined. It is to a certain extent an open question. Although there are certain parts of the haulage 
road which may be described as being dry and dusty, I do not think that on the whole anyone can call it a 
dry and dusty colliery. 
13681. Q. Perhaps since the explosion what we call a diy and dusty mine must be revised? A. There is no 
doubt that a much smaller quantity of dust is dangerous than was formerly thought to be the ease. 
13682. AIr. Lysaglut.] (7. Was not all the knowledge as to the dangerous qualities of dust known as far 
back as 1886 1 A. Well, there had been several explosions attributed to coal-dust, with the presence of 
gas; but opinions were very much divided even in 1886, as you will see by a glance at the evidence given 
in the 1891-1894 Commission. 
13683. Q. For seven years before the disaster the Commission emphatically pointed out the danger of coal-
dust and the necessity for systematic watering? A. They suggested it, although the Legislature bad not 
amended it beyond the Act of 1887. 
13634. (7. And in various collieries in England for the last ten years, systematic watering has been carried 
out? A. Yes, I think so, on main haulage roads. 
1368-5. Q. And in a number of collieries in this State? A. Systematic watering-do you mean of the whole 
of the colliery? 
13686. Q. I mean of the travelling and haulage roads 1 [Xe answer.] 
13687. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. What do you mean by systematic? A. Do you mean regularly? 
13688. Mr. Lysaglut.] Q. Do you know that? A. It depends on what you call systematic wate ing. 
13689. Q. 1 mean the watering of the travelling road and the haulage road with sprays? A. No. 

13610. Q. Do you know whether the Newcastle collieries have been watering systematically for the last six 
or seven ycars? A. No, they have not. 
13691. Q. Do you know of any collieries in this State where the haulage roads have been wat,er€d 
systematically? A Do you r fer to the roof and the sides, and the floor? 
13692. Q. I am speaking at present only of the floor? A. I dare say the floor has been watered. 
13693. Q. Do you know whether before the disaster there were any means of watering the floor, adequately, 
at Mount Kembla? A. I think there is evidence of some tanks being used for the purpose. 
13694. Q. Will you not admit that the tanks were absolutely inadequate to water the floor, apart from the 
sides and the roof? A. I think, perhaps, they were, 
13695. Q. Then, with the knowledge available to colliery managers for the past seven years of the danger 
of coal-dust, and the necessity of watering, will you not admit that the management was guilty of negligence 
in not watering? A. No, I cannot admit it; as it was not an acknowledged custom in the State. 
13696. Q. I do not say whether it was an acknowledged custom or not. Here is the evidence of certain 

Would it not be negligence not to water Kembla Colliery? A. Yes, I think things that were dangerous.  
it would be now. 
13697. Q. Well, was it not equally negligence on their part before the disaster? A. Well, with the recent 
knowledge of the explosion, I think it would be negligence now, although it could hardly be said to be 
negligence before the explosion. 
13698. Q. With the knowledge of the explosion, and knowing as the management did of the presence of 
gas and the danger of coal-dust, would it not be equally dangerous then as now? A. I cannot say that it 

would. 
13699. Q. Are you pri pared to say that it was not? [Ko answer.] 
13700. Mr. Ritchie] The witness admits that it would lie negligence now; would it not also be negligence 
before the disaster I 
13701. Mr. Bruce Smith.] The matter of negligence is according to our own knowledge. You might say 
that the colliery managers of twenty-five years ago were negligent because of the manner in which they 
worked their misses. 
13702. Mr. Lysaglut.] Q. Would it not be negligence? A. Icannot say. The additional knowledge conveyed 
by the explosion alters the case. 

13703. 



424 
Witness-A. A. Atkinson, 5 February, 1903. 

13703. Q. Can you tell me any greater knowledge about coal dust which could be gained from the explosion 
A. Oh, I think there was sufficient knowledge conferred by the explosions in England. 
13701. Q. Sufficient knowledge of what? A. Perhaps you will put your question again. 
13705. Q. T ask you what additional knowledge, with reference to the danger of coal-dust, has been afforded 
by the disaster, which was not already afforded by the English explosions ? A. I do not think that there 
was any. 
13706. Q. That being so, cannot we leave the Kembla disaster outside the question ? A. I do not see how 
we can do that. 
13707. Q. If the knowledge was available, as to dangerous conditions before the disaster, in what way does 
the disaster affect the negligence of the Company in not watering? \Vhy should it be negligence not to 
water now and not negligence not to water before the disaster? A. Well, the eflbet of the explosion has 
brought the matter so keenly before everyone in the mining community, and before everyone associated 
with mining. 
13708. Q. Is that the only reason ? A. I do not know of any other. 
13709. Q. Was it not brought sufficiently before the notice of mining managers and others by the common 
text books issued before the disaster ? A. If they had read them. 
13710. Q. Then you admit that the knowledge was available in the mining text bo3ks? A. Yes. 
13711. Q. Will you not admit that it was negligence on the part of the Managers not to water 
13712. His honor.] Which was negligence? Not to water, or not to read the books ? 
13713. Mr. Barry.] Evidently the negligence was in not reading the books. 
13714. His honor.] The question is whether the omission to read the books constitutes negligence. 
13715. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. 1 want to clear this matter up ; and I accept your opinion as final as far as I am 
concerned. If it would be negligence not to water now, was it not also negligence not to water before the 
disaster 
13716. His limier.] Q. Mr. Atkinson has answered that quetion before? A. Yes, I have answered it. 
13717. .3fr. Lysaght.] Q. Now, is it a fact that since the disaster the management at Kenibla has adopted 
an improved system of watering? A. I do not know that you can describe it as an improved system; but 
they have adopted a system of watering. 
13718. Q. Is it a system which meets with your approval ? A. On the haulage roads-yes. 
13719. Q. They have purchased sprays? A. They have tubs going round which operate pumps, and this 
causes sprays of water on the haulage road. 
13720. Q. before the disaster they had none of these appliances? A. No. 
13721. Q. Did it not strike you with your knowleclgeof the danger of coal dust,, that you should have made 
some recommendation as to the advisability of the Kembla Company watering their mine - 
13722. Mr. Barry.] Are you speaking of before .or afier the disaster? 
13723. Mr. LysayhL] Q. before the disaster? A. I did make a recommendation to the Company before the 
disaster. 
13724. Q. Did they carry out that recommendation l A. They might have done so. It only referred to 
the watering in connection with the firing of shots under General Rule 12. 
13725. Q. Leave that alone for a moment. You confined your recommendation to the practice of watering 
in the vicinity of firing a shot. Did it not occur to you that in order to preserve the Kembla Mine from 
the danger of a dust explosion, it would be advisable to have all haulage and travelling roads watered? 
A. I sent a circular letter to the Manager ; but it was in such terms as I considered were within the powers 
of the inspector. 
13726. Q. Apart from the powers you are speaking about, have you not a general power of ordering 
anything to ensure the safety of a mine? A. No watering is specially provided for by a general rule. 
13727. Q. Do I understand that you felt the want of power to give orders regarding watering at the 
Kembla Colliery ? A. I cannot say that the matter came before me. 
13728. Q. If you did not feel the want of power in the matter, will you tell me why you did not order the 
Kembla Colliery Company to water their roads in view of the danger which you knew existed from coal-
dust 1 A. I did not have the power to do it. 
13729. Q. You say you never felt the want of that power? A. I do not understand you. 
13730. Q. Well, you say you could not do it? A. I cannot order a Colliery Manager to water the whole of 
the haulage roads and the travelling roads. I sent out a circular giving orders as far as I could. 
13731. Q. Was not the direction contained in the circular of little value? A. Well, the course which you 
suggest has never been, so far as I know, adopted in the old country or here. I did not feel that I was 
justified in taking that course. 
13732. Q. Will you not admit that, generally speaking, your circular was of no value with a view of 
preventing such a disaster as occurred at Mount Kemnbla I A. Yes. 
13733. Q. So I may take it that you did nothing to suggest that directions should be taken with a iiew of 
preventing such a disaster as did occur? A. Not beyond sending out the circular, and giving the result of 
the testing of the dust. 
13731. Q. When you sent out the circular giving the result of the testing of the dust, did you not consider 
that it was essential to have the travelling roads watered as well as the haulage roads? A. I do not know 
what I considered at the time. 
13735. Q. Will you not admit that it was essential that the travelling roads should be watered as well as 
the haulage roads? A. There was no mention of the haulage roads in the circular. 
13736. Q. Was not the firing on the haulage roads? A. The recommendation was not confined to the haulage 
roads. It referred to any dry or dusty place. That is, shots were not to be fired in any dry or dusty place 
without watering. 
13737. Q. You knew that shots were being fired all over the mine? A. Yes, in the working places. 
13738. Q. You knew that some parts of the mine were dry and dusty? A. Yes, on the haulage roads. 
13739. Q. And that some parts of the working face were naturally dry and dusty? A. I could not say 
that. 
13740. Q. Do you not know that work was going on in the highest part of the mine? A. Yes. 
13741. Q. Do you not know that the 4th Left was a dusty section? A. I know that there was dust 
on the rope road of No. 4 Left. 
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13742. Q. Why did you not see that your recommendation about watering the place was carried out A. I 
had nothing to tell me that it was not carried out. 
13743. Q. Did you inquire? A. I had not time, in the interval between the sending out of the circular and 
the explosion, to visit the mine. 
13744. Q. I do not care about your visiting the mine. Did you make any inquiry? A. I received reports 
from the Inspector, and expected him, naturally, to mention any irregularity, as he is instructed to do. I 
had no intimation of any irregularities of that kind. 
13745. Q. Did you do nothing which would enable you to discover whether your suggestion was being 
carried out? A. I cannot say. I macic no specific visit, or inquiries, beyond the reports I received from 
the Inspector. 
13746. Q. In view of the fact that the Kembla dust was found to be "violently explosive," will you not admit 
that it was material to know whether the watering recommendations were being strictly carried out? A. Yes. 
13747. Q. Can you give any explanation for not finding out whether they were being carried out? A. I 
would find out from the Inspector. 
13748. Q. You f9und out in another way-by the explosion? A. I did not find out. 
13749. Q. Have you got the reports of Inspector Bates for about six months previous to the disaster? A. Yes. 
13750. Q. Can you produce them? A. Yes. 
13751 Q. Will you have the reports of Inspector Bates produced, Your Honor?-. 
13752. His Honor.] Q. Can you produce them? A. Yes. 
13753. Then I shall be glad if you will have them here by Monday 1 Yes, Your Honor. 
13754. Jlfr. Lpscglit.] In Mr. Bates' reports, is there any mention of watering being done at Kembla? A. 
So far as I remember, there is not. 
13755. Q. The reports afforded you no information with regard to the watering? A. The inference is, if 
the watering had not been done 
13756. Q. I said that they afforded you no information? A. Not expressly, but inferentially they did. 
13757. Q. Did Mr. Bates know of your communication to Mount Kembla? A. Yes. 
13758. Q. I suppose you frequently saw Mr. Bates between the time of the making of the recommendation 
and of the disaster ? A. Yes. 
13759. Q. Did you ask him? A. I do not remember. 
13760. Q. Did Mr. Bates ever, in writing or by word, make one single mention of the watering being done 
at Kembla? A. I do not remember -whether he did or not. 
13761. Q. Can you remember whether he made any mention of the dusty conditions which existed at 
Kembla? A. I do not know that he did. 
13762. Q. On the 30th April, 1902, you wrote a letter to the Manager of the Kembla Company, from 
which the following is an extract :- 

It is necessary, in the event of blasting taking place in your colliery in dry and dusty places, that the requirements 
of General Rule 12, section 47, Coal Mines Regulation Act, should be strictly complied with, and the vicinity of the shots 
thoroughly watered, as required by that Rule. 

And, on the 13th of May, you wrote to the Manager telling him that you would be pleased to hear from 
him in regard to the matter. I want to know what you, or your Inspector, did from the 30th of April to 
learn whether Rule 12 was being strictly complied with? A. Do you mean with reference to the Mount 
Kembla Mine? 
13763. Q. Yes? A. I did not visit Mount Kembla in the interval. 
13764. Q. What did you do to see that the General Rule was strictly complied with? A. The Inspector 
would visit the colliery, to see whether or not it was strictly complied with. 
13765. Q. That is an assumption? A. Yes. 
13766. Q. May I take it that you have no knowledge of having done anything specifically to see that 
General Rule 12 was strictly complied with? A. I have no knowledge that the rule was not complied 
with. I have knowledge that the Inspector visited the colliery before the explosion, and after the 30th of 
April. 
13767. Q. Have you any knowledge of the Tuspector's having visited the colliery when blasting was being 
carried out on the haulage roads? A. No. 
13768. Q. Have you any knowledge that the Inspector visited the colliery when a shot was actually being 
fired, and was there to see it fired 1 A. I should think it very probable that he would be there. 
13769. Q. Have you any knowledge that he was present when a shot was fired? A. I have no knowledge, 
but I should think it very probable that he was present. 
13770. Q. You have no knowledge whether this request was carried out or not? A. I will not admit that. 
13771. Q. But you cannot give me any knowledge that you have? A. I did not visit the mine. 
13772. Q. Did you not hear Mr. Rogers admit that lie never had the vicinity ofaplace watered, when shot- 
firing was going on, after having received that circular from you 1 [No answer.] 
13773. Mr. Barry.] I do not think that there was any such evidence. 
13774. his Honor.] Mr. Lysaght had better show it to the Court. 
13775. Mr Lysaght.] Q. Here it is in the report of the evidence given by Mr. Rogers at the inquest: 

We have no apparatus at all for watering the roof, sides, and timbers, and we never have watered them we have 
not fired shots in the roads for a considerable time ; for nine or ten months, to the best of my memory, we have never 
watered in the immediate neighbourhood of a shot ; we have no apparatus for doing that, and it has never been done. 

13776. Q. Had you no such knowledge that he had not watered? A. No. 
13777. Q. Do you know that, although he got your letter he admitted that he did not bother to have the 
places watered? A. Yes, I know that. 
13778. Q. Will you admit that Mr. Rogers did nothing to carry out Rule 12? A. I do not know that he 
fired shots in a dry and dusty place. 
13779. Q. Do you not know that shots were being fired in the 4th Left? A. Do you mean in the working 
faces? 
13780. Q. Yes. Are they not dry and dusty I A. I do not know that they can be called so. 
13781. Q. Do they not possess dusty conditions that are dry and dangoros? A. I saw dust thereafter the 
explosion. 

16825 29-3 11 13782. 
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13782. Q. Can you mention anything which you did to see that this urgent request which you made was 
ever attended to i A. Nothing beyond what I have described. 
13783. Q. And you have the admission of the Manager that he never watered at all? A. Yes. 
13784. Q. Will you not admit that that was negligent? A. If he fired a shot in a dry and dusty place, it 
was. 
13785. Q. If ever he fired a shot at all? A. Not unless it was in a dry and dusty place. 
13786. Q. I am taking the working p]aces on the 4th Left. If a shot were fired in them, and the place 
was not watered, will you not admit that there was negligence? A. If the place was dry and dusty. 
13787. Q. Do you not know that the majority of these places were dangerous-that they were in a dusty 
condition? A. I do not know. 
13788. Q. Have you any reason to suggest that they were not? A. I do not know that they were or were not. 
13789. Q. Did you not hear Mr. Rogers admit at the inquest that he did not know what the result of the 
analysis of the Mount Kembla coal-dust had been? A. I believe he said so. It was not an analysis, but 
the result of an experiment to show the explosibility of the dust. 
13790. Q. Was that not negligence on the part of the 1\ianager of the mine not to know the result of the 
experiments relating to the coal-dust? A. Yes, I think it was. 
13191. Q. And in your opinion now, had the Kembla Mine been watered as you directed in your letter 
might the disaster have been avoided, or is it probable that it would? A. No, I do not think it would. 
13792. Q. Did not coal-dust play a large part in propagating that disaster? A. Yes, I think it did. 
13793. Q. If the 4th Left travelling road and the haulage roads had been well watered, would not the 
explosion have been confined practically to the No. 1 main level? A. I think it would have had a tendency 
to have had that effect. 
13194. Q. It is a fact then that, had part of the mine been watered the extent of the disaster, in your 
opinion, would have been considerably reduced? A. If it had been watered for a sufficient length, I think 
it would. 
13795. Q. Then will you not admit that it was negligence causing death, on the part of the management, 
not to sufficiently water that mine for a sufficient length ? A. I do not think it could be so described. 
13796. Q. What would you call it-what name would you give it? A. Well, if the explosion had been 
anticipated it would have been negligence. 
13797. Q. I am not anticipating an explosion; but I am anticipating common dangers that were known to 
be there. But, coming to a case of gas before the disaster-you had notice of Gallagher's burning? A. Yes. 
13798. Q. You had notice in the evidence of Mr. Ronaldson before the Commission on the Coal Mines 
Bill, that Keinbla was constantly giving off gas in all parts? A. A little gas. 
13799. Q. You had the evidence of a previous Manager named Green, in the same report, that Kembla had 
given off gas? A. I do not remember having read his evidence. 
13800. Q. Did you have any special inspections made to determine whether the Kembla Mine was giving 
off a dangerous quantity of gas. A. Statutory inspections, and the ordinary inspections, were made from 
time to time by the different Inspectors. 
13801. Q. Did you ever have an inspection made with the hydrogen flame? A. I do not remember that I did. 
13802. Q. Did you make an inspection with the hydrogen flame in any other colliery? A. I have done so. 
13803. Q. Knowing that, with coal-dust, fire-damp to the extent of 1 per cent. is dangerous, and that the 
safety-lamp will not detect less than 2- per cent., did not you consider it necessary to have an inspection 
made of Kembla with the hydrogen flame? A. The conditions you suggest are only likely to arise when a 
shot is fired. 
13804. Q. Are not the whole of your conclusions relating to coal-dust only liable to arise when a shot is 
fired? A. Or from an explosion of fire-damp. 
13805. With the knowledge which you had that one man had been burnt with gas, and that a Manager 
admitted that the colliery was giving off gas in all part,,;, did you not think it necessary to have an 
examination made with the hydrogen lamp? A. I had an examination made in a neighbouring colliery but 
was unable to find anything. 
13806. Q. Which colliery? A. Keira. 
13807. Q. How long before the disaster? A. I cannot remember now. I can find it from my notes. 
13808. Q. How long i A. I cannot say. 
13809. Q. You thought it necessary in the Illawarra district, south of Mount Pleasant, to make an 
examination with the hydrogen flame? A. I do not know that I thought it necessary ; but, having the 
hydrogen lamp with me, I did it. 
13810. Q. Did you have any notice? A. No; 
13811. Q. You made an inspeetion of a colliery with the hydrogen flame in a case where you had no notice, 
but you made no inspection of a colliery in a case where you knew a man had been bnrnt ? A. That is so. 
13812. Q. Can you give me any reason? A. I inspected Kembla with the ordinary safety-lamp. 
13813. Q. It is valueless for coal-dust ?[Tnterrupter/.] 
13814. Aft. Barry.] I object to the question. 
13815. Aft. Lysag/it] Q. Would not the inspection be valueless so far as an explosion from coal dust and 
fire-damp is concerned? A. No. 
13816. Q. Would not the ordinary lamp fail to detect the small amount of gas which might cause an 
explosion in connection with coal dust? A. If a cloud of coal dust was raised, yes. 
13817. Q. Do you know whether the District Inspector made an inspection with the hydrogen lamp ? A. I 
supplied him with one. 
13818. Q. Did you every inquire whether he made an inspection with the hydrogen flame? A. I do not 
think he did. 
13819. Q. Do you know whether he made an inspection of Keira or Mount Pleasant with a hydrogen 
flame? A. I do not know whether he did or not. 
13820. Q. Was Keira the only colliery on the South Coast that you examined with the hydrogen flame? 
A. I examined Bulli and some other places. 
13821. Q. Did you examine Mount Pleasant? A. I cannot swear to it. 
13822. Q. Is not this the fact-that you relied on the report of the deputies and the management of Mount 
Kembla, so far as the presence of gas is concerned? A. No, certainly not. 
13823. Q. Do you know bow often the Inspector tested for gas? A. On every inspection, I expect. 

13824. 
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13824. Q. How often would that be? A. Six or eight times a year, probably. I do not know exactly. 
13825. Q. He did not visit at regular periods? A. No. 
13826. Q. He might not go for three months? A. lie might not. 
13827, Q. Do you know when it was he went before the disaster? A. Either the end of March or the 
beginning of April. 
13828. Q. And on that occasion lie was only a few hours inspecting? A. I do not know how many hours, 
13829. Q. Was it not only a report of one day's inspection? A. No, two days. He was in the mine in 
July also. 
13830. Q. Did you get a report? A. No. 
13831. Q. It was an inspection? A. It was an inspection. 
13832. Q. Do you always get a report? A. After the inspection is concluded. 
13833. His honor.] Q I think he was there a fortnight before the explosion? A. Yes. 
13834. Q. And on the day of the explosion? A. Yes. 
13835. ilIr. Lysag/it.] Q. Was he completing it? A. He was either completing it, or he would require 
another day. 
13836. Q. Does his report show what part of the mine he visitcd? A. Yes. 
13837. Q. Does it show that he visited the back heading and No. 4 Left? A. It does not specifically mention 
them. 
13838. Q. Does he specifically mention other places ? A. We can see when the report comes up. 
13839. Q. Then I may take it as quite correct, that so far as the presence of gas is concerned, no inspection 
was made of the Mount Kembla Mine with tie hydrogen lamp? A. Not so far as I know. 
13840. Q. And a proportion of gas, which could not be discovered with the ordinary safety-lamp, would 
have been quite sufficient to have been responsible for this disaster, if it was assisted with a cloud of dust 
raised by a fall 1 J. Yes. 
13841. Q. You do not suggest that there was any greater degree of fire-damp, as a factor to this explosion, 
than an amount under 2.i per cent. 1 A. There may or may not have been. 
13842. Q. Do you think there was? A. I cannot tell. It would be quite impossible to tell. 
13843. Q. Then we have this position-that, as far as the inspections were concerned, the danger to be met 
with by gas in a mine, and the danger of dust, were in the mine. The result was this disaster ; and no 
inspection was ever made to guard against these dangers? A. \Vell, -[Interrupted]. 
13844. Q. I mean that you made no inspection to guard against those dangers? A. No inspection was made 
to detect a percentage of gas, which might be an important element in a disaster, no doubt, with certain 
other conditions. 
I 3815. Q. Do you not think that your District Inspector was failing in his duty in not examining the 
Kembla Mine with the hydrogen lamp s hich you supplied him with 1 A. There may be reasons which he 
could give, which were known to him, why he did not try with the hydrogen lamp. 
13846. Q. Did you ever ask him ? A. I do not temeinlier whether I did so or not. 
13847. Q. lie has never told you any reasons? A. No, I do not think he has. 
1384$. Q. Will you not admit that it was his duty to examine with the hydrogen flame at Kembla before the 
disaster? A. Well, I do not remember whether lie had any specific instructions to use the hydrogen lamp 
in every mine. 
138411. Q. Will you not admit that,, as an Inspector is responsible, to a certain extent, for the safety 
of a mine, it was his duty to have examined Keinbla with the hydrogen lamp 1 A. I do not think 
it was. 
13850. Q. Then you do not consider that it was your Inspector's duty, or your duty, to examine Kembla 
with the hydrogen flame 1 A. I do not think it was our duty. 
13851. Q. You do not think you were called upon to do it in order to ensure the safety of the mine? A. 
No, I do not think so. 
13852. Q. Then I take it that you do not consider that your duty calls on you to make an inspection for 
things which are admittedly dangerous? A. I think if we could have the conditions which you suggest, so 
that we could inspect under those conditions, it would be manifestly our duty to do so. 
13853. Q. I do not follow you? A. You suggest a set of conditions not likely to arise when we have an 
opportunity of inspecting. 
13854. Q. Do you say that it is not your duty, or the duty of your Inspector, to inspect for a thing that is 
known to be dangerous and liable to cause a disaster? A. I do not say that. I say that if you could 
produce the condition of things which you suggest-, or we could anticipate them, and have a chance of 
inspecting under those conditions, then we would inspect at that time. 
13855. Q. What are the conditions which you want to make it your duty to inspect? A. You suggested a 
set of conditions. A cloud of dust, a certain percentage of gas, and a naked light. 
13856. (). Are not those conditions likely to arise at any time in a mine ? A. No. 
13857. 0. Is these not always danger of there being a cloud of dust in a place which is not watered-is 
there not danger of there being less than 2- per cent. of gas in a place known to give off gas in all parts. 
Then you have the dust on the roads-you have under 21 per cent. of gas, and you have the naked light. 
Now, were not all three of these things in the Kembla Mine 1 A. We are not likely to have 9- per cent. of 
gas on the main intake air road. 
13858. (9. I did not say that you were? A. Those are the conditions you put to me. 
13859. (9.  Were not those conditions existent at Mount Kembla? A. No. 
13860. (9. What portion of those conditions were not existent? A. The cloud of dust, and the 21 per cent. 
of gas we.re not there. 
13861. Q. Do you not know that you had had notice that gas was being given off in the mine? A. I have 
had notice seven years before that the mine had given off gas. 
13862. Q. Had you any means of knowing, or any knowledge that gas was not being given off under 2 
per cent 1 A. I think it is likely that it might have been given off. 
13863. Q. Was it not the duty of your Inspector to examine with a hydrogen flame? A. I cannot admit 
that. 
13864. Q. Then you do not consider it part of your duty, or part of the District Inspector's duty, to examine 
a mine where there are dangerous conditions which might lead to disaster ? A. I do not say that. 
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13865. Q. Will you admit this-that the failure to examine the faces that were not being worked was 
negligence in the management? [Xo answer.] 
13866. Q. You heard the evidence of Morrison that the top heading in the 4th Left-that there were 
eight or ten bords there whih had not been examined by him ; are you aware that Special Rule 9 of the 
Kembla Colliery states that the deputy shall make a true report of, and enter and sign daily in a book the 
state of the mine roads, brattice, and the faces. Now, will you admit that it was negligence on the part of 
the management not to have those faces examined daily? [i'To answer.] 
13867. Mr. Barry.] I think that Mr. Lysaght might ask whether it was the duty of some one to make this 
examination 
13868. His flonor.] Mr. Lysaght means bad management of a mine. 
13869. .211r. Lysaght.] Was that not bad management of a mine-you know Special Rule 9? A. There 
seems to be some doubt whether the word "faces " should not be read in conjunction with the words 

working faces." 
13870. Q. Will you tell me when that doubt was first raised or where it came from. Have you any doubt 
as to what that word means. As Chief Inspector, reading Rule 9, have you got any doubt as to what the 
word "faces" means? A. It means the face of the coal. 
13871. Q. Irrespective of whether it is being worked or not. Will you not admit that there is just as great 
a danger latent in a face not being worked, as in a face being worked? A. Yes. 
13872. Q. And is it not essential to have daily inspection? A. Do you mean whether working or not? 
13873. Q. Yes? A. I think they should be inspected. 
13874. Q. I asked you whether it was not just as essential to have the faces examined which were not 
being worked, as the faces which were being worked. And your answer is "Yes "1 A. Yes. 
13875. Q. Now, is not the fact of the 4th Left being left unexamined for weeks evidence of bad management? 
A. Yes, I think it was. 
13876. Q. And is it not probable, in view of the fact that gas was discovered in those particular faces, that 
the presence of gas there helped to propagate the explosion? A. In my opinion it had that efiect. 
13877. Q. So that in your opinion some of the results of the explosion are traceable to the fact that gas 
was allowed to accumulate in the mine? [iYo answer.] 
13878. Mr. Robertson.] There is no evidence that gas did accumulate in the mine. 
13879. Air. Lysaght.] Q. 'Where a big fall is expected over a large area what precautions should be taken to 
guard against possible danger from that fall ? A. Do you mean if gas is anticipated? 
13880. Q. I take it whether anticipated or not. The colliery was known to have given off gas-and I want 
to know when a large fall is anticipated, what precaution should be taken to guard against that fall? A. I 
do not see that you could go beyond removing the workmen from the vicinity of the fall. 
13881. Q. Would you not have all the places watered in the vicinity of the fall? A. I have r,ever known 
it to be done in such a case. - 
13882. Q. Would you not consider it advisable? A. If you were anticipating gas with a fall which might 
possibly raise a cloud of dust, I think that you should water the place, especially if you are using naked 
lights. 
13883. Mr. Robertson.] You could not water the floor where the fall was going to take place. 
13884. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Have you any further answer? A. If you have any likelihood of fire-damp being 
forced out, and naked lights are in use, I think watering should be done in the vicinity. 
13885. Q. Is there anything else you cansuggest? A. I do not know there is anything else to be done. 
13886. Q. Did you observe that in Kembla bords were driven 100 yards without any cut throughs? 
A. Yes. 
13887. Q. Did you take a measurement of the air in any of those bords? A. No. 
13888. Q. Were men working in them? A. Yes. 
13889. Q. Was the brattice in good order-did you go up to the face? A. Yes. 
13890. Q. Was the brattice in good order? A. So far as I can remember. 
13891. Q. Now, I suppose that you will say, so far as Kembla is concerned, that there is no necessity, as 
regards the safety of the roof, to drive bords 100 yards without cut-throughs. I mean that it is no 
necessary for the safety of the mine to have long drives? A. I do not say that it is absolutely necessary 
at Kembla. But you might increase the size of the pillars in other directions. 
13892. Q. So no possible harm would be done by having cut-throughs every 30 yards. I am taking Kembla 
specifically-you know it is not a deep mine? A. It might be necessary to increase the size of the pillars 
in other directions if you did it. 
13893. Q. In what other directions? A. By increasing the width of the pillar. 
13894. Q. Would there be any harm in having cut-throughs every 30 yards? A. What do you mean by 
harm 
13895. Q. Harm in the Kembla Colliery? A. I do not know that there would be any harm in Kembla. 
13896. Air. Robertson.] Q. Is it not good mining practice to have pillars as large as possible i A. It is. 
With increase of depth you want large pillars. 
13897. Q. As a gen.eral rule? A. As a general rule it is better to have large pillars. 
13898. Air. Lysaght.] Q. Now, at this top heading on the 4th Left have they got what you call the fag end 
of the intake air. I mean that bords are driven 100 yards, and supplied with air that had been to a number 
of men before it reached those bords? A. Yes. 
13899. Q. These drives were also a considerable distance from the furnace? A. Yes. 
13900. Q. And the return air had to travel a circuitous route to go to the furnace? A. It had to travel a 
considerable distance. 
13901. Q. Had you any word that the men working in those bords were not getting their adequate supply 
of air? A. I had no reason to think that they were not. 
13902. Q. Did you bother to take a record? A. I did not measure the air. 
13903. Q. Did you measure it anywhere? Do you not know that the men complained of it being hot? 
A. I have heard it since. I had no complaint before. 
13904. Q. You say that you had no knowledge, but that the men have complained since that the air was 
hot and bad, and I asked whether you took any record to see whether the air was good? A. The air was 
good, so far as I remember. 
13905. Q. Did you take a record? A. No. 13906. 
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13906. Q. So that you cannot say? A. I can say. You do not require to measure the air to see whether 
it is good or not. 
1.3907. Q. Can you tell me when you measured the air? A. I have not usually measured the air myself. 
13908. Q. Where did you measure it? A. I did not measure it at all. 
13909. Q. As far as any measurement is concerned you do not know? A. So far as any measurement by 
the anemometer is concerned I do not know. 
13910. Q. You trusted to the feel of the air about your body? A. Yes. 
13911. Q. You say that you do not make a practice to record the air yourself? A. Not usually, unless there 
is some complaint or something of that sort. 
13912. Q. In the absence of complaint? A. No. 
13913. Q. You often visit these collieries? A. Yes. 
13914. Q. On whoin do you rely for the measurement of the air? A. On the Inspector for the District. I 
may say that I sometimes measure it in conjunction with him when I am along with him. 
13915. Q. You told us that a District Inspector might not go to a colliery for three months? Yes. 
13916. Q. If you relied on him for your records of the air you might only have a record every three months? 
A. That is so. 
13917. Q. And for the remainder of the time-the intervals between these records by your Inspector-neither 
you or he would know what air was passing through to the men? A. That would be so. 
13918. Q. Do you not think, then, that your District Inspector should take records of the air more often 
than three months? A. No, I do not think it is necessary unless there is some complaint. 
13919. Q. As Chief Inspector do you consider that you are carrying out your duty so far as seeing that the 
men get an adequate supply of ventilation, by only having a record every three months? A. Well, there is 
also a statutory duty on the part of the management to measure the air once a month. 
13920. Q. Are they bound to furnish you with a copy of the measurement? A. No, not unless we visit the 
colliery. 
13921. Q. There would be no difficulty in the District Inspector visiting the mine once a month? A. There 
would be a great difficulty. 
13922. Q. A great difficulty by overwork? A. Yes. 
13923. Q. Do you think that you want some additional Inspectors? A. I do not believe in carrying 
insprction too far, because there is a tendency to make Managers think that they may be relieved of 
part of their responsibility. They may think this if there were a too close attendance of Government 
officials. 
13924. Q. Do you not think that a &oser attendance of Government officials would tend to the more efficient 
management of a colliery? A. It would rather have the contrary effect. 
13925. Q. Do you say that the Inspectors are not overworked and have plenty of time in which to perform 
their duty ? A. I think so. 
13926. Q. You say that the Inspectors have plenty of time in which to perform their duties, and that they 
are not overworked? A. Well, it depends to some extent on what you regard as their duty. 
13927. Q. I am taking your view of the matter? A. I think they have sufficient time. 
13923. Q. And, in your opinion, is the visit of the District Inspector every three months sufficient for the 
colliery I A. Under ordinary circumstances I think it is-unless there is .something special requiring 
attention. 
13929. Q. So that you practically entrust the management of a colliery, without any correction of the 
management., to the Manager? A. Yes, he is responsible for the conduct of the mine. 
13930. Q. I suppose you admit that the brattice cloth, used in the Southern collieries, becomes perforated 
after about twelve months' wear? A. If in a dry place, it may last longer, but in a damp place it may 
beconie in that condition. 
13931. his Honor.] Q. How long? A. Four months, but I think in a dry place it lasts longer. 
13932. Q. What happens to it then ; how does it become pervious to the air? A. The moist atmosphere 
tends to rot the substance of the cloth. 
13933. Q. It goes into holes? A. In some cases. 
13934. Mr. Lysaght.] It becomes like a sieve. 
13935. Mr. Bruce Smith.] One man called it wirenetting. 
13936. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Is bratticing with cloth a sufficient means to adopt in these collieries, or should 
there be bratticing with boards? A. Well, of course, boards are better. There is not such a leakage. But 
if the air is conducted to the face by brattice, I think that should be sufficient. 
13937. Q. Is there any difference in the expense ? A. Boards would be more expensive. 
13938. Q. Do you know of any boards being used in the district? A. No. 
13939. Q. Do you know of any in New South Wales? A. Yes. 
13910. Mr. Robertson.] Q. May I ask where? A. In the A.A. Company's Sea Pit they use boards. 
13911. Q. Are they used generally throughout the mine? A. Of course, they have to have cloth at the ends 
of the boards. 
13942. his Honor.] Q. Do they use bratticing as well as the boards? A. They require canvas doors. 
13943. Q. What is it, i-inch pine, or what? A. Just ordinary inch boards. 
13941. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Have there been any tests to prove whether boards are better than brattice? 
A. I do not know of any in the State, but it is generally admitted in the old country, where they are used, 
that with boards there is less leakage. 
13945. Q. In a dry mine, would not the shrinkage render them in a clay or two less efficient than brattice 
A. I think they are found to be efficient in dry mines where they are used. 

(The Commission at 4 p.m. adjourned until 213 p.m, on the following Monday.) 
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MOSDAY, 9 REBJIUARY, 1953, 2 p.m. 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Uourt, Darlinghurst.1 

C. F. R. MURRAY, 1(SQ., D.C.J. (PREsIDENI'). 
D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., Coaiaiissioxan. I D. RITCHIE, EsQ., Coaiaiissioxan. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of- 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, Sc., (victims of the explosion) ; 
the employees of the l\Iount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &bc.) ; and 
the illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. G. J. Barry, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mt. Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of 
the Mt. Kembla Mine.) 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceediigs.) 

Mn. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght continued 

13910. Q You said that your theory did not assume an accumulation of gas in the goaf? Yes. 
13917. Q. But that gas was a factor in the initiation of the disaster P A. That is so. 
130 Is. Q \\rlcre, in your opinion, did that gas come from P A. From the strata above the coal seam. 
13919. Q. In what part of the mine P A. From the No. 4 Right. 
139.50. Q. The goat? A. The goaf, up in the strata. 
13951. Q. And when, in your opinion, did that gas come from those strata? A. By the fall which took 
place at the time of the exposion, prior to, and, partly, after, the explosion. 
13952. Q. Have you any evidence at all that any fall took place immediately prior to the explosion P 
A. Well, we have evidence that the fall, which did take place, was not completed at the time of the 
explosion. 
13953. Q. But have you any evidence that it had begun before the explosion? A. It might not have, 
supposing the --- [Interrupted.] 
13051. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Which do you mean, Mr. Lysaght---the 21 feet that had fallen P 
13955. ALi. L1inmght.] That was the week before. 
13950. Q. Have you any evidence that it had not begun P A. We have only evidence by the general 
results afforded by the explosion itself. 
1:39.57. Q. So that your conclusion, now, is based on an assumption which there is no evidence to support P 
A. That is not so. It is based upon all the evidence-, of force seen in the pit after the explosion. 
13958. 0. But your concussion, as to the gas which was an originating force in the disaster, is based on an 
assumption which there is no evidence to support? A. I do not agree with you there. 
13959. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Does your Honor understand that there is any other class of assumption than 
an assumption which there is no evidence to support P That is what an assumption means. 
13960. his Honor.] Not ](now. It is diflicult to define an assumption. I think what is meant is a 
deduction from the evidence. 
13901. ATe. Lijsaght.1 Q. Can you tell me, Mr. Atkinson, what evidence there is, from which you deduce 
that gas camp from the waste at the time of the fall P A. Well, the indications point to the initiation of 
the explosion near to the 4th Left. I have already pointed out that, under normal conditions, the air on 
that road could not be expected to contain any inflammable gas, that being an intake airway ; but the 
evidence is, so far as I have been able to make out, that the explosion was initiated there. It would 
require a certain percentage of fire-damp to initiate that explosion, together with coal-dust, and a naked 
light. Those are the grounds for my deduction, principally. 
13002. Q. Then, were there not other places, much nearer to the 4th Left, known since to be giving off 
gas? A. Not that I am aware of. 
13903. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Perhaps Mr. Atkinson mrght explain what particular fall the gas came from P 
A. A fall at the goat edge of the 4th Right 1dllars. 
13901. 0. Is that the one which has been described as the 2 feet fall P A. No ; that took place a week 
before. 
13905. Q. Is it the fall that took place on the day of the disaster that you are referring to? A. Quite so. 
13966. Mr. Robertson.1 Q. Would not the fall precede the gas P A. Yes. 
13067. Mr. Robertson.] r1i eJ1  the fall could not drive it out. 
13908. Mr. L,1isaqht.] That is just what I was going to ask. 
13069. Q. Now, do you not see that the issue of the gas would be subsequent to the fall P A. Part of the 
roof would fall before the gas was liberated; but the roof would be falling above; and there would be gas 
accumulated in the strata, which would be forced out by the fall. 
13970. Q. Would the 21  feet fall, a week before the disaster, liberate any gas? A. It might, or might not. 
13971. Q. Did you not tell me last Thursday, that, in your opinion, it had not? A. I said that I had 
not suggested that there was any accumulation of as. 
13972. Q. And did I not ask you whether gas would not probably result from the fall of the 21 feet; and 
did not you say " No" P A. I do not remember what you said just now. 
13973. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. On Thursday I put this question : "But, in view of the evidence that the first 
fall had taken place a week before the disaster, do not you think that the accumulation resulted from the 
first fall" P You said " No, I could not say that that is very probable." (Vide para. 13005.) Well now, do 
you say that it is very probable. I did not say it was very probable. I said it might (liberate some gas). 
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13071. Q. I ask you now, do you say that it is very probable that gas did result from the first fall? A. I 
say that a little gas, probably, might have been liberated by the first fall. 
13075. Q. In your opinion, would that little quantity of gas remain in that 35-acre goaf? A. It would go 
into the highest parts, naturally. 
13070. Q. Then, is it not probable that, if that goaf had been inspected every week, fire-damp would have 
been discovered in it P 
13977, Mr. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor will see that that is a mere repetition, a useless repetition, of all the 
examination we had on Thursday. We are having now the very same questions that we had then. Three 
or four times, in reading over the evidence, I saw that same question asked. 
13978. His Honor.] Practically this question was asked before, Mr. Lysaght. 
13979. .A&. Lqsaq/t. But your Honor will see that lie has now given a. different answer, in effect, from 
what he gave before. The previous answer was that there was not likely to be an accumulation of gas in 
the goad; now he says that a small quantity was given off by the first fall, and would remain in the highest 
parts of the goaf-that would be an accumulation. Therefore, I an now entitled to ask the question 
which I asked before, whether it is not probable that, if that goaf had been inspected every week, the 
fire-damp would have been discovere liii it. 
13980. Q.  I think you said that it was probable the gas would remain there? A. I said it might. 
13981. Q.  You said it would go to the highest parts. Now I ask you, that being so, is it not probable 
that, if the waste had been inspected every week, fire-damp would have been discovered in it? A. Well, 
we must remember that the timbers were drawn out of that place; and that it might be neither practicable 
nor safe to go into the higher parts after the timber was drawn. 
13982. Q. Assuming that you could get in a considerable distance over the 2- feet fall, is it, then, probable 
that fire-damp would have been discovered there? 
13983. his Honor.] That question answers itself; because, really, if somebody had gone in and looked 
for it, and if it had been there, probably it would have been found. 
13981. A. Assuming you could get in, and assuming the fire-damp was there, you would have been able 
to discover it. 
13985. Mr. Lysaglmt.i I am taking Mr. Atkinson's own "probability." 
13986. Witness.] Well, 1 think you sometimes twist it a little bit, Mr. Lysaght, to suit your own purposes. 
13987. Mr. Lysaqlmt. Q. Now, taking your assumption of the fall forcing out a certain quantity of gas, 
would not the gas be liberated subsequently to the fall? A. Do you refer to the little gas in the top part 
of the goaf, which has been referred to P 
13088. Q. No ; 1 am referring now to the gas which you say was an initiatory factor in the disaster P 
A. Well, of course, another portion of the roof would require to [Interruptemij 
13989. Q. Just take the first part of the question ; you can put that in afterwards ;-would not the fall 
of the roof be before the liberation of the gas? A. I cannot answer that with "yes" or "no." It requires 
some explanation. The roof would break at the top of the goaf, and above that there might be a pocket, 
or a certain quantity of gas, under pressure; but the roof again above that would fall, and would continue 
to fall for a long time. From the evidence of the fall at that goaf edge it was a long way up. 
13990. Q. And did it appear to have been a series of small falls like that? A. No; I think it appeared 
to be a very large fall. 
13991. (7. One very large fall, do you say? A. I cannot say  whether it was one very large fall or not. 
13992. (7. Was it, apparently, one very large fall or a series of small falls? A. I could not say that; it is 
quite impossible to say. 
13993. Q. Now, is it not essential, for the maintenance of your theory, that it should have been one large 
fall P A. No ; 1 do not think it is. 
13994. Q. Do not you see that, if there were a series of small falls, there would probably not be sufficient 
to force out any quantity of gas P A. I do not think that is a correct assumption at all. 
13095. (7. Then, do you think that any small fall in that goaf would have forced out any accumulation 
of gas? A. "Any small fall," that is so indefinite that one cannot give an answer to it. 
13990. (7. What is indefinite P A. Well " any small fall." If one piece of stone fell, I do not think it 
would have that effect. 
13997. Q. You have been speaking yourself of "small falls," and I have adopted your own words ? A. 
Well, I say that I do not know whether it was one large fall by itself or more; and it is impossible to say. 
13998. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Would it not want to be a large fall to drive it through those doors and on to 
the intake airway P A. I think it would. 
1391)9. his. Honor.] When you speak of "large," it is as well for you to distinguish between large in 
area and large in thickness of roof. Of course, there is a radical difference between the two? A. Well, 
I think that the area which was open, so far ,is we have it in evidence, was 2 chains square, and the 
evidence at the face of the fall, seeing it after the explosion, went to show that the fall went up a long 
way above the seam. 
14000. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Do you think it would require the whole area of the fall to drive the gas right 
across the return airway, to destroy those doors, and to drive the gas on to the main intake ? A. Well, I 
think it would require the greater part of that area, certainly. 
14001. Mr. Lysaqhmi.] Q. Well, now, if that is your opinion, what becomes of your suggestion that there 
may have been a series of small falls constantly liberating gas, if you now say it would require a big fall 
to do what you suggest ? A. Well, of course, I was not there to see it. 
14002. Q. is that your answer? A. Well, I should like to have read over to me what I have previously 
said, to see if you have put it correctly. You give such long questions that it is impossible to remember - 
[L'mterrup fed]. 
11003. Mr. Bruce S'nmifh.1 Your Honor sees that Mr. Lysaght says, " As you have said so-and-so." 
Well, it is fair that he should read that "So-and-so." 
14904. his Ilonorj I do not think it is material at all what Mr. Atkinson has said previously. What 
the Commission wants to hear is what he thinks, after he has heard the evidence, and after he has had 
time for reflection. 
14003. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think your Honor will rule that, if Mr. Lysaght endeavors to face Mr. 
Atkinson with what he said before, lie ought to read it, and not to 1)araplmrase it himself. 
11000. Mr. Lysaqhf.] (. I think you remember what you said three minutes ago P A. Yes. 
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14007. Q. It was not last Thursday? A. No. 
14008. Q. Do not you remember what you said a few minutes ago-that a series of small falls would be 
likely to liberate the gas? A. I think my evidence might be read. 

By his Honor's directions, Mr. Garlick then read from the shorthand notes the following portion 
of Mr. Atkinson's evidence 

"Q. Now, taking your assumption of the fall forcing out a certain quantity of gas, would not the 
gas be liberated subsequently to the fall? A. Do you refer to the little gas in the top part of the 
goaf, which has been referred to P 
"Q. No, I am referring, now, to the gas which you say was an initiatory factor in the disaster? 
A. Well, of course, another portion of the roof would require to - [Interrupted.] 

"Q. Just take the first part of the question-you can put that in afterwards. Would not the fall of 
the roof be before the liberation of the gas? A. I cannot answer that with 'Yes' or ' No.' It 
requires some explanation. The roof would break at the top of the goaf; and above that there might 
be a pocket, or a certain quantity of gas, under pressure; but the roof again above that would fall, 
and would continue to fall for a long time. From the evidence of the fall at that goaf edge, it was 
a long way up. 
"Q. And did it appear to have been a series of small falls like that? A. No; I think it appeared to 

be a very large fall. 
Q. One very large fall, do you say? A. I cannot say whether it was one very large fall or not. 

Q. Was it, apparently, one very large fall, or a series of small falls? A. I could not say that. It 
is quite impossible to say." 

14009. Mr. Bruce Smith.] You see be did not say it was a series of small falls. 
14010. Mr. .Lysaght.] Q. When you said that it might continue to fall, did you mean a series of small 
falls? A. Well, I do not see that you could call it a series of small falls when it was really a continuation 
of what I have already said would probably be a large fall. 
14011. Q. Then this is clear, that you told Mr. Robertson that you thought it was a large fall that forced 
out the gas? A. Yes. 
14012. Q. Now, I ask you, as the continuing of the roof to fall-these continuing falls-would be after 
your large fall, where was the gas to be that the large fall had to force out? A. I do not understand you. 
14013. Q. Where was the as that the large fall had to force out, when your continuing falls would be 
after the large fall? A. Well, we know that it is very common for large falls to force out quantities of 
air, and sometimes to break down stoppings and doors-one has heard of that ; ai,d I am only suggesting 
something similar. 
14014. Q. Now, you suggested that the gas came out of that goaf, and was forced out by the large fall? 
A. Quite so. 
14015. Q. Now then, I say, do you now say that, inasmuch as it is clear that the gas coming from these 
continuing falls would be after the large fall- [1nterrted] P A. A continuing fall is all one fall, 

after all. It is all part of the same. 
14016. Q. Do you mean to tell me that the gas that imiitiated the explosion came from the continuing 
fall after the big fall? A. Well, I mean to say that, in my opinion, I think that the gas was forced out 
by that fall. 
14017. Q. Now, I want to know, do you still mean that the gas was forced out by the big fall? 
140 18. .Mr. Bruce Smith.] He does not separate them: be said so just now : lie said it was continuous. 

14019. Q. Mr. L'qsa.g/mt.] Q. Let us clearly understand it. Do you separate the big fall from the continuing 
fall? A. No, I do not. 
14020. Q. Then, do you say that the continuing fall afforded gas for the explosion? A. Yes, part of the 

one big  fall. 
14021. Q. And you say that the continuing fall afforded gas that operated in the first ignition? A. That 

is my opinion. 
14022. Q. But when did that goaf cease falling? A. Some time after the explosion, evidently: 
14023. Q. What do you mean by " some time after" P What is "some time" P-is it days, hours, or 
weeks, or what P A. Oh, probably within an hour. 
14024. Mr. Robertson.] What was your question? 
14025. Mr. Lysaq/mt.] I asked him when did he think those falls continued-for how long after the big 
fall. He says for probably an hour. 
14026. Witness.] I said that it would probably cease within an hour. 
14027. Mr. Lysaqlzt.] Q. Now, when you went to look at that goaf, how much of it had fallen? A. How 
do you mean? Do you mean how much of the two chains square? 
14028. Q. No, how much in height? A. Oh, you could not get up to the to]). 
14029. Q. But, was the passage in the 4th Bight blocked up by the fall at the goaf edge-absolutely 
blocked up-or could you see over it? A. Oh, you could get on to the edge of the stones. 
14030. Q. So that what would be known, in general mining practice, as "a partial fall" only had taken 
place after the disaster? I mean, looking at it after the disaster, there had only been a partial fall. 
14031. His Honor] Do you mean by that, Mr. Lysaght, that the cavity was not quite closed up ? 
14032. Mr. Lysaqht.] Quite so; there was still a cavity for more to fall. 
14033. Witness.] That is always the case. 
14034. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Is not that always the case, no matter how big the fall is P A. Yes. 

14035. Q. There is always a cavity at the edge? A. Yes. 
14036. Mr. Lysaq/mt.] Q. And, that being so, would not the strata there be probably giving off fire.damp 
when you tested for it? A. Oh, if there was any fire-damp, it would be right up in the highest parts, 
where we could not get to it; it would be quite impossible to get to it. 
14037. Q. Now, have you any evidence at all that, before the big fall, there was any gas accumulated in 
that 35-acre waste P Q. No, I have not heard of any. 
14038. Q. And now, what evidence have you .that, after the explosion of the gas given off or liberated by 
the big fall, and subsequently by the continuing falls, there was any gas there? A. By careful 
examination I was not able to find that gas afterwards. 
14039. Q. Perhaps you have misunderstood the question: what evidence have you that, except the gas 
given off by the big fall, and the continuing fall thereafter, there was any gas there to be forced out? 
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14010. Mr. Barryj Your honor, is there any evidence that gas was given off by the fall? Is it not 
only a theory P 
11011. Mr. Lyseglit.] The whole thing is a theory. I propose to show that there is nothing to - 
[Interrupted]. 
14042. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Will Mr. Garlick please read that question for Inc P 
14043. (Mr. Garlick then read Mr. Lysaght's question, as follows :-" What evidence have you that, 
except the gas given off by the big fall, and the continuing fall thereafter, there was any gas there to be 
forced out? ") 
14041. Mr. Bruce Smitln] Does your Honor understand that question P 
14045. Witness.] I do not understand it. I will tell you that, after carefully inspecting, after the 
explosion, I was not able to find gas. 
14010. Mr. Lysaq!t.] Q. Your theory is that the big fall forced out gas and I have already pointed out 
to you that the gas must be there to be forced out. Where was that gas P A. It was in the strata. 
14017. Q. That would be liberated subsequently to the fall P A. You say so : I do not. 
14048. Q.  'What do you say P A. The whole thing conies togetlier-the gas and the fall, I do not see 
how you can separate them in the way you desire me to. 
14049. Q. Then the gas, that you say was a factor in originating the disaster, was liberated by the fall, 
and forced out by the big fall P A. Yes. 
14050. Q. 'Would it not be just as probable that the first fall, a week before, would have liberated gas 
and forced it out P A. Well, I think I have already said that there might be a little gas liberated. 
14051. Q. But would not it be just as probable P A. No, because on that occasion only 2 feet or 212  feet 
of the roof had fallen. 
14052. Q. how much had fallen at this big fall P A. You could not tell; you could not see up. 
14053. Mr. Bruce Smiths.] Q. You might give us an idea P A. Well, it might be 30, or 40, or 50 feet. 
14054. Mi. Lysoqhst.] Q. And it might be only 4 or 5 feet? A. Oh, it would be more than that. 
14055. ,21&. Rite/sic.] Q. If the gas was liberated by the big fall you speak of, would not that big fall 
close the opening to the 4th Right entirely ?A. You menu, would it get down to the roadway P 
14050. Q. The evidence goes to show that a fall of 2- feet took place first in the 4th Right P A. In the 
pillars P 
14057. Q. Yes? A. Yes. 
14058. Q. Well, if the big fall took place subsequently to that fall, would it not fill up the 4th Right 
altogether? A. Yes; but the gas would get out. 
14059. Q. Do you seriously think that the gas that was liberated by the fall would get out? A. Certainly 
I (10. - 
14000. His Honor.] Q. Would not that be rather the gradual liberation of gas-the oozing of gas-than 
what you say took place ; that is, the forcible expulsion of the gas coming from the 4th Bight, as if it 
were from the barrel of a gun? A. I do not suggest anything like that. 
14061. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. The doors were blown away P A. It was a flimsy canvas door, not even a wooden 
door ; it would not require very great force to do that. Falls frequently take place sufficient to blow 
down 9-inch brick stoppings, and sufficient, sometimes, to blow men off their feet, and to throw dust 
about. We have many instances of that sort of thing. 
14002. his hionos..] Q. But that is when a fairly large area of roof fails almost in one piece, is it not, 
driving the air from under it P A. Yes; generally speaking, it would require a pretty large area. 
14062. Q. Not rippling down, as it were, but coining down with a rush? A. Yes. 
14063. AIr. 1/oInrtsoa.] Q. Do you see that, before the blast reached the doors, it would have an outlet 
by the return airways, which branch in both directions P A. Yes. 
14064. Q. So, I take it, there must have been very considerable force to drive out those doors, seeing that 
it had that relief before reaching the doors P A. Yes ; although not., perhaps, such as This Honor put it, 
like a blast from the barrel of a gun. 
14065. Q. Well, that is only metaphorically speakisig? A. Yes I understand that allusion. 
14060. 11'is honor.] Q. It is not that.the explosion was like that of a gun ; but, still, the gas must have 
been very suddenly forced to blow down the doors in its way P A. Yes. 
14067. Mr. Ritchie.] Do I understand you to mean that the gas which would be liberated by the large 
fall would come out simultaneously with the air which was under the fall P A. Yes. 
14068. Q. Is that quite consistent with what you experience in practice ? A. I think it is. 
14069. Q. Is it not rather the practice for the gas liberated by the fall to ooze out gradually, afterwards, 
if it can get out? A. Well, if it was a very, very gradual fall: but, if it was a sudden fall, and a very 
large fall, as 1. have suggested, I think it could be forced out with some force. 
14070. Q. Then, if the tail came away over a vast area together, and closed up the opening to the 4th 
Right, how was the gas from the latter part of that fall to get out at all P A. It would not close up to 
prevent gas getting out. 
14071. Q. Was it not closed up completely when you saw it? A. No. 
14072. Q. I-low far was it from closed, then? A. Well, you could crawl up the stones a4 the edge of the 
fall, and get some feet above the level of the top of the seam? A. Yes. 
14073. Q. Do not you think that, after the fall had taken place, the gas which would be liberated by its 
falling would go on top, instead of coming down to the bottom to be forced out P A. Well, I think it 
has been forced out. 
14074. Q. Do not you think that would be a probability; that the gas from the breaking up of the strata 
would ascend, and would not, as a matter of fact, feel the effects of the expulsion at all, caused by the 
fall P Do not you think that there would be a tendency to draw back, to draw the gas upwards, by the 
creation of a vacuum, through the fall taking place: do not you think that would be a kind of exhaust, 
drawing it upwards? A. Well, with the roof falling above that gas, it would force the gas out. 
14075. Q. Well, I take it, that, after the big fall you speak of, there must have been another fall? A. I 
do not separate them ; I cannot separate them. I think it is impossible. I think the large fall that took 
place forced that out. 
14076. Q. You tell us that you could get up several feet above the fall, when you saw it after the disastes P 
A. Yes. 
14077. Q. Now, did you see anything to indicate that there had been two large falls after the 2b feet fall? 
A. I do not think I have suggested two large falls, 
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14078. Q. I am asking you now, did you see anything to indicate that there had been two large falls? 
A. I could not say, really ; it is impossible to say. 
14079. Q. Now, supposing that the big fall you speak of did liberate gas, and that it did ascend, would it 
not require some other very considerable fall to force that out, assuming that it did ascend? A. Assuming 
that it did ascend, it would require some more falls to force it out. 
14080. Q. Do not you think it is reasonable to think that it would ascend, the specific gravity of gas 
being very low ; do not you think it is very likely to ascend, and fill up the vacancy caused by the fall, 
rather than to be forced out by the fall? A. It would, naturally, if the fall was not sufficiently great to 
force it out. 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming, Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take Shorthand. Notes of the Evidence and Proceedings). 
Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under:- 

14081. Q. There would be a vacuum? A. I do not suggest it. 
14082. His Honor.] Q. I take it that the first thing would be that the force would tend to create a 
vacuum; assuming the absence of surrounding gas and air, it would be an absolute vacuum—if such a 
thing could be. The tendency would be for all the gases to be drawn into the space that had been 
exhausted. Down at the bottom of the fall, as it came down, the air would be compressed; and that 
compression would have the effect of driving the air from under it. That would be the shooting out of 
the air. The only line along which the force could escape would be the 4th Eight. If the gas were 
liberated in that upper part, which begins by being a vacuum, where is the tendency for that gas to come 
out with the air in any large quantity? A. The tendency without any fall, and without any other cause, 
and under natural conditions, would be for the gas to rise ; but if the roof fell and continued to fall, I 
think the gas would be forced out. 
14083. Afr. Robertson.] Q. The sequence of events, as you put it, was that there was a fall, then that 
the gas was liberated, then another fall, and that forced the gas out. But the first fall would block up 
the entrance or the outlet to some extent, and would not this prevent the gas escaping? A. It would not 
block it up sufficiently to prevent the gas being forced through. 
140S4. Q. Would it not block the outlet to such an extent as to prevent the gas being forced out with 
any great violence? A. I do not think that it would. 
14085. Q. I understand you to say that there was a fall, that gas was liberated, and that then there was 
another fall? A. It was all continuous really; I do not suggest that there was any interval between the 
falls. 
14080. Q. I confess that I cannot see how the gas, if as you suggest it was in the strata, could have been 
forced out with any great violence. Of course, I can see that the fall would not block up the entrance 
sufficiently to bottle UI) the gas, but it would block it up sufficiently to prevent any violent force coming 
out, sufficient to blow down doors? A. These doors were only canvas doors. 
14087. Q. But, still, the return airway was intervening? A. Yes. 
14088. ALe. Bruce Smith.] There is, say, a 2* feet fall, and a space is left; there is a furiher fall which 
allows the gas to escape; and then there is another fall, or series of falls ; but there must be a space left, 
or there could not be further falls. I went up there and saw the space ; and Morrison was above me. 
14089. Mr. Ritchie.] I think you must oe wrong about that place. We are taking the 4th Right. 
14090. Mr, Bruce Smith.] I am only talking about the principle. 
14091. Mr. Ritchie.] What takes place in one fall has nothing whatever to do with what takes place in 
another. 
14092. Mr. Robertson.] I was there a few days afterwards; and I could only just wriggle my way in. 
14093. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. You have heard the first fall described as a light one, being, probably, about 
2 feet; you have described your fall as being a large one ;—and certainly the scam would be thicker 
than 2* feet, probably 4 feet? A. I cannot tell. 
14094. Q. What would you regard as the thickness of the seam in what you call a heavy fall? A. I 
cannot say. The fall may have gone up 30 or 40 feet ; the whole thing is continuous; I do not see how 
you can separate it into a number of falls. It is all one fall. 
14095. Q. You said that you could get on top of it yourself ;—it could not have gone up 30 or 40 feet? 
A. I could not get on top of it. 
14090. Mr. Robertson..] Q. You were along the edge? A. Yes. 
14097. Q. Would it be 3 feet thick at the entrance? A. I do not know how you can differentiate the 
thing. If the first fall was 2* feet, when it fell afterwards it may have -one up 30 or 40 feet. 
14098. Q. You say that there must have been a first fall and a series of falls afterwards? A. I cannot 
separate it. 
14099. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Would it fall in an hour? A. Mr. Lysaght asked me a question and desired me 
to say how long after the explosion was it probable that the fall would cease, He )vished to know whether 
it was days or weeks, and. I suggested it would probably cease within an hour. 
14100. Q. Would it not take an exceedingly heavy fall to create the force which the evidence has 
disclosed—to dislocate doors—and not a continual dribble for an hour ;—would it not require some great 
force taking place at once? A. Yes. 
14101. Q. You say that you think the fall lasted about an hour? A. I do not think it is fair to put it 
down as lasting an hour. Mr. Lysaght put it to me—how long after ihe explosion did I think it was 
before the fall ceased. He wished me to express an opinion and said, was it within an hour, and buying 
said that, I mean that it may have been very much within an hour. 
14102. Q. We may take it that it is your opinion that the first heavy fall would liberate a lot of the gas 
which you spoke of;—the gas is then sent out by some subsequent fall, or by that continuous fall? A. It 
is all part of one continuous fall. 
14103. Q. Then you say that there was one continuous fall, and that would give force enough to send out zn 
the gas which was liberated ? A. I think so. 
14104. Q. Have you ever seen anything of that kind before? A. I have seen falls liberate large quantities 
of gas, I cannot say that I have seen falls knock down brick stoppings, but I have read of it; I have also 
read of its knocking men down. 
14105. Mr. Lysctghzt.] Q. Were not the stones on the edge of the goaf quite clean, showing that they had 
come down after the explosion? Q. Well, I have sufficieutlJ explained that before. 

14100. 
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14106. Q. If the stones which fell on the edge of the goaf were quite clean, does it not indicate that there 
had not been a very big fall before the explosion P A. I do not think it does. 
11107. Q. Would it show that there could not have been a fall of 30 feet before the explosion? A. Well, 
it shows that the fall did not cease until after the explosion. 
14108. Q. That is the fall of stone which you could see at a height of 6 feet above the edge of the goaf 
were not all these clean stones which you saw P A. They were clean stones as far as we could get up. 
14109. Q. At the edge of the goaf? A. Yes. 
14110. Q. So that the fall which liberated the gas could not have been 30 feet high? A. I cannot say 
that. 
14111. Q. Is it not clear that the fall which liberated the gas could not have been 30 feet high P A. Well, 
it was all one continuous fall. 
14112. Q. it could not be 30 feet high P A. I say it was all part of one fall. 
14113. Q. Where you say the clean stone was only 6 feet from the floor, the gas must have been forced 
out before that 0 feet of stone fell P A. I do not know that I said anything about 6 feet of stone. 
14111. Q. I ask you could you see the stone? A. You could see a few feet above the top of the seam. 
1411:5. Q. The seam was 6 feet 6 inches I think? A. I should say it was 5 feet or 6 feet. 
11116. Q. A few feet above that you could see clean stone? A. Yes. 
14117. Q. For how high, 8 feet? ii. For S or 9 feet. 
14115. Q. You saw clean stone 9 feet from the floor-did not that indicate that these stones had come 
down after the explosion? A. It indicates that the fall did not finish until after the explosion. 
14119. Q. It indicates that these stones fell after the explosion? A. Yes. 
14120. Q. Therefore, the fall of stone which forced out the gas was not more than about 8 feet? A. I do 
not think that that is a correct deduction; because if you go further up you might find a fall of stone 
which came from a greater distance. 
14121. AL". Robertson.] Q. These stones ran down a slope ? A. They usually do come clown in that way. 
14122. Q. They forin a slope? A. Yes. 
11123. Q. To discover a few feet of stone on the outside would be no criterion as to the appearance of 
the stone a few feet in the fall ;-the stones on the outside might slide down from the top P A. I think 
we could see a foot or two in and they were clean. 
14121. Q. The fall naturally ascended to an apex; and these stones might have tumbled down the slope 
from the top P A. Yes. 
11125. Q. You might find clean stones on the outside of the slope which were not of the same character, 
or the same stratum as those inside the fall a foot or two P A. Well, of course, the stones might 
have fallen from a higher point. 
14120. Q. That is what I mean-they might have fallen from a higher point? A. Yes. 
11127. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Regarding those iauzo  stones which you saw on the edge of the goaf-did they 
appear to have come from a higher point ?A.No, I cannot say that they did. They seemecito have come 
down pretty straight to the edge of the goaf. 
1112. Q. Your opinion is, that these stones, which you saw were not stones which had come down from a 
higher point P A. I could not say that. 
11129. Mr Lysaglit.] Q. It is clear that these big stones which were clean fell after the explosion? A. 
Yes, that is the deduction. 
14130. AIr. Robertson.] 0. Would it make any difference if thieve stones were in a dead end. Would it 
make any difference to the deposit of dust if these stones were in a eel de sac? A. The evidence is that 
in a cul de sic you get the greatest deposit of coal-dust. 
111:31. Q. There might be a cushion of air that could not be reached by the force? A. We have it on 
record that the most coal-dust is usually found in these blind ends. 
14132. Q. There might be a cushion of air there, would not that tend to protect these stones P A. No, it 
is contrary to all my experience. 
14133. His Ifonor.] Q. llotv far up in the natural stone from the top of the seam do you expect to find 
gas? Would the gas be mostly in the first few feet and then less and less as you go up, or would it be 
otherwise? A. That is rather it difficult question to answer. I should say that as gas generally comes 
from the seam itself it is probable that it would be found nearer to the seam. 
14131. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Have you any knowledge of gas being found in the stratum overlying the 
coal P A. Do you refer to any particular district. 
14135. Q. Take Kembla? A. I have not heard of it at Kembla, but I have heard of it often enough at 
other places. 
14130. Q. Anywhere in the Colony P A Do you mean above the seam. 
14137. '2. Yes. A. Of course it is occasionally liberated by falls. 
11138. '2. Is it gas which is naturally in the stratum, or does it find its way there by the sagging of the 
roof? A. I think it is naturally contained in the strata. In some shale reefs it mast certainly is. 
14139. Q. Have you heard a report that such a thing has been found in any of the southern collieries? 
A. I do not remember any report in regard to any southern colliery. 
14110. Q. Is it not a fact that the roof above all the southern collieries is hard sandstone? A. It is blue 
shale, grey metal, and sandstone. 
14111. Mr. Lysaglmt.] Q. That is not a cover that, in your opinion, would contain inflammable gas? A. I 
beg your pardon. 
14142. Q. You say that the southern strata above the seam does not contain inflammable gas? A. I told 
Mr. Robertson that so far as I know I had not heard of any liberation of gas from these strata. 
14143. Q. Do you know, in the southern district, of any strata which has gas in it? A. I think it is quite 
possible. 
14141. '2. have you any evidence to base that assurance on P A. I cannot say that I have. 
14145. '2. You have made the statement here that the strata in Kembla probably had gas in them? A. I 
have known of these strata being  bituminous, bitt not in the south. 
14146. Q. That is what I want to bring out. You have absolutely no evidence that the strata above coal 
in Kembla contained any gas P A. N o, there has no case come before mc. 
14147. Q. You cannot support the statement that the southern district strata, above the coal, contain gas 
by quoting any instance on record P A. No, I do not think I can. 
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14148. lIft. Bruce Smith] Q. There is no instance in the southern district? A. I am speaking of the 
southern district. 
14119. AIr. LgsagJit.] . Speaking specifically of Kembla-a]though you have no evidence that the 
Kembla strata, above the coal, contained any gas-although you can give no instance of the strata in the 
south coal district containing any gas-is not your theory this-that this disaster depended on the strata 
containing gas? A. Yes, 
141.50. Q. Now, will you show the Commission any justification which you have for assuming that the 
strata above the coal at Kembla contained inflammable gas? A. I have read of eases. In one case 
which lean point to particularly, gas had not been seen in the district for some years, but it was liberated 
from the roof of a mine and I think it burned two boys. That was on a main intake airway. 
14151. Q. Where? A. it is recorded in the Imperial Inspectors' IReport. 
141.52. Q. That is something that happened in another part of the world? A. Quite so. 
14153. Q. Do you tell the Commission seriously, because in some report about a colliery in another part 
of the world, there is a case where a stratum was known to give off inflammable gas-and because of this 
you say that gas would be given off by the stratum above the coal in Kembla? A. I am only dealing 
with the results of this explosion. 
14151. Q. I want to keep the case down to that of inflammable gas above the coal at Kembla. Show me 
anything that you have that will warrant you in assuming that there is gas in the strata there? A. I have 
already told you that I have no evidence of it. 
14155. Do you not admit that your assumption that the gas in this disaster came from the stratum-
which you say you never knew to contain gas-is much weaker than the assumption that it came from the 
coal'? A. The matter requires to be considered in accordance with all the results of the explosion. 
14150. Q. Was not the evidence to the effect thatgas had been given off at the top heading, which had not
been inspected, in accordance with the results of the explosion P A. The evidence is that I found some 
gas after the explosion; and the evidence is that some force went down the back heading, which blew out 
two stoppings and which forced a door, near to the 5th Right, towards the 5th Right. 
14157. Q. If you have had no evidence of the strata above the coal containing inflammable gas, but have 
had evidence in abundance that the seam of coal was constantly giving off gas, is it not fairer to assume 
that the explosion originated from gas given off by the coal, than from gas given off by the strata? 
A. We must look to the results of the explosion, to see where the explosion originated, and in my opinion 
it did not originate at a point where you say the gas was given off. 
14158. Q. Now, I have a positive statement from you, that your opinion now is that the back heading, 
near Morris' place, was not the original seat of the disaster? A. I have already stated that. - 
11150. Q. lou propounded that theory at W[ollongong, but now you absolutely abandon it" A. Yes. 
11.100. AIr. Bruce 8nith.1 He was in doubt then ; but now lie is positive of one thing. 
14101. ilir. Lysaqiet.] Q. Do you abandon that theory? A. Yes. 
14102. Q. Do you remember telling me at Wollongong, that any further inspection which you might 
make would throw no further light on the position P A. Yes, I said so. 
11103. Q. Will you tell inc what additional facts you have got that made you abandon the theory that 
the disaster originated near Morris' place? A. The plan which has been prepared by the officers of the 
Mines Department contains evidence which, to my mind, is irresistible. 
14161.. 0. Did you not know that evidence before? A. No. 
14105. Q. Did you not see a plan with evidences of force marked on it F A. This plan was then being 
made. 
14100. Q. But you had your own notes? A. I had my own notes. 
141.07. Q. Then this plan was made from this evidence? A. The officers visited the mine and prepared 
the plan themselves. 
14408. Q. Is that plan prepared from their own observations? A. Yes. 
14169. Q. Then it is their evidence which we are taking, and not yours-their evidence of force? A. I do 
not know what you mean by their evidence of force. 
141-70. Q. I mean, was the plan prepared from their own observations ? A. The plan has been prepared 
from the results of their observations, and I have been able to see the plan. 
11171. ALp. Bruce Smith.] Q. And they measured the distances? A. Yes. 
14172. Q. Had they not your notes to guide them? A. No; they took their own notes in the pit. 
11173. Q. Then this plan, which you now say has altered your opinion, could have been prepared by any 
two mining surveyors? A. I dare say it could. 
14171. Q. Some mining surveyors might have shown evidences of force in one place and some in another? 
A. Not if they did it accurately. 
14175. Q: Then it would depend on the accuracy of the man P A. And on the honesty of the man. 
14170. Q. Was anyone present to point out things to the men who prepared the plan? A. Sonic of the 
people from the colliery would be there. 
14177. Q. Do you not 'think that certain evidences of force might have been pointed out, and if the plan 
was not checked certain other evidences might have escaped their notice --P 
11.78. Air. Bruce Smith.] Would it not be better to tet the witnesses who prepared the plan on the 
matter? 
14179. His Honor.] I do riot think it is of any use cross-examining Mr. Atkinson on this matter. 
14180. Mr. Lynsght.] Q. The plan shows the position of bodies which had been buried for weeks ;-lmow 
were these men to put on the plan the position of bodies unless someone told them? A. They are put on 
the plan as the reported position. 
14181. Q. Reported to whom P A. They will be able to explain that. 
14182. Mr. ItmtcJue.] Q. Does this plan show all the evidences of force which you noted? A. Yes, and a 
great many more. 
1113. Q. Does it contain the whole of it? A. I could not say whether the plan contains all of it. It 
contains the material portion, and, I should think, a great deal more information besides. 
11184. Air. Robertsan.] Q. Since your visir, have you got any further information as to the direction of 
foeces P A. I cannot say that I have. 
14185: Q. Ihcl von get any information from the colliery officials relative to the mine when you visited 
the mine with Mr. Smith P A. Theere may have been one or two things, but I do not think there was any- 
thing material. I I1SO. 
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1 I1SO. .iJir. Robertson.] When I visited the mine with the Commission I got a great deal more information 
than I got formerly. 
14187. Air. Lyselit.] Q. You take that plan as your final guide, in justifying your conclusion, and that 
plan contains the evidences of force-all the evidences of force-which you yourself noticed? A. I do 
not know whether it does. 
14188. Q. It may P A. it may. 
14180. Q. And it also contains a lot of evidences of force which you did not notice P A. Well, it makes 
the thing clearer. 
14100. Q. It shows a lot of additional evidence.? A. It contains further evidence. 
14191. Q. Further evidence of force which you did not notice? A. Yes. 
11192. AIr Ritchie.] Q. have you got the plans here ? [Xo answer.] 
14193. Air. Bruce Sinith.l They will be produced by the witnesses. 
14194. Mr. Ritchie.] It might have been well to have them put in, so that Mr. .A tkinson could have given 
evidence upon them. Why not call the witnesses, and have them put in formally? 
11195. Air. Bruce Sail//i.] I do not know whether I shall call these witnesses before the Managers have 
given their evidence. 
14190. His honor.] These witnesses are valuable in connection with Mr. Atkinson's evidence, because 
his evidence depends upon the assumption that the plans are accurate. 
14197. Air. Bruce Smith.] What Mr. Atkinson contended was, that there were two points which he 
thought might be treated as the source of the trouble but, when he saw the plans, the matter was 
brought before him so that he could realise it much more fully ; and that decided him which of the two 
theories was the right one. 
14198. .iJ[r. Ritchie.] Mr. Atkinson is continually speaking of plans, but they are not vet in evidence. 
11109. .M. Bruce Smith.] If [ brought these plans into Court now, I would give a tremendous handle to 
the witnesses called on behalf of the mine. I do not propose to produce the plans at the present time-
until after the whole of the witnesses on behalf of the mine have given their evidence. I will produce 
the plans then. 
1. 1200. Jfr. Rife/tic.] That will entail the necessity of Mr. Atkinson going into the box and explaining 
then). 
11201. Air. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Atkinson has reserved to himself the right of giving any evidence he may 
desim in reply to the Managers. I then propose to produce these plans. We have formulated a theory. 
Otto theory was given at the Inquest ; and we now come here and say that, as the result of having the 
whole of the evidences of force noted and pt'epared (in a plan, Mr. Atkinson can at tribute the disaster to 
one cause. It is a titir thing, therefore, to let the Manage:s come in and say what their theory is. I 
I undertand they propound a theory altogether different (rein that of Mr. Atkinson. When they have 
propounded their theory, I will give them mine, and allow them to see the plan. 
14202. His hanoi..] It see:ns to inc to be only a fair thing that this plan, spoken of by Mr. Atkinson, 
sltoud be before the Managers. They ought to be 'ajie to see upon what grounds, and upon what 
foundation, Mr. Atkinson has based his theory. 
14203. Air. Bruce Smith.] The assumption seems to be that there is a natural obligation upon Mr. 
At kinson to explain the cause of the disaster but lie simply comes here as in expert witness to say 

I think so and so." it is the Managers who have to expitin the disaster. 
11201. His honor.] The Commissioners simply look upon it that Mr. Atkinson comes here for the 
benefit of the public, and in the interests of truth to give his opinion based upon all the facts which lie is 
cognisant of. Amongst other things, this plan is spoken of as being part of the groundwork of his 
opinion, and his evidence is hardly complete unless we have it proved that that is a correct plan. 
11205. Air. Bruce Smith.] Surely, if anybody comes into the box to give evidence, he will be able to 
give the data from which he had drawn his conclusions. I would point out that Mr. Atkinson is no 
different from any other visitor to the mine. I asked all the witnesses here, ' Did you take a single note 
of anything which you saw on paper," but they all said that ti-icy trusted to memory. 
11200. His honor.] I will give you one case in point. Suppose this were it question, amongst other 
things, of the altitude of a place, and suppose in taking the altitude the witness uses an aneroid, surely 
it would be fair to ask that that aneroid should be produce(!, to see whether it was correct or not. 
1 1.207. Mr. Bruce Semi//i] My contention is that Mr. A tkinson has undertaken to come forward and give 
his cxphin.itoti of this explosion, but I do not want him to be magnified into the position of the person 
who is ft responsible for it. It is, aer all, a matter of conect ire, lie save, This is my opinion, for what 
it is worth." Lot the Managers nov come for yard and give their explanation of the occurrence. 
1[201. Mr. /iarr:I.] I (10 not think the Managers have attvthing to do with it. 
1420). Mr. Bruce Smith.] It is for the management theti to say what their theory is as regards the 
disaster. 
142 [0. Aim'. Ribeitson.] I do not think that th it is so. Mr. Atkinson conies here- nsa public officer, and 
as much in the interests of the Kenbla Company as of anyone else, If he has any infcrniation which is 
likely to be of any advantage to the Company, it is right that he should produce it. 
11211. Aft'. Bruce Smith.] I do not mean that lie should not produce it, but I do not want the Managers 
to come here an I criticise Mr. Atkinson's plans before givin their own evidence in regard t the matter, 
11212. due. Robertson.] I do not see why the Managers should not have the advantage of Sir. Atkinson's 
plans. 
142 [3. M8 honor.] I agree with Mr. Robertson, and Mr. Iditehie takes the same view. 
1421-I, Mr. Ritchie.] II think that we ought to have had the plans put in before Mr. Atkinson came here 
at all. You seem to think that Mr. Atkinson is a purely voluntary witness. lie has a big responsibility 
upon him, and lie comes hero to defend himself as well as the Managers. 
11213. AL'. Bruce Smith.] There is no defending himself about it, in my opinion. It is simply this-time 
Commission has to inquire into the disaster, and to decide where the blame lies. Mr. Atkinson, comes 
here to express his opinion. - 
14210. Mr. Ritchie.] As one having a great responsibility resting on him. 
14217. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I say it is forlihn to come here and say that he has done his duty, but it is 
not for hini to embark on all elaborate disquisition of the whele thing. lie has merely to show that his 
Department has done its duty. If he explains what he has done himself, and what his luspectors have 
done., up to the present, that is all that he is bound to do. 11218. 
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14218. Mr. Ritchie.] You cannot prevoiit our asking him for more information. 
14210. Air. Bruce iS'mith.] I say that, so fhr, Mr. Atkinson has taken a great deal of trouble in the 
matter, and has spent many weeks in obtaining facts, and doing work which he was not bound to do at all. 
14220. Mr. Robertson.] We quite acknowledge that. 
14221. His Honor.] Therefore we think that Mr. Atkinson may wish to put himself in a right position, 
and may feel disposed to produce this map, which is the foundation, to a certain extent, of the opinions 
which ho has formed ; he may feel disposed to have it verified, and open to the inspection of everybody. 
14222. Mr. Bruce Smith.] If the management, through their witnesses, is going to give evidence, it 
should do it without seeing Mr. Atkinson's plan. After the witnesses have given their evidence, ii do 
not wish to 'prevent them from seeing the plan. I should ask, however, that any plans should remain 
in the possession of the Commission, and that they should not be in the hands of the witnesses before 
they give evidence. 1 want them to give what I call their positive evidence, irrespective of Mr. Atkinson's 
plan. I do not mind their having an opportunity of seeing the plans afterwards. 
14223. _11r. Robertson.] What is the difference between the production of any plan or plans and the 
evidence which Mr. Atkinson has given here to-day? 
14221. Mr. Bruce Smith.] There is a great deal of difference between the two things. 
14225. .Mr Robertson.] Mr. Atkinson's evidence has been of great value to me, although I have seen the 
mine myself. Mr. Atkinson has investigated this matter more than anyone else, and therefore, his 
evidence is of great importance - 
1 t226, Air. Bruce Smith.] And now let the persons on the other side give their evidence irrespective of 
Mr. Atkinson's data. 
14227. Air. Barry.] I object to the term "sides "—there are no sides in this matter. 
14228. Air Bruce Smith.] Well, you are one side and I am on the other. What I say is, that I think 
the witnesses called, on behalf of the management ought to give their evidence without seeing that plan. 
Let them give their evidence irrespective of other peoples' data. 
14229. His Honor.] Is there any dispute as to where certain bodies were found in the mine? 
14230. Air. Bruce Smith.] The position of the bodies is of no importance, because I do not think there is 
any difference of opinion as to where they were found. But the position of the skips, the heaps of coal, the 
doors, the wire, and the canvas is a matter of importance. 
14231. Air. Ritchie.] Is there not evidence of that already? 
14232. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think that three people have made comprehensive notes of these 
t lungs. 
14233. Air. Robertson.] Then why should they not have the advantage of Mr. Atkinson's notes? 
14234. His Honor,] Why should they be asked to give evidence in the dark to diislead themselves and 
the Commission by making false assumptions. I have no doubt Mr. Barry, for instance, would be only 
too glad to see any plan with a general assumption that it is correct. 
1t2:35. Air. Bruce Smith.] Does your honor think that these witnesses will come here to give evidence 
in the dark P Has not each one had ample time to visit the mine, and is it not a fact that they will all 
come here having taken sufficient evidence to make deductions for themselves. 
14230. His Honor.] Mr. Atkinson found himself in the dark ; and now he has had light thrown on a 
certain matter. 
142:37. Air. Barry.] His officers put him right. 
142:38. Air. Bruce Smith.] I will put the plans in evidence at once, but I would ask you to allow the 
witnesses for the management to give their evidence in their own way, and on their own data, with the 
right of seeing the plans afterw-ards. In the meantime the plans to remain the property of the Court. 
1423.9. His Honor.] We think that the plans should be put in, and it will be for the Commission to 
exercise its discretion as to who should be allowed to see them. We shall not allow the plans to become 
public in any way, but we shall use our discretion with regard to allowing them to be inspected here or 
anywhere else. One plan is now, in fact, part of Mr. Atkinson's evidence. We shall expect to have these 
plans produced before the Commission to-morrow morning. 
11240. Air. Bruce Smith.] Very tvell, your Honor. 

The Commission, at 410 p.m., adjourned uutil 10 o'clock the following day 
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TUESDAY, 10 FEBRUARY, 1003. 

[The Commission met at the Lsnd Appeal Court, Dailinyhurst.] 

jrcent: 

C. E. B. MURRAY, E8Q., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 
D. A. W. ROBERTSON, EsQ., Connissioxeis. 1). RITCHIE, EsQ., Coainissioxisn. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitoi', appeared on behalf of— 
(a) the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
(t5) the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &e.) ; and 
(e) the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' lJnion). 

Mr. G. J. Barry, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors 
of Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garliele, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shr,rthand notes of tLe evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under: 

11.241. Mr. Bruce Smith.] These are the plans which the Commission wished to have. There are three 
of them. 
14242. (Three plans were handed to the Commissioners, and inspected by them.) 
14243. His Honor.] Mr. Atkinson, will you kindly come round and explain the sequence of these. 
11211. (Mr. Atkinson then went on the Bench and explained the plans to the Commissioners.) 
14245. Ills Honor.] Q. This plan and the other two sections? A. Cover the same ground. 
14246. Mr. Robertson.] Q. On the same scale? A. A different scale. 
11247. Ills hionor.1 These plans can be considered to be provisionally in evidene; and also that plan 
which has never actually been put in, the compilation plan. (The plan referred to here is one prepared 
by Mr. Atkinson, and handed to the Commission, on which there are noted the main intake and return 
airways of the mine, the working places of all the men in the mine on the day of the disaster, and the 
positions in which the bodies of the men who perished in the disaster were found.) 
14248. Q. Did you compile this plan yourself, Mr. Atkinson? A. No. It was done under instructions. 
It is really a copy of this one, information for which I supplied myself. [Rqftrring to a plan which he 
held in his hand.] 
14219. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I am afraid there is a difficulty about that. I do not think it is all sworn to. 
14250. His Honor.] Q. That is a copy ? A. Yes. 
14251. Q. A copy made by a draftsman? A. Yes. 
14252. Q. And you compiled that yourself? A. Together with a draftsman, from information received 
from different people and officials, as to the positions. It was not all sworn evidence. 
14253. Q. It was not sworn evidence? A. No. 
11251. Mr Bruce Smith.] And it cannot be sworn, your Honor. 
14255. His Honor.] Is there any dispute as to its correctness? 
14250. Mr. Bruce Smith.] As long as it is taken with that infirmity, Mr. Atkinson will have no objection 
to putting it in. 
142.57. His Honor.] We will take it provisionally. 
11258. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It can never be other than provisional. I think the officials who prepared 
that got some of the information from the witnesses at the Inquest after the Inquest, something addi-
tional ; so, I mean to say, it could never be an exhibit, except in that sense ; but if the Court likes to 
take it with that infirmity, knowing that it is done with the best intentions in order to get at the truth as 
to the positions of the bodies and other things, it may be useful. 
14259. His Honor.] The plan might be inspected by Mr. Lysaght and by Mr. Barry—I will not say by 
you, Mr. Bruce Smith, because you have put it in as something correct—I assume you take it as correct? 
1.4200. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not wish to put it in but, if the Commission like to have it, I do not see 
any objection. 
14201. His Honor.] If it is admitted on all hands, by all persons interested, that it is practically correct, 
then we might take it as correct. 
14262. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. I mention the in6rmity to the Court now. If the Court like to take 
it, knowing that, Mr. Atkinson will be glad to hate it in. 
14263. His Honor.] So far as Mr. Atkinson himself is concerned, a god deal of it is of his own know-
ledge. 
14261. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor will understand that at the Inquest a witness would go into the 
box and would say, " Well, I do not understand a map at all ; and yet he would fix the position of a 
body. After he came out of the box the officials would take him, and would school him, so to speak, on 
that plan, and get him to point out the position of that body on the plan. Well, that was not evidence 
at all. It was after the witness left the box ; so that it would be after he had left the influence of the 
Court. 
11205. .Mr. Robertson.] I take it that the position of nine-tenths of the bodies is of very little importance 
to us. It is only the positions of a certain number of the bodies that are important. 
11200. His Honor.] But the physical facts are important. 
14267. Mr Robertson.] Yes ; but I take it that Mr. Atkinson can swear to the position of the important 
bodies. 
11268. Mr. Bruce Smith.] No, because Mr. Atkinson did not see the positions of some of them. They 
are nearly all marked in there on the information reccired from these officials. 
14209. Mr. Robertson.] I certainly did not know the bodies myself ; but I would have no hesitation in 
identifying them from information which I have receivccrsince. 14270. 
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14270. His Honor.] Q. Can you distinguish the information, as to the positions of the bodies, which 
appears on that plan, and which was given at the Inquest, from what was not actually given at the Inquest, 
but was procured from the witnesses afterwards ;-are you able to distinguish the facts P A. Yes, I think 
so, Your Honor ; and, so far as the positions of the bodies are concerned, there may be some little 
differences, but no material differences, between this plan and the plans which the witnesses marked at the 
Inquest. 
14271. Q. You say there really are no substantial differences? A. I think not. 
14272. Q. You were present during the Inquest-the whole time? A. Yes, I was. - 
14273. Air. Bruce Smith.] But I do not think he was present when these things were being put upon 
the plan. 
14274. IVitness.] No, I was not present when they were put on the plan. 
14275. Air. Bruce Smith.] I want to see that Mr. Atkinson does not give greatr weight to it than it is 
entitled to. 
14270. His H.inor.] Q. Are there any facts, except the positions of the bodies, that are, in that sense, 
uncertain in relation to the evidence that was given at the inquest; or are the other facts-the positions 
of stones, and wire-, and trucks, and other things, as.they appear on the plan-within your own knowledge, 
or within the knowledge of witnesses who gave evidence? 
14277. ATe. Bruce Smith.] Which is Your Honor sitcaking cf-which plan? 
14278. Ltis Honor.] The compiled plan [meaninq the plan which was afterwards marked Jiivhibit No. 20]. 
14279. A. Most of the evidences of force shown on this plan were put on with my own knowledge. 'There 
may be some which are on here, and which were not given in evidence. 
14280. Q. But are all that are there, on that plan which von have in your hands, consistent with your own 
knowledge and observation of what appeared on the ground aher the explosion, and before any work was 
done in removing them? A. Well, some few inayhave been put on from information received, as well. 
14281. Q. As to the position of that wire, which is a very important thieg, is that within your own 
knowledge or not? A. Well, I have nothing indicating anything on this plan with reference to that wire. 
14282. Q. What do you say as to the Skips ;-do they appear on that plan? A. No, Your Honor. 
14283. Q. Then, that plan shows, principally, bodies? A. And stoppings-doors. 
1 424. Q. Well, as to those, what can you say of your own knowledge ? A. I think they are all put on 
with my own knowledge, those stoppings and doors: 
14285. Air. _Ritchie.] Q. Are there any material matters mentioned or noted on ticse sectional plans-
[referrin7 to those which wn'e afterwards put in and marlce I Exhibits Xos. 25, 27, and 28]- of which you 
have no personal knowledge ? A. Oh, yes, there are several things which the surveyors had more time to 
detail and put on, as they were there four or live days. 
14280, his Honor.] Q. Did the surveyors go into the mine themselves? A. Yes, Your Honor. 
14287. Q. And did they t ke their own observation of these facts, 'wiuch they put down-physical facts P 
A. Yes, they did. 
1 1-288. ATe. Bruce Smith 1 Timore sections were prepared, almost altogether from the rersonal observation 
of those two surveyors wno went in, and remained there five clays. 
11289. His Honor] Q. I suppose it comes to this, Mr. Atkinson, practically, that, as to the position of 
all physical appearances, except bodies, those surveyors went by their own observation P A. Yes. 
11293. Q. And as to bodies, of course, they had to take history for that, because the bodies were removed 
before they went P A. Yes. 
11291. And as to the history of those bodies which appear on the sectional plan- [Exhibits 20, 27, and 28], 
is that or is that not, practically, contained in the evmdence given at the Inquest A. I do not understand. 
when Your Honor mentions the sectional plan. 
14232. (7. The sectional plan [Exhibit 20] shows bodies ? A. The one macic by the surveyor. 
11293. Q. Those three that were produced to_day for the first time [Exhil its 20, 27, and 28] ; those show 
the position of some bodies P A. Yes. 
11294. Q. And those positions of bodies could not have been known to the surveyors, except by the 
narration of somebody else ? A. That is so. 
14295. Well, was that nsrration, so far as you know, the narration at the Inquest, or a narration made to 
them aEterrarcls P A. To them, when they were in the mine, Your Honor. 
142951. Air. Bobertssn.] It must have been before the Inquest. 
14200. Q. Were not they beginning this plan before the Inquest? A. They were busy with it. 
11297. Q. And I take it they would have all their information prepared? A. Before the Inquest. I do not 
remember. You could get that from the officers themselves. 
11-298. Air, Bruce Smith.1 I will call them next. 
11230. Air. Ritchie.] Q. When you are using those plans, you might distinguish, or snake clear, those 
things of which you have a personal knowledge from those things of which you have not a personal 
knowledge P A. You are referring to those plans P 
14300. (7. Those sectional plans which you produced this morning? A. If I might make a suggestion to 
the Commission, I think that direchion might be given to the surveyors. 
14301. Q. But, in addition to what they know, I would like to know what you know about the:eevidences 
of force on those plans P 
11302. Air Bruce Smith.] He has given three days' evidence at the Inquest, lie has never mentioned 
the positions of things, except exceptional ones, before the evidence given at this Commission. 
14333. Air. Ritchie.] It would not take a great deal of time to put clearly before the Commission what 
matters there are of which lie has a personal knowledge. 
14301. Air. Bruce Sini/h.] Would it not be better, if any particular object became important, for him 
then to be asked, " Did you see this yourself P 
1130.5. Air. Ritchie.] That would amount to the same thing. 
14303. Air. Bruce Smi!h.] Yes ; but it would involve less loss of time. 
11307. Air. Ritchie.] Yes. 
14308. ATe. Bruce Smith.] I mean, if anything becomes, or seems to you to be, of importance, Mr. 
Atkinson can at any time-he will be under oath-say, from the table, "That is from my own knowledge," 
or " That is not from my own knowledge." 
14300. His Honor.] I understand Mr. Atkinson to say that, so far as his personal observation went, 
these plans are correct; there is nothing contradicting his personal knowledge. 14310. 
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11310. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I will go further, and say that he has no reason to doubt that they are correct. 
14311. Mr. Ritchie.] Although there is something additional there. 
14312. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Although lie may have got information in the mine still he has no reason to 
doubt the correctness of the information. 
14313. Witness.] No I have no reason to doubt the information. 
14314 His Honor.] Well, then, subject to correction, and subject to the calling of these witnesses-the 
compiling surveyors-these plans might as well go in [Exhibits .7TOS.  20, 27, and 28]. Of course, evidently 
that plan [Exhibit 29] must go in, subject to correction. That, which is a copy of the one which Mr. 
Atkinson had in his hand jest now, seems a little more questionable. 
14315. 0. There is no doubt as to this being a correct copy of the one you have in your hand-you have 
compared it with yours P A. Yes. 
14310. Q. Andyou prepared yours by taking one of the original plans of the mine, which was admittedly 
correct? A. Yes. 
1431. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Who made that copy [Exhibit 29]? A. Mr. Martin, the draftsman in the 
office. Mr. Martin made this one [indicating his own plas, which he held in his hand]. 
14318. Mr. Ritchie.] The lithograph map was shown at the inquest as being a true copy of the plan of 
the mine. 
14319. Air. Bruce Smith.] His Honor is asking about a lithograph upon which the positions of all the 
men are marked. There is no question about the lithograph being copied from the plan supplied by the 
mine itself; but his Honor is asking now about a lithograph upon which the positions of the men are 
marked, which was originally made by Mr. i\4artin. 
14320. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. The position of the bodies, as marked on that lithograph, were noted there on the 
strength of the evidence given at the inquest P A. Only partly so. 
14321. Q. And also from information supplied by the officials in the mine? A. Ys. 
14322. his Honor.] It is admitted, and must be taken, that at that time nobody had any object in mis-
representing the position of any pticiiltsr body or any particular thing. The information was given to 
the best of the knomvlede of everyone who attended, and, practically, it is the best information. 
14323. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think it would be practicable to get any better; and Mr. Atkinson 
says he has no reason to doubt the accuracy of the whole of it. 
14324.. His Honor.] And I think the Commission might think there is no doubt of it, pracCcally. I 
think it might go in, subject to any correction, of course, as presumably correct. 
14325. Air. Bruce Smith.] It can go in for what it is worth. 
1 1320. His Honor.] Just so. 
11127. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I will gve you an instance of the difficulty. In the case of Dungev's body 
there were only two witnesses who spoke as to the relative positions of the body and the head. One-
Morrison, I think-swore that, as far as he could remember, the head was outbyc the body ; and Frost 
junior swore that the head was inbye the body. Well, they are the only two witnesses who spoke as.to 
the relative positions of those two objects. 
1 l32. His Honor.] And so, in this sectional plan, I notice that the head is left out. 
14329. AIr. Bruce Smith.] And the arm too. 
1433 ). Witness.] The arm was taken by a position which was marked on a stone. 
14331. His Honor.] I siappose there was no question about the arm, or that there was more certainty 
about its position. 
14 132. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Was there any conflicting evidence given with regard to the position of the 
arm and the body ? A. 1 think that there was conflicting evidence with regard to that as well as the bead 
I am not sure. 
11333. But instances of that kind arc very fev.J think there are only two or three. 
1431. His Honor.] And they are not very material, because it is not possib'e to say whether the man 
would be blown off his head or the head blown off the man. 
14335. AIr. Bruce Small/i.] No ; and I should think that the head would come off the body by striking 
against something, not by being blown off. 
11330. His Honor.] So I thui.k we may take it that these plans are, provisionally, in now for what they 
are worth. 
11337. Witness.] Might I ask whether there is any desire on the part of the Commission to have any 
reduction of the plans. Perhaps you could think of it before the surveyors come. 
11,338. His Honor.] l3w and ire. We will have to have this large sectional plan reduced, and the otner 
will have to be reduced, too, finaljv, for the purpose of printing ; but it will not do to go into that at once, 
because the plan would have to be away for about a week. We will go on now with Mr. Atkinson's cross-
examination. 
11339. [A. mai  showing the results of the explosion in part of No. 1 main level rope road, Mount Kembla 
Mine, was put in and marked Exhibit Vo. 2t5.1 
I t31.9. [Two sections, showing the reults of the explosion in part of No. 1 main level rope road, Mount 
Kembla Mine, were put in and marked Exhibits .Nos. 27 and 28.] 
11341. [A. lithograph plan of the Mount-Kembla Mine, on which the positions of the working places and 
the positions of the men who perished in the disaster are shown, was put in and marked Exhibit Ho. 29. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Lysaghit: 
14342. Q. Which is the plan that you are using to base your theory on ? A. Well, the plan that I 
referred to yesterday is here. 
1434212 . Q. Do not you seethat that is not an answer to my question 
14343. His Honor.] It is hardly fair to say " Which plan are you using to base your theory upon? 
but you might ask, " Which plan did you use, which plan did you look at, before you concluded that 
your theory was the correct one, or before you formed that theory ?" 
14341. Air. Lysaght.] 1 understand, your,  1-lonor, that some of these sectional plans are mere]y a dupli-
cation of the one big plan. 
11315. His Honor.] Mr. Atkinson says, you remember, that he hal a certain idea, and then afterwards 
he got all these facts crystahized clearly before his mind, so that he could look at them and study them 
more carefully. 

16825 29-3 K 11310. 
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14346. Mr. Liii itt.] That is the plan I want. 
14347. His Honor.] And then he came to another conclusion-he did not come to a different conclusion; 
but he modified his first conclusion. 
143 t. Mr. Bruce Smith.] In this respect: I understood Mr. Atkinson to say, originally, that he was 
in doubt between two points ; and now he says he thinks the evidence preponderates in favour of one; 
but there is nothing "absolutely certain" about any one of them-it is mere expert opinion. 
11349. Mr. .Lysaqhmt.] Q. But I suppose you say that you have no doubt now that the theory of the back 
heading having been the original seat of the disaster was erroneous ? A. No; but my opinion has been 
strengthened that the 4th Right was the source by investigating this plan. 
14350. Q. And that opinion is svithout any doubt in your mind? A. Well, there always are doubts. 
14351. His Honor.] Mr. Atkinson does not say that, Mr. Lysaght. Mr. Atkinson must be taken to say-
he must say-that there is no absolute certainty about anything of this kind. There never can be. 
14352. Witness.] I just give it as my opinion for what it is worth. 
14353. Mr. .Lysaghmt.] Q. The plan where all these things were condensed for you, and which you looked 
at, and on which you finally fixed on this conclusion-which is that plan? A. This plan here [indicating 
Exhibit No. 26]. 
14354. Q. This is what I want to ask you: What new matter did those sectional plans [Exhibits JVs. 26, 
27, and 28] show you that confirmed you in this theory? A. Oh, there are several things which are 
shown more plainly when you get them on to a plan and are able to look at it. 
14355. Q. I ask you what new matter? A. Well, there is one piece of evidence particularly with rferenee 
to the telephone wire. 
14356. Q. What was that? A. And another piece with reference to a telephone wire in a tub near to the 
4th Left; and generally the appearance, as indicated on the plan, of some of the tubs and some of the 
coal-those are the principal things, I think. 
14:357. Q. But in what way did the new matter concerning the telephone wire support this theory P 
A. It indicated to me that the force had gone inbye. 
14358. Q. Anything else ? A. Not in answer to that question. 
14 t59. Q. No more new matter, then, as fdr as either of the telephones wires were concerned? A. No 
it indicated a force inbye. 
14360. Q. What other new matter did that plan show you? A. I think I have indicated the principal 
things. 
14:301. Q. The two telephone wires? A. And the general position of the tubs and coal, 
14362. Q. Now, did you not give evidence about those telephone wires at the inquest? Q. Yes ; I said 
that, if I remember rightly, I thought the wire had been detached from inbye, but that I could not swear 
to it, or something to that effect. 
14363. Q. And what additional fact have you had, then, about that telephone wire since the inquest? 
A. Well, the plan has elucidated the matter, and made it clear to me that the wire has been detached at 
the outbve end, and that there has been a force inbye in connection with that wire. 
_14364. Q. ('ould not you see that from your own observation in the mine ? A. Well, I (lid not see it. It 
was in the neighbourhood of a horse, which was in a pretty high state at the time, and we did riot dwell 
too long on it, whilst these surveyors occupied some days in unravelling the evidences. 
14365. Q. Well, is there anything else besides that ? A. Well, those are the priicipal things. 
14366. Q. And that information is supplied to you by surveyors putting it on a plan? A. Yes. 
14367. Q. Did you go to verify it? A. No, 1 did not. 
14368. Q. Do not you tee that it would be a very simple matter bra telephone wire to be broken in right 
or tell different places after the disaster? A. No ; 1 think it is highly improbable. It is very improbable, 
I think. 
14369. Q. Well, perhaps you can tell me this : What was the volume of air passing up the No. 1 main 
level on the day of the disaster P A. I cannot tell you that. 
14370. Q. Have not you seen the record of it? A. I am not aware that the air was taken on the day of 
the disaster. 
14371. Q. Can you give inc an estimate of what you would expect would be passing up the No. 1 main 
level immediately prior to the disaster? A. Well, I do not see how I possibly could give an estimate. 
I think it is impossible for me to give an estimate. 
14372. His Honor.] What you want to get is the rate of travelling of the air. 

.M 14373. r. Lysaght.] Q. Twenty thousand cubic feet, or whatever it might be, per minute, travelling up 
there-roughly the amount of air that was diverted into the No. 1 main (Right) section? A. I cannot 
remember the quantities in all the splits. 
14374. [Mr. Lysaght asked for the ventilation books of the mine, which were put in as exbibits at (i.e 
inquest, and were ordered by the Commission, when at Wollongong, to be produced as exhibits before the 
Commission. These had not yet been produced; but Mr. Barry said he would telegraph for them at once.] 
11375. His Honor.] What you really want to understand is the approximate rate of travelling of the air. 
It does not matter about the number of cubic feet. 
14376. Mr. Lysaght.] Yes; and about the volume, too ; because, if there was a very heavy volume 
travelling up, there would need to be a large amount of gas coming out of the waste to make it an 
inflammable atmosphere. 
14377. His Honor.] If you give the section of the engine plane, and if you then get the rate of travelling 
of the air, it might give what you want. 
14378. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Cannot you give me an estimate? A. I cannot. I would not like to say.. 
14379. Mr. Robertson.] I suppose there were probably 30,000 cubic feet. 
14380. ALe. Lysaght.] That is what 1 thought myself. 
14381. Witness.] I could not say. It is probably less than that. 
14:82. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Now, cami you say, as a fair estimate, 20,000 cubic feet per minute? Was it not 
n a important matter for you to know about how much air was passing up that intake ; do not you regard 

that as an important matter? 
14383. AIr. bruce Smith.] Now, do not let us have it said afterwards that Mr. Atkinson has sworn that 
there was 20,0c0 cubic feet of air. My frh nd is asking Mr. Atkinson to acquiece in an assuuption 
and we do not want him afterwaids to ray that Mr. Atknrcn absolutely snori it. 

4381. 
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1-1331. [Answer to Mr. Lysaght's question.] I ]now that the quantity of air which was circulating, 
according to the ventilation book, was in necoriance with General Rule 1 : more than the minimum 
quantity was supplied; but I do not remember, for the moment, the quantities which were going in each 
split. 
11385. Q. Do not you consider it is an important matter for you to have known, as near as you could, the 
amount of air travelling up that No. 1 main level on the day of the disaster? A. I do not see how I could 

have known it. 
14380. Q. Could not you have taken the ventilation book for the previous record, and seen what the split 
was on that occasion? A. Yes; that is what I would like to do now. 
11387. Q. But do not you think it was somewhat material to have done it before now? A. No; I do not 

think that it was. 
14388. Q. Now, if we take the assumption that there would be about 20,000 cubic feet of gas--with the 
number of men working in that district, there could not very well be less, could there? A. Yes. 

11339. Q. Taking the number of men, boys, and horses in that split, what would he the minimum required 
to go up the No. 1 main level P A. 9,000 or 10,000 cubic feet would aupply the quantity required. 
11390. Q. That would be the minimum required? 
11391. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Doyou mean for the men cugaged in the mine at that time ? A. On that 

particular split. 
14392. AIr. Lgsaqlit.] Q. And it is a fair assumption that there would be a margin of, I suppose, 3,000 or 
4,000 cubic feet? A. Yes. 
14393. Q. So that the volume passing could safely be put at not less than about 15,000 cubic feet per 
minute? .4. I think so. 
14391. Q. Now, is it not a fact that a considerable quantity of fire-damp would have to come from the 
waste to form an explosive atmosphere, when that intake air was there to sweep it away and dilute it P 
A. I do not exactly understand your question. 
14395. Q. That 15,000 cubic feet passing would dilute a large percentage of fire-damp, would it not? 
A. Would dilute P Well, I might say that 150 cubic feet of gas would afford sufficient, under certain 
conditions, with that volume, to make it dangerous, if there were also a cloud of dust, as has been 
suggested. 
14:390. Air. Robertson..] Q. But is not there a time-factor as well in the question P 
14397. AIr. Lysaqht.] Now, for the present, leave out any consideration of any coal-dust; and take it that 
there were only fire-damp and air, what would be the volume of fire-damp required to e explosive, 
meetina,  that air? 
14393. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Do you mean without coal-dust? 
14399. Air. Lysaght.] Yes ; I am leaving out coal-dust altogether at present, for a reason you will see. 
14400. Air. Bruce Smith.] That is assuming there was no coal-dust? 
11101. Mr. Lqs'iqht.] Yes. A. Oh, well, about 750 cubic feet. 
14102. Q. Now, does your theory depend on the gas being brought to an inflammable point by meeting 
the intake air? A. 1 think it was associated with coal-dust. 
14403. Q. I am leaving coal-duet out of it altogether for the present;-do you mean that the gas, when 
brought to its inflammable point, was brought to it by meeting that air ? A. I do not see how you could 
possibly leave out the coal-dust. 
11101. Air. Bruce Smith.] Now Your Honor sees the difficulty. First of all, Mr. Atkinson was asked to 
assume a condition of things in which there was no coal-dust. Then Mr. Lysaght goes on to say ' Did it 
do so-and-so ?" He mixes up a hypothetical case with a supposed actual case; and it will lead, I am 
afraid, to a lot of complications. 
1 1-105. Mr. Lysag/it.j What I mean is [his: up to the time that the gas met the air 
11106. Air. Bruce Smith.] The time that it did meet. You see you are on a hypothetical case that Mr. 
Atkinson says never took place. 
14107. His Honor.] What is the question? 
14108. Air. Lysaght.] At what particular spot does Mr. Atkinson think that time mixture of gas and air 
became inflammable. 
14109. His Honor.] I do not see how he can possibly answer that. What Mr. Atkinson suggests is the 
blowing out of a mixture, which he cannot, by any possibility, define the proportions of-the blowing out 
with force of a mixture of gas and air into the column of very slowly moving air coming up the engine 
level. 
11110. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But does Your Honor appreciate my objection to the form? Mr. Lysaght 
begins with a hypothesis, but does not continue the hypothesis in each question. lIe drops the 
hypothetical form, and speaks in an actual form ; and Mr. Atkinson may be assuming all through the 
answers that he is still on the hypothetical form-that coal-dust is not in question-but he will be 
answering questions in an actual form that should be put with a hypothetical preface. - My own 
experience of examining witnesses over twenty yeals is this: that, if one begins a series of hypothetical 
questions, one's hypothesis must be put to every question-" if so-and-so would so-and-so," not Did 
so-and-so." - 
1-1111. His Honor.] Mr. Lysaght, you were, to a certain extent, passing from the hypothetical to the 
actual. Mr. Atkinson has said all along, "I do assume as a fact that there was coal-dust from the first." 
You say, Put time coal-dust out of the question," and " Do not you see what would happen P " You 
should say, " Do not you see what would happen, then, if so-and-so were so-and-so? " You do not put 
it that way ; but you ask Mr. Atkinson what probably happened, Mr. Atkinson still believing in the 
coal-dust. 
11112. Air. Lysaght.] I can put it shortly, Your Honor. - 
14113. Q. Now, considering the coal-dust as a factor, your theory assumes a cloud of dust being raised in 
No. 1 main level and travelling road ? A. Well, I do not know that I have referred, to the travelling 
road; I said the No. 1 main level. - 
11414. Q. The theory assumes a cloud of dust raised by the rush of air and fire-damp in No.1 main level? 
A. Yes. 
14415. Q. Can I take it that it assumes that cloud of dust from the 4t4 Right up to the 4th Left, all the 
way? A. Yes, I think so. 
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11116. Q. And that would be a cloud of dust produced either from the roadway or from blown-out dust 
stoppings? A. I do not think that the stopprngs would contribute, because they were blown towards the 
trave1in road, 
14417. Q. Well, then, it would be a cloud of dust produced from the roadway, and sides, and roof of the 
No. 1 main level? A. Yes, I think so. 
14418. Q. Then was it not negligence in the management not to suciently water that No. 1 main level? 
14119. Mr. Berry.] I object to that question. That is a question that this Court will not, I presume, 
allow Mr. Atkinson to determine. That is a question for the Court—an inference to be drawn from the 
facts that are put before them. 
14420. His Honor.] Mr. Atkinson has already answered that, practically, several times. 
14421. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes, Your honor; but Mr. Atkinson has, very properly, complained to me, 
although he did not complain to the Court, that he comes into the Court herd to assist the Commission, 
as an expert, to find whether or not there was negligence in certain directions ; and he says that, instead 
of being treated as an expert assistirg the Court, he is really asked to assume the functions of a jury, and 
to say whether there is negligence or not. How can Mr. Atkinson say whether it was negligence or not? 
Be may not know the meaning, in law, of negligence. Negligence has formed the subject of special 
judgments by Coui ts. Yet Mr. Atkinson is asked to find upon the issue which the Commission are going 
to concern themselves with by-and-bye, when they have heard the whole of the evidence. I can 
understand Mr. Atkinson being asked what he thinks, and what he saw, and what be believes, but not his 
being asked to make deductions as to whether he thinks the management was negligent in omitting 
something or doing something. I can quite imagine his being asked whether, if lie had been the Manager, 
lie would have thought it a discreet thing to do I should not object tO his being asked that. But lie is 
being asked the bald question, "In your opinion, was this negligence, or gross negligence P " I submit 
that it has nothing to do with the expert witness' evidence. 
1142. Mr. Lysaght.] The question was put on the basis of getting gn expert opinion upon a condition in 
the colliery, respecting which I asked him, was it not, first of all, practically a dangerous condition, and, 
therefore, was it not negligence not to have it removed. 
14423. His Honor.] You have exactly given yourself away by the expression you have used, rourself, 
just now—" and, therefore." That is a question which the Court has to decide. It is not for Mr. 
Atkinson to say whether it is negligence or not; it is for him to say, if you like, what he, as an expert, 
would feel would be the best plan to adopt under the conditions which existed before the explosion took 
place; but he, rightly, objects to be asked to draw a conclusion of negligence, which is one of the 
principal questions for this tribunal to settle. I do not think it is a proper way to put the question; and 
it would not have been allowed, probably, in any Court trying a matter of this kind; it would not have 
been permitted to put to an expert this continual question as to whether something was negligent, or 
whether it was not. Whether it was good management to water, or not, is another question; and that 
I suggested to you before, was the proper way to put it—" Supposing you had been managing the mine, 
would you, or would, you not, under the circumstances which you saw then existing, before the explosion, 
have watered in certain places ? " But all these questions have been put so often that it seems to me 
that this is a repetition of what has gone before, two sittings ago. 
-14424. .Mr. .Lyscght.] Q. If your theory depends on the coal-dust carrying to the 4th Left, where you 
think it met the naked light, would you not, if you had been Manager, have had the No. 1 main level 
thoroughly watered? A. In the light of what has happened I certainly would do so in future, 
1142.5. Q. Is it probable that, had the No. 1 main level been thoroughly watered, the disaster would never 
have occurred? A. That depends to some extent upon the quantity of gas which has been given off, and 
which is impossible to determine. 
14120. His Honor.] It is quite clear that it is impossible, in the nature of things, to answer that 
question. 
14427. Mr Lysq1it] Yes. 
14128. Q. But, in the absence of the coal-dust, you do not think that this explosion would have occurred? 
A. Well, in the absence of the coal-dust it would have required a much larger quantity of fire-damp to 
have been ignited by a naked light. 
14429. Q. Now, you do know that the danger arising from the quantity of dust that was on the No. 1 
main level was well-known to all mining people? A. Well, I think there is sonle variety of opinion, 
even now, as to that. 
14130. Q. What I do not quite understand, Mr. Atkinson, is your answer that you consider it bad 
management not to water now, but you would not consider it had management not to have watered the 
main level before the disaster ;—because I put it to you that all the knowledge of the dangers of coal-
dust was wel-knowji before the disaster? [Witness did not answer.] 
14431. Q. You follow that? You have already said the disaster afforded no new information regarding 
the danger of coal-dust; and that the English explosions had afforded plenty of cases. Now, I do not 
understand why it would he bad management not to water now, and yet it would not be bad management 
not to have watered the main level before the disaster. 
14132. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think Mr. Atkinson used the words "bad management." 
14133. Mr Lgsaqht.] Q. 1 am asking you now ? A. But 1 think you suggest that I said it before. 
14131. Q. I think on Thursday you said that ;—but I ask you now, would it not be bad management not 
to water the No. 1 main level? 
14435. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I object to that. It is only putting it in another way. 
14430. Mv. Lsjsaqht] I am using His Honor's expression. 
14437. His Honor.] No. I suggested that you should ask how he would have managed himself. 
14438. Mr. Lysciqht.] Well, I will put it that way. 
14439. Q. Since the disaster, would you, as Manager, water the No. 1 main level? A. Yes. 
14440. Q. Before the disaster, would you, as Manager, have watered the No. 1 main level? A. I could 
not say, really, what I would have done. I do not wish to pose as anything more than any ordinary 
human being, and, therefore, it is impossible for me to say what I would have done under the 
eircumstallces. 
14441. Q. With all your knowledge of the dangers of the coal-dust that was there --[Interrupted.] 
14442. Mv. Barry.] There is no evidence that coal-dust was there. "Assuming that coal-dust was 
there "—put in that form I do not object to it 14413. 
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14143. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Well, assuming that coal-dust was there, and with your knowledge of its dangers, 
do you mean to say that you would not have watered, as Manager? A. Well, I would probably have 
thought it necessary to have particular regard to the initiating causes of explosions, and to take precautions 
to prevent their starting; and that would be, in the case of shot-firing, if there were dry and dusty places, 
to water them; if I had had a knowledge of the possibility of a small explosion of fire-damp initiating an 
explosion, I would have thought it necessary, in good management., to use safety-lamps as a precaution 
against that contingency. 
14144. Q. And, if you thought there was a probability of a small fire-damp explosion, would not you also 
have considered it necessary to water the main No. 1 level? A. No ; I think the more important 
precaution is to adopt the use of safety-]amps, and thereby avert the possibility of the small gas 
explosion. 
14115. Q. Then, may I take it that, with the knowledge of the conditions at Mount Kembla before the 
disaster, in your opinion, there was no necessity to water the No. I main level P A. I do not think I have 
said so. 
11140. Q. Well then, I ask you that now ;—with your knowledge before the disaster of the conditions of 
Kemnbia Mine, in your opinion, was it unnecessary to water the No. 1 main level? A. Well, so long as 
the legal obligations were carried out, and precautions adopted to prevent the possibility of an explosion 
by shot or hr fire-damp, I do not know that I would have watered it. As I have said before, I cannot tell. 
11417. Mr. Robertson.] Q. In the wildest flights of yo'ar imaginatIon, could you have anticipated an 
explosion oecurrilig in the way this is suggested to have occurred P A. No, I could not., having regard to 
the large area of pillars that had been taken out previoul'. 
11418. Q. Assuming that the thcory is correct, of it having occurred by a fall driving out gas and air 
from the 4th light, which was ignited by a naked light in the main haulage road, is it riot absolutely 
unique in mining disasters? A. I have not been able to get a parallel case, certainly. 
1419. Mr. Lqsaqht.] Q. But, Mr. Atkinson, the dangers of the coal-dust would not be unique? A. Coal-
dust is only dangerous under certain specified conditions. 
14430. Q. I know that? A. It is perfectly harmless, except under certain conditions. 
14451. (9.  Now, leave out the legal obligation altogether, because I am speaking to you now as if you had 
been Manager, do you say, in your opinion, knowing the conditions of Kembla, it was not necessary to 
water the main level before the disaster? 
14452. A[r. Bairy.] I object to that question. I assume, for the purposes of this inquiry, that so long 
as the legal obligations cast upon the Kembla Mine were carried out, they were not bound, except morally, 
which, I submit, has nothing to do with this Court. lie is asked this question—If the legal obligations 
were carried out, would be not be disposed to do more? Of course, if it is looked at from the humanitarian 
point of view, it might be dmfferent ; but I submit that has nothing to do with this inquiry. 
14453. His Honor.] Legal obligations are certainly a very strong factor in determining a question of 
n'gligence ; but they are not absolutely the determining factor, even in civil actions. Perhaps you 
remember the case of an acc'dent to it train in which that question was considered by the Courts in 
England, and decided against your contention. That was a case in which it was held that it was quite 
right for a Jury, on the question of negligence, to considei' the fact that the Company had not adopted 
the communication system, even although, under the circumstances, the Company was riot bound, in law, 
to adopt the system, and, at the same time, it had been made compulsory, by law, under other conditions 
of running, to adopt it. \Vhat the Court said there was this: ''It is known that the inter-communication 
system is a great safeguard ; this Company knew it this Company might have adopted it ; under other 
circumstances this Company would have been compelled by law to adopt it ; this Company did not choose 
to adopt it, because it was not compelled by law to adoptit ; if it had been adopted, probably the 
accident would not have happened I leave it for the Jury to say whether, and how far, the non-adoption 
of the precaution affects their minds in relation to the question of negligence." There is no doubt that 
your contention is wrong. 
14154. Mr. Bruce Smith.] The same thing has occurred in the case of the emission of sparks from an 
engine; where there was a statutory requirement as to what should be used, they used it; and the 
distinction was between, practically, common-law negligence and statutory negligence. 
14455. JE[r Barry.] That is the point I take here. 
14-156. His honor.] There is no doubt, Mr. Barry,, that you can very well contend that, so long as the 
management complies with the law, that is a very strong argument in favour of the theory that the 
management is not guilty of negligence; but still you cannot contend from that position as a conclusive 
one. it is prima Jzcie evidence, and, as such, it has a great deal of weight; but it is not conclusive; and, 
therefore, Mr. Lysaght may ask the Commission, both as a matter ef law and as a matter of common-
sense, to consider whether the Company should not have gone beyond its legal obligation in certain 
respects. 
11157. Mr. Bruce Si.nit/z.] I was not joining Mr. Barry in his objection, because I thought the Com- m 
mission really went outside statutory blarneability. 
11158. His honor.] Of course it does. It goes to common-sense; statutes do not always come up to 
CO 11110 Ofl - sen se. - 
14459. Air. Barry.] I had in view that case in England ; but that was where a w'ell-estabhihed practice 
had not been carried out by this Company; but there is no such question here, forthe practice of watering 
mines is entirely apart from what is imposed upon them by law, either common law or statute law. 
14160. his Honor.] The only question is whether the Commission ought to exclude the evidence on the 
ground of that legal non-compulsion to adopt the pun which, Mr. Lysaght suggests, ought to have been 
adopted ; and what I have to hold, as a matter of law, as well as of common-sense, is that the Commission 
cannot exclude the evidence on that ground. 
14161 AIr. Bruce Sinit.lm.] 1 think there is a very complete answer to that contention, in this respect, 
that the Commission is asked, not only to find out who is to blame, but to make suggestions for the 
future management of mines ; and, therefore, it goes beyond the breaches of existing law, in order to 
ascertain what further provisions of law are required in future ; and, therefore, if this inquiry were to 
stop at the breaches of the present law, it would not reveal what provisions are required for the future. 
11162. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Knowing the conditions of the Kembla Mine before the disaster, would you 
not, as Manager, have watered the No. 1 main level? A. I cannot say whether I would or not. 
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14163. Q. Were there not, before the disaster, conditions of dust in the main level, which, any day, might 
lead to disaster ? 
14461. Mr. Barrq.1 Before that question can be asked, we ought to have the conditions, or to know if 
he knew the conditions, that were there. Mr. Lysaght's question assumes that certain conditions are 
there, which may be dangerous, without any evidence of it. I think it is a fair question to ask " What 
were the conditions ; what do you know of the conditions ?" " The conditions were so-and-so." " Then, 
as suming they were as you state, would it not be dangerous to allow them o remain without being 
watered ?" 
14165. His honor.] The question is perfectly permissible. 
11406. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. G-arlick might read the question again, pease. 
14107. Mr. Garlick then read the question as follows :-" Q. Were there not, before the disaster, con-
ditions of dust in the main level, which, any day, might lead to disaster 9" 
11168. Mr. Barry.] Mr. Atkinson has given evidence that he had not been in the mine for a considerable 
time. 
11469. His Honor.] That is another question. It does assume a little more than Mr. Atkinson's know-
ledge probably was, but still we cannot tell as to that until he answers the question. 
14170. Mr. Lrjsugirf.] (). What do you say, Mr. Atkinson, to that question? A. Well, I might say that 
1 had not been in that part of the mine for nine months before the disaster ; and I think that the 
conditions likely to lead to disaster, which would be either a shot fired, or a small explosion of fire-damp, 
or fire-damp mixed with coal-dust and air, were not likely to exist on that part of the road. 
14171. Q. Do not you know that the Manager has admitted that he never had the vicinity of a shot 
watered P 
11172. Mr. Barry.] That is a repetition of the same question that has been asked. 
11173. Mr. Lysag/et.] I am testing the answer, now. 
11174. His honor.] That has nothing to do with the question you have just asked, because there was no 
shot-firing in that part of the mine at all, in the main No. 1 level. 
11175. Mr. Lysaqlrt.] Q. The shot would not be required to be fired in the main engine road? A. Not 
usually. 
14176. Q. I mean that it would not be necessary for the shot to be fired in the main engine road to be a 
source of danger in the main level? A. If proper precautions were not taken when a shot was fired in 
the neighbourhood of dust, there would be a certain danger. 
11477. Q. Exactly; in any working place, if a shot were fired, and no proper precautions taken to water 
the dust, then that would be a source of danger to the No. 1 main level? A. In a dry and dusty place? 
14478. Mr. Lysaght.1 Exactly. 
14179. His Honor.] I might point out, Mr. Lysaght, that what we are on now is the suggestion of the 
possibility of a fall producing the effect which Mr. Atkinson believes was produced by a fall; and the 
result, in relation to that, of not having kept down the dust which the blast of that fall was supposed to 
have raised, Now, this has got nothing to do with the shot-firing at all. You see it is confusing 
matters to go off into shots. 
14180. Mr. Lysay/it.] But Mr. Atkinson's answer led rue away on that matter; he introduced it. 
14481.. lIft Bruce Smith.] Only because he said there was a rule which required them to water dry and 
dusty places. 
14182. Mr. Lysaglit.] Q. Now, getting to that fail in the goaf raising the cloud of dust, I will ask you, 
finally, would you not, before the disaster, as a Manager, have watered that No. 1 main level? A. In 
view of the possibility of a fall ? 
11483. Q. There was that possibility there? A. Well, I say, is that to be attached to your question, "In 
view of the possibility of a fall?" 
14181. Q. I will attach it, as well as any other danger that might be there. The fall was anticipated; and 
I may attach that as well as any other source of danger that might be there. Would iou, as Manager, 
have watered the No. 1 main level? 
14485. lift. Bruce Smith.] Do you mean with the knowledge he has? 
11180. lift. Lysaght.] Yes. 
14487. A. I can only say, as I said before, that I cannot say whether I would or not. 
14188. Q. Do you remember telling me, at pam. 1:3702 of the evidence, "The additional knowledge conveyed 
by the explosion alters the case "; and, at pam. 137071  "TIre effect of the explosion has brought the 
matter so keenly before everyone in the mining community, and before everyone associated with mining "; 
and you gave that as the reason why it was not negligence before the disaster, where it would be 
negligence after the disaster ? 
141St). AIr. Bruce Smith.] But, what is the question ? 
1149l. AIr, Lysa,q/rt.] Q. Do you remember that? A. I remember the references, which you are reading. 
14491. Q. But you have answered inc that, where it would be negligence after the disaster, it would not 
be negligence before the disaster not to have watered, because the disaster had brought the dangers 
keenly before all mining people; and the disaster had altered the case? A. Yes I think I remember 
that. 
11192. Q. Now, that is a fair summary of the reasons you say might have actuated you, or even the 
management, as far as you could judge? A. Yes, I think so. 
14193. Q. Well then, you have already told me that the dangers of coal-dust were pointed out in the 
ordinary mining text-books P A. Yes, I think we have had that before. 
1149-1.. Q. And it is also a fact that, as far back as 1889, the dangers of coal-dust were thoroughly gone 
into and published in this work by Abel? A. Well, they were gone into to a certain extent. 
11105. Q. By Abel ; and the result of his investigations was published? A. Yes. 
1-1190. Q. The dangers of coal-dust were also emphasised in your own annual reports before the disaster? 
A. Yes. 
14197. Q. And, do you remember reading this passage in the report of the Bulli Colliery accident, made 
by the Bulli Colliery Explosion Commission, at page 16 

While some authorities are of opinion that coal-dust, in a certain minute state of division, or fineness, may, of 
itself, explode and produce all the direful effects of an ordinary explosion, and that, in point of fact, some of the more 
recent explosions in Britain have been attributable to (lust alone, it has, without any doubt, been proved that the presence 
in the atmosphere of a mine of quantities of finely-dived coal-dust with gas, intensifies the effect which would otherwise 
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follow from an explosion of gas alone. The presence of a dust-ladea atmosphere increases the intensity and effects of an 
explosion. By its aid the length and intensity of flame is increased. The flame of an explosion that otherwise would be 
confined to a limited area may, by the presence of dust in the atmosphere, be prolonged, or projected, or carried to distant 
localities, and ignite accumulations of gas in those localities. The enormous surface presented by coal in a minute state of 
division (dust) to the action of flame induces instantaneous combustion, and the production of gases inimical to animal life. 
By distillation, gas itself may be produced which, on the recoil of the first explosion, may be ignited, and so increase the 
effects originally produced. An explosion of gas in a dusty mine is generally productive of results more disastrous than 
an explosion of gas in a mine where no dust exists. The terrific effects of some explosions, where a very small quantity of 
gas could have existed, is thus explained. We are of the opinion that the explosion at Bulli Colliery is one of the mcst 
notable instances of this on record. 

Do you remember reading that passage? A. Yes, I think I have read that. 
1 14.98. Q. Do you know that that was published as far back as 1887 P A. Yes, I think that is the year. 
1499. Q. Now, in view of that information, and the conclusions drawn by a Commission concerning an 
explosion in the same district, and in the same seam, do you say that it was not keenly enough before all 
mining people before? 
14500. Mr. Bars'q.] Q. What was keenly before them, the report? 
14501. Mr. Ly.saqhtj The dangers of coal-dust. 
14502. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor sees this, that, after reading  that paragraph, Mr. Lysagh t asks the 
witness: "Will you now say that this question of the danger of coal-dust was not keenly enough before 
all the mining community"? Well, that is for the Commission to say. 
14503. his Honor.] All that Mr. Lysaght can ask of Mr. Atkinson is the state of literature on the 
subject; and that is hardly a question there is any doubt on. 
11504. Mr. Lysaght.] But, Your Honor will pardon me, that is a reason that Mr. Atkinson gives that ho 
would not water the mine, He says " The effect of the explosion has brought the matter so keenly before 
everyone in the mining community, and before everyone associated with mining" ; and that is in answer to 
my question-" Why should it be negligence not to water now, and not negligence not to water before the 
disaster F' That is the reason lie gives. Then I am showing that it was keenly before the mining public 
by the report in 1887 of the Bulli explosion, and that it was emphasised ; and therefore I am putting it 
to Mr. Atkinson-is not hs reason an absolutely unsound one P 
14305. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Surely that is a matter of comment, Your Honor. 
1 4506. Mr. Lysught ] Q. Well then, do you want to give any other reason besides what you have given, 
that the matter was not keenly before mining people, and that the explosion alters the ease P A. Well, 
I might say that, if it had been thought of very keenly by the mining community, the Legislature would 
probably have dealt with it in their 1896 Act in a different way. 
14507. Q. Is that the only answer? A. It is the only one that strikes me at the moment. 
11308. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You mean the 1896 Act brought no reform as the result of that report? 
14509. Mr. Lysaqhuf.] It did. 
14510. AIr. Bruce Smith.] But not in the direction that you are suggesting now. 
11511. Mr. Lys'ight.] But in some points. 
14512. Mr. Bruce Smith ] Yes, in other directions. 
14513. ALe. L.iisaght.] Q. Do you know that the Bulli Commission also found-" That the explosion was 
intensified, and the force increased, and transmitted to distant parts of the district, by the presence in the 
atmosphere of the mine of coal-dust in a minute state of division" P A. Yes, I have read that passage. 
11514. Q. And have you read also that, "In event of gas being present in air where dust in minute 
divisions floated, a very serious explosion might, by this means, be the result. Indeed, in sonic of the most 
disastrous of recent explosions in Great Britain, it is doubtful whether the most active agent was not 
coal-dust alone"? A. Yes, I have read that too, 
14515. Mr. Bruce Smith.] They are more sure than the Chamberlain Commission. 
1451.6). Mr, Ly.s.aght.] Q. And do you know that one of the recommendations of the Bulli Commission 
was-" Where dust exists in quantity and under conditions favourable for ignition, it should be periodically 
and efficiently damped by water"? A. Yes ; I have read that too. 
14517. Q. Well now, I want to know, as you knew that Kembla was not being periodically and sufficiently 
damped by water, and as you knew there were no appliances at Kembla to water the sides or roof at all, 
why did not you not make some suggestion to avoid the danger that might be there? 
14518. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Do not answer that. Now, Your honor sees the objection to that question. 
If Mr. Atkinson gdve an answer to that question, he would appear, from the evidence, to be admitting 
that he did know all those things, of which my friend says " as you knew." I object to it. I do not mind 
Mr. Lysaght saying " Assuming you knew, then why P ' but not " As you knew," because the simplest 
answer to that would practically admit, on the evidence as it would be ultimately printed, that be did 
know it. 
11519. His Ho-nor.] It comes of making a question too comprehensive, Mr. Lysaght. I have called your 
attention to that before. 
14520. AIr. Bruce Smith.] T know it is done with the idea of condensing; but my friend puts two, and 
sometimes three, questions in one. 
14321. Mr. Lysaght.] I will put it seriatim. 
11322, Q. Did you know there were no appliances at Kembla to water the sides or roof? A. Yes. 
11-523. Q. Did you know that the only watering that was done there was with a tub with one hole in the 
bottom of it? A. Well, I know that the only watering that was done was on the floor ; I do not know 
whether there was one hole or more. 
11524. Q. And did not you also know that the appliance for watering the floor was inadequate? A. Well 
I cannot tell whether 1 knew that or not. 
14523. Q. But you have told inc since, you know, that it was inadequate? A. Yes. 
11526. Q. You cannot say whether you did know it was inadequate? 
11527. Mr. Bruce Smith.] That was only revealed by the Inquest. 
11528. Mr. Lysa,q/mt.] Q. . You cannot say now whether you know it was inadequate? 
14520. 211r. Bruce Smith.] For floor purposis. 
14510. Mr. Lysa,qht,] Q. You cannot say now whether you knew at that time that it was inadequate to 
water the floor?- A. I could not say whether I knew it or not, 
1 1331. Q. Di you ever inquire? A. I do not remember about that. I knew that there were some water-
tubs in the pit, which let the water out at the bottom ; but I am not aware that I saw them at work ; and 
thereforo I could not judge as to whether the water was adequately spread over the road. 14532. 
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14532. Q. Now, with the exception of your letter to the Manager, three or four months before the 
disaster, what did you ever do to see that the dangers from coal-dust were obviated in Kembla? A. I am 
not aware that I did anything. 
14533. Q. Did you send sprays? A. I did not send sprays to Kembla; but I sent them to several 
collieries, and asked them to use them. 
14534. Mr. L,ysaght.] Then, although you had this report of the explosion at Bulli, caused, in a great 
measure, by dust, and although the dangers were p )inted out there, you admit you did nothing for 
fourteen years to obviate the dangers of dust at Kembla? A. No, I do not admit anything of the sort. 
14535. Mr. Bruce Smith.] He has only been here six years. 
14536. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Then you did nothing for six years P A. I was not here even six years. 
14537. Q. How long were you here, before you sent that letter, three months before the disaster: how 
long have you been Chief Inspector P A. Five years last September. 
11538. (In compliance with a request by Mr. Bruce Smith, Mr. G-arlick read Mr. Lysaght's question, as 
under) :—"Then, although you had this report of the explosion at Bulli, caused, in a great measure, by 
dust, and although the dangers were pointed out there, you admit you did nothing for fourteen years to 
obviate the dangers of dust at Kembla"? 
14539. Mr. Lysaght.] Make it five years. 
14540. Air. Barry.] I object to that question—the dangers of dust. We do not admit yet there were 
any dangers of dust there. "If there were any dangers there, did you do anything to obviate the dangers 
of dust ?"—that is the way it should be put. 
1151l. Air, Bruce Smith.] I object to it in another way. There is an assumption here that Mr. Atkinson, 
who has got the general supervision of about 150 coal mines [Inlercuptcslj 
14512. Witness.] About 100. 
14.543. Mr. Bruce Smith.] There is an assumption here that he was to do something. I think there was 
an assumption that it is a part of the duty, not merely of the Inspector, but of the Chief Inspector in 
New South Wales, to practically manage these mines. He cannot do that. Your Honor sees the form 
of that question. If that were to go forth, it would seem like an admission by Mr. Atkinson that it was 
his duty to do something in a particular mine to obviate a possible explosion. It is not his duty to do 
anything. It is merely his duty to see that the Manager does what the law imposes upon him; and 
Mr. Atkinson has already said that he cannot say there was any breach of the existing law; and he has 
already pointed out, in the previous part of his evidence, that some of the things Mr. Lysaght has 
suggested were quite outside his power to compel the management to do: and I do submit that a high 
ocial like Mr. Atkinson should not have put to him a question which, whatever answer lie gives, would 
make it appear that he admits that it was his duty to do something. It is not his duty to do it at all. 
14511. His Honor.] It is quite open to Mr. Atkinson to repudiate that duty. It is quite open to him to 
explain away the presumed or suggested duty; but, at the same time, there is nothing to present the 
question being put in that form; although it might be contended that too much is being suggested as 
incumbent upon Mr. Atkinson. At the same time it is clearly incumbent upon him, if he does know that 
something is going wrong in a mine, whether it is a matter which he has power to set right or not, to try 
his best to stop it. If something very obviously dange rous were being done, for instance, if a mine were 
being lit by gasoline, which was handled about by all the miners, in a general, promiscuous, manner, 
Mr. Atkinson would certainly consider himself bound to say something, I presume. 
14545. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Your Honor will understand that I amnot at all attempting to minimise the 
responsibilities of the Chief Inspector. All I say is that a question is being put to him in such a form 
that, whichever way he answers it, he will seem to admit that there was a duty upon him to do something, 
as distinguished from seeing that other people did it. Mr. Atkinson is here as a scientist, in order to 
express his opinion on certain questions. I think, if Mr. Atkinson knows now, from Your Honor, that he 
is at liberty, himself, to take exception to the form of the question, he is quite capable. 
14546. His Honor.] low is the Court to assume that Mr. Lysaght is not now intending to suggest that 
one of the authorities to blame might be the Department of Mines? Mr. Lysaght has a perfect right to 
raise that question on the issues : he might even go so far as to say "I have no fault to find with the 
management ; but I have fault to find with the Department." If he suggests that to the Commission, 
they cannot stop the suggestion. 
14547. Mr. Bruce Smith.] No, but Mr. Lvsaght suggests to Mr. Atkinson " You did nothing," not "You 
did ndthing that you had power to do." I would not mind that at all ; because Mr. Atkinson has a very 
easy answer. Mr. Atkinson explained three or four days ago that he had the right to require the 
management to water dry and dusty places before they fire shots; " but," he said, "there my power 
ended." But, if Mr. Lysaght has permission to put this question, he should be required to put it in this 
way—"But you did nothing that you had power to do?"  or " You empowered nothing that you had 
power to empower, for preventing it ?" - 
14518. His Honor.] That is on the same principle that I alluded to before. I do not think that this 
Court is limited to the question whether Mr. Atkinson was acting strictly within his legal powers or not; 
and I do not think the Department could justify its action by saying that it complied entirely with the 
law if, say, for the sake of argument, the Department had merely permitted some, not illegal, but 
obviously dangerous, practice. It could not shelter itself then any more than the management could—
nobody could shelter himself —under that suggestion. The management could not and the Department 
could not. If some new practice were adopted—I have suggested, for instance, the use of gasoline in a 
haphazard or happy-go-lucky way—oh, well, of course, the Department would try to put its foot down 
on that, and properly so, and would be bound to do so. 
14549. Mr. Barry.] My reason for objecting to that was to protect the interests of the Kembla Colliery. 
I object to this question put by Mr. Lysaght, "To obviate the dangers of coal-dust in Mount Kembla 
Coal-mine." I submit that is not a fair way to put the question, or to have it on the depositions. I do 
not wish to abbreviate or cut down the responsibilities of the management; but it is assuming that there 
were dangers in that coal-mine. So far as Mr. Atkinson's duties are concerned, of course, that is a 
matter that Mr. Bruce Smith may take up: but I submit that, before the Chief Inspector can be asked 
whether he took steps to prevent the dangers, we have the right to ask, and the Court has a right to have, 
some evidence that the dangers were there. 
14550. His Honor.] As far as that is concerned, Mr. Atkinson's own evidence assumes that coal-dust 
was a factor in producing this very explosion, rightly or wrongly; and, rightly or wrongly, it is assumed 
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that that factor ought to have been contemplated beforehand. Now, Mr. Lysaght says that is the very 
point he is arguing. The suggestion is that it ought to have been contemplated before. It is a question 
for the Commission whether it ought to have, or ought not to have, been contemplated before, and 
provided against. The Commission cannot shut out evidence that that is so. 
14551. Mr. Barry.] I do not desire to shut it out, if it is put in a different way. 
14552. Afr. Bruce Smith.] The Commission will not look to the Chief Inspector to interfere with the 
management of an ind.ustry beyond the point at which the Legislature has said that it is his duty to do 
it, and beyond the point at which be has power to do it; because, if Mr. Atkinson were to take u a sort 
of paternal position with regard to all these mines, and to say, "I have only the power to do so-and-so 
but I require you to do so-and-so in addition to that which is required by the Act and Regulations," and 
to interfere in many other ways beyond the limits which have been laid down by the Legislature, the very 
first people to turn round would be the Mine Managers; and they would say, "Are you going to manage 
the mines, or are we going to manage them? You are there with certain very limited powers." 
14553. His honor.] I think the Commission have already decided that point. It is a very strong 
argument in favour of the theory that the Department has done its duty, that the Department has 
enforced everything which the law enables it to enforce; but that does not necessarily include the whole 
moral duty of the Department to the community; and if invention, for instance, goes suddenly a long 
way ahead of legislation, there is clearly,  a duty thrown on the Department, holding the position which it 
does of overlooking the proper management of mines, to guard against the dangerous application of new 
inventions which have not yet been dealt with by any legislation. There are many instances of that. 
14554. Mr. Bruce Soil/it.] I quite admit it; but your Honor must not lose sight of this fact, that this 
report is fourteen years ago, that the Legislature has demilt with the whole of the mine management only 
sir years ago, and that the regulation [Interrupted.] 
14555. His Honor,] After all--I do not wish to interrupt you—but all these are questions of degree. 
The y are not questions of principle. On principle we cannot stop Mr. Lysaght. Even if we did disagree 
with him—I will not say that we do—we could not stop him if he makes suggestions, even though those 
suggestions may be apparently unfounded. 
14556. At Mr. Bruce Smith's request, Mr. G-arlick again read the question, as follows :-' Then, although 
you had this report of the explosion at Bulli, caused, in a great measure, by dust, and although the 
dangers were pointed out there, you admit you did nothing for five years to obviate the dangers cf dust 
at Keinbla?" 
14557. A. Well, I called the attention of the Manager to observe General Rule 8, in regard to the use of 
safety-lamps, and also General Rule 12, in regard to the blasting. I was not aware myself of any report 
of -is having been made in the mine since my arrival ; and I think that the explosion which has occurred, 
in my opinion, in the way indicated, c uld not reasonably have been anticipated. 
14558. Mr. Ltjsagitt.] Q. Do you remember stat ing at the inquest, p. 60, "The proof of the explosion is 
the best evidence as to whether such conditions were dangerous, once an explosion was started" P 
A.Ycs. 
14550. Q. And the "such conditions" referred to were that there was a sufficient quantity of coal-dust in 
the 4th Right to have carried it some considerable distance? 
14560. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Do not answer that for a moment till I see whetaer the two things are 
Con nectect. 
14561. Mr. Lysaqht.] It goes on this way: "I think that the 4th Left rope road was about as dusty a 
piece of road as 1 saw ; and, once the explosion was initiated, there was, I think, sufficient dust to carry 
the explosion along for a considerable distance ; I think that the proof of. the explosion is the best 
evidence as to whether such conditions were dangerous, once an explosion was started I think that the 
explosion has been carried on by coal-dust after it was initiated." 
14502. Mr.. Bruce Smith.] " Once an explosion was started." 
14503. Mr. Lysaqht.] Yes, of conrse. 
14504 Q. Now, then, it bcing clear that the dangerous conditions were there, I ask again, -,Nith the 
exception of your two letters to the Manager, did you do anything to obviate those dangerous coiditions ? 
A. I did nothing beyond that, ant calling his attention to the danger of the dust. 
14565. Q. That is in the letters P A. Yes. 
11560. Q. Now, I am gong to take you to these two letters, to show what you really did do. In your 
letter of the 13th of May, 1S98, you say :— 

lieferring to my visit to the Mount Keinlila Colliery on the I Ith instant, and our conversai 0 on several matters, 
amongst which were— 

I. Old Davy lamps now used by deputies, bAng considered as out of dale and illegal under General Rule 9, should be 
replaced by another type of safety-lamp. 

Do you know whether those old Davy lamps were replaced P A. \\Tell,  I know that I wrote to the 
Inspector, calling his attention to it, and asking him to let mc know if it was not done; and, getting ito 
reply in the affirmative, I presumed that the matter had. been attended to. 
11507. Q. Do not you know that Mr. Rogers admitted that certain lamps were sent doon by 
Dr. Robertson, and had never been used? A. I think I heald that. 
14568. Q. Were not those the lamps sent down to replace the old Davys' P A. I do not know that. 
11569. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Now Your Honor sees how my friend goes from what took place at the inquest, 
or, rather, from what Mr. Atkinson had done prior to the csplcsion, to what Mr. Rogers, the Manager, 
admitted at the inquest; What connection is there P 
1456912 . Mr. Lysaght.] One moment. 
14570. Q. Did you ascertain whether the old Davy lamps, which you said were illegal, had been replaced—
yes or no? A. I cannot answer it ''yes" or " no." I wrote to the District Inspector after the visiC, 
pointing out to him what I had suggested, and asking him if lie would let inc know ; and, therefore, I 
prcsmimed that it had been attended to. 
14571. Q. And you never bothered to make any further inquiry from him P A. No, I do not think I did. 
14572. Mr. Bruce Sail/li.] Now Your Honor sees—" you never bothered "- that is not fair. 
14573. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Who was the Inspector then P A. Mr. Rowan. 
14574. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Do not you see how unfair it is—" you never bothered" ; and then the witne s 
gives an answer, and it looks as if it were tco much trouble. 
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14575. His Honor.] The question and answer go down separately, Mr. Bruce Smith. 
14576. Mr. Bruce Smitlij They do here, but not in the Press. 
14577. His Honor.] It is impossible to say what will go into the Press. 
11578. Mr. Robertson.] I do not see that it helps the matter to put the question offensiveiy. 
11579. Mr. Lysoqht.] It was not my intention to put the question offensive]y, 
145S0. His Honor.] Mr. Lysaght, we must try, on this inquiry at any rate, to eliminate all police court 
practice. 
14581. 3.fr, Bruce Smith.] it is a scientific inquiry, and it should be a scientific atmosphere ; and it stirs 
up my nii prius mood when I hear questions like this. 
14582. Mr. Barry.] I have read this; Mr. Lysaght has not put the whole of the evidence or answer to 
the Coroner's question as to those safety-lamps by Mr. Rogers. 
14583. Mr. Li,'suylit.] What page is this P 
11.584. Mr. Barry.] Page 41 (Inquest) (reaa'inq): "I suppose, if safety-lamps were used, the expense would 
thAi on the Conipany. The Company supplied the dozen or eighteen safety-lamps which we had before 
the disaster; they had not been used; they were sent up by Dr. Robertson, and I was surprised to see 
them, because we did not require them." lie asks Mr. Atkinson, "Did you not hear Mr. Rogers say 
that the lamps were sent there, but were never used I? 

1 15S5. Mr. Robertson.] The question is, were they supposed io be identical with the lamps to replace the 
Davy lamps. I think, as far as I can see, these were lamps sent up for another purpose altogether. 
145S0. Mr. Barry.] That is so. 
14587. Mv. Bruce Smith.] And it must not be forgotten that Mr. Atkinson had no power to order them 
to use a safety-lamp at all. 
14588. Jlh. Lysaglit.] Except a proper safety-lamp for examining for gas. 
145S9. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Only then,if gas had been found within twelve months before. 
11590. AIr. Robertson.] He has no power to order safety-lamps. 
14591. AIr. I.ysaqlit.] Q. If you had no power to order safety-lamps, what did you mean by saying that 
the old Davy lamps were out of date and illegal ;-in what respect were they illegal ? A. Well, I might 
say that the Royal Commission on Accidents in Mines, which published its final report in 1880, spoke 
with reference to the old Davy, Clanny, and Stevenson, lamps, and recoinuiended that they should not be 
used in currents of high velocity and inflammable, unless protected by a shield. 
14592. AIr. Robertson.] Q. Is it not provided for by General Rule 0 P A. Yes. 
11593. Q. " They shall be so constructed that they may be safely carried against the air current ordinarily 
prevailing in that part of the mine" P A. Yes ; that is the rule which refers to this. 
14594. Q. And those safety-lamps, I take it, did not comply with this provision? A. I think that was 
understood. 
14505. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is, supposing that they are under an obligation to use a safety.lamp 
at all. But they were not in this mine, beaause gas had no been found for twelve months before. 
14590. Air. RobrIt./on.] But, if they use safety-lamps at all 
14597. AIr. Bruce Smith.] They were not rcqured to use them by law. 
14598. AIr. Robertson.] 'l'lie law say.,!, " Vherever safety-lamp are used"; so evidently the deputies were 
using safety-lamps which were not in accordance with Rule 0. 
14599. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Then I quite see why he said ' illegal." 
14600. Air. Lysaqli/.] Q. If a mine is using sifetr-Iam1u, is it not clear that thv have got to use approved 
safety-lamps? A. Yes. 
11601. Q. And, that being so, I want to know whether you ascer[ained whether they were using legal 
safety-lamps? A. Well, I cannot add anything to what. I have already said in regard to that. 
14602. Q. Now, General Rule 4 is as to reports being made at the station,and before each shift commences, 
whether day or night ;-do you know whether that rule was carried out? A. Yes ; the re?orts were 
made, and, so far as I was able to ascertain, were made in accordance with the law. 
11603. Q. Then you put at the bottom of your letter, "I shall be pleased to hear from you on these 
matters." Did you hear from the management on those matters P A. Only indirectly. 
14604. Q. You did not get any letter? A. N  o. 
14605. Q. And I do not think you got any answer from Mr. Rogers to that letter of the 30th April, 1902? 
A. No; I do not think there was. 
14606. Q. You did not ask for any reply? A. No I did not ask for any reply. 
14607. Q. Now, you heard Mr. Rogers say, and the officials admit, that the examination of the t'asto had 
only been made once a month for some years. 
14608. 2lfr. Bruce Semi/li.] Did they say so? 
14609. Mr. Barry.] No; they did not say that. 
14910. Air. Ltsaq/mt.J Q. Do you remember how long the examination of the waste-for what geriod of 
time the examination of the waste-had only been made every month ? A. I do not remember what the 
evidence said. 
14611. Air. Robertson.] Q. Can you say how long the special rules were in force requiring that to be done? 
A. Since about the beginning of 1897, 1 should think. 
14612. Q. Was the sa1ne rule in force at oilier collieries? A. At some other collieries, Yes. 
14613. Q. I take it that the examination of a waste weekly or monthly would date from the special rul 
being enforced? A. Yes; I take it so. 
14614. Mr. Lysa-qlmt.] Q. But you do know this: that Mr. Rogers stated, "If I had thought there was 
any occasion for it, it would have been practicable to have the waste workings inspected once a week, and 
I was aware of Rule 10 in the Special Rules." 
14915. .ilLr. Bruce Smith.] In the rules, the word " practicable " occurs as to the examination, not as to 
the frequency. 
1461.5*. Air. Ly.caght.] I know that. 
14616. Q. And then be says that it was only made once a month, and that it had been going on for some 
time. Now, I want to know, inasmuch as there was there a direct breach of rules, how is it that you, o 
your Inspector, did not discover it? 
14617. Mr. Bruce Smith.] lie will answer for himself, but n't for his Inspector. 
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14618. Mr. Lysoglit.i Q. Perhaps you will answer for yourself first? A. Well, the Inspector's reports, 
from time to time, pointed, out that the Act was being complied with, and I was, therefore, unable, from 
that, to assume that the waste workings were not being inspected as required by the rule. 
14019. Q. About how often did you, yourself, go to Kembla Colliery? A. I think 1 was there once in 

each year before the accident. 
1462). Q. Did you, on any of those occasions, look at the report book to see when these things were being 
examined? A. Well, I generally looked at the report book under General Rule 4 ; but I may have 
omitted to look at the waste workings report book. 
14621. Q. Was it not equally important to look at the waste workings repmt book as at the other report 
book? A. No, I do not think so: but I was assured that the reports were kept in accordance with the 
rules. 
11622. Q. You know now that the assurance was altogether wrong, do you not? A. Yes, I do. 
11623. Q. And do I understand that you never looked, at the waste report book ? A. I do not remember 
havina done so. o 
11621. Q. Now, had you looked at the waste report book, it would have shown, on the face of it, that the 
examination was only being made once a mouth, would it not P 
11625. Mr. Bruce Sinifli.] how does he know that ? 
14026. Mr. Lysaqbt.l He saw it in Court here. 
14027. A. I suppose it would. 
14628. Q. Then is it not clear that if your subinspector had lookel at the waste report book any time he 
would have seen that it was only being made once a month ? A. Yes. 
1 1629. Q. In your opinion, was not your Inspector to blame for not looking at that waste report book? 

Q. Yes, 1 think he was. 
11630. Mr. Robertson.] Q. He might have looked at it, or you might have looked at it, and not have 
noticed that the examination was made monthly, instead of weekly ? A. I might have done so. 

14631. M r. Lysoqist.] I think, Mr. Robertson, the words (of the report) are " The monthly examination." 
11632. Mr. Robertson ] Quite so but I say he may have looked at it, but not have observed that the 
examination was being made monthly. 
14633. Mr. Lysay/it.] I think the book itself said " The monthly examination was this day made." - 
14634. Mr. Robertson.] But are you quite sure? Thit would be rather an unusual way to put it. 
146:35. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Now I take it that that is clear, that for part of the time Mr. Rowan was 
Inspector, and part of the time Mr. Bates was Inspector when the examination of the waste was made 
only monthly? A. Yes. 
14630. Q. But both of those Inspectors failed to report what was a violation of the rule? A. Yes. 

11637. Q. Do you then say that both those Inspector,-, in your opinion, were to blame for not discovering 
and reporting that violation? A. Yes. 
1 10:33. Q. But you consider that you were not to blame because you had their general assurance that the 
rules were being carried out? A. 'l'hat is so. 
14039. Q. And you did not verify that assurance yourself, so far as the waste report was concerned ? 
A. I did not. 
14010. 111r Bruce Smith.] He did not verify the Inspector's report of his duties by doing the Inspector's 
work himself. 
14011. Mr. Lyso'qht.] That is a question to be considered hereafter, as to whether it was not part of his 
duties to inspect the books when he went to the Colliery. 
140.12. Q. You might tell me, Mr. Atkinson, throughout the conduct of your office, have you considered 
yourself absolutely bound not to make suggestions beyond what the law empowers you to enforce? 
A. Well, it is a question covering such a very wide range that it is impossible to answer it "yes " or 
"no." If Mr. Lysaght could bring it within narrower limits, and specify any particular thing, perhaps I 
should be better able to answer it. 
14013. Q. At this moment, do you consider yourself bound not to make suggestions, unless you can 
enforce those suggestions by law ? A. Suggestions in regard to safety ? 
140[4. Q. Suggestions in regard to anything? 
146 .5. Mr. Bruce Snmitls.] In the management of mines, you mean. 
14610. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Anything. In regard to the duties of your office and the scope of those duties? 
A. I think I might make suggestions, so long as the)-  are within reasonable limits. 
1101. Q. Whether there was a power, in you, to enforce them by law, or not? A. Yes. 
11618. Q. And, as a matter of fact, you hive frequently made such suggestions, although you could not 
enforce them by law ? A. Yes. 
14619. Q. So that there is nothing in this suggestion of Mr. Bruce Smith's that you could not make 
suggestions, or would not make suggestions, because you could not enforce them by law P 
14650. .Me. Bruce Smith.] I never made any such suggestion. I said that, if he were constantly inter-
fering with the management of time mnnes, beyond the point to which he is empowered by law, the 
management of the mines would be the first to turn round, and refuse to permit such interference. 
11651. ALe. Ritchie.] But should that influence him P 
14652. Mr. Bruce Smith.] No ; and it has not, within reasonable limits. 
14653. Mr. Lysaglmt.j Q. Was it not reasonable for you to suggest something in regard to watering? 
A. I did suggest something in regard to watering in Kembla. 
14651. Q. But, beyond what you did suggest, only in 1202, was it not reasonable for you to suggest 
something else in regard to watering in Kembla? A. Well, if I had anticipated any serious accident, I 
think, certaimily, it was. 
14655. Q. But without anicipa1ing any serious accident? A. Well, that matter of coal-dust is specially 
dealt with in the General Rules ; and 1 do not see that it was my duty to go beyond the - 
[Interrupted]. 
14656. Q. 1 do not say that. But you have just told me yourself that you did not feel yourself confined 
within those duties, and you would make suggestions outside them; and I ask you, on that, why you did 
not make sonic suggestions regarding time watering of Kenihia Mine? A. Well, I felt that I had done all 
that it was my duty to do in the matter. 
14657. Q. But, now, is it not a fact that you did think it was your duty to send sprays to some mines P 
A. Well, I do not know that it was my duty ; but I dd it. 14058. 
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14058. .1iLr. Bruce Sinitit] It is not his duty to spend State money to send down machinery. 
14659. A[,. L?/saght ] Q. Did you send sprays? A. To some collieries, yes. 
14660. Q.  Sprays purchased by the State P A. Yes. 
14601. Q. Did you send any to the South Coast district? A. Yes. 
14662. Q. To all the collieries? A. To the Metropolitan and Bulli, I think. We have it on the papers. 
146k'3. (I. Only those two? A. I am not very sure. We could ascertain from the papers. 
11661. Q. Dii not you send some to Mount Pleasant? A. I do not remember. 
14665. AIr. Robertson.] Q. May I ask whether the object of sending those sprays was to test their 
eciency? A. Ves, that was one of the objects, certainly. 
14066. AIr. Lisa qbt.] Q. But what was the main object: was it not to have the place watered? A. To 
bring the matter before the Colliery Managers' attention ; to bring these sprays before the notice of the 
Colliery Managers. 
11067. Q. I understand the spray was sent down for the watering of the mine P 
ibis. AIr. Bruce Smith.] How ridiculous-one spray to water 25 miles. 
llOO). Mr. Lysaq/st.] Q. To indicate how a mine could be watered with sprays-is not that why it was 
sent down? A. It was sent in order that they might be tested ; and in order that they might be brought 
before the attention of the Managers. 
1 167). Q. Now, when was that? A. Two or three years ago, I think. 
14971. Q. So that, at that time, you recognised the necessity of the use of sprays in the South Coast 
mines? A. I do not say that that follows from the fact that 1 sent the sprays for them to test. 
1 1972. Q. Do you recognise that it would be an advisable precaution to take? A. Yes. 
111373. (1. And, although you recognised that, from two to three years ago, you never bothered to suggest 
-I beg pardon : you never did suggest-to the Kembla management that any part of their mine vanted 
spraying? A. I do not remember having done so. 
14674. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did not you send one to Mr. Rogers? A. No, I do not think so. 
11675. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I thought Mr. Rogers admitted that he had had one. 
14676. Air Barry.] lie never saw it. 
14677. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Now, in your letter to Mr. Rogers of the 30th April, you say this: " having 
regard, therefore, to the fact that large colliery explosions are sometimes produced by blasting, and 
propagated by means of coal-dust alone, it is necessary, in the event of blasting taking place in your 
colliery in dry and dusty places, that the requirements of General Rule 12, section 47, Coal Mines 
Regulation Act, should be strictly complied with, and the vicinity of the shot thoroughly watered, as 
required by that Rule." You see those words " propagated by means of coal-dust alone "P A. Yes. 
11678. Q. That was a notice to the Manager at Kembla of the dangers of coal-dust explosions, three 
months before the disaster, "propagated by coal-dust alone "-you see that, do you not? A. Yes. 
14679. Q. There was a direct notice from you to the Manager of Kembla of the dangers of an explosion 
being propagated through coal-dust alone? 
14680. ALr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That was a circular that went to all the collieries? A. Yes. 
11681. Mr. Lysaglit.] Q. But it goes to Kembla. I am binding it down to Kembla at present: so that 
the excuse that the disaster altered the case, and that it was not keenly before the public before the 
disaster, does not apply to the Manager of Kembla? 
11682. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I object to that. That goes to Recommendation No. 20, which the Commission 
have cut out. 
11683. Mr. Lynsqht.] Q. Coining to these inspections being confined to places that were working-
Morrison's admission that places not being worked were not inspected by him-would an inspection of 
the report book by the Inspector have discovered that these places were not being inspected? 
14681. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I object to the form of that question. Ask whether the book would have 
revealed it. 
14685. Mr. Lm1isaght.] Would an inspection of the book by the Inspector have revealed-- [Interrupted.] 
14686. Mr. Bruce Smith.] That depends on the Inspector. He may be blind. Ask whether the book 
would reveal it. 
1 168 7. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Would the book reveal it? A. No. 
14683. Q. The book, on the face of it, I think, would seem to show that every face was being inspected? 
A. Let me understand which book you refer to. 
14689. Q. The Daily Report Book, by the deputy? A. That is, the inspection before commencing work. 
11090. (3. The inspection before commencing work. I think that shows " We examined the working 
places"? A. I do not know the words. 
14691. Q. I will have to leave that until we get the book? A. But, if the words are in accordance with 
General Rule 4, it will say " The places that are working, or that the workmen will pass." 
14692. Q. it is clear that those places, although places that were not being worked, being places that 
would be passed by the workmen, Special Rule 9 required them to be examined? A. Do you refer to 
General Rule 4, or to the Special Rule? 
14603. (3. The Special Rule 9-" He shall also make a true report of, and enter and sign daily, in a book 
kept at the appointed office for the purpose, the state of the mine roads, doors, stoppings, brattice, faces, 
and ventilating appliances." I mean it is clear that the Special Rule 9 required those places to be 
examined. 
14691. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I object to the question. 
14695. Mr. Lysaqlit ] Q. Was there any means by which your Inspector could have ascertained that that 
rule was not being carried out? - 
11t96. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Do you mean from the report? 
14697. Mr. Lysoght.] From any source that was available to him. 
14698. Q. Were there any means P A. By inquiries as to whether the places were inspected, I think be 
might have ascertained. 
14099. Q. And, apart from a verbal inquiry like that, could he have ascertained it from any report books 
or any other books? A. I do not think so. 
14700. Q. You do not think be could? A. No. 
11701. Q. Do you know whether any such inquiry was ever made? A. I cannot tell. 
14702. Mr. Bruce Smith.] You are assuming that they would have told the same thing, voluntarily, that 
they told when under examination on oath ; because, it was not until Morrison was under oath that he 
admitted that be had not examined those places. 14703. 
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14703. Mr. Lysagist.] Yes. I am presuming that he would have said, " We do not examine places that 
are not being worked." 
14701. (9. however, as far as you know, no such inquiry was ever made? A. As far as I know. 
14705. (7. You described one of the doors in the 4th Right as being "a flimsy canvas door" yesterday: 
do you remember that? 
14700. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Would you mind locating that? 
14707. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. When Mr. Robertson was asking .you some questions, you remember stating 
that it was a flimsy canvas door? A. Yes. 
14708. (7. That was a door near the No. 1 trav€Jling road, I think ? A. Yes. 
14709. Q. Now, the other canvas doors, throughout the mine, were of similar material? A. I think so. 
.14710. (7. \Vould you describe the other canvas doors as "flimsy canvas doOrs"? A. Well, I might 
explain that the term "flimsy" was only intended to convey to the Commission that such a door did not 
require very much force to remove it. 
11711. .Mr. Bruce Smith.] By explosion? 
14712. Witness.] I did not desire to show that canvas doors were of no value. 
11713. -Mr. Ltlsaqht.] Q. What would apply to an explosion would apply to anything else. The canvas 
doors were, in fact, rightly described as "flimsy"? A. They were made of the ordinary,  canvas which was 
in use at all of the mines. 
11714. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. They were no more flimsy than those in use in other mines P A. No more 
flimsy than those in other mines. 
11715. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Now, I want to know when it was that double doors were insisted on? A. Some 
time since the Kembla explosion. 
14716. Q. Was it in consequence of the Kembla explosion? A. Well, after the Kembla explosion I 
suggested that we should insert a special rule to that effect. 
11717. (7. And has that special rule been inserted for all collieries? A. All the collieries on the South 
Coast? 
14718. Q. Yes. A. With slight modifications. They are not altogether the same. 
14719. Q. But the use of double doars is being insisted on, in effect ? A. Yes. 
14720. Q. Have you power under the law to insist upon double doors? A. Well, I had the power to 
suggest a special rule to that effect. 
14721. Q. And would not that be as good as any other power, if you suggested the special rule, and the 
special rule was approved, would not that be the effect of the Act ? A. Yes ; provided it was not objected 
to by the colliery people. 
14722. life. Bruce Smith.] They could go to arbitration. 
14723. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. They did not go to arbitration, did they: as far as you know, no objection was 
made by the colliery people to do that? A. There were some sligh t objections, but it has not been 
necessary to go to arbitration. 
14724. Q. Now, will you tell me what it was, resulting from the Kembla disaster, that mae you insist on 
these double doors? A. Well, I cannot say that it was "resulting from the Kembla disaster." 
14725. Q. Did the idea of ordering double doors occur to you before the Kembla disaster? A Well, the 
matter had never come before my notice to make suggestions to that effect as regards the southern 
collieries before. 
14726. Q. Well, I ask you did the idea occur to you as regards the southern collieries to order double 
doors, before the disaster? A. No. 
14727. Air. Robertson.] Q. Double doors were in use in some southern collieries before? A. Yes. - 
11728. Air. Lqsrq/mt.] Q. Double doors were not in use in Kembla, were they? A. In some eases. 
14729. (7. And, in it number of other cases, they were not? A. No. 
11-7;30. (7. Now, it was the Kembla disaster that caused you to go in for this special rule regarding doub!e 
doors? A. I cannot say that altogether. 
14731. Q. Well, perhaps, you will tell me what else did it? A. Well, I cannot call to mind what else 
there was; but I know that I suggested it alter the Kembla disaster. 
14732. Q. Well, it is not more than about eight months since the disaster; and it is not more than about 
four months, or three months, since the rule was got through ;-and you cannot tell me anything else 
but the Kembla disaster that suggested this to your mind P A. I do not remember just at the moment. 
11733. Q. Then, may I not take it, that it was the Kembla disaster? A. No, I do not think you may. I 
do not think that is altogether a fair inference. 
14731. Q. Although you cannot tell me anything else? A. 1 cannot remember just at the moment. 
14735. Q. Now, tell me what it was, if anything, in the single doors that you saw objectionable? A. Well, 
the doors on the haulage road--[interrupted]. 
11736. Q. Which one, the No. 1 haulage road? A. Wherever there are single doors on the haulage roads, 
1 think they are better to be avoided in mines where gas is given off. 
14737. (9. And was that the condition at Kembla ;-were there single doors on haulage roads? A. There 
were at one or two places. 
11738. Q. In the No. 1 main level? A. In the No. 1 main level ; or rather--[Interrupted]. 
11739. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Adjoining the No. 1 main level? A. Adjoining the No. 1 main level. 
11740. AIr. Lysaght.] Q. Could you indicate them, just indicating where the single doors were P A. The 
5th Right rope road is one place. 
11,741. (9. Where else? A. I think that is the only place on the haulage road where there was a single 
door. 
14742. (7. Before you leave that, you might tell me is that a canvas door or a wooden door? A. A 
wooden doer. 
11743. Q. Now, where else is there a single door in the No. 1 Right, not in a haulage road? A. Opposite 
to the 4th Left travelling road, between the No. I main level and the No. 1 travelling road. 
14744. (7. What was that, canvas ? A. A wooden door. 
14745. (7. Anywhere else ? 
14746. Mr. Robertson,] Q. Mr. Atkinson, are you sure that the door on the 5th Right was a wooden 
door: was it not a canvas door with a wooden frame? A. As well as I rerwtmber, I would not swear to 
it, but I think it was a wooden xloor. 
14747. .Mr. Rolertson.] Perhaps you are right. 14748. 
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14748. Mr. Lysaqlil.] Q. Where else was there a single door? A. Well, there were the single doors at 
the 4th Right. 
1 1749. Q. 1 think that was a canvas door P A. Yes. 
11750. Mr. Robertson..] Q. There were two there P 
14751. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. One in the 4th Right, and one in the cut-through below that? A. Yes. 
14752. Q. The disarrangement of any one of those single doors, that i, either the one at the 4th Right, 
or the one at the cut-through below the 4th Ilight, would have had the effect Uf turning the intake air 
straight into that return in the travelling road P A. Partially so. 
11753. Q. And cutting off the supply of air for the whole of the men up . I to the left P A. To some 
extent. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned till 2 p.m.] 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m., Mr. W. B. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings). 

Mis. ALFRED ASHLEY ATKINSON, 

Previously sworn, was further examined, as under:-

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght 

11751. Q. You were speaking about single doors. If either of those doors at the 4th Left, or the 5th 
Right, should become deranged, the air would short circuit into the travelling road and not go to the 
men P A. Do you refer to the doors between No. 1 nialn level and the travelling road. 
11755. Q. Yes? A. A portion of the air would go through. 
14756. Q. So that with the two doors at the 4th Right, and the cut-through below the 4[h Right, and the 
two doors, one on the 4th Left and one on the 5th Right, there were four single doors on which the ventilation 
of the whole of the place to the left of No. 1 main level, depended upon. That is the ventilation depended 
upon any one of those four doors P A. Well, I do not know that the doors on the 4th Left were single 
doors, but to the best of my knowledge the other two doors you referred to were single doors. 
14757. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I asked that we should be supplied with a map from the mine showing the 
condition of the ventilation just before the exploAon, but we have not got it yet. 
14758. His Honor.] Q. Do the snaps from the Mines Department show the ventilation? A. No. 
14759. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I ask Your Honor to give direction that plans shall be supplied from the mine 
showing the method of ventilation immediately prior to the explosion. Here is an instance of the 
necessity for it. Mr. Atkinson is only able to speak from what he knows. 
14760. His Honor.] I suppose the mine has a record of that information? 
1 1761. Mr. Barriij I have taken it note of it. 
14762. Mr. Robertson.] It could be shown on one of the litbographed plans of the Department. 
11703. His Honor.] It would be useful if a. reliable plan could be procured, but at the same time it must 
be remembered that the inrormation  must be based on the recollection of somebody. 
14761. AIr. Bruca Smith.] There is a surveyor at the mine whose business it is to survey and record on 
a map kept by the management all the changes that are made. They have the data there. They can 
show on one of these lithographed maps all the apparatus they have for ventilating the mine. 
14705. Mr. Robertson.] The plan of the mine usually shows the development work but not the doors, 
but these could easily be put on because most of the officials know where the doors are, and how the 
ventilation is conducted. 
14706. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think it would take long for them to do it. 
14767. AIr. Robertson.] It could. be  done in half a day. 
14708. .Mr. Lgsaqht.] Q. It is clear that the ventilation of the mine to the left of No. 1 main level 
depended on at least three doors. That would be one on the 4th Right and the one below it, and the one 
on the 5th Right? A. Yes, to a certain extent. 
11769. Q. Well, if any one of those doors became deranged in view of the fact that the return airway 
was in the back heading, would not the greater proportion of air escape into the return airway ? 
A Well, a portion of would ; I do not know whether it would be the greater portion. 
11770. Q. Would not the greater drag be down that return airway instead of through the working 
places P A. The greater drag would be round the faces. 
14771. Q. The drag would be round the faces, but the tendency to escape would be down the return 
airway, would it not? A. Between the point where the doors are fixed and the ventilating furnace, 
there does not appear to have been much difference in the distance the air would travel. 
14772. Q. May we take it that half the air escaping would be a fair estimate? A. I think probably half, 
that is, if the door was open to its full extent. 
14773. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. The door would require to be opened to its full eTtent P A. The door would 
require to be wide open. 
14774. Q. And if it were only three-quarters open the volume of air would be reduced P A. Yes. 
11775. Q. If the door were wide open the maximum amount of air which would escape would be half? 
A. Yes. 
111776. ifis honor.] Q. That is the door connecting the return with the intake airways P A. Yes. 
14777. Mr. Robertson.] Q. That is a matter which could be easily ascertained. It would be easy to 
open the door and try the experiment P A. Yes. 
14773. Mr. Lsjsaght.] Q. Was the failure to have double doors at the 5th Right evidence of bad manage 
ment [interrupted]. 
1 1779. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I thought that the Commission had barred the use of the term "bad 
management." 
147S0. His Honor.] The term "bad management" is not so objectionable as the term negligence ; but 
perhaps it is going a little too fdr. Could not Mr. Lysaght ask the witness what be would do himself. 
14781. Mr. Lyscght.1 That does not carry the matter far enough. 
14782. His honor.] If you were to ask what the witness thought good management, that could hardly. 
be  objected to. 
14783. Mr. Lysaqhi.] That would not establish what I want to establish. 
147S4. 4r. Bruce Smith.] " Bad manageueut "is a very elastic phrase. 11785. 
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14785. Mr. Li1saqhf.] Q. is it safe to trust a single door to guard against an escape of air in the main 
intake P J. Well, I think it would have been more prudent to have had double doors. 
14780. Q. Do you say it is not safe to trust to single doors to prevent an escape of air from the main 
intake? A. No it is better to have double doors. 
14787. Q. On your inspection of the mine did you see that there were only single doors guarding that 
intake? A. I do not know whether I was through those places or not. I might have been. 
1 1788. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Was this inspection prior ta the accident? A. Yes ; but I do not remnembar 
whether I saw those doors, but I might have seen theni. 
14789. Mr. Lysaqhtj Q. Do you remember going up No. 1 main level before the disaster? A. Yes. 
14790. Q. Did you look to see whether the doors between the back heading and the main level were single 
or double doors? A. I do not think I did. 
14791. Q. Had you known they were single doors, would you have considered it essential to have ordered 
double doors? A. Yes, I think I would. 
14702. Q. And, in your opinion, ought your inspectors, had they known them to be single doors, also to 
have recommended double doors? A. Yes; I think so. 
14793. Q. Then will you say that the failure to provide double doors to guard the main intake, show 
evidence of defective management - 
14794. Mr. Bruce Smith.] There it is again. 
14795. AIr. L'isayht.] His Honor did not tay the term could not be used. 
11790. his Honor.] Mr. Atkinson said it would be better to have double doors; the Commission can 
draw its own conclusions. 
11.797. iIfr. Bruce Smith.] Other witnesses may be asked the same question, and their ideas as to bad or 
defective management may be different. In a scientific inquiry we should employ exact scientific phrases. 
14798. his Honor.] surely it is sufficient that the witness says it would be a proper thing to provide 
double doors under the circumstances. 
11799. Mr. Lysag/it.] Q. in your opinion, were the inspectors negligent in not ascertaining -- 
[fnterrup ted]. 
1I806. His Honor.] There is the old phrase again. 
14801. Mr. .Lmjsaqhit.] It is the inspectors this time. 
14802. .11/s honor.] It is the same thing. 
14803. Mr. Lsaght.] If your Honor thinks that-I should not pursue this matter further I will not do so 
14804. Q. have you got those reports of Mr. Bates which I asked for? A. They are here. 
11805; Q. Have you read thorn since I asked the question P A. Yes, I have. 
1 1800. Q. Is there any reference to the dusty conditions of Kembla in them? A. I do not think so. 
1 [807. Q. Then your former answer was correct ? A. Yei. 
14808. Mr. Barrq.] Q. May I ask whether the notes which were made by Mr. Bates at the time of the 
disaster were found P A. Mr. Bates has the notes. 
14809. His Honor.] Q. Did he send in a report? A. lie would have his notes in a pocket-book. 
11810. His Honor.] Q. Probably they would be in existence? A. I think so. 
14811. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Mr. Bates is at present doing work as an inspector? A. lIe is not doing any 
underground work. 
11812. Q. I said work as an inspector? A. Tie is doing work for the Department. 
14813. his Honor.] Q. \Vhat is lie doing? A. lIe is looking after the record tracings in connection with 
some of the collieries, and is doing a little elerical work. 
11814. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Did he not go to on of the collieries at Bellambi yesterday morning? A. lie 
would probably go to the Colliery 0111cc. 
11815. Q. If he is capable of doing work as an inspector, surely he can give evidence here? (No answer.) 
14810. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Now, you are assuming that he is doing work as an inspector. He is not 
ins pee tin g. 
14s17. His Honor.] Mr. Bates may not be, under the circumstances, fit to go underground, and possibly 
he may not be fit for some years, but lie may be competent to speak as to facts that occurred. 
14818. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I would ask Your Honor to see him yourself personally. I will be quite 
content with that. 
14819. His Honor.] Coming into a Court like this, where there are only a few people, is not like going 
into a crow-dud Court. 
14820. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Will Your Honor see him? 
14821. Mr. imisag/it.] Might I suggest that he be formally subpmnaed. 
11822. His Honor.] A subpna would not be necessary, and, perhaps, it is as well that lie should not be 
subpmnaed. 
14823. Mr. Lysahtt.] Might we have that book produced P 
1 1.824. Mr. Bruce Smith.] If you want it ydu can have it. it is the material on which his report will be 
based, and it might be of use to the Court. 
14S5. Mr. L'saqht.] Q. In your letter to Mr. Rogers of 13th May, 1S98. you referred to a general 
conversatin which you had with him. Do you remember whether on that occasion you told Mr. Rogers 
about the danger arising from coal-dust being allowed to accumulate ? A. I cannot remember. 
11820. Q. Can you remember amiy matter in your conversation that would have any bearing subsequently 
on the disaster P A. Well, I can only infer from the contents of the letter that probably those subjects 
formed part o the conversation. 
14827. Q. That is the subject of the danger of coal-dust being allowed to accumulate P A. That is one 
of them-and shot.firing. 

-14828. Q. And also the necessity for watering? A. I do not remember to what extent that might have 
been mentioned at the time. 
14820. Q. You have no notes of any of these conversations? A. I do not think I have. 
14830. Q. You might tell me whether you have written any further letters to Mr. Rogers beyond those 
you produced at the inquest? A. I have written some other letters. 
11831. 0. Do they bear on the watering question or on the dust question P A. No I do not think they do. 
1 832. (7. Or upon any danger apparent in the Kembla Mine? A. Well, I forget the subject of all time 
letters. 
14833. Q. You have copies? A. Yes. 14831. 
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14334. Q. Is there any objection to producing them? A, No. 
14835. Mr. Lysaght.] Might I ask, your Honor, that all the letters sent by Mr. Atkinson to Mr. Rogers 
shall be produced. 
14836. Mr. Bruce Sniitiz.] If they bear on the condition of the mine, they might be produced. 
14337. His Honor.] Q. They are business letters, I suppose-official communications? A. Yes. 
14838. Q. And there could be no objection to their production? A. I see no objection as far as I know. 
14839. Mr. Lysaqiet.] Q. Will you have the letter-book containing these letters produced? A. If I can 
get a communication sent to the office, you can have it to-morrow. 
11340. M. Bruce Smith.] I beg  to tender the reports of the District Inspector of the inspections of the 
Mount Kembla Colliery for the years 1901-2. (Reports put in, and marked "Exhibits No. 30 and 31.") 
11811. .31r. Ritchie.] Is there only one report for 1932 P 
14812. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. 
11813. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Can you understand the districts which are alluded to in this report? A. I 
think so. 
14811. Q. He says, "The working places were in good condition and a plentiful supply of timber on the 
various flats. Daily reports are made on the state of the working places previous to the men commencing 
work, and also on the machinery, &c" How do you interpret that term "working places "P Do you 
think Mr. Bates means the men working there daily? A. I think the word "daily" would include those 
only actually working. 
14845. His Honor.] Q. Can you gather from this report, the total amount of air going into any part of 
the mine? A. I think no. 
14816. Q. The amount of air at that particular time ? A. Yes, the amount of air at that particular time. 
14847. ,Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Can you tell me from the last report the amount of ventilation going up No. 1 
main level at that particular time ? A. It is not very easy to distinguish from the report between the 
main tunnel and No. 1. Of course, I may meution that this is the first inspection of the Kembla Colliery 
made by Mr. Bates, and he may have got hold of some wrong terms in connection with the district. 
14848. Q. Do I understand that you cannot tell us? A. I cannot from this report. 
14849. Q. And apparently Mr. Bates, if lie had, the information, did not put it into this report? (No 
answer.) 
14850. Mr. Bruce Smith.] How can the witness say? 
14851. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Where is this No. 6 Right that lie mentions? A. I take it that it is No. 6 Right 
off the main tunnel. 
11852. Q. Where is No. 5 Right mentioned-it is not apparently mentioned here at all? A. I think that 
might be No. 4 Right I do not know. 
14853. Q. Had No. 5 Right been broken off at all at that time- off No. 1 main tunnel? A. Yes. 
14854. Q. With regard to No. 4 Right he says: "There are 45 men, 5 boys, and 5 hors2s-total, 55-
and supplied with 10,080 cubic feet of air per minute, giving each an average of 183 cubic feet." That 
could not be the 5th Right? (No answer.) 
14S55. His Honor.] There are too many of them. 
14856. Mr. Lysaght.] Much too many. I wonder what Mr. Bates means by No. 6 Right. 
14957. Mr. Robertson] That is off the main tunnel; but I think we had better wait until we get the 
ventilation report from the mine. 
14858. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Well, this is Mr. Bates' report. Considering you do not know to what parts of 
the mine it refers, and you cannot tell me from it the amount of air going up No. 1 main level-how did 
you know what sort of air the men were getting at Kembla? A. I know from that report that the men 
working there were getting more than the minimum quantity required by,  the Act. It is quite impossible 
for me to know the names and numbers of every district in every colliery in the State. 
14859. Q. Is this the only report you got during 1002 from Mr. Bates? A. He would probably have 
made one on the day that he was inspecting the mine had he not been injured. 
11860. Q. Is the other report for 1901? A. Yes. 
14861. Q. Do you only get annual reports? A. No. 
14362. Mr. Ritchie.] There are three reports here for 1031. 
14803. Q. I want to ask you about the gas in that back heading. Do you know whether there was any 
brattice from the last cut-through up to the face? A. Yes, there was. 
14864. Q. Did you see it? A. Yes. 
14365. Q. Before the disaster there was brattico from the last cut-through right up to the face P A. They 
do not usually put it right up to the face. It was within a reasonable distance of the face. 
11806. Q. I think you told us, when you examined the door on the 5th Rigit that it bad been left open 
by some of the rescue party? A. Yes. 
14367. Q. Who told you' the rescue party left that door open? A. I could not say that. It was some of 
the party who were in the mine at the time. 
14868. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Which door was that? A. A wooden door on the 5th Right. 
148082'. I was the first man to go through that door, and.1 am in a position to contradict that. 
14869. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. You hear that? A. The door was open, and I understood that it had been left 
open by rescue parties. 
14870. Mr. Robertson.] Q. The door was open when I went there a couple of hours after the explosion? 
A. That is in accordance with what I say. 
14871. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. In your evidence at the inquest you stated: "The door between the No. 1 main 
level and the back level, on the No. 5 Right rope road was open, and I understand had been left open by 
some of the rescue parties, in order to short circuit the air with a view to the more speedy recovery of 
some of the bodies." Do I understand that it was open when the first rescue party went in 
14872. Mr. Robertson.] I was there two hours after the accident, and it was open then. 
14S73. Witness.] I think that the door was found open by the rescue parties and was left open by them, 
as Mr. Robertson found it. 
14874. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Do you assume that the door was blown open by the explosion? A. Probably. 
14375. Q. It was not blown off its supports at all? A. No. 
14876. Q. It opened in the usual way-that was towards the travelling road? A. Yes. 
14877. Mr. Robertson.] Q. That is not the usual way-it opens the other way? A. Yes, I see it opens 
towards No. 1 level. 14878. 
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11878. Hr. Lijsaqht.] Q. Was the door open in the ordinary way that it opens? (No answer.) 
14879. Mr. Robertson.] Q. The door is opened by the skips P A. Yes. 
14880. Q. Therefore it opens towards No. 1? A. Yes. 
11881. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. It appeared to be perfectly firm, and on its supports, and not in any way 
damaged P A. I could not say that. It was on its hinges. The building at the side of the door was 
disturbed. 
14S2. (7. The door itself was not moved out of its ordinary position? A. No, I do not think it was. 
11883. (7. Then that door having been blown open in the ordinary way, did it not indicate that the force 
came from the travelling road, west ? A. There was considerable force in other directions. 
1 1881. Q. But I am taking this particular evidence of force? (No answer.) 
14835. his Honor.] We should like to have it explained how that door was opened. Mr. Robertson 
found it open. I understand that it was a door which closed of its own accord. 
14880. Mr. Lysaqlit.] Q. Was that a self-closing door? A. I think so. 
14887. Q. What stopped it f rom closing? A. There would be a good deal of material blown about from 
the explosion, which came in the road of it and prevented it closing. 
14983. 0. Material on the floor? A. Yes. 
11339. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Do you rnan part of the building round the door? A. There may have 
been part of that as well. 
11300. His Honor.] You mean from over the door; it would not blow in from the jambs of the door. It 
would be blown in from No. 1 level. 
11891. Q. The door reaches to the roof P A. Yes. 
14802. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Is there anything shown on these sectional plans about this door P A. I do 
not think so. 
14803. Mr. Lysaqbt.] Q. That door having been blown open, the matter which would keep it open would 
come from the left travelling road direction. It could not be kept open by stuff blown from the main 
level, because that would force it to again P (No answer.) 
11891. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Is it not a fact that stuff from that door was blo'ni towards the 5th Right? 
A. It was blown towards lice east. 
14805. Q. Is it not a fact that large quantities of dust, brattice cloth, and rubbish, were blown in an 
easterly direction P A. There was a large quantity of material blown in that direction. 
1896. (7. Did you observe two skips going down towards No. 1 main level P A. On the 5th Right. 
11.897. (7. Yes. A. I cannot say I did. 
11898. 0. On the first chip there was all accumulation of b.rattice cloth, dust, and other things? A. The 
skips may have been removed in order to allow of the bodies being taken away. 
1[899. Mr. Lq.saqht.] This is clear-that the door was blown open from the travelling road in a westerly 
direction P A. If my recollecuon serves me right, that is so. 
1 11)00. Q. Would not that indicate that the force came down from the back heading from the travelling 
road P A. I do not think so. 
1 1001. Mr. Robei.tsn.] Q. Is it certain that the door was blown in a westirly direction P A. So far as I 
remember, it was open in its ordinary way. 
11002. Mr. Robertson.] T cannot recollect myself, although I was first to see it. 
1199:3. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Have you any notes about the condition of that door P A. I have no notes as to 
the way in which that door was open. 
1[901. Mr. Robertson.] Q. It is possible that the door, opening in the ordinary course to the west, might 
be blown by force to the east 2 ATht is possible, of course. 
11005. Q. You remember the disturbance to the supports of the door ;-the stones were blown a terrible 
distance to the east P A. I know the building stones of the door were blown to the east. 
14903. Q. The same force might blow a door, ordinarily opening to the west, to the east P A. It might. 
11907. X,  r. Bruce Smith.] Q. If a door usually opened one way, and was blown the other, the derange- 
meat of the hinges would be such that it might stick P A. It might. 
14903. Q. You are quite sure that the material about the door was blown to the east P A. Yes. 
14909. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. What I want to establish is this-when that door became deranged, the men at 
the faces of all the working-places to the left of No. 1 were deprived of their air supply ? A. Certainly 
so, after the explosion. 
11910. (7. I mean from the fact of that door being deranged ? A. Not altogether, without the explosion. 
11911. (7. Do von not see that the cut-I hronih opens on the return air-way P A. I see that. 
11012. (7. The tendency would be for all the air to go down the return airaay? A. Not all of it. 
1-191:3. 0. The greater portion of it? A. 1 do not think so. 
hull. Air. Ritchie.] Q. Are you sure about the door at the ent-through on the 5th Rightbeing  a wooden 
door, or was it a canvas door ? A. It was a wooden door. 
11015. Q. The one in the cut-through near the 5th Bight rope road? A. Well, I am not quite sure 
about the material. 
14910. dIr, Lyseq/it.] Q. The door was all indication of force ;-it would be material to observe it 
carefully P A. Yes. 
14917. Q. It would be material to know whether it was a canvas or a wooden door P A. Yes. So far as I 
remember, it was a wooden door. 
14913. Q. Where skips pass through, there are canvas doors, are there not P A. It depends on the 
position. Many of themn pass throu.h wooden doors. 
119151. 1 do not know whether Mr. Robertson remembers whether this door was a canvas or a wooden one. 
14019. Mr. Robertson.] I think it was a canvas door. The only man who could give us any evidence about 
that would be Morrison. 
11920. AIr. Lysayht.] I think be said it was a wooden door. 
1102 1. Ibis Honor.] Q. Did the skips that came out of the 5th Right travel round by the 2nd Right rope 
road and the cross-cut heading P A. Yes, the empty skips went in at abe 2iicl Right. 
14922. Mr. Robertson.] Q. They would be loaded by the time they came omit? A. Yes. 
11923. dIr. Bruce Smith.] how far back would you like copies of the letters written by Mr. Atkinson to 
Mr. Rogers? 
14921. AIr. Lysaght.] There are not many. 
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14925. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I-Tow many would there be in a year? A. Not many in a year. 
11.926. Ris Honor.] Q. Would there be half a dozen altogether? A. l'erhaps there would be a dozen. 
11927. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Oh, you had better have thorn all. 
1192* AIr. Lqsaqht.] Q. Do you know,  whether there was any brattice in the bords not being worked to 
the left of No. 1 P A. I do not remember. 
14929. Q. In the absence of bratticing, and in view of the fact that there hail been fire-damp in some of 
these bords [Interrupted.] 
14930. AIr. Barry.] When? 
14931, AIr. Lysaght.] After the explosion. In the absence of bratticing, these bords would most probably 
have contained a small accumulation of gas, before the disaster? A. That is possibly so. 
14932. Q. It is not more than possible. Is it not probable ? A. There may have been a small accumulation 
of gas there. 
14933. Q. Do you say probably? A. You mean if there was no bratticing. 
14934. Q. Yes ? A. I could not say it was probable. 
14935. AIr. Bobertson.] Q. Is it probable there would be no bratticing? A. I think it woulc'. be probable 
that there was bratticing. 
14936. A[r. Lysaght.] I understood that Moi-rison said that there was no bratticing past that cut-through, 
in the left section, near to where Morris was working. 
14937. Mr. Robertson.] He misunderstood you. 
14933. AIr. Lysaq/it.1 I asked Mr. Atkinson if there was bratticing right up to the top of the cut- 
through in the heading-that is two cut-throughs above where Morris was working, and he said there 
was brattice there. 
14939. 31r. Robertson.] There is no necessity for any brattice. 
11940. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Was there any brattice to take the air from Morris' place to the top of the cut- 
through? A. No. 
14941. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I have looked up the evidence given by Morrison at the inquest in relation to that 
door. On page IS he says:-' There is another door on the 5th Right; that door was intact, but the 
stoppings were driven in the same direction as the previous door I spoke of, that is to the right." 
11912. AIr. Robertson.] Q. He does not say which may it was driven P A. Nu. 
14913. AIr. 1?itchie.] Q. Nor whether it was a wooden door or a canvas door? A. No. 
14941. AIr. Bruce Smith.] lie speaks afterwards of two canvas doors as if iii distinction. 
14915. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Where did you get that 80:000 cubic feet of air from, as being supplied in the 
Kembla mine? A. The ventilation book at the colliery shows that it varies between 80,000 and 100,000 
cubic feet. 
11910. Q. Do you mean to say that there is a record in the ventilation book of 100,000 cubic feet of air, 
going into the Kenibla mine? A. 1 will not swear to it. I have seen a record by the check-inspectors 
for 100,000 feet. 
14917. Q. Where abouts in the check-inspector's report book- in Mr. Wynn's repoit book? A. I forget 
whose book it was. 
14948. Q. Were not the figures supplied by the i\lanagcr in his return as betwien 00,000 and 70,000 as 
being the intake air? A. I do not remember just now. 
14949. Q. Does not your own Inspector's report show what it was in April-theactual intake? A. I think we 
can get it by adding the figures togetler. 
14950. Q. Would it take you long to add them touetl:er? A. No. I see ti:e total is 57,880 cubic feet. 
14951. Q. Now, can you show inc those roports which mention 80,000 to 100,0(.0 feet ? A. If I had the 
reports here I could. 
14952. Q. Is not the amount stated it fair average for it ? A. It depends where the air was measured. A 
great deal more than that may have been going into the mine. 
14953. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Idr. Bates does not appear to have given the total intake, or the total return? 
A. No. 
14954. Q. is it not usual to give the total P A. I think it is usual. 
14955. Q. This is right enough to show whether the minimum quantity of air was supplied, but it is a 
matter of interest, and it is desirable, to have the total intake? A. Quite so. 
11956. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That shows a large surplus over the minimum? A. It averages from 183 
cubic feet to 439 cubic feet per man. 
14957. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. That is an average by taking the air at one split? A. It is not taken at the 
working places. 
14958. Q. They take the number of men and the number of horses at the different splits, and also take 
air passing to supply them? A. Yes. 
14959. Q. Is this a fact-looking at the plan of the 35-acre goaf-would not the pressure of the intake 
air on the cross-cut heading rope road, and along the 5th Right rope road, have the effect of circulating, 
more or less, a current of air through the goaf? A. I think there may to a small extent be a circula- 
tion of air round th3 edge of the goaf. 
14900. Q. Would not the pressure of those two intakes have the effect of preventing any small accumula- 
tion of gas on the return airway in No. 1 travelling read? A. if gas had accumulated on the edge it 
would have that effect. 
14961. Mr. Bobertson.] Q. As a matter of fact it did not, because black-damp was found there P 
A. Yes. 
14902. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Was not the air circulating there? A. The air was not circulating through the 
goaf. 
14963. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. It takes a good force of atmospheric air to remove black-damp on account of its 
specific gravity? A. Yes, if in large quantitids. 
14961.. Mr. Lyseght.] Q. Ave may take it that that goaf was not at all ventilated P A. Certainly it was 
not. 
14905. Q. Therefore, if a-ny gas was given off in that goaf, either from the pillars or the strata, or any 
where else, it would remain there? A. It would rise to the highest parts. 
14960. Q. And it would be there as a constant source of cia ager until tl;ert was a fall to force it out P 
A. Yes; it there was gas there it would be n source of dange-$; 
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14967. Q. I ask you now if you have any further authority for saying that gas exists in the sandstone 
strata? A. I have not. I know I have read it. 
1 ElLiS. Q. You know that that was sandstone strata? A. It was partly shale, partly grey metal, and 
partly sandstone. 
11909. Q. It was not likely to contain gas? A. Sometimes it does. 
11970. Q. Was the strata at kembla such a strata as would be expected to contain gas? A. So far as I 
know, it has not given off ,,is previously. 
11971. Q. Would it be such it strata as would be expected to contain gas ? A. I know a strata of the same 
character that has occasionally contained gas. I cannot say that it is a strata that one would expect to 
contain gas. 
11972. His Jlonor.1 Q. You know that you may have shale or sandstane bands ;-is it the sandy bands 
or the shale bands of material which actually give off gas ? A. The gas is more frequently in the shale. 
11973. Q. This sandstone-it is it sort of soft, impure sandstone, is it not P A. I do not remember what it 
was there, it varies in clitlerent parts. 
11974, Mr. Robertson.] Q. Would you not describe it as it shaley sandstone ?;1. I think that would not 
be .in inappropriate description of it. 
11975. His llonar.] Q. it is very hard at first, but comes to pieces on exposuro to the air, as if it is 
alutninous sandstone P A. That would be correct. 
11.97G. Mr. Lysaqlit.] Q. That stratum would not eonain gas? A. Sometimes it does. 
11977. Q. Can you give any case in this Colony ? A. The strata above a seam of coal in the Newcastle 
district gave off gas like this. There are shales and sandstone there as well as here. 
14978. Q. You told us of the great danger arising from using blasting powder ? A. T5nder certain 
conditions. 
1-1979. Q. Did you make any suggestion to the management of Kembla that they should not use it? A. 
Only by means of the annual report of the Mines Department, where I called attention to the permitted 
explosives. 
11980. .31i. Bruce Smi/Ji.] Did you not-  send out a circular P. A. Yes the conclusions of the Royal 
Commission on Coal-dust, and that had attached to it a list of permitted explosives. 
I 1981. Mr. Rite/lie.] Q. has that been put in ? A. Not the one mentioned by Mr. Bruce Smith. 
11.932. Air. Lysaqiet.] Q. Did you point out to the management of Kembla the danger of using this blasting 
powder, and suggest the use of it safer explosive ? A. I sent out in detail a circular containing the 
conclusions of the Royal Commission on Coal-dust, together with it list of the permitted explosives in 
England. In addition to that, I called attention to the question of explosives in the annual report of the 
Mines Department, but I did not send any other circular round to the collieries in reference to the matter. 
1.19S3. Q. You knew they were using this blasting powder at Kembla P A. I did. 
11954. Q. Did you not consider it dangerous? A. Not if they observed the precautions published in 
General Rule 12. 
11985. Q. You know that Mr. Rogers stated that he did not observe those precautions ? A. I do not 
think so. 
11980. 9. I understool that he did not water in the vicinity of a shot? A. He did not state that he did 
not water in it dry and dusty place. 
1087. 9. He did state that he did not water in the vicinity of it shot ?A. Yes. 
14983. 9. Did you not consider, in view of the Dudley explosion, and the danger of coal-dust, that you 
should have stopped the use of this blasting powder P A. I could not do that. 
11989. Q. Could you not make a suggestion that they should use another kind of powder or explosive? 
A. I think that the sending out of those circulars might be termed a suggestion. 
11090. Q. Did you ever inquire whether any of those suggestions had been carried out? A. I knew that 
they were using the gunpowder. 
14991. Q. You never at any time suggested any amendment in the Act to provide for the greater safety 
of coal-mines ? A. Do you mean in the Coal Mines Act? 
11992. 9. Yes? A. Yes, I have. 
11993. 9. how long ago? A. I suggested an amend ment to General Rule 8, as to the use of safety_lamps. 
11001. 9. That is since the Kem'.mla disaster? 9. No, it is not, 
11995. 9. To whom (lid you make the suggestion P A. In the annual report of the Mines Department. 
14990. 9. Do you refer to this passage P which begins 

It is matter for regret that arrangementi have not been completed at this colliery for the use of safety-lamps 

A. I do not refer to that. 
14997. Q. What report is it in? A. In the 1901 report, I think. 
1-1998. Q. Is this the extract 

General Rule 8, secton 47, of the Coal Mines Regulation Act, is not satisfactory as regards the use of safety-lamps. 
The same applies to the rule in Great Britain, where the liipsctors have recommended the substitution of the following : -- 

No lamp or light other than it loeked safety-lamp shall be use(l in any scam of a mine in which, after the diate of this 
rule any ignition of inflammable gas occurs, or in which there is likely to be such a quantity of inflammable gas as to render 
the nsa of naked lights dangerous. All safety-lamps shall he cleaned, trimmed, examined, lighted, and locked in a proper 
lamp.raomn on the surface before b,,,ing issued for use.All safety-lamps stall be 1Irv1ded with locks incapable of being 
surreptitiously opened without detection." If a rule of this character were adopted in place of General Rule S it would be 
more satisfactory, as the necessity for the alopOon of safety-lamps is much more clearly defIned therein. 

Is that it? A. Yes. 
1-1999. Q. Is that the only suggestion you have made since you have been Chief Inspector for the amend-
ment of the Coal Mines Safety Act? A. Yes I believe it is. 
15001). Mr. Bruce Smith.] You did not read this portion of the suggestion :-' It is to be regretted that 
considerable opposim ion to the misc of safety-lamps is still displayed by the owners, managers, and workmen 
in connection with cohleries where small quantities of fire-damp are more or less regularly given off." 
15001. Air. Lqsaqht.] We have had all about that before. 
35 )02. Q. is there not a greater danger from coal-dust than fern failure to use safety-lamps P A. Under 
certain conditions. 
15003. Q. \Vhy did you not makea recommendation as to an anndmnet of the law regarding the 
watering of mines P A. I do not know why I did not. 15001. 
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15001. Q. Why did you not make a suggestion as to the amendment of the law regarding the use o 
gunpowder? Q. I brought the matter before the mining community, and l consider that I did my duty.. 
It is not within my power to amend the law. 
15005. Ale. 1? ber(son.] Q. I suppose these matters were brought under the notice of the Minister? A. 
These suggestions form part of the annual report. 
l.SOUO. Q. And come before Parliament? A. Yes. 
15007. Mc. Bruie Smith.] Q. The circulars which you issue come before the Minister before you issue 
them? A. Yes. 
15038. Ale. Lqsaqfmt.] Q. Do you know anything about an explosion winch occurred on the ship. 

Glaucns " about a couple of months before the disaster? A. I do not remember. 
15000. Q. I now propose to take Mr. Atkinson through some of the recommendations which have been 
made. You know the first recommendation, which is, that Managers, under-managers, deputies, and 
shot-firers should hold certificates of competency by examination." Do you consider it wise to allow 
persons who simply hold certificates of service to still continue to act as managers of collieries ? A. Yes. 
15010. Q. I think you said that many capable managers would be too old to qualify for certificates P 
A. Yes. 
15011. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. He said that there was another method by which Managers who held 
certificates of service could be arraigned for any neglect of duty. 
15012. His Honor. That is only the Manager who is actually at work. 
15013. Mr. Bitisie.1 And who has probably brought about some disaster. 
1501 1. Mr. Lysaq/mt,] Q. I take it that you have some persons in your mind whom you were thinking of 
as being too old to qualify when you made that statement with reference to their qualifications? A. No. 
15015. Q. Can you tell me what Managers you know of who you regard as being too old, to qualify for 
csrtiflcates? A. I do not see why I should go into the personal qualifications of the various Managers. 
15016. Q. Might I ask you if you consider that Mr. Rogers is too old to qualify for a certificate P 
17017. ]lIr. Bruce Smith.] Is this question allowable? 
15018. His honor.] No 1 think it is going outside the scope of the inquiry. 
15010. AIr. .Lysag/it.] Q. Do you know how certificates of service were obtiined ? A. Yes. 
15020. Q. Do you know whether any evidence was given on oath that these persons had acted as Managers 
for a certain length of time? A. Yes. 
15021. Q. Were you in the State at the time? A. Some certificates have been obtained since I came here, 
but others were issued before I came. 
15022. Q. Do you know whether, before they are obtained, evidence is given on oath as to the length of 
service? A. So far as I remember, it is. 
15023. Q. Is there any regulation bearing on that matter? A. Do you mean as to giving evidence on 
oath ? 
15024. Q. Does it not lie entirely in the hands of the Minister whether lie chooses to issue certificates of 
service or not? A. There are certain qualifications which are necessary before a certificate is granted. 
15025. AIr Bruce Smith.] Section 8, sub-section 6, provides for a statutory declaration. 
15026. His Honor.] No doubt someone has to be satisfied. 
15027. Mr Ritclmie.1 The question is, what proof is there that the applicants have complied with the 
provisions laid down in the statute. 
15028. Mr Lmse/it.] Q. Where is there anything which compels applicants to prove that they are entitled 
to obtain service certificates? A. 1 ani not aware that there is anything. 
1 020. Q. That being so the Minister can issue certificates to any persons who apply, and who make a 
statement that the conditions have been fulfilled. [Xo answer.] 
13030. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I see that it is for the Minister to be satisfied. 
15031. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Then the Minister can issue a certificate on the more statement of a man that 
he 'has been a mining manager for five years within twvlre months of the passing of the Act? A. Yes; 
so long as the person supplies a statutory declaration as to the number of men employed in the mine. 
15032. Q. Do you know that in this case certificates were issued to the Manager of one colliery, which lie 
said lie had managed, and that another Manager applied in respect of services for the same colliery? 
A. I am not aware of such a case. 
15033. Q. Did you ever hear of a certain length of time for service being set up by a. Manager who got 
his certificate, and of another Manager coming in and setting up the same time as entitling him to get a 
certificate? A. No I did not. 
15031. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think that if there are any cases of the kind that Mr. Lysaght should name 
them, and let the papers come here. 
15035. His Honor.] It is hardly worth while going into particular cases. 
15036. AIr. Bruce Smith.] If the Court thinks that a system has been abused it might make suggestions 
to remedy that system for the future. 
15037. His I-lonor.l The system provided under the Act is rather a loose one, it certainly seems a 
happy-go-lucky provision. 
15038. Mr. Bruce Smith] I understand it is a copy of the English provision. 
15030. Mr. Lyscig/si.] Q. You know that a man can get a certificate now for services rendered, although 
lie may not have been a Manager since 1803? A. Yes. 
15040. Q. In your opinion should that provision be abolished? [Yo answer.] 
15011. His Honor] It is hardly worth while pursuing this matter further. 
15042. Mr. Lysaq/mf.] Q. Regarding this oral examination which you suggest for deputies-you would 
also include shot-firers? A. Yes. - 
13013. Q. Why do you propose an oral examination and not an examination in writing? A. Well, I think 
you might be able to get some very efficient men for those duties, who would not be able to do much in a 
written examination. 
13014. Q. Could you not have both ? A. You could have both examinations, but I do not think it is 
necessary. 
1504.5. Q Do you not see this : a man might be a practical miner and able to answer verbally certain 
questions put to him, but lie would not be able to make proper reports of the various matters which might 
come under his notice unless lie had some education P A. It requires only a very elementary kind of 
education to make the reports required from a deputy. 15016. 
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1 5013. Q. That is if everything is going on all right, but supposing that certain conditions in a mine require 
to be described, is it not essential that he should be able to properly write them down P A. Yes. 
15017. Q. Then ought not a person to give evidence that he has this elementary knowledge ;-should there 
not be a written examination conjointly with the verbal examination P A I do not think myself that it 

is necessary. 
13048. Mr. ilobeitson.] Q. It is necessary that a deputy or a shoL-flrer should be able to write? A. Yes. 

15019. -Mr. Lysaqht] I do not think that they would appoint anybody who could not write ; but in some 
of these reports the spelling is bad. 
15050. Mr. Robertson.] That does not matter. 
13051. AIr. Bi uce Smith.] Nor the grammar either. 
15052. Mr. f,jsaqht.] There was a crnstant use of one set of phrases-a stereotyped wording of the 
reports for months. 
15033. AIr. Robertson.] If the conditions of the mine are safe the wording of the reports must be of a 
stereotypc d nature. All that a deputy has to say is that the mine is safe ; and if it is not safe he has to 
ray what use defects are. I take it that when l\ir. Atkinson states that lie does not require a man to 
undergo a wri ten examination he means an examination as to that juan's scientific qualifications. 
15031'. The wi/ness.] Yes. 

[The Commission at 4 p.m., adjourned until 10 a in. the following morning.] 

WEDYESDA Y, 11 FEBRUAJ?Y 1903. 

[The coinnzission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlin.qhurst.] 

0. F. R. MURRAY, FSQ., D.C.J. (F1usIDENT). 

D. A. W. ROBERTSON, EsQ., COMMISSIONER. I D. RITCHIE, EsQ., COMMISSIONER. 

Nh'. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wbod, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Lysnght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of--- 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kenibla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) and 
the lllawam'ra Colliery Elliph)yees' Association (the Southern Miners' lJiiioii). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. G. J. Barry, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the 
Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of the Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Conimission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

13035. Mr. Lqso'qht.] Before I proceed with my cross-examination, will your honor permit me to state 
that I have rceived a letter from the Delegate Bo.ird of the Colliery Employees of the Northern 
District, Newcastle, containing some new recommendations, and mentioning the names of six witnesses 
who are prep mred to give evidence it, support of the Southern Uuions recommendations, and of these 
new recommendations. I think the better way to have themn recorded would be if I read the letter, which 
is not ver' long, from the Secretary, and then they can be put bet'ore Mr. Atkinson in his examination 

by me. 
No. 1.-Agrerd to, and to add All the examinations have to be passed in the State of New South \Vales." 
No. 2--Opposed to this, as it stands ; but suggest that, where a doubt exists about safety-lamps going into a mine, 

the Inspector and distict cheek-inspector appoint a third paIby the three persm named to be an Arbitration Court to 
settle the question whether safety-lamps are to go into the mine or not. 

No. 3.-Agreed to. 
No. 4.-Opposed, owing to its being impracticable. 
No. 5.-All cut.throughs to be not more than 30 yards. 
No. 6.-Agreed to. 
No. 7.-Agreed to. 
No- S. -Agreed to, and add " Not lass than 200 cubic feet of air per minute for each man and boy." 
No. D.-Agreed to. 
No. 10.-Agreed to. 
No. ii. -A greed to, and add " Instead of monthly, as at present." 
No. Li-Agreed to. 
No. 13.-Add All travelling, main, and horse roads, to be 6 feet high." 
No. 14.-Agreed to. 
No. 10.-Agreed to. 
No. 10. -Agreeil to, and add ''  To be not less than 6 feet high, 6 feet deep, and 3 feet wide and to he whitewashed." 
No. 17.-\Vc are of opinion that Mr Rogers, Manager, should be called on to show came why his certificate should 

not be cancelled. 
No. 18. -Add " That proper machinery be kept at the second shaft outlet to lift all employees to the surface within 

one hour. - 
No. 19.-Agreel to. 
No. 20.-Agreed to. 

13050. Mr. Bruce Smith,] I do not know what that will be analogous to-whether it is a pleading. 

15037. Mr. Lgsaqht.] It is the shortet way I can put it before the Court. Your honor. 
15038. his limier.] You see everybody is asked to come in; and, in addition to those who have come in 
aireaiiv. this other body of miners now wishes to come in. 
15030. Mr. Bruce Smiih.] But the Court does not take opinions from outside people not under oath. 

isuui. His Honor.] These are only suggestions; and I suppose they wish to call evidence in support of 

them. 
13061. ATe. Lqsoqlii.] I have already told your honor that six witnasses' names are given to support 

these recommendations. 15062. 
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15002. His Honor.] So I understood. 
15303. Mr. .Lgsaqht.] And the new suggestions from the Northern Delegate Board are : 

No. 21.-That the miners of each district have the power to recommend for appointment an Inopecter for their 
respective districts. 

No. 22.-That a red light be carried on the front of trains or sets on engine-planes, or other self.acting inclines. 
No. 23.-That a clause be inserted in the Act whereby better sanitary arrangements should be adopted in all mines 

Wisere workmen are employed. 
No. 24.-That, in our opinion, the management of a mine should not interfere with the rilit of an employee to go 

out of a iñine when Ise deems fit. 

I have also to inform the Court that the Delegate Board of the Western Miners' Union, Lithgow, desire 
an addition to be made to Recommendation No. 13 in this way :- 

No. 13.-Add ''And properly timbered, and kept clear of any tops that may have fallen; and that the travelling 
roads be made not less than 6 feet high." 

No. 18.-Add ''And that all escape shafts be properly eruipped with means to draw men, in case of accident, and 
that proper oceans of signalling be ales fixed." - 

Those complete the whole of the recommendations from the three Delegate Boards; and the witnesses 
NN hum the Northern Delegate Board tender, if req nired, arc-William Bower, Pit Town, Wal}send ; John 
Patterson, Minnci; George Reid, New Lacnbton ; S. IRecce, Plattsburg; M. Grey, New Lambton; and 
William Kearsley, Pelew Main, via West Maitland; and they await a direction from the Court as to 
woether they,  will be called as witnesses or not. 
150134. His Honor.] I-low many copies have you got of these recommendations? 
15065. Mr. Lysaqht.] Only the one, the original sent to me. 
15066. His Honor.] You have only received that this morning? 
15067. Mr. .Lysa.qhtj They were received a few days ago at my office at Wollongong, but not sent to 
me here. 
15063. His Honor.] We should like to have several copies of those. 
15039. Mr. Lysoqht.] They will be typed in the notes by to-morrow morning; and during the day I 
suppose Mr Atkinson will be fairly well occupied with what I have already, and there will be no difficulty 
in following them, your Honor. 
15070. His Honor.] His evidence would, necessarily, not go into these yet? A. No; and copies will be 
available to-morrow, like the revised ones were at Wollongong. I would have prepared copies, only 
they were not sent to me in time, but I do not propose to ask Mr. Atkinson in any detail on these 
new ones. 
15071. His Honor] lie would want time to thoroughly understand them. We will go on, at present, 
with his cross-examination on the former evidence. 

Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under 

Cross-examination by Mi'. Lysaght-(continued) 
15072, Mr. Lysaglst.l I will pass over Recommendation No 2, because you have suggested a cerfain 
course. 
15073. Q. Now, regarding the prohibition of the furnace, Recommendation No. 3. Do you know, 
Mr. Atkinson, that "the ventilation of mines by furnace is only permitted in case of special consent from 
the District Surveyor, throughout the whole of the mines of Prussia" ? A. Yes, I think that is so. 
15074. Q. Are you familiar with this passage from page 311 of " Hughes on Coal-mining," and do you 
agree with its conclusions - 

Mr. C. Cockson, after giving a description of a fan at Dairy Pit, Wigan, stated that the plant was erecterl to take 
the place of two nndergroand furnaces, having a fire-bar area of 129 square feet, on which 12 tons 17 cwt. of Arley neliie mixture were burnt per 24 hours, proiucing, with the furnace very hard fired, 142,570 cubic feet of air per minute, the cost for wages being 19s. 31, and for foci £4 3s. 72., or a total cost of £5 2s. 102. per 24 hours, which, multiplied by 365, will be £1,876 per annism. The fan gave the cause quantity of air as the furnaces, when rnnning at 52 revolutions per minute, burning 4 tons 3 cwt. of rough buzzard slack per 24 hours, and costing for wages lOs. 62., and for fuel 15. 42., or a total per day of £1 5s. lOd., avhich, multiplied by 365, gives a cost of £471 Tel annum, or a Saving, by the use of the fan, on the two items of fuel and labour, of £1,405 per annum. Of course, from this an allowance has to be made for interest, depreciation, stores, &c. 

Many similar instances could be quoted if it were necessary, but it is now generally admitted that mechanical 
ventilation is superior to furnace ventilation; as it is more under control, cheaper, more efficient, and capable of being 
easily varied in quantity whenever desired. 

Do you agree with that? A. Well, I have no reason to doubt the accuracy of the figures in regard to 
cost, and I agree with the latter statements. 
15075. Q. Now, doaling speciffca]ly with the Kembla Mine, do you know that in 1886 the then Inspector 
had suggested two furnaces instead of one? A. 1 do not just remember at the moneent, but it is possible. 
15076. Q. Do you remember the Manager at Kembla in 1886? 
15077. AIr. Bruce Smith.] How could he P He was not there. 
15078. .31r. Lysoylzt.] Q. Do you know that the Manager at Kembla in 1S83 was prosecuted for imperfect 
ventilation? A. I remember being told by Mr. Rowan that the Nanager of Kembla bad been prosecuted 
during his term of offlce. 

15079. Q. Did you ever read the correspondence and the reports of the Inspector upon that prosecution? 
A. I may have done so ; but I cannot remember. 
15080. Q. I am now reading from Mi-. iowan's let tr to the Chief Inspector, dated 11th January, 1880. 
15031. .2l.Lr. Wade.] Perhaps I might interpose at this stage, and ask whether what took place in 1886 can 
throw the least light upon what took place in July of last year. Since then there has been a new 
system of ventilation, and a new furnace has been lent up. It may have been absolutely dangerous, for 
all we know, in 1886; but the conditions are different now. 
15082. Hr. .Lysayht.] I am going to show that it was icever intended that the otleei' furnace should be 
abandoned at all. The proposal was that there should be two furnaces ; and, as they have abandoned one 
of them, the intention in 1886 was not carried out:. 
15033. Air, Robertson.] Is it suggested there that the existing furnace is not efficient? 

15014. 
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15081. Mr. L,'saqJif.] There is a suggestion here [referring to a book which he held in his hand] about 
putting up a fan, as far back as 1880. 
15085. Ills honor.] Instead of having a second furnace P 
15080. Mr. Lysaqht.] No, with the second furnace. Perhaps, if I read it, Your Honor will see it. This 
need not be taken down for the present. [ALe. LJsaqJ1t (lien readfi,ow a look.] 
1507. jlIr. Robertson.] Q. Is there any suggestion that the present furnace is not capable of ventilating 
the mine P 
I 5088. .2lLr. Lysaglit.] The suggestion is this, that, owing to the atmospherical conditions, the air does, 
frequently, become reversed. 
15089. ill it Robertson.] But there is a doubt about. that. 
15090. Mv. Wic7e.] It is when the furnace is stopped, the evidence shows. 
15091. Ills Honor.] There is a very grave doubt as to whether there has been any substantial reversal. 
The evidence is very vague and problematical and unsatisfactory as to whether there has been any 
reversal. 
15092. liTr. Lyscqht.] Of course, there is the evidence of several of the witnesses as to the places being 
very hot, and getting no air at all. 
15093. Mr. Robertson.] That might obtain with a fan. 
13091. ALe. Lijsaght ] I see that. I am putting all this now before Mr. Atkinson on the general 
recommendation that furnace.; should not be allowed. 
15095. ills honor.] is the furnace that has been in use now for so many years really the second furnace 
suggested there (in the report which was read by Mr. Lysaght), or a different furnace altogether? 
15090. Mr. Lysaght.] It is the second furnace suggested here. 
15097. Mr. Robertson.] From what you read just now, I thought it was a different furnace, and in a 
different position. 
15098. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I offer an objection of another kind to this. Mr. Lysaght is cross-examining 
l\l r. Atkinson on the evidence which ho has given ; but Mr. Atkinson's eiidence with regard to his 
personal knowledge of this mine is confined to six years. Unless we know exactly what were the conditions 
of the mine when that recommendation was made sixteen years ago, how can it possibly be made the 
subject matter of a cross-examination of Mr. Atkinson with regard to his evidence as to the sufficiency of 
the present furnace. It seems to me that it will lead us into a most elaborate inquiry as to the conditions. 
that existed at that time, to see whether the recommendations at that time, sixteen years ago, have any 
bearing on the present conditions, and on the opinion expressed by Mr. Atkinson on the present condition. 
15099. Ills ILonor.] It does apnear as if Mr. Atkinson, as ait expert, could not speak as to this. It is a 
matter of history, which occurr,cd long before Mr. Atkinson had anvthing to do with the mine and 
therefore it seems to be utter waste of time, and utterly beside the question, for anybody to cross-examine 
Mr. Atkinson oil it. 
15100. lIfe. Lysaqlit.] I was anxious to show that the necessity, perhaps, for a fan at Kembla was 
recognised sixteen years ago. 
15101. His honor.] But Mr. Atkinson could not speak of that any more then anybody else could. ITo 
may have heard from somebody else, merely at second-hand, something about the former history of this 
mine. Why lie should be ci'oss-examnined as to that, and lion l:e coutd manage tc give any evidence, as an 
expert, in relation to a question of that kind, I certainly fail to understand. 
15102. .lIIr. Lysaqht.] I'erhaps I did not make the position quite clear. I was anxious to get before the 
Commission the fact that in 1880 a pm'omse was made by th management at Komnbla that a fan would be 
erected if necessary. - 
15103. Ills honor.] It is possible you can get thatt liv ti:e cross-examination of some other witness. 
15104. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I make this suggestion: if Mr. Lysaglit wants to put that fact in evidence, 
and it is an official document, I am quite sure I shrill offer no objection to its going in before the 
Commission ; but to cross-examine about it seems to be unneeessarv. 
15105. Ills honor.] You can only eross-cxamnine about it if the object of your cross-examination, and the 
fairly possible resu]t of your cross-examination, is to slake i\lr. Atkinson's own opinion ems a certain 
question. how it can do that I do not know. I should imagine that it would be improbable that it could 
do so. Shortly, what you might possibly put, is' Because somebody said a long time ago something 
would do at Kembla, do you still hold to the opinion that the shaft now in action at }vembla., the furnace, 
is sufficient" P That is the only thing that I can sc-c that you could wish to put, in such a cross-
examination. 
15100. ALe. Lsaqiit.] I wish to show that Mr. ktkinson's conclusion that 80,000 cubic feet was the 
ventilation of that mine is altogether erroneous. I am going to show the amounts which the report show.- 
were going into the mine. 
15107. Ills honor.] But that can be shown, as Mr. Bruce Smith said, from thereport itself, if that is in 
it. how can you possibly cross-examine Mr. Atkinson on what he has been told as some question oi 
history. lie is not an historical expert ; he is a mining expert. 
15108. Mr. Lysaqht.] Could not I put this on the gem ml ground of Recommendation No. 3, that 
furnaces be prohibited, and fans substituted ; could not I show that, even at Kembla, when they were 
thinking of putting up a second furnace, it was found that they would possibly have to get a fan P 
15109. lila honor.] Yes ; but what is the use of cross-examining Mr. Atkinson as to what be has been 
told by somebody. That is a matter of history. lie cannot say, "I have more reason than anybody else 
to believe that those statements were true." If ho has expressed a strong opinion on a certain matter of 
science, then you can ask him, "Are you not aware of certain facts ?" and " Being aware of those facts, 
do you still hold to that opinion?" 
15110. Mr. Lyraqht.] I think I would prefer, Your Honor, to put in the whole report hereafter. 
15111. life. Imjsaqht.] Q. Do you know that the Manager's returns from Kembla Mine of the intake air 
have not exceeded 05,000 cubic feet? A. I do not remember the quantity. 
15112. Q. Do you know that Mr. Ronaldson stated, in evidence, before the Royal Commission, that the 
average was between 00,000 and 70,000 feet? 
15 i 13. AIr. Wade.] The same objection applies there. I take the same line as Mr. Bruce Smith does, 
that, if the documents themselves are of any use at all, I have no objection to the Court having them 
but I object to Mr. Atkinson being asked this question on a manner which he could not possibly know 
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except by hearsay, through, possibly, four or five channels. It may turn out that, at that time, there 
were fewer men, and less air required. I say if the document itself goes in as a matter of history, IL 
have no objection to it. Mr. Atkinson cannot say of his own knowledge. - 
15114. His Honor.] He can only speak as a matter of opinion, even if that statement has been made by 
somebody, after having thoroughly examined the whole report, to see what the meaning of the statement 
is. But, supposing the statement were there, he would have to read the whole report to see the whole 
thing. 
15115. Mr. Lysaqlit.] Do you know that Mr. Ronaldson gave evidence before the Royal Commission on 
the Coal Mines Regulation Bill in 1895? A. Yes. 
15116. Q. Did you read that evidence? A. Yes. 
15117. Q. Did not lie state there, " We try to get the largest quantity of air possible" ; time question 
then is, ' What is your average ?" and the answer is, "From (30,001) to 70,000 cubic feet per minute " 
A. Yes, I have read that. 
15118. His Honor.] Mount Kembla came in in that Commission as merely one of the mines they were 
speaking of at that time. 
15119. Mr. Robertsn.] The conditions may have changed since then? They may have had other openings 
to daylight. 
15120. AIr. Ltsaqht.] But I understand the conditions have not changed. 
15121. Mr. Robertson.] Nonsense. There must be a change. 
15122. Mr. Lmysaqht.] Not to affect the ventilation. 1 submit that the further the mine goes in, the less 
the power of the fummace to ventilate it. 
15123. Mr. Robcr/sn.] Oh, no; there may be an alteration in the distribution of the air. It may be 
possible for the furnace to give an increased ventilation, although the area of the workings has increased 
since. I do not say it is so. 
1.5124. Mr. Lysug/it.] Q. Now, you spoke about an objection from the Water and Sewerage Board to 
having works on their catohment area? A. Yes. 
15125. Q. Can you tell me what collieries in the South Coast district have the up-cast shaft on the catch-
ment area? A. Mount Kembla; that is the only one. 
151.26. Q. You know that at Mount Keira they are sinking a shaft to e:cet a fan? A. I know that they 
wish to sink one. 
15127. Q. Is not that shaft proposed to be on the catchment area? A. Yes. 
15123. Q. Is there any opposition to that shaft being put there? A. I do not know whether they have 
been able to arrange with the Water and Sewerage Board in reference to it or not. 
15120. Q. Do you know of any opposition to it P A. Well, I know the general opposition of the Water 
and Sewerage B ih Board in connection with mining operations on the sur(e of the catebment area ; but I 
have not heard anything in connection with this lrticular  shaft to which you refer. I do not know to 
what stage it has gone yet. 
1513). Q. No other collieries but Kembla and Keira would require to have an up-cast shaft on any part 
of the catchment area? A. It is quite possible that they may. 
15131. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Do you mean that others may P A. Yes. 
15132. AIr. Lqscglmt.] Q. What others? A. South Bulli, Corrimal. 
15133. Q. Any other? A. Mount Pleasant, possibly. I could not say what the future might require. 
15134. Q. Can you produce any letters or anything in writing showing the objection of the Water and 
Sewerage Board to these fans on their catchment area? A. Wrell, I have no doubt, with the permission 
of the Department, I could produce papers which would show their general objections, but nothing in 
particular reference to this proposed fan. 
15135. Q. Now, you are aware, are you not, that a number of persons reside on the catchment area? 
A. Yes, I understand so. 
15136. Q. They have farms, and piggeries, and things like that? A. I also understand that they are very 
particular. 
15137. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I suppose they have rights. 
15138. His Honor.] They got there first. 
15139. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. They were land-owrers on she surf'ace. 
15140. Mr. Lysaqht.]  Q. Do you suggest, as a serious objection to the introduction of fans, that the 
Water and Sewerage Board may oppose their erection P A. I do. 
15141. Q. But you have never heard of any case in which they have dune so P A. I do not know of any 
case in which they have been asked with reference to it yet. 
15142. ]IIr. Bruce Snit/z.] Q. You know the general objection ; it has been often expressed P A. Yes. 
15113. Mr. Lysreght.] Q. Well, then, you reconise that it may be necesary hereafter, at Kembla or 
elsewhere, to have fans put up? A. Yes. 
15144. Q. Will not the objection from the Water and Sewerage Board be equally as good then as now? 
A. I expect so. 
15145. Q. Have you got any suggestion as to how you are going to get over that objection then ? A. Well, 
I have already made a suggestion to the Commission ;  if they could do anything to arrange matters 
between the Mines Department and the Water and Sewerage Board in connection with that question. 
15146. Q. Well, now, 1 will pass over Recommendation No. 4. Taking Recommendation No. 5-cut-
throughs not more than 30 yards apart-do you know of any crush, or creep, in the South Coast mines ? 
A. Yes, there have been one or two, I think. 
15147. Q. Where? 
15148. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Does Your Honor think that that is a proper question to be asked? Does 
your Honor think that the Chief Inspector of Mines should be asked to publish the knowledge that 
comes to him in his official capacity in regard to any infirmity of that sort that may exist in any particular 
mine? 
15149. His Honor.] Well, on the other hand, Mr. Bruce Smith, is it right, is it fair in the interests of 
the public and the miners, that any danger of that kind should be kept concealed ? It seems to cut both 
ways. 
15150. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Well. I do not know whether it is a danger; perhaps Mr. Atkinson will say. 
I leave it entirely to Mr. Atkinson. I do not know whether it has any bearing whatever on this question. 
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15151. M. Lysaght.] He says there was a danger of creeps through cut-throughs being driven 30 yards. 
15152. Q. Where are these creeps? A. Some years ago I think they had a little trouble at the Metro-
politan Colliery and they have had trouble also at the South Bulli Colliery. 
15153. Q. But the trouble at the Metropolitan Colliery was not owing to 30-yard cut-throughs? A. I 
think it was found necessary to increase the size of the pillars. 
15154. Q. Do you know what the size of the pillars was when they had this creep P A. No, I do not 
know. 
15155. Q. Then that, really, is no criterion. A. I think it is. 
15156. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Would this be within your time, or previous to your time? A. Previous to my 
time. 
15157. Mr. Lisaqht] Q. Then, at that time, I take it, they had to have the cut-throughs every 35 yards? 
15158. lBs Honor.] Mr. Robertson has pointed that out several times there has been a mistake in 
reading that provision of the older Act. There was no necessity to have the cut-throughs every 33 yards, 
if brattice was substituted. 
15159. Mr. Lysaqlitj Q. Well, what about the South Bulli creep, when was that? A. That was before 
my time, too. It seriously crippled the main road of the colliery. 
15160. Q. Since your time you do not know of any creeps on the South Coast? A. No, I do not 
remember any. 
15161. Q. Now, are you aware that, in the evidence before the Royal Commission on the Coal Mines 
Regulation Bill, the following evidence was given concerning the distance of cutthroughs 

Q. What distance do you drive them (the bords) before you put a cut-through over? A. We seldom drive over 
100 yards without a cut-through. 1 refer to the bords, not to the headings. 

Q. One part of the bord acts as an intake, and the other acts as a return ? A. Exactly. We could not go these 
long distances with our bords except through having such a conimaucl of ventilation. By having this great ventilation, 
we can do thin(,s which could not be done at other collieries. We are far in excess of what is required for safety, and we 
have, I think, double the ventilation of the ten mines down below us. (Vids evidence of Mr. I). A. W. Robertson, 
page 100.) 

Do you remember that evidence being given regarding the }Ielensburgh Colliery? A. I think it is 
probable that I read it. 
15162. Q. So that the fact of drives being 100 yards or so at Heleusburgh Colliery without a cut-through 
is an exceptional case, and no criterion for the district, because, as is said here, they have snuck more 
ventilation than is required? A. To a large extent it depends upon the ventilation. 
15163. Mr. Robertson.] Q. And also upon the issue of gas? A. Yes ; that is a material factor. 
15164. lBs honor.] This question has not been gone into yet, but perhaps Mr. Atkinson can give some 
evidence on it. Primarily, of course, the sustaining weight of a pillar varies directly as its area; that is, 
primarily, apart altogether from the question of the cuts in it. As you tal.-e out of the pillar something, for 
the purpose of making a cut-through, primarily directly you weaken that pillar by the reduction of its area. 
But, then, there is another weakening, and that is the putting in of new faces ; that is, the taking away of 
what might be called the horizontal support of the pillar, and increasing its tendency to crush generally. 
Well, has that been worked out scientifically, Mr. Atkinson, so as to determine what the relative strength 
of pillars is, standing by themselves as single pillars, and standing as severed pillars containing the same 
area; comparing, for instance, two pillars with a given sum of area, with one pillar of that same area? 
15165. Wmtness.] The matter to which your Honor refers is mentioned and explained very simply in 
Professor Lupton's " Book on Mining." 
15166. Mr. Bruce Smith,] Your Honor means that the increase or decrease of strength would be 
geometrical. 
15167. Witness.] The crushing strain, of course, is about 3,000 or 4,000 lb. to the---- [interrupted]. 
15168. Mr. Robertson.] Q. is not the effect of putting cut-throughis through a pillar to take away the 
lateral support of the pillar? A. Certainly, the area of excavation causes the weight of the strata to be 
cast on to the pillars entirely. But I think I might bring that little book—I see Mr. Ritchie has it. 
15169. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Yes. Perhaps you might point out the part referred to P A. It is referred to on 
page 158 :— 

Size of Pillars and Stalls—The ordinary size of stalls has been above given, as varying from 4 to 6 yards ; and the 
ordinary size of pillars may be taken as varying, froni 5 yards wide and 10 yards in length, to 30 yards wide and 40 yards 
in length. As the development of the coal-fields of the country takes place, the average depth increases, and the size of 
time pillars increases to a corresponding extent. To take an illustration, suppose a mine 1,500 feet in depth, and the pillar 
10 yards wide and 20 yards long, with stalls 4 yards wide, and cross-cuts the same width. The mine may be divided into 
rectangles of 14 yards by 2 4 yards, equal in area to 336 square yards. Of each of these rectangles the pillars have an area 
of 200 square yards; and, therefore, this area of 200 square yards has to bear the pressure originally resting upon an area 
of 336 square yards, the original pressure being 1,500 lbs. per square inch. The pressure per square inch upon the remaining 
pillar is found by the following Rule-of-three suns —200 : 336 : 1,500 : x = 2.520. 

It is probable that this pressure will be a great deal more than either the coal, or the roof, or floor, will bear without 
injury, and the working of the mine will become exceedingly costly, if not impossible. Supposing the pillars are increased 
to 30 x 40, the stalls remaining the same size, the whole of the mine may be divided into rectangles of 34 x 44 yards. 
Therefore, each rectangle contains 1,496 square yards, and each pillar contains 1,200 square yards. The original pressure 
of 1,500 lbs. per square inch upon the origimial area of 1,496 square yards has now to be entirely sustained on the remaining 
pillar of 1,200 square yards, and the pressure per square inch will be found by the following Rule-of-three sum :-
1,200 1,495 : : 1,500 : x = 1,870 lbs. per square inch. 

Thus, by increasing the size of the pillar, the pressure per square inch upon it has been reduced from 2,520 to 1,870. 
These are some of the considerations that guide the nlining engineer in settiug out the dimensions of pillars. There are, 
however, other considerations, such as the inclination of the seam. In a level seam, or one lying at a nsodem-ate inclination, 
there is no difficulty in conveying the coal along the stall; but, if the seam lies at a steep inclination, special arrangements 
have to be made for haulage, which will be dealt with in time chapter on haulage. Other considerations are, the amount of 
gas yielded by the coal, and the means of ventilation. It is evident that the larger time pillars the greatei' will be the 
length of single roads to be ventilated between cross-cuts ; and, in a mine yielding a great deal of hre-damnp, this is a very 
important consideration, of which notice will be taken further on. 

There are other passages referring to creep. 
15170. Mr. Robertson.] Q. A large pillar, of, say, an acre in area--is that not infinitely stronger than a 
number of smaller pillars of the same (aggregate) area P A. Certainly it is. 
15171. Q. That is to say, in the acre area in small pillars they have insufficient lateral support? A. I do 
not quite catch that. 
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15172. Q. In the case of the smaller pillars, they have not the caine lateral support as in the large pillars? 
A. No; and I think the fact of so much surface of pillars being exposed has a weakening effect as compared 
with the smaller area exposed in the larger pillars to which you refer. 
15173. His Honorj Q. It comes to this,does it not, Mr. Atkinson, that by using larger pillars you might be 
able safely to take out the same proportion of the whole of the coal as you could not safely take out of 
the same mine by using smaller pillars? A. Yes; I might explain it in this way: the small pillars are 
sometimes left in such it condition that they are barely able to support the superincumbent strata; but, 
when the removal of those pillars commences, the eui'ect is to put such a weight on the neighbouring 
pillars that they are unable to bear it; and frequently many pillars are lost in that way, crushed down 
entirely, so that large pillars facilitate the getting of it large percentage of coal in the second working or 
the removal of the pillars; besides any advantage there may be in the first working. 
15174. Q. But, independently of that, supposing you contemplate the mine as one to be left some time 
before taking out the pillars, and to be able to stand safely without crushing the pillars that are left, the 
superincumbent weight to be safely borne by the pillars; it is a fact that, with a given proportion of the 
coal being taken out, a mine may be in a condition of safety with pillars of a certain size, and may be in a 
condition short of safety with pillars of a smaller size ;-you see, the berth and stalls having been shorter, 
the pillars would be smaller ? A. Quite so. 
15175. Q. One-the principal-difference being the actual crushing strength of the pillar due to the 
smaller or larger perimeter of the pillar-the extent of the perimeter in relation to the bulk of the pillar is 
a weakening element? A. Yes, Your Honor. 
15176. Q. If they were circular, the area of the whole would vary, as the square of the diameter? 
15177. -Mr. Bruce Suit/s.] Is not this another way of putting your honor's proposition-that the reduction 
of the strength of the pillar weakens the support in a greater ratio than you reduce the coal P 
15178. his Honor.] Yes. If the pillars were circular, their contents would vary as the square of the 
diameter, whilst the perimeter would, vary directly as the diameter; and, therefore, the smaller the pillar 
the larger the perimeter in relation to the actual contents of the pillar. 
15179. ]Ifr. Robertson.] Q. Mr. Akinsou, you have heard of the disastrous accident at hamilton, near 
Newcastle? A. Yes. 
15180. Q. Can you say how that occurred, from what you have heard or read? A. Yes; I think it was 
due to the smallness of the pillars. 
15181. Q. It is just an illustration of what you were desr:bing before, pillars too small in time first place, 
and attempting to extract them ? A. Yes ; that is what they were doing. It set on a creel). 
15182. Q. There were ten or eleven men killed there? A. I forget the number; it was before my time. 
15183. -Mr. Lysaq/mt.] Q. On that point, Mr. Atkinson, do you know what the size of the pillars was at 
the Hamilton Pit? A. I do not remember just now. 
15181. Q. Do you remember reading this, page 193 of the Appendix to the Royal Commission on the Coal 
Mines Regulation Bill 

I am also of opinion that the standing pillars were toe weak to withstand the pressure brought to bear upon them 
u by the weight of the superincmbent strata, and that if the pillars had originally been left of a larger area than the so-called 

4-yard pillars, common to the system usually adopted in working the Borehole coal-seam in the Newcastle district, or a 
modification of the district custom had been introduced, whereby almost all the pillars could be extracted as soon after 
they are formed as possible, it might have prevented extra (leterioration and loss of coal from a "crush " such as that 
which has so recently takeh place at the Australian Agricultural Company's Coilierv, and on previous occasions at the 
Australian Agricultural Company's, Newcastle-Wailsend, Co-operative, Lambton, and Newcastle Coal Companies, &c._ 
J. M., 7/8/S9. 

Do not you see there that the pillars were very, very small? A. Yes, I see that; but the cover overhead 
was also very small. 
1518.5. Q. What was the cover overhead? A. I have not the figures. 
15186. Q. Have you any idea? A. Probably 103 feet. 
15187. Q. The Hamilton Pit is about 190 feet deep ;-there is a cover of nearly 200 feet, you see?. 
A. Well, the pillars were not taken out of the shaft bottom. 
15188. Q. Never mind; that is the cover, is it not? 
15180. Mi'. Wade.] No; it is the shaft. 
15190. Mr. Lmjsa,q/mt.] Q. Now, do you suggest that in that case, where the pillars were only 4 yards 
square [interrupted]. 
15191. Mr. Wade.] I object to that. Mr. Lysaglit said, under his breath, "square." Mr. Atkinson 
could not hear that, I am sure. 
15192. Mr. L.ysaqbt.] Q. Will you suggest that, where the pillars were only 4 yards, that is any criterion 
to guide the Commission as to the danger of eut-throughs at 35 yards ; do you seriously offer that as a 
criterion to guide the Commission as to the danger of cut-throughs at 35 yards P A. Well, I say seriomly, 
that there has been a tendency in this State to make pillars too small, and it has resulted in the loss of a 
great deal of coal by crushes, of which that is simuly one illustration. 
15193. Q. It is a very weak illustration, is it not P A. On the contrary, I think it is a very strong one. 
15191. Q. I suppose you will agree with this, from page 181 of Hughes:- 

There does not, however, appear to be any common system regulating the dimensions of pillars, as nearly every 
conceivable size and shape can be found in practice, the procedure at each colliery depending on the individual opinion of 
the manager. Mr. Atkinson, in a reportto the New South Wales Government., quotes numerous instances in scams 
varying from 2 feet 2 inches to S feet thick, and at a depth varying from 210 feet to 1,810 feet, where amounts of from 59 
to 95 per cent, of the coal is left in pillars after the bords and walls have been driven. In the best modern practice hover 
more than from 30 to 35 per cent, of the coal is removed in the "whole " workings. 

We may take it, generally, Mr. Atkinson, that no rule can be fixed for the size of the pillars? A. I think 
you can. 
15195. His Honor.] That is exactly what you are trying to fix. 
15196. ALe. Robertson.] That is just exactly what you are Irving to fix. 
15197. -Mr. Lysa2ht.] There is a little more of Mr. Atkinson's report here, which I have not yet read. 
1519S. Witness.] Let me have the rest of the article. 
15199. Mr. Robertson.] You say they should be 30 yards square. You are trying to fix it. 
15200. ALe. Lysaglmt.] Q. Did you not say that it should be fixed, Mr. Atkinson? A. To what do you 
refer ? 
15201. Q. I am asking you can the strength of the pillars be properly fixed. P 15202. 
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15202. His Honor.] Q. As a general oroposition? A. As a general proposition, yes. 
15203. Q. 1 do not know that that is as a general rule to cover all cases. Is it possible to say, having any 
depth unknown, having any quality of coal unknown, having all the co-eIfleients of the mine unknown, 
that you can legislate safely for any maximum size of pillars? A. Certainly not. I think it would be a 
very wrong step to take, your Honor. You must have regard to the particular condition and circum-
stances in connection with the mine. 
15204. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. That is what I am going to put to you, you having admitted that the size of 
pillars, as a general principle, can be fixed ;-I now say, are not pillars 30 yards square ample for every 
possible conceivable danger, anywhere you like ? A. No, I think not. 
15205. Q. Will you point to any colliery in this State where you think a pillar 30 yards square would be 
dangerous? A. Yes, the Metropolitan. 
15206 (7. Any other? A. No, 1 do not know that there are any others. 
15207. (7. Then, do I take it that, with the exception of the Metropolitan, you consider that pillars 30 
yards square would be ample? A. I think so, if regard is had to the width of the drives which are made. 
15208. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Is that under present conditions? A. Yes. 
15209. His honor.] Q. Existing mines? A. Existing mines. 
15210. Mr. Robertson.] Q. At comparatively shallow depths ? A. Yes. 
15211. Mr. Lysayjhmt.] Q. Do you know of anything that would make pillars 30 yards square dangerous, in 
any conditions, in New South Wales mines ? A. Yes, if you take out too large a proportion in the stalls 
or bords. 
15212. Q. But you mean that would be with the waste hanging  ? A. I mean that, if you took out too 
great a percentage of coal in the first working, it would put too much weight on to the pillars left., which 
might be a. source of danger. 
1213. Q. But does not the taking out of the coal let the roof of the waste fall, and thereby relieve the 
pressure on the pillars P A. No, certainly not. 
15214. His honor.] Q. Mr. Atkinson is not talking about. the waste: be is talking about pillars and bords 
and cut-throughs P A. The weight comes on to the neighbouring pillar when the coal is removed. 
15213. Mr. Lysaghif.] Q. I admit that, but what I am putting is this : is not 30 yards square ample? 
A. I have already said that 30 yards square is ample with the existing mine under the existing conditions, 
providing regard is had to the width of the drivos made, or the percentage of the coal extracted, in the first 
working. 
15216. Mr. Bruce S'mnith.] Q. It really depends upon the number that you leave of that size? A. Yes; 
you might take out :30 yards and leave 30 yards; on the other hand, you might leave a 30-yard pillar and 
only take out 8 yards. 
15217. Mr. L,q.aqJmt.] Q. In practice, then, there can be no objection to the cutthroughs being every 30 
yards P A. I have not said so. 
15218. Q. Well, I ask you what objection can there be nw in practice to snaking the cut_throughs every 
30 yards P A. Well, 1 think I have explained it sufficiently. 1 do not know what further explanation is 
required. 
15210. (7. Now, you do admit that the conditions at the Metropolitan Colliery are altogether exceptional? 
A. Yes, as compared with the other collieries. 
13220. Mr. Bruce Suit/s.] Q. Do you adopt the expression "altogether" exceptional? A. His Honor 
has once or twice, or three times, before directed your attention, Mr. Lysaght, to that infirmity, the 
putting in of adjectives. 
15221. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Is it not objectionable to lay down any hard-and-fast rule for the working of 
any coal-scam? A. I think it is. You must have regard to the circumstances and conditions, which may 
alter as the workings advance. 
15222. Q. The conditions vary, not only in every mine, but also in different parts of the same mine? 
A. Quite so; they do. 
15223. (). And it is not advisable that the Manager should be limited in any way as to the methods of 
vorlcing coal, so long as safety is secured P Q. I think that is all that is desirable. 

13224.. 0. Then do not you think, unquestionably, that safety is more likely to result from large pillars? 
A. Certainly. 
15223. Mr. Lysaht.] Q. But, Mr. Atkinson, no matter how the, conditions may vary, are you not of 
opinion that 30-yard pillars are ample? A. No I have already said no. 
15220. Q. Now, Recommendation No. U you have approved. Recommendation No. 7, "Monthly 
examination by the deputies with the hydrogen flame " ;-you disapprove of that, because it is not safe to 
trust the hydrogen lamp in inexperienced hands? A. Yes. 
15227. Q. Would you approve of the monthly examination by the under-mn aager instead of the deputy ? 
A. Well, provided he was sufficiently experienced, I do not see any objection to it. 
15228. Q. Well, then, would you put it this way: that you would approve of a monthly examination and 
report by the Manager or under-manager with the hydrogen flame? A. Yes I do not see any objection 
to that. 
15229. AD-. Robertson.] (7. Do you consider thatt it is a safe lamp to take into a place where an explosive 
mixture of gas may be met? A. Well, it is not a place where you should use the hydrogen lamp if you 
can see gas with the ordinary safety-lamp flame, of course. 
152:30. Q. But you, yourself; if you knew you had to test in an explosive atmosphere, would you not have 
some hesitation in doing so with the hydrogen flame ? A. I should not use the hydrogen part of the lamp 
for testing under those circumstances. 
15231. Q. As a matter of fact, is it not positively dangerous? A. Yes, in the hands of inexperienced 
persons, it is. 
15232. (7. Or any persons? A. Well, you require to be very careful. 
15233. (7. Even in the hands of experienced persons, in any place where an explosive atmosphere may be 
met with, is it not positively dangerous ? A. To use the hydrogen ? 
15234. (7. Yes? A. It would be-yes. 
15235. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. But I take it, Mr. Atkinson, that the hydrogen is only used where you are unable 
to discover gas by the ordinary flame of the lamp? A. That is so, 
15230. Mr. Lmjsaqht.] Q. Recommendation No. 8-the minimum of 500 cubic feet of air to be provided 
for every horse; you have also heard this recommendation from the Northern District, which they desire 
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added, "And 200 cubic feet of air per minute for each man and boy" ;-now, do you know that the Royal 
Commission on the Coal Mines Regulation Bill recommended 150 cubic feet as a minimum for every man, 
boy, and, horse? A. Yes, I have heard so. 
15237. Q. But that was reduced in Parliament? A. Yes. 
15238. Q. Now, all the collieries, as far as your reports have shown, had a considerable margin above the 
minimum? A. Generally speaking, yes. 
15239. Q. So that, in practice, there would be no hardship imposed on any of the collieries that ever 
came under your notice by increasing the minimum? A. In some cases it does not get up to 200 feet 
per minute all round. 
15240. Q. Would it., in all cases, get up to 150 cubic feet per minute? A. Well, for instance, in the case 
which Mr. Wynn reported at Corrimal it was under the 100 cubic feet. 
15241. Q. Well, do not you think that it would be a very exceptional case that would not go up to 200 
cubic feet per minute, in the way the collieries are now being managed? 
15242. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Well, then, why require to increase the minimum, if it is always up to 
double? 
15243. A. No, I could not say that it would be a very exceptional case. 
15244. Mr. Ly.sn,q/mt.] Q. Then do I understand that there are collieries, to your knowledge, that are 
sailIng pretty close to the wind, so far as ventilation is concerned? A. Oh, there have been one or two 
cases. 
15245. Q. And was the air then circulating considered adequate ? A. Well, steps were taken in several 
cases. 
15246. Q. To have it increased? A. To have it increased. 
15247. Q. Does not that clearly show that the minimum was too low, and should be increased? A. And 
was increased. 
15248. Q. And that it should be increased by the Legislature? A. We have the power-the Inspectors 
have the power-to ask that more air be supplied; and I think that that is sufficient. 
15249. Q. Is it not much safer to start of with a minimum of at least 200 cubic feet per minute, instead 
of the Inspectors having to wait for complaints, investigate them, and then order it? A. Well, there are 
cases of mines, in which no fire-damp is given off, where I think it would be quite unnecessary to ask for 
a minimum of 200 cubic feet; whereas, in another mine with a quantity of gas, it may be advisable to 
have LOO or perhaps a good deal more. 
15250. Q. But, Mr. Atkinson, as you say all the mines have considerably over the minimum, whether they 
have fire-damp or not, where can the objection be to the Legislature fixing a minimum of 200 instead of 
100? A. Well, I have not said it exactly as you have put it, Mr. Lysaght; but I think that the existing 
state of the law is sufficient for dealing with that. 
15251, Q. Well, that is a matter, then, for the Commission? A. Except, of course, as I recommended, 
that in cases of defcctmve ventilation it should be brought under the provisions of the arbitration clause. 
152.52. Air. Ritchie.] Q. Have you any record of your Inspectors having directed that more air be 
supplied when they have found the minimum circulating? A. Yes; I think there are cases of that sort. 
1525:3. Q. You have got them on record? A. I think so. 
15254. Q. Have you any record of cases where less than the minimum quantity has been supplied? 
A. Well, we have the account of that case at Corrimal. 
15255. Q. Where less than the minimum was supplied? A. Yes; we have the papers in connection with 
that. 
15256. Q. Have you any other reports from the South Coast about collieries where less than the minimum 
quantity was supplied? A. Well, there may be; but I do not remember jnst at the moment. 
15257. Q. What steps are taken when a report is brought under your notice that less than the minimum 
quantity has been supplied? A. Well, I either ask the Inspector of the district to go himself, again, to 
see how things are; or I sometimes go myself, in company with the Inspector. 
15258. Q. And, if you found the report to be verified by your subsequent inspection, what steps are then * 
taken ;-if you find, upon the subsequent inspection you have spoken of, that the quantity circulating is 
less than the minimum stated by Act of Parliament, what do you do then? A. I do not remember such 
a case. 
15259. Q. Do I understand that you have had reports sent to your Department stating that less than the 
minimum quantity was being supplied, and, upon making a subsequent visit, you found it not to be 
verified ? A. Yes. 
15260. Q. Has that always been the case ? A. I think so. I do not remember a case in which that was 
not so. 
15261. .2115'. Bruce Smith.] Q. You have had a good many complaints from the miners that there was too 
much air? A. In some cases, although not official reports, not sent to the Department, to that effect. 
15262. Air. Ritchie.] Q. Have you had check-inspectors' reports submitted to you from the South Coast 
distinctly stating that less than the minimum quantity was being supplied ? A. Yes,; I think the Corrimal 
check-inspector's report was submitted to the Department. 
15263. Q.  Have you had any from the Bulli Colliery? A. Well, I do not remember. I do not think so. 
15264. Q. Do I understand you to answer, in answer to Mr. Bruce Smith, that the miners have sent 
reports to you stating that there was too much air? A. No; I have not received reports to that effect. 
1.5265. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You have had complaints? A. In passing round the mine, they would 
sometimes say the brattice was too close up. 
15266. Air. -Ritchie.] Q. A single individual here and there ? A. Yes. 
15267. Q. Who would, perhaps, have the current beating on his bare skin? A. Yes. 
15268. Q. You do not take that as a defect in the ventilation of the mine? A. No; I like to see it. 
15269. Mr. Robertson.] Q. As a matter of good mining practice, do you consider it is a proper principle 
to govern the ventilation by the persons in the mine ? A. No; I think rather the governing principle 
should have regard to the gas which is given off by the coal, or rather that one of the governing 
principles- [interrupted]. 
15270. Q. In the case of a gassy mine, if there happens to be no one in the mine, according to the Act 
there is no necessity for ventilation ? A. No, I suppose not, when there is no one there. Of course, that 
is not a principle that I wish to go forth as having my approval, the ventilation being suspended when 
persons are not in the mine. I do not wish to convey that. 15271. 
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15271. Q. That is the point I was coming to. As a matter of fact, have you not had to take steps to 
require mines to be ventilated when no one was in them? A. Yes. 
15272. Q. Can you say whether there is such a provision in the English Act? A. With reference to the 
constant ventilation? 
15273. Q. Governing the ventilation by the persons in the mine? A. No; and there is no minimum fixed 
in the Imperial Act. 
15274. Q. The English Act only requires adequate ventilation P A. Yes, that is so. 
15275. Q. And, after all, is not that all that is required P A. Yes, that is so. 
15276. Q. And is not there a danger that, with a minimum quantity, a careless or reckless Manager may 
cut it down to the minimum P A. Well, there is that danger ; but, of course, there is the saving clause 
under which the Inspector has the power to have the ventilation increased. 
15277. Q. But do not you think that the term adequate ventilation" covers all requirements? A. I 
think it does. 
15278. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Would not that necessarily entail your Inspectors visiting frequently, in orderto 
ascertain whether there was an adequate quantity travelling or not, if it was left entirely to the 
Inspectors in that way? A. I do not think it would necessitate any further visits than it does at 
present. 
15279. Q. Do you think a visit once in three months would be sufficient to test whether there was an 
adequate quantity going or not? A. I think so, yes. 
15280. Q. I suppose you do know that, with furnace ventilation especially, the quantity might vary very 
much within that period? A. It does vary to a certain extent, with different atmospheric conditions, if 
not attended to. 
15281. Q. And you still think that once every three months would be sufficient for your Inspectors to 
test the ventilation to see whether an adequate quantity was travelling or not? A. I think so, yes. 
15282. Mr. Rober (son.] Q. Then, even with the minimum quantity, you have no better means of ascer-
taining the ventilation in the mine than the visits of the Inspectors every three months, or as often as 
they can go P A. No I do not see that that alters their ability to ascertain the quantity. 
15283. Q. No matter what may be the principle laid down in the Act? A. Quite so. 
15284. Q. No matter what may be the primmeiple laid down in the Act, it requires the visit of an Inspector 
to actually test whether the quantity is being supplied P A. Yes. 
15285. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. I suppose you have got on record the whole of the complaints regarding ventila-
tion which have been brought under your notice during your term? A. Yes; they are in the records of 
the Department. 
152S0. Q. Would there be any difficulty in furnishing them to the Commission to see how many there 
have been during your time? A. 1 think there would be a good deal of work in picking them out. if 
on could direct my attention to any particular one, perhaps it would assist. 

15287. Q. But I should like to personally know whether they are numerous or not? A. No ; they are 
very few. 
15288. Q. Could you give us any approximate idea how many you would have, say for a period of twelve 
months? A. I do not think we should have an average of one. 
15289. Q. One in twelve months? A. From the Southern district. 
15290. Q. But I am speaking generally now of all the coal and shale mines under your jurisdiction to 
which the Act applies? A. In reference to ventilation. 
15291. Q. Yes, complaints in regard to ventilation? A. I do not think there would be more than two or 
three per annum. 
13292. Q. Then perhaps you might be able to furnish us with some of those within a reasonable period-
say, for the last two years. Could you get them? A. Yes; I will endeavour to do so. 
15293. ]!Lr Lqsag/zt.] Q. The complaint from Corrimal Colliery resulted in your Inspector's record 
agreeing with that of the check-inspector-the air was deficient P A. I think the result of his visit was 
to prove, so far as I remember, that at the time of his visit, if I remember rightly, more than the minimum 
quantity was then being supplied. 
15291. Q. But did not the report state afterwards that his anemometer was out of order? You remember 
the evidence of Mr. Wynn? A. Yes. 
15295. Q. What I want to know is this: Where the check-inspector's record and the Government 
Inspectors record agreed, what steps were taken to have that ventilation made adequate? A. Do you 
refer to the Corrimal case P 
15299. Q. To the Corrimnal case, yes? A. Well, I think the re.eult of the measuring of the air at that 
time-which was done, if I remember rightly, by the Colliery machine-showed that the air was then 
above the minimum; but I might explain that, just at that time, the Company were erecting a new fan, 
and were endeavouring to get that fan into operation as early as possible, which 1 believe was done 
within a month of this complaint ; since which time the ventilation has been much improved. 
15297. Q. And that is the reason why no further steps were taken on that report? A. Yes. 
15298. Q. This aspect of the question, as to having any minimum in an Act of Parliament, was thoroughly 
gone into by the Commission on the Coal Mines Regulation Bill in 1895? A. I think it was. 
15299. Q. I ask you finally on this: Do you see any objection to having the minimum increased from 
100 to 200 cubic feet for every man, boy, and horse? A. I do. I think that in some mines it is 
unnecessary; and that the present law is sufficient. 
15300. Q. And that is time only objection you have? A. The only one that strikes me for the moment. 
15:301. Q. Recommendation No. 9 you have approved ; and you say it is in force now. Recommendation 
No. 10-double doors-I think you have approved now. Recommendation No. 11-I think you consider 
the monthly record of the air is sufficient? A. Yes, I think so. 
15302. Q. Of course, you will admit that the air might be good one day in the week and deficient the 
next day owing to atmospherical conditions, A. There might be a slight difference. 
15303. Q. Might there not be a considerable difference? A. Not if the ventilating arrangements were 
properly attended to. 
15301. Q. But does not it depend upon the ventilating arrangements being properly attended to 
A. Certainly. 

15305 
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1530.5. Q. Now, is not there a greater check on the ventilating arrangements being properly attended to 
if the measurements are taken every week instead of every month; is there not three or four times the 
check P A. Well, it is a check on the quantity of air circulating at the particular time. 
15300. Q. Is not any record only an evidence of the particular air flying at the particular time P A. Yes. 
15307. Q. Is it not better to have such a record every week than every mouth-is not that self-evident? 
15308. Mr. Bruce Smith. Then why ask it P 
15309. Well, I do not think that the benebts would be commensurate with the additional labour imposed. 
15310. Mr. Robertsonj Q. Carrying that out to its logical conclusion, it would be better taken every 
hour P A. Yes. 
15311. AIr. Lysaqhtj But I ain suggesting something that is reasonable. 
15312. Q. Becommendation No. 12. Now, you have only recommended that thirty lamps should be kept 
in excess where the safeties are being used. Is not that so, Mr. Atkinson P A. No I think it is a 
definite proportion of the men underground. 
15313. Q. But I am taking it now, as it would apply to the men underground (in Kembla). There were, 
1 think, about 300 men underground on the day of the disaster, and the proportion of lamps in excess 
would have been thirty? A. Yes. 
15314, Q. Do not you see that thirty would have been altogether inadequate? A. No, I think it would 
have been quite adequate. 
15315. Q. For rescuers P A. Yes. 
15316. Mr. Wade.] There were not 300 men underground, only 200. You have made a mistake about 
that, Mr. Lysaght. 
15317. Mr. Lqsaght.] Q. You said something about the difficulty of obtaining safety-lamps-I suppose it 
is only a matter of ordering them from England? A. Yes. 
15318. Q. So that they can be got within a couple of months? A. Or more, perhaps. 
15319. Q. An adequate supply of lamps for the whole of the State could be got within, say, two or three 
months P A. No. It would be within a few months. 
153 .M 20. r. Robert son.] 1 can only say, from my own experience, that I can never get supplies under about 
six months ; and I suppose I am in the best position to speak with authority on it. 
1.5321. JIi. Ritchie.] Q. Do I understand you clearly to say that you thought thirty lamps would have 
been sufficient to man the rescue parties in Kembla Mine after that disaster took place P A. In my 
previous evidence with reference to this question, I mentioned that in a colliery where safety-lamps are 
in use, which is the ease now under discussici], it is probable that a part at least of the ordinary lamps 
would be available, in addition to those thirty. 
15322. Q. I suppose you would admit that it is possible that they might be all in use P A. Well, I think 
it is a very remote contingency to think that the men belonging to all three shifts would be in the mine 
at the same time. 
1.5323. Q. Taking Kembla itself on the day of the disaster, how many were there out on the front shift 
how many were there escaped; it just occurred at the time when they were about to take leave of their 
work ? A. It, unfortunately, occurred at the time when both the day shifts were nearly all-in ; but, in 
addition to them, there are a certain number of workers in the night who would be at home, and were at 
home. 
1.5324. Q. But is it not possible that those who are working on the night shift, if the night shift comes in 
early enough, may have their lamps in use at the same time as the day shifts P A. Well, I am supposing 
that there are lamps available for each workmen in whatever shift he works. 
1.5325. Q. Narrowing it down, do you think that thirty lamps would have been sufficient to man the 
rescue parties at Mounl Kembla Mine after the disaster? A. I would not bind myself to that. 
15320. Q. I suppose you know that there were a very large number of men there alive who were unable 
to get out P 
15.127. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But it is fair to say that be would have had a very much larger proportion in 
a mine where no safety-lamps were in use, probably fifty. 
15328. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Do you think thirty would have been sufficient for such a purpose? A. I would 
not be prepared to offer an opinion on that, Mr. Ritchie. 
15329. Q. After all the evidence you have got? A. I think sixty would be sufficient. 
15330. Mr. Bruce Smith.] He has proposed already that, in a mine where safety-lamps are not in use, 
there should be one-fifth of those in the mine-that would be sixty at Kembla. 
15331. Mr. Ritchie.] You are working on the assumption that, at a mine where safety-lamps are used, a 
number of them would be always out of use. 
15332. Mr. Bruce Smith.] No. I do not think you quite understand what Mr. Atkinson said, lie 
proposed that, in mines in which safety-lamps were not used at all, except for the deputies, one-fifth of 
time total numnber of men should be time proportion of lamps to be provided ; so that there would have 
been sixty at Kembla on the day of the disaster. He was not counting at all upon mnen being out. if 
safety-lamps had been in use at Kembla, lie would have had thirty extra. 
15333. Mr. Iiitchic.] Q. Well, I suppose you would, think it necessary to have the same number in excess 
at a colliery where they were using safety-lamps as where they were not using safety-lamps-that is, it 
would be necessary to have the same number for time use of rescue parties? A. Yes. 
15334. Q. Then you are basing your estimate on the assumption that a number of the lamps in a mine 
where they were all using safety-lamps would be idle? A. Yes. 
15335. Q. Then, if it is possible that they would be all in use, the number that you have suggested here 
as adequate would be inadequate? A. Yes, I suppose so. 
15330. Q. Then, is it not better to be on time safe side with appliances for rescue work than otherwise? 
A. Yes, 1 think it is wise to have a sufficient number; but I also think that the possible contingency 
which you have mentioned is so extremely remote-and it is impossible to provide for every contingency 
-that the prounsiomi whch I have suggested would be ample. 
15337. Q. I-have you any idea of what the additional cost would be of keeping, perhaps, sixty lamps 
instead of thirty at the collieries, where they were using safety-lamps, as you proposed? A. I suppose 
the lamps would cost about lOs. each. 
15333. Q. And I suppose they would not deteriorate very much in value for years if they were not used? 
A. They would require constantly cleaning, and examining, in order to prevent them from getting rimsty 
and out of order, so as to be ready for use, 15339. 
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15339. Air. Bruce Smith.] They become obsolete. 
15340. lEEr. Ritchie.] Not necessarily. 
15311. Mr. Bruce Smifit.1 You have read a ar.1gra.l1 condemning three kinds already. 
15:312. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. But when were they first brought into use P A. Long before either of us were 
born. 
13313. Q. And you still think, although the expense would he very small, comparatively speaking, that it 
is unnecessary to have this quantity of lamps P A. I think that the provision which I have suggested is 
sufficient. 
1534 1. lEEr. Rberfson.] Q. From your experience in gassy mines have you not found that there is an 
ample number of spare lamps always at any colliery P A. There has always been sufficient; at any colliery 
with which I have been conuected. 
15315. Q. At collieries, they do not work with the exact number of lamps corresponding with the number 
of men employed? A. I have never known of an explosion in the Old Country, where they were using 
safety_Limps at a colliery, where there were not a sufficient number for rescue purposes. 
13310. lIly. Ritchie.] Q. That may be so ; but there is no obligation on them to keep them there P A. No, 
there is not. 
15347. H,  r. Lqscqlif.i Q. Then, Mr. Atkinson, this recommendation of yours would not at all affect what is 
being done at mines in New South Wales where gas has been diovered—you say that they do keep this 
surplus supply A. Yes. 
15348. Q. Then, in your opinion, this recommendation of yours will not at all affect what is being done 
at mines in New South Wales where safety-lamps are in use? A. No; I do not think it will. 
15319. Q. So it is only,  in the ease where the flare-light is used that your recommendation will affect the 
proprietai'yP A. Yes. 
153.50. Q. Well, now, can you see any objection to making it a fifth, instead of a tenth, for the surplus 
supply, inasmuch as you say all the collieries have a considerable surplus in hand P A. I think that that 
number, together with the lamps which, under ordinary circumstances, would be available, is ample for the 
purpose required. 
15:351. Q. Then, on Recommendation 13, you are awaiting the evidence of the managements? A. Yes. 
15332. Q. On Recommendation 11 you admit that the Manager does delegate too much to the under-
manager? A. In some cases. 
15:353. Q. As a Manager yourself, you were able to go two or three times a week underground, I think? 
A. Usually, yes. 
15351. Q. Do you know of any objection to Managers being compelled to go underground at least once or 
twice a week? A. So far as is reasonably practicable, I think they should. 
15335. lEEr. Robertson.] Q. Mr. Atkinson, in your evidence you say that the Managers should visit the 
working places two or three times a week? A. I think the reporter did not understand my evidence 
correctly in that respect. 
15330. Q. That is what I want to get clearly explained P A. What I meant was that I thought the 
Managers should go underground, and visit part of the workings and returns two or three times a week. 
15357. Q. As it matter of tact, it is absolutely impossible, is it not, in a large mine, for a Manager to visit 
the working places two or three times a week? A. it 15 impossible—the whole of the workings. 
15358. Mr. Bruce Smith.] You mean that it is impossible that he can visit the whoie. 
15:359. Q.  Do you mean, in your two or three visits, that he should manage to go round the whole of the 
working places every week? A. No, I do not suggest that ; because in one part of the mine there might 
be places that might be left for a time. 
15300. lily. Robertson.] Q. Do you think it is wise in any way to restrict the movements of the Manager, 
considering the varied character of his duties? A. Well, I think it is desirable, whether by legislation or 
not, that the Manager should go underground, under ordinary circumstances, and visit part of the 
workings two or three times a week. 
13301, Q. But you see, legislation, foreseeing time difficulty of the Manager's being tied down to a certain 
number of visits per week, has provided for either a Manager or under-manager being in daily attendance? 
A. Yes; I recognise that, 
15302. Q. Therefore legislation has contemplated the impossibility, or time objections that may be raised 
to a Manager being tied in any way in his movements? A. Well, I recognise the fact of the appoint-
merit of the under-manager. At the same time 1 think that, in some cases, too much is delegated to him; 
and Managers, in some cases, spend more time on the surface than is absolutely necessary. 
15303. Q. In some cases? A. Yes, in some cases. I speak with reservation. 
15301, Q. Do not you think that the average Manager is fully seized with his responsibilities, and carries 
out his duties, according to his discretion, to the utmost of his ability P A. Generally speaking, I think 
so; but I do not see any objection to requiring them to visit underground two or three times a week, so 
far as is reasonably practicable. 
1530.5. Q. But you can see that, the larger the mine, the more administrative duties be has to perform, 
and, nowadays, time Manager is more frequently called away on clerical or legal or commercial work than 
formerly? A. Yes; I daresay that that may operate to a certain extent; butT do not know of any mines 
in New South Wales where a Manager might not reasonably get down into the workings, under ordinary 
circumstances, two or three times a week. 
15300. Q. But do not you see the danger of putting anything down in an Act of Parliament tying the 
Manager down in the slightest in his movements P A. 1 do not see any danger, so far as ]ooking after 
the safety of the men is concerned. 
13307. Q. But did you, as Manager of large collieries, find it possible, on every occasion, to go underground 
two or three times a week? A. Well, the exceptions to that would be quite unusual ; for instance, if I 
was taking a holiday, or anything of that sort. 
13308. Q. It is within your knowledge, I suppose, that Managers in this, the Southern district, have 
been, particularly last year, called away on other duties—necessary duties—and had to be away, and stay 
away, from the mine for days, practically weeks P A. Yes, Well, that would be proindecf for in the 
legislation, if such was brought about. 1 only ask that he should do it when reasonably practicable. 
15309. lIly. Robertson.] Well, to may mind, the responsibilities that are placed upon the Manager should 
be a sufficient check—a good enough whip to any man. 
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15370. Witness.] Generally speaking, they are ; but I think there are cases where I think they are not. 
15371. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Summed up, Mr. Atkinson, you think it wiser, safer, for the Manager to delegate 
clerical work and outside work, than for him to delegate the practical management of the colliery? 
A. Well, I do not know that it is desirable for me to make any such distinction. I do not think I can 
add anything to what I have already said. 
15372. Q. Would this be a way out of the difficulty suggested by Mr. Robertson: that it might be 
provided that if Managers desired to absent themselves for more than a fortnight, they should get special 
permission from the Chief Inspector? A. Well, I do not think that is a necessary provision. 
15373. Q. You make no further suggestion on that? 
15374. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Do I understand you to say that those two or three visits a week should be 
in the aggregate a complete visit to the whole of the mine? A. No, I do not suggest that, because it is 
not possible. 
15375. Q. You do not say how much he should see of the mine? A. No, I do not say that. 
15376. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. You mean that he ought to see as much as possible in those two or three visits? 
A. As much as is reasonably practicable. 
15377. Mr. Robertson] Q. Should it be a matter of physical capacity, or should it be a matter of discretion 
as to what part of the mine he considers it is necessary for him to see ;—is not it conceivable that a 
Manager might go down the mine every day for a week, and visit one particular point? A. Yes, I think 
it should be left to his own discretion. 
15378. Mr. Ritchie ] Q. Of course, you do not mean by that that he may, in order to comply with the 
provision of the Act, simply get to the bottom of the shaft and come up again? A. No, certainly not. 
15379. Mr. Bruce Smith.] You could not define how long he should stay in. 
15380 Mr. Ritchie.] No. 
15381. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Recomin€ndation No. 10— size of manholes—Do you know this proposal, that 
they should be whitewashed? A. Well, it is a very good direction. 
15382. Q. You approve of that? A. Well, there may be cases where whitewash would blacken so soon 
that to make the whitewashing of any real effect it might require to be done every two or three days, or 
every week, perhaps ; but, generally speaking, it is a good thing to distinguish the position of the 
manholes. 
15383. Q. Would you approve of the recommendation that they be whitewashed and kept renewed from 
time to time—it would not be much erpense, would it? A. I do not think that is a matter which the 
Legislature should be asked to deal with. 
15384. Q. Or a Special Rule? A. I do not think that. 
153S5. Air. Robertson.] Q. Do you know that there are hundreds of manholes in sonic collieries? A. Yes. 
1.538G. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. I suppose you have seen manholes whitewashed? A. Yes. 
15387. Q. It is not entirely new? A. No. 
15388. Mr. Lysag/it.] Q. As a matter of fact, in placcs where there would be a lot of traffic the manholes 
would want to be whitewashed once a week os once a month, but other places would require to be 
whitewashed only once in twelve months ? A. Possibly. 
1.5389. Q. I think you approve of the recommendation that employees should be instructed on the ways 
out of the mine? A. Yes. 
1590. Q. You did not say anything about the direction boards? 
15391. Mr. Ritchie.] Yes, he did. 
15302. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Mr. Atkinson, you can see the difficulty in a very large mine of giving effect 
to this recommendation ; where there are so many outlets, so many miles to travel, it would become 
unworkable to show every man in every district the outlets in that district and every other district. Do 
notyou think it would comply with your idea if the employees were shown in alternative route, because 
there are many alternative routes A. I only suggest that they be shown the road every three months. 
I do not intend to convey by that that they should travel every possible route every three months, but 
only the route from their own districts. 
15393. Q. Yes, but there may be half a dozen routes ;—would it meet your views if they were shown one 
alternative route? 
15394. His Honor.] Or as many alternative routes as the Inspector might from time to time prescribe—
how would that do? 
15395. AJi. Robertson.] Q. It is ver' easy ;—if there are half a dozen roads from a district, do you require 
thni to be shown every road ? A. I think it would be better to show them one road specially, if that 
road was well-defined, so that in the event of their getting into it they would not get lost in the old 
workings—the pillars. 
15390. Q. Yes, but the majority of those return airways cannot be described as well-defined. Do you 
think that travelling once would be sufficient to educate the men on the way out P A. Well, I think it is 
probable that a number of men who travel once would be able to find their way out, although each 
individual man going alone might not be able to do so. 
15397. Q. Do not you think that in the multitude of councillor, without having been shown the way out 
at all, they would find their way out? A. Well, generally speaking, that may be so but I think that 
they should be afforded some opportunity of learning alternative routes. 
15398. Q. What I want to know is, do you think it necessary to show them every alternative route out, 
or would one be sufficient? A. Well, taking the case of the Kembla Mine, I think it would be desirable 
that they should know the way out by the daylight heading, and also by the heading near to the 
Manager's house and the suggestions as to one alternative route would hardly cover those two. 
15399. Q. Then the men working here (No. 1 Maui Right section) would have to he shown this way (the 
daylight heading), and also this way (route via Long-wall faces round to Adit Manager's day hole) P 
A. Yes, but I do not suggest that that should be done each auarter. They should, be shown the route out 
from their own district each quarter. 
15100. Q. Yes, but from this district there are those two ways. One might be blocked. Should the 
men be shown the way out by both? A. Well, during the course of the next three months, or whenever 
they got into the other district, they would then have the opportunity of knowing the way out of this 
other district. I admit that to put it into language is rather difficult, to suit all the cases which might 
arise ; but, as a general rule, the miners should be made aware of the ways out. 
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15101. Mr. Robertson] I consider it is absolutely impracticable. 
151.02. Mr. Lysaglit.] (1. Regarding Recommendation No. 19-black-list-you said you did not think that 
such legislation as was suggested should have a place in the Coal Mines Regulation Act? A. Yes. 
15403. Q. Well, in what Act do you think it should have a place? 
15104. His Honor.] That is a very big question. 
15105. A. It is. I could not say. 
15406. Mr. Lqsaq/it.l Q. Where is the objection at all to having it in the Coal Mines Regulation Act? 
A. Well, the Coal Mines Regulation Act is framed for the purpose of looking after the safety of the 
workmen. 
15407. Q. Do not you know that there are a large number of provisions in the Coal Mines Act-for 
instance, the recovery of wages, and other things like that-that have nothing to do with the safety of 
the men ? A. Yes, I am aware of that. 
15108. Q.  Now, where is the objection to having that legislation, if at all, in the Coal Mines Regulation 
Bill, as it is in the American laws ? A. Well, in my opinion, I think it is undesirable and unnecessary. 
15409. Q. That is on the whole principle? That is that the legislation is undesirable and unnecessary P 
A. Yes. 
1.5410. Mr. Bruce Smith.] He did not say so. He said it was undesirable to have it in the Coal Mines 
Regulation Bill. 
15411. Mi. Lysaqht.] Q. Where is the objection to having it in the Coal Mines Act, any more than in 
any other Act? 
15112. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. The question is, first, do you believe that it should be legislated upon at all? 
A. I should just like to hear the terms of the recommendation. 
15413. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Ritchie, do you include in an Act the Rules and Regulations under that 
Act ? There may be power given in an Act to make rules. 
15414. Mr. Ritchie.] I mean, should this principle, which the recommendation speaks of here, be 
embodied in any Act of Parliament P 
15415. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Do you include in the Act the Rules made under the Act, and having the 
same force as the Act? 
15416. Mr. Ritchie.] Just the same as they are under the Coal Mines Regulation Act. 
15417. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. (After reading Recommendation No. 19.) Now, firstly, do you say that those 
matters should not be legislated upon at all P 
15418. Mr. Bruce Smith objected to the question. 
15419. His Honor.] That is the question Mr. Ritchie was putting, and Mr. Lysaght took it up. 
15420. Mr. Ritchie.] I prefer to have it put in the way that Mr. Lysaght has put it. If he answers that, 
it will answer me. 
15421. A. I have not considered the question in that aspect very much; and I think it is really a matter 
for the Commission to decide. 
15422. Q. Then you have no opinion to offer on the matter at all? A. No. 
15423. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Well, supplementary to that, you recognise, by receiving anonymous communi-
cations, that men are afraid to report? A. Yes. 
15421. Q. You knowthat the directions of the Home Secretary are that the }Iome Inspectors shall 
receive anonymous communications and give them every attention? A. I do. 
15125. Q. The same principle was recognised in England P A. Yes. 
15426. Q.  Now, if the Commission think there should be legislation upon that subject, what objection is 
there to that legislation being in the Coal Mines Act, which deals with a lot of other things besides the 
safety of the mine? A. I do net see that the case which you have put alters my opinion, Mr. Lysaght. 
15427. Q. I want to know why it should not be in the Coal Mines Act, if at all? 
15128. Hr. Bruce Smith.] I will ask your Honor, really, is this a matter upon which Mr. Atkinson's 
opinion can be asked P lie is an expert in coal_mining, and this is really a question of legislation. 
15429. His Honor.] A question of that kind had better be asked of a Parliamentary expert or a legal 
expert. I think it is hardly fair to put a question like that to it coal-mines expert. 
15430. Xr. Lysoqht.] With every respect, your Honor, Mr. Bruce Smith asked him 

Q. Well, Recommendation No. it) was that question of a black-list. What do you say about that? 
A. Well, as this is a matter not affecting in any way the safety of the persons employed in or about 
mines, I am of opinion that it should not have any place in the Coal Mines Regulation Act. As to 
whether the question should be dealt with by legislation is a matter for the Commission." 

15131. Q. Now, I ask you, having told Mr. Bruce Smith that you did not think it should have a place in the 
Coal Mines Act, why should it not have a place in the Coal Mines Act? 
15132. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I understood that Mr. Lysaght was going to quote something to justify him 
in asking this question, because I asked ilr. Atkinson somnethiug. He has done nothing of the kind. I 
asked Mr. Atkinson, "What do you say about that?" And Mr. Atkinson simply said, as to the propriety 
of putting it in an Act, that is a matter for the Commission. Why should all this be raked up now ; and 
what is the relevancy of quoting my general questions? 
15433. His honor.] It does not matter, Mr. Lysaght, whether it has been asked before. It is a matter 
for the Commission to decide whether it is a proper thing to waste time by asking a coal-mines expert a 
question on legislative policy which had better be asked of a Chief Secretary. If he had been a Chief 
Secretary for some years, it might be put. 
15134. Mr. Lysaght.] Very well, Your Honor. I suppose Your Honor will take it that it is scarcely fair 
to ask Mr. Atkinson any questions on these new recommendations yet. 
15135. Ills Honor.] if he prefers -- 
15436. Witness.] I would prefer, Your Honor, to have an opportunity of considering them. 
15437. His Honor.] Some of them may be simple enough; others may not be. 
15438. Mr. Bruce Smith.] lloiv many are there that are new? 
15139. jlhr. Lysqht.] Four, except this addition to No. 16 about the size of the manholes. 
15110. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Generally I would ask that the same course be pursued in regard to these that 
has been pursued in regard to the others-that Mr. Lvsaght's cross-examivation of him should come after 
he has expressed his tentative opinion. 
15141. Ills Honor.] Yes ; but it is convenient for Mr. Lysaght to ask him his tentative opinion. 
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15412. Mr. Bruce Snith.] But be had the advantage in the other case of studying them word by word, 
and thinking them out. 
15443. His Honor.] If Mr. Atkinson requires time to consider them, it is as well that he should have it 
But, as to the size of the manholes, that is a question lie has already had time to consider : and now it 
is suggested that they should be a certain size; and that is a question that could be, reasonably enough, 
put to him. 
15444. Mr. 4saqlil.1 Q. I think you have already said what you thought adequate? ii. I should like to 
know what the proposal is. 
15443. Q. Six feet high, 6 feet deep, and 3 fct wide, and to be whitewashed? A. Well, I think it would 
be better if I had a little time to consider that. 
15416. Q. Regarding this addition to Recommendation No. 13-" Travelling and haulage roads, and other 
places necessary, to be properly watered; and all travelling, main, and horse roads to be 0 feet high F 
A. Yes; I should like that. 
15417. Q. You approve of that ? A. I do not say I approve of it; but I would like it. If the seam is 
only 4 feet high, it might become a question of a great deal of cost to maintain a 6-foot road, although, 
personally, I should like it. - 
13148. Mi. Bruce iS'nsifh.] Q. And it might become a danger to the roof? A. There is the question of 
cost in taking down the roof-stone. 
15449. His Ronor.l Q. Is it safe to interfere with the roof, or is it better not to interfere with the roof? 
A. I do not suggest that as a reason for not making it 6 feet high ; but the principal question would be 
one of cost. 
15450. Q. Supposing you had a roof which was in a safe condition, but might get into a hanging 
coiidition, what would you say as to the advisability of knocking holes in it, in order to make these 
manholes (I feet high? A. The breaking of the roof? 
15151. Q. Yes. Where you have a roof running from 5 ft. to 5 ft. 6 in. up, and you do not treat that 
as of sullicient height-that is a solid roof, immediately over the coal-is there or is there not a likelihood 
of an injurious effect by making holes in it to give this increased height to the manholes F A. In some 
cases I think so. I think it is unnecessary to define the height of travelling roads. 
13432. Ills Honor.] This is a suggestion dealing with the height of the manholes. 
15453. Mr. Lysaglit.] No, We are on the travelling roads now. The suggestion was that all travelling, 
Iran, and horse roads be 6 feet high. Mr. Atkinson said lie would like it, but there might be a difficulty 
in carrying it out. 
15454. Q. Now, may I take it that, where the seam is 6 feet high or over, there would be no difficulty in 
carrying it out? A. Well, I think that the suggestion that I should have a little time to consider these 
matters might be carried out. 
15455. Q. Then there is added to that, "The travelling and haulage roads to be properly timbered and 
kept clear of any tops that may have fallen "P A.Well, I understand that I am to have time to consider 
these. 
15456. Q. Then, on the 18th Recommendation-the instruction of employees on the way out-this 
addition is proposed : " And that all escape shafts be properly equipped with means to draw men in case 
of accident, and proper means of signalling be also fixed " ? A. Yes, I believe in that. 
15157. Q. So that the one from Lithgow, and that from Newcastle---which says, "Proper machinery to 
be kept at the second shaft outlet to lift all employees to the surface within one hour "-are practically 
the same suggestion P A. Well, you continue to go on with these, and it has already been agreed that I 
should have time to consider them. 
15458. iWi'. Lysaglit.J I beg your pardon. I thought it was understood that you could go on and answer 
some of them. 
15159. Witness.] No; I prefer to have time. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade: 
15460. Q. You gave, nearly a week ago, a number of suggestions that have been offered for allaying the 
dust in coal-mines? A. Yes.' 
15101. Q. One suggestion was the use of (leliquescent salts, was it not? A. Yes. 
15002. -Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not know that be suggested that. 
15403. Witness.] No; I mentioned that they

ons now. lie mentioned, first of all, 
had, been used. 

15161. Mr.IVade.] I am coming to his suggesti suggestions put 
forward by different people. Now I am coming to his own particular view of the matter. 
1546.5. Q. Would you suggest the use of deliquescent salts as a practical method? A. No, I would not. 
15466. Q. Now, another suggestion which you quoted was spraying at the screens of the downcast? 
A. Yes. 
13467. Q. That would be actually outside the pit? A. Yes. 
15403. Q. Now, bearing in mind the relative positions of the screens and the tunnel mouth at Mount 
Kenibla, do you see any occasion, even at the present moment, to suggest sprays at the screens? A. No 
I do not think it would have the effect there of preventing the dust going into the tunnel mouth, which 
is the object of such sprays wherever they are used. 
15109. Q. And there is a considerable distance between the screens and the tunnel mouth at Mount 
Kembla? A. Yes; I do not exactly know how far. 
15470. (7. Sixty or 70 feet at least? A. I should think so, yes. 
13171. (7. And a large portion of that is open air? A. Before you arrive at the underground. 
15472. (7. There is a zinc roof, open on both sides? A. Yes. 
15473. (7. And the screens face down hill, away from the tunnel mouth. A. Yes, 
15174. Q. Another suggestion you have quoted is watering certain set lengths? A, Yes. 15175. (7. Do you think that, by itself, would be a certain safeguard against the spread of all explosion? 
A. If done thoroughly over a certain length, separating districts, it has been found to be possible to prevent 
the spread of explosions. 
15476. Q. Has not experience shown that, in some instances, these lengths, being watered and damped, 
have not stopped the spread of explosions? A. No; I do not know of any particular eases where it has been regularly attended to. - 
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15477. Q. Did not Mr. ilall say so, in the Pen.ygraig ease? A. Yes. Mr. Hall mentioned what 
happened between the two districts in the Pen-y-graig Colliery. 
15478, Q. And in that ease had not that explosion travelled over a wet area of tunnel? A. I think be 
says that the districts were separated by a stone drift, and suggests that there was no coal-dust in that 
drift; although I do not know what guarailtee he had that there was no coal-dust in the stone drift. On 
the other hand, there are numerous instances where explosions have been known to be stopped by wet 
lengths. 
15479. Q. I see it is referred to here (page 399 of the evidence). Mr. hall's opinion is, "I imagine that, 
at any rate in a coal-dust explosion, there will always be a pioneering cloud of dust travelling forward in 
advance of the actual flame, sufficient to feed the explosion for some distance when passing over ground 
either damp or free from dust "P A. Yes ; I have read that. 
15180. Q. So you have that element in every explosion in which coal-dust is concerned-there is a 

iomsnng cloud of coal-dust in advance of the actual flame? A. Yes. 

15I81. Q,  And, if you only water limited portions, you run the risk that the pioneering cloud of dust may 
be stifflcient to carry the explosion over the damp part? A. Yes, if it is not sufficiently long. 
1 5482. Q. So that you are really driven back to this, that, if you are going to water the roads at all, the 
partial application of water is not sufficient-it should be thorough and continuous? A. Well, it would 
be better, although there are several cases on record where the wet lengths have stopped explosions, and 
men have actually got out of the district. 
15483. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Did the wet lengths at Kemnbia stop the explosion ? A. Well, the explosion 

was confined to the No. 1 Right district. 
15181. Q. But it came right out and wrecked ihe buildings at the tunnel mouth ? A. Well, I could not. 
describe the entrance to the tunnel, where there are some drops of water, as a wet length. 
15185. Q. Is it not a fact that the tunnel, from the entrance right to the junction of No.  1, was always in 
a damp condition, and that there are sections along the No. 1 main heading itself, which are wet, and 
always were? A. Yes ; there are places where, particularly, there is damp on the floor; but I do not 
know of any which could be described as sufficiently wet to constitute a wet length on that No. I Right. 
15450. Q. But is not that main tunnel, from the tunnel mouth to the junction of the No. 1, damp ; and 
has not it always been in a damp condition? A. Yes ; there are drops from the roof in a few places. 
15487. Q. But is not it all along ? A. I think not sufficient to prevent the deposition of some dust on the 

side, for instance. 
15488. AIr. Robertson.] Well, I beg to differ from you, Mr. Atkinson. As far as my observation has gone, 
that was always a damp section ; and, moreover, it is not driven in the coal, but in the stone ; and that 
was not sufficient to arrest the explosion. 
15189. Mr. Bruce Ssmi/lt.] Well, Mr. Robertson, is not there a very great difference between the gencratiqn 
of a fresh explosion in a wet place, and the passing of an explosion over a wet part of the mine? 
15490. A&. Robertson.] But here is an explosion carried right through a long damp section, 300 yards, 
I suppose, in length. 
15191. Mr. Bruce Smith.] There is no evidence that any fresh explosion took place in that length. 
15492. .Mr. Robertson.] I did not say it was a fresh explosion; but I do say, here was an explosion that 
was carried right through this long damp section of 300 yards; therefore damp sections, unless they 
exceed 300 yards-I am assuming, of course, that that is the length of the section-will, in certain cases 
fail to arrest the explosion. 
15493. Mr. Wade.] Q. Now, let us take the first few hundred yards from the tunnel mouth in Mount 
Kemnbia to the junction of No. 1 Right, as a matter of fact the roof there is stone P A. Yes. 

15191. Q. And the deposit of coal-dust in the roof is very slight indeed? A. Yes. 

15195. Q. And are there not patches from time to time between the tunnel mouth and the 4th Right, the 
floor of which, at all events, was damp at that time ? A. Well, I think that is so, more particularly on 
the travelling road, in two or three places. 
15196. Q. But is not there a swallow somewhere between the 4th Right and the 2nd Right, a hollow where 
water collects ? A. I do not think there is at that point. 
15197. Q. Where is it, do you know? A. There is a little water on time inbye side of the 4th Right. 
15198. Q. Do you know the 3rd Right, that is on the ontbye side of the 4th Right? A. Yes. 

15199. Q. Is not there a Bump, or hollow, there for the collection of water; and is not the water drawn 
from that hollow, eventually, out of the mine by pipes? A. I think the hollow that you refer to is beyond 

the .4th Right. 
15500. Q. But you do not know of any hollow anywhere near the 3rd. Right? Q. I do not remember that. 

15501. Q. Now, with regard to this question of watering certain sections, Mr. hall is a man of vast 
experience? A. Yes, be is. 
15502. Q. And it man whose judgment you rely upon, whose judgment you would not question, at all 
events ? A. Oh yes, 1 wouldquestion him. I would not altogether agree with him. 
15503. Q. It is a fairly responsible step to take, at the present day, is it not, to decline to recommend 
watering at all along the roads? Q. Yes, it is. 
15501. Q. lIe has taken that step, has he not P A. Well, I think it practically amounts to that. 
15505. Q. Here it is, page 1397, in the same extract from his report, "In this inspection district," that 
is referring to the district over which he has control P A. The Liverpool district. 
15506. Q. " In this inspection district, attempts to deal systematically with the dust throughout the mine 
by means of water have been abandoned " ? A. Yes. 
15507. Q. And then his suggestion is that precautions should be taken to water in the vicinity of shots? 
A. Yes. 
15508. Q. You can see this, that there is some risk that a damp area may not be sufficient to arrest the 
pm'ogress of an explosion? A. Yes, I think so. 
15508k. Q. It is a question which has not been definitely decided as to what length is absolutely necessary, 
so that you are driven, logically, to this position, that the watering must be throughout the length and 
breadth of the mine-that is, logically, we will come to the question of practicability afterwards ? A. I 
do not see that exactly. It is a matter of some difference of opinion yet, I admit; but I also say, and cata 
show proof,_that wet lengths have, in some eases, arrested explosions. 
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15509. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Do you know of cases where dusty places have also arrested the explosion ; 
or, at all events, where the explosion has stopped at dusty places? A. Yes, I have also heard of that. 
15510. Mr. Wade.] Q. Did not that happen at Camerton? 
13511. ALr. Robertson.] Q. Did not that happen at Kembla? 
1.3.512. AIr. Bruce Smith.i It does not follow, because they stopped, that they were arrested. 
15513. Mr. Robertson.] But they stopped; and, logically, one argument is as good as the other. 
15514. Mr. Wade.] Q. Is not that what happened at Camerton, that the explosion was stopped by dusty 
lengths ? A. I forget now ; but sometimes the stoppage is attributed to the stoney condition of the dust 
where it has been stopped. 
1555. Q. And also to the want of air, even on the main intake, arresting the explosion? A. I do not 
remember a case of that sort. 
15516. Q. But you can conceive of that? A. On the main intake? It would be very improbable that 
there would be a shortness of air in an intake. 
15517. Q. Well, leave that out ;-say on a road where there is dust, and the dusty condition might be 
expected to feed the explosion, the explosion has not gone on, but has stopped, apparently from want of 
air, and not from want of dust ? A. I think it is unlikely to happen. 
15518. Q. But the difficulty you have to contend with, the risk, is this that the pioneering cloud of coal-
dust may be sucient to cross over the damp area? A. Yes. 
15519. Q. And the length of pioneering dust you cannot foretell? A. Not very well. 
15520. Q. Now, would you suggest the watering of the haulage roads, speaking generally? A. Where 
dry and dusty. Of course, that is a term which has never been properly defined yet; and some care 
should be taken to define it. 
15521. Q. Whatever it means, you have said, I think, that you would not apply that term to Kernbla-a 
"dry and dusty" mine? A. I have said that, on certain portions of the haulage roads, you could call it 
dry and dusty ; but that you could not, call it altogether a dry and dusty mine. 
15522. Q. You have told us, I think, that watering the floor may lead to a creep sometimes? A. Yes; it 
causes the floor to lift. 
15523. Q. And watering the roof may lead to disintegration of the strata? A. Yes. 
15524. Q. Do you think it would have any effect on the timber, supposing there is timber in the road 
that you are watering? A. Well, timber generally lasts longer in a dry mine than a wet one; and adding 
water to it may have the effect, to some extent, of rotting the timber. 
15525. Q. That is, where the air of the mine is naturally damp, the timber perishes sooner than it does in 
a mine where it is dry? A. Yes. 
15526. Q. And I suppose that watering it continuously would have the same effect, even in a dry mine? 
A. To some extent it might. 
15527. Q. Could you say how many gallons it would take per mile to water the floor, say? A. Well, in 
order to water to any good effect it should be thoroughly watered. 
15528. Q. Yes. A. Well, I have seen it estimated variously. Of course, it depends to a great extent on 
the quantity of air which is passing. 
15529. Q. Take a mine of normal temperature first, and leave the hot ones till afterwards? A. It depends 
to a great extent on the quantity of air which is passing, because it will lick up the moisture ; and, of 
course, as you suggest, it would depend on the temperature. 
15530. Q. Take a mine with a normal temperature, and leave the hot ones till afterwards P A. I have 
seen a calculation that a quarter of a gallon to a square yard was sufficient to water the roadway. 
15531. Q. Now, take the case of a mine with a high temperature, would the watering require to be done 
more frequently in that case ? A. Yes. 
15532. Q. And what would be the effect on the men themselves of continual watering in a mine of high 
temperature ? A. Well, I think it generally has a cooling effect. 
15533. Q. Would not it tend to make the air very moist? A. If it required an abnormally large quantity 
of water; although, where they have watered in dry and dusty and hot mines, I think the general effect 
has been to reduce the temperature of the air without adding to the discomfort of the workmen. 
15534. Q. But, although you would have the reduced temperature, you would have much more moisture 
in the air, would you not P A. Yes ; I suppose there would be. 
15535. Q. Now, with regard to the removal of the dust bodily-do you think that is practicable-that is, 
carting the dust that lies on the floor out bodily? A. No; I do not think that is practicable. 
15536. Q. And that has been condemned, has it not, by various authorities? A. Well, it is very often 
resorted to, even after the watering, to prevent the accumulation getting too great. 
15537. Q. Well, of course, take this case, where a lump of coal may fall off the skip, it is only tidiness to 
clean that up P A. Yes, that is so. 
15538. Q. But I am speaking, of course, of the fine dust that is deposited on the roadway, say, from the 
travelling of the skips, or anything like that? A. Yes; generally speaking, the idea of bodily removing 
the dust, with a view to ensure perfect safety, cannot be relied on ; but there are cases where it is 
desirable to occasionally remove deposits of dust, especially if they do not water. 
13339. Q. if they do not water occasionally, it ought to be removed? A. Although it cannot be relied 
upon as an effectually safe method, or practicable. 
13340. Q. Now, with regard to all these explosions in England, which have given rise to the elaboration of 
the coal-dust theory, has not nearly every one of those been traced to a shot in the main road? A. Most 
of them ; several of them have. 
15541. Q. Have not most of them P A. Well, I could not say that most of them have. 
13542. Q. is not Tudhoe one of them? A. Yes. 
15343. Q.  Was not Seaham? A. Yes. 
15514. Q. Usworth? A. Yes. 
15345. Q. Those are the three leading cases P A. Yes ; well, there were several others in South Wales. 
15.546. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Albion ? A. Albion was very  reckless blasting on the haulage road. 
15317. Mr. lade.] Q. Was not Canierton the explosion in Somerset that was said to be pure coal-dust? 
A. Yes, 
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15547k. Q. That was from a shot in the haulage road? A. Yes. 
1551$. Q. And what about Timsbury ;-was not that the same? A. Tiinsbury was a shot as well. 
15549. (7. In all those cases, was it not a fact that the vicinity of the shot had not been watered? A. Yes. 
15550. (7. And there was dust? A. Yes. 
15551. Q. So, do not you think that when you have a place that is dry and dusty in the vicinity of a shot, 
if you thoroughly allay the dust in the vicinity for practical purposes, you secure safety ? A. If that is 
done, I think you do. Of course, there is lust the remaining possibility of anyone tampering with the 
safety-lamp, which would not be covered by that. 
13352. Q. But I will take a case even where you do not use the safety-lamp -take the case of a man 
blasting a shot in a main road that is dusty ; supposiug the dust is either removed from the neighbourhood 
of the shot or it is properly damped, does not that practically secure .safetv ? A. Yes; if that is properly 
attended to. 
1355:3. Q. And you know that there is a certain limit to the flame that spurts out from a shot? A. Well, 
putting it in another way, 20 yards of watering is supposed to cover any possible danger from the flame. 
15551. Q. That is all you want to guard against by watering-to have no dry dust in contact with the 
possible limit of the flame of the shot P A. In order to safeguard any ill effects from shot-firing. 
15555. AIr. l?obes-tson.] Q. In the case of those explosions you have referred to, can you say whether, in 
any one instance, safety explosives were used-" permitted explosives "P A. No; they were all gunpowder, 
blasting powder. 
15550. Q. Or dynamite? A. Or, in the case of Albion, I believe it was dynamite. 
15.557. Mr. Wade.] Q. And the nature of the explosive, again, may further tend to the safety of shot-
firing? A. Yes. 
15538. Q. And the condition of the watering? A. Yes. 
153.59. Q. And by these " perniitled explosives" you either limit the length of flame or else you do away 
with the fiamna altogether P A. Yes ; you reduce the danger to a minimum. 
1350). Q. Now, is not this a fact, too, with regard to all these explosions I have quoted-Tnlhoe, Seaham, 
Usworth, and s i on - that the haulage was at a high velocity P A. I think it was all on the main and tail 
rope system. 
15501. Q. And, under that system, the trains travel up to, sometimes, 10 and 12 miles an hour? A. Yes, they do. 
15502. Q. And they would be travelling out against the air' P A. Yes. 
15563. Q. So that you have the pace of the intake air meeting the pace of the outgoing train of coal? 
A. Yes, that is so. 
15304. Q. And that fact tended to set up almost a cloud of dust, did it not, from the travelling train of 
coal? A. Yes; it tended to cause the deposition of more coal-dust on the roadways. 
15305. Q. And that finer dust would probably settle on the roof and sides P A. The roof and sides. 
15560. Q. Can you tell me this, either from your reading or your own knowledge, are not most of the coal 
skips in the old country open ; that is, not dust-tight P A. Well, they are not dust-tight, but in South 
Wales they were a good deal more open than in other parts of the country. 
15567. (7. In South Wales they are absolutely open? A. Yes ; only two large bars across to keep the 
coal in. 
15508. (7. So that, in those cases,apart froin the deposition of the dust on the roof and sides, all the coarser 
dust could be shaken out from the tub on the roadivay P A. That applies particularly to the South Wales 
description of tub. 
15.509. Q. So that it is in the haulage roads that you get the greatest deposit of fine dust? A. Yes. 
15570. Q. Under those conditions, main and tail rope, travelling at a fair velocity P A. Yes. 
15571. Q. And, to make the dust explosive, that is, to help in a coal-dust explosion, roust not you have 
certain conditions operating, or combining, in the dust itself P A. Well, you require to have a cloud of 
dust. 
15572. Q. There would be a cloud first? A. And the dust would be fine. 
1557.3. Q. And the dust has to be of a certain fineness? A. It has to be fine; yes. 
15574. (7. I mean, every fine dust will not necessarily be explosive ? A. You are referi-ing to coal-dust. 
15575. (7. Yes ;  there roust be a certain purity about it, must there not? A. Well, I am not very sure 
about that, whether they have found that any coal-dust was absolutely impervious to explosion. 
15576. Air. Robertsom] Would not the percentage of volatile matters be a factor? A. Yes, it would, cci t airily. 

15577. Q. That is to say, given two dusts of the same degree of fineness, the one that contained the 
greatest percentage of volatile matter P A. Would be the more explosive. 
1357$. Air. JVaile.] Q. And the liability to explosion of coal-dust depends, to some extent on ths length 
of time it has been lying exposed to the air? A. I think it is generally admit ted that air passing over 
dust makes it more sensitive to explesion. 
15370. Q. Now, so much with regard to the haulage roads, the main haulage coal. Take the horse roads 
that are used for feeding the flats to make the train up ; ihere is practically no dust in the roof of those 
horse roads, is there ? A. Well, there may be a vel-y little dust, after the passage of a large quantity 
over a certain roadway ; but it would be much less than you would be likely to find in a haulage road. 
15580. Q. And one i-eason is that there is less coal passing over that horse road iu the course of a day ? 
A. Yes. 
1558l. Q. And another reason is that the pace the horse travels drawing the skip is mitch slower than the 
pace the train travels P A. Usually, especially if it is main and tail rope. 
1.3582. Q. 1 am speaking of main and tail rope, in drawing the comparison. Then, again, the dmmt you 
get inthe actual working places has not got the age that the dust in the haulage rQad has, has it P 
A. No. 
15583. Q. A nd, therefore, I suppose, it is less likely to be explosive ? A. Generally speaking, yes. 
15381. Q. And, in addition to that, \vhel-e you are tilling all the coal away, shandy-gaff, or shovel-filling, 
as they call it, you get less dust still in the working places? A. Yes, less than if they were filling with 
the fork. 
13585. Q. Yes. A. Well, I do not know. There might be a little difference; but 1 (10 not, think it would affect it much. 
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15580. Q. But you know that, when filling with the fork, there is always a certain amount of small coal 
left behind P A. Yes. 
15587. Q. And when you are filling with the shovel it is all put in the skip P A. Yes. 
15588. Q. Now, just take Kembla for a moment they have the enliess rope system there, have they cot P 
A. Yes. 
15589. Q. Do you know how long they have had that P A. I could not say exactly ; but I think it was in 
operation before I came. 
15590. (9. Do you know what pace those skips travel up P A. Tivo or 3 miles an hour, I think. 
15591. (9. Three would be the very outside A. Yes. 
15592. (9. And are not those tubs dust.tiglit P A. The iron tubs P 
15593. Q. There are a number of iron tubs which are absolutely dust-tight P 1. Yes, but .1 could not say 
the same with regard to the wooden tubs. 

LAt 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.] 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m. Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the Evidence and Proceedings) 

ALFRED ASHLEY ATKINSON, previously sworn, was fdrther examined as under:- 

Cross-examination by Nr. Wade :- 

13594. Q. In these horse-roads there is always a certain amount of impuriths mixed with the (lust 
A. Yes, with the floor-dust. Where the horses travel they disturb some of the stones composing the floor. 
13395. Q. There is also the dung of the horses? A. Yes. 
15596. (9. Do these impurities tend to make the coal less explosive? A. They do. 
15.597. (9. In regard to the travelling roads-there is no coal drawn through them at Kenibla? A. No. 
15598. (9. And do the horses travel in by these roads? A. I think they do in some places. 
15599. (9. There is nothing in the condition of the travelling roads in Kembia to help an explosion from 
coal-dust? A. Part of the travelling roads are rather dusty. 
13600(9. Whereabouts? A. There is some dust between the 4th Right and the 5th Right. 
15601. Q. Is not that dust largely mixed up with stone dust? A. To a certain extent it is. 
15602. Q. Large pieces of stone are lying on the travelling road and also stone-dust ? A. Yes. 
15603. Q. Now, with regard to this opening at the 4th Right. Do you know how the coal came out from 
the 4th Right ; was it by horses or by means of the rope? A. It would be attached to an endless rope 
just after it came out of the 4th Right. 
15604. Q. Do you mean up to the point of what you call the edge of the goaf-up to that point would it be 
brought out by a horse? 11. Yes. 
15605. Q. And from that point just mentioned to where it actually joins the main No. 1 there would be an 
endless rope? A. It would join the endless rope on the No. 1 main level. 
15606. Q. There is a pillar-line on the eastern side of No. 1 Lack heading ? A. Yes. 
15607. Q. Now, between the pillar-line and No. 1 main rope road, how dces the coal travel-was it by 
horse? A. Well, I do not know whether the horse was taken to No, 1 main rope road or whether the coal 
was taken by hand a certain distance. 
15608. Q. The endless rope did not operate anywhere inside the opening into the 4th Right off No. 1 
main level? A. No. 
13609. Q. Was there not a gutter near the 4th Right? A. I do not remember seeing a gutter; but 
I remember seeing some water between the travelling road and the goaf edge in the 4th Right. 
15610. Q. When did you see that? A. After the explosion. 
15611. Q. You were in the mine within twenty-four hours after the explosion ? A. Yes. 
13612. Q. Did you see where that water came from; did it come down the travelling road or out of the 
4th Right? A. Out of the 4th Right I should say. - 
15613. 0. You say you saw some water lying there-to what extent was it? A. Suliicient to require me to 
be careful not to get wet in the feet. 
15614. Q. Did it stretch across the road from one rib to the other? A. I think you could manage to get 
right up to the goaf edge with care. 
15615. Q. Over what length did it extend-measured from the travelling road towards the goaf edge-an 
extent of feet, or yards, or what ? A. I could not say exactly. I think the water would be in the last 
20 yards from the travelling road-that is, as far as I can remember. 
15616. Q. Now you saw some debris, or rubbish, heaped against the outbye side of some rollers, going inbyc 
the 4th Right ? A. Yes, I noticed that. 
15617. (9. What was it composed of ? A. Small pieces of coal, I think. 
15618. (9. Were they like the chippings that came from hewing the coal ? A. I should think that they 
were small pieces of coal which had dropped off the tubs in transit along the road. 
15619. 0. In No. 1 road, do you ilsean ? A. In No. 1 road. 
15620. Q. Could these pieces have come from inside the -itli Right? A. I do not think so. 
15621. Q. Why rot. Why could they not have been blown there? A. Well, I think that anything coming 
out of the 4th Right would strike against the rib of coal in No. 1 main level. 
15622. Q. Do you think the force would knock small pieces of coal to powder against that rib? A. Well, 
I would not say that it would knock the coal to powder, but it would reduce the size of any materials 
thrown out in that way. 
13623. Q. But fhese pieces of coal which you speak of-were they not really the chips of coal which are 
made in hewing the coal? A. Yes, small pieces of coal. 
15624. Q. Do you say that they could not come from the 4th Right or that they might have come from it? 
A. I think it is improbable they came from the 4th Right. 
15623. (9 You made various visits to Kembla Mine from time to time since you have been Chief Inspector? 
A. Yes. - 
15626. Q. I suppose you know something about the output from the colliery I A. Yes, 
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15627. Q. It was pretty regular during the lest eighteen nontls before the accident, was it not? A. I 
should think it was. 
15628. Q. Do you know whether there are any difficulties in connection with the incline in the mountain? 
A. I have heard that statement in the Arbitration Court. 
15629. Q. Then it requires that the work shall be done with some precision in order to maintain a regular 
output at Mount Kembla? A. Yes. 
15630. Q. Would you not say that this pit is one of the best equipped collieries in New South Wales? 
A. 'Well, the general arrangements of the mine, as to districts and haulage, are very good. 
15631. Q. Wo9ld you go further and say that it is one of the best equipped mines in the State? A. Yes, 
I am prepared to say so. 
15632. Q. And that has been the impression produced on your mind from time to time by difibrent visits 
to the colliery ? i. Yes. 
15633. Q. Now, (lid you know anything about a special book that the Manager kept for the use of the day 
deputies in addition to the book kept for the night deputies? A. Is that the book for making reports in 
not required by General Rule 1? 
15634. Q. You know that under the " Coal Mines Act " the night deputy has to make reports of his work 
during the night in a book'? A. Yes. 
15635. (7, There is no provision in the Act for the, day deputy to make any record of his visits during the 
day h A. No. 
15636. Q. Would the keeping of a book for the day deputy be a check on his work during the day? A. Yes. 
15637. (7. And it would be a further guide to all persons concerned as to the general condition of the mine? 
A. If they had access to that book it would. 
15638. (,;. Do you know whether a book of that kind was kept by Mr. Rogers 1 A. I believe so. 
15038i-. (7. For some years? A. I believe so. 
15639. 0. You remember that all these books were put in evidence at the Coroner's inquiry I A. I do not 
remember that book. The books under General Rule 4 were. 
15640. (7. Do you remember Evans, the deputy, being asked about the matter? A. I do not remember now. 
15641. (7. They were some books in chary form I A. I do not remember. 
15642. (7. Have you got Mr. Bates' note-book, which you were asked about yesterday? A. I have asked 
him to come to town and to bring it with him. 
15643. Q. Now among the possible causes of explosion I think you mentioned the electric current-under 
what conditions would that be possible? A. The c),ble conveying the electric power bnaking and causing 
sparks. 
15644. Q. Has such a case as that actually happened 1 A. Yes, there has been an explosion from that cause. 
15645. (7. Where? A. It is mentioned in the Imperial Inspector's Report, by Mr. Stokes, in the Midland 
district. 
15646. (7. Recently? l. In the reports for 1901. 
15647. 0. What caused the explosion-did the spark come in contact with dust? A. No, with fire damp. 
15648. His honor.] Q. It would be a white heat spark? A. Yes. 
15649. 0. It takes a white heat spark to fire fire-damp owing to the hyclro-carbons ? A. Yes. 
15050. Mr. Wade.] (7. 1 think fire-damp ignites at 1,200 Fahi. which is just about white heat I A. Yes. 
15651. dIr. Robertson.] Q. A i'cl spark would not fire fire-damp? A. It might if it were in the mixture 
some time. 
15652. Ills. honor.] Q. It takes a very great heat to fire it? A. To fire the hydro-carbons. A spark from 
the old steel mill used for lighting before the safety-lamp has been known to fire the gas. 
15653. Mr. Wade.] Q. Where was this electric cable-in the main road? A. I think it was in or near the 
face of the long-wall working. 
15654. AIr. Robertson.] Q. There was no one in the mine at the time? A. There was no one in the mine at 
the time. 
15655. AIr. Tirade.]  Q. Another possible cause is from the compression of air-is not that what you say I 
A. No, I do not think that is possible. 
15656. Q. How did you put it before-you macic some reference to it? A. I made some reference to 
explosions contributed to by falls of stone. 
15657. (7. In what way did you apply that? A. The explosion would be caused by sparks from the stone. 
15658. (7. And not by the percussion I A. I do not think the percussion would be the cause. 
15659. (7. 'Would it cause an explosion if there were no flinty substance I ii. No. 
15660. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Do you remember an explosion in an air-compressor in the Ryhope Colliery I 
A. Yes. 
15661. Q. Was there any coal-dust present? A. Yes, there was a considerable amount of coal-dust and 
oily matter at the bottom of the receiver. 
15662. Q. I thought that it was simply a deposit of oil? A. I think that it was determined, that it was 
coal-dust and oily deposits. 
15663. dIr. TVade.] Q. Did not professor Bedson make the experiments with coal-dust alone? A. Yes. 
15664. Q. Did lie not prove that coal-dust would ignite by compression? A. I think that coal-dust ignited 
at a temperature of 300 Fah. 
15665. Q. A compression of three atmospheres was it not? A. I forget just now. I think I shall be able 
to get the pressure. I have the book and can produce it if necessary and give the whole of the particulars. 
15066. Q. You might produce it to-morrow. Will you not admit that it is practicable to produce the 
ignition of coal-dust without the contact of any flame at all, simply by heat? A. Yes. 
15667. Q. Without any flame at all I A. Well, you have the illustration of the explosion in the air-
compressor where there was an ignition of coal-dust mixed with the vapour from the mineral oil. There 
would of course be flame resulting from the ignition. 
15668. Q. But the cause of the ignition was the rising of the temperature through the compression of the 
air? A. Yes, there was no flame originally. 
15669. his honor.] Q. Was there anything to show what temperature the air was raised to by the 
compression I A. I think the machine was working at, say 60 lb. to the square inch, and that according to 
calculations, if I remember rightly, produced a temperature of something over 300 Fah. 
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15670. Air. Wade.] Q. Two hundred and ninety-one degrees will produce ignition A. It did in certain 
experiments made by Professor Bedson. 
15671. Air. Robertson.] Q. Of pure coal-dust? A. I think it was, but I will have to look it up. 
15672. Mr. Ritchie.1 Q. have you the result ? A. Yes. 
15673. Q. Can you produce it? A. Yes. 
15674. Q. Perhaps you will do so? A. Yes. 
15675. Mr. Wade.] Q. The temperature was calculated on a theoretical basis? 
15676. Q. There was an air-tight cylinder and it is only a matter of the extent of compression? A. Quite so. 
15677. Q. Do you know whether the temperature of the air can be raised by a violent impact of air against 
stationary air, in space, not in an air-tight ves3el 1 A. I suppose there would be a certain amount of 
compression. 
15678. Q. Once you got compression you would get heat? A. Yes, an increase of temperature. 
15679. Q. If you have a rush of air going down the roadway of any mine, and it encountered other air 
there, would you get compression? A. There would be a certain amount of compression. 
15680. Q. And excessive heat? A. A slight increase of heat. 
15681. Q. Now a temperature of 300 degrees would burn a man's hair quite apart from the question of 
flame, when you find that it will ignite coal-dust? A. I am not sure, I should prefer to leave that to a 
medical man. 
15682. Q. I suppose the highest you have gofie through in this world is 180 dagrees? A. Hardly that I 
should think. 
15683. AIr. Robertson.] Q. Has 300 degrees been proved to ignite coal dust? 
15684. 11fr. lVade.] I have the papers here myself; 291 degrees is the actual figures given. 
15685. Q. Talking of the tests of coal-dust made in England were not these very severe tests? A. They 
were. 
15686, Q. Were they not much more severe than you would expect to find in the ordinary course of 
practical mining? A. Yes, I have no doubt the tests were made severe in order to give the most favourable 
results for producing an explosion of coal-dust. 
15687. Q. There was an experiment made at the time of the Chamberlain Commission by means of firing 
a shot into a box, which had in it air, thoroughly saturated with dust? A. Dust was floating in the air. 
15688. Q. The air was saturated with dust? A. I have no doubt, but I (10 not remember it. 
15689. Q. It was shown that the dust would ignite through the shot being fired into it? A. Yes. 
15690. Q. Was not the complaint made then that you could not have this test in a working mine? 
A. I think it was. 
15691. Q. Was not the reason given that the conditions of the air for that experiment were such as could 
not be found in a mine, bccause, if they were, the air would not support life, owing to the air being so thick 
with dust 1 A. I do not remember that-it may be so. 
15692. Q. With regard to the experiments which were made at Wcolwich_-they had the dust laid on top 
of the charge-that is a heap of dust? A. Yes, and the flame was propelled into that. 
15693. Q. And a mound of dust was heaped up round the cannon itself? A. Yes. 
15691. Q. So that you would say, under the conditions under which this experiment was made, that 
it would be fair to consider the Mount Kembla dust violently explosive? A. I do not exactly follow 
you. 
15695. Q. I say that under the conditions under which this test was made at Woolwich it would be 
fair to consider that the Mount Kembla dust was violently explosive? A. Yes, as the result of the 
experiment. 
15696. Q. You would not apply that remark, unqualified, to Mount Kembla coal-dust, under the ordinary 
working conditions, would you? A. \Vell, the conditions under which the tests at Woolwich were made 
were very severe, and would not be likely to occur even in a mine. 
15697. Q. What I want to get at is that., this expression, " violently explosive" might convey to the 
ordinary mind-that is to the public_the idea that Kembla coal dust is dangerous? A. No, not in 
that way. 
15698. Q. It is only explosive if the same conditions were applied to it in the mine as were applied to it 
when it was being tested ? A. Yes. 
15699. His Honor.] It is not that it explodes more easily than other coal-dust, but that it is more violent 
by comparison with other coal-dust when it does explode. 
15700. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I think the degrees of explosibihity are indicated by the three terms which are 
used-it is the capability of explosion. 
15701. his Honor.] It is the force with which it explodes. 
15702. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Yes, I see it is stated that under the heading of Violent Explosion, there was 
placed those ignitions in which the volume of flame was greater than in the other two cases. 
15703. Mr. Wade.] Q. If you apply the test which was used at Woolwich, then the explosion of Mount 
Kembla dust would be a violent one? A. Yes. 
15704. Q. You do not gather from that., that the Mount Kembla dust would be more liable to explosion 
than any dust which is eharacterised as "mild explosion "? A. I think that it is intended to convey that 
when it does explode it is more violent than some other dusts. 
15705. Q. Not that it is more likely to explode under ordinary mining conditions? A. I think not. 
15706. I may state that I have here, Your Honor, extracts given me, by Mr Sellers, giving a table showing 
the heat produced by compression. 
15707. His Honor.] By whom is it prepared? 
15708. Air. Wade.] It is an article from the Transactions of the Federal Institute of Mining Engineers. 
15709. His Honor.] Are these tests made in the cylinder by pumping air into it, or by ramming by a 
piston. It is easy to calculate the compression when it is forced into the cylinder by a pump, but I do not 
think it would be so easy to calculate it if the compression is produced by the ramming down of a piston. 
1 have seen brown paper lighted by being rammed by a piston. 
15710. AIr. JVade.] I think that one steady compression would do it also. 
15711. His honor.] I think that you could calculate the compression easily by pumping into a cylinder, 
but I should be very sceptical about the calculations made by the other process. 
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15712. Mr. Wade.] Q. Coming to No. 1 main road again, i-. this correct-in your opinion did any flame 
pass up the 4th Left from No. 1 main road? A. From my own observations I have not noticed any 
sign of flame, and a sample of coal-dust which was collected from the floor of the 4th Left was 
examined, and reported not to have coked. 
15713. Q. Now the dust on those props in the 4th Left was on the side nearest No. 1 main road? A. I 
did not notice much dust on the props there, it was mostly on the bottom. 
15714. Q. There were not too many props to start with ? A. No. 
15715. Q. Did the dust seem to have been deposited from No. 1 main rope road? A. I do not remember 
having observed it. 
15716. Q. Did the dust on the floor have the appearance of having been blown into there? A. I think some 
of the (lust had been taken there by the explosion. 
15717. Q. Did it seem to have been blown there. Did it have the appearance that you would expect it to 
have if it had been blown in there by the wind alone? A. The appearance of the dust did not strike me in 
any way. 
15718. Q. 'What was there in the appearance of the dust not consistent with it having been blown in there 
by the wind? A. There was nothing particular about the appearance of the dust. 
15719. Q. Was it inconsistent with that theory? A. I think it might have been blown there by the wind, 
if the wind was sufficiently strong. 
15720. Q. Suppose you were dealing with the 4th Left alone, and were asked to confine yourself to 
appearances there only. Was the appearance of the dust there in any way inconsistent with it having been 
blown there by the wind? A. I do not think it was. 
15721. Q. Now, in that particular 4th Left, there happened to be more dust than in any other part of the 
mine near there 1 A. I noticed more dust there. 
15722. Q. Now, take the 5th Right. Did you notice any signs of flame having passed down that Right? 
A. I cannot say that I did. 
15723. Q. I think you stated that in coal-dust explosions, you may travel many yards from the initial 
point of the explosion without seeing any signs of the explosion? A. Yes, that has frequently been 
observed. 
15724. Q. Has not this been observed-when you come to a larger air-surface, you find signs of the 
explosion? A. Yes, I think that is in accordance with some scientific opinions. 
15725. Q. Was that not one of the conclusions established in the explosion at Camerton by a series o 
experiments niade by Mr. Donald Stuart, where between the seat of each explosion he failed to trace any 
sign of explosion? A. That is so. 
15726. Q. And where these different explosions were manifested was there not always a little larger air-
space-do you remember that? A. I do not remember it. 
15727. Q. Is not this the principle-you may get sufficient heat to distil the coal-dust, but not sufficient 
oxygen to bring about an explosion-you may go a little further on, and when you get an increased supply 
of oxygen that liberates the constituents in the dust, and you get an explosion ? A. I think that Donald 
Stuart traced several continuous explosions in just the same way as is explained by Godfrey Lushington, 
when lie states that one explosion follows on another. 
15728. Q. With regard to Kembla, would an increased supply of oxygen bring about an explosion? A. I 
do not see how you could get an increased supply of oxygen in a single road. 
15729. Q. Take the 5th Right-have you not got a larger junction there? A. Yes. 
15730. (1. And you would expect to find some further increase of explosion there under ordinary 
circumstances? A. There is the separation of a door between the two roads in that case. 
15731. Q. But the door was not standing on the No. 1 lope road, and, therefore, there was a bigger area 
there ? A. Yes. 
15732. Q. What is the difference between the ribs of the two headings? A. Ten yards. 
15733. Q. And the door would be 5 yards back from the rib of the main road? A. Yes. 
15734. Q. And the cut-through is 3 or 4 yards? A. Yes. 
15735. Q. And about 5 feet high? A. Yes. 
15736. Q. There would be a fair amount of oxygen there to help to develop the explosion? A. There would 
be a fair supply at that point. 
15737. Q. If the explosion took place at young Morrison's light-what do you say about that? A. That was 
one of my opinions at first. 
15738. Q. I am not dealing with the outbye side of the 4th Right, but with the inbyc side. You said that 
the first explosion, inbyc, took place at young Morrison's light? A. No I think the first ignition took 
place somewhere near the 4th Left. 
15739. (7. By whose light? A. Probably Morrison's. 
15740. Q. I am speaking of young Morrison, the wheeler, who was found on the road outside the 4th Left I 
A. Yes. 
15741. Q. You think that the first ignition, about the 4th Left, was at that point? A. I think it took place 
somewhere near the 4th Left., at Morrison's lamp. 
15742. (7. Do you mean to say that there was an actual explosion? A. An actual explosion. 
15743. (7. When you get an actual explosion, does not the force radiate in all directions? A. Yes. 
15744. (7. Did you see any signs of radiation of force at the 4th Left? A. There were signs of force in 
the 4th Left ; also inhye to the north, and also to the east. 
15745. I/is honor.] There is one point not touched on yet, and I do not know whether a deduction has 
been worked out from it. Assuming there was a body of inflammable gas, with its centre somewhere about 
the 4th Right, this is shot into the haulage road and distributed along that road, the air moves slowly up 
all the time inbye ; the centre of the gas would, therefote, remain for an instant almost exactly opposite the 
4th Right. Supposing that body of gas extends itself as it would do to the north, and reaches Morrison's 
light-and suppose it is ignited by that light., could the fact of that gas being lighted by Morrison-could 
that place be taken as the centre of the explosion-or would it not be that the lighting taking place at the 
extreme north endl of the inflammable gas, it would flash to the south, and thus the centre of the explosion 
be about the centre of the body of gas. Thus, although the gas might be lighted at the northern end, would 
not the centre of the explosion be. practically about the middle of the body of inflammable gas, assuming 
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that it was the least diluted there. Can you give any centre, for what would be an instantaneous beginning, 
or would you expect to find the centre in the body of the explosive mixture? A. I see your Honor's 
meaning. Of course as soon as the mixture caine to be ignited the flame would travel rapidly through the 
body, and I would not like to say whether the actual centre of that mixture would be regarded as the centre 
of the explosion or not. 
15716. Q. If there were a body of powder in the barrel of a gun, open at both ends, and you lit it at one 
end, you would expect the explosion to be almost simultaneous out of each end of the barrel, although the 
powder would not carry chemical action as quick as "as would 1 A. You are supposing that the explosion 

commenced in the middle of the barrel ? 
15747. Q. No ; I am supposing that the powder is lighted at one end-hut would it not act as if the centre 
of the explosion were the centre of the powder? A. Practically it would. 

15748. Q. Practically the same thing would apply to gas-if anything, more so 1 A. I suppose it would. 

14749. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Did you intend, when giving evidence about the first ignition of gas by Morrison's 
light, to say that the explosion radiated from that point-did you intend to convey that meaning? 
A. Practically speaking-yes. 
15750. Mr. Robertson.] Q. How do you account for the roller outside 1orrisou's light being drifted up with 
dust on the outbye side, the force evidently having come from the 4th Right 1 A. I think that is the position 

the stuff would be found in. 
15751. Q. If the ignition took place at Morrison's light, the evidence of force from the 4th Right inbye 
seems inconsistent 1 A. I think it is possible that the deposit of this stuff may have been caused by the 
same force which displaced the canvas doors, although there is not much importance to be attached to the 
rubbish in front of the rollers. 
15759. Q. It must have been a considerable amount of force to drift them Uji tight with small coal ? A. A 
considerable amount of force, no doubt ; but nothing like the force exerted in some explosions. 
15753. Q. It is not easy to conceive that being done by a blast of air not caused by an explosion? A. No, 

it is not easy. 
15754. Q. Did not the drift seem to increase in amount from the 4th Right? A. I did not observe that. 

15755. Mi'. Wade.] Q. Were there any signs of force going outbye from Morrison's light that you saw ? 

A. There was very little on the road between the 4th Right and the 4th Left, so far as indications of force 
were concerned. 
15756. Q. Was there not a rail which had been in position outbye of Morrison's light, found inbye of 
Morrison's light 1 [No answer.] 
15757. Q. Look at the plan (No. 26). There is a point marked with I) on the plan, just at the top of the 
4th Left outbye; then you have a D outbye of Morrison's body. The rail on this plan is inbye of 
Morrison's body? A. I do not think it is fair to assume that the ignition took place exactly where 
Morrison's body was found. 
15758. Q. He may have travelled? A. He may have travelled or been blown some distance, 

15759. Q. Do you know where Morrison's work took him? A. His duty was to liberate the empty tubs 

outbye of the points. 
15760. Q. Are not all the centres of force between the 4th Left and the 5th Right-inbye? [No 

answer. 
15761. Q. Do you remember saving at the inquest that the contradictory forces which troubled you were 
between the 4th Left and Morris' place, and you spoke about Dungey's body and some wire entanglements? 
A. I do not remember just now. 
15762. Q. What you said at the inquest is reported on page 60 as follows :-" The contradictory evidences of 
force in No. 1 Level were the contradictory statements with reference to the relative positions in which the 
body, ama, and head of Dungiy had teen found, the entanglement of the telephone wire nmongst three 
empty tubs, it being attached to the in-end of one of these tubs, round the draw-bar, and threaded under-
neath one of the boards of the same tubs at the out-end, and generally speaking, the difficulty in 
ascertaining the direction of force amongst all those tubs between No. 4 Left to a point a little beyond No. 5 
Right, and the general absence of tiniber supports between No. 1 Right and the face." 1 A. I remember that. 
15763. Q. Leave out all about Dungey's body, the next difficulty was the entanglement of the telephone 
wire round the tubs? A. Yes. 
15764. Q. Have you looked where the wire came from 1 A. From the outbye side. 
15765. Q. These tubs had been driven inbye'h A. Yes. 
15766. Q. Another tub with wire round it was inbye of the 4th Left? A. Yes. 

15767. Q. It was blown inbye too? A. Yes. 
15768. Q. You found wire attached to the plug in the 4th Left? A. Yes. 
15769. Q. Are there any indications of force between the 4th Left and the 5th Right, going outbye 

A. No, I do not think so, unless there are contradictory evidences as to Dungey. 
15770. Q. Taking the proved fact. There is only evidence of force going outbye between the 4th Left turn 
and the 5th Right turn? A. No, I do not think there is. 
15771. Q. Is there any evidence of force going outbye anywhere between the 4th Left turn and the 4th 
Right turn? A. N o, there is not. 
15772. Q. Where do you say there was force to the east near the 4th Left? A. The force from the door 

opposite the 4th Left travelling road. 
15773. AIr. Robertson.] What force does he mean? 
15774. Air. Wade.] He said that the force to the east was in the cut-through between the two main 
headings and the travelling road. 
15775. AIr. Robertson,] The building stone and the door itself were distinctly blown towards the east. 
15776. Q. That is in the 4th Left? A. Opposite the 4th Left travelling road. 
15777. Mr. JVacle.] Q. Between the 4th Right and the 5th Right, all the stoppings between the two main 
headings were blown towards the east? A. Yes, towards the east-towards the travelling road. 

15778. (7. Do you remember whether those doors, opposite the 4th Left travelling road, were wooden doors 
A. I think one was a wooden door. 
15779. Q. There was some building there? A. Yes, I think one was a wooden door. 

15780. His honor.] Q. Which one? A. The one opposite the 4th Left travelling road. 
15781. 
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15781. Mr. Wade.] Q. Was it blown. open, or was it blcwn doWn, or had it disappeared 1 It was forced 
through an upright towards the trave]ling road or return. 
15782. Q. \Sas it on its hinges or just blown open? A. It was not blown open, it opened to No. 1 main 
level, but it was hiowi; right through the upright on one side. 
15783. Air. Robertson.] That is consistent with what I said about the door on the 5th Right. It was blown 
against its natural position. 
15784. Air. lVade.] Q. Under ordinary couditions if the explosion were ignited by either Aitken's or 
Morrison's light, on the i th Left, would you not expect the explosion to travel along the 4th Left feeding 
on the dust? ii. You would, and it is probable the explosion has gone along there. 
15785. Q. But there is no evidence of it? 1. I think that the evidence I have heard with reference to the 
burning of Stafford, and also the evidence of a witness named Stafford who was working in Price's flat 
shows it. 
15786. Q. That brings you back to tho point that from facts outside the 4th Loft you think the explosion 
may have passed through it? A. Yes. 
15787. Q. And in the 4th Left there is no evidence of it? A. There is evidence of force. 
15788. Q. I am speaking of an explosion. You said that what you say was consistent with a mere blast of 
wind? A. Quite so, if there were sufficient pressure. 
15789. (). Is it not usual, in cases of explosion, to find dust deposited on the opposite side to that from 
which the explosion came ? A. it is usual, although there is occasionally a little deposit on both sides. 
15790. Q. You occasionally get deposits on both sides? A. Yes. 
15791. Q. You do not find deposits of coke-dust on the side on which a gas explosion came along? A. There 
is no dust at all in gas explosions. 
15792. Q. I mean a gas explosion mixed with coal-dut 1 A. Yes. 
15793. Q.  You say that it is usual to find deposits of dust on the side opposite to that from which the 
explosion caine? A. Yes. 
15794. Q. Do you know of any instance; where dust has been deposited on the side from which the explosion 
came and on that side alone ? A. No. 
15795. Q. is it a kind of back lash which deposits dust on the si he opposite to that from which the 
explosion came ? A. Yes, it is a retrograde action. 
15796. Q. Do you remember examining the props on the line of cut-throughs left of No. 1 rope road, next 
to Purcell's horcl and Aitken's place I A. I saw a little dust there. 
15797. Q. Was not the (lust on the side of the props nearest main No. 1 heading ? A. I think there was 
some dust on both sides. 
15798. Q. Can you say whereabouts? A. Not far from Aitken's place on the inbye side. 
15799. Q. Which side would that be? A. The greater quantity was on the west side. 
15800. Q. The side nearest the actual working face? A. The working face is towards the north. 
15801. Q. What was that, dust or coke-dust? A. I think it had been suilected to flame. 
15802. Q. What was it-what would you call it? A. It was not so severely coked as some dust collected 
in the back heading, but 1 think it had been subjected to flame. 
15803. Q. Are you prepared at the prsent moment to say flame rather than heat? A. I think it would be 
flame. 
15804. Q. You can get dust partially coked by heat, without flame-you admit that? A. Yes, I believe 
you can. 
15805. Q. Can you tell from the appearance of it whether it is the result of heat without flame, or the 
result of flame itself? A. I do not think you can. 
15806. Mr. Robertson] Q. Was any of that dust coked I A. Well, it was not coked to the extent that it 
was in the back heading. 
15807. Q. Was it coked at all? A. Well, I did not have any of it examined by the microscope. 
15808. Q. Was it not a glomerate? A. 1 do not know, I am sure. 
15809. Q. You can form coal into a paste without much heat? A. Yes. It certainly was not coked in the 
sense that you make coke artificially, but I should say it had been deprived of some of its volatile hydro- 
carbons. 
15810. Q. Air. Wade.] Did you have any analysis made of the dust gathered from near Aitken's place? 
A. No. 
15811. Q. how many samples (lid you obtain of what was coked dust ? A. Twelve samples were obtained 
from the tunnel niouth down to it point, the last one being at the turn 100 yards from the 4th Left 
travelling road. 
15812. Q. One hundred yards inbye ? A. No, outbye. 
15813. Q. Did you not have any samples taken on the inhye side? A. I took samples from the back heading, 
near where the Morrises were found, and examined them in the microscope, but I had no special report 
made. 
15814. Q. You examined them microscopically from Morris' place? A. Yes. 
15815. Q. You came to the conclusion that they were coked? A. Yes. 
15816. Q. There is a distinct difference in appearance between the coked dust from Morris' place, and the 
dust you saw near Aitken's place? A. It was more severely coked in Morris' place. 
15817 .ifi'. Robertson.] Q. Was not the dust which you took from Morris' place taken from the side I 
A. Some of it, and also some of it from the props. 
15818. Q. Not froin the floor? A. No. 
15,819. Q.  The twelve samples were taken from the floor ? A. No, from the timbers and the sides. 
11820. 1). The dust from Morris' place was pastey ? A. Yes, it was. 
15821. Q. The others could be scraped off loosely 1 A. Mr. Watson collected them, he told me that begot 
them oil the timbers near the roof. 
15822. Q. They were not pasted on tight? A. Not in the same way as the deposits were found in the back 
heading near Morris' place. 
15823. Afm'. Ritchie.1 Q. Have you got the particular points where the twelve samples of dust were collected 
from? A. Yes. Mr. Mingaye, the Analyst of the Mines Department made a report with reference to them. 
15824. Q. Do you remember Adam Frost giving evidence at the Coroner's Court? A. Yes. 

15825. 
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15825. Q. He placed himself in No. 2 Right close to the cross-cut heading? A. I think he said he was up 
there. 
15826. Q. How far is that fron the 4th Right-by scale 1 A. I should like to know the exact points, 
15827. (1. From the tommy dodd's? A. In a straight line. 
15828. Q. No, asthe air would go? A. Somewhere about 45 chains. 
15829. Q. A little over half a mile? A. Yes. 
15830. Q. How far is it from the 4th Right to the 4th Left? A. About 9 chains. 
15831. Q. About 200 yards as near as possible? A. Yes. 
15832. Q. Adam Frost said in his evidence "There was a great blast of wind came up the 2nd Right while 
I was there it blew out my light." He also said "It nearly blew us off our feet," and likewise "I then 
walked 200 yards, towards the main road and met smoke and dust."? A. The force of the explosion was 
evidenced by about thirty tubs which had travelled UI)  the 2nd Right rope road, and the force would 
naturally blow his light out. 
15833. Q. Do you not think that his light was blown out by the displaced air, in front of the blast of wind? 
A. I think it would be blown out by the blast of wind itself. 
13834. Q. Do you not think that the blast of wind would displace the air in front? A. Yes. 
15835. Q. His light might have been blown out by the displaced air in front of the blast of wind that came 
from the 4th Right? A. I (10 not think that is at all probable. 
15836. Q. Suppose there is a blast of air coming out of a narrow passage-do you not think that it would 
drive a certain portion of air in front of it? A. Yes. 
13837. Q. Do you not think that what would put out Adam Frost's light was a cushion of displaced 
air-displaced by a blast from the 4th Right? A. I do not think so, having regard to the force shown to 
have been exerted in the 2nd Right. I think that that same force also blew his light out in coming up 
that 2nd Right rope road. 
15838. Q. The air that blew his light out was the actual air that came out of the 4th Right? A. I do not 
say so. 
15839. Q. Or was it a cushion of air in front of it-it makes all the difference? A. I think that the force 
exerted on those tubs was caused by the explosion and that the force of air going up that rope road blew 
his light out. 
15840. Q. Would not the force of the explosion, as shown by the condition of the tubs, have displaced a 
body of air in front? A. Yes. 
15841. Q. Could riot that same body of pure air have blown his light out before the air from the 4th Right 
got near the light? A. I do not think that any force of pure air produced would be likely to disturb thoe 
tubs in the way they were disturbed. 
15842. Q. Will you admit this-if you have a large body of air rushing through a narrow passage, that will 
drive ahead of it, like a cushion, some air already there? A. Yes. 
15843. Q. Supposing a blast of air came in the 4th Right, before the actual blast which did the damage to 
the tubs in the 2nd Right, and it drove before it a certain body of air in advance? A. I do not think that 
any force of air that came out of the 4th Right in that way would disturb the tubs in the way they were 
disturbed. 
15844. 1I2. Bruce Smith.] Q. You mean not air alone? A. No. 
15845. AIr. JVade.] Q. Call it air or gas, or whatever you like-would not whatever it was displace in front 
of it a certain body of pure air? A. Yes. 
15846. Q. And is it not probable that Adam Frost's light was put out by the pure air which came in 
advance of the explosive air from the 4th Right? A. Yes, I think that is possible. 
15847. Q. Would not the same explanation account for Hammon's light being put out? A. I think that 
might be the case if the force of air was sufficient. 
13848. Q. Then the force of air which was displaced would put out Hammon's light? A. I do not think 
Frost's light or Hammon's light would be put out by the force of air and gas which came out of the 4th 
Right. 
15849. Q. No, I have been saying that all along. The explosive air would split-inbye and outbye. 
Would it not drive before it a small quantity of air that did not come out of the 4th Right? A. Yes, no 
doubt it would. 
15830. Q. Would not the cushion of air, not coming out from the 4th Right., be the air which in all 
probability put out Hammon's light? A. No, I do not think so. 
13851. Q. Why not? There would be a cushion of air in front of the blast? A. Tiammon was working 
through some doors from the No. 1 main level. 
15852. Q. Could not the blast go by the travelling road in the 4th Right? A. A certain force might go up 
the travelling road. 
15833. Q. And would not the explosive mixture have in advance of it a ceitain cushion of air that did not 
come from the 4th right? A. Yes. 
15854. Q. Would not the air, not coming from the 4th Right, be the cause of the light being put out-I 
mean the cushion of pure air, before the explosive mixture got to it [No answer.] 
15853. AIr. Bruce Smith.1 I think this is a positive form of questioning. 
15856. his Ifonor.] Mr. Wade is asking the witnes whether he will or will not assent to a hypothesis. 
13857. AIr. JVade.] I am asking about a cushion of air, displaced in front of the blast. 
15858. his honor.] If there was a cushion of air in front it would put the light out, but that only goes to 
show that if the conditions were such as you say, a second explosion would not take place from the naked 
light as the cushion of air would blow it out. 

[The Commission at 4 p.m. adjourned until 10 o'clock the following morning.] 

THURSDAY, 
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ThURSDAY, 12 FEBRUARY, 1903.-1 a.m. 
[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlinglnsrst.] 

C. F. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PREsIDENT). 

I). A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., COMi1SSIONEI5. 1 1). RITCHIE, ESQ., COMMISSIONER. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on tehaif of— 
(a) the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c. (victims of the explosion) 
(1) the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) 
(c) the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount 
Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of the Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings). 

Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under :- 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade (continued) :- 

15859. Q. 1 have found that passage, Mr. Atkinson, that I was referring to about the character of the dust 
that is necessary to promote or encourage an explosion. It is Question No. 2213 in the Chamberlain Royal 
Commission. This is a question by the Chairman to Mi. W. N. Atkinson :- 

(7. Now, the conditions which you think are necessary are, first, a requisite degree of fineness ; secondly, 
"a sufficient quantity; and, thirdly, an exciting cause like a blown outshot? A. Yes; and purity." 

That cvers the position I put to you yesterday, does it not ? A. Yes ; that is, with coal-dust and air alone. 
15860. Q. Yes. Now, is not one of the characteristics of a fire damp explosion the shattering effects that 
are produced 1 A. Yes ; there is it force expended in all directions from the centre at the commencenienC. 
15861. Q. Is not the distinction this: that the force is shattering rather than driving : take its action on 
a stopping, for instance, does not it tend to shatter that stopping rather than to blow it away? A. No. I 
think it would blow it away, in the same way as a coal-dust and gas explosion. I am unable to make any 
clear distinction in that way. 
15862. Q. At a point at the seat of the actual explosion, do not you get a great concussion and rapid 
expansion I A. Rapid expansion, and, consequently, force. 
15863. Q. And is not the result more likely to be a smattering than if you have a blast coming up? A. I 
am unable to make the distinction in that way; but a purely gas explosion is very local in its effects, as 
compared with a coal-dust and gas explosion. 
15864. Q. I do not say it is local ; but I take the actual locality where its effects are shown, are not the 
effects more it shattering than a blowing away? 
15865. Jfr. Rolasrtson.] Q. Would not it be the same distinction as, say, between dynamite and gunpowder; 
they are both explosions, but the one is more rending than shattering? 
15866. Ills Jlortor.] Q. After all, would not it depend, to a great extent, upon the mixture? A. Yes ; the 
explosion would probably be more rapid than the coal-dust explosion. 
13867. Mr. Robei.tson.] Q. As a matter of fact, a coal dust explosion is really a long drawn out timing, 
comparatively speaking? A. Yes, it is slower than the pure gas explosion. 
15868. Mr. JVacle.] Q. However, you draw no distinction even at the seat of any particular explosion I 
i. I am unable to make any clear distinction in that way that you indicate. 

15869. Q. Well, in this main No. 1 at Mount Kembla, you found no doors smashed up, for instance, did you, or 
anything like that—no wooden doors, to be quite correct? A. No, I do not think any of them were smashed up. 
15870. Q. For instance, this door in the cut through between te two headings near the 5th Right; that, 
apparently, I think, was blown through its stopping rather than smashed? A It is the one opposite the 
4th Left travelling road that shows the most distinct signs of force. 
15811. Q. Yes; and thit was a case where it hid been apparently blown through its stopping--it was not 
in any way smashed ? A. It was forced through its upright. 
15872. Q. I hive not been able to follow your evidenco very closely; but do I understand you to say that, 
after the first ignition took place at Morrison's light, there was a further ignition at the light of Morris? 
A. Ohm, I think that the whole thing, once commenced, was continuous ; but I think it is possible that there 
was a further increase of force, due to a small percentage of gas in the air, near the face of those headings. 
15873. Q. Then, (10 you say there was flame between the point where Morrison's light was and close to the 
face of No. 1 heading? A. That is the back heading? 
15874. Q. Yes, where you say there was a further access of force? A. I think so. 
13875. Q. The flame would not come into being at Morrson's light and then die out, would it ;—there must 
have been a flame through the whole of that distance? A. It is very difficult to understand the passage of 
flame in an explosion. There appear many instances where, over long distances, there are no evidences of 
flame ; but where it is well known that the explosion has passed. 
13876. Q. Yes, and is not it also admitted in those cases where you have an explosion at A, and then a 
length of road with no signs of flame, and an explosion at B, that the conditions at B have brought about 
a fresh explosion, and, possibly, a fresh flame; and that there may have been no flame between A and B? 
A. Yes, I think the explanation is given somwhat in that way. 
15877. Q. That is, you may get an increased supply of air at the second point B, which will bring about a 
condition of explosiveness which did not exist between A and B? 
15878. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Is it not that the intensity of the explosion is increased by the addition, possibly, 
of more air? A. Yes, there are very distinct evidences of increase of force at different points in coal-dust 
explosions. 15879. 
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15879. Q. But they are not separate and distinct explosions? A. Well, it is very difficult to separate them, 
there being all one continuous action, as it were, by difierent degrees of intensity at different spots. It is 
all one continuous action, 
15880. Mi. Jrade.i Q. What I want to know is this between two points, A and B, which evidently are 
the seats of two explosions, can you have, between those two points, intense heat without actual flame 
A. I think that is the evidence aflbrded by many explosions-by the opinions on many explosions of experts. 
15881. Q. Then what brings about the evidences of a second explosion is an increased supply of air-is not 
that supposed to be so? A. I should think so that is the only supporting agency for the combustion. 
15882. Q. So that, as the area narrows, you would be less likely to find an increased supply of air, and, 
therefore, a further access of force-is not that so ? A. Unless there were suitable openings at intervals, 
affording fresh air. 
15883. Q. Is there anything in the fice at No. 1 heading which, you think, would give an increased supply 
of air, that would, in its turn, lead to a fresh access of force? A. Yes, I think that the fact that there 
would be a scale of air, probably, always going up the back heading itself-[fnterrapted.] 
15884. Q. Where from? A. From the 5th Right. 
15885. Q. Then it would come in at the junction of the 5th Right, do you mean that, where the 5th Right 
joins the back heading? A. Yes. 
15886. Q. If that is so, would not you expect to find your increase of force at the 5th Right, rather than 
100 yards farther up-you see the air is quite fresh at the 5th Right ? A. No ; I am suggesting that there 
is an independent supply (f ai, which goes up the back heading towards Morris' place, and which would 
assist in any increased combustion near where they were. 
15887. Q. You see there isa door, marked D" on the plan, between the back heading opposite the 5th 
Right and the front heading? A. Yes. 
15888. Q. Was not that door between those two headings blown from the front heading to the travelling 
road? A. The buildings at the side of the door certainly were. 
15889. Q. And the door was open? A. The door was open. 
15890. Q. So, evidently, the force had gone in there from the front heading? A. Yes. 
15891. jifr. Robertson.] Q. Was not this cut-through opposite Morris' place the only opening on either side 
of the No. 1 main heading from the 4th Right not closed by a dirt-stopping or a door? A. The cut-through on 
the outbye side of that was the one through which the air travelled to Morris. The other places were closed. 
15892. Q. That is the place I mean : all the other cut-throughs or haulage roads were closed by doors? 
A. Doors or stoppings. 
15893. Q. So that this cut-through would be the only possible place where there would be an access of 
oxygen__fresh air? A. Well, there is always a scale of air through doors. 
15895. Q. I know that but that is the only place where the explosion could expand, and lick up, as it were, 
fresh oxygen 1 A. With the exception that 'a small quantity of air would scale through the door and go up 
the back heading. 
15896. Q. Quite so ; but this is the only opening from the 4th Right all along that main heading not closed 
by a stopping or a door? A. That is so, the cut-through on the outbye side of the cut-through opposite 
Morris' place is the cut-through through which the air goes to the Morrises. 
15897. Q. And, if explosions increase in intensity in the neighbourhood of larger areas, that would be the 
place where it would increase in force? A. With an additional supply of air, no doubt. 
15898. Q. Yes, but that is the only place where it could 1 A. I do not exactly follow you on that. 
15899. Q. Well, you know, I suppose, what is Donald Stuart's theory. Mr. Wade is explaining it now. 
It is that the cause of increased zones of intensity in explosions is clue to larger areas of roadway supplying 
increased volumes of air? A. Yes, I believe that is his theor. 
15900. Q. Well, this is the only point where that could take place along the main heading? ii. Which point? 
15901. Q. That cut-through next to Morris' place where the air divided. Do you see, i\Ir. Atkinson, that 
cut-through that supplied Morris' place with air is the only opening from the 4th Right right into the main 
heading face ; every other opening is closed up by -? A. By either wooden doors, or stoppings, or 
canvas doors. 
15902. Q. Then that is the only opening where this could take place, this expansion? A. Well, at the 4th 
Left there were only canvas doors. 
15903. Q. But it is closed by a canvas door? A. Well, canvas doors do not so effectually prevent air going 
through, as wooden doors, or stoppings, say. 
15904. Q. No doubt, but to some extent they do? A. To some extent they do, yes. 
15905. Q. \Vhat I want to find out is this, that the only possible place where this increased area of roadway 
is to be found is at the cut-through supplying Morris' place with air all the others are closed by doors and 
stoppings 1 A. Yes, that is correct ; but these places are closed by either doors, or stoppings, or canvas 
doors. 
15906. His honor.] There is one element that has been lost sight of all through, it seems to me, in these 
assumptions ; and that is, that, in enclosed tunnels-I mean that we may treat them as more or less enclosed 
spaces -there is a tremendous compression of air in front of the mass behind that we call the explosion 
and as it progresses that compression keeps increasing, until, in point of fact, a certain tension is arrived at 
which enables the supply of oxygen to be suthcient--that is, of course, that nitrogen and oxygen mixed are 
compressed into a smaller compass-and, in point of fact, that oxygen is tile supply for a fresh igllitiofl, 
quite independently of any larger chamber to which the explosion reaches that supply, ahead of the 
explosion, can always be considered to, at mfferent intervals, possibly, complete the conditions of explosion 
so that you would expect, if the flame reachcd through (a kind of flame), to find a series of explosions 
following one another almost instantaneously, in any case, if the explosion runs clown a long tunnel. 
15907. Q. Is not that the case? A. in the case of a coal-dust explosion. 
15908. His honor.] There you have the element of the coal-dust ; that is the fuel ; and the other element 
you want is oxygen. If you have sufficient heat to cause an explosion, you have the chemical elenients of 
explosion continually travelling, one being the oxygen, as the expanding gas forces it on from behind and 
the other the coal-dust, the fuel, present in the air, picked up, and driven along by the pad of air that is 
being forced along ahead of the explosion, and with the explosion. Explosion of course is a term which 
means a groat deal. 
15909. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It presupposes a starting force. 15910. 
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15910. 1/is honor.] I do not see where the necessity comes in of assuming large areas, or openings, as it 
were, in the tunnel, to he arrived at for the purpose of enabling you to get a fresh supply of air ; because 
there is the air in front of the explosion all the time, partly exhausted, as the explosion goes on, by the 
explosion (partly exhausted of oxygen), but fresh oxygen being continually arrived at. As this explosion 
travelled it would keep the column moving, and compress it. 
15911. Witness.] I think Mr. Wade is referring more particultt'ly to 1)onald Stuart's theory. He has 
devoted a great deal of time to explosions. 
15912. i/is lIonor.1 That is practically another pase of what I suggest ; but is it necessary to assume 
anything, for the purpose of putting this theory into practice, more than what we will call a lucre 
gun-barrel ? 
15913. 11r. lrw?e.1 Only this, your 1-lonor, I understood that, in working out this theory, and drawing 
these deductions which he drew, Stuart based his conclusions on the fact that, in those two explosions in 
Somerset, at Camerton, and Tirnsbury, there was a series of seats of explosion, showing evidences of great 
force, and deposits of coal-dust ; and at each of those seats of explosion there was evidence of increased 

from that he drew his conclusions that the increased access of oxygen from these increased spaces 
would lead to an access of fresh force to the explosion. Our case is not that of a coal-dust explosion. 
What we propose to submit is that by the mere compression of air in a cylinder you can get your heat, and 
you can get your coked (lust, without an atom of further air or gas. The No. 1 Right 'here is a dead end, 
and may be treated for the purposes of the argument as a cylinder. 
15914. Q. Do you believe in that theory or not 1 A. 1 cannot follow Donald Stuart altogether ; in fact I 
think that, although he was regarded as a man with a good deal of knowledge on these subjects, many men 
were not able to follow him in his deductions where lie attempted to define as many as seventeen or eighteen 
separate and distinct explosions-._at Camerton, I think it was. 
15915. Q. Well, has any suggestion ever been offered with regard to those separate explosions at Camerton 
which you think is more plausible than Stuart's? A. Well, I am not able to say just at the present moment; 
but there have been discussions in some of the Institutes, where many of the members did not agree with 
him, and were not able to follow him in his deductions. 
15916. Q. I may take this, then, assunung for the moment that theory of Stuart's to he true; then, as Mr. 
Robertson said, the only place where there is actually an opening for a fresh access of air is the cut-through 
just outbye of Morris' place? A. Yes, the only opening. 
15917. Q. So that, if his theory is correct., you would expect indications of the seat of a more intense 
explosion just there, would you not? A. Yes. 
15918. Q. You do not get that, do you;. you have not got any evidence of that, have you? A. No, there 
was no very great exhibition of force just at that point. 
15919. Q. Then again, you mentioned the scale of air that comes through fronm the 5th Right; well, if the 
scale was to have any effect at all, it would take effect at the 5th Right, would it not, in giving a fresh 
supply of oxygen? A. No, I do not think so. I referred to the air which was travelling up the back 
heading. After the explosion reached the face of the back heading there would be a volume of fresh air in 
the back heading from the 5th Right. 
1920. Q. Will you not admit this, that some of time air which came from the 4th Right went up the back 
heading to start with 1 A. In the travelling road? 
15921. Q. Y's, in the travelling road I A. Yes, no doubt there would be a certain amount of force in that 
direction. 
15922. Q. And the force in time main healing evidently broke into the back heading through all those cut-
througlms, mmd through the door at the Stir Right'? A. Yes, time force was in the direct ion of the travelling 
road at thu stppines between the 401 Right and time StIr Right. 
15923. Q. And, if the air was explosive at the 4th Left, there is no reason why it should not be explosive 
when it got to the point of the 5th Right I A. No. 
15921. Q. Theu you would expect, if the fresh oxygen is to help it, that the effects would be shown at the 
5th Right? A. I think there were some effects in that vicinity. 
15925. Q. What did you see there 1 A. Between the 4th Left and the 5th Right the telephone wire and 
the tubs were disturbed. 
15926. Q. But the scale of air could not operate before the blast got to the 5th Right. You are talking of 
points outhye. The point where the scale of air could operate to add fresh oxygen wonid be at the 5th 
Right ; would it not, if at all ? A. Yes, about the 5th Right. 
15927. Q. At the 5th Right, about that wooden door, did you see any signs of greater intensity of force 
A. The intensity of force does not scorn to vary much as between about the 4th Left and the 5th Right. 
15928. Q. And the only actual force, actually off tIre main No. I road near the 5th Right, was that door in 
the cut through which was blown towards the 5th Right? A. The only force off the No. 1 1Iain Right I 
15929. Q. Once you leave time No. 1 Main Right? A. Yes, the stoppings and the doors in the main heading 
were time principal indications. 
15930. Q. And they are much the same all the way along, as far as indications of force go ?A. Ves. 
15931. Q. What is your reason for saying that there was probably gas in the face of No. 1 main heading, 
the back heading? A. Gas was found there four days after the explosion ; it was evident that a certain 
quantity was issuing. 
15932. Q. issuing from where ? A. From the coal, 
15933. Q. Where? A. Near the face of the headings. 
15934. Q. No. 1 heading? A. The No. 1 headings ; and I think it is possible that there may have been a 
small percentage of gas in the air when the explosion occurm'ed. 
15935. Q. Was not the air short circuited, shortly after the explosion at all events, by this door at the 5th 
Right being opened? A. Yes. 
15936. Q. So that there was no current of air operating on the face of No. 1? A. If there were any, there 
would be very little. The ventilation would be altogether deranged, of course. 
15937.Q. Would it be fair to say this, that there was, practically, no current of air operating on the face of 
the No. 1 headings? A. I think it would. 
15938. Q. And you did not find that gas until four days after? A. No. 
15939. Q. And, if the gas was issuing, would not you expect it to accumulate there on the clay after the 
explosion, and the day after that? A. 1 should. 15940. 
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15940. Q. You would not expect that there would be practically nothing for two days, and then an 
enormous quantity four days afterwards I A. No, I should expect it to gradually accumulate. 
10941. Q. Well, - per cent., I suppose, is practically inappreciable? A. Except in its effects to make clouds 
of coal-dust more sensitive to explosion. 
15942. Q. And you spoke of thousands of cubic feet being found four days after-if it was being given off 
from the face of No. 1 you would eXpeot, probably, some thousands of feet, even two days aftcr, would you 
not 1. I think there would be, proportionally, a smaller quantity, in regard to the time. 
15943. Q. How many thousand cubic feet did you make it? A. The area from the point where the explosive 
mixture was found, and assuming that the same mixture was in the cut through and the back heading, 
would amount to about 12,000 cubic feet. Of course, I do not say that the whole of the 12,000 cubic feet 
were fire-damp. 
15941. Q. You say the cubical contents of that space -? A. Were about 12,000 cubic feet ; and thete 
would be a ceitain percentage,I think, all through that cubical capacity. 
15945. Q. How far from the face did you say that you found these signs of explosive gas? A. About 20 
yards, I think it was. 
15946. Q. Then, if it was giving off gas, as you think possible, you would expect to find a good deal more 
than per cent. at the very face, say, twelve hours after (he explosion, would you not ? A. Yes, I would 
expeot more than that. 
15947. Q. And, under the conditions of deranged ventilation, supposing it was gas, could not that gas have 
come there from the lower parts of the mine, have risen, even supposing it was fire-damp? A. It could 
have ; but I think it is improbable. 
15918. Q. Why? J. That is the highest point, or one of the highest points in the mine ; and I think it is 
the position where gas is more likly to be given off than places at a lower level, especially having regard to 
the fact that they are headings going into the virgin coal. 
15919. Q. Is there no fire-damp (llstlllrd, do you think, during the proccss of an cxplosion, and from the dust? 
A. Ys. 
15950. Q. And might not there be fire-clamp, generated by the distilling of the coal-dust, unconsutneci? 
A. There might be although I have never seen that theory advanced, so far as I remember, when fire damp 
has been found after an explosion. 
15951. Q. And does not the distillation of the dust produce also carbon monoxide? A. Yes. 
15952. Q. And there was carbon-monoxide in this pit, undoubtedly ? A. Doubtless yes. 
15953. Q. In different parts of the pit? A. Yes. 
15954. Q. Is not carbon-monoxide lighter than air? A. Just about the same specific gravity: a trifle 
lighter. 
15955. Q. Is there any difference on the light of a safety-lamp between carbon-monoxide, and what you call 
fire-damp, that is between CO and CH4? A. No, it gives the same indication of a cap. 
15956. Q. And carbon-monoxide, under certain conditions, is also explosive., is it not? A. Yes, 
15957. Q. You say that this heading was going into the virgin coal, but the longer the heading stands, the 
more likely it is to drain, is it not, even if there is gas ? A. Yes, that is so. 
15958. Q. And do not you think, this having been standing for eight months, that that period would give 
ample time for any gas in that neighbourhood to drain out ? A. Not altogether. 
15959. Q. Is this correct, that a volume of air came out of the 4th Right, and some went outbye, and some 
went inbye? A. Mixed probably with some fire damp. 
15960. Q. Some of that went up the main rope road ; you admit that? A. Yes. 
1-5961. Q. Did some also In,  up the travelling road? A. Yt a, I think it is probable. 
15962. Q. And, would some of the air, mixed with fire damp as you say, in the main rope road, be con-
tinually working in to the travelling road as it advanced, through these stoppings? A. Where there was 
any leakage, yes. 
1.5963. Q. Or where it was blown down. Now, when the force came up to that cut-through outbye of 
Morris' place, how do you say it travelled then ? A. There was evidently a force straight up the No. 1 
main level to the face. 
15964. Q. Straight up past Purcell's cut-through? A. Yes. 
15965. Q. And what else? A. And there was evidently force which went along towards Purcell's, and 
along towards that direction. 
15960. Q. And what about the back heading? A. There were evidences of force in the back heading as well. 
15967. Q. Well, do you think the force came in the back heading from the ft-out heading at the cut-through 
outbye of Morris' place. A. Well, I think part of it would come in there, and possibly part of it nearer 
the face. 
15968. Q. Through the next cut through in advance? A. Yes, and the face cut through as well. It is 
really difficult, really inipossible, to say how the force distributed itself. 
15969. Q. Take the back heading : were the forces from the cut-through just outbye of Morris' place going 
towards the face, inbye ? A. There was evidence of an inbye force just on the inhye side of the junction of 
Morris' place with the back heading, as shown by a small piece of canvas which was round the bottom of a 
prop. The canvas in Morris' place was disarranged, and had evidently been thrown towards the north. 
15970. Q. That would be inbye, would it not? A. That is inbye. 
15971. Q. What I want to know is this : Were all the forces in that locality going inbye? A. I do not 
remember anything in an opposite direction. 
15972. Q. Then, if Morris was the man u-hose light ignited gas, the probability is that at that time theie 
was inflammable gas 80 yards from the face: would not that be so 1 A. Well, it is riot always a fair 
indication to assume that the position where men's bodies are found is the exact point where the ignition 
took place. As a matter of fact the bodies of the Morrises wete about SO yards Ire-ni the face. 
15973. Q. And do not all the evidences you have heard suggest that they were going in at the time they 
fell, rather than going out? A. Well, I did not see the bodies. 
15974. Q. But you heard the description of their being found with their heads facing inwards, and this can 
or bottle rolled round a prop, or rather caught in a prop, lying not far from them? A. I have heard of that 
but I forget just now the evidence with reference to the position of their bodies. 
15975. MiS. Robertson.] Q. Do you know about that bottle? It might be as well, Mr. Wade, to explain 
that to Mr. Atkinson, if he does not know it. 15976. 
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15970. Mr. Wade.] Q. You did not see it? It has been described as a prop lying on the -round, and the 
leather strap attached to the bottle being caught on the end of the prop, as it were, and the bottle having 
been going in that direction (inbye), and the strap having caught on the prop, which detained it? A. 1 saw 
that; but I do not know how long after. 
15977. Q. Was not Morris' son lying with his hand on the back of his head, and his pipe in his hand would 
not that suggest that they were hurrying in that direction from their own place after the trouble began ? A. If 
they were found with their heads lying inbye I would take that as the best sign that they had been going 
inbyc. I do not know that I can attach much importance to the fact of his having his hand at the back of 
his head, or his pipe in his hand. 
15978. Q. You would scarcely expect to have inflammable gas before the explosion 80 yards from the face? 
A. No, I would not. 
15979. Q. And if it had been inflammable even 40 yards from the face, would not you expect it to have 
efibet on Purcell long before this 1 A. If there had been much fire-damp in the headings I should have 
expected that. 
15980. Q. I say, even taking 10 yards, that is half the distance from the face? A. Yes, I think if there had 
been 40 yards -- [interrnpted]. 
15981. Q. Then you would have expected Purcell to have lit the gas up, as the current came to him long 
before? A. Yes, I think so. 
15982. Mr. Robertson.] Q. In that case the fire-damp would overlap the cut-through in which the air 
current passed for Purcell and the others on that side : if there had been 40 yards even the fire-damp would 
overlap the cut-through through which the air passed for Purcell and Aitken, and the other men on that 
side 1 4. I do riot understand you. 
15983. Q. If there had been even 40 yards of gas in the back heading it would overlap the cut-through 
through which the air passed for Purcell and Aitken, and the other men on that side 1 A. That is so, with 
the exception of what would scale through that canvas door on the main heading. 
15984. That would be an inconsiderable portion of the main current? A. Yes, it would. 
15985. Q. Therefore those places, Purcell's and Aitkens and the others, would have been fouled with 
fire clamp from the back heading 1 A. Probably, yes. 
15986. Q. But, is it not only probable, but certain if the fresh air had to pass through fire-damp over-
lapping the cut-through ? A. Yes, it is certain, if the firedamp was in any quantity. 
15987. Q. But is it possible that fire-damp could overlap the cut-through 'with the whole of that air 
current passing through it 1 A. Not without being carried away by the air-current. 
15988. Q. The air-current must, almost certainly, have cleared the cut-through ? A. Yes. 
15989. Q. So that it is absolutely impossible that the fire-damp could have extended beyond the cut-through? 
A. At the time of the explosion? 
15990. Q. Yes, it is absolutely impossible, unless on the assumption that Purcell and Aitken, and the 
other men there were able to work with naked lights in a foul atmosphere? A. I think it is very improbable; 
but there would be a certain scale of air through  that door, which would have the eflbct of further diluting 
anything which caine round from the face of the headings. In the conditions which you state I think it is 
probable that the air would be fouled in being carried along to those places, even having regard to the 
scale of air which would pass through the canvas door. 
15991. Q. Do not you think the two things are inconsistent, the presence of gas, and men working with 
naked lights on the return side of the gas with impunity ? A. Yes, I do. 
15992. Mr. Wade.] Which is the cut-through A. [Witness iionted to the cut through on the plan.] 
15993. His honor.] Mr. Wade, perhaps I have made a mistake as to the tenor of your cross-examination; 
but it seems to rue that you were cross-examining Mr. Aticinson just now on the assumption that Mr. 
Atkinson was in favour of the theory that Morris' light was the light that caused the explosion. 
15994. Mr. Wade.] No, not exactly. Evidence has been given here in Court by other witnesses that they 
are in favour of it. 
15995. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Wade, I understand, is enlisting Mr. Atkinson against the theory advanced 
by other people. 
15996. his. [Fade.] Quite true. There are three theories here. There is Morris' place, and the 4th Right 
under two conditions. 
15997. his honor.] There are two theories as to the light that started the explosion, Morrison's and Morris' 
they are rather likely to be confused, owing to the similarity of the names ; and then there is a third theory, 
which is yours, that there was not an explosion of gas at all, and that, therefore, lights are immaterial. 
15998. Mr. Wade.] Yes, but I do not know what view the Commission may take. They may take the 
view, if the evidence is not corrected, that the theory as to Morris' light was the correct one ; and therefore 
I am trying to get out the facts. 
15999. Mr. JVade (to Mr. Robertson.] You were speaking of the last cut-through, Mr. Robertson? 
16000. Mr. iobertson.] Yes. 
16001. Mr. JJTaJe.] And Morris was found in the last cut-through but one. 
16002. Mr. Robertson.] Yes. 
16003. Mr. Wade.] Q. What was the distance that the coal face of the back heading was in advance of the 
last cut-through? ii. Twelve or 14 yards. 
16004. Q. Proceeding, now, from this line of cut-throughs opposite Morris' place to a point beyond Aitken's 
pillar, were not all the indications of force there uniformly from the direction of the main No. 1 going 
towards Aitken's place? A. Yes. 
1600. Q. And do you remember Aitken's own body-that was also found inbye of his working place?. 
A. About 12 or 13 yards on the inbye side of his working place, at the top of a bord. 
16006. Q. There were, just alongside them, two skips, at the head of that bord? A. Between their bodies 
and their working philCO. 
16007. Q. Two skips turned on their sides, evidently forced from the No. 1 main heading in the direction of 
Aitken's place ? A. Forced towards the avest. 
1600. Q. And did you notice some canvas wrapped round a prop at the corner of Purcell's bord? A. I do 
not know whether I noticed that; but I did notice a bar with a screen on it for turning the ventihation up 
Purcell's bord--one prop was knocked out, and the locee end of the bar was forced some distance towards 
the west. 6009. 
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16009. Q. Do you remember seeing then a bif of canvas wrapped round the prop just on the western side 
of the place where the canvas door had been? A. I do not remember that. 
16010. Q. There was a similar canvas door, or a similar screen, in the cut-through, to turn the air up into 
Test's bord, the next bord to Purcell's, was not there? A. I do not remember that the bord was not so 
far up, and possibly might not require that but I could not say that it was not there. 
16011. Q. With regard to this 4th Right, do you know how long that has been worked from the time it 
was first opened up? A. The coal workings, or the pillar workiogs. 
16012. Q. The coal workings? A. I do not know. 
16013. Q. For some number of years? A. I think so. 
16014. Q. The first process would be to drive the headings, would it not, when you are opening up that 
area? A. Yes. 
16015. Q. If there is gas, you generally find more gas in the headings when you are opening up a district2 
do you not? A. You do, yes. 
16016. Q. Then, after those headings were driven, the ordinary practice is to drive the bords to extract the 
coal? A. Yes. 
16017. Q. When that is being done the strata, if there is any gas, are being still further drained I A. If 
the gas is liberated by falls. 
16018. Q. And by the extraction of the coal? A. The extraction of the coal in the herds? 
16019. Q. Yes. A. Yes, if the roof falls, it will afford an escape for gas in the strata. 
16020. Q. They work the pillars after they have driven a certain number of herds, do they not? A. Yes. 
16021. Q. Is not the method adopted generally this, that the roof in the adjoining bords is allowed to fall, 
really to make the workings of the pillars safer? Leave out the last part of the question. When they are 
working the pillars the general practice is to allow the roof of the bords to fall from time to time? A. In 
many places they draw out the timber in the bords, and some of the roof falls. 
16022. Q. And it generally falls, first of all, in a small fall, perhaps 2 or 3 feet in thickness I A. Generally 
speaking. 
16023. Q. Then, after that, yon get another fall, as a rule, do you not? A. In the bords 
16024. Q. In the bords-that is what I am speaking of at present? A. Well, if you get up to a hard 
stratum it may stand for a long time. 
16025. Q. But sooner or later it comes down is it not the whole point and purpose of coal-mining to let 
the roof fall and gradually become compact? A. I cannot say that with regard to the working of the 
bords. The intention is for that to take place after the whole of the coal is extracted, or in the Long-wall 
process of working. 
16026. Q. Well, that is the process in Long-wall, to let the roof above gradually settle down upon the gob 
below? A. Yes. 
16027. Q. And you get a fairly solid compact mass ? A. Practically so. 
16028. Q. Whether it is done sooner or later, the same principle applies when you are working pillar and 
stall : the roof by degrees keeps falling and falling until it is finally wedged down upon the stuff that has 
fallen ; and that makes it fairly compact I A. Yes. 
16029. Q. So that, when you have a large area of pillars worked out of a district, you may have an enormous 
vaulted roof over that area, where it has fallen ? A. It is very difficult to assume the shape which the 
cavity above the goaf will take. 
16030. Q. As a rule when the roof falls it tends to assume the shape of a dome, rather than the shape of a 
square room like this? A. Yes, that is the natural tendency. 
16031. His Honor.] Are not a lot of these thiugs either absolutely well-known to everybody, or almost 
self-evident? For instance, that seems to be a propostidn which is so self-evident that it is hardly worth 
while putting it to an expert. Nobody would suppose that the roof would come down in the form 
of a cube. 
16032. Mr. Wade.] Some people do say that. I have heard it sworn to in Court. 
16033. I-us honor.] We want to get the Inquiry through as quickly as possible, because I think the 
country is getting rather weary of this Commission, and thinks it is going too far. 
16034. Mr. Wade.] Of course I know there are experts on the Bench, but I do not know what class of 
evidence they want. I will be glad if the Court will stop me if the Court thinks I am covering ground 
that is not required. 
16035. Q. Is not the fact this, that, as the .falls take place, any gas there may be in that locality is 
continually draining to a higher altitude ? A. Yes, that is the natural tendency. 
16036. Q. And the natural result too is that you get the surface falling in, and there is a natural chance 
for the gas to escape through the upper strata ? A. In some cases, yes. 
16031. Mr. Robertson.] Q. There is a limited extent in every mine to which the strata will fall; a vaulted 
roof would only be correct with reference to a small area? A. -Yes. Although you may have a subsidence 
on the surface with a depth of 1,000 feet, I do not imagine that the vaulting takes place through all that 
depth. 
16038. Q. You have had experience of working contiguous seams, that is to say seams within 30 or 40 feet 
of one another vertically? A. Yes. 
16039. Q. And you do not find that the strata are disturbed up to the seam immediately overlying the one 
being worked? A. If you were taken the pillars out in the lower seem altogether you would find a 
disturbance in the upper seam to a certain thickness. 
16040. Q. You would find it probably affected the holing in the upper seam; but you would not find the 
fall extending right up through a contiguous seam, say 40 feet? A. I was just going to illustrate it by a 
case where one seam about 4 feet, or 4 ft. 6 in. thick was taken out 84 feet below ancther seam, which was 
worked subsequently to the pillars in the bottom seam, and in some cases the top of the seam had left the 
roof a little, sagged a little. 
16041. A. That was subsidence I A. Yes. 
16042. Q. But the strata below had not broken up to that point.? A. No ; there was no evidence of that 
sort to interfere with the working of the top seam. 
16043. Q. So that all the vaulting or caving of the roof is limited it chokes itself, the falling of the i'oo 
chokes or fills the cavity up? A. Yes. 
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16011. Q. With regard to this current of air, the explosive mixture, that came from the 4th Right, do you 
say that you think that would come from the strata ?.Do I understand you to say that the gas which came 
out of the 4th Right had come from the strata ? A. Yes ; having regard to the fact that I have not been 
able to hear of any gas having been found in that district, I think it is probable that it came from the strata. 
46045. Q. And it was liberated, you mean, on that day by a fall of some of the roof 1 A. Yes. 
16046. Q. But you do not expect., when the roof-is falling, that one slab will fall, and another slab will fall 
immediately from the same hole that that has come from, from the top of it, do you? I will put it this 
way you have quoted a continuous fall of the roof, do not you mean by that that the exposed surface has 
broken off, and, although it has all come down together, it may have come at different intervals of time 
from different parts of the exposed roof; or do you mean that a stone may come out of a particular part of 
the strata, and then another stone may come out from the same locality that the first came from, and on 
top of it I A. I think it was one continuous large fall ; and it is really difficult., and almost impossible, to 
differentiate exactly how the stones fell. 
16047. Q. What I mean is tIde: that, when you have a fall which is, you say, continuous, you mean that 
the different portions of the roof break off at different times ? Take this roof here ; when you say this roof 
falls continuously, you mean that that corner would fall first, and another piece there next., and another 
piece there next, and so on, until, finally the whole of the roof falls? A. Yes; I suppose it would naturally 
start towards the bottom first. 
16048. 0. But would you expect, say, a piece having fallen from the middle of the roof, which let gas loose, 
another piece would fall from that same spot shortly afterwards? A. I could not say. I really do not 
pretend to be able to differentiate in that way. 
16049. Q. If there was black-damp present in the 41 m Right, it would be present nearest the floor? A. Yes. 

6050. Q. So that the very first fall would drive that black-damp out I A. It would disturb some of the 
black-damp. 
16051. Q. If you have black-damp in conjunction with the volume of air in the main No. 1 would not that 
black-damp tend to make any gas present non-inflammable? A. There is frequently a large percentage of 
black-damp associated with fire-damp, and yet the mixture is inflammable. 
16052. Q. That may be; but does not the black-damp tend to make the fire-damp non-inflammable? A. It 
tends to do so ; but I might mention that Dr. }Ialdane says that, if you have 6 per cent. of fire-damp, the 
mixture is explosive if there is a third of the whole volume black-damp. 
16053. his hioor.] Q. Black-damp would only check the explosibility by taking the place of oxygen-in 
no other way ?A. Yes; I think that is the only way. 
46054. Mr. Wade. That is all I suggest. 
16055. ci. Now, what do you say is your explanation of the disturbance which took place out-bye of the 
4th Right ? A. All the indications of force are outbye there. 
16056. (9. What is the cause of that? A. The explosion from the ignition at the 4th Left., or near the 4th Left. 
16057. (9. Do you menu that the explosion at the 4th Left has then travelled outbye? A. Yes. 
16058. Q. Do you see any signs of that between the 4th Left and the 4th Right I A. Well, there are no 
evidences-nothing to afford evidences of force. 
16059. Q. But you have got the seats of the rollers, showing-what indications they do show-a force 
going inbye ? A. That is the only thing. 
16060. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Did you not find the remains of a door from the 4th Right., in-bye? A. There 
was a small piece of canvas found on the inbye side ; but I could not say that it was the door which came 
out of the 4th Right. 
16061. Q. I understood from the witnesses that there was no question of it belonging to the two doors? 
A. I was not able to fix it in that way. 
16062. Mr. IVade.] Which doors were they. 
16063. Mr. Robertson,] The remainder of the two doors at the 4th Right. There was one opposite. One 
was found inbye. 
16064. Mr. Wade.] And the other outbye? 
16065. Mr. Robertson.] I do not know. 
16066. Mr. Wade.] That was Morrison's evidence. 
16067. Mr. Robertson.] At all events one of them was presumed to belong to the 4th Right. 
16068. Mr.Wade.1 Q. Do not you think that that chock at the 3rd Left was blown down when the 
explosive mixture first came out of the 4th Right ? A. I do not think so. 
16069. Q. But you told us, I thought, before, that this force split when it came from the 4th Right; this 
mixture split, and went partly inbye and pai-tly outhye 1 A. Yes. 
16070. Q. And you mean that the portions which went outbye in the first instance produced no effect ? 
A. Practically no effects. 
16071. Q. Then, do you think it was going fast or slon-ly ? A. Oh, I think it was going fast until it was 
reduced in speed somewhat by the air current which was coming in. 
16072. Q. What pace do you think it would go? 
16073. His honor.] After all, Mr. Wade, it is hardly coi-rcct to talk of it as if it were travelling ; it is one 
body of gas forccd into the middle of another body, the air in the tunnel ; and you must think of it as a 
body in itself, tending of course to squeeze out in both directions, impinging, first of all, by its momentum, 
against the rib on the other sidle. 
16074. AIr. Wade.] And splitting. 
16075. His honor.] Splitting in a sense, not splitting in the sense of a solid, or even of a liquid ; it is a 
different timing altogether-it is a pad, as it were. 
16076. Mr. Wade.] Then could you say what pace this explosive mixture, which came out of the 4th 
Right, travelled outbye from the 4th Right? A. I would not like to attempt to estimate that at all. 
46077. Q. You cannot say fast or slow, or at what rate? A. I would not like to attempt to estimate that 
at all. 
46078. Q. But., as far as the evidence goes, which you have seen, it only shows one force going outbye from 
the 4th Right, and one force going inbye-is not that all? A. Yes, there are no evidences of force outbye 
between the 4th Left and the 4th Right., so far as I limve been able to find. 
46079. Q. What little force there is, is inbye? A. Yes, wh.at little force there is is inbye. 
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16080. Q. With regard to those stones, this quotation from Atkinson Brothers' book is not parallel with 
the case of this goaf 1 A. I think so. 
16081. Q. "With regard to falls of stone, an important point is noticed. Where timber is blown out, and 
some stone falls at once, and during the explosion, and other stone falls some time after, and may continue 
falling for days, the stone falling at the time of explosion can be known by the fact of its being blackened 
with dust then filling the air. The place from which the stone fell can also be known by this blackening. 
Stone falling after the dust has subsided is, in the newly-exposed surfaces, clean ; as also is the place from 
which it fell. Thus, in a pit after an explosion, we find stone with three characteristics as regards dust :- 

Stone exposed before the explosion, and usually blackened with the remains of an old coating of dust 
Stone exposed during the explosion, and coated thinly with a fresh coating of dust; (3) Stone exposed 

after the explosion, and clean as regards dust." You see there " the stone falling at the time of the explosion 
can be known by the fact of its being blackened with dust then filling the air." That is a case, evidently, 
is it not of the dust which is carried by the explosion passing over the stone? A. I think it refers to any 
fall which may take place. 
16082. Q. Yes, but it refers to a fall which happens to be in the line of the explosion and of the dust? 
A. That refers to three sets of falls -- [Interrupted]. 
16083. Q. "The stone falling at the time of explosion can be known by the fact of its being blackened with 
dust then filling the air." That refers to stones which have fallen in the line of the explosion? A. Yes. 
16084. Q. "Stone falling after the dust has subsided is, in the newly-exposed surfaces, clean ; as also is 
the place from which it fell." That refers to the case where the cloud of dust has passed away I A. Yes. 
16085. Q. But is not this a very different case supposing that there had been a fall of roof sufficient to 
drive the air and dust out of the 4th Right, you would not expect to find dust on the stones that had 
fallen, would you in that case; would not it drive all the air and dust ahead of it? A. Yes, I think so. 
16086. Q. And the greater the force with which it drove the air, the less chance of any dust settling on the 
stone after it fell; would not that be so? A. Yes. 
16087. Q. So, so far as the appearance of the stone is concerned, that is consistent with a theory that the 
roof may have fallen heavily and have driven out forcibly the dust and the air ? A. Yes, I think that is 
consistent. 
16088. Q. And of course there may have been, possibly, some trifling quantity of dust, even afterwards, 
something very small 1 A. Yes. 
16089. Q. Just a word in regard to the inspection of the faces of No. 1; up to what point was the brattice, 
going inbye of Morris' place, in that back heading 1 A. Well, there was no brattice inbye of Morris' place 
and the last cut-through in the back heading. [ 7ie witness explained this to Ffr. JVade on the plan.] 
16090. Q. Was not that brattice up there somewhere in the back heading? A. Yes, up towards the face 
from the last cut-through. 
16091. Q. From the last cut-througli to the face of the back heading? A. Yes. 
16092. Q. And that would have the effect of bringing the air down again through the cut-through to the 
front heading? A. Yes. 
16093. Q. Was some part of that brattice which you have spoken of, deranged or shaken I A. It was 
deranged, and part of it was burnt, just about opposite the cut-through. 
16094. Q. Was the part that was burnt the part of it that was deranged? A. No, I think that was not down. 
16095. Q. How was it down, this piece that was deranged, was it off the nails at the top, or at the bottom 
only ? A. Towards the face, I think, it was, more particularly, deranged, off the tacks. 
16096. Q. Do you mean off the tacks at the top, or where? A. I could not say exactly. I made a note 
that the brattice was deranged at that point; but I would not like to swear to exactly how it was deranged. 
16097. Q. But did it seem to be the result of the force that caused that condition? A. I think it may have 
been so. 
16098. Q. Then there would be no occasion to have any brattice between Morris' place and the innermost 
cut-through? A. No, 
16099. Q. Do not you think, if anything had gone wrong with that brattice during those previous weeks, 
that the men working in Purcell's place would have detected the derangement? A. No, I do not see how 
he could do that. 
16100. Q. Then you mean that the brattice could have been deranged, and there would still be a proper 
current of air for Purcell to work on I A. If the brattice was deranged beyond the last cut-through, if gas 
was giving off there would be a tendency for it to accumulate; and if it accumulated to such an extent as 
to reach to the cut-through, it is probable that some of that gas would be carried round to where Purcell 
was working. 
16101. Q. And he would know of it then; there would probably be an explosion then? A. Yes, if it was 
an inflammable mixture. 
16102. Q. With regard to the inspection of these waste workings, of course we know that the regular 
inspection is only made once a month ; but, supposing that Morrison, up to the time the men were withdrawn 
from the 4th Right pillars, examined those pillars when the men were working every night, and examined 
the edge of the waste in the adjoining bords, would not that be sufficient to detect gas if there was any? 
A. Yes, if he made an inspection with the safety-lamp at the highest parts. 
16103. Q. That is in his evidence, that he used to examine the pillars? A. Presuming he did so he would 
have been able to find gas. 
16104. Q. If it was there? A. If it was there. 
16105. Q. And, assuming he went on doing this until the men were withdrawn-which was eight days, 
was it not, before the accident? A. Eight or nine days. 
16106. Q. Supposing you were the deputy, and supposing you had found no gas upto the time the men were 
withdrawn, and you had found the first fall of roof, would not you be inclined to think that the place was safe? 
16107. Mr. Lysaglit.] I would submit that this is not any expert opinion from Mr. Atkinson at all upcn 
any scientific subject. It is a matter for the Commission. 
16108. His honor.] It looks very much like your cross-eamination put the other way up. 
16109. Mr. Lysoght.] Perhaps it is. 
16110. Mr. JVade.] I will not press it. 
16111. His Honor, j You can hardly call it admissible. It is a little towards the direction of inadmissibility 
that Mr. Lysaght suggests 16112, 
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16112. Mr. Wade.] Q. You were at the Dudley Mine after the explosion? A. Yes. 

16113. Q. How soon after the explosion did you get there, how many hours? A. About ten hours. 

16114. Q. Can you tell me what the heat in the pit was like? A. It was warm where the air was not conducted. 

16115. Q. Only warm? A. Yes, I would only describe it as warm. 
16116. Q. Did you go down with Mr. McGeachie the first time, or had people been down before you got 
there? A. They had been down before I got there. 
16117. Q. Had they been down and rearranged the ventilation before you arrived? To some extent. 
16118. Q. Do you know Mr. Joseph Dickenson, one of the Imperial Inspectors? A. Yes. 

16119. Q. Do you know if he has laid down any theory about the compression of air producing trouble in 
coalmines? A. I do not remember exactly what his theory is, but he has some new theory with reference 
to the discharge of gas, although I do not remember exactly what it is without looking it up. 
16120. Q. Is it a theory with reference to the discharge of gas? A. I think so. 

16121. Mr. Wade.] I have, your Honor, this report with regard to the explosion on the air receiver at 
Ryhope. Mr. Atkinson has kindly supplied me with this book, and 1 would like to hand it to the 
Commission, Volume 37, "North of England Institute of Mining Engineers' Transactions," pages 197 to 
212. [See Exhibit .2To.  36.1 
16122, Ilis honor.] Is that a case or explosion suggested to be due to heat generated by the compression of air? 

16123. Mr. Wade.] Yes. The facts shortly were these: that the cylinder was not dust-proof, and acertain 
amount of dust appears to have been drawn into the cylinder, and also a certain amount of grease or oil, 
some kind of lubricant, which got inside the cylinder. 
16124. His Honor The cylinder was used for what purpose? 
16125. Mr. Wade.] For compressing air. It may have been in the receiver that this explosion occurred. 
16126. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It was an experiment tried for the purpose of using compressed air as a motive 
power in the mine. 
16127. Mr. Wade.] It was not an experiment. It was used regularly in the working of the colliery. 
16128. Witness.] They took the ar down pipes in the shaft about 1500 feet deep ; and took it to small 
engines in different parts of the mine for doing haulage work. The air was compressed on the surface. 
16129. Q. Do you know what the pressure was? A. 58 or 60 lbs. 
16130. dIr. Wade.] It says 57. [Mr. Wade then read the following passage : - 

- The engineman at the air compressor said that the three air engines 1,ad all been running, two were stopped, and be had 
just finished oiling the air- compressing engines. He had lubricated the air cylinders, and, when near the door of the house, 
he was knocked down by the violence of an explosion. The thircl engine was easing up when this explosion occurs-eel, at 
1040 p.m., on Marsh 1st, 18S3. 

The pressure of air which he had observed when lubrica ing the air cylinders was 57 lbs. per square inch. The 
compressing engine had been runniug at twenty-three or twenty-four revolntic'nm per minute, an], had slowed down, when 
the two underground engines stopped, and the air was blowing off at the receiver. He further stated that he was rendered 
unconscious, having been struck on the head with some flying d lu-i.e. As soon as he recovered (he could not say how long 
he had been unconscious) he found the engine racing away and stopped it. He then obeerved a fierce fire burning in the 
No, I air receiver, like a furnace, owing to the blast of air playing upon it. 

None of the attached thermometers were in use at the time of the explosion. They are stated to have usually 
indicated about iSO degrees Fahrenheit, although it was said that the temperature of the air occasionally rose as higl) as 
300 Fahrenheit. 

o * 5 5 0 5 5 5 0 5 * 

On one occasion, when the pipes from the air cylinders were 8 inches diameter, they were found almost completely 
closed, there not being room to push in the hand. 

* 5 * * e 44 * 44 5 5 44 

The deposit found in the pipe and the No. 1 air receiver was evidently a mixture of coal-dust and the luricant 
carried over from the air cylinders. It may therefore be said to consist of coal-dust, mineral oil, soft-soap, and water. 
[ride Exhibit 36.] 
16131. His Honor.] There is something peculiar there ; but I believe they get air up to it pressure of 3,000 

lbs. for the purpose of working air engines. 
16132. Witness.] I think in mines they usually have it about 50 or 60 lb., not more. 
16173. His Honor.] But air has been compressed for practical purposes to 3,000 lb. per square inch. 
16131. dIr. Rob rtson.] Do you suggest, Mr. Wade, that the air pressure resulting from a disaster could 
possibly reach 60 lb. to the square inch, or 2 lb. to the square inch? 
1613-5. d[r. JJTarle.]  Yes, that will be our case. You can get it either in an enclosed vessel such as experi-
ments were marie with in this case, and a thermometer; or you can get the same calculation, only roughly, 
of course, to show what the pace was at which the air left the 4th Right ; and, from the velocity, you can 
get the pressure in the limited area; and of course, the only uncer'ain e]ement in time calculation is, what 
was time piston stroke? That varies, of course. If you g- t the two chains falling in a'solid piece you get 
something incalculable, fallismg in a small pascage like the4th Right opening, so one has to allow then for 
the probability of its not falling in one piece. 
16136. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It is only a fall of two chains, a vertical fall of about 3 feet. 
16137. dIr. Wade.] I will ask Mr. Atkinson that question. 
161371. Q. Did not you say that, when you examined it, there may have been a fall of the depth of 30 feet 
to the top of the vault 1 
16138. Mr. Robertson.] But that was not the fall of the roof. The roof did not fall 30 feet. It may have 
subsided. The piston stroke could not be 30 feet; it could only be 3 or 4 feet. 
16139. dir. Wade.] Yes, but the weiglmt coming down makes some difference in the force. 
16140. Mr Robertson.] But the piston stroke could not possibly be above 4 feet. 
16141. dir. Wade.] Not 30 feet. 
16142. Mr. Robertson.] It could not be even 4 feet. 
16143. His Honor.] The acceleration of a falling body depends entirely on the distance it falls, not upon 
its weight. 
16144. Mr. Bruce Smith.] And then the evidence is not that the whole fall was simultaneous. 
16145. Mr. JVade.] There is no evidence at all on it. It is all conjecture. 
16146. Mr. Bruce Smith.] The theory is advanced. 
16147. His honor.] Mr. Wade, the Commission may be convinced that there is something in this peculiar 
theory ; but it does certainly seem to to be rather an unnecessary taking up of time to try to convince the 
Commission that such a thing could be in practice unless we have something like a volcano that suddenly 
shuts itself up with a snap. 16148. 
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16448. AIr. Wade.] Perhaps when your Honor hears the evidence your Honor may think difftrentiv. We 
have not got to that stage yet. 
16149. His Honor.] There is one question I wanted to ask Mr. Atkinson. 

Examination by His Honor :- 
16150. Q. If a pillar is left in a mine, or one or two pillars are left, all the surrounding pillars being 
removed, the pillar or pillars that are left would take a very much larger pressure than would normally be 
put onthem 1 A. Quite so. 
16151. Q. That must be so? A. Yes. 
16152. Q. Is there any experience of the result on the coal of a pressure of that kind, in relation to the 
generation of inflammable gas ? A. I do not know that there is. 
1615:3. Q. That is to say, is there any experience in mines of the effect of leaving pillars in the middle of 
goafs, in relation to the generation of gas have you got any authorities, or have you got any knowledge on 
the subject 1 A. I do not remembeianytliing at the moment; but I will endeavour to see if I can find any 
cases in connection with it. 
16134. Q. Of course, you do not know of your own knowledge that there was a pillar left in this goaf? 
A. No, it has only been reported in evidence. 
16155. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I have a few questions to ask Mr. Atkinson, in re examination; but I do not 
propose to do so until I have gone through the remainder of his evidence. 
16136. his Honor.] You wish to have an opportunity of looking at the notes? 
16 157. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. 
16158. .Mi. Robertson.]. I am in the same position. 
16139. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I presume Mr. Bates saw the Coinmssion this morning? 

h 16160. is Honor.] Mr. Bates does not seem to have any knowledge that would be of the slightest use. I 
quite agree with you, Mr. Bruce Smith, in the conclusion you have arrived at. We have seen him this 
morning; and we have all come to that conclusion, that there would be not.hing gained at all by calling him. 

Further cross-examination by Mr. Lysaght :- 
16161. Q, When you said Mount Kembla was one of the best equipped collieries, did you mean one of the 
best equipped as regards the haulage of the coal only 1 A. I think I said particularly with regard to the 
haulage and the division of the mine into districts. 
16162. Q. And not, I may take i, as regards the safety appliances? A. I would like to know to what 
safety appliances you refer. 
16163. AIr. Lysaght.] Never mind, I Will go into that in detail later on. 

At 1215 the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.] 

A FTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m. Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings.) 

RICHARD HIND CAMBAGE was sworn, and examined as under :- 
Examination-in-chief by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

16164. Q. What is your name? A. Richard hind Canibage. 
16163. Q. What are you I A. Chief Mining Surveyor, 11ines Department., Sydney. 
16166. 0. You were deputed to go to 'Wollongong, to the Mount Kenibla Mine, and make observations of 
the effets of the disaster with a view of preparing certain plans? A. Yes. 
16167. Q. These plans are the result of your work? A. Yes. 
16168. Q. Will you tell the Commission who actually drew them ;-who did the pen and ink work ? A. The 
name of the draftsman 1 
16169. Q. Yes. A. His name is 'William Martin. They were done under my supervision. 
16170. Q. I believe you have gone over the whole of them? A. Yes. 
16171. Q. Over every detail? A. Yes. 
16172. Q. More than once? A. Ys. 
16173. Q. Were the whole of the particulars on this plan (No. 27) seen by yourself, and does the same 
thing apply to the other plans 1 A. Yes; everything noted is what I saw. There are, however, reported 
positions of human bodies. 
16174. Q. Those positions are taken to be right. You got the information elsewhere? A. The positions of 
the bodies are approximate. 
16173. Q. Excluding the human bodies, everything shown on the plans and sections is information obtained 
by you personally, and checked by you personally, and afterwards committed to paper 1 A. That is so with 
regard to every object excepting the bodies. 
16176. Q. In some cases you have indicated above the object what it is? A. In many cases I have. 
16177. Q. I thought that you had done so in most cases? A. Well, with regard to the tubs, they are not 
indicated by writing, because it was thought they could be seen. 
16178. Q. Many other things are indicated? A. Yes. 
16179. Q. You have your note-books with you? A. Yes. 
16180. Q. From which the plans were made? A. Yes. 
16181. Q. And you could refer to your note-book showing your original note? A. Yes, I could. These 
plans were tendered conditionally before, your Honor, and I tender them now absolutely. [The plans are 
the same as those previously marked 26, 27, 28, and 29 Exhibits]. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade :-- 
16182. Q. There is one thing which I should like to ask you about., in the 4th Left. I w.nt to ask you 
about the telephone wire that was found round a tub. Was that outbye of the 4th Left? A. It originally 
went outhye. 
1618.3. Q. There were a number of tubs between the 4th Left rope road and the travelling road. Do the 
dotted lines on this plan [Exhibit .LV0. 271 show the wire 1 A. The dotted lines show the wire. 
16184. Q. Between the end of the wire attached to the tub and the next piece of wire there is a gap? 
A, Yes. 16183, 



	

	

	

495 
JJOn-R. H. Cambage, 12 February, 1903, 

16185. Q. There is some wire blown into a eut-through--2$6 yards? A. Yes. But I do not think it is the 
same wire as was driven into the tub. I think the signal-wire driven into the cut-through, at 286 yards, 
is the same as is shown ending in the cut-through on the outbye side of the 5th Right, and opposite the -idi 
Left travelling road. 
16186. Q. There would be a distance between the end of the signal wire in the cut through, at 286 yards, 
and the other portion of it opposite the 4th Left travelling road, of 64 yards ? A. Yes. 
16187. Q. Did that dispose of all the signal wire? A. There are two wires broken into four pieces. The 
wire embedded in the tub between the 4th Left rope road and the 4th Left travelling road is broken off the 
wire at 258 yards, the bearings being taken from a point near the 3rd Left. 
16188. His honor.] Are these two similar pieces of the same kind of wire? A. I think they are the same 
kind of wire. 
16189. Q. It is not by the nature of the wire that you can identify the pieces ? A. No, by the lengths. 
16190. Q. Is it insulated wire? A. I think it is ordinary telegraph wire. 
16 191. Q. It is not insulated or coated? A. No, there is nothing round it. 
16192. Q. All the wire that you have spoken of seems to have gone inbye of where it was broken? 
A. Undoubtedly. 
16193. Q. You have spoken of a piece of wire which was driven a foot into a skip, and the end of the skip 
into which the wire was driven was outbye. Can you form any opinion as to whether that wire was driven 
from outbye into the skip, or whether the skip was driven on to the wire ? A. I think the skip was driven 
on to the wire. 
16194. Q. how do you account for the fact that the end into which the wire was driven is shown as being 
outbye. That would indicate to anybody who looks at the plan that if the skip had gone out to the wire, 
it must have gone outbye, did it? A. In my Opinion it, came inbye. 
16195. Q. Will you explain to the Commission what led you to that belief when you discovered the skip, 
seeing that the skip as not facing the direction it was in originally 1 A, I came to the conclusion from 
this fact I followed the wire from the tub into which it was driven, and I might say that at that stage I 
had no knowledge which way it was driven. I followed it with my fingers, under timber and over timber 
and round a tub further inbye, and eventually to a point where it was fixed in an insulator, just beyond a 
horse that is shown on the plan. The point is marked C on the plan. The wire was fast in the insulator, 
and evidently it had never been disturbed there. I found that the distance from where the wire was fast 
to the insulator to where it was driven into the tub - 
16196. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. The distance on the ground or of the wire? A. I mean the distance when 
the wire was stretched straight. 
16197. Q. You mean the length of the wire? A. No, I do not mean that, the direct line between the two 
points was 72 feet, but the amount of wire which was twisted amounted to 142 feet. 
1619$. Q. What do you conclude from that? A. I conclude from that that the difference, which would be 
70 feet, could only come from one direction, and that is outbyc. Therefore, this ptrticuiar tub must have 
struck the wire when it was travelling iubye, because the wire between the tub and where it was fixed is 
unbroken, and it would break behind the tub. That proves that the tub was travelling iubye, and that 
after it struck the wire it travelled inbye 70 feet before it reached the position in which I found it, and it 
probably turned over, from the fact that it is now pointing outbye. The wire was bound tightly round it. 
16199. Q. I think you said like a fiddle-string i A. Yes, it would actually sound. 
16200. Jfr. Robertson.] Q. What do you mean by pointing outbye? A. I mean that the earl of the tub 
into which the wire was driven was pointing outbye. 
16201. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Do you mean that the skip struck the wire, and afterwards turned round a 
couple of times? A. Yes. 
16202. his honor.] Q. When you say that the wire was driven into the skip, do you mean that it was 
actually driven into it-was the skip perforated by the wire? A. The skip was cracked for about a foot, 
and the wire was locked firmly in the skip. 
16203 Q. Is the skip wood or iron? A. It is a wooden skip. 
16204. Q. I mean where the wire was driven into it ? A. There wasa split in the wood at the place. 
1620.5. Air. JVade.] Was it a natural division or was it made by the wire? A. The wood was absolutely 
split. I could not say whether the split was made by the wire or whether the tub had been split against 
the side of the ribs of the mine. 
16206. his honor.] (2. How was the wire locked in? A. I mean that it was locked in the wood of the 
skip, going this way and that way, all about the skip. 
16207. Air. JVade.] Q. There was not a division between two boards? A. No, it was a split in the wood. 
16208. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Are you able to say where that wire was placed-i before the explosion-was it 
on the roof, or on the rib, or on the floor? A. It was on the ribs near the roof. 
16209. Q. At a higher point than the topof the skip? A. It would be on all average nearly 6 feet above the floor. 
11i210. (7. How could the skip pick up the wire unless something had broken it down ? A. From the fact 
that I saw things blown in all directions I am not at all surprised that the skip was blown high enough to 
break the wire. 
16211. his honor.] Q. The skip was "sailing" down the heading? A. Yes. - 
16212. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. And it may have struck the wire? A. Yes, and brought it down. 
16213. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Was any portion of that wire fixed to the props? A. Yes. 
1621 1. (2. Were the insulators fixed to the props? A. Yes, in the 5th Right. 
16215. (7. I mean about here? Q. I cannot say because the props were gone. 
16216. (2. Is there not a prop near a cut-through there with a wire attached to it? A. That is not a prop, 
the wire has caught on the edge of a slab-on the ragged end. 
16217. Q. If the insulators were attached to the props and the skip bumped against the props, it would be 
easy to see how it would get caught in the wire? A. Judging from the amount of disturbance there is 
nothing to make one wonder how the skip would reach the wire. 
16218. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Are there any other things which do not explain themselves on this plan? 
A. There is the other wire. 
16219. (7. It is shown on the plan? A. Yes. It proves also that it was dragged inbye. 
16220. (2. Dragged in, or forced in ? A. It has been brought inbye. The proof is not so conclusive as in 
the first case. 16221. 
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16221. His Honor.] Q. Your theory is not that the wire was blown adrift, but that something which was 
flying along at the time of the explosion cut it? A. Yes. Several things were flying along the heading and 
some of them may have cut the wire. 
16222. Mr. Wade.] Q. Have you got a sectional plan of the roadway outbye of the 4th Right I A. Yes. 
16223. Q. Did you see some rollers in that road, on the outbye side? A. Yes. 

ZD 

16224. Q. Was any rubbish heaped up against them? A. No, the rollers were smashed away from the 
frames. 
16225. His Honor.] Q. Is there not an unaccountable heap of coal there? A. Yes. 
16226. Q. Did you form any hypothesis as to how that coal got there? A. I searched fora clue over a large 
area, but I could form no opinion at all, except that I assume that it came out of some tubs. 
16227. Q. Have you any idea what became of the tubs? A. I have no idea. 
16228. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. Did you find any empty tubs? A. No, except some between the 4th Left rope 
road and the travlling road. That place is 300 yards off, and there were, between those points, four full 
tubs upset. 
16229. Q. One conclusion which you arrive at is, from that part of No. 1 heading, opposite the 4th Right 
up to the 5th Right, everything was travelling inbye, and all the signs of force were inbye ? A. All the 
evidence I got between the 4t1i and 5th Right was that the force travelled inbye. 
16230. His Honor.] Q. There was a dead point, I presume, and then from that deal point., going south, the 
force showed signs of travelling outbye? A. Yes. 
16231. Q. Where would you put the centre of that dead point? A. Anywhere near the 4th Right. I have 
to assume something; I have to assume that some canvas I found came out of the 4th Right. I assume 
that because there is not canvas in the main road, and there is canvas outbye and inbye of the 4th Right. 
16232. His Honor.] Q. That would show that the dead point would be just at the end of the 4th Right ? 
A. That is what it shows, provided the canvas came out of the 4th Right, and was not on the main road. 
16233. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You have shown on the side of the 4th Right an accumulation of small coal, 
indicating a sweep of wind round the corner like a wave ? A. Yes. 
16234. His Honor.] Q. There is a great mass of roof that has fallen just at-the opening of the 4th Right. 
Did you notice the condition of that. About what was the thickness of it? A. Well, the space that it 
left would show that it is a little over 2 feet. There is the section here which shows it, about 2 feet of 
stuff has fallen out. 
162.35. Q. Was the place at the top black, or was it clean? A. I do not remember. 
16236. Q. It appears there, unless something has been removed, as though most of the stone was outbye 
from where it fell. Is it directly under the place it fell from ? A. Most of the stone appears to be outbye 
there is one fairly large stone which is inbye. 
16237. Q. There is nothing to show at what exact stage of the proceedings the stone fell? A. Nothing that 
I could see. I could only say that it was there. 
16238. Jfr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I suppose your note-books show nothing more than is shown on the plan? 
A. Nothing more than is shown on the plan. 
16239. I may say, your Honor, that these are all the witnesses that I intend to call. I intended to call 
two Managers, one of wimoni was with Mr. Atkinson at the mine, but I do not intend to do so. I should, 
however, like to ask Mr. Atkinson some questions on re-examination. The Commission has conceded to me 
the right of puttiug him in the box again, if there is anything said by the Managers which requires 
answering. I have also to deal with Mr. Atkinson's recommendations finally after he has heard what the 
Managers have to say. The few questions which I have to ask him on re-examination will serve my 
purpose then. 
16240. his Honor.] Said that he hoped that in the future the Commission would be able to proceed with 
a little more despatch than it had in the past. 

[The Commission at 315 p.m. adjourned until 11 o'clock on the following Monday 

ALONDAY, 16 FEBRUARY, 1903. 
[7'ime Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darl-inyhuret.] 

C. F. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 
D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ, CocmMIssIoNER. J D. RITCHIE, ESQ., CoxMIssmoNER. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
the Crown. - 

Mr. A. A. Lys-aght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— - 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c, (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) ; and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (The Southern Miners', Union). 

Mr. G. J. Barry, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors 
of the Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garhick, Secretary to the Commission, was prsent to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. A. A. ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under :—

Re-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 
16241. Q. First,.I would like you to ask you about the hydrogen lamp—it was referred to as having been 
used in some of the mines, and not in others ? A. Yes. - 
16242. Q. I want to ask you whether the hydrogen lamp is used for the Purpose of official inspection in 
Great Britain? A. No. 
16243. Q. Or in any other country that you know of? A. No. 16244. 
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16244. Q. What are they used for occasionally 1 A. More particularly for ascertaining the percentage of 
gas which may be in the return airways of collieries. 
16245. Q. They are not provided for in any regulations as a necessary - A. No. 
16246. Q. It has been suggested in some of the questions that a hydrogen lamp might have been used at an 
ear]ier stage in the history of the Mount Kembla Mine-suppose the hydrogen lamp had been used in 
Mount Kembla bcfore the accident, would it, in your opinion, have detected any accumulation of gas in thu 
upper parts of the goaf? A. No, it would not be possible to get there with any lamp. 
16247. Q. On the ground of the danger? A. Yes. 
16248. Q. Not from gas, but from the fall? A. From the possibility of falls. 
16249. Q. Suppose the hydrogen lamp had been used, and a small percentage of gas had been detected, 
what action could have been taken 1 A. We could have directed the Manager's attention to the percentage 
of gas found, and have pointed out to him the necessity of complying with General Bules S and 12, with 
reference to the use of safety-lamps, and with reference to blasting. 
16250. Q. Still those rules existed as a special precaution for Nanager to see, quite irrespective of such 
investigation? A. Yes. 
16251. Q. Had you called the Manager's attention to those two rules, Nos. 8 and 12, before the accident? 
A. Yes, after the Dudley explosion a circular was sent out giving the conclusions [Interrupted.] 
16252. Mr. Barry.] Q. What date? 
16253. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Can you give me an idea of the date? A. About September, 1898. 
16254. Q. After the Dudley accident, using the experience of that accident,you sent out this circular? A. Yes. 
16255. Q. Has a copy of that been put before the Commission? A. No, I think not. 
16256. Q. Have you a copy here 1 A. I have not; there are some in the Department. 
16257. Q. You might just tell me the purport of it 1 A. It gave the conclusions of the Royal Commission 
on Coal-dust, in order to direct the Manager's attention to that matter, and also to the necessity for com-
plying with the provisions of General Rules S and 12 ; and it also gave the general terms of the explosives 
in Coal-mines Order. 
16258. Q. That list of permitted explosives 1 A. Yes, at that time. 
16259. Q. You were asked (paragraph 13879), "Where a big fall is expected over a large area, what precau-
tions should be taken to guard against possible danger from that fall 1" You answered, "Do you mean, if gas 
is anticipated ?" Then there was a series of questions and answers, and you said, " If you were anticipating 
gas with a fall which might possibly raise a cloud of dust, I think that you should water the place, especially if 
you are using naked lights." Is there any other suggestion that you think should be made on an occasion of 
that sort? A. If you were anticipating gas, you should abolish the use of naked lights and use safety-lamps. 
16260. Q. Immediately? A. Yes. 
16261. Q. You did not mention that? A. No. 
16262. Q. You heard Mr. Lysaght read some further suggestions from Newcastle? A. Yes. 
16263. Mr. Bruce Smith,] I do not think any evidence has been given on those yet. I think I will 
reserve what Mr. Atkinson has to say on those until evidence is given concerning them. 
16264. Q. That is all you desire to say in addition to your original examination 1 A. Yes. 
16265. Q. With the exception of the comments that are proposed to be made on those twenty suggestions, 
and with regard to the new suggestions 1 A. Yes, after we have heard the evidence. 
16266. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Of course, there is a great deal I could have gone into, going over the 
evidence again ; but I fe1 that, after all, it is Mr. Atkinson's evidence against that of other people who 
have criticised him and I will leave it. 
16267. his honor.] Is there any wish to further examine Mr. Atkinson? 
16268. Mr. Lysayht.j No. 
16269. Mr. Barry.] No. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 
16270. Q. If an examination had been made in Mount Kembla with a hydrogen lamp, and a very small 
percentage of gas found in any part, and you had requested safety-lamps to be used, do you think there 
would have been any objections raised by anyone? A. I think there would, certainly. 
16271. Q. On the part of the management? A. Yes, and the miners as well. 
16272. Q. On the ground of what? A. Generally speaking, they prefer to use the naked light, as affording 
more light than the safety-lamp. 
16273. Q. Is i; not more probable that the objection would be based on the ground that the quantity was 
so infinitesimal as to be scarcely worthy of consideration? A. Yes, if you could not find it with the 
ordinary safety-lamp, they would object on the ground of the very small percentage as well. 
16274. Q. So far there has been no standard definition of a gassy mine, has there? A. No, there has not. 
In France, I believe, they divide mines into one or two classes ; but, even there, the separation into classes 
is not sufficiently well defined by any certain percentage of gas. 
16275. Q. Nor are dusty mines defined? A. There is no definition, no. 
16276. Q. Now, is it not desirable that mines which are gassy should be clearly defined by laying down 
some broad principle to govern such matters? A. It is very desirable. 
16277. Q. What is your definition of a gassy mine? A. I should say a mine which is giving off, more or 
less constantly, fire-damp from the working places in such a quantity that it can frequently be detected by 
the ordinary safety-lamp. - 
16278. Q. Would it not be a safer principle to go on, if a gassy mine were defined as "a mine which is 
giving off explosive gas" ? A. I think your question was as to the definition of a very gassy mine. 
16279. Q. No r said, "What is your definition of a gassy mine" 1 A. Well, that would cover everything. 
16280. Q. Hardly. It would cover the definition of a very gassy mine; but, you see, we are face to face 
here with the fact that all the explosions which have occurred in this colony have taken place in mines that 
are only slightly gassy? A. Yes. 
16281. Q. Is that not so? A. Yes, I think that is correct. 
16282. Q. Take Kembla-you could not describe that as a very gassy mine? A. No. 
16283. Q. Nor Bulli 1 A. No. 
16284. Q. Nor Dudley? A. No. 
16285. Q. Nor Burwood? A. No. 
16286. Q. Nor Seaham? A. No. 16287. 
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16287. Q. And yet explosions have occurred with great loss of life at all those collieries? A. There have 
been explosions, both large and small, in all of those, 
162.88. Q. With loss of life? A. With some loss of life-Bulli and Kernlda very large explosions. 
16289. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You say there have been large and small explosions? A. Yes, large and 
small. 
16290. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Does not that point to the necessity for some definition that would rope in 
every mine where gas is given off? A. Yes, I think it would be well if that were defined ; and if safety-
lamps were used in all such mines. 
16291. Q. For the purpose of defining what is a gassy mine, you would not consider the examination with 
the ordinary safety-lamp sufficiently accurate-I am not referring to the examination by deputies--but, for 
the purpose of defining whether a paticular mine was gassy or non-gassy, would you be satisfied with the 
examination by an ordinary safety-lamp ? A. I think so. 
16292. Q. Under those circumstances you could not define Kenibla as gassy ? A. If we take into consideration 
the evidence that has been given here, there have been many instances where gas has been seen without the 
use of the hydrogen lamp. 
16293. Q. But, in considering this question, are we to take the evidence of irresponsible men, miners ; or 
are we to take the evidence of scientific and accurate observers, such as yourself 1 A. I think you cannot 
disregard the evidence of the miners, if you believe what they say. 
16294. Q. But, having had a report from a miner that lie had met with gas in a mine, would you, to test 
the accuracy of that report, take an ordinary safety-lamp or a hydrogen lamp? A. If you are unable, after 
hearing the incident as reported by the miner, to find gas with the ordinary safety-lamp, it is possible that 
an examination with the hydrogen lamp may show that a certain exudation of gas is being given off. 
16295. Q. Quite so but the emission of gas that can only be detected by a hydrogen lamp may accumulate 
and become in time as dangerous_it is only a question of time-as the emission that is detected by the 
ordinary safety-lamp? A. That may happen, yes. 
16296. Q. In the light of those disasters referred to, do not you think it is necessary to define a gassy mine 
as a mine that is giving off explosive gas 1 A. Yes, I think that is a safe definition. 
16297. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Are you speaking with a view to future legislation ? Of course it depends upon 
the light in which one is looking at this. 
1629S. Mr. Robertson.] Yes. 
16299. Q. Is it not desirable that such mines, if they are defined as gassy mines, shonld be worked with 
safety-lamps? A. Yes, I think so. 
16300. 9. And do not you think that the type of lamps to be used should be subject to the approval of 
some authority? A. So long as they are an acknowledged and approved type of lamp, I think that is 
sufficient. - 
16301. Q. That is what I mean. I do not mean to say that the authorities should unreasonably request 
that a particular type of lamp should be used when another approved type is in the market ; but what 
I want to prevent is the use of a lamp of an obsolete type? A. Yes, that may be necessary. 
16302. .illr. Ritchie.] With the approval of what authority 1. - 
16303. Mr. Robertson.] With the approval of some authority to be determined. Perhaps I should ask that. 
16304. Q. You mean some official authority outside of the mine? A. Yes. 
16305. Q. You are aware that a number of fires in mines have been caused by the use of the naked light-
I am not referring to gassy mines 1 A. Quite so. 
16306. Q. By naked 1ighs coming into contact with combustible material? A. Yes, there have been a 
nu tuber. 
16307. Q. And, in at least one instance, with fatal results ; that is, the Greta fire ? A. Yes, that was in 
December, 1900. 
16308. Q. Is it not desirable that the use of naked lights should be prohibited in mines not naturally wet 
and free from explosive gas? l. Exposed lights 
16309. Q. Yes, naked lights 1 They are of frequent occurrence, are they not, these fires? A. Yes. 
16310. 9. And they may lead to disastrous results? A. Yes. 
16311. Mi. Bruce Samitlm.] That is, not in a mine, you say, free from explosive gas? 
16312. Mr. Robertson.] Free from gas, and not naturally wet. Of course, if it is naturally wet and free 
from gas there is no danger in risk of a naked light. 
16313. Witness.] A suggestion of that sort would have very far-reaching effiscts. I do not think there are 
more than ten or a dozen mines in the State which you could call naturally wet throughout; and I am not 
prepared to altogether exclude the use of naked lights in all those mines. 
16314. Q. In dry and dusty mines? A. Does the suggestion include the necessity for using safety-lamps? 
16315. 9. Yes, in dry and dusty mines where combustible materials are to be found ? A. Well, it would 
certainly be increasing saf€tv but, as I say, it would have very far-reaching effects. There might be some 
difficulty in defining, or drawing the line, as to which was a dry and dusty mine; that would be another 
difficulty. 
16316. Q. Then you do not sea your way to suggest that? A. Not to go quite that length. 
16317. Q. I take it that safety-lamps are a great safeguard in any mine where gas is given off? A. Yes, 
they are. - 
16318. Q. Speaking in ct rough sort of a way, would you put it. at something like 90 per cent. ; of course I do 
not say that you can exactly define a certain percentage of safety; but, in a rough sort of way, as a sort of 
rough illustration, with safety-lamps in a mine and the discipline what it ought to be, would that, in 
practice, secuie 90 per cent. of safety ? A. \VelJ, say 75 per cent-. ; and a good deal might be done also in 
regard to a safer manner of blasting. 
16319. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You apportion that 75 per cent, to safety-lamps alone? A. Yes. 
16320. Mr. Robertson.] Q. 1-las it not been found in practice that, wherever safety-lamps have been brought 
into use, better discipline is observed? A. That is the general result. 
16321. Q. Better ventilation? A. That is also another result. 
16322. Q. Officials more alert and intelligent? A. That is so, yes. 
16323. 9. And the standard of safety and efficiency raised generally? A. Yes; that has generally been 
observed. 
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16324. Q. In the ordinary sense I take it that you would not describe Mount Kembla as a gassy mine-I 
am referring to the time prior to the explosion ? A. No, I could not, from what I knew of it. 
16325. Q. Would it, in the ordinary acceptation of the term, be a dry and dusty mine? Q. Not throughout 
the colliery ; although parts of the haulage road might have been so described, I think. 
16326. And what do you describe its general reputation as, from the safety point of view ? A. I have always 
heard it described as a safe mine. 
16327. Q. And did you suspect it to give off gas even in small quantities? A. Well, I knew that a man had 
been burnt; I knew that fire-damp was given off from the same seam in some of the neighbouring collieries 
and I think it is probable that a small percentage was being given off. 
16328. Q. But I say generally, not in any particular parts, did you suspect it to give off gas generally 
throughout the mine? A. Not generally throughout the mine. 
16329. Q. I take it that mining men may be perfectly seized of the dangers of coal-dust and fire-damp, but 
differ honestly in opinion as to whether a particular mine could be defined as a gassy or a dusty mine? A. Yes, 
there would be a great variety of opinion if you were to take twelve men and ask them to express an opinion 
on a matter of tins kind. 
16330. Q. That is, although they were perfectly seized with the importance of the coal-dust question? 
A. Yes, there would be a great variety of opinion. 
16331. Q. In the matter of using safety-lamps--possibly one man out of one hundred would consider it 
necessary to use safety-lamps, even if infinitesimal quantities of gas were given off; but is it not a fact 
that 99 per cent. would not take that extreme view? A. You refer to such quantities as could not be seen 
by an ordinary safety-lamp? 
16332. Q. Yes ? A. Yes, they would object to use safety-lamps generally, if you could only find gas with 
the hydrogen lamp. 
16333. Q. And probably some of them would object, even if you could detect it with an ordinary safety-
lamp here and there? A. Yes, that is my experience in this State. Tiere has been great opposition to the 
use of safety-lamps, even where fire-damp has been detectable with the ordinary safety-lamp. 
16334. Q. It is not confined to this State only ; but are there not mines in the British coal-fields of that 
character; where gas can be detected with the ordinary safety-lamp, but where they are still using the naked 
lights 1 A. Yes, there are some few ; although the use of safety-lamps is becoming more general. - 
16335. Q. It is unfortunate that Managers do take that view? ii. Yes, it it. 
16336. Q. Still, we cannot disregard the opinions of a large number of prominesat mining men A. No. 
16337. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You are speaking, I take it, of experts, quite apart from the fact that they 
are miners or Managers? 
16338. Mi'. Roberton.] Yes. 
16339. Mr. Bruce Smith.1 People whose minds are in an impartial condition ? - 
16310. Air. Robertson.] Yes. 
16341. Q. And, speaking of miners, as a matter of fact, the most strenuous opposition, generally speaking, 
to the introduction of safety-lamps, has been from the miners? A. Yes, that has been my experience; and 
on the part of the owners in some cases as well. 
16342. Q. Do you not think, from what has occurred at Kembla, and at those other slightly gassy mines in 
the State, that, unless more than the actual danger is anticipated, unless piecautions are taken to 
anticipate the potential danger of a mine even slightly gassy, disaster probably looms ahead even yet? 
A. Yes. 
16343. Q. And I take it, even amongst the most advanced mining men, the Kembla accident has been an 
object lesson? A. I think in many respects it has. 
16344. Q. And men who have hitherto not recognised the danger of naked lights in gassy mines and dusty 
inines, have now realised it, tbough  hithem-to sceptical? A. Yes, I think it has had that effect. 
16315. Q. There are ninny mines, I take it, in the British coal-fields, and also in this State, of the same 
character as Kembla? A. Yes. 
16346. Q. Of course we- know the discipline and the arrangement generally of such collieries would scarcely 
compare with an up-to-date gassy mine where safety-lamps are used? A. No. - There is a general tendency 
for the discipline not to be so strict in collieries where naked lights are used as where safety-lamps are used, 
and where there is consequently greater villgance in all respects. That is the general result of my 
observation. 
16347. Q. But did the arrangements, generally speaking, compare favourably at Kembla or unfavourably 
with other mines of the same character? A. They were just about on a par, 1 should say. - 
16348. Q. Can you give a single instance of an explosion brought about in the same manner as you yourself 
suggest this has been brought about at Keinbla ? A. No, 1 do not know of a similar case. The nearest 
parallel, I think, would be an explosion at the Hyde Colliery, where the roof, weighting, caused some 
fire-damp to be liberated ; but, instead of being an intake, it was a return ; and the fireman met the gas 
with his naked light 
16349. Q. The fireman with_a naked light? A. Yes. 
16350. Q. And that is an example of lax discipline, an accident caused by a fireman or deputy's naked light? 
A. Yes; although they had not seen gas in that mine for some considerable time. 
16351. Q. But still, if the deputy had not been using a safety-lamp, the explosion would not have occurred 
Q. No. 
16352, Q. Can you imagine a chain or sequence of more remote contingencies than the accumulation of gas 
in a district believed to be free from gas ; that gas being force-cl out into a main intake, although surrounded 
by a return airway, and being forced out with such force and such energy as to raise a cloud of dust-, which, 
being mixed with gas, ignite-cl at a naked light on a main haulage road, where explosive gas would not, except 
under extraordinary circumstances, ever be found in the lifetime of a colliery 1 A. Well, the combination 
of circumstances appears to be, so far as I have been able to read and ascertain, unique. 
16353. Q. Could it have reasonably been foreseen? A. 1 do not think so. 
16351. Q. Can you trace any connection between the neglect to make a weekly examination of the old waste 
at Keinbia, and this disaster? A. No, from the evidence I -have heard as to time condition of the 4th Right 
I cannot see any connection. 
16355. Q. Do you know anything of an accident which occured at the Bi-oken Hill South Mine? A. I do. 
J have rend the particulars. 16356, 
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16356. Q. Have you them fresh in your mind now? A. Yes, generally speaking although, perhaps, some 
of tue details may require looking up. 
16357. Q. Was it a large fall from a very great height? A. Yes, it was a fall of some of the stopes, I think, 
from a height of 30 or 40 feet. 
16358. Q. Discharging the air from a very small orifice? A. Principally through one roadway 7 or 8 feet 
square. 
16359. Q. It caused loss of life? A. Nine men's lives were lost, I think. 
16360. Q. Do you know whether it caused any flame, or raised the temperature in any way? Q. Well, I 
have information from Mr. Hebbard, who was the Inspector, and also from Mr. Mayne, who was the 
Manager, that there was no singeing or burning of any of the men. 
16361. Q. They were killed by the force? A. By the force. 
16362. Q. Of the air? A. Yes. 
16363. Q. Air. Bruce Smith.] Q. The medical evidence in that case does not show any fire or any singeing 
or burning, does it? A. No. 
16364. Q. You have the depositions, if the Commission wish to see them? A. Yes. 
16365, Mr. Robertson.] I think we might have those. 
19366. His honor.] Yes. 
16367, Witness.] I also have a letter from Mr. Hebbard and one from Mr. Mayne, if the Commission desire 
to have them. 
16368. Mr. Robertson.] Yes, I would like to read them. 
46369. Q. If safety-lamps had been used at Kembla, do you think this disaster would have occurred? 
A. If they had been used then, as they are being used now-that is, practically from the tunnel mouth-I 
think it would not have occurred. 
16370. Q. Assuming that the officials had no knowledge of gas in the mine-I am not sazing that they had 
not-assuming that they had not, yon had no knowledge, had you? A. No. 
16371. Q. The miners say they knew of it? A. Yes. 
16372. Q. Do you think that their failure to report complaints to yourself, or the District Inspectors, was 
primarily responsible for the disaster? A. I should not like to go so far as that. 
16373. Q. But I think you said in your evidence that, if you had been aware that gas was being given off in 
Kembla, you probably would have taken such steps as might have averted this disaster! A. Yes, that is 
my opinion. 
16374. Q. And if any man finds a danger or.a defect in a mine, and neglects to report it, is not he responsible 
for anything that may occur through that neglect? A. Yes, his duty is to report to the officials. 
16375. Q. Is he not morally responsible? 
16376. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Robertson, I think, is asking you about moral responsibility; and you are 
answering abo,ut the responsibility under the Act. 
16377. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Put it that way, actually or morally ? A. I ani afraid I am not an expert in all 
these terms. 
16378. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think Mr. Atkinson considers himself an expert in morality. 
16379. iis honor.] Mr. Atkinson does not pose as an expert in morality. 
16380. Witness.] 1 think not. 
16381. Mr. Robertson.] I certainly think that a person who knows of a danger or defect-it does not 
matter how you describe it-if he is not actually responsible, is certainly responsible morally. 
16382. Witness.] Whether he be official or miner? 
16383. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It raises the question as to how far certain people realise the danger of certain 
conditions. If they do not realise the danger, it is a question how far they are responsible. 
16384. Jfr. Robertson.] Q. It has been alleged that miners are afraid to report? A. Yes. 
16385. Q. Do you think, speaking from your own knowledge-you have been a Manager yourself-there is 
any warrant, generally speaking, for such an assertion ? A. 1 think there may be some little in it but I 
think the miners exaggerate the possible consequences very much. I think it is a very unfortunate feature. 
16386. Q. But do you not think most Mining Managers would rather welcome reports from the miners, or 
anybody as to defects? The Managers cannot be at every part of the mine, and must, necessarily, rely 
upon reports; and, therefore, every additional Inspector that can bring information to the Manager is of 
assistance ? A. Yes ; they should rather seek to have complaints than to suppress the knowledge of any 
possible danger. 
1 6387. Q. Of course you have read Mr. Hall's report on the matter of watering roadways? 'A. I have. 
16388. Q. And its failure in his district ? J. Yes, 
16389. Q. Do you recollect the explosion at Fernie, in Canada? A. Duting lest year? 
16390. Q. Last year, I think it was? A. Yes. 
16391. Q. This is a report, which I am going to read part of, by Mr. Blakemore? A. I have read the 
report. 
16392. Q. Mr. Blakemore wrote: "At the Fernie Mine there were considerable areas where water was lying 
or dripping; and yet these wet areas had no effect upon the spread of the explosion which passed over or 
through them with apparently the same ease as would have been the case if they had been dry." In view 
of that, and Mr. Hall's evidence, and also the experience at Kembla, where the explosion jumped long 
lengths of damp or wet roads, do you still rely upon short sections of wet roads to arrest an explosion 
ii. I think that the information, in regard to even the Fernie Colliery, does not describe it as a length of 
properly-wetted road. It says there is wet. I certainly know of several cases where properly-wetted lengths 
of road, or roads which, over a certain length, have been naturally wet, have stopped explosions. 
16393. Q. This is what Mr. Blakemore says : " At the Fernie Mine there were considerable areas where 
water was lying or dripping "i A. He does not give us the length. 
16394. Q. He says "considerable areas "-does not that point to the conclusion that, if watering is to be 
effective, it must he thorough, and must not stop short at 100, or 200, or 300 yards, and it must not be 
confined to any one outlet from the district, but to every outlet? A. Yes, the evidence does certainly point 
in that direction. 
16395. Q. So the money is abmlutely wastel in watering unless it is done thoroughly over long distances 
Q. I am not satisfied as to that myself. 
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16396. Q. I am asking you from the light of experience. There is what Mr. Hail says, and what Mr. 
Blakemore says, and what we have ourselves observed at Kembla? A. Yes. On the other hand I could 
show you quite as many instances, and quite as many authorities, who hold opposite opinions. It is not a 
matter which has been decided. There is still great variance on the sulject. 
16397. Q. But I think it does generally point to the necessity for watering, if it is to be done at all, to be 
done on a large scale? A. Yes, that would be better and that would exclude the necessity for separate wet 
lengths if the whole thing were watered. 
16398. Q. Assuming that the roads are watered, do not you think, in a very dusty mine, the dust in 
suspension in the air-that is the dust raise! by the miners in shovelling into the skips, would be sufficient 
of itself to carry an explosion through a mine ? A. No doubt it would have that eilèct along the faces, 
especially in a long-wall face. 
.16399. Q. As a matter of fact, I take it, the actual amount of dust required to carry an explosion along is 
really infinitesinial 1 YL Yes, it is really very small in fact, one has read an authority saying that sufficient 
dust to blacken a white handkerchief, just by holding it up, is sufficient to carry it. Perhaps that may be 
an exaggerated opinion but some authorities go so far. 
16100r. Q. But have you not observed dust raised in a mine, suspended in the air, sufficient to carry on an 
explosion ? I am not speaking of what is concealed on the timbers and on the floor? A. Yes, I think, 
particularly near the bottom of the downcast shaft, where a lot of dust is coming down from the surface, 
there might be a sufficient quantity floating in the air. 
16401. Mr. Bruce Sinit/ai Mr. Robertson, is it not feasible that, although a length of wet road may not 
prevent an explosion passing over it, it will prevent that length of road from being the source of another 
coal-dust explosion to join on to the first? 
16402. Mr. Robertson,] Yes. 
16403, Mr. Bruce Smith.] It travels from one place on to raise an explosion in another; but, although it 
may jump over a wet section, the fact of that section being wet, prevents dust being raised from that 
section to extend the explosion. 
16404. Mr. Robertson] But if it jumps over a wet section, it may pick up dust on the other side to 
extend it. 
16405. Q. Now, I think you said that watering was admittedly harmful to the roof, and floor, and sides 1 
A. In some cases, yes. 
16406. Q. And, in mines with a very high temperature, it would be destructive to the timber ii. It would 
also have a tendency in that direction, no doubt. 
16407. Q. And it would be a very serious matter, would it not, to water a large mine systematically 1 
A. You mean a costly matter? 
.16408. Q. Yes? A. Yes ; it would. 
16409. Q. Both in the first cost, and in maintenance afterwards ? A. Yes. 
16410. Q. Is it really practicable, I mean commercially practicable 1 A. You refer now, I lake it, to a 
colliery where it is necessary to water intakes, travelling roads, faces, all workings, and returns? 
16111. Q.Yes? Q. In such a case as that, I think that it would be, possibly, commercially impracticable. 
16412. Q. To be of any practical use it must be thorough? A. Yes; but I do not think there are many mines 
in this State where it would be necessary to water the returns, equally with the intakes, in order to secure 
safety. 
16413. Q. In my experience, speaking of one mine that I am connected with, I find the returns are the 
dustiest. A. Yes, referring to the Metropolitan, of course I know that it is dusty in returns, and working 
places, and intake, and all over the place. 
16114. Q. You have estimated, I think, the quantity of water for clamping : I think you said it was a of 
a gallon to the square yard 1 A. That was in a paper, The Colliery Manager." 
16415. Q. That comes to about 5,000 gallons per mile! A. Yes. 
16416. Q. And if you have 40 miles it is 200,000 gallons? A. Yes. 
16417. Q. That would not be procurable at any mine in this State? A. Not to do the watering sufficiently 
often to be of any value. 
16418. Q. General Rule 12 provides, I think, for either watering in the vicinity of a shot or permitted 
explosives? Yes. 
16419. Q. \Vell, when the circumstances were such that watering was impracticable, by reason of the 
scarcity of water, or the cost., would it not meet the case if shots were permitted in the faces at night., if 
permitted explosives were used, and fired by electricity under strict supervision! A. I think, even with 
the permitted explosives, they should observe the same precautions as to watering as with blasting powder. 
16420. Q. No doubt, if pi'acticable? A. If not practicable, I think time safety explosives should not be used. 
16121. Q. But, under General Rule 12, you can use permitted explosives without watering? A. Yes. 
16422. Q. What is your opinion as to the use of gunpowder in mines not naturally wet, and free from 
gas? A. I think that the use of gunpowder in such cases should be excluded. 
16423. Q. Prohibited altogether? A. Prohibitd. 
16424. Q. And slmot.firing entrusted to responsible efficials ? A. s. 
16425. Q. Wheat is your opinion as to the method of firing shots any kind with a fuse? A. In regard to 
what ? 
16126. Q. With special reference to mines not naturally wet anc. ree from gas? A. \Yell, are you supposing 
that they are using gunpowder with the fuse! 
16427. Q. No ; I am supposing that it is necessary to use permitted explosives? A. I think that the 
safest method is to fire with an electric battery in such a case. 
16428. Q. And you do not approve of firing with a fuse! A. With a permitted explosive? 
16429. Q. Yes ?A, No. 
16430. Q. I think most people admit that the phraseology of General Rule 12 is obscure and complicated? 
A Yes, it is. 
16131. Q. I think that no mining man has vet admitted that he could interpret General Bule 12 without 
sitting down and thinking very hard .1. No. 
16432. Q. Do not you think this rule should be recirafted  1 A. Yes, I think it would be much better if it 
were made notch plainer. 

16433. 
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16433. Q. In such a form that an ordinary man with ordinary education could clearly understand? 4. Yes, 
I think that is very desirable. 
16431. Q. And that is quite possible? A. I think so. 
16135). Q. It is a perfect Chinese puzzle. Would not the framing of such a rule be very much easier if you 
prohibited gunpowder in certain mines? A. Yes, I think it would. 
16 136. Q. 'Would you favour the appointment of a board, representing the different interests, to whom 
questions of the expediency of the new Special Rules, or any differences of opinion between the Inspector 
and the Managers, might be referred 1 A. Yes, I think such a board might do very useful work. 
16431. Q. We have heard a great deal from the minrs as to the necessity for cut-throughs being more 
frequent I A. Yes, I have. 
16438. Q. Do you think that such a suggestion would be fetal to the safe working and to the economical 
working of seams at more than moderate depths? A. Yes, I think it would be in the case of deep mines. 
16 139. Q. Are not all such rests ictions upon a manager's discretion as to the best method of working 
prejudicial? A. I think it is unnecessary to indicate the manner in which a sealli shall be worked, even to 
the extent of cut throughs. 
16440. Q. Mining is essentially an industry where efficiency and success depend upon the intelligence thu 
management shows in adapting methods to conditions'? A. Yes, the conditions are so varied that it is 
almost impossible to lay down any general lines. 
16 141, Q. And it is not desirable for legislation, having imposed great responsibilities upon the manager, 
to limit his discretion as to what particular method of working he will adopt for a particular end 1 A. I 
think it is unnecessary. 
16442. Q. Then, as to any objection that may be raised that a manager is carrying on a system of worksng 
which is reckless, the remedy would be to have the matter referred, on the complaint of the Inspector, to 
arbitration, or to this permanent board, that I have suggested. 
16443. Q. Respecting furnaces, would you favour the following provision-" That, with the exception of 
existing mines where a furnace is in use capable of supplying sufficient air to meet the requirements of the 
Act, the ventilation of all collieries where the number of persons employed exceeds thirty shall be produced 
by fans ; provided that when, in the opinion of the owners, the quantity of mineral to be gotten will not 
warrant the expense, or where, from any cause, the erection of fans would be difficult or inexpedient., the 
Minister may grant an exemption or, felling this, that the matter be referred to arbitration? A. Yes ; I 
think that contains part of the suggestion which I mentioned. 
16444. Q. That is to say, it prohibits furnaces being used unless under special con',litions approved by the 
Minister 1 A. Yes I think a rule to that effect would answer all purposes. 
16445. Q. And it permits the continuance of the use of furnaces at mines where furnaces are already in 
use, and capable of supplying sufficient ventilation ? A. Yes ; it seams to be a reasonable suggestion. 
16446. Q. Then, where furnaces are in use, do you not think that they should be so constructed and 
surrounded by protecting walls and air passages as to prevent the ignition of the stream or stratum 
A. Yes. 
16447. Q. Fires have been caused? A. By furnaces, yes. 
16148. Q. Without some protection? A. Yes. 
16419. Q. And, where a furnace is in use, do you think the shaft should be lined with brick ? A. Yes, I 
think the strata in such a case should be lined with brick in this State. 
16450. Q. And, where a furnace is used, a separate outlet for men should be provided? A. In addition to 
the ordinary downcast shaft 1 
16451. Q. Yes, unlen in a case of a mine-I do not know whether there are any-where the upeast is 
also the second outlet? A. There are cases where the upeast has a furnace, and has a second outlet. 
16452. Q. In any mines henceforth would you permit the furnace shaft to be used as an outlet for the 
men? A. I think regulations for the future might prohibit it; but it must be that there are some existing 
conditions which will have to be considered. 
16453. Q. Quite so, I recognise the difficulty with existing mines. Speaking about shafts, I think you 
made the remark that the strata ia this State were rather treacherous? A. Yes, generally speaking I think 
they are. 
16454. Q. They are affected by the atmosphere ?A. By the weather. 
16455. Q. In a way that we, with British experience, are rather surprised at? A. Yes ; in some cases the 
strata fret a good deal. 
16456. Q. And would you think it necessary in any shafts that are sunk after this date, where persons 
have to ascend or descend, to have them lined with either brick or timber? A. Yes, I agree with that 
suggestion. 
16457. Q. Something has been said or 'reconamended as to scientific instruments being required at the 
shaft-is it not a fact that the indications of thu barometer are of no practical value? A. No, the naove-
ments of the gas are so much quicker than the movements of the mercury that the gas may have come and 
gone before the mercury begins to be moved. 
16 15S. Q. Does that take place before the indications are recorded? A. Yes. 
46459. Q. And, with the exception of the water gauge, I take it that no importance at all is attached by 
the best men to barometrical or thermometrical readings 1 4. That is the general opinion. 
10460. Q. I take it that, if the ventilation of the mine is regulated by the. variations of the barometer there 
is not a sufficient margin of safety l A. No. 
16461. Q. And the ventilation should be sufficient to meet all possible conditions, such as a variation in the 
atmospheric pressure? A. Yes, it should. 
16462. Q. General Rule 9 says-" Wherever safety-lamps are used, they shall be so constructed that they 
may be safely carried against the air current ordinarily prevailing in that part of the mine in which the 
lamps are for the time being in use, even though such current should be infla,nmable." As it matter of fact, 
it is impossible to find a lamp fulfilling those conditions ? [Witness did not aoswee.] 
16463. Q. Do you know of any safety.lamp capable of being safely carried againsi an explosive current at 
any velocity 1 4. Not at any velocity but at the vclocit.ie.s ordinarily prevailing in the mine. Of course, 
sometimes, in exceptional cases, you get very high velocities-SO feet a second. 
16464. Q. A good deal more A. In which case a safety-lamp would probably fail; but those conditions 
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10465. Q. Would it not be better to have this rule so framed that an approved type of eafety.lamp could be 
used ; because, in practice, that is what it amounts to? A. Yes, that is the general result. 
16466. Q. There seems to be no evidence that gas had accumulated in the No. 1 back heading prier to the 
explosion I A. No, I think not. 
16467. Q. As far as you know the brattice was in perfect condition? A. The brattice was in the back 
heading aftei' the explosion ; I saw it ; and I have no reason to think that it was not up in the usual way. 
1 GIGS. Q. As a matter of fact, very little of it was deranged after the explosion 1 A. No, not much of it. 
16469. Q. That being so-was not that the second rlace  the fresh air passed through? A. Yes. 
16470. Q. Do you think it is reasonable to assume that gas existed at that point? A. I think that, as gas 
was afterwards found there, there might be a small percentage undetectable even with the safety-lamp. 
16 171. Q. I ant quite prepared to agree with you there ; but it is not probable that gas could have been 
found in that place capable of being dctected by the ordinary lamp? A. No, I do not think I have suggested 
that. 
16,172. (7. But you suggest that, when the explosion reached that point, it received further fuel, as it were, 
and fresh energy, from the gas which you supposed had accumulated there ? A. I do not think I und the 
word ''accumulated " ; I think I said a small percentage of gas in the air. 
16 173. Q. I gathered from your remarks that you had assumed some gas to be there of a percentage capable 
of being detected with the ordinary lamp I A. I do riot think I have suggested tlma. 
16474. 0. Part of the explosion passed on to the left, and part passed down the back heading? A. Yes. 
16475. Q. How is that consistent with the 'circumstance of Morris' bottle and Morris' shirt and canvas 
having been blown uphill, in the direction which you say the explosion came out from I A. Yes-weli, I 
could not attempt to account for the position of everything you can see aftes' an explosion ; and I can only 
suggest that those things were carried there by the air when it was recovering its equilibrium-" back lash," 
as it is sometimes called. - 
16 176. Q. At all events they seem irreconcilable with the theory of the explosion having come down hill 
A. I do not think so. 
ill 177. Q. In your evidence there is a quotation from Atkinson's work, page 396 of the notes 

The coking of the dust is an indication often wanting over long lines, where great force and Game have passed. It is 
more noticed at the working faces than on the hanlage road. it was not observed at the shaft limit of an explosion. A 
chemical and microscopical examination of dust on hiiulage roads in the absence of coking, affords reasons for asserting the 
passage of flame. 

You had some samples taken of dust along the No. 1 main haulage road 1 A. Yes. 
16178. Q. And they were microscopically examined? A. Yes. 
16479. Q. And gave no indication of coking? A. it is sometimes difficult for anyone to say exactly when 
the coking process commences ; and an amateur inspecting coal-dust microscopically is very often deceived. 
16480. Q. But the examination was made by Mr. ilanliet 1 A. By Mr. Mingaye. 
16181. (7. But he is not an amateur? A. aIm no, I do not suggest that. I did not suggest it in his case. 
16182. Q. I understood the tenor of his report was that the dust was quite unchanged I A. No, I did not 
gather that at all ; in fact he said that he thought that it had been subject to flame. Mr. Mingaye is 
prepared to give evidence, if the Commission desire it. 
16 183. Q. Did not you refer to it in your evidence at the inquest-the samples were taken before the inquest? 
A. They were. I might have made sonic reference in my evidence to it-I forgot just now. [l?fea'ring to 
notes f Coroner's inquest.] At the bottom of page 56 I referred to some dust collected at the bottom of the 
4th Left rope road as follows :-" I took a sample o' that dust, and had it examined microscopically, to see 
if it had been coked. The Mineralogist of the Mines Department reposted to me that there were no signs 
of coking." 
16484. (7. Have you read this report from Mr. Hamlet I A. Yes. 
16485. (7. You know that samples were taken by the Commission of the dust that was found plastered on 
the side of the seam in the back heading (No. 1 l4ight Main Back Heading) ? A. Yes, so I understand. 
16486. Q. You will observe that the volatile byclro-carbons are, to all intents and purposes, precisely the 
same in the supposed coked-dust as in the original dust? A. Yes. 
16487. Q. If that is Sh  and none of the volatile constituents of the dust have been driven o11, how do you 
reconcile that with a dust explosion? A. I must say that I was sum'prised to see that none of the volatile 
hydro-carbons had been driven off. 
16488. Q. It is absolutely certain, if that sample represents the dust throughout the mine, and if none of 
the volatile matter has been driven off, that there has been no dust explosion : you could not have a dust 
explosion without changing the chemical constituents of the coal-dust? A. I think there has been a coal-dust 
explosion in spite of Mr. Hamlet's analysis. - 
16189. Q. Yes, that is a reasonable assumption ; but how is it to be reconcile-I with the analysis of the 
supposed coked coal-dust? A. I cannot reconcile it. 
16490. Q. It is quite clear that the dust which we supposed to be coked is simply agglomerated, stuck 
together in a pastey manner ; probably raised to a temperature sufficient to form it into a pastey mass, but 
not to expel the volatile hydrocarbons? A. I should have thought that heat sufficient to burn the canvas 
would have been sufficient to expel some ilydro carbons from the coal. 
16491. Q. Well, we have Mr. Hamlet's analysis 1 A. Quite so. It is a difficult matter which I cannot 
explain. 
16492. his honor.] Q. Have you gone in much for the chemistry of the matter, Mr. Atkinson, or only for the 
general mineralogy and management of mines ; are you an expel-I in chmenmistry I A. No. 
16493. Jfi'. Robertson.] Q. Still it does not require any great knowledge of chemisti'y to see that you cannot 
have a dust explosion without changing the chemical composition of the dust? A. No, I suppose not. 
16494. his Ilonos..] Yes ; but there might be a question whether the finer particles of dust might not be 
completely transformed, in fact; whilst the larger particles of dust were only partially coked. 
16495. dIr. Robertson.] You mean, Your Honor, that the solid carbon in the very finer particles of dust 
mirht have been actually consumed I 
16496. His Honor.] Yes, those in a very fine state of division; whilst the larger particles might show 
partial signs of coking, but not have their volatile hydro-carbons driven off, or the larger portion of them. 
16197. Mr. Robertson.] Q. It seems evident, Mr. Atkinson, that in a coal-dust explosion, no matter what 
quantity of dust may be present, only a very small proportion actually plays a part in the explosion I 
A. Yes, I think that has, been shown, 16498. 
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16493. Q. And it may be, as His Honor suggests, that the very fine and impalpable dust has vanished 
entirely I mean to say that the solid carbon has been consumed in a gaseous form, and that the coarset 
particles have been stuck together by the heat of the explosion 1 A. Yes. 
16499. Q. That seems the only explanation of this apparently irreconcilable analysis? Q. Yes, it is very 
difficult to understand. 
16500. Q. Coining to those tests at WToolwich,  of coal-dusts from New South Wales, were not the explosions 
all brought about by a gunpowder shot? A. Yes. 
16.501. Q. If a permitted explosive had been used, do you think there is any probability that any of those 
dusts would have been ignited 1 A. No, I think not ; and I think that is the experience of the testing at 
the same station at home. 
16502. Q. So that, if the experiments had been made with permitted explosives, the report would have come 
back practically a clean sheet? A. Yes. - 
16503. Q. With reference to certificates of service, when the English Act of 1872 was passed, I think there 
was a similar provision giving certificates of service to Managers who already held that position? Yes. 
16504. Q. Have you ever heard it suggested in Britain that the holders cf certificates of service should be 
deprived of them, or that their certificates should be cancelled because of their want of scientific knowledge? 
A. No, not for that reason. Certificates have been questioned, and inquiries made, in some few cases. 
They have the same provision there as in the Act her,,, in this State, in order to make inquiries where 
representations have been made as to incompetency. 
16505. Q Where there is some specific charge? A. Yes. 
16506. Q. As the result, probably, of some accident? A. Generally speaking, as the result of some accident. 
16507. AIr. Ritchie] Q. Have you ever known any inquiries to be made into the fitness of any person 
holding a certificate who has not been mixed up with a disaster or accident of some kind 1 A. I think the 
Newcastle Company's case was one. 
16508. Q. Was not that a disaster? A. There was no disaster. 
16509. Q. What was it? A. There was a case of a man having been burnt, and its not having been reported. 
16510. Q. I suppose you regarded that as an accident? A. Yes it should have been reported but it is 
not a disaster. 
16511. Q. I think I said " disaster or accident " ; I suppose you regarded that as an accident? A. Yes. 
16512. Mr. Robertson.] Q. I take it that a holder of a certificate of service may, by reason of his practical 
experience and sound judgment, be a perfectly competent man to manage a mine, even if he should lack a 
knowledge of the chemistry of mine gaces? A. Yes; I know a number of very capable men who know very 
little about the chemistry of gases. 
16513. Q. I suppose there are numbers of men with scientific knowledge who would probably be quite unfit 
for the position of manager? A. Doubtless there are. 
16514. Mr. Rithie.] Q. Doyou mean by that that some of those who have passed the examination for 
their certificate of competency are unfit? A. No, I do not suggest that. 
16515. dIr. Bruce Smith j  You mean it is possible for a man to pass the examination and yet not be 
practically fit. 
16516. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Although a Manager has all the necessary scientific knowledge, he may fail, I 
presume, through lack of judgment or through being short of a good fund of common-sense? A. Yes; I 
suppose there may be such cases. 
16517. Q. With reference to waste workings, I suppose you are aware that the report of the Stockton 
Inquiry placed a considerable importance upon the inspection of the waste workings and the circulation of air? 
A. Yes. 
16518. Q. Is it not a fact that the proposals or suggestions were, ii I am not mistaken, received with some 
indifference in the Department? A. I am not aware of that it was before my time. 
16.519. Q. You have read the report, I suppose? A. Yes. 
1651912. Q. My impression is that it did not receive the attention that it should have received in the 
Department. I think that was just a year or so prior to your taking your present position? A. Yes. 
16520. Q. Can you say whether this suggestion has been given effect to at any mines in the State? A. With 
reference to the inspection of old workings 1 
16521. Q. Yes, and the circulation of air? A. Yes, the old workings are inspected at all the collieries. 
16522. Q. At all events you find a special rule at some collieries requiring them to inspect? A. Yes. 
16523. Q. Do you know whether such a rule was in force at Dudley prior to the explosion? A. No, I do not 
think that there was, as far as I can remember. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.] 

A FTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m., Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidenceanc1 proceedings. 

ALFRED ASHLEY ATKINSON, previously sworn, was further examined as under :- 
1652.4. dIr. Robertson..] Q. Can you give me the number of Inspectors, and assistants -that is the Imperial 
Inspectors-employed in Great Britain? A. There are twelve Chief Inspectors and twenty-four Inspectors' 
Assist ants. 
16525. Q. That is thirty six? A. That is thirty-six. 
16526. Q. Can you tell me roughly what is the annual output in Great Britain ? .4. Over 200,000,000 tons? 
16527. Q. That is 6,000,000 to each Inspector 1 A. Yes. 
16528. Q. What is the number of Inspectors here? A. Four, including myself. 
16529. Q. What is the annual output? A. 6,000,000 tons. 
16530. Q. That is nearly one Inspector for every 1,500,000 tons? A. Yes. 
16531. Q. So that we have two Inspectors to each one in Great Britain according to the output. A. We 
have a great many more. We have four times as many on the basis of the output. 
16532. Q. Coming to this matter of the leakage of air, andthe measurement of the air near to the face. Is 
it good practice to attempt to force the whole of the ventilation, or the whole of the ventilation of a district, 
round the working faces? A. No, a certain quantity which escapes through the stoppings andthe doors 
into the old workings and the return airways, does useful work. 16533. 
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16533. Q. Are not certain other parts of the mine to be ventilated as well as the working faces? A. Yes. 
16534. Q. Then if the working faces are adequate]y ventilated, is not that all that Js required? A. I 
think so. 
16535. Q. If 500 feet of air are sufficient to keep the working places properly ventilated, there is no good 
reason why 5,000 feet should be forced into them 1 No, I think it would be unnecessary. 
16536. Q. Would not the fact of attempting to force an undue proportion of air around the working places 
reduce the total volume of air in the mine? A. Yes, it would put unnecessary friction upon the air. 
16537. Q. Then if the air was measured as suggested in the working places, you could form no idea as to 
whether the other portions of the mine received their proper quota? A. I do not follow you 
16538. Q. If the air, as suggested, was measured at the working places, you could form no idea whether 
other parts of the mine, which it is equally important to have properly ventilated, were so ventilated I 
A. You could only judge by the ventilation in those particular other parts. 
16539. Q. In the same way as when you measure the air at the intake of the split, youjudgeof the condition 
of the working places by visiting them? A. Yes. 
16540. Q. If you measure the air at the intake of the split, you ascertain by inspection afterwards that the 
air is well distributed. Is not that in accordance with common-sense. A. Yes. 
16541. Q. And good mining practice? A. Yes. 
16542. Q. Some stress has been laid on the fact that pillars were left in the 35-acre goaf? Yes. 
16543. Q. If there was a belief, rightly or wrongly, in the first working of the place that no gas had been 
made, and that no gas had been made when working the pillars, it would not be a reflection on the 
management if they took no notice of a small pillar left in the workings ? A. I think it is not good 
management to leave pillars in that way. 
16544. Q. Still pillars are left, from one cause or another, occasionally I A. Occasionally. 
16345. Q. But the fact of leaving a pillar or so in this 35 acre goaf, when they were supposed to be free from 
gas, could have no particular significance in connection with this explosion I A. The fact of a pillar being 
left in a goaf in that way causes the roof to ride upon it as a lever instead of allowing it to settle down 
gradually, and in that way it may cause cavities. 
16546. Q. Yes, but if an area of 35 acres has been worked out, I take it that you will agree with me, that 
the place has been consolidated to such an extent that there are no cavities at all 1 A. Excepting round 
the edges. 
16547. Q. I am speaking of the heart of the goaf? A. It would become consolidated if 35 acres had been 
worked. 
16548. (7. Perfectly consolidated-tight? A. I think so. 
16549. (7. So that there could be no space in this goaf excepting these 2 chains known to be upstanding ? 
A. Excepting round the edges. 
16550. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. The pillars were pretty near the edges i A. We have no evidence as to where 
they were. 
16551. Mr. Robertson.] Do you not know Mr. Ronaldson, Mr. Rogers' predecessor? A. Yes. 
16552. Q. Was lie a gentlemen of education, thoroughly qualibed and up to date? A. Yes, I think so. 
16553. Q. Do you know whether the methods of working adopted in Mr. Rogers' time differ very materially 
to those which obtained during the time that Mr. Ronaldson was Manager? A. I was not in the State 
when Mr. Ronaldson was Manager. 
16354. Q. Do you see any reason why the certificates of competency issued under the Imperial Act should 
not be recognised here? A. I do not. 
1655t?. Q. Will it not tend to restrict the influx of educated and first•class mining men, if such certificates 
are not recognised ? A. Yes, I think that mining men in the old country have far more opportunities of 
becoming acquainted with mining matters, in all stages of difficulty, than we have here, and, therefore, they 
should be equally as competent as the men who are here. 
16553. Q. These men ought not to be considered as being undesirable people to admit to the colonies? 
A. No, I think, on the contrary, that they should be allowed to come here, and I think it wouid have 
a good effect if they (lid come. 
16356. Q. The experience to be gained in the coal-fields of Great Britain, and the general conditions of the 
fields there, are more varied than here ? A. Yes. 
16557. Q. And you think that We ought to have the advantage of the men who have been trained under 
these varying conditions in the British coal-fields 1 A. Yes, I think so. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie 
1635$. Q. Is there any legal obligation on the part of the mine proprietors to force the ventilation to places 
other than the working faces, the travelling roads, and the haulage roads? A. I think there is under the 
special rules. 
16359. Q. Are there special rules in all collieries referring to this matter of ventilation? A. Yes. 
16560. 0. You mean that a certain quantity of air has to be provided for each luau, boy, and horse? 
A. Yes. 
16361. Q. Is there any legal obligation to provide any given quantity of air for the standing workings, apart 
from the air supply for each [nan, boy, and horse? A. No. - 
16362. Q. So that if a sufficient quantity of air goes round to the working faces no outlying parts receive 
attention? A. That would be sufficient to comply with the law. 
16563. Q. Do you think that there should be a given quantity of air going into the waste w'orkings, or 
standing  places, apart from that provided for in the Act of Parliament? A. I think it would be a difhicult 
matter to arrange for a definite quantity of air to be taken into all waste places. 
16564. Q. Would you not make provision for it by providing that an adequate quantity of airshould be 
sent into these places ? [No answer.] 
16365. Q. I think there is no provision at the present time compelling any given quantity of air to be sent 
into the waste places I A. Quite so ; but as a matter of fact you cannot prevent the air travelling by the 
return airways. The air that goes in must come out. Of course the Act of Pai'hiament does not direct 
that the air shall be forced into each and every waste place in certain quantities. 
16566. Q. You know, in practice, large areas in a mine are abandoned for the time being? A. Yes. 

16825 29-3 8 16567. 
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16567 Q. Is there any obligation to compel proprietors to keep those abandoned areas free from 
accumulations of gas? A. No, there is nothing in the law. 
16568. Q. Do you think it necessaly some provision should be made for this ? A. I think it would be well 
if some provision were made with a view of these old workings being kept clear from the accumulation of 
noxious gases. 
16569. Q. As Chief Inspector is there nothing you can suggest? A. I think it would be a difficult matter 
to arrange for a definite quantity of air to be sent to those places. At present I can think of nothing 
definite. It would require some little time to deal with the matter. 
16570. Q. I understand that you are coming lip for examination later on. Perhaps you will think over the 
matter and let me know then? A. Yes. 
16571. Q. You see the importance of it and you think it is necessary? A. Yes. 
16572. Q. JJ. Robertson.] Q. You say that it is desirable that there should be some provision requiring 
waste workings to be ventilated? A. Yes. 
16573. Q. And as far as practicable kept free from noxious gases ? A. Yes. 
16574. Q. But I understand you to say that it is a chiflicult matter to carry into practice? A. Yes, 
I recognise that. 
16575. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Did I understand you to say in the early part of your examination that you 
believed in watering being carried out as far as practicable, and that such watering was a partial preventative 
of explosions? A. Yes. 
16.576. Q. Do you favour watering in every part of the haulage and travelling roads? A. If practicable, yes. 
16577. Q. What are the obstacles in the way which cause you to say if practicable? A. The effect that 
water has on the roof and on the floor, and the fact that in some mines there is not a sufficient quantity of 
water to do the work. 
16578. Q. In a dusty mine, assuming that the whole of the roads were properly watered, would that have 
any effect in preventing an explosion? A. Provided it was practicable to do it. 
16579. Q. It would localise the disaster? A. Yes. 
16580. Q. To what extent would it prevent disasters? You gave us some percentages as to minimising the 
risks. What percentage of risk would watering take away, in your opinion? A. Are we supposing a mine 
which is dry and thoroughly watered, and in which only safety-lamps are used 
16581. Q. I am leaving the question of safety-lamps out of the question for the present. Take Mount 
Kenibla as it was prior to the disaster. If that mine had been thoroughly watered before the disaster, 
would it, in your opinion, have prevented the disaster? A. I think, anyhow, that it could not possibly have 
been so widespread. 
16582. Q. If the mine had been thoroughly watered, do you think it would have prevented the explosion? 
A. If the mixture which came out of No. 4 Right was of such a composition as to be inflammable, without 
any coal-dust, there would doubtless have been an explosion; but it would have been local. 
16583. Q. The effect would not have been so great? A. No. 
16584. Q. To what extent do you think that coal-dust played a part in the disaster ;-do you think that it 
was a more important factor than the gas itself, or was the gas more important? A. I think the dust was 
the more important factor in spreading the explosion. 
16585. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Do you think if there had been no water used, but that safety-lamps had been 
used, this explosion would have occum-red? A. I think not. 
16586. Alp. Ritchie.] Q. At all events, with regard to watering, I take it that where it can be carried out 
you regard that as a safeguard which would largely prevent, or, at all events, localise, an explosion? 
A. Yes. 
16587. Q. Dealing with the Mount Kembla Colliery disaster, if that mine had been thoroughly watered, 
and taking it for granted that what you suppose occurred-a quantity of infl-am]nable mixture came ont of 
the 4th llight--_it would have caused an explosion, but it would not have gone beyond the 4th Right? 
A. I think the explosion would have been purely local. 
16588. Q. In that case, with your knowledge of the number of men in the vicinity of where the gas came 
from, would the number of deaths have been so serious ? A. The number of lives lost would have been 
greatly reduced. 
16589. Q. You gave a percentage with regard to the reduction of risk where safety-lamps are used. I 
think you said the reduction was 75 per cent. Do you know of any collieries where explosions have taken 
place where safety-lamps are used exclusively? A. Oh, yes, several. 
16590. Q. Can you name them ? A. There is the Seaham Colliery, the Uswomtli Colliery, and the Trimndon 
Grange Colliery, along with several others. 
16591. Q. The Seaham disaster was a serious one? A. There were 164 deaths. 
16592. Q. Were they using safety-lamps in that mine? A. Yes, with the exception of a small length of the 
intake airway. 
16593. Q. Did this small exception have any connection with the explosion? A, The Seaham disaster was 
initiated by a blast from a shot on the haulage road about 200 yards from the downcast pit bottom. 
16594. (). Are all explosions attributable to blasting  where safety-lamps are used? A. The Seaham di-aster 
was. As to the Trimdon Grange, some say that that was due to blasting, and some thought that it w .s an 
ignition of fire-damp where pumping out of water lice? taken place. 
16595. His iIonoi..] (7. What light would be reached? A. A naked light. 
16596 .Me. Ritchie.] Q. 1 thought there were no naked lights used? A. This was a naked light in the 
intake airway. 
16597. Q. You said in answer to Mr. Robertson that if safety-lamps were used in a mine it would reduce 
the risk of explosion 75 per cent. I A. Yes. 
16598. Q. Do I understand that you advocate the use of safety-lamps in the intake airways as well as in 
other parts of the mine? A. I would only use naked lights a small distance from the downcast shaft or 
from the tunnel mouth. 
16599. Q. Then you do not mean that every lamp in the pit should be a safety one? A. I think that 
within certain limits naked lights could be used near the pit bottom or for a short distance from the tunnel 
snouth. 
16600. Q. Within what linnts do you think they could be used? Q. I think it is desirable that naked lights 
should not be used for more than 200 yards from the tunnel mouth or from the pit bottom. 16601. 
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16601. Q. You have made yourself fully acquainted with the number of openings into the 4th Right waste? 
A. I have. 
16602. Q. How many openings were there from all sides? A. I could not tell without looking at the plan. 
[411cr looking at the plan.] I see there are two openings on the west side ; seven on the north side; six on 
the east side, and no openings on the south side. 
16603. Q. That is, fifteen openings altogether? A. Yes. 
16601. Q. Would it be possible for the air to no through these openings into that part of the goaf where 
the falls took place? A. I do not think so. 
16605. (2. Why?  (2. Because the area of the goaf is 35 acres, and it would be consolidated except at the 
edges. 
16606. (2. How many openings would there be that the air compressed by this fall would come through 
A. I do not quite understand what you mean. 
16607. Q. There were 2 chains of a fall which took place in the 4th Right. How many openings were 
there for the air to get through, in aiiy direction you like. Was there only the 4th Right, or was there 
any other place? A. Only the 4tls Right, I think. 
16608. Q. Then, in your opinion, the whole of the air expelled by the fall went in the direction of the 4th 
Right opening? A. I think so. 
16609. Q. It is said that the first fall was one of 2 feet 6 inches in thickness, and that the height of the 
opening altogether was 6 feet or 6 feet 6 inches'? A. I forget whether it was 5 feet 6 inches or 6 feet 
6 inches. 
16610. 0. I think it was about 6 feet orG feet 6 inches? A. It was oniewhere about 6 feet. 
16611. Q. Have you niade any calculation as to the volume of air that would be expelled through that 
opening? A. No. 
16612. Q. After the fall, there would be left an opening of about 4 feet, would there not? A. Yes. 
16613. Q. Can you work out a calculation? A. Taking the height at 6 feet, there would be 3,872 cubic yards. 
16614. Q. That would be the volume of air that would be expelled if that 2 feet 6 inches of roof came down 
suddenly, as we are told it came? A. Yes. 
16615. Mr. Robertson.] After a fall, the debris usually occupies a greater space than before, does it not? 
A. Yes, it does. 
16616. Q. Then the 2 feet 6 inches of roof falling might fill up all the space? A. I (10 not think so. 
16617. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. If they were pretty large blocks which fell there would not be such a large space 
filled up. [No answer 
16618. AIr. Bruce Smith.] I think that 4 feet would be a fair average as to the amount of space which 
would be filled. 
16619. Mr. Ritchie.]. Q. I will take it at that. Having had a fall of 2 feet 6 inches to begin with, you 
said afterwards that there were a series:of  falls. The roof did not come down in one solid block, but there 
were a series of falls, probably extending over an hour? A. I said that I thought it was a large fall, and, in 
answer to Mr. Lysaght, who wished to have some idea as to the probable duration of the fall, I said that 
I thought it would be within an hour ; but, whilst I said that, it may have been very much within the 
hour. It is inipossible to say. 
16620. Q. Would the next fall, having a narrower opening, be likely to dislodge a greater quantity of air 
than the first fall? A. \Vell, provided that the 2 feet 6 inches came down as a solid block I think that the 
first fall would expel the greater quantity of air. 
16621. (2. Have you heard, or seen, any evidence which would lead you to believe that the first fall 
dislodged a greater quantity of air through that opening than the other fall. A. No. 
16622. (2. Have you heard anyone state that any damage at all was done by the first fall? A. No. 
16623. (2. Does it not appear to your strange that the first fall, which would dislodge the greater quantity 
of air, did no damage ; and that the second fall, which had no dust to operate upon, did do the damage? 
A. I think it strange if the 2 feet 6 inches came down, as suggested, in a solid block. 
16624. Q. Even if it came down in the same way as the second fall did, does it not strike you as remarkable 
that the first fall, which had all the foul air and dust to operate upon, should have done no damage what-
ever ; and that the second fall, which had not the (lust, should have done so very much damage? A. I 
admit that I cannot account for it. 
16625. Q. In view of this fact, does it not seem almost ridiculous to think that the second fall did all the 
damage, and that the first fall did no damage at all? A. No we can only be guided by what, in our 
opinion, are the results of what did happen. 
16626. Q. Of course, your theory is that the second fall liberated the gas, and at the zame time forced it 
out? A. I think so. 
16627, Q. You have no persoial knowledge of anything of that kind having occurred in the south previously. 
You say that you have no knowledge of any strata in the south contaitsing gas? A. That is so. 
16I28. Q. Then it is mere conjecture on your part ? A. No. After all, there is a certain amount of 
conjecture; but we must be guided by the results, by the evidences of force, and by the general possibilities. 
16629. Q. Supposing the second fall did take place and dislodged a quantity of gas which was liberated. By 
the way, do I understand that the second fall liberated the gas, or the first fall ? A. I think I have suggested 
that there might have been a small accumulation of gas as the result of the first fall ; but I think that the 
second fall liberated the gas. 
16630. Q. You still adhere to the decision that the second fall liberated the gas whilst it was falling 1 
A. That is my opinion. 
16631. Q. If the first part of the fall was more heavy, and caused a considerable volume of air to travel 
along, how do you account for the fact that Morrison's light ]it the gas You have already told us that 
there was no radiation of force from the spot where Morrison's body was found? A. I have not said that 
there was no radiation of force. I said there was force along the 4th Left also towards the north, and 
also to the east. The force from the 4th Right to the 4th Left, what little there is, is inbye. 
16632. Q. But was not Morrison's body found on the inbye side of the 40h Left? A. Yes, it has been SO 

reported. 
16633. Q. And the indications of force on the 4th Left were coming from outbye direction, making inwards 
A. Yes. 

16634. 
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16631. Q. That is not the radiation of force because of contact with Morrison's light? A. The position in 
which Morrison's body was found is no indication that that was the exact spot where the gas was ignited. 
16635. Q. You think that the place where Morrison lit the gas was not the place where he was found 1 
A. I do not think so. It would be impossible to define it. After gas has been lighted a body may be 
found some distance away from that place. 
16636. Q. Was not the body found where Morrison's duties compelled him to be? A. His duties compelled 
inns to be 12 or 14 yards on the outbye side of where the roads join, so as to detach the tubs as they came 
in. His duties compelled him to be within 12 or 14 yards of the junction of the two roads, one of which 
went to the 4th Left and the other straight up. 
16637. Q. You are sure it was not the 5th Right road? A. I undertsood that he was there for the purpose 
of detaching the tubs on the 4th Left and sending them to the places straight up and to Morris. 
16638. Q. How do you account for the clear and distinct radiation of force, in all directions, opposite the 
4th Right 1 A. There is a difficulty in connection with the 4th Right and the 4th Left, but on that piece 
of road there was very little to indicate force, but what little force there was appeared to be inbye. 
16639. Q. That is from the 4th Left ? A. That is from the 4th Left. 
16640. Q. Then you admit that the greater evidence of force was from the 4th Right ? A. No. From the 
4th Right to the 4th Left there was very little to indicate force, but what little force there was appeared to 
he inbye. 
16611. JTr. /?obsrtson.] Q. There were few obstacles such as props about? A. Yes. 
16611. Q. They were not there to be knocked about? A. They were not there to be knocked about. 
166 13.JP. Ritc!iie ] Q. How do you account for the lad Morrison still having his light there to light the 
gas ? A. Do you mean having his light on the engine road. 
16641. Q. I mean, how (10 you account for his being able to keep a naked light in face of the current which 
would be caused by the fall 1 A. That difficulty has presented itself to me. I think that when the force of 
air came out of the 4th Right, it would be reduced by coming across the travelling road, which would act 
as a safety-valve, and the same would apply to it when it got to No. I main level. 
16615. Jf•. Robrtsun You think that the energy of the blast would be dissipated to a large extent I 
A. I think it would to a large extent. I think that his light must have been left to light the gas. 
16646. Q. If the blast was so slight as to (lie away before it reached Morrison, do yod not think that the 
air in the return airway was sufficiently strong to take off any foul matter and pass it off outbye, and not 
let it come inbye at all 1 [ITo anrwer.] 
16647. Q. What I mean is that if the cushion of air in front of the blast died away so suddenly, that it had 
not sufficient energy left to put young Morrison's light out, do you not think that the energy of the air in 
the return airway would be sufficient to take it outbye, instead of letting it come inbye? A. It evidently 
has not been so. That is the only way I can explain it. 
16648. Q. I think that your evidence is clear enough, that you still think there was gas in that back 
heading, although you do not now regard that as the origin of the first explosion I A. I think there 
may have been a small percentage of gas there. 
16649. Q. And there is evidence of coked dust-you have formed your opinion in regard to that and tli 
other evidences of force in that direction? A. Yes. 
16650. Q. Would it be at all possible or feasible that the gas which was in that back heading, was ignited 
by either Morris or his son, which caused the first explosion and so shook the strata as to cause a fall to 
take place in the 4th Right and expel the foul air which caused the disaster? A. I do not think that 
was possible. 
16651. Q.  That was your first idea? A. I was in doubt as to whether the explosion originated at that point 
or at the 4th Right. 
166.52. Q. Do you not think it is just as likely that Morris lit the gas in the back heading, as that Morrison 
lit the foul matter that came out of the 4th Right 1 A. Having regard to the forces I have observed, 
and being able to more thoroughly understand the plan, I do not think that that is possible. 
16653. Q. There was no other light than Morrison's which would be likely to light this gas coming out of 
the 41k Right ? A. Well, that was the nearest light, and it was the light in the direction in which the 
air-current went past No. 4 Right.. 
166.54. Q. Would it be possible that the gas was so thick when it met Morrison's light that it burnt there 
and exploded afterwards? A. Do you mean back from the 4th Left? 
1665.5. Q. Was the air so heavily charged with gas that it was really beyond the explosive point, and that 
it burnt until it got sufficiently mixed with air to make it explosive. Would that be possible ? A. I do not 
think it would. 
16656. Q. You think that the gas coIning from the 4th Right was at explosive point all the time, and 
that it was sufficiently mixed with atmospheric air. Would it not send a cushion of air in front of it 1 
A. There was a current of air passing the 4th Right.. 
16657. Q. I take it that the gas went in both directions? A. Yes. 
16658. Q. A volume of gas would be forced out, and it would take sonic time to get sufficiently mixed with 
the air. Would it not burn then instead of exploding ?A. I do not know of any similar case which has 
happend. I think it is unlikely. 
16659. 2.  In your opinion it was at explosive point all the time? A. After reaclung No. 1 main level, 
it was. 
16660. Q. Is there any evidence of force, outbye, from where Morrison was found? A. Not between the 
4th Left and the 4th Right. 
16661. Q. There is no evidence of force between the 4th Right and the 4th Left ? A. No, not much. 
16662. Q. Do you not think it strange that if the initial explosion took place off Morrison's light, there 
should he no indications of force outhye? A. It is difficult to find indications of force on all such occasions, 
epecially where coal-dust is the agent. 
16663. Q.  Do voc think that the gas was lit by Morrison and that you could find no indications of force on 
the outbye side of the 4th Left where you say it radiated from ?A. You find all the indications of force 
on the outbye side of the 4th Right. 
16664. Q. But none between the 4th Right and the 4th Left? A. No. 
16665. Q. Although you say that that is where the initial explosion took place? A. In my opinion it did 

I 6663. 
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16606. Q. Is that consistent? A. 1 think it is. You cannot make all the forces which you observe in an 
explosion consistent with a theory. 
16667. Q. The part between the 4th Right and the 4th Left-is there not a part there which is 

damp? A. Yes, there is a little water there, about 3 chains below the 4th Right. 
16668. Q. On the outhye side? A. On the iubye side, 
16669. Q. Was that sufficient to prevent the dust being exploded? A. Not on the sides. It was only damp 

a little on the floor. 
16670. Q. If you had been Manager of the Mount Kembla Colliery prior to the disaster, and knew that you 
had a large area of roof likely to fall at any moment, what steps would you have taken to prevent any 
possible danger arising from the fall? i. The first precaution would be to remove the workmen from the 
vicinity. 
10671. Q. What else I A. Are you supposing that there might be danger of gas? 
16672. Q. I am supposing that you are Manager and that you do not know w'hat danger there is ahead, but 
that you have 2 chains square likely to fall at any moment? A. If I had expected gas to be given off, I 
would have had safety-lamps used. 
16673. Q. With the knowledge which you had of the colliery what would you have done? A. Seeing, so far 
,is I know, that some 260 acres of goaf has been formed in the colliery without giving off any large quantity of 
fire-damp resulting in any accident, I do not know that I would have done anything beyond removing the 
workmen. 
16674. Q. Have you ever heard of any gas being seen at all in that colliery, or have you had any evidence 
of force from any fall previously 1 A. I heard of Gallagher being burnt. 
16075. Q. I mean through a fall in the waste such ,is this ? A. In connection with Kembia 
16676. Q. Yes? A. Not that I am aware of. 
16677. Q. You heard Morrison say that lie had had ,is big falls as that before but that lie never took any 
notice of them ? A. I forget his evidence. 
16678. Mr. Roertsn.] I think Morrison denied that. I charged him with having said that to me but lie 
denied having said it. My belief is that he said it to me. 
16679. Mr. I?,itchie.] Q. The only reason that you have got for supposing that gas came out of that waste 
when the fall took place, is that the disaster happened? A. Yes-and also having regard to all the circum-
stances of force that I have observed since the disaster. 
16680. Q, The goaf was open when you went there first? A. Yes. 
16681. Q. You tested for gas? A. Yes. 
16682. Q. And you found none? A. No. 
16683. Q. Is that consistent with your theory? A. You are frequently unable to find gas at a place after 

an explosion. 
16684. Q. Although you could not find gas there where you think i came from, you find it elsewhere? 

A. Yes. 
16685. Q. In several places? A. Yes. 
16686. Q. I think you also told its that you rarely have any case in which gas is given off above the coal in 
the Southern district 1 A. I have not -but I have read of it in other places. 
16687. Mr. Brace Smith.] The history of the Southern coal district is limited. 
16688. AIr. Robertson.] it extends over fifty years. 
16689. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. That is sufficiently long to have an accumulation of gas if any is given off. Do you 
not think it more likely that the gas was there before the fall took place, in view of the fact that you found 
gas being given off in the coal which you have there, and that you do not know of any case in which it 
has been given off in the strata? A. It is possible, but I think some of that gas would have been found. 

16690. Q. How could it be found if they come here and tell you they did not look for it? A. Men were 

travelling in that travelling road every day. 
16691. Q. But if they did not go into that part and examine for gas? A. We have it in evidence that they 

went up to the goaf edge and they would find it then. 
16692. Q. There may have been many thiousrnds of feet of gas in the goaf, but none to be got at the goaf 
edge? A. That might be so, but gas naturally goes into the highest parts. 
16693. Q. So far is you know the gas may have been there before the fall ? A. It may have been. 

16694. Q. I want to ask you now about the way in which your Inspectors carry out their examinations. 
Have you any formula written down for their guidance in the examination of collieries? A. Mostly the 
instructions are unwritten instructions. Occasionally decisions come from the Minister and they may have 
them forwarded to them. 
16695. Q. Have you anything in writing instructing them to make examinations of the waste workings? 
A. They are supposed to examine the working places. 
16696. Q. I am speaking now about the waste workings? A. Yes, they are supposed to occasionally 

examine the waste workings. 
16697. Q. If there is anything written it would lie in the form of a minute? A. There may have been a 

minute in relation to it, but I do not know. 
1669$. Mr. Brace Smith.] A. I think there was a minute by Mr. Sydney Smith after the Stockton 
disaster. 
16699. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. Do not the reports show that they make an examination? A. Yes. 

16700. Q. Did you ever make an examination with your Inspectors? A. Frequently. I have also seen 
from their reports that they have inspected the waste workings. 
16701. Q. Do you know whether there was any reference to any examination of the waste workings in the 
Inspectors' reports placed before us? A. I do not think there was. 
16702. Air. Robertson.] Q. Did you think it necessary to instruct your Inspectors with regard to such an 
ordinary course of duty. Do you not think it would occur to them that it would come within the scope of 
their duty? A. I think they must be allowed a certain amount of discretion. 
16703. 0. Would they think it necessary to be instructed before inspecting waste workings? A. I do not 

think so. 
16701. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. You know that when written intructions are given to persons they sometimes 
ignore them 1 Yes. 

16705. 
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16705. Q. Does it not occur to you that Inspectors may fail sometimes in carrying out their duties? A. Yes, 
they may fail as well as any other man. 
16706. Q. Do you not think that it is your duty to impress upon your Inspectors the necessity of carrying 
out their instructions 1 A I do frequently. 
16707. Q. Do you realise the importance of the examination of the waste workings? A. I do. 
16708. Mt. Bruce Sinitle] Mr. Atkinson went to the back heading of No. 1 as soon as lie visited the mine I 
16709. Aft. Ritchie.] That was after the disaster. 
16710. AIr. Bruce Smith.] It shows that lie recognised the importance of visiting the place. 
16711. lilt. Ritchie.] Q. A lot of people went there after the disaster, but no one went before. The more 
important question is what they did before the disaster. Do you know whether any of your Inspectors ever 
made an examination of the waste workings? A. I know that Mr. Rowan has done so. 
16712. Q. Did he give you a report to that effect? A. I do not know anything about a report, but lie has 
mentioned it to me. 
16713. Q. He has gone to the waste workings to examine them? A. Yes. 
16711. Q. Do you know how long the Inspectors take on their examinations? A. Do you mean how many 
hours 
16715. Q. Yes? A. From three to six hours. 
16716. Q. And is not the greater portion of their time taken up in going round the working places? A. The 
greater portion of their time is probably. 
16717. Q. You are not prepared to say that their time is wholly taken up in going round the working 
places? A. No. 
16718. Q. Do you know whether Mr. Batesever made any examination of these waste workings? A. I do 
not know whether lie did or not.. 
16719. Q. He never made any report to you about them? A. No. 
16720. Q. Is the practice, generally, for your Inspectors to malce reports without mentioning the waste 
workings at all? A. There are no definite instructions that they must mention the waste workings; but they 
generally do. 
16721. Q. Do you consider it necessary to lay down as pamt of their duty that they shall make periodical 
examinations of the waste workings? A. I think that they would do so on their own discretion, and having 
regard to their sense of duty. 
16722. Q. You would leave it to their own judgment? A. With verbal instructions from myself. 
16723. Q. Do you not think it necessary that Government Inspectors should have some check placed upon 
them to see whether they do their work or not. I suppose you admit that Mining Inspectors may fail to do 
their duty. Do you not think that there should be some method of checking any portion of their work 
which it may be thought desirable to check? A. I think that when you start to lay down hard and fast 
rules officers become more like machines, and do not use their brains to the extent that they otherwise 
would. 
16724. Q. I suppose it is better to have hard and fast rules that officers will obey, than to have no rules at 
all. However, you would prefer that the Inspectors should be left with a free hand I A. I say that they 
should be allowed a certain amount of discretion. 
16725. Q. You admit that it is possible for a mine to have first-rate air in all the working places, whilst at 
the same time danger may be lurking in the waste workings ? A. Yes. 
16726. Q. And an Inspector might report that lie found the working places all right, and lie might 
have a certificate to that effect and yet you might have, on the following day, a disastrous explosion I 
A. Yes. 
16727. Q. In view of all the possibiities do you not think it necessary that some rigid instructions 
should be given to have all the waste workings examined, not only by the colliery officials, but by the 
Inspectors? A. I think it is necessary that they should inspect them from time to time ; but I do not think 
it necessary to give rigid written instructions. 
16728. Q. Supposing we put all the Inspectors into the witness-box, and they admitted that they had not 
made an examination of the waste workings-would you think it necessary then 1 A. Yes. 
16729. Q. If they adnuittecl that they had only made an inspection once in twelve months, would you regard 
that as being sufficient? A. No. 
16730. Q. Do you not regard an examination of the waste workings as of more importance than an 
examination of the working faces? A. No, I cannot say that I do. 
16731. Q. If the ventilation is travelling round the working places there is little likelihood of noxious gases 
being found there? A. Provided the ventilation is all right. 
16732. Q. With that fact stuing you in the face, you still think it more necessary to examine the working 
places where there is a good current, than to examine the waste working where there is no current at all? 
I did not say that it was unnecessary to examine the waste workings. 
16733. Q. I ask you whether you do not regard an examination of the waste workings as being of more 
importance than an examination of the working places? A. I regard an examination of the waste workings 
as being of equal importance to an examination of the working places. 
16734. Q. Now, do you think that your Inspectors pay equal regard to an examination of the waste workings 
as to the examination of the working faces ? A. I think they do. 
16735. Q. Do you think that they devote as much time to an examination of the waste workings as they do 
to an examination of the working places? A. I think they devote more time to an inspection of the 
working places. 
16736. (1. 1 mean comparatively speaking, of course, because there are more working places? A. Yes. 
16737. Q. Do you think that your Inspectors have done their duty, when it is provided that an inspection 
of the waste workings should be made weekly, and the report book shows that the inspection has been 
made only once a month 1 I. I think they have not. 
16738. Q. Have you any objection to your Inspectors' reports being open for the inspection of the workmen? 
A. Yes, I do not think that it is desirable. 
16739. Q. What objection can you have in the puhhic interest? A. There are several objections, but they 
do not strike inc at the present moment. 
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16740. Q. Have you any reason, beyond that of the public interest generally, why they should not be open 
for the inspection of the workmen? A. Yes, I think that an Inspector may observe something which 
although not imniinently dangerous would foretell danger, and by making that known to the workmen they 
might become unnecessarily scared. 
16741. Q. Have you any report in your possession which would be likely to scare miners working in New 
South Wales? A. \Vell, I have an instance in my mind. 1 do not think it is desirable to t'xplain it here, 
but I will explain it to the Commission. 
16742. Q. Is there anything in those reports which you have laid before the Commission which you think 
ought not to be disclosed to the workmen? A. No, not in those reports. 
16743. Q. Do you not think it desirable that the workmen should see the certificate of a public servant who 
has been appointed to examine the mine in their interests ..I)o you not think that they should know 
what the purport of the certificate is? A. I think the matter should be left in the hands of the 
Minister. 
16744. Q. You do not mean to say that the great body of the workmen should be unable to see the reports? 
A. I do not think that the reports should be made public. 
16745. Q. Do you not know that the Minister himself pronlisedl that these reports should be made public 
to the miners 1 A. I remember that a deputation waited on the Minister with reference to the matter, but 
I forget just now what the nature of the promise was that was made to the deputation. 
I 6746. Q. You know that any reports which the Illinois themselves may have made have to be open for the 
inspection of the mine officials, and for the whole of the workmen 1 A. Yes. 
16747. Q. You know that the reports of the deputies are open to the inspection of the workmen 1 A. Yes. 
16748. Q. Is there anything further that you can advance, other than that the miners would be scared if 
they saw some of the reports, why those reports should not be made public to the miners ? A. There is 
nothing that strikes me at the moment, but 1 know that there are other reasons. 
16749. Q. You think the reports would scare the miners? A. They might. 
16750. Q. In view of the fact that the miners want these reports to be open reports, do you know of any 
report which the miners have seen which has scared them 1 A. No. 
16751. Q. You are merely guessing that it might scare them 1 A. Well, I SUOSC it must be so. 
16752. (,). I mean that it was merely a matter of opinion? A. It is a matter of opinion. 
16753 up. Bruce Smith.] A great many of the miners have mnmvle statements here to the effect that the 
evidence given as to gas in mines has made them less inclined to go into a mine. 
16751. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. If the inspectors found gas, but stated that with the ventilation travelling there 
would be no danger, that would not be likely to scare tile miners. They hear of small quantities of gas 
every day. But you say that you do not think it is worthy of a trial to let them see these reports and to 
let them know what the Government officials have to say on these matters? A. I do not think it is desirable 
that they should read these reports. 
16755. Q. That is the onlyreason which you advance-you think they may be scared? A. Yes. 
16756. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Has ever such a thing been done in Great Britain as to allow the miners to 
have access to the official reports? A. No. 
16757. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. I think you said that miners have given evidence to the effect that they had a 
knowledge of ,its being present at Kembla.. You said that they were legally bound to -report that, and that 
in not reporting it they may have been contributors to the disaster ?A. I believe that some of the officials 
and some of the miners knew of the existence of gas. 
16758. Q. You heard the evidence that the miners reported to the officials 1 A. Yes. 
16759. Q. Who would be to blame in that case? A. The officials. 
16760. Q. And not the miners? A. No. 
16761. Q. When a miner has reported to an official he has done his duty? A. Yes. 
16762. Q. And if the gas has not been reported by the official, the workman is exonerated, and the official 
is to blame? A. Yes. 
16763. 9. You say that you think that General Rule 12 should be revised? A. Yes. 
16764. 9. What amendment do you suggest to that rule in regard to the use of explosives? A. I have 
nothing in my mind, it is rather a large undertaking. In its present form the rule is so involved as to its 
meaning that I think it should be made more simple. 
16765. 9. You mean that the effect of the rule should be left as it is, but that it should be simplified? 
A. Yes. 
16766. Q. With regard to Rule 39, dealing with periodical visits on behalf of the workmen, do you think 
that that rule should be altered in any way, it is to the effect that the persons employed may appoint any 
two of their number, or any two persons not being mining engineers to inspect the mine at their own cost. 
Why should the miners be prevented from appointing mining engineers to inspect a mine, if they think fit 
to do so? A. I think the appointment of mining engineers would be undesirable. 
16767. Q. 'What reasons do you advance ? A. I think that if a mining engineer were appointed to make an 
inspection on behalf of the workmen, be might obtain information in respect of collieries which might be 
prejudicial to neighbouring collieries, and he might make use of such inforimiatiomi in his ordinary business. 
16768. Q. Could you not prevent that by saying that such a tiling must not be done? 
16769. Mr. Bruce Smith.] How could you trace it? 
16770. His honor.] Surely Mr. Atkinson may answer the dluestion 
16771 .J[r. Ritchie.] That kind of thing is done now in the Arbitration Court. 
1 6772. Mr. i?obertson.] Mr. Atkinson seems to think that a mining engineer appointed by the miners to 
inspect the mine might act in the interests of an adjoining mine. 
16773. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. My idea is that qualified persons should go on behalf of the workmen to see 
whether the mine is safe or not? A. Yes, I see your object. 
16774. Q. In face of the responsibility which attaches to such an inspection, why should the miners be 
limited in their choice to the selection of people who may not be competent?' A. I think that for the 
reasons given it would be undesirable to allow mining engineers to make the inspection. 
16775. 9. You think so as Chief Inspector? A. Yes. 
16776. 9. You think that the miners should be limited in the choice of persons to inspect the mine? 
A. Yes, for the reasons I have given. 
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16777. Q. You think that mining engineers may disclose some portion of the working of a mine to the 
proprietors of a neighbouring mine. A. Yes. 
16778. Q. Does not that reason rest rather with the proprietors than with the mine Inspector. We have 
had no complaint about that so far i [ A'o answer.] 
16779. Al r. Robertson.] We have had objections raised at former Royal Commissions. 
16780. A1i. Ritchie.] Q. I take your answer to be that mining engineers may disclose something which may 
be to the interest of other parties. In other words, the person whom the miners appoint to make the 
inspection on their behalf must not be competent 1 A. I did not say,  that at all. 
16781. (1. Is not that the effect of your answer? A. I do not say so. 
16782. Q. You know that persons who have passed with first &ass certificates are working as coal-miners? 
A. Yes. 
16783 Q. Do you not think it is possible for a number of mining engineers to be working on coal? A. It 
is possible. 
16784. Q. Do you think that they ought not to be appointed to make inspections on behalf of the men for 
fear of possible contingencies which may arise? A. If a man had been a mining engineer, but was working 
on coal, I do not see how there could be any objection to his appointment. He would be a practical working 
miner. 
16785. Q. He would be a mining engineer also? A. I do not think you couid preclude him from making 
an inspection. 
16786. his honor.] Q. Do you think that the wording of the Act might be altered so as to include any 
mining engineer in actual practice. Do you suggest that it is the probability of a mining engineer being able 
to disclose the workings of a mine that should disqualify him from acting on behalf of the miners, or is it 
the fact that he is a practical mining engineer which should disqualify him 1 A. The fact that he is 
practising as a mining engineer. 
16787. AIr. Ritchie ] Q. Do you not think that a man who has qualified as a mining engineer, but who has, 
unfortunately, got to hew coal for a living, would be as competent to take notes of what he saw in a mine 
as a person who is practising as a mining engineer? A. I suppose that he might. 
16788. Q. Do you not think that such a person would be as likely to take all the notes about a mine which 
he possibly could? A. I do not think so-not if he was not practising as a mining engineer. 
16789. Q. Do you mean to cast Suspicion upon persons who are practising as mining engineers? [Ao 
answer.] 
16790. AIr. Bruce 9mith.] Is it fair to talk about casting suspicion UPOfl anybody? 
16791. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. Do you not think that a mining engineer, who is heaing coal, would be more 
likely to get hold of mining secrets, and to sell them, than a man who is occupying a good position? 
A. Well, I do not differentiate as to the degree between the two persons. 
16792. Q. You say that a man who is actually working as a miner should be allowed to make the inspection, 
and that a man who is not working as a miner should not be allowed? A. Yes. 
16793. Q. And you say that the one is just as likely to take notes of things, which he ought not to take 
notes of, as the other-that is the effect of your answer? A. Yes. 
16794. Q. What reason can you see for choosing one person rather than the other? A. I do not think I 
am able to give you any further explanation with reference to it. 
16795. Q. You say that one would be just as likely to gather information as the other-is not that the 
effect of your answer? A. They might both have equal powers of observation when going round a mine, 
but the working miner would not be so likely to disseminate information among neighbouring collieries as 
a mining engineer in actual practice would. 
16796. Q. Although the one might be a dead beat and the other a man in good position? A. Yes. 
16797. Q. You would regard a mining engineer as pretty low down on his uppers if he was actually getting 
coal ? A. He would be. 
16798. AIr. Robertson.] Q. Have you ever heard of such men getting coal? A. There might be some. 
16799. AIr. Ritcbie.] Mr. Bohertson has some men with first-class certificates woiking in his colliery now. 
16800. AIr. Robertson.] I do not think I am employing anyone who is a milling engineer. 
16801. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. Is it not possible that a person who has gained a first-class certificate may qualify 
for a mining engineer ? A. Yes. 
16802. Q. Can you see any difficulty in such a man passing as a mining engiLeor l A. No. 
16803. Q. You know that there are persons with first-class certificates working on coal I A. Yes. 
16804. Q. Would persons working with first class certificates be competent to take notes of a mine, such as 
mining engineers might take? A. They might not be able to understand the interests of colliery proprietors 
in the same way that mining engineers would, although they may have passed through all examination. 
16805. Q. You know that evidence has been submitted by the miners that they have great difficulty in 
getting qualified persons to do the work of check-inspection? A. I have heard so. 
16806. Q. Do you not think that these barriers against the employment of qualified persons should be 
removed, and that the miners should be given a free hand in the selection of persons whom they regard as 
being competent? A. I think that they should get miners who have passed examinations and would be 
quite competent to do the work. 
16807. Q. There may be iners who have gained first-class certificates, whom the wotkmen cannot get on 
with. It does not necessarily follow that the man who has gained a first-class certificate is the one who is 
the most likely to give a true and faithful report of what he sees in the mine I A. I unders'and that. 
16808. Q. There is a further limitation. The Act mentions persons who are "working " miners. You 
know that this is a barrier? A. I see no oljection to the removal of the word "working." 
16809. Q. I suppose you know that it is a fact that men have had to go to Newcastle and work in a mine 
there in order to qualify themselves to come under the Act? A. Yes. 
16810. Q. And you think that the word "working" should be removed? A. Yes. 

[The Commission at 4 o'clock adjourned until 10 o'clock the following morning.] 

TUESDAY, 
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TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlingliurst.] 

3rracn±: 
C. F. R. MURRAY. EQ., D.C.-J. (PItEsIDENT). 

D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., COMMISSIONEO. D. RITCIIIE, ESQ, Coninssioxim. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at Law, instructed by Mr. Woal, Ciown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crowr. 

Mr. A. A. Lyseght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of---- 
(q) the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c. (victims of the explosion) 
(b) the enipioyees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &e.) ; and 
(') the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. U. J. Barry, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of 
the Mount Kenibla Mine). 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, was also present. 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Sec:etary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. J. W. BAILEY was sworn, and examined as under :--- 

[Tins wit.i:css was called at his own request ; and the Commission asked Mr. Bruce Snmih, as a matter of 
convenience, to conduct his examination-in chief.] 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Bruce Smi'h :- 

16811. Q. What is your name? A. John William Bailey. 
16812. Q. You live at Newcastle? A. Ye. 
16813, 9. How many years' experience have you had in connection with coal-mining 1 A. Nearly twenty- 
eight. 
16814. Q. And, of those twenty-eight years, Low many did yen spend as a miner getting coal 1 
A. Approximately three-fourths of the time. 
16815. Q. That would be twenty-one years; what were you (luring the rest of the time 1 A. On the surface, 
and working in and about the mines. 
16816. Q. Have you ever held any official position, as deputy, or fireman? A. Yes. 
16817. Q. In what mine? A. I held the position of fireman deputy in the Newcastle. Coal Company'sMine, 
situated at Merewether. 
16818. 9. For how long? A. Somewhere about twelve months. 
16819. 9. And with regard to your twenty-one years' getting coal, was that all done at Newcastle? A. No. 
16820. 9. Where? A. England. 
16821. Q. What pai't of England? A. North Staffordshire. 
16822. Q. How much of the twenty-one years did you spend there? A. Eight or nine years. 
16823, 9. And the rest in Newcastle ?, A. Yes and New Zealand and Queensland. 
16824. 9. You wish to give the Commission the benefit of your knowledge on a number of subjects? 
A. Yes. 
16825. Q. You understand that the old question of your dismissal from the Newcastle Company's Mine 
cannot be gone into? A. Not by this Court. 
16826. Q. That is what I mean. You leave that for another occasion. You have stated that you wish to 
give some evidence on the causes of explosions? A. Yes. 
16827. Q. Would you be good enough to tell the Commission what you desire to inform them on this 
sulject of the causes of explosions 1 A. Do you wish me to make a statement? 
16828. Q. Yes, I think so ; because I do not know the nature of your opinions, and I cannot put a number 
of questions to you ? A. On the causes of explosions 
16829. Q. Yes, what you wish to say to the Commission ? A. In my opinion the causes of colonial explosions 
may be attributed to the concealment of gas in the mine on the part of the management, and the 
non-reporting of such gas by order of the nmanagemnent. 
16830. Q. The non-reporting of such gas by order of the management? A. Yes. 
16831. Q. Then you attribute the greater number of the explosions to gas? A. Yes. 
16832. Q. In mines in which no safety-lamps are used, is that it? A. Yes. 
16833. Q. Will you tell the Commission what has been your experience of gas in Australian mines: where 
have you seen it? A. I have seed gas in the Newcastle Coal Company's Mine. I think that is about all in 
the Colonies. 
16834. Q. Were safety-lamps used there? A. No, not when first discovered. 
16835. Q. In what quantity did you discover it? A. The quantities were varying. I have seen it 3 inches 
from the roof, and some 4 or 5 feet from the face of the heading. 
16636. Q. Have you ever ascertained the percentage of gas on any of these occasions? A. Not at the time, 
only by sheer reckoning. 
16837. Q. What do you call " sheer reckoning "-that is a sailor's term? A. Yes. 
16838. Q. You do not mean latitude or longitude, (10 you? A. No. I mean taking the height, 3 inches from 
the roof, and multiplying that by the width of the heading and by the depth. 
16839. 9. Getting the cubic measurement I A. Exactly. 
16840. 9. That is not what I asked you. I asked you if you had ever ascertained what percentage of gas 
there was mixed with the air? A. In those cases I have referred to, it would be almost pure, because it 
was away from the air. 
16841. Q. Are they the occasions you speak of on which you discovered gas? A. How many times? 
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16842. Q. How many times? A. Approximately I would find gas between forty and fifty times. 
16843. Q. In your examination ? 21. In my examination. 
16814. Q. And you know nothing about any other mines by personal experience? A. Not of gas. 
1684.5. Q. Can you speak of any other causes of explosion? A. Yes I believe that coal-dust is an agent, 
too, in the cause of explosions. 
16816. Q. Have you had any personal experience of that; or are you speaking merely from your book 
knowledge? A. Of coal dust in the mines causing explosions? 
16817. Q. Yes? A. N o. 
16848. Q. You speak then mere]y from your book knowledge? A. Just so. 
16849. Q. The book knowledge is open to the Commission? A. Yes. 
16850. Q. Then do I understand from you that it is the combination of gas and open lights to which y.0 

attribute most of the explosions in Australia ? A. Yes. 
16851. Q. ou have mentioned another subject, the prevention of accumulations of gas? A. Yes. 
16852. Q. What do you wish to say about that; how do you think the accumulation of gas could best be 
preventtd ? A. I wish to say that acumu!ations of gas can be prevented by concentrated, continuous, and 
adequate ventilation. 
168.53. Q. Do you wish to speak of cases in which the ventilation has not been continuous and adequate ? 
A. I do. 
16854. Q. To what mines? A. In the Newcastle Coal Company's Mine. 
16855. Q. Is that the only one you mention that you have had personal experience of? A. Yes, that is the 
only one. 
16856. Q. In what respect, as far as your own observations go, was the ventilation inadequate? A. Because 
of the leakage of air into old workings, and the practice of diverting the air to bring the quantities up t) 
the requirements when Inspectors were in the mine measuring. 
16857. Q. Do you approve of ventilating the old working? A. No, I think the old workings are better 
down, on the floor. 
16858. Q. Suppose they will not go down, what would you do then? A. Make them come down. 
16859. Q. How? A. By extracting the pillars. 
16860. Q. And supposing the pillars are extracted, and still there are cavities left in the goaf, what would 
you do then? Would you ventilate them? A. If the pillars are extracted, the roof will naturally fall. 
16861. Q. And if it is unnatural, and does not fall, what would you do? A. I cannot conceive of such a thing. 
16862. Q. You have not seen such a thing? A. No. 
16863. Q. Then I may take it as your opinion that, when once all the pillars are out, you would not botl.er 
about it any more? A. No, I do not wish you to infer that.. 
16861. Q. What would you do-I want to know ? A. If the cod is worked properly in sections, the pillars 
extracted, and a barrier of the last bords holed kept intact, with good stoppings, and a Portion  of the intake 
air going past these, it will be adeqriateiy ventilated. 
16865. Q Do I understand that it is the practice to divert the air from the workings in order to deceive 
Inspectors ?A. Yes. 
16866. Q. In what mine do you know that to have happened ? A. The Newcastle Coral Company's Mine. 
16867. Q. That is the old story that you have told years ago? A. It is both old and new to me, who have 
suffered sb much from it. 
16868. Q. We will not go into the pathology of the tiring-I want to know from you how ]on- is it ago 
since you had personal experience of this being done? A. My personal experience was in 1895. 
16869. Q. And you gave evidence of your personal experience before Mr. Wade as Commissioner? A. Yes. 
16870. his horror.] I understand that this is what Mr. May spoke of as the brattice trick. 
1C871. Air. Bruce Smith.] Yes; and it was fully gone into by Mr. Wade. 
16879. Q. Have you had any experience, since you were in the Newcastle Company's Mine, of what is 
called the brattice trick ? A. No ; simply because I was disnrissed for complying with the Mines Act. 
16873. Q. Then you have had no experience since that you can offer the Commission ? A. No. 
16874. Q. I mean with regard to the diversion of the air? A. No, an ordinary nriner cannot have that 
privilege. 
16875. Q. I see you mention ventilation as one of the subjects on which you wish to give evidence. have 
you any opinions to oflhr the Commission on ventilation, with regard to the present method, or any 
suggestions to make with regard to an improved metlrod ? A. Yes, it all lies in those two words that I 
have already used, concentration and continuity." 
16876. Q. And can you suggest any better method than that adopted at the present time, provided it is 
carried out properly ? A. Yes, fan ventilation is mostly preferable to any other. 
16877. Q. You might say wIry you think it is preferable ? ii. In sirallow mines, furnace ventilation cannot 
have much motive power, because of the shallow cleptlr. 
16878. Q. What do you call a shallow mine? A. I would call it a shallow mine even to 300 feet deep. 
16879. Q. And you think that ventilation by furnace cannot be etlhctual ? A. No, I do not think it is 
effective, nowadays. 
16880. Q. I suppose you would think it fair proof of its being effectual if nrines have been worked 'a iii 
some hundreds of men for a quarter of a century ? A. No, I should not think it was effectual then. 
46881. Q. You would not think that a proof of its being eflbctual 1 A. No 
16882. Q. Do you wish to say anything furtirer with regard to the advantages of fans over furriac s? 
A. Yes ; the advantage of a fan is that it produces, to my nrind, at a less cost, almost double the quantity 
of air that the furnace would. 
16883. Q. Then it is on the ground of economy and effectiveness. A. Yes. 
16884. Q. You have included in the list of subjects "Treatment of coal-dust" I understand you have had 
no personal experience of coal-dust explosions 1 A. Not of the explosion of coal-dust. 
16$5. Q. And you have not had any experience of any mine, in which coal-dust has exploded I A. I have 
had experience of a mine where, if the theory that coal-dust, by the aid of a fall, and in the presence of a 
naked 1]ght, would cause an explosion is right, it should have occurred on this occasion. 
16886. Q. What mine was that? A. The A.A.-Company's Hamilton Fit Mine. 
16887, Q. The Hamilton mine is at Newcastle, part of the A.A. Company's property 1 Yes. 
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16888. Q. Were you in that mine when a large fall took place? A. No, I was banksman on the surface. 
16889. Q. You know of the fall? A. Yes. 
16890. (7. Do you know the extent of the fall? A. I know that it was a very large fall. 
16891. (7. But that is rather vague-what area did it cover? A. I never heard the area. 
16892. (7. An acre or 10 acres? A. Ten acres or more. 
16893. Q. Did you see it before it had fallen? A. Yes. 
16894. Q. What height was the ceiling from the floor before the fall? A. It varied from 5 to 6 or 7 feet, 
even. 
16895. Q. Did you see it after the fall? A. Yes. 
16896. Q. Soon after? A. No; it must have been three months afterwards, I think. 
16897. (7. had it all fallen? A. Yes. 
16898. (7. Could you get in? A. Yes, I went in with the late Senior Inspector of Mines. 
16899. (7. Mr. John Dixon? A. Yes. 
16900. (7. How many outlets were there for any great rush of air to get away from that fall by? A. iliere 
would be two or three, at least. 
16901. Q. Was there any loss of life on that occasion? A. Yes. 
16902. Q. How many? A. Eleven. 
16903. AIr. Robertson.] (7. Was that a fall or a crush? A. Well, some attributed it to a thrust, others to 
a fall. 
16904. AIr. Bruce Smith.] (). How were the eleven men injured? A. One or two were killed by the falling 
material. 
16905. (7. Falling on their bodies? A. Yes; the remainder were supposed to have starved for want of food. 
16906. Q. They were really entombed? A. Entombed. 
16907. Q. But were there any deaths or injuries on that occasion from the rush of air out of either or both 
of those openings ? A. Not to my knowledge. 
16908. Q. Was there any notable rush of air from that fall? A. Yr.s. 
16909. Q. Of course you only know this from hearsay? A. No ; 1 saw the rush. 
16910. (9. I thought you said you were not there ? A. I said I was banksman on the top. 
16911. (7. Tell us what you saw as the result of that fall? A. I saw the coal-dust come up that shaft so 
thick that you could almost stick a shovel into it. 
16912. Q. How many men were there in the mine at the time this fall took place? A. The hick shift would 
be in-say 160. 
16913. Q. I think you have told me that none of the 160 were injured by the rush of wind they were not 
driven up against the ribs or up against the skips, or anything of that sort? A. There were none injured, 
according to -[interruited]. 
16914. Q. I am talking of those apart from the eleven who were eitller killed by the fall of the stone or 
entombed in the waste-were those who were entombed found afterwards? A. Yes. 
16915. (7. Were any of the other people who were outside the area of the fall injured or killed? A. Not to 
my knowledge. 
16916. 0. Did you ever Ilear of any of them suffering in any way from it ? A. Yes, I heard of one case, a 
man named Sullivan, who suffered somewhat from-1 do not know whether you could attribute it to shock, 
or rush of air, or what. 
16917. Q. How did he suffer : I mean what senses were affected, his sight, or hearing, or his lungs? A. His 
sight seemed to be affected. 
16918. (. Were his ears affected, his hearing ? A. Slightly, I think. 
16919. Q. Did he tell you this himself? A. No, it was well known just about where I lived. 
16920. (9. That is the only instance in which you heard of anybody being injured by that fall 1 A. Yes 
16921. (7. Did you go to the inquest on the dmliis of those people? A. No. 
16922. (7. Why was that? A. I do not know. 
16923. (7. What year was that in? A. It was on the 2211d of June, 1889. 
16924. (7. Do you remember who was the Coroner at the time? A. No. 
16925. Q. You have no newspaper account of it with you? A. No, not of that one. 
16926. Q. Do you remember what the finding of the Coroner's Jury was? A. No. 
16927. Q. You told us that the dust came up out of that mine so thickly that you could cut it with a spade, 
as you say? A. Yes. 
16928. Q. What was the height of the shaft from the mine? A. About 250 to 300 feet, ray. 
16929. Q. Was it vcntdatud by fan ? A. Yes. 
16930. Q. Did the rush of air from the mine do any injury to anything, to the fall ? A. No. 
16931. Q. That was out of the way ? A. Yes. 
16932. Q. Were open lights used in that mine? A. Yr s. 
16933. Q. Can you tell me how the ligllts were placed with regard to the rush of air? A. Ys, they were 
put out. 
16931. Q. You wish to say something on the use of explosives? A. Yes, only this that I think that, if 
we have experienced shot-firers to fire the ordinary powder shots, and they are placed with judgment, with 
good ventilation, and all dangers of the mine reported, there will be no danger in firing the ordinary powder 
shots. 
16935. Q. Then you approve of firing with the ordinary gunpowder I A. Under those conditions. 
16936. Q. But do not you know that the shot from gunpowder is considered one of the most dangerous 
causes in relation to explosions? A. One of the causes, yes. 
16937. Q. And yet you advocate the further use of powder in preference to other explosives? A. Yes. 
1693$. Q. Do you regard it as a dangerous element? A. Not when the precautions are taken that I have 
mentioned. 
16939. Q. Have you had any experience of other epiosives but powder- 1 A. Yes, I have used dynamite. 
16940. (7. Where? A. In Western Australia? 
16941. (7. Have you used any others? A. I have seen gehgnite, but not used it on the coal. 
16912. Q. What do you wisil to say about the use of safety-lamps? A. The use of rafety.iamps may well 
be left to the discretion of the Mine Manager, wllen lie is made to understand his responsibility by the 
proper sdministration of the 11  Mines Act." 16943. 



	

516, 
lVitne.c.9-J. W. Bailey, 17 February, 1903. 

16943. Q. Do you approve of the proposal to allow an Inspector to order safety-lamps into a mine A. No. 
16914. Q. Why ? A. Because the Manager is the re;ponsible person, and it should be left to his discretion 
or judgment as to when be should use them. 
16945. Q. Then you do not believe in shifdng the responsibilhy from the Manager on to the Inspector? 
A. No. 
16946. Q. Do you think hat the interest of the Manager in carrying on the mine successfully and safely is 
the best incentive to his exerciAng judgment with regard to that matter? A. Yes, if he feels his 
responsibility, and if section 10 of the Coal Mines Act is enforced. 
16947. Q. Have you anything to say about the particular kind of saety-1amps to be used 1 A. The Evan 
Thomas is a good lamp, and the Howarth Deflector. 
16948. Q. I am speaking now of your experience, because, if your opinions are based on book knowledge, of 
course it is as open to the Commission as to you: what is your personal experience? A. My personal 
experience is that the bonneted Marsaut is as good as any other lamp used. 
16949. Q. Have you had any experience of the hydrogen lamp? A. No, only I have sien them, of course. 
16950. Q. Generally, as to the working of coal-mines, have you anything to say on that, anything you 
think would be of value to the Commission? A. Yes; if the workings of coal-mines were judiciously 
carried out, and the present Coal Mines Act complied with in all instances, and that Act administered 
properly by the Mines Department, we should not have the trouble and the loss of life that are occurring 
amongst us to day. 
16951. Q. Then I understand you to think that the Mines Act, as it stands, wants no alteration, if it is 
only properly administered ? A. There are afew amendments, amendments of details I would call them. 
16952. Q. Have you tabulated those at all? A. Yes. 
16953. Q. You might let us have your suggestions? A. The first and most important is that independent 
inspection districts shall be established, and each Inspector made responsible for the administration of the 
Act in his own disrict. 
16954. Q. What do you mean by "independent districts" 1 A. I believe in the abolition of the Chief 
Inspector's position, and each Inspector to be responsible directly to the Minister for Mines. 
16955. Q. Are they not responsible now? A. No, I do not think so. 
16956. Q. You know, I suppose, that each Inspector has a district now: you know he has a certain group 
of mines placed under him 1 A. Yes. 
16957. Q. And that he has the exclusive power of inspecting those mines? A. Yes. 
16958. Q. So that that is a district, really ; if you take a map and separate his group of mines from the 
rest, it really amounts to a district? A. Yes, but there is not the responsibility. 
16959. Q. We will come to that aftervards : we are talking now of the district: I want to find out where 
your suggestion difi'ers from the practice--that is a separate district, is it not? A. Yes. 
16960. Q. In what respect would you alter that? A. I would alter that so that the Inspector of that 
district should be responsible for the administration of the Act, in his own district, directly to the Minister. 
16961. Q. And you would abolish the position of Chief Inspector 1 A. Yes. 
16962. Q. You would not have any Chief Inspector to supervise these Inspectors at all? A. No. 
16963. Q. In what respect would you suggest that the Inspectors should be made responsible, where they 
are not responsible now 1 i. The Minister for Mines could hold these men directly responsible for the 
administration of the Act in their own districts ; and, if they were made to feel the responsibility of 
administering that Act, they could be punished if it were broken to their knowledge. 
16964. Q. Cannot the Minister hold them responsible now under the Act . A. He could if he used it. 
16965. Q. Then it is the Minister you find fault with? A. The Minister and the Chief Inspector. 
16966. Q. Now we are getting down to bed-rock? A. Yes. 
16967. Q. First of all you would abolish the Chief Inspector--what would you do with the Minister to 
make him sensible of his responsibilities? A. I expect our Parliament should do that. 
16968. Q. We cannot help that here; you have no suggestions to make about that institution to this 
Commission? A. No. 
16969. Q. You are of opinion, then, that, by abolishing the Chief Inspector, and by making each Inspector 
directly responsible to the Minister, and by having a Minister who is thoroughly sensible of his respon-
sibilities, there would be less disasters than there are now ? A. Yes. 
16970. Q. Is that your own idea, or have you heard it from anybody else? A. It is an idea that I have 
had for a number of years. 
16971. (2. Have you told it to anybody? A. Yes; I have mentioned it to many. 
16972. Q. Did you mention it to Mr. May? A. Yes; I have talked withMr. May. 
16973. Q. You told him of it? A. Yes. 
16974. Q. Do you know he is advo3ating the same thing that you told him? A. Yes; he is of the same 
opinion as myself. 
16975. Q. I have gone through your little list-is there anything more you would like to say to the Commis-
sion ? A. Yes. I think that under the 23rd section of the Coal Mines Act there should be an amendment. 
15976. Q. That is with regard to the holding of an investigation? A. Yes. 
16977. Q. How would you amend that? A. I would amend it so that practical experienced men would 
constitute a competent Court to look into and try to discover the causes of the various disasters in mines. 
16978. Q. But does not the Act provide for competent men? I will read you what the Act says, and then 
you can state in what respect you think it ought to be altered : "The Minister may appoint a competent 
person "-you do not find fault with that? A. No. 
16979. Q. "To hold the investigation, and may appoint any person or persons possessing legal or special 
knowledge to act as assessor or assessors in holding the investigation"-then it is the appointment of assessors 
that you object to; they ought to be men with a practical knowledge of mining? A. No. I think that 
clause should be amended to read something like this: That a competent person may be appointed with a 
practical experienced man accustomed to mining principles and practices. 
16980. Die honor.] I do not know that it has always been a question, but I know that it became 
question once for the deliberation of the Department what the word "competent" meant. It is that, 
perhaps, that Mr. Bailey is alluding to indirectly. 
16981. dir. Bruce Siniele.] Q. Do you object to lawyers on these boards of inquiry? A. Yes; certainly. 
16982. Q. You would banish them altogether from these boards? A. Yes. 16983. 
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16983. His honor.] I may say, Mr. Bruce Smith, that it was I myself who pointed out that it was very 
doubtful whether a lawyer or a District Court judge would be called a competent person, if lie had not got 
a knowledge of mining. 
16984. AIr. Bruce Sinit!i ] Wiih the help of two cmpeent niining men, lie may be a very competent 
machine for balancing evidence. 
16985. his honor.] Undoubtedly. 
16986. AIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is your opiuiou ; in the first place, you would have no lawyer upon the 
board of inquiry. What sort of man would you have for presiding over these competent men 1 A. A 
Supreme Court judge. 
16987. Q. He is supposei to be a lawyer, even a Supr-me Court ,judg? A. Well, it might be a coroner. 
16988. Q. I want to get out what you want; I do not want to beat about the bush ; you say you would 
have a Supreme Court judge; but lie is a lawyer, is lie not? A. Yes ; but the lay mind forgets tbeee 
things. 
16989. Q. Did you forget that a judge was a lawyer I A. I forgot that. I di not know the steps up in the 
legal profession. 
16990. i/is lloflor.I  Mr. Bailey may have Ii id some experieuce of courts that caused him to forget. 
16991. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. I would like to know what type of men you think most competent to preside 
over a board of this kind, and why 1 i. Any person accustomed to the technic.ilities of taking evidence 
would do. 
16992. Q. Then what class of men do you want to help him 1 A. The proprietary interest could be repre-
sented, and the Mines Department and the workmen could be represented. 
16993. Q. Tell me any other section that you would suggest an amendment of? A. I think that General 
Rule 4 should be so amended that the Mines Department should protect the officer that complies with 
that rule. 
16994. Q. That rule has reference to the inspection of the mine before the men commence work-you mean 
to siy that, if the deputy reorts having found gac-he should be encouraged to report it, if it is there I 
A. Yes. 
16995. Q. That would be very difficult to put into the Act, or into a rule? A. It could be put into the 
Act ; the Act could be amended for that purpose. 
16996. Q. At all events, in administering the Act, you think every encouragement should be given by the 
management to a deputy to report I A. Yes. 
16997. Q. You migit name any other suggestion? A. Tiat an exact copy or the examining deputy's 
report should be placed upon the board ; that is, that, when lie has made it in the book for the purpose, an 
exact copy should be placed upon the danger-board into each district of the mine. 
16998. Q. The men now are allowed to see the book? A. Yes, but what is on is not the same as is in the 
book what is written on the board is not exactly what is written in the report-book. 
16999. Q. Is there any difficulty in the men opening the cover of the book and looking at the book 
theniselves as they go in 1 A. Yes, a difficulty is made. 
17000. Q. By whom? A. By the managemant. 
17001. Q. But is it not provided in the Act that they should see the book if they wish? A. Yes, but 
[luerrapled.] 
17002. Q. You mean it is not done in practice? A. I mean to say that the men dare not go to that extent 
for fear that they would be dismissed and boycotted. 
17003. Q. Is not it open to men who find that they are not allowed to do what the Act entitles them to do 
to complain to their lodge, and get a representation from the lodge that the book is not exposed for the men I 
A. Somehow or another when complaints are made to lodges, the men are, to a certain extent, black-
listed by their wages being reduced in an indirect manner. 
17005. Q. If the Act provides that every miner is entitled to see the book, and if they find that they cannot 
see it, is it not a very easy matter for them to bring the question up in their lodge, and get the lodge to 
represent to the management that the men as a whole, not specifying any particular one, are complaining 
that they do not see the book? A. It is easy, but it sometimes weuld be very costly; for the simple reason 
that the name of the man who made that suggestion in the lodge would appear in the next (lay's paper, and 
the Manager would read it at his dinner table. 
17006. (7. But that is an infirmity in the administration of the lodge? Ai But, when all men are afraid, 
what can be done? 
17007. Q. But, if the lodge manages its work in that way, that has nothing to do with the Act or with the 
departmeut. You see we look to you for practical suggestions you can take a horse to the water, but you 
cannot make him drink ; and, if the bcok is open, under the Act, to the men, what more can the Act do I - 
A. It can avoid a man having to co into an overman's cabin and turn over the leaves of the book; and, if 
the sanie report were placed on the danger- board, lie could see it as he passed to his work. 
17008. Q. \Vell, that is your suggestion : The Commission can consider that. What else do you suggest in 
regard to the Act ? A. I would have an amendment included in the Coal Mines Act that the examining 
deputy of the mine should be the leading deputy of that mine, and that lie should have authority to 
instruct the day deputies what to do in his absence. 
17009. Q. You would not have them of equal power'? A. No. 
17010. Q. One should be over the others? A. Yes. 
17011. AIr. Robertson.] But the day deputy has equally important duties? 
17012. AIr. Bruce S?nit/..] Q. Mr. Robertson says the day deputies have equally important duties to the 
night deputy 1 A. No. 
17013. Q. In what respect are they inferior? A. Inferior in this way, that the examining deputy sees the 
mine under different conditions from the day deputy, and when he leaves that mine be should have 
authority to instruct the day deputy, who is the last man to leave it, that the ventilation for certain places, 
say, for instance, giving off gas, should be properly attended to, and that they should be properly ventilated 
the last thing after the miner has done his work ; so that when the examining deputy goes round in the 
morning lie can find those places clear of any accumulation of gas. 
17014. Q. But suppose that both the day deputy and the night deputy direct their attention with equal 
care to tIme ventilation of the mine, will you not get the same result? A. No. 

17015. 
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17015. Q. Do you mean to say that the day deputy will do his work better when he is ordered, than when 
he is left to do it of his own authority ? A. I mean to say that the examining deputy's position may be in 
danger by the negligence of the day deputy. 
17016. Q. Is he in any \vorEc danger when the day deputy is working by virtue of an order from him, the 
examining deputy ? A. The responsibility would be placed upon his shoulders. 
17017. Q. But, according to you, you would take the responsibilities off the day deputy's shouMers 1 A. No; 
if he were instructed by the examining deputy to leave a certain place in a certain condition, and that 
were not done, and that place were found with gas by the examining deputy the next morning, certainly 
the day deputy woud be to blame. 
17018. Q. Let me put an illustration t you; suppose yourself occupying the position of day deputy, in 
which case would you feel more responsibility, where you were looked to as equal to the night deputy in 
importance to attend to your duties, or where you were looked upon as his subordinate, and responsible to 
him-wbich would give you the greater sense of responsibility? A. If I were the day deputy, and were 
ordered by an examining deputy who was authorised to order me to do those things, I would ceitainly do 
them. 
17019. Q. Would you not do them if it were left to your discretion, you being equal in power to the night 
deputy? A. At the last moment in a day deputy's work he may be called away to a different part of a 
district to assist in some other trouble, and that would be left undone. 
17020. AIr. Bruce S'mth ] I ccnnot understand it ; but perhaps the Commission can. 
17021. his honor.] Perhaps it might be suggested that one word would explain the action of Mr. Bailey's 
mind; that is the idea of a more effective continuity of action. He may be right, or he may be wrong 
but that is evidently his idea. 
17022. Jfr. Bruce S'tnitli.] There may he differences of op:nion, but, when I am told that a man has a 
greater sense of responsibility when he is acting upon an order than when he is acting upon his own 
responsibility, I cannot grasp it. 
17023. Q. You think really that a day deputy would do his work more conscientiously where he is subject 
to the night deputy than where he is of equal power 1 Al. Yes I will give you an illustration, if you will 
allow me : You see, in the first instance, the examining deputy is responsible, under the Mines Act, for the 
report: well now, in my own case, had I had authority over the day deputy, I should never have found, 
from the instructions that I gave, -as in the Glebe Mine. 
17024. Q. But, suppose the day deputy that you had under you was a better man than yourself, what 
would you have found then? A. If he were a better man than myself the gas would be removed all the 
same. 
17025. Q. Suppose he was as good a man as yourself, woald you have been in any danger then? A. N o; 
not if he did his duty. 
17026. Q. Then you are really talking of cases in which the day deputy is not a man of the same ability 
as the night deputy? A. No ; I am not alluding to his ability at all ; it is a matter of authority. 
17027. Q. I think the Commission understand what 'Mr. Bailey,  means. I need not dwell upon it any 
longer. Tell me any other direction in which you would propose to amend the Act ? A. With regard to 
section 10 of the Coal Mines Act, while it may not be necessary to aniend it, I think it is necessary to 
enforce it, so that the Managers could feel their responsibilities. 
17028. (2. To enforce which part of it, do you mean? A. Section 10, cancellation of certificates. 
17029. Q. In what respect do you mean? A. In this respect-that, when a Manager or Managers are found 
guilty of gross negligence or incompetence, their certificates are returned; and it gives a feeling amongst the 
mining community that their safety is not properly looked after. 
17030. Q. When once a man's certificate is cancelled you would not allow him to have another 1 A. Yes, 
by examination. 
17031. Q. You would I A. Yms. 
17032, Q. You mean to say that, if a man's certificate is cancelled by reason of his incompetence, you would 
allow him to go up for the same examination over again and get a fresh certificate? A. I would leave that 
to the judgment of the examining hoard, certainly. 
17033. Q. But, supposing he would pass the oki exemination as easily as lid had passed it before, would you 
allow him to have another certificate at once 1 A. If he passes the prescribed exsmination, certainly. 
17034. Q, But., if lie has proved himself practically incompetent by his actions, would you still allow him to 
go up, and give him a certificate because he passes a theoretical examination? A. The man may, in the 
meantime, become competent. 
17035. Q. Would you consider him practically competent because he passed a theoretical examination? 
A. All Managers, to a certain extent, have a practical knowledge of a mine. 
17036. Q. I understand you to say that, if a Manager lost his certificate for neglect, you would allow him 
to pass his examination again and become a Manager again? A. Yes; I do not believe in keeping a man 
down when is down. I would let him have a chance. 
17037. Q. If lie could pass the examination, you would let him up immediately? A. Well, a board of 
gentlemen certainly can understand human nature, and see when a man is, by his verbal examination and 
his examination proper, competent or not. 
17033. Q. But, after a man's conduct has been investigated and his certificate has been cancelled,, you do 
not propose that the people to whom lie submits himself for examination again should go into that question 
again? A. No. 
170:39. Q. Then all they have to do is to see whether he is theoretically fib for the position of Manager? 
A. They must know, through various sources, of his practical - [ fttierrvptec/.] 
17040. Q. And would you let him become a Manager again if he could pass-that is really what it amounts 
to? A. Yes. 
17011. Q. Is that opinion widely entertained 1 A. The opinion is widely entertained amongst the miners. 
17012. Q. And you think the miners would have confidence in a man because he passes an examination, 
although he had been condemned for want of care 1 The Commission understand what you mean, I am 
quite sure. Now, is there any other direction in which you suggest an alteration of the Act. ji. No. 
17043. Is there anything more you would like to say to the Commission in pursuance of the letter which 
you have addressed to them I A. Yes, I would like to say something further upon the black-listing and 
boycotting of men. 17044. 
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17044. Q. The general practice-you are not going to refer to your own case? A. Yes, I wish to tell the 
Commission  -- [Interrupted.] 
17045. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I understood, Your Honor, from this letter, that the Commission would not go 
into that. 
17046. His Honor.] We do not know yet what Mr. Bailey is going to say. 
17017. i[r. Bruce Smith.] Q. What do you want to say? i. I wish to say that I am boycotted at the 
present time for complying with the Mines Act and for three years my wife and children have suffered 
through this principle of boycotting. 
17048. Q. Do you know of your own knowledge that you are boycotted? A. Yes. 

17049. Q. how do you know it? A. Because I cannot get work at various mines in the district, 
17050. Q. But there are other men who cannot get work ? A. Yes. 
17051. Q. Are they boycotted, all of them? A. No. 
17052. Q. Then the mere fact that you cannot get work is not, of itself, conclusive proof that you are 
boycotted ? A. To my mind it is. 
17053. Q. Then, would it prove the same result with all other men who are out of work? A. No. 
17054. Q. Then you must have other reasons for thinking so 1 A. Yes. 
17055 Q. What are the other reasons? A. The other reasons are for making known the existence of gas 
in a mine contrary to a Manager's orders. 
17056. Q. I asked you what were the other reasons for your believing that you are being boycotted. The 
mere fact that you ar& out of work (Toes not prove it. Do you know, of your own knowledge, any other 
reason 1 A. Yes-where men are immediately put on to work at mines where 1 have immediately before, 
applied for work. 
17057. Q. You mean that they are preferred to you? A. It seemed like it. 
17058. Q. it is possible that they may be considered better workmen than you 1 A. How would a Manager 
know that if they were strangers? 
17059. Q. He may be a physiognoniist., for one thing, do you see; you did not count upon that, I suppose. 
Well, that is the conclusion you come to at all events, that you are being boycotted? A. Yes. 

Crossexamination by Mr. Lysaght: - 

17060. Q. Do you hold a certificate? A. Yes. 
17061. 0. What certificate? A. Seeond.class certificate of competency. 
17062. Q. Did you pass in this State? A. Yes. 
17063. Q. Regarding your answer that, if a Manager's certificate were cancelled for negligence, you would 
approve of his getting a fresh certificate by a fresh examination, do you mean to say that is a general 
opinion amongst the miners, in a case where a Manager has lost it through negligence, not through 
incompetency 1 A. No, a general opinion this way, that Managers should be competent. That is only 
my own pci sonal opinion. 
17064. Q. I am putting to you the case where a Manager loses his certificate for negligence; you mean to 
say that lie ought to get it fresh certificate if be merely passes an examination ? 
17065. his Honor.] Perhaps, Mr. Lysaght, it is hardly worth while to go into that question. The matter 
is dealt with very, much in the way that the Court of Marine Inquiry deals with otficei's of vessels. There 
is generally no question of knowledge, theoretical knowledge ; it is merely a question of want of moral 
judgment. 
17066. AIr. Lysaglit.] Q. As a matter of fact you merely expressed your own opinion I A.- Yes. 

17067. Q. Did you report the presence of gas in this mine, from which you were dismissed, to the Chief 
Inspector? A. Afterwards, yes. 
17068. Q. how long afterward? A. I reported this gas on the 28th March, 1899, and saw the Minister 

for Mines. 
17069. (At this stage Mr. Lysaght desired to ask the witness a number of questions respecting the finding 
of gas in the Newcastle Company's Coal Mine, whether the discovery of that gas was reported to the Chief 
Inspector of Coal Mines or not, and whether, if so reported, there was any neglect of duty on the part of the 
Chief Inspector.) 
17070. Mr. Bruce Smith objected to these questions being allowed, pointing out that two inquiries into this 
very matter had alread been held, one by Mr. Wade, as a Royal Commissioner, and the other an inquiry 
held by Judge Fitzharciinge under the provisions of the Coal Mines Regulation Act. 
17071. His Honor said that the matter which Mr. Lysaglit was desired to go into was one on which the 
Commission had already decided that they would not go into ; it was really resjudicata ; it had all been 
investigated before. Mr. Lysaglit said that lie was attempting to elicit this evidence because he proposed 
to show, hater on, that where gas was reported at Mount Pheasant, no steps were taken by the Inspectors, 
though there were manifestly dangerous conditions there. 
17072. N r. Bruce Smith said that lie had no objection to evidence being given about Mount Pleasant ; but 
lie (lid object to this Commission going into a matter which had been already twice inquired into and 
reported upon. lie would have no objection to the reports of the two previous inquiries going in. 
17073. I{is Honor said that this Commission could not be a Court of Appeal from the decisions come to at 
other inquiries. If it were to become a sort of general Court of Cassation it would never stop. 
17074. Mr. Bruce Siiiitli asked His Honor to see the reports of the previous two inquiries for himself. His 
Honor would there see that the question proposed to be raised by Mr. Lysaght had been gone into. 
17075. AIr Lysaght.] I will not pursue that. 
17076. Q. Mr. Bailey, do you know if it is a practice in your district to fail to report gas? A. Yes. 

17077. Mr. Barry.] In the one mine only, Your Honor. 
17078. Mr. Lysaght. Q. I am speaking of throughout your district, the district where you reside, leaving 
out your own particular case for further consideration-do you know that it is a practice to fail to report 
gas I A. I have this knowledge, that witnesses lave on their oath, stated that gac ws found, but not 
reported, mauy times in that district. 
17079. 9. Have you any other knowledge besides that? A. Only personally. 
17080. 9. Are you working in a coal-mine now? A. Yes. 

17081, 
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17081. Q. Do the men there constantly report gas if they find it? A. I have not the means of knowing 
that without I see the report book. - 
17082. Q. What are you doing now, cutting coal? A. Yes. 
17083. Q. Are safety•larnps used in that mine? Q. No. 
17084. Q. Do you know whether gas has been cliucovered in that mine? A. Yes, I believe so. 
17085. Q. Have you ever discovered it? A, No. 
17086. Q. Do you know that the men are afraid t3 report as for fear of ulterior consequenccs? 
17087. 11[r. Barry. I object to that that is a general question. 
17088. His honor.] He says he has never discovered gas in the mine where he is working, in point of fact 
and I can hardly see how he can say that other men are afraid to report it, unless he has seen the operation 
of the fear in relation to the facts. 
17089. Mr. Lysaglit.] Q. Do you know of any men who have discovered gas and have not repoi ted it, in 
your mine? A. I cannot ascertain from the report book, bccause I dare not go to look at it. 
17090. Q. But do you know of men having discovered gas and not reporkd it? A. No, not that I know of. 
17091. His honor.] Mr. Bailey informed us just now that lie could not get work, as be was boycotted 
but he is at work. We are all very glad to hear that he is at work, but we cannot understand that, 
17092-. lIfe. Lysaçjltt.] Q. You said that you were being boycotted 1 /1. Yes. 
17093. Q. Do you know of any letters having been sent by any managers or officials to preveit you gettmg 
work 
17091. Mr. Barry.] I ohject to that question. 
17095. His honor.] I wanted you, 'Mr. Lysaglit, to ask him about his being now in the position of a 
working miner, when he says he is boycotted. 
17096 .JIr. Lysa,çibt.] Q. If you have got work, cutting coal, how do you explain your statement that you 
were preventid fiom gtting work cutting coal? A. For the simple reason that the General Manager of 
the Company that I am at present working for--and I do not wish this statement to in any way reflect 
upon that gentleman-said, when a deputation interviewed him, that if Bailey took any office in the Lodge 
he would have to go, as he (the General Manager) was the only one that would give him (Bailey) work in 
the district. 
17097. Q. What is the name of that General Manager? A. Mr. Alexander Brown. 
17098. Q. Then, is a statement of -Mr. Alexander Brcvn's, that lie is the only man in tLe district who 
would employ you, the only evidence you have got that you were boycotted? A. No; I wrote to Mr. 
D. A. W. Robertson for work ; and, at the very time that lie would have my letter asking for it, his 
Manager was giving evidence of the discharge of six men, in the Arbitration Court, tiying to show that he 
could not keep up the output of coal because of the shortness of hands. 
17099. Mr. Robertson.] Q. What do you say about that? A. The Manager of the Helensburgli Colliery 
was giving evidence as to the discharge of six men through not attending to their work, at the time that 
they would receive my application by post for work. I concluded that lie would be six men short, and 
that my application might be received favcurably, cceirg that he would be short of six men to man his 
colliery. 
17100, Q. And therefore lie ought to have employed you, because lie had discharged six men 1 A. No, I 
do not say lie ought to ; but 1 think he should give inc a chance. 
17101. Mr. Lysaqlit.] Q. Did you get any reply to your application? A. Yes. 
17102. Q. What was the reason given 1 A. This is the reply [re-ulinq from a paper] : --" In reply to your 
application for employment on the 14th instant, I regret that at present we have no vacancy at the 
Metropolitan Colliery." 
17103. Q. There is nothing mentioned there about boycotting? A. No. 
17104. Q. You have no reason to think that they had a vacancy for you there? A. Only by what appeared 
in the press. 
17105. Q. In addition to what Mr. Brown stated, which you have told us, do you know of anything in 
writing to prevent your getting employment ? A. No, I ani not aware of it. 
17106. Q. Do you know that your name was put upon the blacklist? A. No, not for certain. 
17107. Q. Do you know whether there is a black-list in your mining district? A. \Vell, I believe it to be so. 
17108. Q. You said you did not know for certain whether your name was put down; have you reason to 
believe that your name was put down on the blacklist? A. Yes. 
17109. Q. What reason have you for believing that? A. Because of taking cerLain action against the 
Colliery Manager. 
17110. Q. But what reason have you to believe that your name was put on a blacklist we know why it 
would be put there ; but what makes you think it was put there; or do you know it was put there? 
A. What makes me think it is there is because I cannot get work elsewhere. 
17111. Q. Has any Manager given you, as a reason for not employing you, that you had reported gas as a 
deputy 1 A. No. 
17112. Q. They have never given that reason? A. No. 
17113. .lIr. Robertson.] I may just as well say that my objection to Mr. Bailey is due to the fact that lie 
did not report gas. If Mr. Bailey had reported gas, he would have been likely to meet with more favour 
in my eyes ; but he failed to report it. As far as I could see by the evidence, it took him some six or 
seven months' earnest prayer before he could make a true report. That was my objection to him. 
17114. Mr. Lysagldt.] Q. You hear that? A. No. 
17115. Q. Mr. Robertson says his objection to you was, not that you reported gas, but that you did not 
report it for six or seven months A. I reported it verbally, according to the instructions received from 
the Manager, who is responsible under the Act. 
17116. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Did you or did you not, in your evidence, say that you were six or seven months 
earnestly praying before you signed a report of gas having been found ? J. The gist of all my evidence was 
that I reported gas from the outset, according to the instructions I received from the management. 
17117. Q. Did you take seven months, or so many months' earnest prayer before you would make a written 
report? A. Yes. 
17118. Mr. Roberlson.1 Well, that is my objection to you, Mr. Bailey. 
17119, Mr. Ritchie.] Perhaps you might ask him, Mr. Lsaght3  what those instructions were which he says 
he received from the management. 17120, 
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17120. Mr. .Lysaght.] Q. You knew that the rules required you to report it in a book, did not you? A. Yes, 
I knew that General Rule 4 of the Cal Mines Act, required me to so report gas; but-[Interrupted.] 
17121. Q. What was it the Manager told you that made you not so report it? 
17122. Mr. Barry.] I object. There is no evidence at all about that. 
17123 .JIr. Lysag/mt.] He says the Manager gave him certain verbal instructions. 
17124. Q. I want to know what was it that the Manager told you that made you not so report it in the 
book? A. He told me that I would be, doing my duty to the Company by reporting verbally to him. 
17125. Mr. Barry.] I sul,niit, Your Ilnor, this has all come out in the other inquiry. We are drifting 
back into it. 
17126. i/is honor.] That is so. 
17127. ilr. Lysag/tt.] As far as I am Personally concerned, I was anxious that Mr. Bailey should know 
that, as far as I was concerned, representing the Miners' Union, I gave him every opportunity here that I 
could. I would not like Mr. Bailey to report in the Newcastle district that I did not get for him every 
opportunity that I could get for him. 
17128. Q. In addition to what the Manager told you, that you would be doing your duty to the management 
by reporting verbally, did he tell you anything else? A. Yes. 
17129. His honor.] I think we had better stop here. 
17130. AIr. Lysag/it.] Q. You might tell me what you term efficient ventilation for a working place? A. I 
would consider it efficient ventilation when 100 cubic feet is being received at the faces by every workniau 
per minute when it is cencentraterl into the working place in that quantity. 
17131. Q. Do you know that that is not being done now in many places? A. Yes, I have reason to believe 
that the 100 cubic feet are not passing according to the Act. 
17132. Mr. Ritchie.] You might follow that a little further, Mr. Lysaght-, and ask him what his reasons 
are for believing this. 
17133. Mr. LysaghL] Certainly. 
17134. Q. What reasons have you for statug that the 100 feet of air is not forced into the working p?aces? 
A. I have this reason that, while it may be passing in the headina', it is not passing at the face of the 
bords where time men are working. 
17135. Mr. Barry.] That is not a reason. 
17136. Mr. Lysaglit.] Q. Do you know of cases where that has happened ? A. Yes. 
17137. Q. Recently 1 A. No, not recently. 
17138. Q. In what collieries ? A. It was not passing at a certain time in the Newcastle Coal Company's 
Colliery. 
17139. Q. At time time that you were a deputy, was that so 1 A. Yes. 
17140. Q. Since that time, do you know of any mine where the 100 cubic feet of air per minute have not 
been forced to the working places ? A. I do not think that it is passing in the mine that I am at present 
working in. 
17141. Mr. Barry.] He is asked does he know, and he says that he does not think. 
17142. I/is honor.] A man may, Mr. Barry, giving evidence, say, "I know," or "I think," or "I believe 
so-and-so." If he says, I believe," he can be cross-examined as to the ground of his belief. 
17143. Mr. Lysagiet.] Q. You say that, in your own mine, you think it is not passing ; do you mean that 
your place is hot from time to time 1 A. At times it is hot. 
17144. Q. Have you complained of the want of ventilation in your own mine? A. No. 
17145. Q. If you are of the opinion that 100 cubic feet of air are not passing to you, why do you not 
complain? A. I dare not; I should be totally out of work then. 
17146. Q. Is not the colliery that you are at present working in the only colliery that you have been able 
to get a start in since your dismissal as a deputy 1 A. Yes. 
17147. Q. And about how many collieries have you tried to get work at since your dismissal, and failed? 
A. About a dozen, some of them twice. 
17148. Q. What do you mean by saying that the ventilation of the mine should be continuous? A. I 
mean that, when the ventilation of a mine depends on a single door, it cannot be continuous in certain 
districts. 
17149. Q. Why 1 A. Because it obeys a natural law, and finds its way to the power by a nearer way. 
17150. Q. Then, summed up, you are of opinion that a system of ventilating mines with single doors is a 
dangerous system I A. Certainly. 
17151. Q. In what respect do you consider the ventilation of minis is inadequate? A. It is to my mind 
inadequate because it is incorrectly measured-the quantity is incorrectly measured. I do not think the 
quantities will work out according to the measurements. 
17152. Q. In what respect is it incorrectly measured? A. When an anemometer is on] used in the centre 
of an airway, say 6 x 7, it is obvious that there is more velocity in the centre of that airway than there is 
at the sides, bottom, and top ; and there is no reduction made. 
17153. Q. Thee in your opinion, the register of the air should be taken, not only in the centre, but at the 
sides, and the bottom, and the top, to get a true record? A. Yes. 
17154. Q. I think you suggested that the system of inspection was not as it should be? A. Yes. 
17155. Q. Do you mean the Government inspection or the deputy's inspection, or what? A. I mean that 
the Government inspection is not fflcient. 
17156. Q. In what respect is it inefficient? A. For all the time that the bad ventilation was proved to exist 
in the collieries where I worked, and the gas was proved to exist, the Inspectors would say the Act was 
coniplied with, while I proved otherwise. 
17157. Q. Have you anything else to say why the Government inspection is inefficient? A. No. 
17158. t. That is the only reason you give. What system of inspection would insure greater safety in your 
opinion? A. The independent inspection districts. 
17159. Q. With the exception of your own case, do you know, of your own knowledge, of any other person 
being boycotted for having reported timings 1 4. No. 
17160. Q. You spoke about a copy of time examining deputys report being placed on time board, do you know 
of any occasion when a report has been made by an examining deputy, and a diQ'erent report put on the 
board? A. Yes. 

16825 29-3 U 17161. 
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17161. Q. Was that a case where the examining deputy reported a danger? A:Did you say besides my 
own case? 
17162. Q. Yes, leaving out your own case? A. No, I do not know of any. 
17163. alIt Robertson. j Q. Whet tloes lie mean by ' putting a report on the board?" I am not aware of 
any practice of reporting otlier,vise than in a book. Ask him to explain it. 
17164. jfr. Lysaqht.1 0. In the southern district, as far as I know, nothing is put on a board regarding the 
examining deputy's report. Is it the practice in the northern district to have a board on which the 
examining deputy's report is summarised 1 A. The practice in the Newcastle District is for a board to lo 
put up at the entrance of the mine, and the entrance to each district. It will have the date, and the word 

safe " or " secure," on it, and the examining deputy's signature. 
17165. Q. That is something in addition to what is required by the Act; do you suggest that, throughot 
the whole State, a board should be kept outside each district, and that, on that board, there should be 
written the whole of the examining deputy's report? A. Yes. 

17166. Q. Do not you see, Mr. Bailey, that his report might run into about thirty or forty lines? A. No 

for the simple reason that there is not that space left in the report 1)00k. 
17167. Q. Do I understand that you only suggest a report on the board where the deputy discos ers 
something dangerous? A. No, I still stick to my original idea. 
17168. Q. That the wh&e repost should be there? A. Yes. 
17169. Q. That is a suegestion for the introduction of a new provision in the Coal Mines Act? A. Yes. 

17170. lilt. Ritchie.] Before lie leaves that, Mr. Lysaght, you might ask him whether he knows of any case 
where these words " safe " or ''secure " were not substantiated in the reports. 
17171. lIlt. Lysaglit.] Q. Do you know of any case where the board report was not in accordance with the 

report in the book ? A. I do not know of any cases ; but this is sufficient to guide me, that year after year 
in the working of a mine you will see the word "safe" put in; and year after year something must occur 
during that period of time to make it unsafe. 
17172. Q. But then the word "safe" is also put in the book? A. Yes. 
17173. Q. So that the mere fact of having it repeated on the board does not make any dierence? A. No. 
17174. Q.  So that your objection is that they do not report, even in the book, things that must be there on 
account of the number of accidents that do occur 1 A. Yes. 
17175. jilt. Robertson.] He did not say "on account of the number of accidents that do occur." He said 
there must, in the course of years, be something to make it unsafe. 
17176. JIlt. Lysuglmt.] Yes, whatever it may be. 
17177. Q. But the fact of its being reported safe in the book, if you have your suggestion ii1 force, would 
only result in its being reported safe on the board; so that you would not get over the failure to report 
properly ? A. No ; but if this were done it would be an additional means of safety to workmen. For 
instance, the latrines are situated in the old workings, bords, and men go into the old working bords 
whereas if these dangers were reported on the board they would not do such a thing. 
17178. Q. You anticipate that dangers may exist which men would avoid if they had notice of it every 
morning? A. Yes. 
17179. Q. And you say, further, that the men either do not avail themselves of the right to inspect the 
book, or are afraid to avail themselves of that right? A. Yes, I say that they are afraid. 
17180. Q. But if it were inscribed publicly on the board it would be apparent to them, without their taking 
any chances at all? A. Yes. 
171S1. Q. Mr. Bruce Smith spoke to you about men being able to enforce their right to see these books- 
do you know of any case where the management have refused the right of a man to see the book, or have 
placed obstacles in his way? A. No ; but recently a miner said he was prepared to do so-and-so; but, to 
show the latent fear that men have in their minds of' dismissal, I challenged him to go and look at the 
report book, and he dare not do it. 
17182. Q. You cite a case where you challenged a man to go and look at the report book, and he was afraid 
to do so? A. Yes. 
17183. Q. But you do not know of any individual case where the management refused to let a man see the 
book? A. No. 
17184. Q. Or where the management put an obstacle in the way of preventing a roan from seeing the book 
because, if you do know of such a case, I will be glad to be told of it? A. I think that, when the books are 
put in an out-of-the-way place, hidden as it were, it is an obstacle in the way. 
17185. Q. Tell me what out-of-the-way place the books are put in? A. In a cavity cut out of the coal, 
with a brick wail in front of it with a sliding door-the report book is in that place. 
17186. Q. What is that called 1 A. That is inside the overseer's cabin. 
17187. (2. 

You are speaking now of the mine you are working in? A. No, I was referring then to the 
Newcastle Coal Company's Mine. 
17188. Q. That is where you yourself kept the book? A. Yes. - 
17189. Q. Did you put the book out of the way, so that the workmen could not see it? A. It was the 
custom to place the book in that place. 
17190. Q. Was that a convenient place to keep it'? A. Not convenient for the workmen. 

17191. dIr. Ritcliie.] Was the door of the cabin locked, or the door which shut this book in? 
17192. lIft. Lysa,jht.] Q. Was the place where the book was kept locked? A. No, it was not locked. 

17193. Q. Would men have to get any permission to go and get that book to look at? A. No; but they 

would have to have grat courage. 
17194. Q.Toaski A. Yes. 
17195. lIlt. Barry.] How many years ago is this? 
17196. lIft. Lysaglet.] Q. How many years is it since you were at this colliery where you were dismissed 
from? A. 1899. 
17197. Q. Where is the book kept in the colliery you are at present working in? A. In a desk inside the 

overman's cabin. 
17198. Q. Is that desk kept locked? A. I cannot say. 
17199. dIr. Barry.] What is the name of this colliery? 
17200. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. What is the name of the colliery where you work? A. New Larobton. 

17201. 
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17201. Q. Do you suggest that the deputy's report book should be kept at any particular place in the mine, 
so that the workmen can see it conveniently? A. If my suggestion is carried out there is no necessity for that. 
17202. Q. Leaving that out for the present-on the assumption that that suggestion, perhaps, may not be 
carried out by the legislature, would you then suggest any particular place where the deputy's report book 
should be kept? A. Yes; I would suggest outside the deputy's cabin altogether, hanging up by the 
roadside, where all men roust pass. 
17203. Q. Then, when Mr. Bruce Smith suggested that a Lodge could enforce a man's right, is it a fact that 
the deliberations of all these Lodges very easily leak out? A. Yes. 
17204. Q. You know that to be a fact? A. Yes. 
17205. (1. And you say that men, even in a Lodge, might hesitate to bring it up, because they would 1 c 
identified easily enough afterwards? A. Yes. 
17206. Mr. Robertson.] I can say that leakages never come niy way. 
17207. Mr. Lysaght.] I can quite apprQciate that they would not venture to bring them to you personally. 
17208. Mr. Robertson.] Personally, I think their deliberations are very secret-the Star Chamber is nothing 
to it. I have never found out anythiig yet. 
17209. Mr. Ritchie.] Perhaps there is more necessity for secrecy on the south than on the north. 
17210. Mr. Barry.] Does not Your Honor think this is introducing an element into this matter that had 
better be excluded? 
17211. His honor.] We have not gone much into it. 
17212. At this stage Mr. Bruce Smith drew the attention of the Commission to the fact that, although 
he had been asked by the Commission, and had undertaken, to examine this witness-in-chief, Mr. Lysaght, 
to whom the witness had handed some paper, seemed to be fully informed of the nature of the evidence the 
witness was to give, and the examination-in-chief would, more appropriately, have been conducted by him. 
In future, if he found that proofs of the evidence of witnesses called by the Commission had been supplied 
to Mr. Lysaght, he would decline to examine them in chief. 
17213. Mr. Lysaght said that the witness had merely handed to him in open Court, before the eyes of the 
Commission, a paper, which was apparently merely a copy of the letter addressed to the Commission, upon 
which Mr. Bruce Smith had based his examination-in-chief. He, Mr. Lysaght, had no other information as 
to the evidence to be given by the witness ; and was merely using the paper given to him for the purpose 
of his cross-examination. - 
17214. Jfr. Lysaqh&] Q. You suggest that the examining deputy should be superior to the day deputy? 
A. Yes, 
11215. Q. Did you mean to suggest that he might have an opinion concerning a danger which might differ 
from the opinion of the day clep]Ity ; and that, therefore, he should have the right to enforce that opinion 
A. Yes, he certainly would have. 
17216. Q. He might see conditions dangerous which the day deputy might not regard as dangerous 
A. Certainly. 
17217. Q. And, therefore, he should have the right to enforce the removal of those conditions? A. Yes. 
17218. Q. Is that all you want to suggest on that? A. Yes. 
17219. Q. Do you know whether, in your colliery, where you are working, places not being worked are 
ventilated? A. Not directly ventilated-no, 1 do not think that they are ventilated, only by what may go 
in by gravity, say, from the main body. 
17220. Q. Do I understand then that the practice has grown up of not ventilating the places that are not 
actually working? A. They are not ventilated. 
17221. Q. Do you kno.v whether the openings on to goafs in your mine are securely blocked up with 
stoppings, or are they left open as a leractice?  A. In the mine where I am working at present there are no 
goafs. 
17922. Q. In the mine.- where you Lave worked, was it the practice to block up the entrances into the gorifs 
with stoppages? A. No. 
17223. Q. Then, do you suggest that an intake airway should be allowed to pass a goaf, and thereby 
perhaps carry on foul matter to the men? A. 01], dear, no. 
1722 t. 9. I understood you to suggest that the waste should be ventilated by an intake airway passing it? 
A. A split of the intake, solely for that purpose. 
17223. His honor.] You mean that that area should be taken into c - onsideration in relation to the whole 
supply.  
17226. Mr, Ritchie.] Just the same as a working split. 
17227. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. You were asked by one of the Commissioners whether this serious accident at 
hamilton Pit was a creep or not 1 A. Yes. 
17228. Q. Do you know the size of the pillars that were there when this fall took place? A. They were 
supposed to be 8 yards; but in that case they were robbed, and the coal filled and sent to the surface ; so 
that the pillars were weak in places. 
17229. Q. Were they S yards square? A. Eight yards by 35. 
17230. Q. Cut throughs every 35 yards? A. Yes. 
17931. Q. What do you mean by saying that the pillars were robbed, and thereby weakened? A. It was 
the custom at that time for the shift-men to fill the fallen coal that fell from the sides of these pillars, and to 
make a few shillings extra ; and so the pillars were weakened. 
17232. Q. That is to say, the shift-men filled as much as they could, and thereby weakened the pillars is 
that n-lint you mean ? A. Yes. 
17233. Q. In your opinion, should the cut-throughe be every 35 yards 1 A. Yes. 
17234. 9. And not farihcr? A. Not farther. 
17235. 9. And, in your opinion, would the having of the cut through.s every 30 yards at all endanger the 
security of the roof, or tend to bring on a creep ? A. Not in the least. 
11236. Q. You spoke about making the Manager sensible of his responsibilities, and not giving the 
Inspector power to order in safety-lamps-do you know that in some of the collieries in the Newcastle 
district there is a General Manager over three or four other Managers, who are called the Managers of the 
mines? A. I do not know of any case where there is a General Manager over three or four; but usually 
there is a General Manager over one Manager; and that Manager may have two collieries under him. 
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1 7237. Q. Do you know thaC, in some colleries, the person who is callid the Manager, and who, under the 
Act, has the responsibility, has not, in many cases, the power to carry out what lie himself may think 
necesarv ; but has to refer to a superior ? A. Yes. 
1723. Q. Then, do you not see that it is no good making that Manager sensible of his responsibility, if 
lie has to refer b somebody above imini before he can act on his sense of responsibility 
17239. .Jfi•. Bruce LoWe] is not this rather a_monologue in the evidence of Bailey? Mr. Lysaght asks 
Imini ''so-and-so "; and lie says, "Yes." 
17240. i/is ifoimor. 1 It certainly is leading the witn ss. 
17241. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It is very much like Socrates and Glaucon ; and Glaucon says. "Just so." 
17242. Jfr. Lysaglit] Q. When you say you would not give the Inspector power to order in safety.lamps, 
you assume that the Manager himself has the power to fortheiih put the safety-lamps in? A. Yes. 
17243. Q. Do not you see, in the case I put to you, that he might have to refer to a higher authority 
A. Yes, certainly that places the Manager between two courses ; but the Act could be amended so that the 
General Managers should put their instructions to the Managers into writing. 
17244. Q. But that would not get the safety-lamps into the mine I A. No, but Will the Managers in the 
old country would not tolerate a General Manager -[fntesrvpteci]. - 
17245. Jfr. Lyacmg/t.] But this is not the old country. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Barry :- 
11246. Q. I think you stated, in answer to Mr. Lysaght, that you heard some witnesses swear that they 
were afraid to report gas, or rather that they did not report it: will you kindly mention to the Commission 
the names of the witnesses, and where you heard them swear that, and the name of the mine they were in 
at the time ? A. It was to Mr. Thompson, the solicitor. 
17247. Ris Jionor.] That is rather g  ing into the matter which we have decided not to go into. 
17248. dIr. Barry] Q. Is that in respect to the mine that you were dismissed from, the Newcastle Mine? 
A. Yes. 
17249. J/i. Barry ] That is all I want to know. I thought it was some other mine outsiee the one that 
be lid the particular grievance against.. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 
17250. 2. You l.ave suggested that the reports might be put on a board? A. Yes. 
17251. Q. Where would you put that board ? A. The main one should be at the entrance to the mine. 
11252. Q. What do you mean by the main one? A. You are referring to the boards? 
17253. Q. I am referring to the deputy's reports of different districts; where would you put the boards? 
A. I would put the boards, one to the main entracce of the mine, and one to each entrance to the separate 
districts. 
17254. Q. That would be at the deputy's cabin, would it not? A. Not necessarily so. 
11255. Q. The deputies' cabins are usually at the entrances-must necessarily be at the entrances-to the 
districts ? A. No; you have a main intake road and districts from this main intake men are going to 
right and to left ; and the board is placed at the point intersecting with the main road. 
17256. Q. But the workmen must meet the deputy at the entrance to the district? A. No, the workmen do 
not always meet the deputy or see the deputy. 
17257. Q. Do you mean to say that the workmen go into the mine without seeing the deputy? A. Yes. 
17258. Q. That is rather an extraordinary statement. Do not you think that is rather an extraordinary 
statement, that men go into the mine without seeing the deputy? A. I would certainly be able to get to 
my place without seeing the deputy. I would see the result of his examination, without seeing the deputy. 
11259. Q. I do not doubt it; but have you not to meet the deputy before you enter the mine? [Witness 
did not answer.] 
17260. Q. Well, any way, is not the deputy's cabin where the workmen usually meet the deputy? A. Yes. 
17261. Q. Would you have the board there, at the deputy's cabin? A. No, not in all cases. 
17262. Q. Wherever the board would be placed, I presume there would be nothing to prevent officials 
observing the men looking at the board ? A. No. 
17263. Q. Then can you tell me the difFerence between looking at the board under those circumstances and 
looking at the book I A. Yes; the difference is that the man sees it with his eye as he passes, and can read 
it without stopping; but if it is in a cabin he will have to stop to turn over the leaves of the book, and see 
it; and therefore the deputy or Manager sees his intention. 
17264. Q. A man can see the board with his eye, and he can also see the book with his eye; but lie could 
not read either of them without stopping? A. He could read the board without stopping. 
17265. Q. He could? A. That is my opinion. 
17266. Q. Perhaps so; but personally I cannot see the difference-you say that the men are afraid to look 
at the book because they would be observed by an official? A. Yes. 
17267. Q. And, I take it, victimised ? A. Yes. 
17268. Q. Could they not be observed reading a board? A. No, not to the same degree, by far. 
17269. Q. But there is nothing to hinder the officials from watchimig  a man reading a  board? A. I do not 
see the necessity for two or three officials to -[interrupted]. 
17270. Q. I did not say there was any necessity at all-but is it not possible that an official could observe 
a mans reading a report on a board just the same as they could observe his reading a report in a book? 
A. No, it would be customary......tlme men would fall into that groove, and the deputy too. 
17271. Q. It could also become equally customary for men to read a book, and to fall into that groove I A. No. 

17272. Q. I think you said that, after being refused work at a number of collieries, you were generously 
offered work by Mr. Alexander Brown? A. Yes. 
17273. Q. And then you come here and you charge Mr. Brown with intimidation? A. I have not charged 
Mr. Brown with intimidation. 

17274. Q. Pardon me, in your evidence you said-I do not know whether he said he told you direct; but 
you repeated some conversation you heard that Mr. Brown had said that if you joined the Union you would 
have to clear? 
17275. AIr. Bruce &nielm.j I understood him to say that Mr. Brown had told him, 17276 
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17276. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Did Mr. Brown tell you direct? J. It was stated openly in the Lodge that the 
men wished to make me, on one occasion, chairman, and, on anothee occasion, check-inspector and on Itoth 
occasions the Secretary of the Miners' Lodge iose and iiAormed the Lodge pubhcly of the statement Mr. 
Brown had made and that wai where I first heard it ; and conseqient!y I had to decline the offices that 
they wished to put me in, because of Mr. Brown's statement. 
17277. Q. At all events the man who offred you employment after you had he'n refused elsewhere is the 
man that you make a charge against? You make a charge ageinet the gentleman who was generous enough 
to give you employment when you could not obtain employment elsewhere? A. Certainly, I sincerely thank 
Mr. Brown for the offer and the chance of work, when others would, not give it to me ; but still I do not 
think, as a British subject, my liberty outside the mine should be affected. 
17278. Q. I do not say it should. Now, you said you were afraid to read the report books? ii. Yes. 
17279. Q. And other men were afraid? A. Yes. 
17280. Q. You are not afraid to come here, though, and say that the condition of that mine was not as it 
ought to be ? A. Which mine? 
17281. Q. The mine you are working in? J. I have said nothing disparagingly of the mine, with the 
exception that, in some cases, the air might be somewhat hot. 
17282. Q. But, still, you say that; and you are not afraid apparently? A. No. I am speaking the truth 
when I say that. 
17283. Q. Well, then, is there any truth in the statement you make that you are afraid to read the report 
hook? A. Yes. 
17284. Q. How are these two statements consistent? You come here, and apparently you are not afraid 
-you say you are not afraid? A. I am afraid this far, that it may even influence Mr. Brown's mind not 
0 let me resume work ; but certainly I think my coming here is a step in the direction of my uhimately 
obtaining justice in my own case, and getting this boycott removed, so that I can at Ic ist take up the 
study of mining which I have neglected three years. 
17285. Q. The two statements seem to me utterly inconsistent. I should think that any statement you 
make here must carry very much more weight, and be a matter of very much greater importance to Mr. 
Brown, than the mere pem'ttsal of a hook at the mine, that you are entitled to look at? A. I do not see that. 
17286. Q. Do not you think that \1r. Brown would attach a great deal more importance to what you say 
here? l. Then Mr. Brown mu.,t be seized with the same facts as I am, that I am boycotted throughout 
the district. 
17287. Q. Coming to the matter of safety-lamps, you would leave the question of using safety-lamps in a 
mine to the discretion of the Manager 1 A. Yes. 
17288. Q. When made to understand his responsibilities? A. Yes, 
17289. Q. But, supposing the Manager does not feel his responsibilities, what would happen then 
A. Well, accidents or disasters are liable to happen when a man does not feel his responsibilities and enforce 
the Act. 
17290. Q. I quite agree with you ; but then to prevent those accidents, what would you do if the Manager 
was not s&zed with his responsibilities? A. So long as lie complied with the Act lie would be safe. 
17291. Q. But do not you take it that it is not complying with the Act, if safety-lamps should be used and 
are not used ? [ Witness did not answer.] 
17292. Q. Is it complying with the Act if safety-lamps should be used, and they are not used because a 
Manager does not fully realise his responsibilities? A. A Manager, when he sees or examines personally 
the mine, will become acqimained with it, and he will then know when to introduce safety-lamps into that 
mine. 
17293. Q. But supposing lie knows, and does not do it? A. If he knows the fact that dangers exist, and 
lie does not take sufficient precaution, a disaster is likely to happen that he may be punished for. 
17294. Q. Yes; but that is locking the door after the steed is stolen? A. I cannot understand a Manager 
not feeling his responsibility. 
17295. Q. I put it to you now, if lamps should be used in the opinion, we will say, of the Inspector; and, 
the Manager, either because he does not know, or does not feel, his responsibility, refuses to put in safety-
lamps 1 A. Then lie takes the consequences. 
17296. Q. Yes; but other people have to take the consequences too-if you were working in that mine you 
might be blown up? A. Well, if I saw that dangers existed, and the Manager did not endeavour to comply 
with a certain amount of safety, I should certainly try to obtain work elsewhere. 
17297. Q. Do not you think there ought to be some appeal in a case such as that, where a Manager does 
not see the necessity for safety-lamps? A. A practical, straightforwamd, honest Manager, who feels his 
responsibility, is the best judge as'to when safety-lamps should be used in a mine. 
17298. Q. No doubt ; but, supposing he is not practical, and not honest, and not straightforward, and does 
not feel his responsibilities, should there not be some appeal from his judgment? A. Well, we expect a 
Manager to be reasonably competent., and, if the service certificates are dispensed with, we ought to have 
competent Managers who will take the responsibility. 

Examination by Mr. Ritchie 

17299. Q. Do you believe that all the persons who are acting as Managems at the preent time fully realise 
their responsibilities, and are honest and straightforward? A. No I do not think so. 
17300. Q. Then, holding the opinion that they are not so, do you think that they ought to be vested with 
the sole power of deterniining whether lamps should go in or not? A. I think that the Managers who 
hold service certificates should have their certificates cancelled. I believe that a competent Manager, by 
examination, feels and knows his responsibility with regard to the safety of his men. 
17301. Q. You have got greater confidence in the persons who hold certificates of competency? A. Yes. 
17302. 0. But do you hold the opinion that, because they have got certificates of competency, they would 
fully realise their responsibility, and be more straightforward and honest than other Managers I A. Cer-
tainly ; because we know they possess the knowledge to pass an examination; and we know, probably, that 
they are practical men too--well, the examination will depend upon that. 
17303. Q. I suppose you will admit, though, that, even with all these qualifications, they might err in their 
judgment? A. Yes. 

17304. 
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17304. Q. I suppose you know, also, that there is a certain amount of expenditure incurred in the introduc 
tion of safety-lamps-expenditure by the mine-owners ? A. Yes. 
17305. Q. Probably you also know that Managers are somewhat diffident about incurring any fresh expen-
diture if they can avoid it? A. Just so. 
17305. Q. And that, abliough the Manager may inwardly believe that safety-lamps may be necessary, even 
a Manager who holds a certiScate of competency may be afraid to put them in, for fear of increasing the 
cost of working the colliery? jl. Yes; that certainly will have something to say regarding the introduction 
of safety-lamps. 
17307. Q. Ihving a knowledge of these fact, do not you think that the Inspector of Collieries should be a 
person equally competent with the Manager to determine whether safety-lamps are necessary or not? 
A. Well, they have not done so, looking at it in the light of the Kembla explosion. 
1730$. Q. But I am just putting it to you now; do you not think that think they ought to be equally as 
competent as the Manager? A. Yes, equally cemi  etent. 
17309. Q. And do you not think that, after all, it would be unwise to leave the whole and sole control of 
this important matter in the hands of one single man, and that the Manager? A. I do not think that it is 
for the Government to say when safety-lamps shall be used, but rather the Manager. 
17310. Q. Supposing the miners of a colliery were to say that, from their knowledge of a mine, in their 
opinion safety-lamps ought to be used, would you then leave it to the Manager to say whether they shall or 
shall not be used ? A. Well, if the Inspector for the district is called upon for a report, and 110 advises the 
use of safety-lamps, that would go a great way toward the introduction of them into that mine, even against 
the the Manager's opposition. 
17311. Q. But then, under your proposal, supposing the Manager was face to face with a ckzen reports, 
lie would still have the right to say N A o, they shall not go in "1 A. Yes. 
17312. Q. Do you know of any colliery where the workmen themselves have asked for the lamps to be 
placed in for their own safety, but where the Manager has refused to put them in? A. I know of a colliery 
where the miners have asked for the safety-lamps to be taken out of the mine and the Manager has refused. 
17313. Q. What I was asking about was where the workmen desired that the Manager should put the 
ssfety-iamps in for their own safety ? A. Yes, I believe that there are some mines down South where that 
has happened. 
17314. Q. Have you any knowledge of that yourself? A. No. 
17315. Q. Do you regard the miners as competent to judge when safety-lamps should go into a mine? A. Yes. 
17316. Q. Would you, then, give them credit for su6cient knowledge to know when safety-lamps ought to 
be used 1 A. Yes. 
17317. Q. If you were aware of the fact that the miners had requested the use of safety-lamps in a colliery, 
and the Manager had refused, would you still hold that opinion, that the Manager ought to be the sole 
person to determine that matter? A. Seeing that he is the responsible person, yes. 
17318. Q. Do not you think that the miners have a great responsibility, when they go into a mine with 
naked lights, when they believe that safety-lamps ought to be used ? A. The Manager has the most 
responsibility. 
17319. Q. Do you believe that the miners, when they go into a mine, should place their lives in the hands 
of a person who, perhaps, may, for the reasons which I have stated, refuse to safeguard their lives? 
A. That is left to their own judgment., as to the danger or safety of that pamticular mine. 
17320. Q. But you do not w-ant to leave it to their judgment, unless you want them to do what you had to 
do, to walk about looking for work elsewhere? You do not mean that surely 1 A. I certainly should not 
continue to work at a place that I thought was too dangerous. 
17321. Q. Would not you think, as a practical man, with a knowledge of the danger, that your voice ought 
to be heard? A. Oh, yes, attention ought to be paid to all complaints from practical men. 
17322. Q. How long have you acted altogether as a deputy at any colliery ? A. About twelve months. 
17323. Q. During that period was it part of your duty to examine the waste workings? A. No. 
17324. Q. That was not part of your duty? A. No. 
17325. Q. Were there separate persons at the colliery where you were deputy who had that duty to 
perform 1 A. Not to my knowledge. 
17326. Q. Do I understand you to say that there was no person whose duty it was to examine waste 
workings at the colliery where you were a deputy? A. Not to my knowledge. 
17327. Q. Were they ever examined to your knowledge? A. Not specially. If they were examined, it 
was, perhaps, casually; because, perhaps, it was convenient to go that way to reach a certain place; and 
a deputy might just cast his eyes round-if you would term that an examination that might be clone. 
11328. Q. So that, so far as you know, the only examination that was bade of the waste workings whilst 
you were a deputy was in taking a short cut to reach some other section of the mine? A. Yes. 
17329. Q. And the deputy casting his eye round about him as he travelled ? A. Yes. 
17330. Q. Would you regard that as an examination? A. No. 
17331. Q. That was at the A.A. pit? A. No, Newcastle Coal Company's. 
17332. Q. Do you know if there is any examination of the waste workings where you are working now 1 
A. No, I do not know of any ; still I believe that they would be passed there occasionally. 
17333. Q. You do not know of any examination being made ; but you believe that somebody may travel 
through occasionally-not for the purpose of examining, I take it I A. No. 
17334. Q. Is that tile general practice in the North, where you have worked I A. It is the general practice 
in the mines that I have worked in. 
17335. Q. Did you never regard it as part of the necesary work to be done while you were a deputy-the 
examination of the waste workings? A. Yes, it should be done if the man had time to do it; but he had 
not time to do that. 
17336. Q. I suppose, with your practical and theoretical knowledge, you do regard this, the examination of 
the waste workings, as a very necessary part of the examination of the colliery 1 A. The waste workings 
should ha examined, if left open but I certain] y object to any waste workings_-[inieri'mipted.] 
173:37. Q. I might alter the term I suppose you know that there are sections of the mine which are 
abandoned for a time, but may not properly be regarded as waste workings? A. Yes. 
17338. Q. Was that class of workings examined while you were a deputy? A. They could not be 
examined. 17339. 
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17339. Q. Why 1 A. In those old workings a heading might be fallen, or an entrance to an old bord might 
be fallen, and no fireman or deputy could get on the other side: consequently, what was in the old bord could 
not be told by examination. 
17340. Q. But I supp03e there aro times when thero are parts of the works abandoned which have not fallen 
at all? A. Yes. 
17341. Q. While you were deputy, were such workings as those examined by you? A. No. 
17342. Q. Were they examined by anyone else? A. Not to my knowledge. 
11343. Q. Would you regard the examining part of the work as sufficiently effective and satisfactory from 
it safety point of view, with those workings left unexamined? A. No 
17344. Q. So far as you know, is that the general practice? A. So far as I know. 
17345. Q. Do you know if there was anything in your Special Rules providing for weekly or monthly 
examinations of waste workings? A. I do not know that there is anything. I have a copy of the Special 
Rules here. 
17316. Q. I take it I am quite clear upon the point th.t you say that, at no period, neither weekly nor 
monthly, were examinations made of waste workings ? A. Just so. 
17347. Q. I have got that quite c!early? A. Yes. 
17348. Q. I think you have said something about the Managers in regard to the lamp question, that if they 
made a personal examination of the colliery they would be the most competent persons to know whether 
safety-lamps should be used or not.. Now, what is the practice, so far as you know, of Managers making 
personal examinations of the underground workings ? A. The practice varies at the collieries that I have 
worked in : soetimes a month, or two months, may elapse before the Manager is seen : in other cases lie 
may he down every week. 
17349. Q. A month or two might elapse between one visit and another from a Manager at some collieries 
and in other cases the Manager might he down once a week ? A. Yes. 
17350, Q. And, with the knowledge which you have gained by observing time practice, do you think that a 
person who goes down so frequently would be competent to know when safety-lamps were required? A. No 
I think the Manager, when he knows his responsibility, will go down once a day. 
17351. Q. Then the practices which you have mentioned to me are the practices of persons who do not 
realise their responsibilities 1 A. Yes. 
17352. Q. And that appears to be th general practice? A. Yes. 
17353, Q. So that., generally, the Managers do not appear to realise their responsibility ? A. At present. 
17354. Mr. Robertson.] That is a conclusion ari'ived at from his experience at one mine. 
17355. Mv. Bruce Smith.] It is a conclusion, rather, of the Commissioner than of the witness: because it 
is put to him ; and he nods his head. 
17356. Mv. Ritchie.] No it is his own. He nodded his assent to what he had previously said. He said he 
thought they should go down once a day. 
17357. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I quite admit that they are a series of deductions of one thing from another, 
with a good deal of logic about them but I say they are not the witness'. I do not think he would have 
framed those deductions in lis own mind. 
17358. Mv Ritchie.] The witness is a practical man with twentyeiglit years' experience ; lie has a certain 
knowledge of theory ; and lie has a second-class certificate of competency ; and we cannot think that a man 
with such experience as that will nod his head to something which lie does not think or know. 
17359. Q. How often do the Inspectors usually visit the collieries at which you have been working, so far 
as you know? A. It may be once in three months, and on occasion it may be longer than that. 
17360. Q. Whilst you were a deputy, I suppose you came in contact with them frequently? A. No, I was 
situated in a peculiar circumstance generally, when Inspectors were expected, work for me was found in 
an out-of-the-way place. 
17361. Q. When the Inspectors were coming they found work for you in an out-of-the-way place? A. 
Exactly. 
17362. Q. Did you ever know the Inspectors to go into the waste workings? A. No. 
17363. Q. Did you ever hear of the Inspectors going into the waste workings while you were there? A. No. 
17364. Q. Do you think the Inspectors' reports ought to be open to the workmen-the Governm nt 
Inspectors' reports? A. Yes, I do not see any reason why they should not be. 
17365. Q. Do you know of any reason why they should not be pasted on this board as well as the other 
reports? Do you know of any reason why they should not be made as public as the deputy's reports? 
A. No. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 
17366. Q. How many collieries have you worked at in these colonies? A. I have worked at four. 
17367. Q. What collieries were they? A. I have worked at the A. and A. Company, and the Burwood 
Company. 
17368. Q. How many years at the A. A. Company? A. Somewhere about two, I think. 
17369. Q. How many years at Burwood? A. About eighteen months or two years. Then I think the 
total amount at the Newcastle Conipany's collieries would be about eight years. 
17370. Q. Do you say that a month or two might elapse before the Managers of those collieries went down 
into the mine--that the Manager only went down once a month or once in two months? A. Yes. 
17371. Q. Do you positively assert that? A. Yes, at the time that I worked at these mines. 
17372. Q. How can you positively state that-you, I suppose, were working in the mine, and the Manager 
might go underground without your knowledge? A. Yes; but it soon gets known generally, in the mine, 
when the Manager is down. 
17373. Q. Then you say that you are in a position to know that the Managers of these mines, A. A. 
Company, Burwood Company, and Newcastle, only descended once in a month or two months? A. Well, 
on occasions it may he less. I am speaking approximately. 
17374. Q. You have put it down in your evidence positively? A. Yes, but of coui'se you know a Marager 
may have occasion to go down to look into some trivial accident that has oceurred-that would break the 
month. In other times a month would elapse, and more than that. 
17375. Q. I should think he would have many occasions to go underground in that time Then you do not 
wish to qualify this statement in any way? A. Only to that extent, that in case of a break-down or anything 
like that -[Interru,pted.] 17376. 
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17376. Q. Then, according to you, it is only a sort of accidental circumstance altogether that takes a 
Manager into the mine? A. No,. I do not imply that.. 
17377. Q. Well, I infer that.. If it is only once in a month or two, it must be only some accidental 
circumstance that takes him down. I think at the beginning of your evidence you made some sweeping 
assertions that gas was riot reported at the mines in this State ? A. Was not reported in mines in this State. 
17378. Q. Do you refer to any one particular mine, or has this a general application? A. Well, it is general 
amongst men ; but Mr. Neilsen, a mining Manacer, said he would not swear that many inatanci a of burning, 
even, oc.urred in the Newcastle district ;a.d ?d r. Thompson said ----[Interrupted.] 
17379. Q. Stop a minute. You come here and give evidence of what you know; r.uw; I ask you, do you 
know that gas is not reported in the mins g  nerally, cr is it one particular mine that you refer to? A. No; 
a man, a workman, cannot obtain the knowh dge if lie sees not the report book. 
17380. Q. Then this sweeping and general assertion that you made, that gas is not reported at mines in the 
Colony, is, do not you think, both unjust and umigenel ous ? A. I was simply repeating the words of Mr. 
Thompson to Judge Fitzliardinge. 
17381. Q. I am asking you of your own knowledge on come here to say what you know about matters 
affecting mines ; and you state that you know that gsa is not reported at milies in the Colony. Now, I 
ask you, do you know that yourself ? A. Yes, in my own case. 
17382. Q. Do you narrow your knowledge down to your ovn cace? A. I know of no o.her outside my own 
case. 
17383. Q. Why do you say that gas is not reported at other collieries ? A. I do not think I have said that, 
17384. Q. You have said so you made a very sweeping asertion that you knew that gas was not reported? 
A. Yes; well, that has been proved, to my mind, both in the Mount Kenibla and Dudley disasters, that 
this gas was not N ported. 
17385. Q. But you made a general assertion ; tine? one gathers, from what you say, that that is the practice 
in mines generally I A. If you take two instances where disasters have brought these things to light, 3 ou 
infer that it is not done at the other collieries. 
17386. Q. Two instances arcsnfficientto our mind to prve that tlmeofficia]s at all other culik rics areneglig nil 
A. Not all others. 
17387. Q. You have said so now I A. Some of them. 
17388. Q. If the gas is not r-ported, they must ho negligent, must they not ? A. Well, you see what 
evidence has been brought out here that men have reported gas and we have no knowledge of it in the 
report books ; and the Inspectors do not know of it. 
17389. Q. Yes, we have knowledge that men knew of gas and did not report it? A. Yes. 
17390. AIr Ritchie.] I think the knowledge is that they did report it to the deputies. 
17391. Mr. Robertson.] I am not defending anyone. That is so ; but we have knowledge also that men 
knew of gas and did not report it. 
17392. Ate. Bruce S'mith.] We have an enormous amount of evidence in this Commission from men who 
say that they knew of gas and did not retort it. 
17393. AIr. Ritchie.] And there is evidence that reports were made, 
17394. AIr. Robertson.] I do not deny that; but I say thcre has been abundant evidence before this inquiry 
that men have known of the existence of gas and have not reported it. Of course, some other men say they 
have mentioned the finding of gas to the Manager, undoubtedly ; but we have not heard his evidence yet.. 
17395. Alt'. L,jsag/ct.1 There is a considerable amount of evidence that men working at Kembla reported 
fire damp to three or four different deputies and to the Manager. 
17396. Mr. Robertson.] I do not wish it to be thought for a moment that I am defending any official ; on 
the contrary, I think any official who knows of the presence of gas, and doc-s not report it, is guilty of 
negligence, and ought to be severely punished. 

Re-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith 

17397. Q. You made a general statement a few moments ago to the effect that the Managers in the 
northern district did not go into the mine in many cases, as often as once a month ? A. No, some of the 
mines. 
17398. Q. Now, you narrow it down to some ; will you name any one mine in regard to which you are 
prepared to swear that the Manager did not go in more often than once a month i A. Yes, New Lan bton. 
17399. Q. Is that the one you are in? A. Yes. 
17400. Q. Who is the Manager there? A. Mr. James Thomas. 
17401. Q. Is there any other that you will name at present whmere you are prepared to swear that the 
Manager does not go in as often as once a month ? A. No, I cannot swear unless I work there. 
17402. Q. Do you swear of your own knowledge that the Manager of that mine has not been in once a 
month I A. Of my own knowledge I have not seen him in the mine. 
17403. Q. Is that what your evidence amounts to--that you have not seen him ? A. Certainly. 
17404. Q. Will you swear he has not been in 1 A. He may have been in when I have not been there; but 
I am speaking of the working days of the colliery. 
17405. Q. Will you swear that lie has not been in more than once a month, on the working days of the 
colliery, without you seeing him? A. I will swear that he has not been in my wor]cing place. 
17406. Q. Is that all you will swear? A. Yes. 
17407. AIr. Lysaght.] I heard Mr. Bailey make a statement that certain witnesses had given evidence 
before Judge Fitzhardinge as to certain facts. Perhaps the Commission might think it advisable to have 
before them the reports that were made by the Judge or by the various Commissions that were held. 
There may be a considerable mass of evidence in those inquiries that might support some of the recommen-
dations from the Union ; and I respectfully submit that the Commission could consider it to a certain 
extent as thought that evidence had been given before them on oath. I do not mean to adopt the evidence 
in the same way as the Coroner's depositions have been adopted t  but still to consider it. 
17408. His Honor.] We will leave that an open question,.as to whether we do or do not make use of those 
reports at present. We do not want to overload the Commission. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.] 
AFTERNOON. 
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AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m. Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings.) 

THOMAS COTJLSON was sworn and examined as under :- 

[This witness was called at his own request, and the Commission asked Mr. Bruce Smith, as a matter of 
convenience, to conduct his examination-in-chief.] 

Exam ination- in-chief by Mr. Bruce Smith :-
17410. Q. What is your name? A. Thomas Coulson. 
17411. Q. You wish to give some evidence before this Commission with regard to coal-mining; and you 
were asked to state the nature of the evidence which you wish to give? A. Yes. 
17412. Q. And then you wrote a letter stating that you were rather surprised you should be asked to state 
the nature of your evidence; and you have not stated it? A. I stated that it was on the black-list question. 
17413. Q. You have supplied some notes to Mr. Lysaght on the evidence which you wish to give with 
regard to the twenty recommendations which have been made by the miner's lodges? A. No, sir. 
17414. Q. You have been with Mr. Lysaght since the Court adjourned? A. I have seen him. 
17415, Q. You have spoken to him about the evidence? A. No, nothing at all in connection with my 
evidence. 
17416. Q. Have you not told him of the opinions wideli you have formed with regard to the twenty 
recommendations we were speaking about-have you written no notes as to your evidence? A. No; we 
never spoke about the recommendations ; and I have written no notes upon my evidence. 
17417. His honor.] If Mr. Lysaght has any idea as to what evidence Mr. Coulson is about to give, he 
might be-in his examination. 
17418. dIr. Lysaght.] I protest against Mr. Bruce Smith making any suggestion that I know anything of 
the evidence which Mr. Coulson is likely to give. 
17419. dir. Bruce Smith.] You said so this morning. 
17420. dIr. Ly.saght.] I said that Mr. Coulson had asked me for a copy of the Union Recommendations, and 
that I sent him a copy ; beyond that I said I knew nothing about the witness, and was not prepared to 
undertake his examination. 
17421. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. You have had these twenty recommendations sent to you; and you have prob-
ably thought them out and are prepared to give evidence with regard to them ? A. Yes. 
17422. I/is Honor.] Q. You have formed opinions on them ? A. Yes. 
17423. dIr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Apart from those recommendations, will you  state whit other evidence ycu 
can give to the Commission ? A. Yes. The first thing which I wish to mention to you is alout the Ilack-
list; that is the principal thing. Gentlemen of the Royal Commission, and gentlemen. The evidence I 
came here to give is in connection with the black-list. 1 have heard it said that there is no such thing as a 
black-list in the district. Unfortunately for me, I have had to suffer from it., but not severely. 
17424. Q. Tell us the circumstances connected with it ? A. At the end of the 1891 strike, I was then 
President of the Miners' Association in the southern district ; and after the strike was declared off I tried 
to get work. 
17425. Q. Which strike? A. The 1891 strike-the maritime strike. I tried to get work at all the 
collieries excepting Kenibla. Then I came to Helensburgh; and I happened to have a particular friend of 
mine there ; and I got work. 
17426. Q. What position was your friend in? A. He was underground-manager-Mr. Cooper. There came 
a time when I wished to better my position by going with a mate to look for gold. We got leave from the 
underground-manager to go down to the head Manager, Mr. P. W. Robertson; but he was not at ironic. 
We went away, and we were away three weeks. When I came back I saw the Manager, and lie refused 
to give me work ; but he gave the other man work. I suppose I had said something in some way ; but I 
do not know what I had said. 
17427. Q. You do not know why you were not taken on again ? A. I heard that I had said something at 
a Sydney meeting. 
17428. Q. Have you any reason for supposing that the refusal to put you on was the result of ssniething 
which you said in Sydney. I understand that you left your work and went away for three weeks? A. I 
had permission to go away. 
17429. Q. Had you permission to return to your work? A. Yes. 
17430. Q. You would have permission to come back? A. Yes. 
17431. Q. The other man got hack? A. Yes. 
17432. Q. What did you do after that? A. I can mention other people's cases. There is the care of a man 
named Dryden, who got work at the Metropolitan Colliery. He was at Bulhi making arrange rrrerrts to shrift 
his family out, and he received a telegram saying that they could not employ him, and that he need not shiifL 
17433. Q. What did the telegram say I A. Cannot employ you ; do not remove." I am not sure of it. 
17434. (1. How long was Dryden working in the mine? A. He was not working at all. lb never got 
work. 
17435. Q. In which mine was this? A. In the Metropolitan Colliery. 
17436. Q. Have you any reason for saying that that was in consequence of anything he had done? A. I 
never knew him to do anything. I cannot say what lie did. 
17437. Q. You cannot assign the occurrence to any action on his part. You know that people often intend 
to employ others in business, and find it difficult to do so. It often happens in the complexity of commerce? 
A. Sometimes it does. 
17438. Q. Does it not occur often in business? A. This is not a case of that kind. 
17439. Q. Have you any reason to say that the man had said anything to cause him to be refused? A. I 
do not know what he said. 
17440. Q. You do not know that lie said anything to incur the displecsure of anyone? A. He said a lot of things. 
17441. Q. Did he say these things before he was promised work? A. Before he was promised work ; if be 
did say them. 
17442. Q. Is there any other case you can mention, that is within your own knowledge, in which a black-list 
has been kept? A. That is all I know of my own knowledge ; but I have heard rumours of other cases. 

16825 29--3 X 17443. 



	

	

530 
11'tness-T. Coulson, 17 February, 1003. 

17443. Q. Dryden's case and your own case are inattei's of which you know yourself ? A. Yes. 
17444. Q. Apart from the twenty recommendations, is there anything else which you wish to say anything 
about I A. Yes, about the inspection of mines. 
1744.5. Q. What about that? A. I hold that the inspection of a mine would be better done, if once in every 
six months there was one man appointed from the miners and one man representing the Company. 
17446. Q. In what capacity? A. The Company's representative----say the underground-manager and the 
Government Inspector. 
17447. Q. Yen say the underground-manager, the Government Inspector, and the check-inspector-they 
should do what ? A. Inspect the mine; and the report should be published. 
17448. Q. Should they inspect it together or separately I A. Together. 
17449. Q. And the joint report should be published 1 4. Yes once in six months. 
17450. Q. That is instead of having separate reports, not published I A. Yes so that the men can see 
what the report is, and the public as well. 
17451. Q. Is there anything more you can say with regard to inspection? A. There is one matter which I 
have not noticed in the present Mining Act. We will suppose that a man is working singly at night, and 
he met with some sort of an accident, there is no way of ascertaining whether that man is in the pit or out 
of it. I have known men to be an hour late in coming out. If anything happened to a man, he might lie 
there for hours ; and it might be the means of causing his death. 
17452. Q. It has been suggested, I may tell you, that a number should be given to each man; that he should 
take the number in with him, and that he should hang it on a peg when he comes out, so that, by looking 
at the board, the mining officials will know what numbers are not out of the mine? A. It would not be 
reliable. 
17453. Q. What would you suggest? A. I would suggest that some colliery official should see that all the 
men are out. 
17454. (7. How would you do that? A. They do it in the 01€? country. 
17455. (7. How do they ascertain which men are out of the mine I A. The official in a particular district 
knows every man who comes out. 
17456. Q. Who does 1 A. The man in charge. 
17457. (7. You disapprove of the men having a number, a token ? A. They would be too careless with them. 
17458. Q. Who, the men? A. Yes. 
174.58k. Q. Have you no faith in the men giving assistance in the matter? A. The men have got faith 
enough. 
17459. Q. I am asking you if you have faith in the men. Could you rely on their hanging those tokens on 
the pegs? A. You cannot judge men much. You must lay down the best rules you can to prevent loss of 
property and of life. 
17460. Q. Do you not think that if a man were given a token, and he was required to hang it on a peg, 
that he would do it, and that it would be a guide to the officials of the mine as to what men were out of the 
mine, and what men it might be necessary to look for? A. I thought you meant that they must hang 
up the token at the pit top. 
17461. Q. I mean at some office as they come out of the mine? A. Oh yes, that is right enough; to bring 
them out of the stations, 
17462. Q. Have you anything else. You have stated what you know about a black-list. You see you have 
given me no information; and I cannot ask you questions? A. There is another matter in connection with 
the means of escape from a mine. I think it would be a good idea -[[nterrupted.] 
17463. Q. That is one of the recommendations upon which you will be examined directly. Have you any 
more suggestions to make with regard to the amendment of the mining laws? A. Not that I know of. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght :- 
17464. Q. You said that the man Dryden, whom you mentioned, had taken a prominent pant in union 
affairs? A. Yes, he had been a prominent union man ever since he came to the district. 
17465. Q. You have taken a prominent part in union afikirs yourself? A. Yes. 
17466. Q. Had you any doubt as to why you were refused employment 
17467. Jfr. Bruce Smith] The question is, what evidence has he. 
17468. His Jfonor.] I think it is hardly legitimate for Mr. Lysaght to lead the witness. 
17469. JTft ith . Bruce Sm] The fact that a man has no doubt is no evidence. He may form an opinion on 
the most flimsy evidence. 
17470. Jfr. Lysaght.] Q. Well, whom did you see? A. The Manager. 
17471. Q. What did he say 1 A. We went to his house and I said, "We did not succeed, Mr. Robertson; 
and we have come back to work." He said, " WTell, Coulson, I think it had better stop as it is." That was 
leaving rue without work. I said, "Do not refuse the other man on account of my sins, if I have got any." 
He said, " He can go to work." 
17472. (7. Was any reason given to you? A. I never asked for any reason. 
17473. Q. In the case of Drydemi, do you know why he was not employed? A. No. 
17474. (7. Do you know if a provision in the Coal Mines Act, forbidding the keeping of a blackliJ, and 
forbidding the improper prevention of men getting employment at other colleries, would have a tendency 
to make men report anything which they saw in a colliery. Do you think that the men would regard such a 
provision as a safeguard if they did report defects in the management? A. It would make them more 
secure. They would not expect to be black-listed thea, if they reported anything. 
17475. (7. You said that you had stated something at a meeting in Sydney? A. That is what I said. 
17476. Q. What did you state? A. I spoke about the many accidents that had happened at the colliery. 
17477. Q. At a particular colliery 1 A. Yes. 
17478. J[r. Bruce Smith.] Q. At the particular one at which you were engaged? A. Yes. 
17479. JIr Lysaght.] Q. At the Metropolitan ? A. Yes. 
17480. Q. Did you speak adversely about the management 1 A. It was not the fault of the management. It 
was the fault of the coal, and of having new men at the work. It was a question of the coal falling on the 
men and breaking their legs. 
17481. Q. And you think, therefore, that, because of your statements, the Manager refused to employ you? 
A. I do not blame the Manager-he said it was the Company. He wrote - 17482. 
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17482. Q. What did he write? A. He wrote a letter to the Secretary, and said that it was not he who 
wished to get rid of me, but the Company. 
1748:1. Q. Did you see the letter? A. T saw the Secretary of the Miners' Union and I also saw the letter. 
17484 Mr. Barry.] Q. Did you read it? A. Yes. 
17485. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. That letter was sent by Mr. Robertson? A. I would not swear that now. It is 
nine years ago. It came from the office. 1 would not swear that Mr. Robertson sent the letter. 
17486. Q. When you were refused employment, did you bring the matter before the Miners' Union with a 
view of getting that letter sent? A. No. 
17487. Q. Do you know why it was written A. The Secretary personally interviewed the Manager. It 
was not done officially by the miners. I told them not to bothet about me ; and I went away. 
17488. Q. You say that, in consequence of a personal interview by the Secretary, a letter was sent stating 
that it was not the Manager who objected to you, but the proprietors. Therefore, you are led to believe 
that you were victiniised 
17489. Mr. Barry.1 He did not say that. 
17490. Mc. Lysaght.] Q. Do you say that you were victiiuised 
17491. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I object to that. He has never resorted to any such sensational thing. 
17492. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. It is not sensational. Did you think that it was your part in union affairs that 
prevented your getting employment? A. Yes. 
17493. Mr. Rite/ne.] 9. What do you say about the black-list? A. That is what I take as being victimised. 
17494. Mr. Lysaght.] 9. In the case of Diyden, nb you know that he was for some years unable to get 
employment? A. Yes, I know that he was for a long time unable to obtain employment. 
17495. Q. Do you know he tried at various collieries? A. Yes. 
17496. Q. Now, speaking of these recommendations. I furnished you with a copy of them; but, before 
dealing with this matter, you might tell us what practical experience you have had of mining-how many 
years? A. I have had about twenty years in this Colony. 1 was 24 years of age when I came here ; and I 
was brought up in the mines. 
17497. Q. Taking the whole of the twenty recommendations together, without going  into details for th 
present, do you, as a practical miner, approve of them, or do you take exception to any of them? A. I take 
exception to the recommendation (leahilig with the inspection of the mines. 
17498. Q. You have explained that to Mr. Bruce Smith. Do you approve of the others? A. I do not 
approve of the sealing-off of old workings. I think these places should be open, and should be ventilated 
as far as practicable. They should not be sealed up and left like that, because, when a big fall comes, any 
stoppings which would be put in would he blown out. If the place is ventilated as far as practicable, and 
is examined at different times, I think that is the only thing wanted. 
17499. Q. With that exception, do you approve of the twenty recommendations? A. With regard to the 
use of safety-lamps in mines, I think that the three persons who I have suggested should go round and 
inspect the mine once in every six months, should have the absolute power of saying whether safety-lamps 
should be introduced into a mine or not. 
17500. Q. You would entrust the power of the ordering of safety-lamps to the three persons you have 

d mentioned-the Government Inspector, the undergroun-manager, and the check-inspector? A. Yes. 
17501. 9. Then, with this exception, do you approve of those twenty recommendations? [Yo answer]. 
17502. his honor.] 9. Would you say that any two out of those three gentlemen should have the power of 
making such an order in the case of one disagreeing? A. Yes, any two of them, of course. 
17503. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. I was asking, do you agree generally with these recommendations? A. What I 
wish to explain is this : I consider that the report ought to be made public. That is a vital point to the 
mining community. The men should be able to see the report of the Inspector published from time to 
time, instead of its being put away in the office or somewhere else where you cannot see it. If a report 
about the mine is published every six months, time men and everybody else connected with it would know 
what the place was. 
17504. Q. You are now referring to the report whichi you say should be published every six months. Do 
you also think that the Government Inspector's Report, when lie visits the colliery, should be niade 
available to time miners? A. I consider that it ought to be. 
17505. Q. Following on that suggestion of yours, that any decision of two persons out of the three persons 
you mentioned should be binding as to the introduction of safety-lamps, do you not see that the men and 
the management might not wish for the introduction of such lamps, but that the Government Inspector 
might; and then the decision of the representative of the miners and the representative of the management 
might override that of the Government Inspector ; and thus the mine might have to continue working 
under dangerous conditions? A. They would be to blame then. 
17506. Q. No doubt; but the workmen would be blown up in the meantime? A. But the onus would be 
taken off the Inspector. 
17507. Q. Would it not he better to vest the power of ordering the lamps in the Government Inspector, 
rather than take a risk like that? A. No, I consider not. I think three heads are better than one. 
17508. His 11onor.1  Q. In a case of disagreement it would not be three heads. It would he two heads 
balanced by one. It would come back to one head probably. If two think one way, and one thinks 
another way, it is a balancing power of one only ? A. You would be able to get over that if the reports 
published where the gas had been found, because then the Chief Inspector would have to go to the mine 
and examine it. He is the man who is supposed to have more brains than all the rest; and lie would be 
able to go over the whole of the mine. 
17509. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Would you leave it to the Chief Inspector to (lecide whether or not the lamps 
should be introduced ? A. Why not leave it in the hands of the three persons. 
17510. Q. It is assumed that the District Inspector would refer the matter to the Chief Inspector, and that 
finally his would be the guiding mind t 
17511. Afl. Bruce Smith.] That is the first reading of the reconimenclation that I have heard of in 
that way. 
17512. 1/is 11000?.] It would really come to that. If there was a Chief Inspector, and if the question 
arose, the District Inspector, if called upon to exercise such authority, would leave it in the hands of the 
Chief Inspector. 

17513. 
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17513. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Mr. Atkinson mentioned the Chief Inspector; but Mr. Lysaght never said, 
"He is the man we mean." 
17514. Mr. Lysaght.] The words in the recommendation are "the Inspectors." 
17515. His honor.] It is a matter of detail. If there is a Chief Inspector, he would have the power of 
overruling the decision of the Sub-inspector. 
17516. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think he would, under Mr. Coulson's proposal. 
17517. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Supposing the local Inspector disagreed with the opinion of the miners' 
representative and the owners' representative, would you take that opinion as final; or would you have the 
opinion of the local Inspector, supported by the Chief Inspector 1 J. If the local Inspector satisfied himself 
that there was danger, he would call the attention of the Chief Inspector to it, and he would go there 
and see. 
17518. Q. Would you take the joint opinion of two of these persons against one; or, if the one who 
dissented was the Inspector, would you refuse to take the opinion of the two? And, if the Chief Inspector 
supported the local Inspector, would you accept his view? A. I think that it is only when the local 
Inspector would be in the minority that the Chief Inspector would be called in. 
17519. Q. The Chief Inspector would only be required to express an opinion when the local Inspector 
diff-red from the owners' representative and the miners' representative. In the event of that contingency 
arising, whose opinion would you take as final? A. I would take the opinion of the Government Inspector 
as final. 
17520. Jfr. Robertson.] Q. What would happen if a Manager thought that lamps were necessary, and the 
check-inspector and the Government Inspector thought they were not. Would you override the discretion 
of the Manager? A. It would be just on the same prisciple as the decision of any other question. There 
would he two against one. 
17521. Q. But the Manager is responsible, and the others are irresponsible. I dare say you are aware that 
in one mine there has been a sort of conspiracy going on between the miners and the Manager to thwart 
the Government Inspector on the question of the introduction of safety-lamps, and for a time it has 
succeeded. Now, however, safety lamps are to be used; and this shows the necessity for the safety-lamps 
which the Government Inspector required to be placed in the mine I A. I think that the present Mining 
Act reads that where gas is found in a mine safety-lamps shall be used. 
17522. J[r. Robertson.] No. 
17523. Mr. Ritchie.] It is not compulsory at all. 
17524. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Is it not better that the matter should be referred to arbitration. If there is a 
dispute-if the Inspector requires the introduction of safety-lamps, and the Manager does not agree, then 
the matter can be referred to arbitration as provided for in the Act. This is one of the matters that should 
be settled by arbitration? A. I should prefer the matter to be settled by three conscientious men. I think 
that they should be able to say what ought to be done. 
17525. Q. But there may be a difference of opinion between conscientious men. That is, unless you define 
what is a gassy mine. If you define that, the matter is easy; but that has never been defined yet? 
A. Just so. 
17526. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Are the three persons intended to take the place of the Arbitration Board, and to 
settle the matter themselves? A. That is what it airiounts to. 
17527. ilr. Robertson.] Q. What is the use of multiplying boards, when there is provision for all matters of 
dispute between the Inspectors and the men or the mine-owners to be settled by arbitration I A. I might 
mention that, in the case of Kembla, if there had been an inspection by the men, and by the Government 
Inspector, and the representative of the mine-owners, and they had gone through the whole of the colliery, 
they might have come to the conclusion that there was gas there. 
17528. Mr. Robertson.] That is doubtful. 
17529 .Jfr. Lysaqht. I Q. Upon reflection do you not think that the Inspector ought to be vested with the 
absolute power of ordering the use of safety-lamps as proposed in this recommendation? A. I think I have 
already answered that question. I think that each party ought to have a say in the matter. If the other 
two persons are against the Inspector, it is then for the Chief Inspector to be called in, and to go and 
examine the colliery. 
17530. Q. Mr. Robertson pointed out a case to you in which the Manager might think it necessary to have 
lamps, and the Goverment Inspector and the men's representative might think it unnecessary to have safety-
lamps. And the Manager has the responsibility resting upon him of the safety of the mine-ought he to 
be prevented putting in lamps ? A. The Chief Inspector has the care of the men, and the mine Manager 
the care of the property. 
17531 .3/v. Robertson.] Q. Is not a mine Manager responsible for the lives of the men as well as for the 
property 1 A. Yes. 
175:32. Q. The Manager of a mine is the man directly responsible for human life? A. Yes. 
175:33 .ifr. Lisoy1it.] Q. You see the difficulty ? A. There is a difficulty under the other recommendation too. 
17534. Q. That Recommendation vests the power in the Inspector? A. What about the Manager then. 
17535. If the Manager is willing, then the lamps would he put in the mine I [Yb answer.] 
17536. Mr. Ritchie.] If the Manager wishes the lamps put in, he has the power to put them in. 
17537. Mr. Lysnght.j Yes. 
17538. Mr. Bitehie.1 And if the Inspector wishes to have them, he should have the power of ordering them ? 
17539. Mr. Lmjsiqht.] Yes. 
17.540. Q. If the Manager is willing to put the lamps in the mine, then there is no need of giving the order; 
but if time Manager is not willing, then we say that the Inspector should have the power of ordering the 
lamps. There is therefore no likelihood of the difficulty arising, as under your suggestion. Do you approve 
of this? A. There are difficulties there also. If the Inspector wants to put the lamps in a mine, and the 
Manager says no, what then? 
15541. Q. Then the Manager would have to put them in? [ho answer.] 
17542. his Honor.] It is a relief of responsibility for the Manager; but the lamps would be a charge on 
the proprietor. 
17543. Mr Lysaglit.] Q. It might be a step which the Manager might not want to take. However, I (10 
not think I can carry the matter any further? A. No I think my idea is as good as that in the 
Recommendation. 
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17544. Q. With regard to these reports every six months, you do not intend them to be instead of the other 
reports, as you said in reply to Mr. Smith, but in addition to them? [.No answer.] 
17545. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I did not say that. 
17516. dIr. Lysaykt.] Mr. Bruce Smith suggeeted to the witness that these reports every six months were 
to be instead of any other report-that there should be only one report every six months. 
17547. dIr. Robertson.] That is not what I understood. 
17548. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I did not understand the witness in that way. 
17549. his honor.] The witness did not suggest that the Inspectors should not go round and make their 
reports as usual ; but that an inspect ion should be made every six months by three persons whom he named. 
17550. Mr. Lysayhi.] ilr. Bruce Smith said, "Instead of the other report." 
17531. dIr. Bruce Smith.] I do not think that the Commissioners understood that I said ''instead of the 
other reports." 
17552. Mr Lysag/tt.] Q. With regard to these six-monthly inspections which you suggest_would they be 
in addition to the general inspections which are now made-is it a kind of extra precaution which you 
require? A. Yes. 
17553. Q. These are not to ba the only inspections? A. No, they would be outside the regular inspections. 
That is what the Court understands, 
17554. Mr. Robertson.] That is what the Court does not understand. 
17555. if,. b'ilchie.] The witness has made the matter clear now. 
17556. A[r. Lysaght.] Q. Coming to the question of them tokens. Do you know whether the practice is in 
vogue in any of the southern district collieries? A. They have no tokens on the shift. 
17557. (7. You never heard of it underground 1 A. Not underground. 
17558. (7. In addition to this precaution of having men take tokens, bring them back again, and hang them 
on a nail, you suggest that an officer should wait at the end of a district until every man has come out of 
the pit. What official would you have? A. Time deputy does it in the old country. 
17559. (7. Is that practice adopted universally in England ? A. Yes. 
173130. (7. Where does the deputy wait for the men? A. Every man has to pass where he is waiting on 
the roadway. 
17561. Q. The deputy waits at the end of each shift, for each man to pass by him 1 A. Yes, at the finish 
of the day's work-except the night-shift is on. 
17562. Q. What is the practice in England if a man does not come out-has the deputy to go and seek 
him I A. The deputy has to seek him. 
17563. (7. Is it the rules of the mine? A. It is the custom. 
17564. (7. You made a generil remark that the token system might not be adequate, because the men are 
too careless. I do not think the Commission quite comprehended your meaning. A. From the manner in 
which the other gentleman put the question to me, I thought that the tokens would have to be brought out 
to the top of the mine; but apparently the men would only bring them to the section where the deputies 
were sitting. If the men gave up the tokens there, I do not think there would be any objection. 
17565. Q. You do not suggest, in a matter like this, that the men would be careless? A. No; but if they 
had to keep them until they got to the top of the mine there might be some laxity or confusion. 
17566. Q. Now, with regard to the instructions to the employees on the means of escape_have you any 
suggestions to make as to how that instruction should be given? A. I think that a good plan would be to 
whitewash the travelling roads at every turn. If a man came to a turn, be would see which side was 
vliitewasiied, and would continue along that road. You might think that whitewash would not stand very 

long but it would last three months, or more than that. 
17567. Q. Do I understand you that you want the travelling roads whitewashed, leading out of the mine-
that is, at every turn I A. Yes. 
17568. Q. You think that that would answer the purpose? A. A stranger could easily find his way out 
when he knew the system. 
17569. (). Is there anything further whichyou wish to say with regard to these recommendations? A. No. 

Cross examined by Mr. Barry 

17570. Q. I think you said that you saw the telegram that Dryden received. Can you recall to your mind 
who sent it? A. I cannot swear to the name ; but he told me that it came from the Manager. 
17571. (7. Where was Dryden then? A. At Woonona. 
17572. (7. Where was he working? A. I-lu was not working at all. 
17573. (7. That was nine years ago, you say 1 A. Yes. 
17374. Q. With reference to the suggestion you make to the Court as to the appointment of three 
Inspectors. Suppose two Inspectors agree as to a report, and one disagrees. This report is for the benefit 
of the miners. What would you do with it? A. The report would be published. 
17575. Q. Would you publish each man's views, in the case of a disagreement? A. You would have a 
joint report. And if they found gas they could report on it. 
17576. Q. Supposing the Inspectors difI'ered what would you do in the matter of the report? Would you 
publish the report of the two Inspectors, and not of the one Inspector; or would you publish no report at 
all? 11. Do you mean on the safety-lamp question? 
17577. Q. No. Supposing two Inspectors agree upon certain facts, and the third Inspector does not agree 
upon those facts; the one who might not agree might be the miners' representative; would you have the 
report of the two Inspectors who have agreed published, and not publish the report of the third Inspector 
who (lisagmeet ? A. There could be no disagreement, when all that the Inspectors would have to do would 
be to go round and take the quantity of aim' and report on the mine. 
17578. Q. But supposing they do disagree? have you anything to suggest to the Court as to whether 
separate reports should be published for the benefit of the miners ? A. That is what it would come to. 
17579. Q. And when the reports are published you think that each miner should have a copy ? A. They 
should be published in the local newspaper. 
17580. Q. At whose expense? At the expense of the Government. 
17581. Q. You would not suggest that a pamphlet should be published by the Government and supplied to 
each miner free I A. No. 
17582. Q. You think the report ought to be published in the local papers? A. Yes. 17583. 
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17583. Q. Would you have any suggestion to make with regard to those miners who cannot write or read? 
A. I think that most of the miners can read now. 
17584. Q. With reference to the deputies in the old country, I think you said that it was the practice 
there to see that all the men were out of the district. Can you name some of the collieries where it is the 
practice? it. Yes. - 
17585. Q. What was the practice? J. The deputy would wait at his station until all the men were out of 
the mine. 
17586. Q. What are the names of the collieries? A. Pagebank, Bishop-Midland, and Shotten. 
17587. Q. Are those the only three places where you have worked, where you have had experience of the 
deputies waiting for the men to come out of their districts? A. Yes. 
1758$. Q. Did the deputy see the tokens? A. They cliii not have any tokens. 
17589. Q. Do you propose to dispense with tokens altogether I A. I did not know there were any tokens 
in use. 
17590. Q. I understood that it was the practice in the southern mines? [iVo answer.] 
17591. Mi, Lysaght.] Only in a few mines. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson :- 

17592. Q. This is the second Royal Commission, I think, at which you have had your little grievances 
aired 1 A. Do you say the second Commission? 
17593. Q. Yes? A. This is the first Commission I have ever been before. 
17594. A. Do you not remember that at Judge Rogers' Commission there was an attempt by Mr. Curley 
to have your grievance taken up by the Commission? A. I do not i-emember it. 
17595. Q. You do not know what decision the Commission came to? A. I do not know that Mr. Curley 
mentioned the matter to me. 
17596. Q. He did bring it before them; but the Commission decided that it was too childish a matter to 
go into 1 A. I did not know. 
17.597. Q. Now what were you doing at this time ? A. Working at Clifton. 
17598. Q. Working? A. No. 
17599. Q. Had you not been on strike for nine or ten months? A. Yes. 
17600. Q. You were a prominent man-one of the leaders-chairman of the disttict, and so on? A. Yes. 
17601. Q. Are you not aware that there were other prominent men, in connection with the coal strike, who 
were employed at the mine at that time ? A. I do not catch that question. 
17602. Q. You are aware that men who had taken part in the strike were employed by me at the same 
time? A. There were some people employed there, and so was I. 
17603. Q. Now, when you left to go to this gold claim, I was not there, and you did not have leave of 
absence from me I A. That is right. 
17604. Q. Or from the Manager? A. Yes, I had from the underground-manager. 
17605. Q. You know the underground-manager has no power to grant leave for an indefinite period? 
A. I do not know that. I thought he was acting Manager when you were away. 
17606. Q. You know that I was only away for a day? A. I do not know how long you were away. 
17607. Q. You know that the unclergrou nd-manager has no right to grant leave of absence; and, besides, 
you exceeded your leave? it. So did the other man. 
17608. Q. At that time was not the work very slack? A. It was not very brisk. 
17609. Q. You take exception to a Manager's exercising his option as to whom he shall employ 1 A. I think 
that each man should have his share of the work that is going on. 
17610. Q. Having been granted leave of absence, and having exceeded it, you thought that you had a right 
to come back whenever you thought fit? A. I did not exceed the leave of absence asked for from the 
under-manager. 
17611. Q. I can only tell you what he reported to me? A. I told him that we did not know how long we 
should he ; we might be three months, or we might he more. 
17612. Q. Then there was an indefinite leave of absence? You might have remained away permanently? 
A. You said that we overstepped the leave of absence. 
17613. Q. You might have been away altogether if the gold claim had turned out good? A. We would 
have been there yet if the gold claim had turned out good. 
17614. Q. You take exception to a Manager's exercising his discretion as to whom he shall employ ? A. I 
take exception in a case like that, when you employ one man and let the other go. 
17615. Q. Then you claim to have a permanent cavil at each colliery at which you are employed? A. If 
you had served both alike it would not have been so bail. It was only because I said something against 
the colliery. 
17616. Q. How do you know that? A. I surmised it. 
17617. Q. It is mere suspicion? A. Yes. 
1761$. Q. You come here to give evidence under the heading of a black-list? A. Yes. 
17619. Q. I would like you to explain what evidence there is here relating to any black-list ? A. It all 
depends. You may think there is no evidence; but I think there is ample evidence. 
17620. Q. What do you think? A. I think it is ample evidence. I say that your under-manager promised 
me leave of absence, and said that when I came back there would be work for me. But when I came back 
you refused to employ me. 
17621. Q. What suggestion do you make? Would it be because of your position as a prominent union 
man ? it. It might be my inferior workmanship for all I know. 
17622. Q. Now, let us confine the charge to a black-list? A. It looks like a black-list. 
17623. Q. What is a black-list? A. A man who loses employment because he is doing all that he can to 
try and help his fellow-workmen. 
17624. Q. You mean because he is a union official, and because he has been orating at meetings? A. That 
is right. 
17625. Q. I suppose you know that there have been a great many union officials employed at the Metropolitan 
Colliery for years? A. Yes. 
17626. Q. Men who have taken a very prominent part in union affairs -? A. Yes; and there are some of 
them who wanted to get employment again, and who could not. 17627. 
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177. Q. The fact of your having been employed after having been on strike for ten months, at an adjoining 
colliery, does not show any ill-feeling on the part of the Manager of the Metropolitan Colliery to union 
officials? [No answer.] 
17628. Q. Now, that is easy to answer? A. That question might be answered iii two ways. I did not 
happen to ask you for work. That might be the answer. 
17629. Q. But the Manager was supreme? A. Of course he is, I know that. 
17630. Q. Did you ever hear of any union official employed at the Metropolitan Colliery who was not 
afforded the utmost courtesy and consideration? A. I was until that time. 
17631. Q. And yet you come here and charge me with being privy to a system of black-listing. If you 
could show me where there is any evidence of black-listing, I should feel obliged? A. You must have had 
a reason for refusing me work, and at the same time giving it to another man. 
17632. Q. I would not mind stating my reasons. I may say that it is your unfortunate manner, and not 
on account of any connection which you have with trades-union affairs. I do not mind stating publicly 
that I never regretted the step I took. I am satisfied that it was in the interests, not only of the owners, 
but of the miners. 
17633. Q. Now, supposing there was a provision made by Act of Parliament to prevent black-listing--how 
do you think it would help you or any prominent union men? How would it help you to get employment? 
A. I do not suppose it would help me very much at present. 
17634. Q. Do you not think that any Manager would form his own opinions; because no Act of Parliament 
could prevent a Manager refusing men employment? A. You could not make a Manager employ men if he 
did not wish to employ them. 
17635. Q. Do you not see that an Act of Parliament would be useless ? A. I said nothing about an Act of 
Parliament. 
17636. Q. There is a provision here, in one of these recommendations, that some regulation should be made 
in future legislation to protect workmen from the effects of a black list ; but at the present moment you 
have not a tittle of evidence to show that a black-list ever existed. Even on the assumption that it does 
exist, how can legislation help the workmen in that way. A. Legislation can do a great many things, if it 
is brought properly into action. 
17637. 9. Would legislation have forced me, or any other Manager, to employ you after the Coalcliff 
strike? A. That was no more than any other strike. Simply because a man t-ikes a leading position in 
a strike, is he to get no more work? 
17638. 9. I ask you to show me how legislation can help you to obtain employment if the Manager does 
not think fit to employ you? A. You will have to wait until the Bill is brought in, and see the lines laid 
down. The meaning is to prevent anything of the kind occurring again. 
17639. Q. How will it help you more in the future than in the past? A. If a man reports anything about 
a mine now, the officials take some opportunity to get rid of him, and that wants to be stopped. 
17640. Q. Do you think any man who reports anything at the Metropolitan Colliery would he sent away? 
A. I think so ; but I have no evidence to bear it out. What I &iid in Sydney is what the whole of the 
disagreement was about. 
17641. Q. According to your own account, you said nothing in Sydney that reflected on the Manager? A. It 
did not reflect on the Manager. It was the dangerous work at the time that was causing the accidents. 
17642. Q. What grounds have you for saying that anyone who reports any trouble in the Metropolitan 
i\Iine would be punished? A. I think that there is good reason for saying that. 
17643. Q. With regard to this suggestion of yours as to ascertaining whether men have been left in the 
mine, and whether they might be injured-you have never heard of any such case 1 ii. Any such case 
as what? 
17644. Q. As to a man's having been left behind in a mine? A. Not injured but it is a safeguard, which 
ought to be taken with a view of preventing anything of the kind happening. I have known men to be an 
hour and a half behind their time for coming out. There might he something wrong with them, or not. 
17645. Q. There are 500,000 or 600,000 men employed in the British coal-fields-not to speak of our own 
experience here for many years, and such a thing has never happened,as a man having been left behind injured. 
Do you think it necessary to have special legislation involving some trouble and expense to meet such a 
remote contingency? A. I think it is necessary to see that every man is taken out of the mine. If you 
lose only one man, that is one man's life gone for the sake of only a few pance. 
17646. Q. You say that it is customary in the collieries in England for the deputies to wait behind to see 
the men out of their place ? A. Yes. 
17647. 9. What time do the men go into the face in the old country ? A. Six o'clock. 
17648. 9. Then the deputies could not wait until the men came out of the mine ? A. There are two shifts 
of them. 
17649. 9. That would require two shifts of deputies? A. It would only require one man to see that the 
whole of the men were out. 
17650. Q. The deputies would have to be in the mine three hours before the men began work, and remain 
there until all the men came out of the mine : could they do that 1 A. I do not think it likely. 
17651. Q. As to the token system-you say yourself that the men would be negligent, and they would pass 
the board and forget to hang up the token? A. They might do it. 
17652. Q. Is that not human nature-without imputing any design on their part of course? A. I think 
they would hang up the token, if they were required to do so immediately they left the face, say in the first 
section they came to. 
17653. Q. Then, if they did not, time officials would become alarmed, and would be sent on a wild goose 
chase searching for men who might be comfortably at home? A. Well, in the old country the deputies see 
that the men are out of the mine. 
17654 Q. I do not remember it at all. I have had considerable experience in North Wales and in Scotland; 
and I never heard of it. In the case of men working with safety-lamps, would not the requirement be met 
by the men handing in their lamps? A. You see it would be 9 or 10 o'clock before the lamp man would 
find out that he was short. 
17655. Q. In a mine where the lamps are handed to a responsible official, he would find out in a little time 
whether any were missing? A. He would be a couple of hours, I suppose. 

17656. 
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17656. Q. Coming to this joint inspection on the part of the Government Inspector, the check-inspector, 
and the representative of the Company-what have you in your mind? Would they inquire into cases of 
gas, or any other matters A. They would inquire into everything connected with the mine. 
17657. Q. Why do you mention the under-manager specially? A. It has always been the custom for tie 
under-manager to go round with the Inspector. 
17658. Q. In an important matter like this, should not the Manager go round A. What I mean is the 
representative of the Company-the highest offlcal you have, 
17659. Q. Would you give this trio of inspectors power to decide what method of working should be adopted? 
A. No. 
17660. Q. Then what is it you want? A. The inspection would show to the public and the workmen the 
condition of the mine, the quantity of air which was circulating, and the general safety of the mine. 
17661. Q. If the safety of the mine, in the opinion of these three men, depended upon another system of 
working being adopted, they would decide that. A decision is to be arrived at by two votes out of the 
three. Suppose the check-inspector and the Government Inspector decided that another system of working 
ought to be adopted, would you give those two men the right to say how the mine should be woi ked ? 
A. No, What I mean is this : The Government Inspector now generally goes round, accompanied by some 
official of the mine. Why not let the other sect-ion be represented in the inspection, by a representative 
of the workmen going round also, and the report be made public. 
17662. Q. What is to come after the report? A. If the mine is satisfactory, nothing more is needed. 
17663. Q. Suppose, in the opinion of the Government Inspector and the Chief Inspector, it is not satis-
factory ? The Mining Act will provide for the rest-that is, if the mine is not in the condition it 
should be. 
1766 t. Q. Would you have the matter referred to a Board of Arbitration. I may say that according to 
the present Act there is no power to refer such a matter as that of the safety-lamps to arbitration. The 
Inspector has not that power. Should this joint report be referred to thbitration at the instance of any 
one of the persons who inspect the mine, or at the instance of any two out of those three persons ? 
A. I hardly think there would be any necessity to refer any matter to arbitration. There would be no 
necessity, as long as the mine was in working condition-there would be nothing to arbitrate on. 
17665. But suppose in the opinion of two out of the three Inspectors the mine was not in a safe condition? 
A. Because of gas. 
17666. Q. Because of anything. You see there might be a difference of opinion. The safety of a mine is a 
matter on which there may be a difference of opinion-and there may be honest difference of opinion? 
A. The three representatives inspecting the mine is a step towards arbitration. 
17667. Q. You would not constitute the three representatives a final Court of Appeal to decide any question 
as to the management of the mine ? A. No. 
17668. Q. I mean as to the working of the mine A. My idea is for the three representatives to inspect 
the mine, and to have their report on it published. The Mining Act deals with the rest-or the Chief 
Inspector would (Teal with it. 
17669. Q. At present the Mining Act could not fellow up a report of that kind, unless there was something 
in it not specifically provided for in the Act? A. You would have to constitute a new hoard. 
17670. Q. As to the other matter, the providing of means of escape. You suggest whitewashing at every 
turn in the travelling road. I may say this, that it is the only sensible plan that has yet been suggested, 
and the only practical plan, and I entirely agree with it? A. Just so. 

Examined by iIr. Ritchie 

17671. Q. I understand that the joint inspection you propose should take place every six months? A. Yes, 
I mentioned every six months. 
17672. Q. Do you not tinuk that it is a bad principle to have any particular time fixed for an inspection? 
A. When I thought of the matter first., I did not mean to name any time. It might be better to leave the 
date open. 
17673. Q. Is there not a suspicion that mining mana;ers prepare specially for an inspection, when they 
know that the Inspector is coming I A. Not that I know of. 
17674. Q. Your idea is that this inspection should be made when the mine is running in its normal state, 
and not when it has been specially prepared ? A. Yes. 
17675. Q. Would it not be better to have the inspection at regular, instead of Ihed, periods, and without 
any notice, excepting to say that the Inspector will be there in two or three days? A. That would be 
better than naming a time. 
17676. Q. Supposing that the joint inspection was to be arranged so that the Government Inspector could 
notify the Mining Inspector, the Manager's representative, and the miners' representative, that the 
inspection would take place in say three days time? A. Yes ; that would do. 
17677. Q. Do I understand you to mean that the inspection shall be a complete and thorough one? A. A 
complete inspection of the whole mine. 
17678. Q. I take it that that would embrace all the waste workings that could possibly be reached? 
A. Yes. 
17679. Q. And also the abandoned places? A. Yes. 
17680. Q. Every available part of the mine? A. Yes. 
17681. Q. Do you suggest that the most up-to date appliances should be used on that occasion-such as the 
hydrogen lamp for testing for gas ? A. I am not well versed in that particular lamp. 
17682. Q. Do you suggest that the party making the inspection should be equipped with the best 
appliances? A. They should be equipped with the best appliances that could be got. 
17683. Q. I want to know something about this black-listing matter you talk of. I understand you to say 
that you were black-listed and victimised, because of something you said at a meeting? A. That is what I 
have heard since. It is only rumour. 
17684. Q. Was this meeting, which you addressed in Sydney, a meeting held at the time of the strike? 
A. Yes. The Metropolitan Colliery was out on strike. 
17685. Q. Will you tell us as nearly as you can what the expressions were you made use of? A. I gave 
the amount of money which we were paying away fortnightly for accidents. 

17686. 
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17686. Q. You gave information concerning the amount of money you were paying away towards the 
support of those who had been maimed in the mine-at which mine? A. At the Metropolitan Colliery. 

17687. Q. Is that all you did? A. Yes. 
17688. Q. Subsequent to addressing that meeting, did you work at the Metropolitan Colliery? A. Yes. 

17689. Q. Did the settlement of the strike bring with it the decision that all the men were to go back in 
a body? A. Yes, we all went back. 
17690. Q. There was no necessity for you to apply personally? A. I went to work afterwards. 
17691. Q. With the body of men? A. Yes. 
17692. Q. How long was it, before you went to the gold claim you spoke of, that you asked for leave to 
go? A. Three or four months. 
17693. Q. Three or four months before you went? A. It was three or four months after the strike that I 
went away. 
17694. Q. You applied to the under-manager for extended leave? A. Yes. 
17695. Q. How ]on- before you left? A. Only a (lay or two before I left. The Manager was away at the 
time. 
17696. Q. The whole of the time? A. Yes. 
17697. Q. When you made application? A. Yes. 
17698. Q. When you left? A. Yes. I think I made application on a Fridayand went away on a Monday. 
17699. Q. Did the under-manager say it would be subject to the approval of the Manager? A. No. 
17700. Q. He made no qualifications? A. None whatever. 
17701. Q. Do you know that other men were being employed apart from your mate; whilst you were 
ref used employment? A. There were only the two of us together. 
17702. Q. When you were refused re-employment? A. There were only the two of us together when we 
went to ask for work. 
17703. Mr. Robertson.] I have already stated that I would exercise my option as to whom I would employ; 
and I see no necessity to pursue this matter further. 
17704. Mr. Ritchie.] I do not wish to offend my friend. 
17705. Mr. Robertson.] This is the second Commission at which this matter has come up. I have already 
said that I would exercise my option as to whom I would employ. 
17706. Mr. Ritchie.] The matter is here before us now; and I want to get at the facts. 
17707. Mr. Robertson.] I have told Coulson the reason why I did not employ him. 
17708. Mr. Ritchie.] If you would allow the witness to answer questions, it would be much better. I 
want to know whether the witness has any reason for knowing whether other men were being employed at 
the mine whilst lie was refused work. 
17709. Q. Were other men being employed apart from your mate? A. Ys. 
17710. Q. You have given us the reason why you think you were black-listed? A. Yes. 
17711. Q. Do you think it would be necessary to instruct employees on the means of escape, if your proposal 
to whitewash the travelling roads at every turn was adopted? A. I think the whitewash would be a 
sufficient indication to any man-lie could not get very far wrong. 
17712. Q. The only tlusig would be to follow the white arrows, or any other indications which might be 
put up. 

ALFRED AShLEY ATKINSON, who had been previously sworn, was called, and further examined, 
as under:- 

Re-examined by Mr. Ritcliie :- 

17713. Q. I think you said yesterday, as a matter of fact., that there has been objection raised by the 
Managers and the miners to the introduction of safety-lamps 1 A. Yes. 
17714. Q. Can you tell us of any cases that have come under your notice where this objection has been 
raised, either by the miners or by the Managers? A. Yes, at the Burwood, the Seam, the South 
Clifton - 
17715. Q. Just tell us who were the parties who objected? A. At Burwood, both parties; at Seaham, 
both parties; at South Clifton-I have had no correspondence from the men ; but the management 
objected ; at Bulli, both sides ; at Brown's, and at the Duckenfleld's the management have objected ; at 
West Walisend, the management have objected ; but I think they intend to introduce safety-lamps ; at 
Seddon's Teralba, the management have objected ; and at Mount Keira the management have objected; but 
they intend to put in safety- lamps. 
17716. Q. Does that exhaust the list? A. Yes, of objections. 
17717. 0. Have you any list of places where the miners have desired safety-lamps to be brought into 
use 
17718. Mr. Bruce Smith.1 Do you mean since the Kemb'a disaster, or before it? 
17719. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. At any time? A. I do not remember. I do not think there is any official 
cominunicatioim from the miners asking that lamps shall be used. 
17720. Q. Then in the niajority of cases the objection has come from the Managers? A. \Ve have 
correspondence with the Managers on this question; and in that way we have definite objections. 
17721. Q. Are there any collieries, besides those two which you mentioned, where they intend to put in 
safety-lamps, but where flare-lamps are still in use-am I right in supposing that you have requested safety-
lamps to be used there? A. Yes. But flare-lamps are still in use. 
17722. Q. You told us of two? A. There are Brown's, and Duckenfield, the West Wallsend-e.xcepting 
some men working in pillars, Teralba-and I forgot to mention Waratah. 
17723. Q. Who ohjected in the Waratab mine? A. The Management. They also intend to used safety-
lamps; but they are only using them now in certain parts of the colliery. 
17724. Q. Ain I to understand that they notified you to this effect? A. It is not sufficiently distinct to 
state that. 
17725. You have corresponded with them, and believe they intend to do so? A. Yes. 
17726. Q. Are there any other collieries where flare-lights are in use? A. Mount Keira. 
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17727. Q. They are going to adopt them there? A. They are using the naked lights there; but they are 
going to use safety-lamps; and then there is Mount Pleasant, with the exception of some work going on iti 
some pillars. 
17728, Q. These are all collieries where the Department has requested the use of safety-lamps, but so far 
the request has not been complied with? A. To some extent it cannot be complied with, owing to their 
being unable to get lamps. 
17729. Q. They have placed that before you as a reason? A. Yes, several of them have. 
17730. Q. Are there some mines which defy the Department, without any excuse? A. Yes, there are some 
who say that they will not use safety-lamps. 
17731. Q. Can you give us the names of those? A. There is Brown's, Duckenfield, and Seddon's Teralba. 
I think they are the only three who have refused. 
17732. AIr. Barry.] Q. Is not Brown's and Duckenfield one and the same? A. No, the Duckenfield is a 
separate colliery. 
17733. Q. I understand that you do not consider it necessary to have cutthroughs at any regular distances; 
A. That is my evidence. 
17734. Q. Do you think that it should be required that a mine should provide wooden brattice after a 
certain distance from a cut through, instead of canvas? A. Not so long as the air is carried to the face by 
the ordinary brattice. 
17735. Q. I suppose you have observed, where canvas sagged very much, it did not serve its purpose where 
it is put up for long lengths? A. I have sometimes seen brattice which has not been fixed UI)  properly ; but 
with reasonable care I think the air would be carried to the face. 'Wooden brattice would also be liable to 
derangement. 
17736. Q. If tongued and grooved boards were erected, would there be the same likelihood of derangement 
as with canvas? A. I have never heard of tongued and grooved boards being used. 
17737. Q. What sort of boards have you heard of or seen ? A. Ordinary i  inch deal. 
17738. Q. Lining boirds ? A. I do not know how you describe them ; but they are not tongued and 
grooved. 
17739. His Jfonon] Q. Do they overlap? A. No. 
17749. Q. I mean chamfered? 1. No. 
17741. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. But they overlap them when they put them up, so as to prevent the escape of air? 
A. That is the intention. 
17742. Q. Do I understand you to say that they would be as likely to become deranged as canvas? 
A. Perhaps not so likely. 
17743. Q. Do you hold the opinion that ventilation can be carried as well with canvas as with wooden 
boards? A. I think the canvas affords a little more opportunity for leakage than the boards, supposing both 
are carefully put up. 
17744. Q. You consider that, if both are carefully put up, wooden brattice would be more efficient? 
A. Yes. 
17745. Q. We have heard soinetlung said about its being necessary for a certain amount of ventilation to 
escape into the other workings. I suppose that could be done by regulators, and that then you could allow 
the exact quantity to escape 1 A. I do not think there would be any necessity to regulate it. The air 
would either be going up the intake or coming back behind the brattice. 
17746. Q. Did you state that it was necessary that a certain amount of air should escape through the canvas? 
A. I do not remember. 
17747. Q. Then, where canvas is used, it is not necessary for any air to escape-it should all be conveyed 
to the working faces? A. It is impossible to convey it. 
17748. Q. How is that? A. A certain amount will always escape, whether you use wooden or canvas 
brattice. 
17749. Q. Do you think it is possible, with canvas, that the whole of the air intended for a certain face may 
escape before it gets to the face at all ? A. If the canvas has very large holes in it, and is unfit for the 
purpose for which it is used, and is slovenly put up, in that case, the greater portion of the air will escape. 
17750. Q. After all, I may take your opinion on this matter to be, that, of the two systems of carrying 
ventilation in mines, wooden brattice is most effective? A. Yes. 
17751. Q. In view of your statement that wooden brattice is more effective, and in view of the complaints 
that canvas brattice sags, do you not think that in the case of long- lengths it 'would be better to make the 
mine officials use the most effective means of carrying the air? A. If there is any difficulty in getting the 
necessary ventilation by using the ordinary canvas brattice, then I think wooden brattice might be resorted 
to; but I do not think it is necessary to make a i'egulation making it compulsory. 
17752. Q. Have you not heard of complaints where long lengths of canvas are used; and do you know of 
wooden brattice being used here? A. Yes, in the A. A. Company's Sea Pit. 
17753. Q. Is that the only one? A. As far as 1 know at present. 
17754. Q. With these complaints, and also with the fact that long lengths are being worked without 
cut-throughs, still no wooden brattice is being used elsewhei'e? A. No. 
17755. Q. Do you take that as all indication that, if the matter is left to the management, no wooden 
brattice will be used? A. I think that if the management were convinced that wooden brattice was more 
effective, and not more costly, the probability is they might try it. 
17756. his honor.] Q. It is more costly is it not? A. I think the expel-ience of the A. A. Company is, 
that over a period, the wooden brattice is no more costly than the canvas brattice. 
17757. Q. Because it is more durable? A. They can use it more frequently. 
17758. Q. It would involve the use of a good many more studs or posts? A. The wooden brattice is 
fastened on to the props. 
17759. Q. But the props must be at a more regular distance than for ordinary canvas? A. I do not think so. 
17760. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. The wooden brattice is kept in separate lengths like shutters? A. Yes. 
17761. Q. So that it can be taken down and handled without any great amount of labour? A. Yes. 
17762. Q. Now, in connection with measuring the air in a mine, can you suggest any clear means of 
measuring nearer the face than the plan generally adopted, in order to ascertain if the quantity of air set 
down by law is coming into the pit? A. Do you mean, if the measurements are taken at the split. 
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17763. Q. I suppose you know that split measurements are taken a long way from the face—sometimes 
half-a-mile? A. Sometimes. 
17764. Q. Do you suggest any way of taking the measurement closer? A. In cases where there is any 
doubt about the necessary quantity of air being supplied to the men the measurement can, as I have 
already said, he taken close to the commencement of the split, on the intake side—and possibly in the 
middle of the split, or after it has left the last man in the split. Beyond that I have no suggestions to 
offer. 

[The Commission, at 4 adjourned until 1145 a.m. the following day.] 

JVEDNESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY, 1903, 1145 am. 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlinghurst.] 

2rcut : - 
C. F. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 

P. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., CoasiIssIoNEa. I D. RITCHIE, EsQ., C0MMISSI0NEE. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Cluef Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, S licitor, appeared on behalf of— 
the representatives of deceased micra, wheelers, &c., (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kenihia Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) ; and 
the I liawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miicrs' Union). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. C. J. Barry, was present on behalf of the Mount 
Kembla Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of the Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garliek, Secretary to the Conunission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

Mr. WILLIAM BOWER was sworn, and examined, as under 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght :- 
17765. Q. What is your name? A. William Bower. 
17765. Q. What are you? A. I am a miner, and District Check-Inspector for the Colliery Employees' 
Federation, at Newcastle, at the present time. 
17766. Q. And you are deputed by the Colliery Employees' Federation of the Northern district to give 
evidence in support of certain recommendations? A. Yes, that is so. 
17767. Q. What mining experience have you had? A. I have had about thirty five years' experience as a 
coal-miner. - 
17768. Q. And where was that experience gained? A. Principally in the Newcastle district. 
17769. Q. Now, dealing with the recommendations from the Ihlawarra district, the first one is, "Managers, 
uncler-nianagers, deputies, and shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by examination, and to have 
had five years' practical mining experience, before being eligible for respective positions." Would Your 
Honor permit Mr. Bower to offer to any notes he may have on this matter. 
17770. His Jfonor] Yes. 
17771. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Notes made by himself. 
17772. Lysagit.] Yes. - 
17773. Q. What (10 you say regarding Recommendation No. 1 ? A. Managers and under-managers certainly 
have to have certificates now ; but deputies and shot-firers have not. I consider that deputies should have 
some qualification beyond simply five years' experience, for the simile  reason that they ought to have some 
knowledge of the gases of a mine, and the gases likely to be met nmith in coal-mines; and they should have 
general experience in mining, as well as experience of actual coal-getting—a matter of simly five y€ars at 
the face would not be sufficient experience. - 
17774. Q. It has been suggested that the employment of deputies should be left to the discretion of the 
Manager—can you give any instances of your own knowledge where deputies without any mining experience 
at all have been employed 1 A. Practically speaking, yes I have known men come straight from the bush, 
from farming or something like that, to coal-mining, to do a ]ittle shift work, and gradually in the course of 
a few years get the responsible position of a deputy. 
17775. Q. Were those cases in the Newcastle district? A. Yes. 
17776. Q. In your opinion, is it safe or wise to trust the discretion of a Manager exclusively in the selection 
of a deputy without any certificate of his competency? A. I would put it this way : that Managers are very 
human, after all, and a little bit of influence or relationship may cause them to push a man faster forvarc1 
than lie would go under ordinary circumstances. 
17777. Q. Now, you are aware that cem-tain Managers and under-managers hold what are termed service 
certificates? A. Yes; there are a considerable number, I believe. 
17778. Q. In your opinion, is it wise and expedient that persons only holding service certificates should not 
be eligible to continue in their positions, or to be appointed to the position of Manager, or under-manager? 
A. In many cases, yes; but in a good many cases, no, for this reason: that there are a considerable number 
of men with respect to whom it is very doubtful if they had the requisite qualifications when they got the 
service certificates. However, they got them ; and certainly there are a good many of those men held in 
contempt to day by the workmen, although they hold the position of Managers. It is very doubtful if the 
intention of the Act was not frustrated in some way by the method of its administration. 
17779. Q. That being so, (10 you think that sonic steps should be taken for persons holding service certificates 
who are now actually managing collieries to be called upon to give some evidence of their capacity? A. That 
is the opinion of my Board in the Newcastle district. 
17780. Mr. Bruce Smith.] is it his own opinion? 17781. 
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17781. Air. Lyse1it.] Q. What does the Board of the Newcastle district represent., in point of numbers? 
A. Between 5,000 and 6,000. 
17782. Q. Now, I presume your remarks applied to the shot-firers as well as to the deputies? A. It is 
certainly necessary that a man should have some experience of how to charge these explosives. It would 
not do to turn anybody loose in a mine and to let him fire shots. 
17783. Q. And do you know that there are shot-firers appointed who, in your opinion, are not competent 
shot-firers, and are persons whom it is not advisable to trust with such a josition? A. Not of my own 
knowledge ; because it is only very lately in the Newcastle district that shot-firers have been employed; 
and, as a rule, those that I have met are men of experience but still the same remarks that apply to 
deputies would apply here too; a man might be put on, but not have the necessary experience, for the 
same reasons. 
17784. Q. Is there anything else you wish to say on Recommendation No. 1? A. No. 
17785. Q. Now, Recommendation No. 2—" Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to order use of 
safety-lamps." What do you say upon that? A. I do not think so. I think it is a matter that should be 
referred to some competent authority to deal with, an independent tribunal of some kind, because, 
undoubtedly, it would cause a lot of friction, and has caused a lot of friction already, to my knowledge. I 
think it would be a good deal better, probably, if the arbitration clauses of the Act were used. 
17786. Q. I will real to you the modification suggested by Chief Inspector Atkinson—" I would propose 
that the Chief Inspector should have power to enforce the use of safety-lamps; subject, however, to 
arbitration, as provided by the Coal Mines Regulation Act, section 25." Does that amended suggestion 
meet with your approval ? A. Yes, that fairly represents it. 
11787. Q. And, pending the determination of the Arbitration Court on the question, what would you 
suggest A. I would suggest a conference between the representatives of the three parties interested, first. 
That could be done immediately; in fact it has been done already; because I have been at a conference of 
that kind before. 
17788. Q. And has that proved satisfactory? A. It resulted in the lamps going into Seaham, finally; 
within some fortnight or three weeks. 
17789. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Do you say that the lamps were put into Seaham within a fortnight of Mr. 
Atkinson's request? A. No, I said some fortnight or three w€eks after a conference took place between 
Mr. Humble, the local check inspectors, and the Manager. 
17790. Q. Was that the first conference that was held? A. The first that the miners were represented at, 
that I am aware of. We asked for a conference ; and Mr. Humble met us at the colliery office, along with 
the Manager. 
17791. A. But had not the miners raised objections long before? A. I believe the Manager bad raised 
objections long before. 
17792. Q. But had the Manager and the miners not raised objections long before this conference? 
A. Certainly; the miners held this view, that there was no necessity for the lamps to be put into Seaham. 
17793. Air. Lysaglit.] Q. The Chief Inspector suggested that, pending the finding of this Arbitration Board, 
the Manager should put in safety-lamps__do you approve of that? A. Scarcely, for the simple reason that 
the impression in the northern district is that Mr. Atkinson would have safety-lamps in every mine in the 
northern district almost immediately, if lie had his way. That is the general impression, there is no doubt 
about that, whether right or wrong. 
17794. Q. Then you do not approvd of the Chief Inspector having the power to compel the Manager to put 
the lamps in pending arbitration? A. Absolutely no. 
17795. Q. Do you think that the Conference would be an effective way? A. I think so. I think the 
Inspector, in that case, would have full opportunity of putting his views before the men; and I do not think 
that the men are unreasonable—I have found them reasonable always, if the case is put reasonably before 
them. They are the parties that will suflèr; and surely it is not reasonable to suppose that they would 
resist lamps being put in if they thought their lives were likely to be risked through the lamps not being 
put in. 
17796. Q. Recommendation No. 3—" Ventilation by furnace prohibited ; and fans substituted." What do 
you say in support of that? A. I am decidedly in favour of doing away with the furnaces, and of fans being 
substituted. 
17797. Q. have you anything in particular to say upon that? A. There is always this danger, at any rate, 
that, if an explosion took place, the ventilating appliances, as represented by a furnace, might be completely 
destroyed; and it would cause a great deal more risk for rescue work afterwards; besides, a furnace, in no 
case that ever I have found, is as regular in its work as a fan. It is not so reliable. It depends entirely 
on the hard work of one or two men, generally one, to keep it going; and they are working as a rule in 
foul air ; and men are not able to keep the strain up, and they do not try to. I have known an instance, 
in Wallsend Colliery myself, where I found a furnace drawing a current of only 50,000 feet of air; and 
that furnace, if kept going, was able to keep up 150,000 feet. 
17798. Q. Was that during one of your check inspections? A. Yes. Of course the furnace-man said it was 
not a fair catch; but the fact remains that no single man could do the work to keep it going up to near its 
en axirnu m. 
17799. Q. Is that a recent illustration? A. I would say it was a couple of years ago, or more, perhaps. 
17800. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. What do you mean when you say the furnace-man said it was not a fair test ? 
A. We caught him at his usual. He had not got any notification that we were likely to drop on 
to him. 
17801. Q. Do I understand you to mean that you caught him at the normal state of ventilation? 
17802. Air. Bruce Smith.] It may have meant that he caught him at an abnormal state ; that it was 
not fair. 
17803. Witness.] The normal condition of that furnace was about 100,000 feet. That is what it was 
supposed to do usually, from 90,000 to 100,000 feet; and we found it at about 50,000 feet that day. 
17804. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. And all the men employed at the colliery were then at their ordinary work? 
A. Not all of them ; but the majority of them were. 
17805. Q. Was there any explanation given for the small amount of ventilation, except that it was not a 
fair catch? A. No. We understood the thing. We did not press it. 
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17806. Q. Do I understand, from what you remark, that, when you do go to make these check-inspections, 
preparations are made for you A. I would not say that, because the same tiung would apply to the 
Government Inspector; because no Inspector can get near the mine without being noticed ; but to inspect 
a colliery like Wallend takes three d eys. Well, it is possible that the furnace-man thought in this case 
that we were not going to check the furnace at all ; and it was the last thing we did, at the end of the day's 
inspection, before we linished. I am satisfied it is impossible to make an inspection of a colliery without 
its being known all through the colliery, if they wish to let it be known. 
17807. Q. In addition to the case you mentioned, can you mention other cases where you found the 
ventilation defective because of the furnace, throughout your various check-inspections? A. I would not 
like to say that I have. There is one mine in my mind's eye now that is not very well ventilated at 
present but I believe that possibly the fault is not with the furnace altogether so much as with the 
position of the mine itself. At any rate, I do not think anyone need hesitate a moment in saying that a 
fan is far before a furnace under any circumstances. 
17808. Q. I think that is agreed the only point is whether, in cases where there are furnaces in existence, 
the Legislature should prohibit their use, and substitute the fan 1 A. I think so. 
17809. Q. Recommendation No. 4—" \Vaste workings to be absolutely sealed off, and surrounded by 
return airways ; such return airways not to come in contact with intake." That is opposed, as it stands, 
on ace.uunt of its being impracticable, in the opinion of the Northern Union. I would like to hear what 
you have to say upon that matter 1 A. I do not believe in sealing-off under any circumstances, if it can be 
avoided. I believe in ventilating goaf as well as working places, if it is practicable at all. Of course it is 
sometimes necessary to seal off a portion of a mine ; but that, generally, should only be done in the case of 
fire, or something like that. 
17810. Q. In a small goaf, where it is practicable, should it be sealed off, in your opinion? A. There is 
always a certain amount of risk in sealing-off. It causes an accumulation of gas, if there is any there to 
accumulate; and there is always the danger of a fall knocking the stoppings out and driving the gas out 
in fact, I know of a case only a few months ago something similar. 
17811. Mr. Wade.] Q. What is that case? 
17812. Mr Lysay/et.] Q. Mr. Wade wants to know what is that case? A. In the Newcastle Co.'s B Pit. 
17813. Q. What happened? A. That was a closely sealed-off small waste with about twenty bords in it. 
It was bounded on one aisle by the sea barrier, by the narrow bords that comniunicate the two pits, the 
A and B pit, by a fault, and by what they call the Laclysmith Heading, or the Sea Headings. The bords 
were finished on this fault ; the inclination of the fault was to the B pit, the working places from both pits 
finish on the fault ; there were a pillar or two to be taken out; and somehow or other the Manager thought 
it better to leave them in. They sealed the gob up ; and the ground started working, and threatened the 
communication betwven the two pits ; and finally fell in the goaf, broke a stopping, burst a stopping, and 
drove a considerable quantity of black-damp out on the main airway to the Ladysmith district. If it had 
been fire-damp the result might have been disastrous. It happened to be black-damp in this case ; but still 
it caused the pit to knock off. 
17814. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Wau that main airway an intake? A. Yes, it was an intake to the district 
working the sea coal at that pit. 
17815. Mr. Lysag/et.] Q. And what kind of stopping was put into that place? A. What were called refuse 
stoppings, cemented. 
17816. Q. Then you give that as an illustration of the danger of sealing off any waste? A. That is how I 
look at it. There is always a danger of gas, or something of that kind, accumulating where the goaf is 
completely shut off from the air. 
17817. Q. And you suggest that the goaf should, as far as practicable, be ventilated? A. Yes. 
17818. Q. You mean by an independent split of air? A. Or the return air from working splits. 
17819. (1. Then you approve of that part of the recommendation, that it is to be surrounded by return 
airways 1 A. I do not know. That seems to me almost impracticable in many cases. To attempt to do 
that in those pits that I know now, would cost nearly as much as reopening the pit again, or opening a new 
mine. 
17820. AIr. Robertson.] Q. But, with reference to the future, what do you say? I think your remarks only 
apply to existing conditions? A. It would cost no mere than the driing of a narrow place, if it is for new 
workings ; although I do not actually see the necessity of it. 
17821. Q. Is it not possible to so arrange, in a new mine, or a new district, that the old workings or wastes 
shall be surrounded by return airways? A. It is possible enough, certainly. 
17822. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Do you think that would be a wise precaution to have taken in the future? 
A. It would not do any harm, certainly. 
17823. Q. Then you approve of that recommendation so far as the future is concerned? A. Yes. 
17824. Mr. Ritchie] Q. In the case of the fall you have mentioned, if there had been a return airway 
instead of an intake airway, would the danger, which you foresaw niighit have arisen from that fall, still 
have been there? A. Yes, the possibility is that the fall would shift the stoppings between the return 
and the intake, just the very same. 
17825. AIr. Robertson.] Q. But then the return airway would have carried away the black-damp without its 
coming in contact with the men at the faces ? A. I am of the opinion that, under the circumstances, if 
there had been a return airway between the intake and that fall, there would still have been a considerable 
portion of the black-damp forced out on the main airway. 
17826. Q. If the stoppings were blown out between the return and the main airway, the result would have 
been to short-circuit, and noxious gas would certainly have been taken away to the furnace or the fan I 
A. The faces would be left without air altogether, in that case. 
17827. It is better to be left without air than to have black-damp? A. Yes. 
17828. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. How far were the working faces, in that case, from where the fall took place? 
A. They were on the inbye side. There is a 5-chain barrier; and then the working faces were inside of 
that. I think it is a 5-chain barrier, if I recollect rightiy. 
17829. Mr. Lysag/et.] Q. I take it, then, that you do approve of the wastes being surrounded by return 
airways? A. Yes, in new developments. 
17830. Q. And, where practicable, under present conditions? A. Yes. 
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17831, Q. Are you opposed to an intake airway passing a waste; that is to say, an intake that has to g 
on to the men ? A. And the waste open 
17832. Q. Yes? A. I do not believe in intake air being taken past an open goaf, and carried into the mine 
—certainly not. 
17833. Q. In your opinion, what is that? A. My opinion is that it would vitiate the air. 
17834. A. That is, it is bad management to do such a thing? A. Yes, 
17835. Mr. Ritchie.] A. How would you prevent that, when you say you do not believe in the sealing-off, 
and you say it is not necessary to have the goaf surrounded by return airways? A. I do not see that it is 
necessary to have the goaf sealed-off. In this case there would be a line of stoppings shutting it off from 
the intake airway. 
17836. Q. Supposing there were nothing but intake airways round that place, what would you do then? 
A. Then you would have to seal it off. That would be a very unusual condition of things. 
17837. Mr. .Lysaght.] Q. Let me show you here on this plan. ({r. Lysaght then pointed out the 35-acre 
goaf on the plan, showing the witness that, on the side towards the No. 1 main level, the goaf was passed 
by a return airway, but on the three sides, the south, east, and north, the roads by which it was passed, 
called respectively the 2nd Right rope road, the Cross-cut heading rope road, and the 5th Right rope 
road, were all intake airways. Mr. Lysaght informed the witness that on the eastern and northern sides 
of the goaf there were some openings from the goaf on to the intake airways). 
17838. Jir. Lysaght.] The point is that there was an intake passing an open waste. 
17839. Mr. Wade.] That is not correct. 
17840. Mr. Robertson.] I do not think there is any evidence that that waste was open. It was stopped up. 
17841. Mr. Lysaght.] With every respect, I believe there is evidence; and I am now in possession of 
evidence which I did propose to offer to the Commission hereafter, from some stonemen, that not one of 
these openings was closed—the practice was to leave the whole of them open. 
17842. Mr. Robertson.] I do not know what evidence you intend to bring; but my impression, from the 
evidence that is before us, is that the openings were stopped off by stoppings. 
17843. Mi•. Lysaght.] I understand that it is not too clear that that was so. Mr. Morrison said a few of 
them were open. I am putting this question to Mr. Bower, in view of what Mr. Ritchie said—what would 
he do if an intake airway were allowed to pass an open goaf id. In this particular case, if you have 
described it correctly, the air must have short-circuited. It must have gone through the goaf and into the 
return. 
17844. Q. No doubt sonic of it did scale through the goaf. 
17845. Mr. Ro!ertson.] Q. The tendency would be for the air to go into the goaf and pass out into the 
return? A. Yes, that is reasonable to suppose. 
17846. Q. Yes, but it is a 35-acre goaf, fallen and rammed tight? A. If it was tight and settled, it should 
have been stopped off. 
17847. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Suppose a fall had taken place in the centre of the goaf, and had left the eastern 
side with a great space that had not been closed by falls next the intake airway, what would you do then? 
A. I would still send a scale of air through that goaf. 
17848. Q. But suppose it was closed up about the centre so that no air could get through? A. My original 
answer would apply to that; because., if there were a good portion of that goaf standing, certainly, if you 
sealed it tightly off, it would be likely that there would be an accumulation of foul gas of some kind—that 
must naturally follow. 
17849. Q. If the stoppings are open, and a very large portion of that goaf is falling next the intake airway, 
as it would naturally be generating gas, that gas would naturally conic out in the intake airway 
A. Certainly it would, if there is no circulation through to the return. 
17850. Q. Say, for instance, that an accumulation took place in the goaf when these stoppings were in, 
secure; and a heavy fall took place in the part of the goaf which remained unfallen, and sent a very large 
accumulation out on the intake airway? A. The result, to my mind, would be exactly the same. If a heavy 
fall took place, it would blow any reasonably built stopping out, and the gas would be forced out on the 
intake all the same; but i your contention is correct, that there was no air circulating through that goaf 
to the return, then it should have baen stopped off altogether, to stop the exudations from the goal getting 
out on the intake airway. 
17851. Q. In the case of a goal known to be standing and likely to fall at any moment, which may have 
contained an ac3umulation of noxious gas, what would you do with the men working on the inbye side of 
that? A. Have them out. They should not have been in there. 
17852. Q. Where you anticipated a heavy fall? A. The men should have been knocked off and sent out. 
17853. Q. Without any knowledge, of course, of what the fall might gend out? A. Yes. 
17854. Q. And, in all cases like that, you would always have the men out? A. Yes, in anticipation of 
a heavy fall of ground, it is not right for men to be on the inbye side of it at all : at least it ought not to 
be allowed. 
17855. AIr. Robertson.] But would it make any difference if the fall discharged the gas, assuming there was 
gas in there, into a return airway, if the men were not inbye, in the sense that the return airway passed 
the place where the fall was expected? A. I think, where a great displacement like that would happen, it 
is hard to say where the gas might be driven to, because the air would be reversed in all directions probably. 
The gas might be driven into any corner of the mine. 
17856. AIr. Ritchie.] Q. Through disarrangement of the canvas ? A. Through a disarrangement of the 
ventilation altogether. With a great dislocation of air like that it is hard to say where air may travel in 
the mine. 
17857. Q. AIr. Robertson.] Then you cannot provide for such a contingency ? A. You can do this there 
should be a proper patrol to watch a fall like that, if there is any indication of it. It does not, as a rule, 
come away immediately—at least that is not my experience of falls—and there is generally time to get 
men out alter it begins to work. I have known ground to work for days; and so, I suppose, have most of 
you. 
17858. Q. And sometimes it comes away suddenly. You cannot stop the men in the expectation of a fall 
taking place that may not take place for six months? A. I believe it would be better so. The ground may 
work; but I can hardly understand its wcrking like that for six months. 
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17859. Q. It may not work : it may stand up for six months? A. That is not my experience; and I have 
seen a lot of falls. 
17860. Q. But I presume you have seen ground stand up for a long time? A. Yes, I have seen ground 
stand for years, and there were no sign of its falling at all. 
17861. (7. Would you stop the colliery in such a case? A. No ; I say there should be a proper system of 
patrol. 
17862. (7. Then you would patrol for years? A. Certainly; why should not a man be kept to look after a 
goaf like that, if necessary. Better that than a disaster at any time. 
17863. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. if, Mr. Bower, a fall had taken place 2 feet high in that 35-acre goaf, what 
should have been done A. That is 2 feet thick of it coming away at first-that is an indication of its 
working, certainly. 
17864. Q. And what should then have been (lone by the management? A. It should have been watched 
to see if any more were breaking ; and, if there were any symptoms of it, the men should have been 
withdrawn. 
17865. Q. Well, in the Kembla case, 2- feet of that roof had fallen at the edge of the goaf, according to the 
examining deputy, a week before the disaster. Should all the men have been withdrawn on the inbye side 
of that goaf until the fall was completed 1 A. Not necessarily so. It should have been watched, though, 
very closely. 
17866. Q. Such a fall having taken place, there was always the possibility of a much larger fall, with the 
probability of forcing out inflammable gas ? Exactly. 
17867. Mr. Robertson.] Q. If you knew of the existence of gas? A. If you knew of it, of course ; but, 
unless it was possible to examine the goaf, it would not be possible to know whether the gas was existing 
or not. 
17868. Mr. Lysaght.j Q. But it would be possible to examine the goaf with a fall of only 2 feet? A. That 
would depend upon circumstances. A man would not always travel a goaf of that extent over the top of a 
fall, without he is sure that the roof is steady. 
17869. Q. But where black-damp was discovered at the edge of the goaf after the fall, what should have 
been done? A. I do not know what he could do, except report it, and try to get it carried off, I suppose. 
17870. Q. In such a case should the men have been withdrawn? 
17871. Mr. Bruce Smith.] You might tell him how much there was, an infinitesimal quantity. 
17872. Mr. Lysaght.] Then you do see the necessity, in the case of an intake airway passing a goaf, of 
having the goaf sealed off against that intake airway so that the air cannot possibly scale through the fall I 
A, Certainly it wants sealing off then, on that side. 
17873. Q. But you would leave it to be ventilated by a return airway, or by an independent air split? 
A. Just so. 
17874. Q. Recommendation No. 5-" All places, excepting prospecting drives, to have cut-throughs not 
more than 30yards apart"? A. Yes, I was always in favour of short cut-throughs. Before the 1896 Act 
was passed, I think we recommended from our district 20-yard cut-throughs. 
17875. Q. Have you ever read of a creep through having the pillars too small in this State I A. Oh, yes, 
plenty of creeps. 
17876, Q. Can you say what were the sizes of the pillars in the cases  you have in your mind? A. I think 
they were 4 yards in all cases-4 yard pillars by 35 yards long, or thereabouts. 
17877. Mr. JVade.] Q. Is that the Hamilton case you are speaking aboat ? A. No. Wallseud, lately, for 
that matter. 
17878. Mr. Lyaght.] Q. \Vhat was the size of the pillars at Wallsend where the creep tojk place I A. They 
were 4-yard pillars, by 35 yards, I think. 
17879. Q. What was the cause of that creep? A. The place there had stood something like twenty-five or 
twenty-six years, and had not fallen at all, until the present workings got back, and they started to take the 
pillars out. It was quite evident that there had been just enough coal left in to carry the roof ; because, 
almost immediately they started to take the pillars out, she started to work, and ran over the lot of them. 
That is what happened. 
17880. Q. And at the Hamilton Pit what was the size of the pillars? A. Thirty-five yards, by 4, I think. 
17881. Q. And was the fall there through the removal of those small pillars? A. Exactly the same 
conditions-as soon as they started to remove the pillars the ground started to work, and she travelled over 
the lot. 
17882. Q. Are those the only two instances you have in your mind of creeps through having the small 
pillars? A. No, there have been creeps in almost all the mines in the Newcastle district, through the same 
fault. I recollect more than one creep in Lambton over thirty years ago, where the pillars were not 
disturbed at all. 
17883. Q. However, all these were under practically the same conditions? A. Yes, a 4-yard pillar was the 
only pillar left in those days. 
17884. 0. i)o those creeps at all bear upon the suggestion of having cut-throughs every 30 yards? A. No, 
I do not see how that has anything to do with it. 
17885. Q. it has been suggested that there is a danger of creeps if the cut-throughs are every 30 yards. 
What do you say upon that? A. That, if there is any doubt about it, they can leave another yard or two 
on the pillar, and make up the dillkrence. 
17886. Q. In your experience, with your practical knovlcdge, do you think that there is any danger of a 
creep through having cut-throughs every 30 yards? A. No, I do not think so; if the pillars are left large 
enough, 1 (10 not see how it can weaken them worth talking about. 
17887. Q. Then these creeps that you have mentioned are not, in any sense, an argument against this 
recommendation? A. No. 
17888. Q. The conditions were such as to be altogether different from the conditions which this recommen 
dation suggests? 
17889. Mr. Bruce Smith.] He has not said a word about the conditions. That is entirely your own 
evidence, which you are asking him to assent to. 
17890. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. I ask you, are the conditions altogether different? 
17891. His Honor.1 Mr. Bruce Smith objects to that, Mr. Lysaght. 
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17892. Mr. Lysaylit.] It is a natural deduction which is quite clear to everybody else but Mr. Bruce Smith. 
17893. His Honor.] I have very often said, Mr. Lysaght, that evidence which is led up to in that way 
really conies with very little weight to any Court. 
17894. Mr Lysaglrt.1 I appreciate that. 
17895. His Honor.] Whereas evidence which is given by a witness of his own motion has the full 
effect which the witness' evidence, due to his knowledge and integrity, deserves. 
17896. Air. Lysaylit.] Yes, Your Honor. 
17897. Q. I ask are the conditions which you mention when the creeps took place altogether different from 
the conditions which would exist if the cut-throughs were every 30 yaids. 
17898. his Honor.] That is really the same. 
17899. A/i.. Bruce Sm-it/s.] He has never really mentioned any conditions at all. 
17900. his Honor.] The witness was speaking about pillars of a certain size. That; I understand, is the 
only condition which he has mentioned which distinguishes these cases from other cases where the pillars are 
of a different size. 
17901. Air. Lysoglrt.j In your opinion, what is the largest size of pillars requisite for all safety purposes 
A. That would depend upon the thickness of the strata above the seam. 
17902. His Honor.] That is just it. 
17903. JVitness.] I can fix it for you, at the present time. Taking the last \Vallsen-J creep, and how they 
work now with 8-yard pillars, it is breaking the ground at the surface now, where they are extracted, 
without any crush at all, under 400 or 500 feet of strata; and, in this particular case that I referred to, 
where the 4-yard pillars were left, it was not above 300 feet thick, but the pillars would not carry it. That 
is taking Walisend alone into consideration ; but the same thing applies all over the northern district 
to-day. They have all larger pillars than they had thirty years ago-more than doube the tliicknoss and 
they are carrying the ground very will so far. 
17901. Air. Ritchie] Q. Do you know of any colliery in the north, where, in your opinion, it would ic 
unwise to have cut-throughs every 30 yards? A. I do not. I believe myself that it would be beneficial in 
most cases. 
17905. Q. Have you been in nearly every colliery in the north? A. I have been through every working 
colliery in the northern district, with the exception of one only. 
17906. Air. Lysag/it.] Then, would the enforcing of cut-throughs every 30 yards, in your opinion, at all 
interfere with the safety of the mine in any respect? A. I do not think so; I do not see how it could 
possilly do so. 
17907. Q. What do you offer as the advantages of these cut-throughs every 30 yards? A. In the first place 
it would assist in the extraction of the pillars, where they are going to be taken out and it would certainly 
assist the ventilation, to the extent of not having to carry brattice so far ; and my experience of any 
bratticing is, except it is specially erected, that it loses its air very rapidly-it carries the air badly 
17908. Q. In your experience, has the bratticing been done in a way that would carry the air to the face? 
A. When it is carried in a workmanlike way ; but this happens to be the case, that the men have not the 
time to put it up on the most scientific principles, that is to make it perfectly air-tight. It is nothing ]ike 
tha. It is losing air from the time the brattice catches it till it gets to the face. There are a great number 
of places in the northern district to-day where it is very doubtful whether the Act is complied with at all 
because you could put a light behind many brattices, and you would not find the light deflected a bit, 
especially when they are up to the dis'ances to put over cut throughs. 
17909. Q. You might tell us what is the longest drive you know of in the Newcastle district without a 
cut-through? A. I think Dudley is the only place I know where they are driving 70 yards and my 
experience of that is this, that I find, where those bards are worked, the temperature is considerably higher, 
perhaps a couple of degrees, than where the cut-throughs are cut shorter. That is my experience, and that 
is what I told the Manager at Dudley, toe. 
17910. Q. And do you know whether that defect has been remedied by putting in the cut-throughs? 
A. Not that I am aware of. They still continue a certain number of 70-yard bores. 
17911. Q. In addition to its being hot, what do you say about the air that one can find passing there? 
A. The brattice is losing air all the way ; the force of it is much less effective than it would be if the cut-
through were only 30 yards further back. 
17912. Air. Robertson.] Mr. Bower did not say the piaues were hot., Mr. Lysaglit lie raid the temperature 
was two degrees higher. 
17913. Air. Lysctght.] Q. Did you mean to say that the temperature was hot in those places? A. I mean 
to say that the temperature had mci-eased perhaps a couple of degrees more than I would find in places 
situated where the cut-throughs were not so far apart.. I do not say they were excessively hot. 
17914. Q. Mr. Bower, the Commission object to the use of adjectives. The places were not excessively 
hot ; but were they hot, as you, as a mining man, would consider a place hot? A. I consider that the 
distance those bords were driven had a tendency to increase the temperature. 
17915. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Can you state the general temperature of the mine? A. I think it is about 76. 
17916. Q. The general temperature of the mine? A. The general temperature runs about 72 to 74; that 
is, at a distance away from the pit bottom ; generally speaking about the working places. 
17917. Q. Then it is very much lower than the temperature at present on the surface ?A. Yes. Iiaturally 
yoo would expect that ; you do not suppose you could work in a coal-mine with the temperature as high as 
it is oii the surface. 
17918. Q. They have to in many places? Q. I (10 not think so. You could not stand 120 in tile shade 
down below, very will. 
17919. Air. L1/saglsL] Q. I want to know whether, in your opinion, as a mining man, those places could be 
called hot that they had driven 70 yards without a cut-through? A. By comparison with the normal 
temperature of the mine, they were hotter than they would have been if the cut throughs had been 30 yards 
apart. 
17920. Aft. Robertson.] Mr. Bower said a few minutes ago that they were not hot, Mr. Lysaght. He said 
they were two degrees higher in temperature. 
17921. Witness.] What I want to convey by that is that it has a tendency to increase the temperature of 
the air current if the cut-throughs are 70 yards apart. 
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I 7922. 31r. Lysarjlst.] Q. Now, recommendation No. 6-" Inspection with locked safety-lamp in all cases." 
That, I believe, is pretty well in practice in the Newcastle district? A. Except in mines where gas has 
never been reported. I believe in some places they make inspections with the naked lights yet. 
17923. Q. In your opinion, do you think they ought to make inspections with the safety? A. Certainly, I 
see no objection to it at all. 
17924. Q. You approve of the recommendation ? A. Yes that an inspection should be made with the 
locked safety-lamp. 
17925. Q. Reconsinendation No. 7-" Monthly examination and report by deputies and District Inspector 
with hydrogen flame." A. I would like to hear what you have to say on that? A. I have had very little 
experience with the hydrogen flame myself. Of course I have been among the Government Inspectors, and 
seen it used and I have been among the Managers, and seen it used I have never used it myself ; but it 
is certainly the most useful kind of lamp to find out the amount of gas that is in the air ; that is, for small 
quantities, at any rate. 
17926. Q. Do you think the monthly examination would be practicable, and not too expensive? A. I do 
not see why the main returns of the colliery could not be tested with it every day for that matter. If 
there is one at the colliery it might as well be used for that purpose as anything else, it is not much trouble 
to go into the main returns and test them. 
17927. Q. It has been suggested that it is a very dangerous lamp to handle? A. I have never had any 
experience of it. I do not see why it should be. They scent to handle it all right. 
17928. Q. You have seen it used by Managers? A. I have had colliery managers with me using it; and I 
have been along with Mr. Humble when lie has used it and I have been along with Mr. Tennant, when 
lie was under-manager at Seaham, when lie was using it. 
17929. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Are you aware that the gas which is contained in the cylinder is at an enormous 
pressure? A. I heard so; something about 180 lb. to the square inch. 
17930. Q. And do not you think it is a very dangerons lamp to take into an explosive atmosphere? A. If 
it burst it would be, certainly. 
17931. Q. If you lost control of the valve, and gas at the pressure of 1,500 lb. to the square inch should 
issue too freely, you might communicate the flame of the lamp to the gas in the mine, if you were testing 
in an explosive atmosphere? A. It is a very reasonable way to put it. It is possible it might happen. It 
is also possible that the glass of an ordinary safety-lamp might get broken by accident. 
17932. Q. But the glass of the hydrogen lamp might also be broken. That danger is present with the 
hydrogen lamp as well as with the safety-lamp ? A. Yes ; that is true. 
17933. Q. And the hydrogen cylinder containing gas at a very high pressure is only an additional danger; 
the hydrogen contained in a cylinder at the enormous pressure of 1,500 lb. to the square inch is an 
additional danger, as compared with the ordinary safety-lamp ? A. It is very satisfactory to know what the 
current of air is carrying to you. 
17934. Q. Yes, I know ; but the point I wish to show you is that the hydrogen lamp is not a lamp to be 
taken into any place where you expect to meet with an explosive mixture? ii. If it is right for the 
Government Inspectors to take them in now, as they do, when the mine is at work, why is not it right for 
the Manager or under-manager to test the return air regular]y ? 
17935. Q. But they do not take it into a place where they know there is an explosive mixture? A. Well, 
I question whether they know till they go in ; because I have been in with them in returns where there 
was a half per cent. 
17936. Q. At all events it is not a lamp to be taken into a place where there is an explosive mixture of 
gas? A. I could not say that, because any safety-lamp at all is in the same predicament ; because some-
thing may happen, and it may set an explosive mixture off. 
17937. Q. But the ordinary safety-lamp has not a cylinder containing gas at a pressure of 1,500 lbs. to the 
square inch? A. But that cylinder, I suppose, is tested to carry the strain. 
17938. Q. But I am suggesting to you the possibility of ]osing control of the valve, and the gas issuing from 
the cylinder to such an extent as to carry the flame of the lamp to the outside atniosphere? A. I see. The 
same thing applies to nearly everything connected with mining. There are always miners' risks all the 
time ; and no one knows that better than you. 
17939. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. But would it not do if this lamp were used only where the ordinary safety-lamp 
could not detect gas? A. I see no oljection to that. 
17940. Q. There would be no use in using a lamp so sensitive as the hydrogen lamp when you could 
detect the gas with the ordinary safety-lamp i A. That is so. 
17941. Q. It should only be used when you could not discover gas by the ordinary safety-lamp. 
17942. Air. Lysajht.] I might say that the recommendation was not intended to apply to a place where gas 
could be found with the ordinary safety-lamp. I never anticipated that a construction would be put upon 
this that was manifestly absurd. It was quite clear, I thought, that the suggestion was that the hydrogen 
lamp should be used for the purpose of discovering whether a mine was giving off a percentage of gas less 
than 2 per cent. If it could be found wiih the ordinary safety-lamp, it would not be necessary ; and I 
dill not suggest that the hydrogen flame should be used. 
17943. Mr. Robertson.] But if you are to finch out whether a mine is giving off gas of a percentage less 
than 2- you must test it with the hydrogen lamp. 
17944. Air, Jy.mg/it.1 Yes. If it is discovered that the mine is giving off 21  per cent., which can be found 
with the ordinary safety-lamp, there is thereafter no necessity to use the hydrogen lamp ; but if gas has 
never been discovered to be given off by the mine to the extent of 2 per cent., then it is necessary to use 
the hydrogen lamp to see whether the mine is giving off any gas at all. 
17945. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Then you would require to go round and examine the mine twice? 
17946. Air. Ltjsaght.] No. 
17947. Mr.Robertson.] Take the case of Kemhla, where I understand gas cannot be discovered with the 
ordinary safety-lamp ; that is to say 2.1 per cent. I presume, under your suggestion, the hydrogen lamp 
would have to be taken all through the mine, from end to end. 
17948. Mr. Lijsaght.] Not so ; if, before the disaster, gas had not been discovered with the safety-lamp, 
if the hydrogen lamp had been used it would have been found that it was being given off in some places 
under 2. per cent. ,'and then steps could have been taken to meet the danger. 
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17949. Mr. Robertson.] I did not understand that there was any liriiitation to this recommendation. 
17950. Mr. Lysaght,] It was never intended to recommend that the hydrogen lamp should be used where 
gas could be discovered with the ordinary safety-lamp. With regard to the objection of Mr. Bruce Smith 
as to going round twice, the mine is inspected every morning with the ordinary safety-lamp ; and, if gas 
is discovered with that, then tlieie is no necessity for the iiydrogn lamp to be used. 
17951. Mr. Bruce Smith.] But on every day that no gas was discovered with the ordinary safety-lamp a 
fresh examinatioc would have to be made with the hydrogen lamp. 
17952. Mr. Ritchie.] But you suggest that it should be made monthly, Mr. Lysaght. 
179.53. Mr Robertson.] Under that proposal every mine in the district would have to be examined from end 
to end with the hydrogen lamp. 
17954. Mr. Lysaght.] No I understand that every mine in the district would not have to be examined 
with the hydrogen lamp because in the majority of the mines in the Illawarra district, inflanimable gcs 
has been discovered often with the safety-lamp. The annual report shows that gas has been discovered at 
Mount Pleasant, Belli, and Keira. The necessity for the adoption of this recommendation is emphasised 
by the Kembla disaster, from the fact that the hydrogen lamp, in various headings, detected a percentage 
of gas under 21 per cent., which the safety-lamp did not detect ; and that percentage is a danger which 
should be known, and would be known in the future if this recommendation were adopted. 
1795.5. Q. Mr. Bower, for the word Deputies" I would substitute the words "Manager, or Under- 
Manager " ; because, in view of the ways deputies are appointed, there may be a danger of an incompetent 
person getting hold of the hydrogen flame ?A. Yes. My committee took this view of it, that it was only 
meant to use it in the returns. 
17956. Air. Robertson.] A very sensible view to take, I think. 
17957. Witness (continuing) And that it did not mean going into every working place with the hydrogen 
flame; but that it simply meant to find out what the ordinary safety-lamp would not find out—that is, 
what amount of gas the mine was giving off. 
17958. Aft. Lysaght.] I put it before the Court, as from the Illawarra Union, that a monthly inspection 
should be made with the hydrogen flame where 21 per cent. has not been discovered with the safety-lamp. 
I do not confine it, as from the Illawarra Union, to a mere inspection of the return airway ; because I can 
see that a danger might arise from that. 
17959. Q. Inn case where the face, being freshly opened, gave off a percentage of gas under 21, per cent. a 
few days after an examination was made, with the hydrogen flame, of the return airway, it would be 
apparent to you that the examination of the return airway with the hydrogen flame would give no indication 
of the danger arising from this newly-opened place giving off under 2i per cent. 1 A. If a new face w cc 
giving off that quantity, it would show, by testing at the face, a good deal over 2., per cent , if there wet e 
2 per cent. in the mixture some distance back from the face. I have myself seen the hydrogen flame detect 
2 per cent, immediately at the face, where it would not have detected any in the air-current. It was 
practically a blower. 

[At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m.] 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming at 2 p.m., Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings) 

WILLIAM BOWER, previously sworn, was further examined, as under 

17960. Aft. Lysaght.] Q. We were speaking about the use of the hydrogen lamp; under what conditions do 
you think it should be used 1 A. I think, as I said before, that it could be used to find out what amount 
of gas there is in the general atmosphere. It may happen that a number of faces of coal are giving off gas 
which cannot be detected by the om dinary safety-lamp. The hydrogen lamp might be used to find out what 
amount of gas there is in the atmosphere in these workings. Suppose, for instance, there were half a dozen-
ilaces each giving off an amount of gas, but yet not enough to be found by the ordinary safety-lamp, then 
the hydrogen lamp might be used to find the amount of this gas, because in the return airway the gas might 
be diluted to an extent to make it unnoticeable. 
17961. Mr Robertson.] Q. If you could not find the gas with the ordinary safety-lamp, you would use the 
hydrogen lamp? A. I take that to be the meaning of the recommendation. 
17962. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. How do you know that the faces are giving off gas? A. It is not hard to discover 
whether a face is giving off gas. A man may not find the gas so far as his lamp is concerned ; but if you 
applied a light to it, you would get flame. 
17963. Mr. Robertson.] Q. There are places where you could try, and it would not be effective? A. There 
are places where I have been working where you could not detect gas with a safety-lamp ; but, at the same 
time, you could light it. 
17964. Mv. Lysaght.] Q. Would you have the hydrogen lamp used only in the return airways, or would you 
have it in other parts of the mine where there may be an accumulation of gas under 2- per cent. I would 
not call it an accumulation of gas ; the atmosphere may be vitiated to 2 per cent., and yet the ordina-y 
lamp may not detect i. When it travels back, it may get diluted with the ordinary air until you cannot 
notice it at all. 
17965. Q. is it not possible that there may be danger from the gas, although you might not be able to 
detect it in the return airway ? A. It may be that a solitary place gives off gas. It is possible that the
atmosphere may vitiate it until it may not be noticeable in the current of air at all if there is 2 per cent. 
of gas in a place, and it is at all dusty, it would be possible for an explosion to result. 
17966. Q. And that 2 per cent. would not be shown by the ordinary safety-lamp? A. No. 
17967. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Do you not think that the hydrogen lamp ought to be used in abandoned workings, 
where the same current of air is not travelling as in the working places ? A. In such a place as that you 
would find an accumulation of gas. If no air got to it, it might fill up like a gasometer ; but if the air was 
travelling through it, I do not think you would find an accumulation. 
17968. Q. The air in an abandoned working may not be sufficient to reduce the gas to a non-explosive 
quantity? A. The hydrogen lamp would show what percentage of gas there was there. 
- - - - 17969. 
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17969. Q. The "as might be reduced to 2 per cent. or to I ? per cent., which amount could not be detected 
by the ordinary safety lamp? A. The hydrogen lamp would be very useful in a case of that kind. 
17970. Q. Will you advocate that abandoned workings should be examined periodically—say monthly_with 
the hydrogen ilame? A. Yes. 
17971. Q. And in the case of goafs which have not fallen, would you advocate that they should be 
periodically examined with the hydrogen flame? A. I have no objection to that. 
17972. Q. Apart from your objection to it, would you advocate that it should be done? A. Most of the 
mines have these lamps; and it is only a question of using them. 
17973. Mr. Lysaght.] We now come to Recommendation No. 8, whichis—" Minimum of 500 cubic feet 
of air per minute to be provided for every horse, instead of 100 as at present." To this the Newcastle 
Board has added the following :-" Not less than 200 cubic feet of air per minute for each man and boy." 
What do you say to that recommendation ? A. I think it would be a very useful innovation indeed. There 
are cases certainly where it may not be necessary ; but in all mines now 200 feet of air is little enough, and 
it is certainly little enough in many cases. I do not think it is too much to ask. In fact, the best mines 
in the Colony supply that amount of air now, and more ; but in some of the mines the air now is still 
very bad. 
17974. Q. Where the minimum amount of air under the Act is supplied, do you think it is insufficient? 
A. Generally speaking, it is. 
17975. Q. You think that it ought to be increased to 200 feet for every man and boy, and to 500 feet for 
every horse? A. Yes. 
17976. Q. Recommendations Nos, 9 and 10 relate to the erection of doors, and read :—" All doors erected 
so as to close and remain closed of their own motion. Double doors on drives, as between main intakes 
and returns, and main headings." Are these in practice now ? ii. No. 
17977. Q. What have you to say on this matter? A. I say that it is necessary. I do not know that I can 
call it any thing else but neglect on the part of those persons who hang doors which are not self-closing ; but 
in ninny mines there are such doors. It is not more trouble to hang a self-closing door than it is to hang one 
that will not close. Double doors are necessary ; an open door will short circuit the curi'ent. You can tell 
when you are measuring the air in a mine whether there is a door open or not. I have noticed it 
frequently. 
17978. Q. In the K€mbla mine it is stated that the intake air depended upon at least four single doors. 
What is your opinion about that as far as management is concerned -- 
17979. AIr. JVade.] Is that a fair question to put to the witness? It is not the only matter on which the 
air depended ; it depended on a lot of other things. It depended, for instance, on a man going round daily 
to see whether the doors were closed. 
17980. his honor.] Amongst other things, as a primary condition, we have the fact that the air in the 
Kembla mine depended on the closing, and on their being closed, of four single doors. That is what Mr. 
Lysaht is asking about ; and I do not see that it is an inmproper question. Mr. Lysaght said that the air-0
current depenthd on these doors ; the ar-current depended on other things as well. The omissions 
of other persons do not affect the question whether the question put by Mr. Lysaght is proper or 
i tim 
17981. AIr. lTTade.] There may be some defect connectei with a double door. 
17982. His hlonor.i  You may take the case of where a watchman is allowed to have an enormous amount 
of property dependent upon his doing his duty properly. Even if you have two watchmen they might fail 
but there is a difference between cne watchman and two watchmen. It may be grcss negligence only to have one 
watchman ; but then both may fail. But, with regard to this matter, it is admitted that it is a proper thing 
to have double doors under certain circumstances. 
17983. AIm Lysaylmt.] I want to get from the witness an expression of opinion that it is bad management to 
have only single doors? 
17984. his honor.] That co;m?d not help the Commission very much--he has already said that double doors 
are essential. 
17985. The Witness.] I would make it compulsory that there should be what we call a trapper at the door. 
Several doors are used by wheelers. When a wheeler comes to a door, lie props it open until he gets his tubs 
through ; and there may be a short-circuit of air for several minutes at a time. 
17986. Jfi. lm'obertson.] Q. You roulci not have that if there were double doors? A. Not if they were far 
enough apart. I think it should be made compulsory to have trappers. A wheeler is a most neglectful 
animal—I have been one myself. He props a door open, and goes away and leaves it open. 
17987. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. I take it that the object of having double doors is that they would not both be open 
at once ? A. That is what is wanted. 
17988. Q. They could be wide enough apart to enable a wheeler to get through, and for one door to close 
before lie opened the other. A. Yes. And it is necessary that they should have trappers. 
17989. AIr. Lysaçj/mt.] Q. Recommendation No. 11 is—" Weekly measurements of air in each section, and 
report thereof to be sent to the Inspeotor"—to which your district has added the words "instead of monthly, 
as at present.' Do you approve of a weekly measurement? A. Yes. 
17990. Q. Why? A. Well, the measurement of the air is taken where it is most useful ; and sometimes I 
take it three or four times, 
17991. Q. Where do you take, in the centre or from the side? A. I usually try my lamp imnmedimttely 
behind the brattice. 
17992. Q. The evidence is that the management take the air in the split? A. I do that myself; but I 
always like to see that the air is carried to the face. I take it three or four times, in order to get the 
average. It does not matter what the amount of air travelling may be; but the question is, what amount 
the men are getting at the face. 
17993. Mr. hm'itc/'i.] Q. How can you measure it at the face? A. By the dcflection of the lamp, or by 
getting some tlry (lust to see which way the current is moving. If you have a naked light at the face, and 
the flammme is deflected, you can easily judge of the air. 
17994. Q. Can you tell by the deflection of the light, or the floating of the dust, whether the required 
quantity of air is there? A. I udge by the temperature, and by my own senses, whether the air is there or 
not. 
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17995. Q. You may be more sensitive yourself than others. Do you think that the deflection of the light is a 
sufficient test ? A. Sometimes you can confine the current sufficiently to get sit anemometer to work ; but 
it will only take a very small area. As a rule, I have been able to judge whether the air is circulating or 
not, 
17996. Q. As a rule, how far are the tests taken from the split? A. I believe that the officials have specific 
places marked off where they take the air. I have found the places marked, and have taken the air at 
thse places. If I am not satisfied I will take it again, and take it in the return airway. I find out how 
much air is wasted before it gets to the end, and I average the three measurements. 
17997. Q. To test their measurements, you take your measurement where they take theirs? A. Yes; and 
I also take a measurement in the cut-through. 
17998. Q. How far in your district is the brattice kept from the face? A. In some mines it is 20 yards; 
in others it is close up-2 or 3 yards. 
17999. Q. Where it is 20 yards away it is satisfactory 1 A. Not always. 
18000. Q. Can you get any deflection in such cases as these? A. There has to be a good current if it does; 
but, generally speaking, it gives one. It has to be a strong current to strike the face. 
18001. Q. It wants a strong current to travel 20 yards to the face? A. I have had the air circulate at the 
face, although the brattice was 60 yards away from it.. 
18002. Q. The air has to come back again? A. Yes. 
18003: Q. Is it consistent to find it strike at the face and come back ugain? A. If it gets to the face it must 
come back again. 
18004. Q. The ingoing and the outgoing air nsust travel at the same pace? A. Yes. You may get a 
gannon bord in the intake airway, and that bord is working with thd place well ventilated, although 
without brattice ; but, in another place, it will not be ventilated, because the current has to go round at 
right angles. 
1800.5. Air. L.ijsaht.] Q. You sugast thtt the measurements should be taken as near the face as the 
anemometer will record, and not only at these stations? A. I think that the measurement should he taken 
as close to the working faces as the air currents travel. That is where it is wanted. 
18009. Q. In practice, do you thirtk there would be any difficulty in having the measurements taken every 
week ? A. I do not think there should be any trouble. 
18607. Q. Now we come to the recommendation as to safety-lamps. It is No. 12, and is as follows :-
"Extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites, equal to one-third of the number of persons employed 
below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." The Chief Inspector has suggested 
that, in mines where open lamps are used, the supply should be equal to one-fifth of the number of the 
persons bAow ground, and, where safety-lamps are used underground, one-tenth of the number should be 
kept as a surplus supply. 
18008. Air. Brace S'oiith.] Tell the witness why the distinction is made. 
18009. Air. Lqsayht.] The idea is that there should always be a number of safety-lamps in a mine available 
for rescue parties, and, therefore, if there are safety-lamps in use, there would be no necessity to have the 
same number of lamps, as a surplus, as if they were not in use. Do you think that is a sufficient number; 
or do you think that a greater proportion should b3 kept on the surface? A. The Chief Inspector suggests 
that there should be one-fifth surplus in the case of open lights. Take the case of the Teralba Colliery, 
where they are working with a single shift ; that would be only four lamps. 
18010. Air. Brace Sinith.1 Q. That is extra? A. They are using naked lights. There would be only four 
lamps. What would be the good of that in a mine which is giving off gas. 
18011. Mr. Lysaght.1 Q. You say that the mine is giving off gas? A. Yes. 
18012. Q. Does the Chief Inspector know that ? A. Yes, I think so. 
18013. Q. Has it been reported? A. I suspect it has. It may or may not have been reported. 
18014. Q. Have you examined it? A. Not as a check-inspector. At the invitation of the owner I went 
down it; I found it giving off a good deal of gas. 
18015. Q. You say that naked lights are being used there, and that there would be only four lamps in the 
case of an emergency? A. Yes; and that would be too few. 
18016. Air. Robertson.] Q. Should there not be a minimum number of lamps kept at any time? A. It 
depends how many lamps are kept. If a sufficient number is kept, you do not want a maximum or a 
minimum number. 
18017. Q. There should be a number of lamps kept? A. There should be enough to equip any rescuers. 
18018. Q. A colliery employing twenty men would not require many rescuers. Do you suggest that a 
certain minimum number of lamps should be kept? A. Well, I happen to know that at that colliery the 
owner has 100 lamps now. 
18019. Q. Take that colliery; and suppose that the owiler has not got any lamps. What do you say is a fair 
thing, as to the minimum number of lamps to be kept? A. I cannot say how many lamps should actually 
be kept; but in the case which I have illustrated the lamps would not be effective at all. Therefore I 
consider that there ought to be forty or fifty lamps available in a mine at all times. 
18020. Q. In any colliery? A. Yes, at any colliery. 
18021. Q. But sunpose you have only about ten men employed? A. Well, if you put any minimum at all, 
a man might shelter himself under it, unless you say so many lamps for so many men. 
18022. A[r. Bruce Sinitit.] That is the proposal here. 
18023. Air. Robertson.] Q. The idea would be to have a certain proportion, or have a certain number and 
make that the absolute minimum; but a mine employing five or six men would not require to have forty 
or fifty lamps kept in reserve? A. There are mines like that; but the fact of the matter is that they ought 
not to be allowed to work. 
18024. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. The proposal by Mr. Lysaght is that the supply of lamps should be equal to one- 
third of the number of persons below ground? A. That would make six or seven in a casu like that I 
have mentioned. - 
18025. Mr. Robertson.] I think the only way is to have an absolute minimum number at any colliery. 
18026. Air. .Lysag/st.] I think we ought to have a graduated scale according to the number of men employed. 
18027. Mr. Robertson.] How would it do to have a minimum number of thirty for any mine employing over 
twenty persons. 
18028. Mr. Ritchie.] There appears to be a necessity for having a minimum number. 18029. 
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I 8029. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Would you- have a minimum number equal to the number of persons employed, if 
safety-lamps are not being used? A. it would be too much, would it not? It would mean in the Wallsend 
Colliery 500 lamps ready all the time. 
18030. Mr. Bruce Smith.] This is not the place to settle the question. 
18031. Mr. Robertson.] We are only putting the matter to the witness. 
18032. Mr. Lysaght.] We want to see whether the witness will adopt the idea as to a minimum. 
18033. JVitness.] 1 would take the suggestion as a basis, and take twenty lamps for each hundred men 
employed. That may be a way out of the difficulty. 
18034. His honor.] Q. What would you do if a less number than twenty men are employed? A. You 
could start with a minimum of twenty. Below that number there may be enough lamps to do something 
with. The days are rapidly going past for a less number than twenty men to be employed. I would make 
it twenty in all cises. Where a company is sinking a shaft, they will not work with less men; because 
they want to make it pay as soon as possible, and a mine will never pay with less than twenty men; I 
think they should always have twenty lamps. 
18035. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Recommendation No. 13 is-" Travelling and haulage roads, and other places 
necessary to be properly wteicd." To this the Newcastle Union has added "All travelling, main, and 
horse roads to be 6 feet high." From Lithgow it is also suggested that there be added the words "And 
properly timbered and kept clear of any tops that may have fallen ; and that the travelling roads be made 
not less than 6 feet high." What do you say as to the first part of that recommendation ? A. I am in 
favour of it. It is done now in some mines ; and I think it ought to be done. The watering is done 
autoniatically ; and there is no trouble attached to it. 
18036. Q. Are there many mines in the Newcastle district where automatic watering has been carried on? 
A. Yes; and since the Kembla disaster a good many more have been added to their number. 
18037. Q. Prior to the Kembla disaster how many mines were there which, to your knowledge, were 
automatically watered on the travelling and haulage roads? A. Several were doing it partially ; but to (lay 
they are doing it more effectively. 
18038. Q. Had they appliances? A. They used to water round about the travelling ways with skips and 
tubs ; but that did not water round the sides of the mine, and they have appliances now which do that. 
18039. Q. Did they, before the disaster, have appliances which watered round the sides ? A. The Dudley 
Colliery hal in a portion of the mine ; and the Seaham Colliery had pipes laid down, but had no water 
supply. 
18040. A. In other mines where they water the roads, do I understand that the water was not allowed to run 
out of a hole in the bottom of the tank, but that it ran all over the road 1 J. Since the disaster they are 
adopting a better means of watering, but not before. 
18041. Q. Regarding the height of the travelling, main, and horse roads? A. We have an example of that 
in one of the most expensive mines, the Mmmi Colliery. They carry it out there, and that shows that it 
can be done. The roads there were from 4 feet to 5 feet high ; and they are brushing them up to 6 feet 
high-all the horse roads and the travelling road. 
18042. Q. Do you agree that the height of the travelling, main, and horse roads should 6 feet? A. Yes. 
And I may say that, since that idea has been carried out at the colliery I have mentioned it is one of the 
best collieries, and most effectively ventilated, in the district. It has been difficult to ventilate, because it 
is an o!d colliery with a huge number of goafs about it ; but the ventilation now is the best in the district. 
18043, Q. And do you agree that all the roads ought to be properly timbered and kept clear of any tops 
that may have fallen ? A. That ought to follow as a matter of course. But I want to say this : that the 
Minmi Colliery is one of the most expensive collieries in the district, as far as the miners' money is concerned, 
because it costs a lot to put the coal on the surface ; but notwithstanding that fact, and also the fact that they 
have a very hard roof, they are carrying out this brushing. If they can do it, every other colliery ought 
to be able to do it 
18044. His honor.] Q. As far as you know the colliery is a paying one 1 A. 01), yes; it is paying. The 
Browns do not run any colliery which would not pay. 
18045. Mr. Ritchie.] There are three other collieries there. 
18046. Mr. Robertson.] Q. You say that it can be done without expense? A. No; but I say that it pays 
them to do it. The Seaham and the West Walisend Collieries could have carried it out, and it would have 
been less difficult for them, with their seam of coal, if they had done so. 
18047. Q. This 4 feet seam of coal is a thin seam, is it not? A. There are hundreds of acres visible now. 
18048. (7. With a 4 feet seam brushing is indispensable? A. Why 
18049. (7. You could not work a 4 feet seam for any distance without brushing. Can you work a horse in 
a 4 feet seam? A. You can get ponies in, as they are doing now at Wailsend. 
18050. Q. At all events, this is a very thin seam ; and I take it that brushing is indispensable? A. Yes. 
18051. (7. Having to brush, the cost is not so much greater to brush from 4 feet to 6 feet than from 4 feet 
to 5 feet? A. I think it would be in the case in my mind. 
18052. Q. At all events they have to brush, and the extra cost of brushing to 6 feet would not be very 
material? A. And they have to brush at West Walisend; but they are waiting until they are compelled 
to brush up higher. 
18053. Q. But you are quoting a case where brushing cannot be done without? A. And other mines cannot 
do without it. 
18054. Q. Do you mean to say that, if they had a 5 or 6 feet seam as a minimum, people would go to the 
trouble to brush to 6 feet I A. Probably they would. 
18055. Q. You do not think they would? A. I do not know that they would. 
18056. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Do you think that they should? A. I think that they should; and I think that 
they would according to what I know of the Browns. 
18057. Mr. Robertson.] That is all very well; but we want the collieries to pay. They are not run as 
benevolent institutions. 
18058. Mr. Lysupht.] Q. Recommendation No. 14 is-" That Managers should be compelled to give more 
personal time and attention to the management of the colliery "1 A. I do not know very much about that. 
From what I have heard some of the men think that the Managers give too much attention to the 
colliery, and they are sometimes in the road. 
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18059. Q. What do you think would be a fair thing to demand of a Manager, with regard to visiting the 
underground workings Al. I would not make any ruggestion. I know, as a matter of fact, of one colliery 
Manager who has followed his depu.ties through the mine in the morning to see that they were doing their 
work. That might be considered an excess of zeal. 
18060. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Should a Manager devote a great deal of time to the underground workings? A. I 
know of one Manager' who makes it a practice to see every working face in the mine every fortnight. I 
have worked in a mine where I did not see the Manager for more than three or four times in the whole of 
the period I was there. I do not know whether he did his duty or not; but I did not see him at my place. 
I think a Manager would be a peculiar man if he did not keep himself posted up in all the work of the 
mine. 
18061. Q. You know that the Manager has higher qualifications than any one else about a mine, unless he 
has under him a firstclass man. But he cught to be competent to see everything that is going on, and he 
ought to be compelled to give a certain amount of his time underground, and not have the matter left to 
his own discretion—that is the question ? A. I think the Manager should visit the underground workings 
periodically—that is, often—in order to see every lart  of the mine. 
18062. Q. You realise the importance of the Manager himself visiting the mine? A. Yes. 
18033. Mr. Robertson.] Q. You have no reason to believe that they do otherwise? A. I cannot give a 
reason. 
18064. Q. You recognise that the Managers have something more to do than to hunt round the underground 
workings 1 A. Yes ; but there are none of them who could not spare time once a fortnight to visit the 
mine. 
18065. Mr. £ysag/it.] Q. I gather, then, that you think that the Manager should, at least once a fortnight, 
visit the underground workings? A. I think that they should see the whole of the mine at least once a 
fortnight ; but it would take the Manager more than one day in the fortnight. 
18066. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Supposing that was impracticable, unless the Manager devoted the whole of his 
lime to walking round the mine? A. I have never struck a mine of that size yet. 
18067. Q. I will show you one to-morrow, and I will give you a fortnight to do it in. Do you mean the 
working faces 1 A. I mean that the Manager should see all the working faces at least oncea fortnight. 
18068. Q. Do you not think it sufficient to meet the case, if the Manager is more or less in the mine every 
day. You would not pin him clown to go into every place in the pit ? A. He would be none the worse to 
see them every fortnight. 
18069. Q. There are m:my things which a Manager might not see in a large mine 1 A. Well, the Manager 
might only sit at the top ; and with some of them, if they did so, you could feel that they were there at the 
furthest part of the mine. With regard to otie:s, it does not matter whether they are above or below 
ground. 
18070. Q. Then they have no control over the officials at the mine? A. Well, you do not feel it. There is 
a maxim attached to one man in the Newcastle district that whenever lie goes into the mine something is 
sure to happen. No doubt it is a good thing to have a reliable staff; but all the same, a stall' is worth 
looking after, just as in the case of the Manager, whom I have mentioned, who followed his deputies round, 
and discharged two of them the same nornirig as a consequence. 
18071. Mr. Lysagh.] Q. What do you mean by saying that when a certain Manager went into a mine 
something would happen ; do you mean that an accident would happen? A. Something of the kind. They 
used to say that. It was a sort of maxim. 
18072. Q. With regard to Recommendation No. 15, which relates to instruments being placed at the 
bottom of the upcast, I will not trouble about it ; but Recommendation No. 16 is that—" The size of the 
manholes should be enlarged." The Newcastle district desires to add that they shall be " Not less than 
6 feet high, 6 feet deep, and 3 feet wide and to be whitewashed." What have you to ray in support of 
that 1 A. The reason for having enhtrged manholes is that, when half a-dozen or a dozen men are going 
along the travelling road, they may all rush for one hole, and the mcii cannot get in. The recommendation 
as to the places being whitewashed is so that they may be visible, because sometimes the men go past the 
place. It is really wonderful the accidents which do not come oIl' sometimes. 
18073. iIr. JVacle.] Q. Would you have luminous paint ? A. We do not want that. If Mr. Wade would 
go down the pit, and try to find one of there manholes, lie might find that lie had missed a dozen. There 
are plenty of mines which recognise that fact, and that do white\vash the manholes ; but there are others 
who do not. I know the difference of trying to find a manhole which is whitewashed and one which is not. 
18074. Air. Robertson.] Q. This would only be necessary in the travelling roads which are used as haulage 
roads 1 A. It would only be necessary in haulage roads used as travelling roads. Where the haulage road 
is not so used, it would not be necessary. 
18075. Q. You know the difference between an endless rope and the main and tail rope 1 A. Yes. 
18076. Q. With the endless reps there is really no need for manholes? A. Yet; I can tell you of a case 
where the endless rope broke with something like two or three hundred skips on it ; and it was a wonder 
how the men got outt of the way. 
18077. Q. That is an extraordinary occurrence? A. It is not often that endless ropes break in this way, or 
that they are fitted to an incline such as this was. 
18078. Q. Would you limit the recommendation, with regard to increasing the size of manholes, to haulage 
roads, where the main and tail rope system is usel 1 A. Yes; I think a man could always get out of the 
way of the endless ropes. 
18079. Q. The speed of the endless rope is only from one to two miles an hour. And that is not dangerous, 
because a man could walk in front of it? A. Yes. But I should insist upon the manholes being splashed 
with whitewash. That is not much cost ; and I think it is necessary. 
1800. Q. On the haulage road only? A. On the haulage road certainly. 
180.51 .JIr. Lysreg1t.] Q. Recommendation No. 18 has reference to the instruction of employees regularly on 
the naeans of escape. To this the Newcastle district desires to add the following :-" And that pl'oper 
.machnery be kept at the second shaft outlet to lift all employees to the surface within one hour." The 
Lithgow Union desires to add the following words :—" That all escape shafts be properly equipped with 
means to draw men in case of accident ; and proper means of signalling he also fixed." What have you to 
say to that ? A. With reference to the first part, it is carried out now in some mines. It is necessary that 
th inca should know the easiest and the best ways out if anything arises. 18082. 
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18082. Q. What is carried out? A. In some mines the men are taken out by alternative roads—by the 
second outlet—so that in case of anything happening they need not go out by the usual road. I think this 
should be made compulsory. I think that every man working in a mine should know all the outlets. 
18083. Q. Where is it that the men are taken out in this manner? A. They are taken out, se many each 
(lay, by the deputies. I know it is regularly clone at Stockton. And I know that the men take it like a 
dose of physic_they do not like it. They have to climb a long ladder at the shaft. 
1808 t. Q. Has it been found practicable to do it at Stockton. A. Yes. 
18085. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Does the deputy only take out some of the men? A. The deputy takes out so 
many men each night, until he works that district out. 
18086. Q. Tke difficulty suggests itself that, in an extensive minp, where there are a large number of 
alternative roads, it would take a long time—it might take weeks—to show the men a different way out. 
It was proposed by a witness here yesterday that, instead of the men being taken out in this manner, the 
(ltlThreflt turnings should be whitewashed so that the men would know the direction in which to go to find 
their way to the shaft? A. That is done at some places now. 
18087. Q. Would that not be a sufficient substitute for showing the men the different outlets, where the 
mine is very extensive, and where there might be sonic difficulty in getting the men to come out ? A. The 
idea is a very good alternative, if it is carried out thoroughly ; because you can easily guide men by white-
wash splashes to go anywhere. 
18088. Q. In a large mine the men might forget the lesson which they have been taught ; but with the 
corners of the road whitewashed every man would find his way out I A. It would do as an alternative. 
18089. Q. You have no objection to it? A. I have found my way out in that way in tile Wallsend 
Colliery, where they have the travelling roads marked in that way. There are marks on the roof, and 
crosses elsewhere. I think that would do as an alternative supplemented as it is by the evidence that the 
men do not take kindly to being shown the way out. 
18090. Mr. Robertson.] Well, here it is said that the men rather like it, and that they tumble over each 
other to be shown the way out. 
18091. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Do you put that as a substitute to the recommendation that has been made, or as 
an addition? A. I would put it as an alternative. I would put both proposals in, and let it be optional. 
18092. Q. Why not have both systems? A. I would leave it optional. 
18093. Q. In collieries where the travelling roads are marked, are not the men also shown the way out? 
A. Yes. 
18094. Q. You approve of the suggestion—firstly, that the road out should be marked in the way 
suggested, and also that the men should periodically be given general instructions on the way out- 
18095. Mr. Robertson.] I do not think lie said that. 
18096. Mr. Lysaght.] I am trying to carry the witness further than you did. 
18097. Mr. Robertson.] Now you are asking two things. The witness was willing to accept the white-
washing proposal as an alternative. 
18098. JNtnecs.] If the men are agreeable to go a different way out, wh' not send the deputy with 
them? Mr. Lysaght said that they do not oiect. I say that, if the men do not take kindly to being 
shown new ways out of a mine, then you could have the travelling ways marked with whitewash, and the 
other ways fenced off, so that the men could find it themselves if necessary. I do not see why it should 
be made compulsory to have either way. 
18099. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. We want it carried out. But you would not make it compulsory? A. I think you 
would find a difficulty in making it compulsory. 
18100. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. What about the proposal that proper machinery should be kept at the second shaft 
outlet., to lift all the employees to the surface within one hour? A. It might be impracticable in some 
cases. In the second shaft in sonic mines it might take four or five hours to get all the men up. We had 
a case at Waratali to that effect. I have also had experience of the matter myself. It took us a long time 
to get the engine-driver to answer the signal after we got on the cage. That was at }Ietton Colliery. But 
I went to a neighbouring colliery and four minutes after we signalled we were drawn up. That was at 
\Vickham and Bullock Island. In a good many collieries there is a difficulty in getting the machinery to 
work at the second outlet. 
18101. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Do you mean that they should have the machinery ready, and that they should 
have steam up? A. After they have steam up, the machinery may be insignificant and not do the work. 
18102. Q. What was the difficulty? A. The actual haulage machinery was too slow and too light, the cage 
was too small, and there was some, trouble to get three men into it. I thought that we were going to the 
old country, and should never get to the top of the mice. 
18103. Q. Was that Waratah? A. Yes. 
18104. Mr. Lysag/it.] Q. Recommendation No. 19 is—" Coal Mines Act to forbid a black-list of employees 
being kept, and penalising the improper prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment.." Have 
you anything to say with regard to that matter? A. It is a fact that men get discharged for peculiar 
things; and when they have been discharged there is rarely any prospect of their getting work again in 
the same district. 11 know a considerable number of cases of that kind. In the Newcastle district there 
are twenty or thirty men under the ban of being victimised. At South Greta they formed a Lodge, and 
the secretary and his four eons were discharged ; and also the chairman—and, strange to say, most of the 
committeemen. The Manager said that lie wanted to shorten hands ; but that is a nice way of shortening 
hands. I had a man travelling with me at Iletton who was discharged because the report lie sent in was 
too strong; lie was discharged simply because lie did his duty. 
18105. Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Was that a check-inspector? A. Yes. We organised the Union at East Greta. 
We squared that; it had reference to three officers and eight committemen; the ninth one happened to be 
sick. It was a Saturday night when they took office; and on the Monday they were sacked; but we 
got them reinstated. - 
181.06. Mr. Wade.] Q. What was the reason? A. The reason was palpable. They were officers of a Lodge. 
18107. Q. Was there not a written agreement on their part not to join any Newcastle Union? A. What 
do you mean? 
18108. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Had they signed a contract not to join any Newcastle Union? A. I never saw 
that contract. 

18109. 



	

552 
IJ,tiusa-W. Bower, iS February, 1903. 

18109. Mr. JVade.] Q. Did the Manager give that as a reason? A. He did -not give it to me. I had them 
put on again and I brought about an arbitration case which we are about s€ttbng. At my suggestion the 
matter was referred to arbitration. 
18110. hr. Ritchie.] Q. Do I understand that there are some of these men travelling round the- district 
now trying to obtain employment? A. Yes, there are men travelling now looking for work; but I do not 
think they will get it. 
18111. Q. Is it the South Greta Mine that you refer to? A. It is the South Greta Mine I was speaking about. 
18112. Mr. Robertson.] Q. How will legislation help you? A. It is difficult to say. We never see your 
black-list. 
18113. Q. You are assuming now that there is a black-list? A. Well, it is strange, if a man gets discharged, 
that be never gets work again. 
18114. Q. How can you force me to employ you? A. I am only talking about the matter-just referring 
to it. I am not suggesting any way out of the difficulty. 
18115. Q. You are recommending that legislation should be framed to prevent the penalising of discharged 
persons who desire to obtain employment? A. I suppose that I have the names of a dozen men who are in 
that position now. 
18116. Q. I know of this by repute ; but how is legis1aion going to find you employment if I do not wish 
to employ you ? A. I do not think you would employ anyone if you did not wish to do so; and if we put 
anything in the law a Manager might evade it. 
18117. Q. it is unnecessary to keep a black-list of discharged persons; there can be a black-list in a man's 
mind? A. Yes. 
18118. Q. How can legislation prevent that? A. I do not see how it can. I am thoroughly beaten. At 
the same time there is no harm in referring to it. There is no doubt it is common knowledge that such 
things are done. 
18119. Q. You are asking that something should be put into an Act of Parliament that would be no 
good. A. It might be of some good. It might not deter you ; but it might deter others. You think that 
we could not prove that men were victimised. 
18120. Q. No legislation can force me to employ a man if I do not think fit to do sal A. It may prevent 
your discharging a man. 
18121. Q. I cannot discharge you because of your connection with a union? A. It is being done all the time. 
18122. Mi. Ritehie.1 Q. Mr. Robertson says that, instead of keeping a black-list, a Manager would have a 
good memoi-y? A. That is right. But, if a Manager had got a written list, he would not put it in a place 
where it could be found, to give evidence against him. 
18123. Mr. Lgsaght.] Q. There is provision made in the American law against black-listing. Do you think 
if a provision lire that was embodied in our local law it would be of any effect? A. It might act as a 
deterrent, but the difficulty would be to find proof of such a thing. 
18124. Q. Of course you are assuming that the Managers would break the law? A. I am not saying that. 
They need not break any law. I am thinking of the various rules that we work under at the different 
collieries. A Manager can get at a man any time he thinks fit. They are the rottenest rules that ever a 
man worked under. 
18125..... Robertson.] Q. What rules? A. You can send any man out of the pit to-morrow, because no 
man can work under them. 
18126. Q. Do you suggest that the Special Rules should be wiped out ? A. I suggest that they should be 
put in such a way that the men could work in peace. I was one of three that took considerable trouble to 
take down the Special Rules which were proposed at a colliery, and to write out our objections to them. 
These objections were submitted to the men and were approved of. They were sent on to the Acting Chief 
Inspector of Mines ; and we waited for a reply for three weeks, when we got a reply that, because we had 
not sent our objections in print, they would take no notice of them. 
18127. Mr. Wale.] Q. They were dated on a Snnday ? A. Yes. This happened when Mr. Dixon was 
acting as Chief Inspector. A question has been asked in the House on the matter; and that was the 
answer given-because we had not printed our objections he refused to take any notice of them. 
18128. iIIï. Robertson.] Q. Is that a fact? A. Yes. 
18129. Q. I can hardly credit it? A. I am sorry you cannot. The Act provides that the notice shall be 
printed. We did not take any notice of that provision, because we had not got any printing machinery 
with which to do our work. 
18130. Q. Did the Drpartment take that objection? A. Inspector Dixon took that objection; and our 
notice never got any further than the Inspector. 
18131. Mr. kite/us.] Q. Was no notice taken of your objections at all? A. No notice was taken of them. 
18132. Q. Did not the Minister take notice of them? A. The time had expire]. The Special Rules had 
been gazetted by the time we got the reply. 
18133. Q. You know that it is within the power of a Minister to refuse to gazette rules if he so chooses? 
A. \Ve were trying to find out what was the cause of the delay. Mr. Estell was secretary at the time 
and he can tell you all about the matter. 
18134. Mr. Robertson] Q. Did you have any conference with your enaployers about it? A. I have told you 
that, if every Manager attempted to carry out the rules in their entirety, every man would be liable to be 
discharged. 
18135. Did you have no conference with the Managers? A. The Managers hung the rules up, as required 
by the Act, for fourteen days. We noted them, and put our objections in. ]3sfore we got any reply the 
rules were gazetted. 
18136. Q. We have some most comprehensive rules at Helensburgh-there are some 250 of them; and all 
possible offences are thought of; but we never had any trouble. We simply had conliclence in our men. 
They sent in their objections ; and we made amendments? A. You may have (hifierent methods. A man 
may be summoned at Newcastle; but they never take a case into Court. The cases are generally too 
trivial ; and they discharge the man. 
18137. Q. Will you send me a copy of the rules you objrcted to? A. I may have the original objections 
yet. If I have, I will do so. 
18138. Mr. Lysaght.] Do you mean the rules relating to the Newcast?c collieries. 
18139. Mr. Robertson.] I mean these particular rules. 18140. 
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